


Form No. 7

San Francisco

Law Library

No.Z74Bi,
Presented by

EXTRACT FROM BY-LAWS

Section 9. No book shall, at any time, be taken from the

Library Room to any other place than to some court room of a

Court of Record, State or Federal, in the City of San Francisco,

or to the Chambers of a Judge of such Court of Record, and

then only upon the accountable receipt of some person entitled

to the use of the Library. Every such book so taken from the

Library, shall be returned on the same day, and in default of

such return the party taking the same shall be suspended from

all use and privileges of the Library until the return of the book

or full compensation is made therefor to the satisfaction of the

Trustees.

Sec. 11. No books shall have the leaves folded down, or be

marked, dog-eared, or otherwise soiled, defaced or injured. Any
party violating this provision, shall be liable to pay a sum not

exceeding the value of the book, or to replace the volume by a

new one, at the discretion of the Trustees or Executive Commit-
tee, and shall be liable to be suspended from all use of the

Library till any order of the Trustees or Executive Committee
in the premises shall be fully complied with to the satisfaction

of such Trustees or Executive Committee.

II.COX a, CO.



Digitized by the Internet Archive

in 2010 with funding from

Public.Resource.org and Law.Gov

http://www.archive.org/details/govuscourtsca9briefs1506





No. 5095

aitttteJi ^tetea /^O ^

CUtrrtttt Olourt of App^afe

Jfur tli^ Nttttli Cdirrttlt

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellant,

vs.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a Corporation,

Claimant of the Japanese Steamer ''BOSTON MARU,"
Her Engines, etc.,

Appellee,

and

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, as Owner of the AMERI-
CAN STEAMSHIP "WEST KEATS," in Personam,

Appellant,

vs.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a Corporation,

Claimant of the Japanese Steamer ''BOSTON MARU,"
Her Engines, etc..

Appellee.

Ap00tlp0 0tt App^ak

Upon Appeals from the United States District Court

. for the District of Oregon.

FILED
APR Lt i9'/7 'J

^' D. lMiO't4CK70H.

The Filmer Bros. Electrotype Co., San Francisco—4—1—27—60





lo. 5095

Oltrrmt (Hamt af ^ppmU
Jar tljf Nttttlj CUtrrmt

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellant,

vs.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a Corporation,

Claimant of the Japanese Steamer "BOSTON MARU,"
Her Engines, etc..

Appellee,

and

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, as Owner of the AMERI-
CAN STEAMSHIP "WEST KEATS," in Personam,

Appellant,

vs.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a Corporation,

Claimant of the Japanese Steamer "BOSTON MARU,"
Her Engines, etc.,

Appellee.

KpmthB an Appmls.

Upon Appeals from the United States District Court

. for the District of Oregon.

The Filmcr Bros. Electrotype Co., San Francisco—4—1—27—60





INDEX TO THE PRINTED TRANSCRIPT OB
RECORD.

[Clerk's Note: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,

errors or doubtful matters appearing in the original certified record are

printed literally in italic; and, likewise, cancelled matter appearing in

the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein accord-

ingly. When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by
printing in italic the two words between which the omission seems to

occur.]

Page

Amended Libel—No. A.-9492 28

Answer 21

Answer to Amended Libel—No. x\.-9492 36

Assignments of Error—No. A.-9490 45

Assignments of Error—No. A.-9492 49

Caption 2

Certificate of Clerk of U. S. District Court to

Apostles on Appeal 568

Citation on Appeal (Cause No. A.-9490) 6

Citation on Appeal (Cause No. A.-9492) 8

Claim 16

Decree—Nos. A.-9490 and A.-9492 41

DEPOSITIONS ON BEHALF OF THE
GOVERNMENT

:

BERGRETH, ANTON 357

Cross-examination 364

Redirect Examination 368

GIDLOF, EINAR 441

Cross-examination 445

GILLETTE, E. P 404

Cross-examination 429



ii United States of America vs.

Index. Page
DE]^OSITION ON BEHALF OF THE

GOVERNMENT—Continued

:

Redirect Examination 438

Recross-examination 439

JETTS, LEE 453

Cross-examination 456

Redirect Examination 458

Recross-examination 459

SWENSON, C. J 374

Cross-examination 387

Redirect Examination 401

DEPOSITIONS ON BEHALF OF LIBEL-
ANT:

CHIGA, ISOKICHI 524

Cross-examination 541

Redirect Examination 548

Recalled 552

Cross-examination 554

Redirect Examination 557

Recalled—Cross-exarmination 564

Redirect Examination 566

KOMIYAMA, N 560

Cross-examination 563

SAYEKI, S 460

Cross-examination 497

Redirect Examination 517

TOMITA, TOYOJI 548

Recalled—Cross-examination 557

Redirect Examinjrtion 558

YOKOI, H 559



Kokusai Kisen Kahusliiki Kaisha. iii

Index. Page

Libel—No. A.-9490 9

Motion for Leave to File Bill of Pai'ticulars,

Consolidate Causes and Amend Libel 22

Motion of Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha

for Leave to File Amended Libel—No. A.-

9492 27

Names and Addresses of Attorneys of Record 1

Notice of and Petition for Appeal—No. A.-

9490 43

Notice of and Petition for Appeal—No. A.-

9492 44

Order Allowing Libelant Kokusai Kisen Ka-

bushiki Kaisha to File Amended Libel. ... 28

Order Allowing Appeal—No. A.-9490 53

Order Allowing Appeal—No. A.-9492 55

Order of Further Consolidation of Causes No.

A.-9490—No. A.-9492 57

Order on Motion for Leave to File Bill of Par-

ticulars, Consolidate Causes and Amend
Libel—Nos. A.-9490—A.-9492 25

Petition for Further Consolidation of Causes

—No. A.-9490—A.-9492 56

Praecipe for Apostles on Appearl—Nos. A.-9490

—A.-9492 59

Stipulation of "Boston Maru" to Abide by and

Pay Decree 18

Stipulation Re Consolidation of Causes No. A.-

9492 20

Stipulation Re Damages—Nos. A.-9490—A.-

9492 38



IV United States of America vs.

Index. Page
Stipulation Re Photographs—Nos. A.-9490—

A.-9492 39

Stipulation Re Testimony of Captain S. Sayeki 517
Stipulation Re Transmission of Original Ex-

hibits—Nos. A,-9490—A.-9492 58

TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF THE GOV-
ERNMENT :

BALDY, CAPTAIN S. S 145

Cross-examination 155
BERRY, E. H 92

Cross-examination 117

Redirect Examination 144

Recross-examination 145

Recalled in Rebuttal 350

Cross-examination 353
CHASE, HARRY I 297

Cross-examination 299
Redirect Examination 303

GRUNSTAD, CAPTAIN E. D 173

Cross-examination 182

Redirect Examination 190

Recross-examination 191
Redirect Examination 192

HIXON, R. E 62
Cross-examination 79
Redirect Examination 87
Recross-examination 90
In Rebuttal 343
Cross-examination 345

KIMBERK, R. S 193
Cross-exammation 294



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki KaisJia. v

Index. Page

TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF THE GOV-
ERNMENT—Continued :

SANDSTROM, CAPTAIN R 159

Cross-examination 169

Redirect Examination 172

SNOW, MacCORMAC 355

TESTIMONY ON BEHALF OF THE "BOS-
TON MARU":

ALLYN, CAPTAIN JULIUS 258

Cross-examination 266

Redirect Examination 272

OILDEZ, CAPTAIN GEORGE F 305

Cross-examination 314

Redirect Examination 340

Recross-examination 343

McNELLY, CAPTAIN GEORGE 273

Cross-examination 278

Redirect Examination 288

Recross-examination 293

MORAN, CAPTAIN MICHAEL 247

Cross-examination 252

SULLIVAN, CAPTAIN EDWARD ... 196

Cross-examination 206

Redirect Examination 246

TODO, H. S 348

Cross-examination 350





NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF ATTORNEYS
OF RECORD.

Mr. GEORGE NEUNER, United States Attorney,

Old Post Office Building, Portland, Oregon, and

MacCORMAC SNOW, Piatt Building, Port-

land, Oregon,

For the Appellant.

Mr. WALLACE McCAMANT, Mr. W. LAIR
THOMPSON, and Mr. RALPH H. KING,
Northwestern Bank Building, Portland, Ore-

gon,

For the Appellee.

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

A.-9490.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Libelant,

vs.

Japanese Steamship ''BOSTON MARU," Her

Engines, Boilers, Tackle, Apparel, Furni-

ture, etc.,

Respondent.
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A.-9492.

KOKUSAI KI8EN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a

Corporation, as Owner of the Japanese

Steamship "BOSTON MARU,"
Libelant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, as Owner of

the American Steamship "WEST KEATS,"
Respondent.

CAPTION.

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the eighth day

of November, 1924, there was filed in the above-en-

titled court a libel by the United States of America,

as libelant, against the Japanese steamer "Boston

Maru," her engines, boilers, tackle, apparel, furni-

ture, etc., said cause being numbered in said court,

A.-9490; that on said date a warrant of arrest was

dul}^ issued, and said vessel was arrested by the

United States ^Marshal of the District of Oregon ; on

November 10, 1924, Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kai-

sha, a corporation, as owner of the Japanese steam-

ship "Boston Maru," filed a claim for the said "Bos-

ton Maru" as owner thereof and gave stipulation to

abide by and pay the decree, with the Fidelity and

Deposit Company of Maryland, as surety thereon,

which bond was duly approved by the Judge of said

court on November 10, 1924, and the said ship re-

leased to the said claimant; that on November 8,

1924, there was duly tiled in said court a libel, in

which the Kokusai Kisen Kjrbushiki Kaisha, a cor-
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poration, as owner of the Japanese steamship "Bos-

ton Maru," was libelant against the United States

of America as owner of the American steamship

''West Keats," said cause being numbered in said

court, A.-9492; that on said date said libelant filed

a stipulation for costs in the sum of $250.00 with

the Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland,

as surety thereon; thereafter on [1*] November

17, 1924, there was filed in each of the above causes,

a stipulation signed by the proctors for the respec-

tive parties by which it was agreed that said causes

may be consolidated "for the purpose of taking-

depositions and testimony and for trial under the

more convenient title 'Steamship Boston Maru' ";

thereafter on December 8, 1924, the claimant of the

said "Boston Maru" filed its answer to the libel of

the United States ; thereafter on December 10, 1924,

the United States, as owner of the "West Keats,"

filed its answer to the libel of the Kokusai Kiseii

Kabushiki Kaisha, a corporation, as owner of the

Japanese steamship "Boston Maru"; on December

12, 1925, the libelant, the United States, filed in

said cause its motion for an order requiring the

claimant of the "Boston Maru" to file its bill of

particulars, for an order consolidating said causes,

and for leave to amend its libel herein, and on said

date filed herein a bill of particulars of its damages

;

thereafter on February 6, 1926, an order was duly

entered in said cause by the Honorable Charles E.

Wolverton, Judge, in accordance with the forego-

ing motion requiring the said claimant of the "Bos-

*Page-numbcr appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Apostles on Appeal.
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ton Maru" to file a bill of particulars of its alleged

damarges, to consolidate said causes for the purpose

of taking depositions and testimony and for tria-l,

under the more convenient title "Boston Maru,"

and permitting the libelant, the United States, to

amend its libel herein; thereafter on July 6, 1926,

by leave of the Court, the libelant, Kokusai Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha, a corporation, ars owner of the

steamship "Boston Maru" tiled in said cause an

amended libel; thereafter on August 7, 1926, there

was filed in the consolidated cause a stipulation

settling the armount of damages suffered respectively

l)y the "Boston Maru" and by the "West Keats"

in the collision alleged in the libels; that on Febru-

ary 10, 1926, the United States filed its answer to

the amended libel filed by the Kokusai Kisen Ka-

bushiki Kaisha, a corporation, as owner of the Japa-

nese steamship "Boston Maru"; thereafter on Oc-

tober 6, 1926, the said consolidated causes came on

for final hearing before the Court upon the plead-

ings and the proofs before the Honorable Robert S.

Bean, District Judge, and upon said hearing testi-

mony of witnesses was taken in open court and

there was a*lso read in evidence depositions of wit-

nesses theretofore taken i)ursuant to stipulations

of the fjarties; the trial [2] of said cause was

continued on October 27, 1926, October 28, 1926,

and was then continued until November 2, 1926,

and upon said date, said cause was submitted to the

Court; therearfter on November 22, 1926, there was

entered in said cause a final decree of the Court,

(lismissin<2- the libel filed ))v the United States
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against "Boston Mam," and awarding damages to

the Kokusai Kisen Kabiishiki Kaisha, ar corpora-

tion, as owner of the Japanese steamship "Boston

Maru," in the sum of $15,788.91, with interest

thereon at the rate of four per cent per annum,

from October 26, 1924, and its costs and disburse-

ments in this cause, taxed at $212.60; thereafter

on November 24, 1926, the United States, libelant,

filed in said cause a petition for rehearing, and on

December 6, 1926, said petition was denied by the

Court; thereafter on February 17, 1927, the said

United States filed in each of said causes its sepa-

rate notice of said petition for appeal ; its separate

assignments of error, and on said date there was

duly entered in said court separate orders a-llow-

ing the said appeal; also there was filed separate

citations on appeal; on said February 17, 1927,

there was filed in said cause a petition of the United

States for further consolidation of said causes for

all purposes connected with said appeals, and an

order was duly entered thereon consolidating said

causes; thereafter on February 18, 1927, there was

filed in said consolidated cause a stipulation with

the order of the Court endorsed thereon to trans-

mit to the Court of Appeals all of the exhibits in

said cause; on February 18, 1927, there was duly

filed in said cause a praecipe designating the por-

tions of the record which the appellant desired to

have incorporated in the apostles of appeal.

Portland, Oregon, March 10, 1927.

G. H. MARSH,
Clerk. [3]
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Ill the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

No. A.-9490.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Libelant,

vs.

The Japanese Steamer "BOSTON MARU," Her
Engines, Boilers, Ta-ckle, Apparel, Furni-

ture, etc..

Respondent,

KOKUSAI RISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA,
Claimant.

CITATION ON APPEAL.

United States of America,—ss.

To Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha, a Japanese

Coi^poration, and to the Agents, Attorneys and

Stipulators Thereof, GREETING:
You are hereby cited and a'dmonished to be and

appear in the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit to be held at the city

of San Francisco, in the State of California, thirty

(30) days from and after the date of this citation,

pursiuTnt to order made and entered in this court

and cause of the same date as this citation u])oii

the application of the libelant herein and apjielhmt

in this appeal, then and there to show cause if any

there be why that final judgment and decree entered

in said cause November 22, 1926, against said libel-

ant and in favor of said Japanese corporation
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should not be corrected and why speedy justice

should not be done to the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS the Honorable ROBERT S. BEAN,
Judge of the above-entitled court, this 17th day of

February, 1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge. [4]

Due and sufficient service by copy of the forego-

ing citation is acknowledged this 17th day of Feb-

rury, 1927.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
Proctors for "Boston Maru."

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 17, 1927. [5]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

No. A.-9492—IN ADMIRALTY.

The "BOSTON MARU."

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA, a

Corporation, as Owner of the Japanese

Steamship "BOSTON MARU,"
Libelant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, as Owner of

the American Steamship "WEST KEATS,"
in Personam,

Respondent.
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CITATION ON APPEAL.

United States of America,—ss.

To Kokusai Kiseii Kabiishiki Kaisha, a Japanese

Corporation, and to the Agents, Attorneys and

Stipulators Thereof, GREETING:
You are hereby cited and admonished to be mid

appear in the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, to be held at the city

of San Francisco, in the State of California, thirty

(30) days from and after the date of this citsrtion,

pursuant to order made and entered in this court

and cause of the same date as this citation upon

the application of the respondent herein and appel-

lant in this appeal, then and there to show cause if

any there be why that final judgment and decree

entered in said cause November 22, 1926, against

said respondent and in favor of said Japanese cor-

poration should not be corrected and why speedy

justice should not be done to the parties in thart be-

half.

WITNESS the Honorable ROBERT S. BEAN.

Judge of the above-entitled court, this 17th day of

February, 1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge. [6]

Due and sufficient service by copy of the forego-

ing citation is acknowledged this 17th day of Feb-

ruary, 1927.

McCAMANT & THOIMPSON.
Proctors for "Boston :Maru."

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 17, 1927. [7]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

November Term, 1924.

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on the 8th day of

November, 1924, there was duly filed in the District

Court of the United States for the District of Ore-

gon, a libel in cause numbered A.-9490, The United

States of America, Libelant, vs. The Japanese

Steamer "Boston Maru," in words and figures as

follows, to wit : [8]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Libelant,

vs.

Japanese Steamer "BOSTON MARU," Her En-

gines, Boilers, Ta-ckle, Apparel, Furniture,

etc..

Respondent.

LIBEL—No. A.-9490.

The libel of the United States of America against

the Japanese steamer "Boston Maru," her engines,

boilers, tackle, apparel, furniture, etc., alleges as

follow^s

:

I.

During the times herein named libelant was and

now is the owner of a certain steel cargo carrying

steamship known as the "West Keats" and being
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of appi'oximately 8,538 dead-weight tons and 410

feet long. During said times said "West Keats"

was and is em})l()yed as a merchant vessel and op-

erated on behalf of the United States by the United

States Shipping Board, acting through the United

States Shipping Board Emergency Fleet Corpora*-

tion, a corporation organized under the laws of the

United States, acting through the Columbia Pacific

Shipping Company, an Oregon corporation.

11.

The Japanese steamer "Boston Maru" herein

proceeded agirinst is now at the city of Portland

and within the District of Oregon. Said steam ves-

sel is 400 feet long.

III.

At about 44 minutes after one o'clock on the

morning of Sunday, October 26, 1924, a collision

occurred between the said "Boston Maru" and the

said "West Keats" on the waters of the Columbia

[9] River at a point opposite and near Columbia

City, Oregon, by reason of which collision libelant

was damaged as hereinafter alleged.

,

IV.

The circumstances of said collision were as fol-

lows: During the evening of Saturday, October 25,

1924, at a time not exa-ctly known to libelant, the

said "Boston Maru" anchored in the Columbia

River off Columbia City, Oregon, with about 30

fathoms of anchor chain out. The spot at which

the anchor of said "Boston :Maru" was dropped is

not exactly known to libelmit, but on information

and belief libelant alleges that said anchor was
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dropped a little below that certain fixed white light

at or near Columbia City which forms the rear light

of the St. Helens Bar Range arnd a]30ut 600 feet or

700 feet from the Oregon bank of said river. At

and about said point the portion of the Columbia

River deep enough for the anchorage and naviga-

tion of vessels of the type of the said ^'West Keats"

and the said "Boston Maru" extends out from the

Oregon bank for a distance of nearly 2,000 feet

but the fairway and customary channel in use by

such vessels passing up and down said river, and

especially at night, is a-long the Oregon bank and

at a distance just far enough therefrom to afford

safety in navigation, or approximately 400 feet

from said Oregon bank. It is customary to anchor

vessels at or vc short distance below the portion of

said river opposite said rear range light but the

customary anchorage grounds at said point are

considerably further out from the Oregon bank than

said channel or fairway and it is not customary

and it is improper to anchor vessels in said portion

of said river so that they may swing on their moor-

age chains to a point closer than 400 or 500 feet

from the Oregon bank. At the time of said colli-

sion, namely, about 1:44 A. M., October 26,

1924, said "Boston Maru" had swung on her anchor

chain due to a rising tide, which caused a slight

current upstream and due also possibly to a light

southeast wind so that she lay squarely or almost

squarely across the channel and farirway [10] of

said river with her stern approximately 150 feet

from the Oregon bank. Libelant is unable to say
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whether or not her anchor chain was taut at said

time. The night of ssrid collision was very dark,

without fog and clear and the visibility was good.

The sky was cloudy with occasional light rains, al-

though it was not raining at the time of said colli-

sion, nor had there been any rain for some time

before said collision. There may have been a slight

southeast wind on said night but said wind, if any,

was light. At about 10:56 P. M., October 25, 1924,

the said "West Keats" with all her proper navigat-

ing lights burning brightly, fully manned, equipped

and in all respects seaworthy, let go her lines and

left the dock at Municipal Terminal No. 4 St.

Johns, Portland, Oregon, and started down the Wil-

lamette and Columbia Rivers in charge of a pilot

duly licensed by the United States Steamboat In-

spectors and by the Board of Pilot Commissioners

of the State of Oregon, to pilot any vessel on the

Willamette and Columbia Rivers. On reaching a

point on the St. Helens Bar Range approximately

11/4 miles above the pla-ce of collision, said pilot

observed the riding lights of the said "Boston

Maru" and assumed that said vessel was lawfully

and properly anchored in the regulan* and custom-

ary anchorage grounds above described, amd pro-

ceeded on down the river following the said range

with the intention of following the ordinary chan-

nel and fairway and passing between said "Boston

Maru" and the Oregon shore. On arriving vet a

point near the end of said St. Helens Bar Range

and well over to the Oregon bank, said pilot caused

the said "West Keats" to be turned a little to star-



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki KaisJia. 13

board in order to follow down the Oregon shore

with the purpose of passing between said '^ Boston

Mam" and the Oregon shore and of getting on the

Columbia City Range a little more than one-half

mile below the point at which said vessel left the St.

Helens Bar Range. Shortly thereafter it became

evident to said pilot that said "Boston Maru" was

lying with her stern so close to the Oregon shore

as to render passage between the stern of said "Bos-

ton Maru" and the Oregon [11] shore difficult.

At this time it was impossible for said "West

Keats" to stop or turn to pass on the Washington

side of said "Boston Maru" without greatly in-

creasing the hazard of a collision and also the

force and damage of a collision, if such should oc-

cur, and the only reasonable procedure on the part

of the "West Keats" was to continue on and at-

tempt to run the narrow passage between the "Bos-

ton Maru" and the Oregon shore. Said pilot of

the "West Keats" determined to run the said pas-

sage. However, the suction of the water on the

Oregon side tended to draw the stern of the "West

Keats" toward the Oregon shore and although the

helm of said vessel was thrown hard astarboard,

it was impossible to keep the bow enough inshore

to prevent a collision. The said "West Keats"

struck said "Boston Maru" a glancing blow, the

turn of the bow of the "West Keats" striking the

counter of the "Boston Maru" and causing the

damage herein alleged.

V.

Said collision was due entirely to the fault of the
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said ''Boston Maru," its pilot, master, officers and

crew in the following particulars

:

1. Said "Boston Maru" was negligently an-

chored in the navigable channel or fairway at the

point in question in such a manner as to prevent or

obstruct the passage of other vessels along said

channel or fairway in violation of Section 15 of an

Act of Congress approved March 3, 1899, prohibit-

ing the anchorage of vessels or other craft in navi-

gable channels in such a manner as to prevent or

obstruct the passage of other vessels or craft.

2. Said "Boston Maru" w^as negligently an-

chored in violation of said Act of Congress so that

with an incoming tide she would swing broadside

or nearly broadside across the said channel and

fairway, thereby obstructing the free passage of the

same by other vessels. [12]

3. After coming to an anchor and at or before

the time of the collision, said "Boston Maru'' was

negligently allowed to swing on her anchor chain

broadside or nearly broadside to said channel and

fairway and thereby obstruct the same and prevent

and obstruct the passage thereof by other vessels.

4. The acts of negligence herein charged are

charged to have been negligent and careless viola-

tions, not only of the said Act of Congress, but also

of the laws, rules and regulations constituting and

defining good seamanship, and the customs herein

pleaded.

VI.

As a result of said collision, a hole was torn in

the starboard bow of the "West Keats" two or
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three feet wide and thirty or forty feet long and

numerous of her plates and frames were broken,

torn, bent and otherwise displaced. Also one bulk-

head was torn and broken, one deck beam bent and

one hawse-pipe, three deck lights, one hawser reel

and one vent pipe were broken, bent and damaged,

requiring extensive repairs which are being made

at the reasonable cost of $7,250.00. In order to

make said repairs it became necessary to move said

vessel from the place of collision to Portland, Ore-

gon, and discharge a portion of her cargo and

thereby delay was incurred and further delay will

be incurred prior to the completion of said repairs

and the continuance of said "West Keats" on her

said voyage. Due to the fact that the said "West

Keats '

' is still in course of repair and the said delay

has not terminated at the time of filing this libel,

libelant is unable at the present time to state the

particulars of the various additional damages to

said vessel by reason of said delay, moving and the

handlmg of the said cargo and the necessary sur-

veys and the like, but prays for leave to file a bill

of particulars of said additional damages after

the filing of this libel and as soon as the same can

be ascertained, and [13] libelant now estimates

that said additional damages will aggregate in the

neighborhood of $10,000.00.

VII.

All and singular the premises are true and within

the admiralty jurisdiction of the United States and

of this Honorable Court.
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WHEREFORE, libelant prays that process in

due form of law and. according to the practice of this

Honorable Court may issue against the said steam-

ship "Boston Maru," her engines, boilers, tackle,

apparel, furniture, etc., and that she may be con-

demned and sold to answer for the damages alleged

in this libel, and that this Court will hear the evi-

dence which libelant will adduce in support of the

allegations of this libel and will enter a decree in

favor of libelant for the above-mentioned damages

and will order the same to be paid and satisfied out

of the proceeds of said steamship "Boston Maru,"

together with interest and the costs of the libelant

and will otherwise right and justice administer in

the premises.

ALLEN H. BYNON,
Assistant United States Attorney.

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Libelant.

Filed November 8, 1924. [14]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 10th day of

November, 1924, there was duly filed in said

court, a claim of owner of the "Boston Maru,''

in words and figures as follows, to wit: [15]

CLAIM.

Kokusai Kisen Kalnishiki Kaisha, owner of the

steamship "Boston Maru," her hull, engines, boil-

ers, apparel and furniture, intervening for its own

interest, appears before this Honorable Court and
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makes claim to the said steamship, her hull, engines,

boilers, apparel and furniture as the same are at-

tached by the marshal under process of this court

at the instance of United States of America, and

the said Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha avers

that it was in possession of said steamship at the

time of the attachment thereof, and that it is the

true and bona fide owner of the said steamship and

that no other person or corporation is the owner

thereof.

WHEREFOEE, claimant prays to defend ac-

cordingly.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA.
By S. SAYEKI,

Master of the "Boston Maru."

District of Oregon,—ss.

I, S. Sayeki, being duly sworn, do depose and

say that I am master of the steamship "Boston

Maru" and that the allegations contained in the

foregoing claim are true.

S. SAYEKI.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of November, 1924.

[Notarial Seal] W. A. ILLIDGE,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My conmiission expires Jan. 31, 1928.

Filed November 10, 1924. [16]
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AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 12th day of

November, 1921, there was duly filed in said

court, a stipulation of the claimant of the "Bos-

ton Maru" to abide by and pay decree, in

words and figures as follows, to wit: [17]

STIPULATION OF "BOSTON MARU" to

ABIDE BY AND PAY DECREE.

WHEREAS, a libel has been filed in the District

Court of the United States for the District of Ore-

gon by the United States of America against the

steamship "Boston Maru," her hull, engines, boil-

ers, apparel and furniture, in a certain action, civil

and maritime, for alleged maritime tort; and

WHEREAS, the vessel is now in the custody of

the marshal of this district under process issued in

accordance with the prayer of said libelant; and

WHEREAS, a claim to said vessel has been filed

by the Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha and said

vessel has been libeled in the amount of $17,250,

and the parties hereto hereby consenting and agree-

ing that in case of default or contumacy on the

part of the claimant or its sureties, execution for

the above amount, with interest thereon from this

date and costs incurred in said action, may issue

against its goods, chattels and lands:

NOAV, THEREFORE, the condition of this stip-

ulation is such that it* claimant herein, a corporation

organized and subsisting under the laws of the

Empire of Japan shall abide by the orders of this

court, interlocutory and final, and pay the amount
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awarded by this court or any appellate court, if an

appeal intervene, with interest, and also pay all

costs and disbursements w^hich may be adjudged

against it in this cause or on an appeal from the

decree herein, then this stipulation shall be [18]

void ; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA.
By SUZUKI & COMPANY, Ltd.,

Agent.

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COM-
PANY OF MARYLAND.

By R. E. PINNEY,
Attorney-in-fact.

Examined and approved November 10, 1924.

CHAS. E. WOLVERTON,
Judge.

Filed November 12, 1924. [19]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

November, 1924, there was duly filed in said

court a stipulation to consolidate for the pur-

pose of taking depositions and testimony and

for trial, under the title "Boston Maru," cause

numbered A.-9490, The United States of

America, Libelant vs. the "Boston Maru," and

cause numbered A.-9492, Kokusia Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha, a Japanese Corporation,

Owner of the "Boston Maru," vs. The United

States of America, in words and figures as fol-

lows, to wit: [20]
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STIPULATION RE CONSOLIDATION OF
CAUSES—No. A.-9492.

It is hereby stipulated by and between the

United States of America, libelant in the first

above-entitled causes and respondent in the second

of the above-entitled causes, and Kokusia Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha, claimant in the first -pf the above-

entitled causes and libelant in the second of the

above-entitled causes, and their respective proctors,

that the said causes may be consolidated for the

purpose of taking depositions and testimony and

for trial, under the more convenient title "The

Steamship Boston Maru."

JOHN S. COKE,
U. S. Atty.,

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for United States of America.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
RALPH H. KING,

Proctors for the said Kokusia Kisen Kabushiki

Kaisha.

Filed November 17, 1924. [21]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 8th day of

December, 1924, there was duly filed in said

court an answer of the claimant of the "Boston

Maru" to the libel of the United States of

America, in words and figures as follows, to wit

:

[22]
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ANSWER.

Comes now Kokusai Kiseii Kabushiki Kaisha,

claimant in tlie above-entitled cause, and for its

answer to the libel herein admits, denies and alleges

as follows:

I.

Admits the allegations of Article I.

II.

Admits the allegations of Article II.

III.

Answering the allegations of Article III, claim-

ant admits that at about 1 -A^ A. M. on the morning

of Sunday, October 26, 1924, a collection occurred

between the "Boston Maru" and the "West Keats"

in the waters of the Columbia River at a point

opposite and near Columbia City, Oregon. Claim-

ant denies each and every other allegation contained

in said Article III.

IV.

Answering the allegations of Article IV, claim-

ant admits that the night of the collision was very

dark and without fog and clear, and that visibility

was good. Claimant denies each and every other

allegation contained in said Article IV.

V.

Claimant denies each and every allegation con-

tained in Article V. [23]

VI.

Answering the allegations of Article VI, claim-
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ant admits that the ''West Keats" sustained in-

juries as a result of said collision, but claimant is

not informed as to the nature and extent of said

injuries and damage and requests that libelant make

proof of the same.

VII.

Claimant denies each and every allegation con-

tained in Article VII.

WHEREFORE, having fully answered the libel

herein, claimant prays that said libel be dismissed,

and that claimant have and recover from libelant

its costs and disbursements herein.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
RALPH H. KING,

Proctors for Claimant.

Filed December 8, 1924. [24]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 12th day of

December, 1925, there was duly filed in said

court a motion of the libelant. The United

States of America, for bill of particulars, to

consolidate causes, and to amend libel, in words

and figures as follows, to wit: [25]

MOTION FOR LEAVE TO FILE BILL OF PAR-
TICULARS, CONSOLIDATE CAUSES AND
AMEND LIBEL.

Comes now the libelant and files herewith a bill

of particulars of its damages and moves the Court

as follows:
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I.

That respondent herein and libelant in the case

of Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha vs. United

States be required to file its bill of particulars in

said case.

II.

That the above cause numbered 9490 and the case

named in the preceding paragraph of this motion,

numbered 9492, be consolidated for the purposes of

taking depositions and testimony and for trial under

the more convenient title, the "Steamship Boston

Maru," in accordance with a stipulation to said

effect heretofore filed.

III.

That libelant be permitted to amend its libel

herein by striking from page 6, line 2, thereof the

figures "$10,000.00," and inserting in place thereof

the figures "$17,002.03."

IV.

That libelant herem be permitted to amend its

libel to add after Article V, subparagraph 4, the

following subparagraph: [26]

5. At the approach of the "West Keats"

shortly and immediately before the said colli-

sion those on board the "Boston Maru" and

responsible for her navigation and conduct

although they well knew or had ample means

of knowing that the "Boston Maru" had swung

with the tide and was lying across the channel

in that part thereof customarily followed at

night by vessels going up and down stream,

and although they well knew or had ample



04 United States of America vs.

means of knowing that the "West Keats" was

proceeding in said customary track, namely,

along the Oregon shore, failed to give to those

in charge of the navigation of the "West
Keats" any warning whatever of the unusual

and dangerous position of the "Boston Maru"
and failed to move the "Boston Maru" from

said dangerous position.

V.

That an amendment be allowed to the libel so

that the opening paragraph thereof will read as

follows

:

"The libel of the United States of America

proceeding in the interests of all concerned in

the matters hereinafter alleged against the

Japanese steamer "Boston Maru," her engines,

boilers, tackle, apparel, furniture, etc., alleges

as follows:

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Of Proctors for Libelant.

Filed December 12, 1925. [27]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Saturday, the 6th

day of February, 1926, the same being the 82d

judicial day of the regular November term of

said court—Present, the Honorable CHARLES
E. WOLVERTON, United States District

Judge, presiding—the following proceedings

were had in said cause, to wit: [28]
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ORDER ON MOTION FOR LEAVE TO FILE
BILL OF PARTICULARS, CONSOLIDATE
CAUSES AND AMEND LIBEL—Nos. A.-9490

—A.-9492.

These causes entitled United States of America

vs. The Japanese Steamship "Boston Maru," etc.,

numbered 9490, and Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki

Kaisha vs. The United States of America, numbered

9492, coming- on to be heard on the motion of the

United States filed m said cause 9490, and counsel

for the
'

' Boston Maru, '

' and her owners having con-

sented to the allowance of said motion;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED as fol-

lows:

1. Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha is herebj''

directed to file a bill of particulars of its alleged

damages and is allowed ten days within which to

file the same.

2. The said two causes are hereby consolidated

for the purpose of taking depositions and testimony

and for trial under the more convenient title

"Steamship Boston Maru."

3. The libel of the United States shall be and is

hereby considered amended by striking from page

6, line 2 thereof the figures $10,000.00, and insert-

ing in place thereof the figures $17,002.03.

4. The libel of the United States shall be and is

hereby amended to add after subparagraph 4 of

Article V the following subparagraph:
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*'5. At the approach of the 'West Keats'

shortly and [29] immediately before the said

collision those on board the 'Boston Maru' and

responsible for her navigation and conduct

although they well knew or had ample means

of knowing that the 'Boston Maru' had swung

with the tide and was lying across the channel

in that part thereof customarily followed at

night by vessels going up and down stream

and although they well knew or had ample

means of knowing that the 'West Keats' was

proceeding in said customary track, namely

along the Oregon shore, failed to give to those

in charge of the navigation of the 'West Keats'

any warning whatever of the unusual and dan-

gerous position of the 'Boston Maru' and failed

to move the 'Boston Maru' from said dangerous

position."

5. The libel of the United States shall be and is

hereby amended so that the opening paragraph

thereof will read as follows:

"The libel of the United States of America

proceeding in the interests of all concerned in

the matters hereinafter alleged against the Japa-

nese steamer 'Boston Maru/ her engines,

boilers, tackle, apparel, furniture, etc., alleges

as follows":

Dated this 6th day of February, 1926.

CHAS. E. WOLVERTON,
Judge.

Mlcd February 6, 1926. [30]
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AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 28tli day of

June, 1926, there was duly tiled in said court

a motion of libelant, Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki

Kaisha. for leave to file an amended libel, in

words and figures as follows, to wit : [31]

MOTION OF KOKUSAI KISEN KABUSHIKI
KAISHA FOR LEAVE TO FILE AMENDED
LIBEL—No. A.-9492.

Comes now the libelant, Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki

Kaisha, by its proctors, McCamant & Thompson

and Ralph H. King, and moves the Coiu't for leave

to file the amended libel herewith tendered.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
RALPH H. KING,

Proctors for Libelant.

Filed June 28, 1926. [32]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Tuesday, the

6th day of July, 1926, the same being the 2d

judicial day of the regular July term of said

court—Present, the Honorable CHARLES E.

WOLVERTON, United States District Judge,

presiding, the following proceedings were had

in said cause, to wit: Order allowing libelant

Kokusai Kisen Kaisha, Owner of the ''Boston

Maru," to File Amended Libel: [33]
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ORDER ALLOWING LIBELANT KOKUSAI
RISEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA TO FILE
AMENDED LIBEL.

Now, at tMs day, come tlie libelant by Mr. Wallace

McCamant, of proctors, and the respondent by Mr.

MacCormac Snow, of proctors, whereupon this cause

comes on to be heard by the Court on the motion

of libelant for leave to file an amended libel, herein.

And the Court, having heard the arguments of

counsel,

—

IT IS ORDERED that said motion be and the

same is hereby allowed. [34]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 6th day of

July, 1926, there was duly filed in said court

an amended libel in cause No. A-9492, Kokusai

Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha, as owner of the "Bos-

ton Maru," against the United States of Amer-

ica, in words and figures as follows, to ^vit:

[35]

AMENDED LIBEL—No. A.-9492.

To the Honorable the Judges of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Oregon:

The amended libel in personam of Kokusai Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha owner of the Japanese steam-

ship "Boston Maru," against the United States

of America as the owner of the American steamship

"West Keats," in a case of collision civil and mari-
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time, alleges as follows, consent of the Court to the

filing of this amended libel having been duly ob-

tained :

ARTICLE I.

At all times hereinafter mentioned libelant was

and now is a corporation organized and existing

under the laws of the Empire of Japan and was the

owner of the steamship ''Boston Maru," a vessel

of about 8,800 tons gross and 400 feet in length.

ARTICLE IL

At all times hereinafter mentioned the United

States of America was and now is the owner of

the American steamship "West Keats"; that said

steamship at all times hereinafter [36] mentioned

was employed as a merchant vessel.

ARTICLE III.

At the filing of the original libel in this case the

steamship "West Keats" was within the Port of

Portland and within the District of Oregon, and the

matters and things hereinafter set forth transpired

within the District of Oregon and within the juris-

diction of this Honorable Court.

ARTICLE IV.

On Sunday, the 26th day of October, 1924, at

about 1:45 o'clock A. M., a collision occurred be-

tween the steamships "Boston Maru" and "West
Keats" in the navigable waters of the Columbia

River near Columbia City, Oregon, by which the

"Boston Maru" was seriously damaged, was com-

pelled to return to the Port of Portland for repairs
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and was delayed in putting to sea upon her con-

templated voyage.

ARTICLE V.

Libelant alleges that the following are the circum-

stances of the collision:

On Saturday, the 25th day of October, 1924, the

"Boston Maru" completed taking on cargo at the

dock of the Clark & Wilson Lumber Company at

Linnton, in the Port of Portland. The ^'Boston

Maru" was placed in charge of and under the con-

trol of a pilot, duly licensed to pilot steamships of

the class and tonnage of the "Boston Maru" in

the waters of the Columbia and Willamette Rivers.

That said pilot was competent and qualified in all re-

spects to perform the duties for which he was em-

ployed and particularly to navigate the "Boston

Maru" in the Willamette and Columbia Rivers.

That under the control and direction of said pilot the

"Boston Maru" proceeded down [37] the Willa-

mette River to its mouth, and thereafter down the

Columbia River for the purpose of taking on addi-

tional cargo at the dock of Island Lumber Company

near St. Helens, Oregon. That the "Boston Maru"
at said time was loaded with lumber and rode low

in the water drawing about 26 feet aft. That in

order conveniently to reach the dock of Island

Lumber Company near St. Helens, Oregon, it was

necessary for the "Boston Maru" to go below St.

Helens and to anchor awaiting the flood tide. That

for this purpose the "Boston Maru" was navigated

by the said pilot to a point off Columbia City Ore-

iion, about 5 miles below the dock aforesaid at St.O 7
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Helens, Oregon. That the "Boston Maru" an-

chored about 900 feet from the Oregon shore off

Cohimbia City, Oregon, about eight-thirty P. M.
on the said 25th day of October, 1924; that the tide

was ebbing at the time when the vessel anchored

and the stage of the water did not permit a vessel

drawing 26 feet to proceed up the channel to St.

Helens, Oregon, and to the dock of Island Lumber
Company. That the place where the said steamship

was anchored is the customary and usual place of

anchorage for vessels awaiting the flood stage of

tide to proceed to St. Helens, Oregon, and the docks

in and about said city. That all pilots and navi-

gators operating in the Columbia River were well

advised that there is an anchorage ground at and

about the place where the "Boston Maru" was

so anchored pursuant to the orders of its pilot, on

said 25th day of October, 1924. That when the

vessel was brought to anchor, her bow was upstream

and her running lights were immediately extin-

guished. Thereupon the officers of the "Boston

Maru" lighted and displayed her two anchor lights,

one thereof on the forestay 36 to 37 feet above the

hull, and the other thereof on the flagstaff near the

stern of the "Boston Maru" and 16 to 17 feet above

the hull. That the said anchor lights so displayed

were white lights in lanterns so constructed [38]

as to show a clear, uniform and unbroken light vis-

ible all around the horizon at a distance of not less

than four miles.

That the "Boston Maru" continued to ride at

anchor in the anchorage ground aforesaid and at
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the same place where she was anchored as above

set forth, and her anchor lights continued to burn

and to be visible as aforesaid up to and after the

moment of the collision hereinafter described.

That the steamship "West Keats" left the port

of Portland on the evening of the 25th of October,

1924, and proceeded down the Willamette and Co-

lumbia rivers. That the visibility was good on the

night in question and the anchorage ground selected

by the "Boston Maru" was such that there was a

clear view of her anchorage lights to vessels coming

downstream for a long distance above the place

where the vessel rode at anchor, to wit, for upwards

of four miles.

That the "West Keats" entered the Columbia

River about midnight between the 25th and the

26th days of October, 1924, and from that time until

the collision hereinafter referred to proceeded a1

full speed. That the "West Keats" was fully

loaded, and was a large vessel approximately 410

feet in length and 52 feet in beam, with a dead-

weight of approximately 8,538 tons. That the look-

out on the "West Keats," and the pilot and officers

charged with her navigation negligently confused

the anchor lights of the "Boston Maru" with lights

upon the shore, although the pilot in charge of the

"West Keats" well knew that there was an an-

chorage ground in the Columbia River off Columbia

City at or about the place where the "Boston

Maru" was anchored. That notwithstanding the

said knowledge so possessed by the said jiilot he

wholly failed to reverse the engines or otherwise
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to check the speed of the "West Keats," but con-

tinued, at full speed until practically the moment
of the collision. That although there was ample

room for the "West Keats" to pass the "Boston

Maru" between the [39] "Boston Maru" and

the Washington shore, and although such passage

was required by Section 7899 of United States

Compiled Statutes, the pilot and officers in charge

of the navigation of the "West Keats" undertook

to pass between the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon

shore. That the "West Keats" was so negligently

and carelessly navigated that the starboard bow

of the "West Keats" struck the starboard stern

quarter of the "Boston Maru," causing serious

injuiy to the "Boston Maru."

ARTICLE VI.

The collision aforesaid, and the loss, damage and

destruction resulting therefrom were not caused

or contributed to by any negligence on the part of

the steamship "Boston Maru," or anyone for whom
the said steamship can be held responsible, but were

due solely to the acts and negligences of the steam-

ship "West Keats," her owners and those in charge

of her navigation, in the following respects, to wit:

1. The "West Keats" was not under the com-

mand or direction of a competent master or pilot.

2. The lookout on the "West Keats" failed to

observe' the anchorage lights of the "Boston Maru"
until practically the moment of the collision.

3. The lookout on the "West Keats" failed to

report the presence of the "Boston Maru" to the



34 United States of America vs.

pilot in charge of the navigation of the ''West

Keats" and to the officer of the "West Keats," who
was on the bridge, until practically the moment of

the collision.

4. The pilot in charge of the "West Keats," and

the officers charged with her navigation, confused

the anchor lights of the "Boston Maru" with lights

on. the Oregon shore and failed to recognize the

presence [40] of the "Boston Maru" until prac-

tically the moment of the collision, although the

said pilot was chargeable wdth notice that there was

an anchorage ground off Columbia City, including

the place at which the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored.

5. The "West Keats" failed to reverse her en-

gines or to check her speed when the anchor lights

of the "Boston Maru" became visible, but, on the

contrary, the "West Keats" proceeded at full

speed, in the night, while approaching the anchor-

age ground in which the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored.

6. The "West Keats" failed to keep on the

starboard side of the channel as required by Section

7899 of United States Compiled Statutes.

7. Although the "Boston Maru" was anchored

and stationary, and the "West Keats" was in mo-

tion, and the lights of the "Boston Maru" were

visible to the lookout and officers in charge gf the

"West Keats" for a distance of four miles above

the place where the "Boston Maru" was anchored,

the "West Keats" was so negligently navigated
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and steered that she collided at full speed with

the "Boston Maru."

8. That although there was ample room between

the "Boston Maru" and the Washington shore, and

ample depth of water for the navigation of the

"West Keats" therein, the pilot and officers in

charge of the "West Keats" elected to pass between

the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon shore.

9. Either because of the negligence of the pilot

and officers of the "West Keats" in navigating her,

or because her steering-gear was out of order, the

"West Keats" [41] failed to respond to her

helm and to steer in accordance with the orders last

given by the pilot of the "West Keats" prior to the

collision.

ARTICLE VII.

Libelant further alleges that by reason of the

said collision it was necessary for the steamship

"Boston Maru" to return to Portland for repairs,

and that the making of the said repaii's delayed

and detained the "Boston Maru" for a period of

seventeen days. That the reasonable charter value

of the "Boston Maru" at the time of the said col-

lision was the sum of four hundred dollars ($400.00)

per day and the loss of the vessel by reason of said

detention was approximately the sum of sixty-eight

hundred dollars ($6,800.00). That the damages

sustained by the vessel in the collision, and the cost

of repairing her were a large additional sum of

money, being approximately the sum of eleven

thousand dollars ($11,000.00) and that libelant's

total damages as the result of the said collision are
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approximately the sum of eighteen thousand dollars

($18,000.00).

ARTICLE VIII.

All and singular the premises are true and within

the admiralty and maritime jurisdiction of this

court.

WHEREFORE, libelant prays that this Honor-

able Court be pleased to decree the payment of the

damages suffered by the libelant, as aforesaid, to-

gether with its costs and disbursements and that

libelant may have such and further relief as in law

and justice it is entitled to receive.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
RALPH H. KING,

Proctors for Libelant.

Filed July 6, 1926. [42]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 10th day of

September, 1926, there was duly filed in said

court an answer of the United States of Amer-

ica to the libel of the Kokusai Kisen Kabu-

shiki, owner of the "Boston Maru," in words

and figures as follows, to wit: [43]

ANSWER TO AMENDED LIBEL—No. A.-9492.

Comes the United States of America and in

answer to the amended libel of the owner O'f the

steamship "Boston Maru'' admits, denies, and

alleges as follows:
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I.

Denies knowledge of the allegations of Article I

of the amended libel and calls for proof of the same.

II.

Admits the allegations of Article II of the

amended libel, but denies that the United States

is now the owner of said steamship "West Keats."

III.

Admits the allegations of Article III of the

of the amended libel.

IV.

Admits the allegations of Article IV of the

amended libel, but denies the time of the collision

as therein alleged.

V.

Denies each and every allegation of Article V
of the amended libel except as herein expressly ad-

mitted. [44]

VI.

Denies each and every allegation of Article VI
of the amended libel except as herein expressly ad-

mitted.

VII.

Denies each and every allegation of Article VII

of the amended libel except as herein admitted and

ladmits that the damages suffered by the owner of

the "Boston Maru" on account of said collision

were and are the sum of fifteen thousand seven

hundred eighty-eight and ninety-one/100 dollars

($15,788.91).

VIII.

Admits the jurisdiction of the court as alleged in
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Article VIII of the amended libel, but denies each

and every other allegation of said article.

WHEREFORE, respondent having fully an-

swered prays that the amended libel be dismissed

and that respondent have and recover its costs and

disbursements herein.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney,

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Respondent, United States of Amer-

ica.

Filed September 10, 1926. [45]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 7th day of

August, 1926, there was duly filed in said court

a stipulation relative to damages, in words

and figures as follows, to wit: [46]

STIPULATION RE DAMAGES—Nos. A.-9490—

A.-9492.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between

the parties hereto and their respective proctors, that

the damages suffered by the United States by rea-

son of the collision between the "Boston Maru"
and the "West Keats," referred to in the pleadings

filed in these consolidated cases, were and are fif-

teen thousand six hundred forty-two and twelve/100

dollars ($15,642.12), and the damages of Kokusai

Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha, by reason of the said col-

lision, were and are fifteen thousand seven hundred
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eighty-eight and ninety-one/100 dollars ($15,788.-

91), and that no other damages were suffered by

any parties interested herein by reason of said col-

lision except the foregoing. The said damages do

not include taxable costs and disbursements.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
Proctors for Owners of "Boston Maru."

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Owners of "West Keats."

Filed August 7, 1926. [47]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 28th day of

October, 1926, there was duly filed in said court

a stipulation relative to photographs, in words

and figures as follows, to wit: [48]

STIPULATION RE PHOTOGRAPHS — Nos.

A.-9490—A.-9492.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between

the parties hereto, through their respective proc-

tors, that there may be offered on behalf of the

"Boston Maru," in the taking of the testimony

in the above causes, photographs which bear the

endorsement "0. K.; M. S.; R. H. K.," said photo-

graphs also being severally endorsed on the back

" 'Boston Maru,' Photographs A, B, C, D, E, F, G,

H, I and J," and that said photographs shall be

competent evidence without proof of the time, place

or person who took them.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that said

Photographs A, B, C, D and E are true photographs
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of the steamship ''Boston Marii," and show the

condition of the starboard quarter of the stern of

said steamship "Boston Maru" immediately after

the time of the collision of the steamship "West

Keats" with the said "Boston Maru" and prior to

the making of any repairs thereto.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that Photo-

graph F portrays the view under deck aboard the

steamship "West Keats" at the hawse-pipe on the

starboard of the bow of the "West Keats," and that

the condition shown was such as existed immedi-

ately after the collision of the "West Keats" with

the "Boston Maru," and prior to any repairs being

made thereto.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that the Pho-

tograph G shows the under deck view of the "West

Keats" on the starboard bow aft of the hawse-pipe

on the starboard bow, and shows such condition as

[49] existed immediately after the collision of the

"West Keats" with the "Boston Maru" and prior

to the making of any repairs thereto.

IT IS FURTHER STIPULATED that Photo-

graph H was a photograph taken of the steamship

"West Keats" shortly after the collision of the

"West Keats" with the "Boston Maru," and that

the said photograph shows the appearance of the

"West Keats" immediately after said collision and

prior to any repairs being made thereto.



Koktisai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha. 41

Dated October 4th, 1926.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON.
McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
RALPH H. KING,
RALPH H. KING,

Proctors for Owners of "Boston Maru."

MacCORMAC SNOW.
MacCORMAC SNOW,

Proctors for Owners of "West Keats."

Filed October 28, 1926. [50]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Monday, the 22d

day of November, 1925, the same being the 19th

judicial day of the regular November term of

said court,—Present, the Honorable ROBERT
S. BEAN, United States District Judge, pre-

siding,—the following proceedings were had in

said cause, to wit: [51]

DECREE—Nos. A.-9490 and A.-9492.

IT APPEARING that causes numbered 9490

and 9492, by stipulation of the parties and by order

of this Court, have been consolidated under the

above title, and the cause having been fully tried

out and taken under advisement, the Court being

fully advised thereon,

—

The Court fuids that the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored at a suitable place in the Columbia River

at the time of the collision and that it would not

have been good seamanship to have anchored the
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said vessel materially closer to the Washington

shore for the reason that the vessel in such event

might have swung on to a gravel shoal marked on

the chart; the Court also finds that the anchor

lights of the "Boston Maru" were in position and

burning brightly; the Court also finds that the pi-

lot of the "West Keats" observed the anchor

lights of the "Boston Maru" w^hen about a mile and

one-half upstream from her and the pilot knew at

that time that a vessel was at anchor athwart the

stream ; that notwithstanding such knowledge the pi-

lot of the "West Keats" neglected to slacken the

speed of his vessel or to take any precaution to as-

certain the actual location of the anchored vessel,

and that the "West Keats" proceeded downstream

at full speed until a short distance above the "Bos-

ton Maru"; that thereupon the pilot of the "West

Keats" endeavored to pass to the left of the "Bos-

ton Maru." That the negligence of the pilot of

the "West Keats" in the respects aforesaid is

solely responsible for the collision.

IT IS, THEREFORE, CONSIDERED, AD-
JUDGED AND DECREED that the libel of the

United States of America against the steamship

[52] "Boston Maru" is dismissed.

IT IS FURTHER CONSIDERED, AD-
JUDGED AND DECREED that Kokushai Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha do have and recover of the

United States the full sum of fifteen thousand

seven hundred eighty-eight and 91/100 dollars

($15,788.91), with interest thereon at the rate of

four per cent (4%) per annum from the 26th day
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of October, 1924, and the costs and disbursements

incurred, on behalf of the Japanese steamship

"Boston Maru," herein and in the suits consoli-

dated as aforesaid, taxed at $212.60.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge.

Dated November 22, 1926.

Filed November 22, 1926. [53]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court a notice of appeal, by the libelant, in

cause No. A.-9190, The United States of vs.

The "Boston Maru," in words and figures as

follows, to wit: [54]

NOTICE OF AND PETITION FOR APPEAL
—No. A.-9490.

To the Honorable Judges of the Above-entitled

Court

:

The libelant above-named. United States of Amer-

ica, feeling itself aggrieved by that certain final

judgment and decree entered in the above-entitled

court November 22, 1926, does hereby appeal from

said judgment and decree and the whole thereof to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit for the reasons set forth in the as-

signments of error filed herewith and hereby gives

notice to the claimant above named of such appeal,

and now pra.ys that its said appeal be allowed and
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that a citation be issued as provided by law and

that a transcript of all proceedings of record in the

above-entitled court and cause necessary to prose-

cute properly said appeal duly certified and au-

thenticated be sent to said Circuit Court of Ap-

peals as provided by law and by the rules of said

court.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney,

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Libelant and Appellant.

Filed February 17, 1927. [55]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

February, 1927, there w^as duly filed in said

court a notice of appeal, by the respondent, the

United States of America, in cause No. A.-

9492, Kokushai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha,

Owner of the "Boston Maru," Libelant, vs.

The United States of America, in words and

figures as follows, to wit : [56]

NOTICE OF AND PETITION FOR APPEAL
—No. A.-9492.

To the Honorable Judges of the Above-entitled

Court

:

The respondent above-named, United States of

America, feeling itself aggrieved by that certain

final judgment and decree entered in the above-en-

titled cause bv tlie above-entitled coui*t Novem-
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ber 22, 1926, does hereby appeal from said judg-

ment and decree and the whole thereof to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit for the reasons set forth in the

assignments of error filed herewith and hereby

gives notice to the libelant above named of

such appeal, and now prays that its said appeal

be allowed and that a citation be issued as pro-

vided by law and that a transcript of all proceed-

ings of record in the above-entitled court and cause

necessary to prosecute properly said appeal duly

certified and authenticated be sent to said Circuit

Court of Appeals as provided by law and b}^ the

rules of said court.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney,

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Respondent and Appellant.

Filed February 17, 1927. [57]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court an assignment of errors, on the appeal

of the United States of America, libelant, in

cause No. A.-9-t90, in words and figures as fol-

lows, to wit: [58]

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR—No. A.-9490.

Comes now the libelant appearing by George

Neuner, United States Attorney, and MacCormac

Snow, its proctors, and says that the final judg-
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ment and decree of this court made and entered

in the above-entitled cause November 22, 1926, in

favor of the claimant above named and against

this libelant is erroneous and against the just

rights of said libelant and files herein together with

its notice of and petition for appeal from the said

judgment the following assignments of error which

the said libelant says and avei's occurred upon the

trial of said cause:

I.

The Court erred in holding that the steamship

"Boston Maru" was anchored in such a way as

not to impede or obstruct the passage of other ves-

sels or craft.

II.

The Court erred in holding that there is no es-

tablished anchorage ground at the part of the Co-

lumbia River in which the collision occurred.

III.

The Court erred in holding that the evidence

failed to show an established anchorage ground off

or below Columbia City [59] and nearer to the

Washington than to the Oregon side of the chan-

nel of the Columbia Kiver.

IV.

The Court erred in holding that those on board

the "Boston Maru'- were not at fault in anchoring

the said vessel at the place where the evidence

showed she was anchored and in allowing her to

swing with the incoming tide across the part of the

channel of the river customarily used and estab-

lished as the navigating channel thereof by the lo-
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cation of the St. Helens Bar Range and Columbia

City Range.

V.

The Court erred in holding that the burden of

proof was on the owners of the "West Keats" to

show that the collision was not due to the fault of

those in charge of the navigation of the "West

Keats."

VI.

The Court erred in holding that the collision was

due entirely to the fault of those in charge of the

navigation of the "West Keats."

VII.

The Court erred in holding that the collision was

not proximately caused by the negligence of those

in charge of the "Boston Maru" in anchoring said

vessel improperly and allowing her to drift across

the main ship channel, and in failing to warn the

approaching "West Keats" of the position of the

"Boston Maru" and in failing to get the "Boston

Maru" out of the track of the approaching "West
Keats."

VIII.

The Court erred in entering its decree holding

the owners of the "West Keats" solely liable for

the collision. [60]

IX.

The Court erred in failing to hold that the steam-

ship "Boston Maru" and her owners and agents

were solely responsible for the collision and in fail-

ing to find them so responsible and in failing to as-

sess the entire damages of the said collision against
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the said steamship and her owners and stipulators.

X.

The Court erred in finding that it would not have

been good seamanship to anchor the "Boston

Maru^' materially closer to the Washington shore

than said vessel was anchored.

XI.

The Court erred in finding that the "West

Keats" was at fault in proceeding at full speed un-

til a short distance above the "Boston Maru."

XII.

The Court erred in holding that those in charge

of the navigation of the "Boston Maru" were not

at fault in preventing the unnecessaiy encroach-

ment of said vessel on the main ship channel and

fairway by using the stern anchor of the "Boston

Maru" or her engines, or any other proper means

to prevent such encroachment.

XIII.

The Court erred in holding that the "Boston

Maru" was not at fault for anchoring so as to al-

low said vessel to swing with the incoming tide to

a point proximately across the intersection and

joining of the St. Helens Bar Range and the Co-

lumbia City Range.

XIV.

The Court erred in holding that the belief of the

pilot of the "West Keats" that the "Boston Maru"

was in the usual and customary anchorage was un-

reasonable and that the said pilot should have

slackened the speed of the "West Keats" in order
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to determine the location of the *' Boston Maru" and

that any such [61] slowing up would have been a

safe and proper maneuver.

WHEREFORE, said libelant and appellant

prays that the judgment of the above-entitled court

be reversed with directions to said Court to enter

a judgment and decree against the claimant above

named and its stipulator in the sum of fifteen thou-

sand six hundred forty-two and twelve/100 ($15,-

642.12), together wdth its costs and disbursements

in the District Court and in the Circuit Court of

Appeals.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney,

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Libelant and Appellant.

Filed February 17, 1927. [62]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court an assignment of errors on the appeal of

the respondent, The United States of Amer-

ica, in cause No. A.-9492, in words and figures

as follows, to wit: [63]

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR—No. A.-9492.

Comes now the respondent in the above-entitled

case, appearing by George Neuner, United States

Attorney, and MacCormac Snow, its proctors, and

says that the final judgment and decree of this
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court made and entered in the above-entitled cause

November 22, 1926, in favor of the libelant above

named and against this respondent is erroneous

and against the just rights of this respondent and

files herein together with its notice of and petition

for appeal from the said judgment the following

assignments of error which the respondent says

and avers occurred upon the trial of said cause:

I.

The Court erred in holding that the steamship

"Boston Maru" was anchored in such a way as not

to impede or obstruct the passage of other vessels

or craft.

II.

The Court erred in holding that there is no es-

tablished anchorage ground at the part of the Co-

lumbia Eiver in which the collision occurred.

III.

The Court erred in holding tliat the evidence

failed [64] an established anchorage ground off

or below Columbia City and nearer to the Wash-

ington than to the Oregon side of the channel of the

Columbia River.

IV.

The Court erred in holding that those on board

the "Boston Maru" were not at fault in anchoring

the said vessel at the place where the evidence

showed she was anchored and in allowing her to

swing with the incoming tide across the part of the

channel of the river customarily used and estab-

lished as the navigating chamiel thereof bv the lo-
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cation of the St. Helens Bar Range and Columbia

City Range.

V.

The Court erred in holding that the burden of

proof was on the owners of the ''West Keats" to

show that the collision was not due to the fault of

those in charge of the navigation of the "West

Keats."

YI.

The Court erred in holding that the collision was

due entirely to the fault of those in charge of the

navigation of the "West Keats."

VII.

The Court erred in holding that the collision was

not proximately caused by the negligence of those

in charge of the "Boston Maru" in anchoring said

vessel improperly and allowing her to drift across

the main ship channel, and in failing to warn the

approaching "West Keats" of the position of the

"Boston Maru" and in failing to get the "Boston

Maru" out of the track of the approaching "West

Keats."

VIII.

The Court erred in entering its decree holding

the owners of the "West Keats" solely liable for

the collision. [65]

IX.

The Court erred in failing to hold that the steam-

ship "Boston Maru" and her owners and agents

were solely responsible for the collision and in

failing to find them so responsible and in failing

to assess the entire damages of the said collision
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against the said steamship and her owners and stip-

ulators.

X.

The Court erred in finding that it would not have

been good seamanship to anchor the "Boston

Maru" materially closer to the Washington shore

than said vessel was anchored.

XI.

The Court erred in finding that the "West

Keats" was at fault in proceeding at full speed un-

til a short distance above the "Boston Maru."

XII.

The Court erred in holding that those in charge

of the navigation of the "Boston Maru" were not

at fault in preventing the unnecessary encroach-

ment of said vessel on the main ship channel and

fairway by using the stern anchor of the "Boston

Maru" or her engines, or any other proper means

to prevent such encroachment.

XIII.

The Court erred in holding that the "Boston

Maru" was not at fault for anchoring so as to al-

low said vessel to swing with the incoming tide to

a point proximately across the intersection and

joining of the St. Helens Bar Range and the Co-

lumbia City Range.

XIV.

The Court erred in holding that the belief of the

pilot of the "West Keats" that the "Boston Maru"
was in the usual and customary anchorage was un-

reasonable and that said pilot should have slack-

ened the speed of the "West Keats" in order to
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[66] determine the location of the "Boston Maru"

and that any such slowing up would have been a

safe and proper maneuver.

WHEREFORE, The said respondent prays that

the judgment of the above-entitled court be re-

versed with directions to the said court to dismiss

the libel and amended libel herein and to enter a

judgment against said libelant and in favor of

said respondent for the costs and disbursements of

said respondent in this court and in said Circuit

Court of Appeals.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney.

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Respondent.

Filed FebruaiY 17, 1927. [67]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Thursday, the

17th day of February, 1927, the same being the

92d judicial day of the regular November term

of said court,—Present, the Honorable ROB-
ERT S. BEAN, United States District Judge,

presiding, the following proceedings were had

in said cause, to wit: Order Allowing Appeal

of the Libelant, The United States: [68]

ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL—No. A.-9490.

This cause coming on to be heard on the notice

of and petition for appeal of the libelant through

its proctors George Neuner, United States Attor-
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ney, and MacCormac Snow, from the final order,

judgment and decree in this court made and en-

tered November 22, 1926, and the whole thereof, to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, and this Court being fully advised

in the premises:

IT IS, NOW, CONSIDERED AND ORDERED
That said appeal be and it is hereby allowed as

prayed for and the Clerk of this court is hereby

directed to prepare and formulate a true copy and

transcript of the records and proceedings of the

above-entitled cause in this court to the extent

necessary to prosecute properly said appeal all duly

compared, certified and authenticated and to send

the same to the Clerk of said Circuit Court of Ap-

13eal for the Ninth Circuit.

Done in open court this 17th day of February,

1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge.

Filed February 17, 1927. [69]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Thursday, the

17th day of February, 1927, the same being the

92d judicial day of the regular November

term of said Court,—Present, the Honorable

ROBERT S. BEAN, United States District

Judge, presiding—the following proceedings

were had in said cause, to wit : Order Allowing

Appeal of the Respondent, The United States:

[70]
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ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL—No. A.-94:92.

This cause coming on to be heard on the notice of

and petition for appeal of the respondent through

its proctors, George Neuner, United States Attor-

ney, and MacCormac Snow, from the final order,

judgment and decree of this court made and entered

November 22, 1926, and the whole thereof to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth C'ircuit, and this Court being fully advised

in the premises:

IT IS, NOW, CONSIDERED AND ORDERED
That said appeal be and it is hereby allowed as

prayed for and the Clerk of this court is hereby

directed to prepare and formulate a true copy and

transcript of the records and proceedings of the

above-entitled cause in this court to the extent neces-

sary to prosecute properly said appeal all duly com-

pared, certified and authenticated and to send the

same to the Clerk of said Circuit Court of Appeal

for the Ninth Circuit.

Done in open court this 17th day of February,

1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge.

Filed February 17, 1927. [71]
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AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 17th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court a petition of appellant for further con-

solidation of causes, in words and figures as

follows, to wit: [72]

PETITION FOR FURTHER CONSOLIDA-
TION OF CAUSES—Nos. A.-9190--A.-9192.

Comes the United States of America, libelant in

the above-entitled cause numbered A-9490, and re-

spondent in the above-entitled cause numbered

A-9192, and respectfully petitions the above-en-

titled court and thereupon shows as follows:

The said two causes were heretofore consolidated

for trial by the above-entitled court and on Novem-

ber 22, 1926, a consolidated decree was entered in

both of said causes, from which decree the United

States of America has filed a notice of and petition

for appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, together with assign-

ments of error in each of said causes, and has se-

cured in each of said causes the entry of an order

allowing the said appeals. The convenience of the

said Circuit Court of Appeals and of this court and

of the parties calls for a further consolidation of the

said causes for any and all purposes [73] con-

nected with the said appeals including the prepara-

tion of a single record for and covering both causes

and the consideration, briefing, argument, opinion,

judgment, mandate and decree of and by said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals.
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WHEREFORE, United States of America prays

that said causes be further consolidated for any and

all purposes touching upon and connected with the

said respective appeals.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney.

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for United States of America.

Filed February 17, 1927. [71]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on Thursday, the

17th day of February, 1927, the same being the

92d judicial day of the regular November term

of said court,—Present, the Honorable ROB-
ERT S. BEAN, United States District Judge,

presiding,—the following proceedings were had

in said cause, to wit : [75]

ORDER OF FURTHER CONSOLIDATION OF
CAUSES—No. A.-9490—No. A.-9492.

The above-entitled consolidated causes both and

each coming on to be heard on the petition of the

United States of America for the further consolida-

tion of said causes, and it appearing that appeals

have been taken by the United States from the con-

solidated decree in both of the above-entitled causes

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit and that the convenience of said

Circuit Court of Appeals and this court and the

parties calls for further consolidation of said
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causes for any and all purposes connected with said

appeals, and each of them, including the prepara-

tion of a single record for and covering both of said

causes and the consideration, briefing, argument,

opinion, judgment, mandate and decree in said

causes by said Circuit Court of Appeals: [76]

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS CONSIDERED
AND ORDERED That the said causes be further

consolidated for any and all purposes touching upon

and connected with the said respective appeals in

each of said causes and that said appeals be consoli-

dated for consideration of the same together under

the more convenient title, "The Japanese Steamship

'Boston Maru,' " by said Circuit Court of Appeals.

Done in open court this 17th day of February.

1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge.

Filed February 17, 1927. [77]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 18th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court a stipulation for order to send original

exhibits to the Court of Appeals, in words and

figures as follows, to wit : [78]

STIPULATION RE TRANSMISSION OF
ORIGINAL EXHIBITS— Nos. A.-9490—
A.-9492.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between

the parties hereto and their respective proctors that
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all of the original exhibits in the above-entitled con-

solidated causes shall be sent by the Clerk of the

above-entitled court to the Clerk of the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit to accompany the apostles.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney.

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Appellant.

McCAMANT & THOMPSON,
Proctors for Respondent.

It is so ordered February 18, 1927.

R. S. BEAN,
Judge.

Filed February 18, 1927. [79]

AND AFTERWARDS, to wit, on the 18th day of

February, 1927, there was duly filed in said

court a praecipe for apostles on appeal, in

words and figures as follow^s, to wit : [80]

PRAECIPE FOR APOSTLES ON APPEAL—
Nos. A.-9490—A.-9492.

Comes the appellant in the above-entitled con-

solidated cases and requests the CUerk of the above-

entitled court to prepare, authenticate properly and

file with the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit within the

time allowed by law and the rules of said court the

consolidated apostles of the above cases, omitting

captions, titles, verifications, signatures, proofs of
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service and filing certificates but reciting generally

that the papers therein were properly entitled, veri-

fied, executed, served and filed and showing the fil-

ing dates and the numbers of the respective cases

wherein the various papers were filed, such record

to consist of the following documents and papers:

9490—Libel.

9490—Claim.
9490'—Stipulation for value showing signatures and

execution.

9490, 9492—Stipulation for consolidation.

9490—Motion to amend libel.

9490, 9492—Order amending libel in 9490 and con-

solidating.

9490—Answer.
9492—Amended libel.

9490, 9492—Stipulation as to damages showing sig-

natures.

9492—Answer to amended libel.

9490, 9492—Stipulation as to photographs.

9490, 9492—Decree.

9490, 9492—Opinion.
9490—Notice of and petition for appeal.

9492—Notice of and petition for appeal.

9490—Assignments of error.

9492—Assignments of error.

9490—Order allowing appeal.

9492—Order allowing appeal.

9490—Citation on appeal.

9492—Citation on appeal.

9490, 9492—Petition for further consolidation.
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9490, 9492—Order of further consolidation.

9490, 9492—This praecipe. [81]

Depositions of:

9490, 9492—Gillette. Sayeki.

9490, 9492—Swenson. Chiga.

9490, 9492—Gidlof. Tomita.

9490, 9492—Bergreth. Yokoi.

9490, 9492—Jett. Komiyama.

9490, 9492—Evidence.

9490, 9492—All exhibits.

9490, 9492—Stipulation on original exhibits.

GEORGE NEUNER,
United States Attorney.

MacCORMAC SNOW,
Proctors for Appellant.

Filed February 18, 1927. [82]

AND there was duly filed in said court testimony

taken before the court on the final hearing and

depositions, in words and figures as follows, to

wit : [83]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon

The "BOSTON MARU."

BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled

case came on to be heard before the Honorable

Robert S. Bean, Judge of the above-entitled court,

on Tuesday, the 26th day of October, 1926, at the

hour of ten o'clock A. M., the "Boston Maru" being
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represented by Messrs. Wallace McCamant and

Ealph H. King, its proctors, and the "West Keats"

being . represented by Mr. MacCormac Snow, its

proctor.

WHEREUPON the following proceedings were

had: [84]

Mr. KING.—We have entered into a stipulation

with respect to the introduction of some photo-

graphs which have been handed the reporter.

(Pictures introduced in evidence as "Boston

Maru's" Exhibits "A" to "K," inclusive.)

TESTIMONY OF R. E. HIXON, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

R. E. HIXON, a witness called in behalf of the

"West Keats," being first duly sworn testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are an engineer? A. Yes, sir.

Q. By whom employed?

A. United States Government.

Q. In what office and department?

A. War department, engaged in river and harbor

improvements.

Mr. KING.—We may shorten this by admitting

Mr. Hixon's qualifications.

Q. You are familiar then with tlie Columbia

River and shoals and ranges and matters of that

kind, are you? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Were you employed to make a blue-print on

behalf of the owners of the "West Keats," in this

case? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will hand you a blue-print and ask you to

identify it. Is that the blue-print you prepared?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—Now wdll counsel stipulate the trac-

ing from which the blue-print is made, so that I may
confine the testimony to the additional lines of red

and yellow the witness has put on it.

Mr. KING.—It is one of the regular blue-prints

in [85] your office?

A. Yes.

Mr. KING.—We will stipulate that fact, your

Honor.

Q. Referring to the red and yellow lines on that

blue-print, who placed those there? A. I did.

Q. And they were correctly placed as to location

and scale? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are they in accordance with the scale of the

blue-print? A. Yes.

COURT.—What do you mean by "in accordance

w^ith the scale of the blue-print"? What do they

represent? What do you place with reference to

the scale of the blue-print?

Mr. SNOW.—I will take that up now.

Q. There are marks representing position, initial

position, and position at collision. What do those

marks represent?

A. These lines through these various lines here,

red lines, mark the bearings as observed or given
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to me, to these lines, to the intersection, or close to

the intersection at the initial position of the ship.

Q. Have you the bearings on the blue-print ?

A. These show on each of these lines.

Q. You got those bearings from me, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What does the dotted line of the ship repre-

sent? What ship does that describe?

A. That is the position of the "Boston Maru."

Q. Is that drawn to scale?

A. The ship is draAvn to scale ; the other drawings

of course are directions more than scales.

Q. How long is the "Boston Maru"?

A. Four hunded feet.

Q. That figure was given you by me, was it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is the outline—do the two outlines of

the "Boston [86] Maru" as shown on the blue-

jjrint represent a distance of four hundred feet, in

comparison with the scale of the blue-print itself?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are the lines showing the bearings to these

various lines correctly placed as to direction?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where the marks are shown, width of river,

width of channel, state whether or not those marks

are correct?

A. Those are scaled from drawings. It is scaled

and shown correctly here.

Q. There are three long yellow lines on the blue-

print, all of them broken lines, and one of them is
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marked "Line F. E. 28-2," to "F. R. 27-2"; de-

scribe that line?

A. Those lines—that line is a line drawn through

this light along St. Helens jetty.

Q. Wliat is that light? A. Fixed red light.

Q. What is the number"?

A. St. Helens lower fixed red.

Q. What number is it?

A. No number for it shown. This part of the

chart refers to this dike, this number of this dike;

that is the official name, I take it, of that light, as

described by the Lighthouse Bureau which names

all the lights on the rivers and gives them some

designation.

Q. St. Helens lower?

A. St. Helens lower, yes.

Q. F. R. refers to what? A. Fixed red.

Q. What other light does that line run through?

A. Runs through this light on this dike up here,

27-2.

Q. Number 28-2 and 27-2, they refer to the dike

or jetty rather [87] than to the lights, do they

not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And just as a matter of interest, how are

those numbers given? Do they represent any dis-

tance ?

A. Those numbers represent distance or location

from Portland. The distance to this dike twenty-

seven and two tenths miles—nearest tenth of a mile

;

this will be twenty-eight and two tenths.

Q. Statute or nautical miles?
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A. Statute miles.

Q. I notice the direction red line extended through

these t^YO lines extends to the end of the chart?

A. Yes.

Q. That extension is made straight, is it ?

A. Yes.

Q. With a straight edge? A. Yes.

Q. Now describe the yellow line marked "Line

Lamont Point, F. W." A. Courthouse flag.

Q. To the courthouse flag ?

A. That is a straight line drawn through the

light marked "Lamont F. W." and the flag on the

courthouse at St. Helens.

Q. And extended on out?

A. Extended on down to the limits of the chart.

Q. Describe the line marked "Line from Caples

Point to Lamont Light."

A. That is a line drawn through Caples Point,

which is down off this chart, and to Lamont Light.

Q. On which side of the river is Caples Point?

A. Caples Point is on the Washington side of

the river.

Q. Is it below river from the part of the river

shown on this chart?

A. It is downstream here.

Q. About how far?

A. Half a mile or such a matter, something like

that.

Q. From the end of this chart? A. Yes.

Q. Describe the circles with marks in the, "Half

mile nautical" and "half mile statute," and the like.
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There are several circles. [88] Describe them all.

A. These denote the distance from the point of

collision downstream; that is, this red circle with

the half mile in it is half a statute mile from the

position of the "Boston Maru" at the time of the

collision.

COURT.—That is, the assumed position.

A. Assuming this position as shown on the chart,

the yellow circles indicate the distance from the

same point, in nautical miles.

Q. As shown within the circle in each instance"?

A. Yes, sir.

COURT.—Yes, that is what he said.

Q. I wish you would describe the portion of the

river to which I now i^oint, bounded by short dotted

lines, and with various soundings, the somiding in

the middle of it being 25, and the sounding at the

westerly end of it, westerly side of it, 26. Describe

what that represents, why that is there.

A. That represents a shoal, its contours—this dot-

ted line is the contour, so called, contour of thirty

foot depth; it encloses an area which is less than

thirty feet in depth, and those figures here indicate

depth as they were taken from soundings by survey

parties.

Q. When w^ere those soundings taken?

A. Taken in October, 1921.

Q. How did that shoal get there?

A. That shoal is the result, I think, of dredge,

dump placed there by the dredge "Clatsop."

Q. When was that dredge dump placed there?
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A. Well it was some time prior to October, 1921.

I am not sure of the date.

Q. What would be the effect of a shoal placed

there in that water and in that location, as to

whether it w^ould stay there "? [89]

Mr. KING.—I object.

Mr. SNOW.—The qualifications of the witness

have been admitted. If they are not admitted for

this purpose, I will go into it further.

Mr. McCAMANT.—We admit his qualifications to

prepare the chart, but not a matter of that sort.

Mr. SNOW.—I will ask some more questions to

qualify him to answer.

Q. How long have you been employed as Govern-

ment engineer at Portland? A. Since 1909.

Q. Have you been all that time in the same de-

partment? A. Yes.

Q. And that is the department headed by the War
Department? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Relating to channel and harbor matters?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What has been the nature of your work during

the whole of that time?

A. Well, it has been somewhat varied, starting in

with taking soundings and making surveys, tri-

angulation of the river, and on down through the

various operations of dredging and construction of

the jetty, and examination of the river in different

places.

Q. When you speak of the river, what river do

you mean? A. Columbia River.
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Q'. Have you been engaged on any other river be-

sides the Columbia and Willamette, during that

period of work ?

A. Well, not to any extent; some small tributary

rivers for a short time.

Q. Your main operations have been the Columbia

and Williamette ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you also studied the effect of currents on

the shoals [90] and river bottoms'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will now ask you to answer the question which

I asked you a little while ago. (Question read.)

"What would be the effect of a shoal placed there in

that water and in that location, as to whether it

would stay there ? '

'

Mr. McCAMANT.—I think we will renew the ob-

jection. , I am not sure it is a matter of expert

testimony.

COURT.—He can answer the question. I don't

see what bearing it has on this case. You have a

chart; you are operating under a chart made some

years ago, I assume.

Mr. SNOW.—Soundings taken some three years

before the collision.

A. Just this part down here.

Q. Soundings just on the lower part of the chart?

A. This line across here indicates the part which

was taken from the survey of 1921.

COURT.—Is this chart the latest chart, the one

navigators now use?

A. Yes, this chart itself, the whole chart, with
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the exception of that little piece there; the piece

dowTi there, was made in 1924.

COURT.—When was the chart put out, then?

A. This is it.

COURT.—I understand part of it, down where

the collision occurred, was made out in 1921.

Q. Explain it, please.

A. These areas down here, the deep section of

the river, are not surveyed every year. We sur-

veyed this part where the dredging operations are

carried on, improvements carried on, we surveyed

that every year; and this chart, October, 1924,

covers that down that far, but at that time the sur-

vey was not [91] extended down over that sec-

tion of the river naturally deep ; so to complete the

chart to here, these soundings, this part below the

line, was taken from chart of 1921.

COURT.—This chart of October, 1921, was the

chart used for navigation then, I assume?

A. No, I don't think so. At that time it was

—

Mr. KINO.—May I make a statement which I

believe will clear this matter up? When you had

incorporated this portion taken from soundings of

1921, you then made up the chart you have in your

hand, and issued it as the chart of the river for

October, 1924?

A. Yes, sir.

COURT.—Oh, that is all riglit.

A. Yes. It bears this note right here.

COURT.—That is all I wanted; whether that is
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the chart the navigators used. Go ahead then and

answer the question.

Q. Now answer the question as to whether or not

that portion of the river which you have described

as shoal, would remain, and how long it would re-

main?

A. Well, it would be my judgment that material

would not remain there very long. It would remain

there for a time, but would gradually wear away.

Q. Would it remain for a year or two, or three ?

A. Might remain for a year or so.

COURT.—You don't know when the material was

put in?

A. Some time prior to 1921.

COURT.—That might have been ten or fifteen

years ?

A. Oh, no, not that time.

COURT.—You said might have been a year or

two. But unless you know when put in, the testi-

mony would not be of any aid. [92]

A. I haven't that information at hand now.

Q. Can you get approximately the date when it

was put in?

A. Be mere guess; be some time prior to 1921.

COURT.—We can't guess.

Q. I wish you would look that up; if you will,

after you return to the office. Can you find that ?

A. I can ; may take some little time to find it.

COURT.—What is the purpose of this?

Mr. SNOW.—They are claiming that that limits

the anchorage ground.
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COURT.—They were operating under a chart that

showed that shoal there. Wouldn't they have the

right to assume it was still there if it appeared on

the chart? Would the navigator be charged with

the duty of ascertaining whether washed away or

not?

Mr. SNOW.—I want to show eventually none of

the navigators ever saw this chart before the col-

lision; very few have seen it since. These pilots

navigate the river by their own general knowledge

of the river, for the most part.

Q. Now, Mr. Hixon, to turn to the position of

the "Boston Maru," I want 3^ou to describe in de-

tail how you fixed the position of the "Boston

Maru"? The one which is marked "Initial posi-

tion."

A. I took the bearings which were given to me, and

placed them on this chart, passing the lines through

these various lights, and they do not meet at a

point, which is general in a case of this kind, where

bearings are taken on a magnetic compass; they

do not always meet on a point because they are not

exactly true. But in such cases a position is taken

as being within that triangle which is known as the

triangle of error.

Q. What point within the triangle did you take?

A. Generally take the intersection medium, that

is, bi-sector [93] of each angle to the opposite;

the bi-sector of each angle where it will intersect

some point of the triangle.
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COURT.—Where did you get the data from

which you made that?

A. Mr. Snow gave me the bearings.

Mr. KING.—I might explain, that long prior to

this the testimony of the officers of the vessel have

been taken, and these bearings were in the log-

books, so they were supplied to the parties.

Q. How did you locate the direction of the head

of the vessel?

A. The vessel is lying there in the direction of the

current.

Q. How do you know the direction of the current

at that point?

A. Why, we have taken observation at points

along the river, to show the direction and strength

of the current at different places, and we have such

information for that point.

Q. I understood you to say that you put that

—

that you noted that vessel in there by direction of

the current, assuming that she was hanging down

on her anchor at the time the bearings were taken?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were the bearings given you as to direction of

the head of the vessel, from the compass at that

time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I wish you would state what that was, and de-

scribe the small chart attached to the main chart.

A. The direction of the head of the vessel as

given to me was, southeast by south half south;

using that direction for the direction of the ship's
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head from the compass, we put the anchor further

—

toward the Oregon shore.

Q. Just confine your remarks now to the initial

position.

A. Well, it would not change the initial position

of the ship's compass. The only position the ship's

head would have, would be [94] it would throw

the line to the anchor further around.

Q. How does the bearing, southeast by half south,

being the bearing of the ship's head as given you,

square with the current at that point?

A. Well, it doesn't square with it. The currrent

would strike the ship on the Washington side.

Q. So if she was hanging on her anchor where the

bearings were taken, the probabilities are, you

would say, the bearings were wrong ?

A. The ship might have been in that position

temporarily, I couldn't say as to that, but if hang-

ing dead, the anchor probably would be lying in the

direction of the current.

Q. Referring again to the chart, please explain

the position of the "Boston Maru" at the collision

as you have noted there, and how 3^ou placed the

"Boston Maru" in that position, what estimate you

made.

A. I took the length of the anchor as given to me,

and found the position of the anchor, the initial

position, or position of the anchor.

Q. Did you allow for slack of chain ?

A. Yes, I allowed on the initial position—I al-
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lowed some feet, nine feet, I think, slack in the

chain in the initial position.

Q. How did you come to make that allowance?

A. Well, the chain couldn't be absolutely

—

wouldn't be absolutel}^ a straight line between the

anchor and the hawse-pipe; under its own weight

would have some curve to it, and I estimated would

be about nine feet.

Q'. Now, go on if you will and describe the posi-

tion of the vessel at the time of the collision, as you

have placed it there.

A. Well, the position of the vessel at the time

of the collision is arrived at by assuming that she

would swing this way on [95] account of the

wind. The direction of the wind was given to me
also as being from the southeast.

Q. You were also told she swung that way,

weren't you?

A. Yes, you told me she swung that way, and

she was swinging around this way with the tide;

she had gotten around to this point; I was told she

was lying at that point and in this direction, prac-

tically across the current.

Q. You were told she was lying practically across

the channel, were you not?

A. Across the current, yes.

Q. Across the current. In placing her across the

current

—

A. That is, the direction of the current; wouldn't

be any current at the time she was lying around

there, because generally

—
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Q. In placing her practically across the channel,

what allowance did you make for the chain from

the point of the anchor, and how did you estimate

the position of the stern of the "Boston Maru"?

Mr. KING.—I want to make the record clear that

in that I don't want to assume this man is going to

testify the length of this vessel is the channel; he

says placing her practically across the channel

—

crosswise to the channel.

A. In placing her in this position at the collision,

I shortened the chain up an additional eighteen feet,

which would make it about twenty-seven feet of

slack of the chain in that position.

Q. How did you arrive at that eighteen feet ?

A. Just my judgment ; assuming that the current

was on this side, and the current on that side she

would naturally go over this way until her chain was

lying in that position.

Q. Describe the position at collision in the small

chart attached to the main chart.

A. The only difference there is that the anchor

lying in the direction of the ship's head, southeast

of south, half south, [96] would be closer to the

Oregon shore than shown in the large chart, by

about fifty feet, fifty or fifty-five feet. I think it

figures fifty-five feet ; and then making the same cal-

culation for the length of the chain and the position

of the head here, would swing her stern about fifty-

five feet closer to the shore there than it is here.

Q. Of course, you don't pretend to know, Mr.
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Hixon, just how much slack there would be in that

chain, do you? A. No, sir.

Q. And what you have placed on that chart is

your own estimation, is it not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Let me ask you one or two more questions

about soundings, and particularly referring to that

part of the river that you described as shoal. Take

the sounding 25 in the center of that portion. What
does that mean, the figure 25 ?

A. That means that at zero stage of river at dead

low water, there would be twenty-five feet of water

at that point.

Q. What is the zero stage of the river?

A. That is practically as low as it gets; that is

the datum to which we refer all our soundings; it

is the low water datum.

Q. What was the stage of the water October, 1924,

as compared with the zero stage of the river ?

Mr. KINO.—I ask that he be limited to the date

of this collision.

Q. October 26th, as compared with the zero stage.

A. I haven't that information. The river is usu-

ally low in October; whether it was down to zero,

or up above zero, I couldn't say; two feet above

zero, perhaps. At high tide there would be more

water than that.

Q. Referring to the range lights noted on the

chart, were those range lights established by the

Lighthouse Bureau—Department [97] of Com-

merce, is it? A. Yes.

Q. In conjunction with your department?
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A. No, they are separate departments entirely;

we co-operate a great deal. They are separate de-
partments.

Q. They placed the lights in question ?

Mr. KING.—To save any discussion we will con-
cede the lights were established as shown on that
chart.

Mr. SNOW.—I want to sJiotv established by au-
thority of law.

Q. Another question. Referring again to this
part which you have designated as shoal, state
whether that appears in earlier blue-prints of that
section of the river? A. I don't think so.

COURT.—What do you mean? You don't mean
by that, that is the only blue-print that shows it,

the one you have in your hand ?

A. This particular shoal, yes.

COURT.—No other blue-print issued by your of-
fice shows that?

A. I don't think so; other copies of the same sur-
vey.

Q. In other words, that is the only blue-print on
which it has ever appeared, to your knowledge?
A. Well, it is the only original.

Q. Only tracing-? A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Hixon, are you informed, offhand, about
lateness of the tides at this point, how much later
they are than at Astoria ?

A. Yes, the tide at that point would be about four
hours and ten minutes after the tide at Astoria
later than Astoria.
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COURT.—How much would be the height of the

tide there?

A. Well, it would be around four feet, your

Honor.

Q. Four hours and ten minutes later. [98]

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)
Mr. Hixon, have you had any experience as pilot

of deep sea vessels on the Columbia River?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you claim any knowledge as to the action

of deep sea vessels swinging upon their anchors

when at rest? In the river, from experience and

actual operation ?

A. Not from experience and actual operation, no.

Q. Now, Mr. Hixon, you said that the angle given

for the ship's head in these bearings, does not cor-

respond with the current, in that the current would

throw the ship's head further out from the Oregon

shore than the bearings taken by the ship's officers.

A. Throw her stern further off.

Q. When she came to rest, if you take the bear-

ings of the ship^s head as given by the officers, from

the point of the compass there, it would put the bow

closer to the Oregon shore than it was by your

chart? A. Yes.

Q. When you made this observation did it occur

to you that the same wind that you were calculat-

ing upon, in swinging this vessel toward the Oregon

shore, might have caused her stern to swing a little
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bit toward the Oregon shore when she was at rest

on her anchor?

A. Yes, took that into consideration. But at the

time she anchored, as I got it, it was ebb tide.

Q. Yes, it was ebb tide.

A. And the ebb tide current is so much stronger

than any effect the wind would have, it is negligible.

Q. And you think the wind is negligible, on ebb

tide. Is it not possible that the force of the wind at

the time the ship anchored might have caused her

to swing sufficiently so as to [99] give the angle

of the ship's head that these officers reported?

A. The wind was blowing from that side.

Q. Was blowing from the Washington side?

A. Yes. If wind, would have swung her stern

—

that would have thrown her stern towards the Ore-

gon shore.

Q. Yes, and her bow off the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Which is the position you say the current

would have put her in, too.

A. Yes, I put her in line with the current.

Q. Now, is there any doubt in your mind, Mr.

Hixon, as to the ability of a group of officers to con-

jure up angles such as these, to meet at a certain

point, if they desired to do so ?

A. Oh, I think they could.

Q. Do you think there is anything to iaidicate in

your examination of these angles, that they were not

actually taken from on board the vessel?
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A. No, I have no doubt they were taken on board

the vessel.

Q. The fact that they don't meet in one point is

an indication of veracity, is it not?

A. It looks as though they had not been tampered

with.

Q. In other words, assuming that these angles to

these points were what is known as shadow-pin, or

shadow-pin compass, do you think they represent

fairly accurate readings? A. I assume they do.

Q. About as close as you can read a compass of

that kind?

A. Can't get a very accurate reading with com-

pass.

Q. Bound to be some slight discrepancy. Now,

will you explain to his Honor, viewing this chart

with your knowledge of the river, start at Warrior

Point and give him an idea of the surface of the

water and what obstructions there would be, if any,

between Warrior Point and the place where the

'^Boston Maru" was at rest, [100] with respect

to a person standing on the bridge of a vessel com-

ing along Warrior Point there, looking down the

river.

A. Well, the only thing—Warrior Point, the only

thing that would be in the way, would be this dike

out in front of St. Helens.

Q. What is the maximum height of those dikes ?

A. Thirteen feet above low-water datum.

Q. And that is only the center of the dike, then?

A. On those regular dikes, substantially the whole
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dikes; only a hundred feet on this dike is less than

that, than ten feet.

Q. Assuming a vessel has progressed up to a

point—I don't know what the name of that is—

a

point opposite dike 27-2—would there be any ob-

struction in the water then that could obstruct the

view with respect to the position of the "Boston

Maru'"? A. No, apparently not.

Q. And you haA^e calculated the distance in nauti-

cal miles to be what at that point ?

A. Two miles.

Q. Two miles at that point, that is, nautical miles

;

and how far off, land miles ? A. About two

—

Q. About two and a half?

A. No, two and a quarter about.

Q. The same view would be possibly another half

mile beyond dike 27-2 ? A. Possibly so, yes.

Q. Have you the tigures upon which you base

this chart here? You said you have allowed nine

feet for the slack in the chain ? A. Yes.

Q. What is the distance from this line running

from the bow of the vessel to point of anchor ?

A. That is a hundred and fifty feet as shown on

the chart.

Q. A hundred and hfty feet? A. Yes. [101]

Q. Now, as a matter of fact, were you computing

that—what is the depth of the water there where

she was at rest?

A. It shows forty-three feet where the anchor

is.



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki Kaisha. 83

(Testimony of R. E. Hixon.)

Q. When did you take that depth of water 1 Did

Mr. Snow give you the figures of the height of the

hawse-pipe above the water'?

A. I don't believe he did.

Q. So that you got no accurate information to

determine what the length of this anchor chain

was—the hypothenuse of that triangle, did you?

A. No, no method that I know of by which you

could make an accurate determination of it.

Q. When you put a vessel in position swinging

towards the Oregon shore, what is the length of the

chain shown there, measured horizontal]}^ *?

A. Horizontal is one hundred thirty-two feet, I

think.

Q. And the distance from the stern of the vessel,

the ''Boston Maru," to the dotted line which repre-

sents the thirty-foot contour, is how many feef?

A. About fifty or fifty-five feet.

Q. Can you tell how many feet beyond the thirty-

foot contour you would have to go towards shore

before you would reach the twenty-six-foot mark?

A. No, it would be pretty hard to say.

Q. Can you give an estimate?

A. Twenty-six foot depth?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, it might be another thirty or forty feet;

something like that.

Q. Now, there will be testimony in this case, Mr.

Hixon, to the effect that the "Boston Maru" was not

perpendicular to the Oregon shore line at the time

of the collision, but was at an angle of forty-five
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degrees from her position when she was tailing

down the river. In that position how far would

she extend [102] towards the Oregon shore if

you dropped perpendicular from her stern to a line

which ran directly to the shore? I asked you to

figure that out the other day.

A. AVhy I though you wanted what distance

she would be out, additional distance she would be

out.

Q. The additional distance she would be out away

than shown on your chart.

A. Forty-five degrees would be about one hun-

dred and fifty-four feet.

Q. And assume that instead of pulling on her

anchor chain and lugging on her anchor chain as

you show her when she swung, she swung with the

bow right over the anchor; her stern would then

extend only four hundred feet towards shore,

wouldn't it—if she was perpendicular to the shore?

A. Yes, if head right over the anchor.

Q. Assuming was in a position forty-five degrees,

how much additional would that make?

A. That would make that one hundred and thirty-

two feet additional that I have represented the chain

there.

Q. I know, but if only forty-five degrees. I

think your Honor gets the point I want to make.

I don't want to take up too much time. If only

forty-five degrees and draw a straight line parallel

to the shore from where the stern was, would be

further off than in a straight course ?
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A. Oh, yes.

Q. About one hundred and thirty-two feet you

think? A. Yes.

Q. So that in that event there would be two

hundred feet of water there, thirty feet or over?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, with respect to that twenty-five foot

soimding on this shoal here that has been discussed,

those soundings are taken regularly up and down

the river at a distance of how many feet? [103]

A. They are not taken at any specific distance

apart.

Q. Well, there is no sounding between that and

one end of the shoal, is there ? A. No.

Q. And as you said before that was the official

chart which was issued to the maritime people on

the river at the time of this collision?

A. Yes, we send these charts out to anyone who

wants them, and send a copy to the Coast Survey.

Q. Now, in order to clear up one statement, Mr.

Hixon, which I think was made by you rather in-

advertently, I will ask you—has this chart been

offered.

Mr. SNOW.—I offer the chart from which he

testified.

Mr. KING.—I wish to have the record show the

chart offered is the one marked.

(Marked "West Keats" Exhibit 1.)

Q. Now, in order to clear the record, the chart

from which you testified is "West Keats" Exhibit

1 ; that is right ? A. One.
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Mr. KING.—I want to offer this one, for identi-

fication.

(Marked "Boston Maru" Exhibit "L," for

identification.)

Q. Mr. Hixon, I hand you "Boston Maru" Ex-

hibit "L" for identification and will ask you to

state whether or not you know that that chart is

the chart or blue-print of the original chart in your

ofQces?

A. Yes, that is a blue-print from one of our

originals.

Q. When was that made f A. October, 1921.

Q. Directing your attention to Columbia City

front and rear lights, and the St. Helens Bar front

and rear, I will ask you to state whether or not it

shows the shoal opposite these lights ? A. Yes.

Q. Is that the same shoal which appears in chart,

"West Keats" Exhibit 1?

A. It is the same shoal ; it is the chart from which

taken. [104]

Q. And at the time that chart "West Keats"

Exhibit 1 was issued, this chart was still in force

and effect, was it not?

A. Well, it was a record; no particular force

and effect; it is a record there for any one who

wants to see it.

Q. I mean it is issued for the benefit of mariners

on the river?

A. Yes, if they want it they can have it—any of

these charts.
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Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Mr. King questioned you about a hypothetical

state of facts, assuming that the "Boston Maru"

swung, not directly across the river, but on a forty-

five degree angle, and you gave, as I understood it,

one hundred and fifty-four and one hundred and

thirty-two feet? A. Yes.

Q. I don't believe I quite understood you. Did

you mean to say her stern would be one fifty-four,

or one thirty-two feet further from the shore or

further out?

A. Further out; the first question should be one

hundred fifty-four feet further out.

COURT.—You mean further out than if she were

swinging at right angles'?

A. Square across, yes. And the second question,

he said assuming she were up on her anchor; if

the anchor were not leading ahead at all, that her

bow was right over the anchor, and she were still

lying at forty-five degrees, what distance was that,

and I said would just cut that distance in there

approximately, and would hold her still further

out.

Q. I can understand, the second question, you just

cut off the chain, cut off the distance of the chain,

assuming that her bow was where the anchor is

shown on the chart; that would make her stern

some thirty-two feet, approximately, further from

shore, would it not? [105]
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A. That is right; if that were around on a forty-

five degree angle, she would not be one hundred and

thirty-two feet further out, if she was lying in here

like that; in the other case she was lying over here

one hundred thirty-two feet.

Q. Can't you make a diagram of that, showing

these positions that I have outlined there to show

your ideas. I don't think necessary to call another

witness for that.

A. I should think could be put in the record with-

out making a diagram. I am pretty busy.

Mr. McCAMANT.—We will say: Suppose Mr.

Hixon, that the "Boston Maru" was lying directly

athwart the channel at right angles to the current,

and that instead of pulling on her anchor chain she

was riding her anchor chain, and her bow was

directly over the anchor, how far would her stern

be from the Oregon shore, or how much difference

would it make in the distance of her stern from the

Oregon shore, as against the way you have placed

it?

A. It would shorten that distance, move her out

one hundred and thirty-two feet.

Mr. McCAMANT.—Move her stern out one hun-

dred and thirty-two feet more %

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCAMANT.—Now suppose the vessel were

riding her anchor, and her bow was right over her

anchor, and that instead of laying athwart and at

right angles to the current she was at an angle of

forty-five degrees to the current, how much differ-
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ence would those two considertions make in the

position of her stern with reference to the Oregon

shore ?

A. She would be two hundred and twenty-four

feet further out.

Q. Two hundred and twenty-four feet further

out than is shown by your plat here ? A. Yes, sir.

A. Yes, sir. [106]

Mr. KING.—That develops the point.

COURT.—How far does your plat show her stern

to be from the Oregon shore *?

A. What part of the Oregon shore do you mean?

COURT.—Thirty-foot contour.

A. About fifty-five feet.

Mr. KING.—All those other figures have been

with respect to the thirty-foot contour?

A. No, with respect to her position shown by the

chart.

Recess until two o 'clock. [107]

R. E. HIXON resumes the stand.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Mr. Hixon, you stated that the soundings on the

blue-print about which you testified this morning

were the stage of the water above the zero mark.

I wish you would state what stage the water at

low water on October 26, 1924, was above zero?

A. One foot and a half.

Q. At Columbia City ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How high was the tide on that morning?
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What was the stage of the water at high tide?

A. High tide Cohimbia City would be about three

and seven-tenths feet.

COURT.—At what hour?

A. At three-fourteen A. M. October 26th.

Q. Was there another figure there ?

A. Yes, one of the stage at the time of the col-

lision.

Q. Oh, yes, the stage of the water at the time of

the collision?

A. About three and one-tenth above zero.

Recross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)
When you say three and seven-tenths feet for

high tide at three-fourteen A. M. you mean three

and seven-tenths feet above zero? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you say at one-forty A. M. the time of

this collision, be how much above zero?

A. About three and one-tenth feet.

Q. How do you arrive at those figures?

A. I arrived at those from gauge readings and

records taken at the mouth of the Willamette and

St. Helens and Astoria the year previous under

similar conditions.

Q. On the year previous?

A. Yes, we don't have any readings taken on this

particular date. [108]

A. They were at the mouth of tlie Willamette.

Q. Oh, I see; you took the relative ratio between

the readings the previous year and applied them to
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the year 1924 at the mouth of the Willamette River

;

is that right '?

A. Yes. We have readings for 1926 at the mouth

of the Willamette; also for 1925 and 1922, years

previous; we have predicated the heights at Astoria

as given by the official tide tables. Under similar

conditions readings were taken in 1922, 1923 at St.

Helens, with the stage at the mouth of the Willam-

ette the same as we had in 1926, which should give

the same conditions at St. Helens as you have in

1926.

Q. Can you give us the hour of extreme low

water at St. Helens on the night of October 25th'?

A. Extreme low water?

Q. Yes.

A. Would be about eleven o'clock or eleven-

fifteen, somewheres along there, P. M.

Q. Eleven or eleven-fifteen'? A. Yes.

Q. How long does the tide remain comparatively

stationary at the time of low water without any

perceptible change in the tide ? A. At low water ?

Q. Yes, how long does low water exist, what you

term low water ; how many minutes or hours ?

A. Well, in that part of the river it lasts for a

considerable length of time; of course, always

varies a little but the appreciable variation would

require probably an hour or an hour and a half.

Q. Then an hour or an hour and a half after

eleven or eleven-fifteen P. M. before have any ap-

preciable variation?
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A. I mean both sides of low water; one-half the

time ahead of it, one-half the time after it; the

flood tide comes up much quicker than the low tide

drops at that point. [109]

Q. You would say then that the low water would

extend to about midnight before the flood tide

started to rise with much rapidity ?

A. Well, it would be sometime after low water,

perhaps an hour after low water, before there

would be any appreciable rise in the water.

Q. That is what I mean; it would carry to twelve

of twelve-fifteen*?

A. About midnight ; somewhere along there.

Witness excused. [110]

TESTIMONY OF E. H. BERRY, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

E. H. BERRY, a witness called on behalf of the

"West Keats," being first duly sworn, testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Captain Berry, you were the pilot on the "West

Keats' on the morning of October 26, 1924, at the

time of the collision with the "Boston Maru," were

you not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is your present occupation?

A. Columbia River Pilot.

Q. Do you belong to the Columbia River Pilots

Association? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How long have you belonged to that associa-

tion? A. Very near five years.

Q. When did you first get your Columbia River

pilot's license?

A. That is for piloting river vessels'?

Q. Yes, for piloting ? A. 1905, I believe.

Q. What licenses do you carry now. Captain?

A. Master and pilot of the Columbia River and

tributaries.

Q. That is issued by the United States?

A. Yes.

Q. You also carry a State Branch License?

A. Yes.

Q. Is there any limitation as to the tonnage of

vessels you can pilot under these licenses?

A. No, sir.

Q. When did you get your unlimited license from

the Government first ? A. 1908.

Q. When from the State Branch?

A. 1922—no, February, 1923, I got my branch

license.

Q. That is when you became a member of the

association or afterwards?

A. No, I became a member a year before that.

Q. Before you got your Government Unlimited

Pilot License for the [111] Columbia River, what

had been your occupation, and for how long?

A. I had been a steamboat man, working on the

deck, etc., for five or six years.

Q. Five or six years before that time?

A. Before I received a license.
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Q. For what company or companies did you

work ?

A. Shaver Transportation Company.

Q. During all that time ? A. Yes, very near.

Q. Did you have your first experience on the

river with them? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you work for other people before you

worked for them? A. Yes, sir.

Q. On the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. For whom?
A. I have worked for the Oregon City Trans-

portation Company; I worked on the old Toledo

that ran up the Yamhill in 1896. I worked—well,

then I think the next was the Shaver Transporta-

tion Company.

Q. How old are you now. Captain ? A. Sir ?

Q. How old are you now? A. Forty-eight.

Q. For what length of time have you been em-

ployed on and connected with the Columbia River?

A. Thirty years.

Q. Now, in what capacity have you worked on the

Columbia River during that thirty years?

A. Worked as deck-hand, mate and pilot and

master.

Q. Of what vessels were you master?

A. Master of the Shaver Transportation Com-

pany's boats.

Q. And that was the period, you say, immediately

})efore you became an Association Pilot?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. On the night of October 25, 1924, what time

did you go on board the "West Keats'"?

A. About ten o'clock, I believe. [112]

Q. Where was the vessel at that time ?

A. Terminal four, pier one.

Q. St. Johns ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember approximately the time you

left that terminal and started down the river ?

A. Why it was about ten minutes to eleven, I

believe, as near as I remember.

Q. What kind of a night was it with regard to

weather and visibility—darkness?

A. Very dark night; clouds, but lights were

visible.

Q. Was it foggy ? A. No, sir.

Q. Clear?

A. Well, the visibility was clear, that is, you could

see; of course it was cloudy; very dark, but you

could see lights ; it was not foggy.

Q. Could you see dark objects, such as the bank

of the river well?

A. No, sir, you couldn't see the shore line at all.

Q. You took your place on the bridge of the

"West Keats," did you, when she left the terminal?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, at what speed did the vessel proceed

down the Willamette River?

A. I would say about—I would say between five

and six knots, down the Willamette River. I am
just not sure whether I ran full speed down the

Willamette or not. I hardly think I did. Ordi-
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narily it is customary on dark nights to run at

moderate speed until you get into the Columbia.

I believe I did.

Q. Before you went full speed; how was the

vessel loaded? A. Fully loaded.

Q. Pull cargo was it ; how did she steer ?

A. She steered very well.

Q. When you came into the Columbia River, at

what speed did you go ?

A. Well, going down the Columbia River? [113]

Q. Yes. A. Well, I would say

—

Q. I don't mean the number of knots per hour;

I mean what bell. A. Full speed.

Q. Full speed ahead; now who was on the bridge

with you and in the pilot-house during that period,

between the time you came into the Columbia River,

and the time of the collision?

A. The quartermaster at the wheel, and the sec-

ond mate.

Q. The quartermaster of course was at the wheel

in the pilot-house? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did the second mate stay?

A. In the pilot-house I believe most of the time.

Q. Where is the telegraph of the "West Keats"?

A. In the pilot-house.

Q. Who gave any signals that were given to the

engine-room?

A. The second mate operated the telegraph.

Q. At whose orders? A. The pilot.

Q. And will you locate the telegraph on the

'' Went Keats"—I believe I asked you that question.
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I will repeat it to make sure : Where was the tele-

graph located on the "West Keats"?
A. In the pilothouse.

Q. Who gave the orders to the man at the wheel,

the quartermaster? A. The pilot.

Q. You yourself ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether he obeyed those orders promptly
and correctly?

A. Yes, he obeyed them promptly and correctly?

Q. State whether the vessel answered her helm
during that voyage down the Columbia River before

the accident?

A. She answered her helm very well.

Q. I will now hand you a chart marked "West
Keats" Exhibit 1, and call your attention to the

point above the place of collision and about oppo-
site the town of St. Helens; at what speed were
you [114] proceeding when you reached that

point—made the turn indicated there on the chart,

as to whether you were on a full speed bell?

A. Full speed, sir.

Q. What channel did you go down there, the
channel alongside St. Helens?

COURT.—Excuse me; haven't you a chart that
isn't marked. If you have a chart without all

these figures on I think the captain should use
that, not one that someone else has marked for him.
Mr. SNOW.—I don't think it makes any differ-

ence, your Honor. I just as soon have him testify

without any chart at all.

COURT.—He should have a clean chart in this
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case. I should like to have these people tell what

their ideas are, without marks made on the chart,

by somebody else.

Mr. McCAMANT.—This chart of ours has but. one

mark on it; it is the identical blue-print, but there

are some marks down about the place of the colli-

sion.

COURT.—I don't think it makes much difference.

Q. Now, Captain Berry, there are two channels

down on the chart apparently, one extending right

in front of and immediately off the town of St.

Helens, one across the river. Which channel did

you follow down?

A. The mam ship channel across the river.

Q. On the Washington side? A. Yes, sir.

COURT.—On the Washington side?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you made the turn at the upper end

of St. Helens jetty, describe what, if any lights were

in view, that is after you started down the jetty.

A. Well, I saw the lights on the jetty, Columbia

City Range ahead of me, and also the lights of

Columbia City, in the town. [115]

Q. How many Ughts were there in view around

Columbia—around the town of Columbia City and

around the ranges'?

A. Oh, might have been a couple of dozen.

Q. On which range were you, if any?

A. On St. Helens Bar range.

Q. Now, Captain, I wish you would describe a

rano-e on the Columbia River and state what it looks
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like, and how it operates. How do you use it, for

example, as an aid to navigation'?

A. A range consists of two lights; the front light

would be very much lower than the rear one; the

rear one would be higher and maybe from two hun-

dred and fifty to five hmidred feet to the rear of the

front light, and to make a range you keep these

lights on; the reason one is higher than the other,

that is what forms the range; if they were the

same height it would not be a range.

Q. One would obstruct the other?

A. One would obstruct the other.

Q. Are these range lights normally red or white

or any other color?

A. Well, they are different, different ranges;

some are both white; some are both red; some are

red and white.

Q. If you are proceeding on a range so that one

light is immediately above the other, what does

that convey to your mind as to whether you are

on or off the range?

A. You would be on the range if one light was

above the other, that is in line.

Q. If the lower right was to the right of upper

light, which side of the range would you be on?

A. You would be on the left-hand side; if the

front light was to the right of the rear light, you

would have it open on the left side. [116]

Q. As you proceeded down past Columbia City

did you actually go on and follow the St. Helens

Bar range lights? A. Yes, kept them right on.
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Q. Were you on the range? A. Yes.

Q. Now, state as near as you can where you were

when you first made out the lights of the "Boston

Maru" to be the lights of a vessel at anchor.

A. How far was I away?

Q. And where were you?

A. I was about middle way on this St. Helens

Bar Range; in other words, about to the red light

on the end of the breakwater—about there I would

say.

COURT.—Show me that on the chart. Captain.

A. Now, here is the range; this is St. Helens Bar

range right up along here; this is the breakwater

runs down along here; this is the red light on the

lower end of the breakwater. I came from this

direction way off here; here is the range light here;

I had to come down and get right on to this range

light—this range light here, and I will say I was

along about

—

COURT.—When you first made out?

A. Yes.

COURT.—Along about here when you first made

out the lights of some vessel at anchor?

A. Yes, right about in here as near as I can re-

member.

Mr. KING.—1 was gohig to suggest the light

could be identified as right opposite from No. 28-2;

is that about where it was?

A. Well, it is a fixed light here.

COURT.—You were about opposite here?



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki Kaisha. 101

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

A. Yes, as near as I can remember, right about

opposite.

Mr. KING.—Will you put a red mark there.

A. This is a red light. [117]

Mr. SNOW.—Does your Honor want it marked

on the chart/?

COURT.—Yes, just mark where your vessel was

at the time.

A. I say was right in here, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—Witness makes a red mark at ap-

proximatel}^ the place.

COURT.—Write it on the chart there. "When
first saw the vessel at anchor."

A. 'West Keats' at the time of first seeing an-

chored vessel."

Q. You have written on the chart, have you not,

Captain, " 'West Keats' at time of first seeing an-

chored vessel"? A. Yes.

Q. And that is a red mark you have made on the

chart? A. Yes.

Q. I understood you so, or the question I asked

you called for this answer at any rate: Was that

the first time you may have seen these anchor lights

of the "Boston Maru," or the first time you made

them out to be anchor lights of a vessel at anchor?

A. That is the first time I made them out to be

a vessel at anchor. If I had noticed them before,

I perhaps did not think much about it at the time,

a few lights down in that direction.

Q. In your experience piloting on the Columbia
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River, have you passed vessels at anchor in that

general locality before this time?

A. Yes, a good many times.

Q. I wish you would state whether or not there

is an anchorage ground recognized by the custom

of pilots at that point *?

Mr. KING.—I object to that as calling more or

less for a conclusion. That is the point at issue in

this case. I would like to have him tell the facts

about it, and let the Court draw the conclusion.

COURT.—Yes.
Q. I withdraw the question, then; state whether

or not there are vessels anchored m that general

locality from time to time by the [118] pilots?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, have you anchored vessels there your-

self? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you anchor vessels at a point generally

opposite the Cohunbia City range lights at night?

A. I use the lower Columbia Cit}^ range light; put

that abeam out about twelve hundred feet or per-

haps a little more; and at that time there was a red

range that we anchored our vessels on, which would

be the lower light of the St. Helens jetty, and a

red light on another little jetty that came out just

a little above the St. Helens jetty, on a dolphin.

Q. You speak of that as a red range? A. Yes.

Q. By that, do you mean was two red lights?

A. Yes, those was two red lights; it wasn't put

there for a range, however, but we usually use that

for a range to tell us where we were at nights.
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Q. Were those fixed red lights? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, referring to "West Keats" Exhibit 1,

can you point out those two lights?

A. I have just mentioned?

Q. The two lights you have just mentioned.

A. Yes, here is one of those lights right here,

on the end of the breakwater. The other one is

here on the end of this little breakwater that comes

out from the Washington shore.

Q. What does this little breakwater, the second

one, numbered on the chart

—

A. That is 27-2. [119]

Q. And what, is the Columbia Eiver breakwater

numbered on the chart? A. 28-2.

Q. That light takes you approximately how far

out from the shore line of Columbia City?

A. A good 1,200 feet.

Q. WTiat can you say as to the practices of other

pilots anchoring vessels in that locality?

A. I would say they also do the same. I have

come up many a time and found them anchored

there. I could see they were there, because I could

see this range, see the vessel anchored there.

Q. When you first made out the anchor lights of

the "Boston Maru" to be the lights of a vessel at

anchor, state what was your judgment at that time

as to the location of that vessel?

A. I supposed she was over on this certified an-

chorage.

Mr. KING.—What was that last answer?

A. I supposed her to be over in this regular an-
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chorage ground, where vessels are commonly an-

chored for taking on cargo from the water.

Q. Now, in piloting vessels down in that particu-

lar section of the river, state what is your practice

as regards the use of St. Helens Bar range and

Columbia City range? Is that question clear, Cap-

tain? A. I don't know as I just

—

Q. In piloting vessels down in that particular

section of the river how do you use these aids to

navigation that are descrbed on the chart as the

Columba City range and the St. Helens Bar?

A. Come down on the St. Helens Bar Range, and

turn to the right dow^i to the Oregon shore at a

reasonably safe distance from shore; keep on that

course until you get the Columbia City range on;

that takes you then on down the river towards

Martin Island. [120]

Q. You pick up the Columbia City range astern

generally? A. Yes, always.

Q. Approximately how far is it from the place

where you ordinaril}^ leave the St. Helens Bar

range to the place where you ordinarily pick up

tJie Columbia City range?

A. Well, about half a mile, if I remember right.

I never measured it ; I am making a guess.

COURT.—Captain, where is the St. Helens Bar

range you refer to .^

A. Right here is Columbia City.

COURT.—No, the St. Helens Bar Range you

have been referring to?

A. It is right down here, sir.
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COURT.—Where is it?

A. At Columbia City, Oregon.

COURT.—Counsel asked you about the lights

on the St. Helens Bar range; where are they?

A. They are at Columbia City.

COURT.—I know that is Columbia City, but

counsel has been referred to St. Helens Bar Range.

A. This is called St. Helens Bar Range.

COURT.—Are there range lights there?

A. Just as I said, I am right down here on this

range.

COURT.—But lights are in all up and down the

river; there are lights; is there a light up here any

place ?

A. Yes, a red, at this dike, a white on this jetty

here. A red light here; we passed this red light on

our starboard side heading right for this.

Q. I don't think that you have Judge Bean's idea;

I believe the Court wanted you to locate on the map

the two lights representing the— [121]

COURT.—^You referred in your question, to the

St. Helens Bar Range; I didn't know what he meant

by that.

Q. Locate the two lights making up the range

line of St. Helen's Bar Range.

Q. Here is the front red light, a red one; here is

the rear one, white; takes you right up along what

you call the St. Helens Bar.

COURT.—Those are the range lights for St.

Helens Bar down there?
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A. Yes, coming down the river you head for them,

and going up the river you put them on your stern.

Q. When coming down the river by that range,

you could, see those two lights, could you?

A. Yes.

Q. Which one was the higher of the two?

A. The rear is the higher one.

Q. That is always the case in range lights, is it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you made out the lights of the "Boston

Maru" as you have described, from your place on

the St. Helens Bar Range as you have described,

what, if any, decision, did you come to relative to

the manner of taking the vessel down past that

vessel at anchor?

A. I supposed that I was going down on the Ore-

gon side of this channel, this vessel.

Q. Did you feel that it would be necessary for

you to alter your customary way of running that

portion of the river in order to pass the "Boston

Maru"? A. No, sir, not at that time.

Mr. McCAMANT.—That is irrelevant, I think;

the statute requires him to do a certain thing.

What was customary—what he had been accus-

tomed to doing, and whether he thought it [122]

necessary to vary his custom would be immaterial.

The witness may say with propriety what he in-

tended to do.

COUHT.—Go ahead.

Q. How, then, did you intend to take your vessel

past the anchored "Boston Maru"?
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A. I intended to take her past on the Oregon

side.

Q. Now, we have left you, Captain, at a point

which you marked with a red mark on the chart,

opposite the lower end of St. Helens jetty. What
did you do next in the navigation of the "West

Keats"?

A. I kept her on the range until I got down to

the turning point, when I should have turned along

the Oregon shore.

Q. Can you locate that turning point on the map,

and mark with a red mark, with a red cross ; mark

your cross on the range line, Captain.

A. Well, that, w^ould be right about here, "turn-

ing point."

COURT.—That was half a mile from the point

of collision.

Q. About half a mile from the place of collision.

Captain? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What order did you give at that time, if any

order, to make that turn?

A. Port a bit, the order I gave the quartermaster.

Q. Was that order obeyed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did the vessel answer. A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what was the next order you gave?

A. I believe it was, "Steady!"

Q. What was the reason for giving the steady

order?

A. Well, I had brought her on her course, and

however ordinarily before we give the steady,

though, we usually tell them to ease [123] the



108 United States of America vs..

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

wheel; that gives them a chance to sort of ease the

ship about up, because if you give steady, after

sv^inging, all of a sudden, one order, they ordinarily

can't steady the vessel right away, and she might

run by her course.

Q. When you arrived at the turning point, Cap-

tain, the place you marked as turning point, state

what was your then opinion as to passing the "Bos-

ton Maru" to the Oregon side, as you had intended?

A. As I made my turn down the Oregon shore,

I expected to pass the "Boston Maru" on the Ore-

gon side, but in maybe getting a little further do\\Ti

I could see that she was perhaps pretty close to the

Oregon shore.

Q. Was that at the time of making your turn by

the St. Helens range, or afterwards?

A. After. I had made my turn expecting every-

thing w^as all right.

Q. Did you give any order as you observed that

she w^as in pretty close—that the "Boston Maru"

was in pretty close—to the man at the wheel?

A. As a navigating officer?

Q. Yes, as a navigating officer of the "West

Keats." A. Well—

Q. In other words. Captain, what was the next

order you gave after you gave the steady order that

you have described? A. I gave starboard a bit.

Q. What was the purpose of giving that order?

A. Because I saw that the "Boston Maru" was

too close to the Oregon shore; that I would have to
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go over a little closer to the shore in order to pass

her.

Q. And did the vessel answer her starboard

helm? First, let me ask you, Captain, was the helm

put to starboard'? A. Yes, sir. [124]

Q. Did the vessel answer?

A. Well, as I proceeded closer to the ''Boston

Maru" the ship didn't answer the starboard helm.

Q. Did you give another order then?

A. Well, I finally gave hard astarboard.

Q. Was the helm put hard astarboard? A. Yes.

Q. Did the vessel answer that helm?

A. No, she did not.

Q. Now, describe. Captain, why she didn't answer

the starboard helm and hard astarboard helm.

A. Proceeding down along the shore, as I was

going quite close to the "Boston Maru" in order to

get by safely, I would have to go very close to the

shore, and a ship coming along quite a good rate

of speed close to shore, her stern will suck to this

shore, consequently her head will go out, out to

starboard; her stern set to the shore which would

be her port side, and her bow would go out to star-

board, and I had her—I put her full astarboard or

hard astarboard to keep her head in—keep clear of

the "Boston Maru," if I could.

Q. What was the next order that you gave after

the hard astarboard?

A. I believe it was stop, sir; stop the engines.

Q. How long was that stop order given before

the collision? A. About a minute.
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Q. Did you take the time—did you personally

take the times of any of these orders or the time of

the collision ? A. No, sir, I did not.

Q. Did anybody else take them?

A. Well, now, it was dark; I couldn't see; of

course I suppose they did; that is their business;

a mate on watch to look after those things.

Q. AVliat was the first order you gave after the

collision, then? A. Full astern. [125]

Q. What was the position of the helm at the time

of the collision? A. Hard astarboard.

Q. Had any change been made in the helm from

the time you gave the hard astarboard up to the

time of the collision? A. No, sir.

Q. What is the shortest distance, Captain, before

the collision—let me ask another question first:

Did you see the "Boston Maru" itself at any time?

A. No, sir, couldn't see the hull; only the lights.

Q. Could you tell from the lights whether she

was lying across channel or diagonally or some

other way? A. Yes, I could tell by the lights.

Q. How was she lying?

A. Across the channel; very near straight across.

Q. Could you tell whether her stern or bow was

nearest the Oregon shore from the lights?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you tell that?

A. The front anchor light on a ship is higher than

the one at the stern when they are at anchor. The

low light was to the Oregon shore.

Q. That is to make them act as a range?
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A. Yes.

Q. Now, what is the shortest distance to the "Bos-

ton Marn," at the place of collision, that you feel

you could safely have made a turn to pass the

"Boston Maru" on the Washington side?

A. Well, after I had turned down the Oregon

shore and could see where the "Boston Maru" was,

I was too close to her to turn at that time, and

before I had arrived at this place I wouldn't have

any idea that it was necessary to turn for the Wash-

ington shore.

Q. Does the "West Keats" steer better with her

engines going full speed ahead, or half ahead or any

other way'?

A. She will steer harder full speed ahead, for m-

stance, her [126] stern is sucking to shore; you

want to get all of the turns of the propeller, get

the water against that rudder all you can in order,

if possible, to counteract the stern going to shore.

Q. Setting aside the location of the shore, and

assuming you are out in midstream, at what speed

does she steer best and quickest?

A. Ordinarily, traveling along channels you

mean?

Q. In midstream, without considering the suction

of the shore, at what speed does the "West Keats"

steer best?

A. Why I would say full speed; steers nicely at

full speed.

Q. You have piloted other vessels of that class,

have you? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Is that deduction based on that experience?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Referring to the orders which you gave the

man at the wheel which, as you will recall, were first

port a little, then steady, then starboard and hard

astarboard, all preceding the stop order, were the

times taken of these orders'?

A. No, sir, I think—I don 't think they were ; the}^

hardly ever take time of orders that are given to the

quartermaster, as to steering.

Q. It is customary, isn't it, to take the time that

the order is given to the engine-room?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But not the orders given the quartermaster ?

A. No, sir, not ordinarily—if they were taken

—

of course they may have taken them for all I know,

but I know nothing about it; it is not customary.

Q. Can you give a general idea how long before

the stop order, the starboard and hard astarboard

orders were given? I realize it is hard for you to

state that accurately. Captain; you were thinking

about other things than the length of time [127]

that elapsed, but can you give the Court an estimate

of it?

A. From the time the starboard a little and the

hard astarboard order was given ?

Q. Approximately the time elapsing between

these orders and the stop order, which was given a

minute before the collision.

COURT.—Which do you mean, the first order or

the last one?
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Q. Well, were two given close together, Captain?

A. Yes, they were given quite close together ; star-

board a bit and hard astarboard were given quite

close together.

Q. Well, can you give an idea as to how long they

were before that stop order?

A. Well, I don't know; maybe three or four

minutes; something like that.

COURT.—How much?

A. Three or four minutes.

COURT.—Do you think it was as long as that,

Captain.

A. Well, no; no, it wouldn't—but it might have

been a couple of minutes; about two minutes.

COURT.—A couple of minutes after the hard

astarboard order before the stop order was given?

A. I hadn't thought of that; followed quite

closely.

Q. Now, can you give a rough estimate of the

length of time elapsing between the steady order

and the hard astarboard order—the steady order

and the starboard a little bit? You remember

the first order you described was port a little,

then steady, then starboard, then hard astarboard.

Can you give an estimate of the length of time elaps-

ing between the order "Steady" and the order

"Starboard a little"?

A. Well, it might have been a minute or so ; might

have been a minute and a half; somewhere around

there.

Q. Could you see the loom of the bank on the Ore-
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gon side about [128] the time of the collision,

about the time you were approaching the "Boston

Maru"?
A. No, sir, you couldn't make out the shore to

speak of at all. It was a dark bank along there,

which looked very close, but you couldn't discern

any trees or anything like that.

Q. You say you could see the bank %

A. Well, you could see a dark line along there.

Q. How far was that from the "Boston Maru,"

or from the "West Keats," in your estimation'?

A. Oh, about perhaps one hundred and fifty feet.

I should judge about that; of course it is very hard

to tell exactly.

Q. When was it that you realized there was going

to be a collision, or did you so realize before the time

of the impact '^

A. No, was just a few seconds before the collision

that I was sure there was going to be one.

Q. Now, I think you testified that after the col-

lision 3^ou gave orders to stop—the order to full

speed astern one minute after the collision '?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the reason for that order?

A. I wanted to turn my ship around; come back

up.

Q. And stand by ? A. Stand by.

Q. And did you do that f A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did any other vessel pass you as you turned

around I A. Yes, sir.



Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha. 115

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

Q. Did you exchange signals with such other ves-

sel? A. Yes, sir. I did.

Q. Where did they pass you?

A. She passed out to the port; the Washington

side.

Q. Who gave the first signal to pass out to the

port? A. I did.

Q. When was that that you exchanged those sig-

nals? [129]

A. Just shortly after the full astern bell when my
ship had started to swing around.

Q. Now, Captain, I wish you would describe how

you ordinarily stop a vessel of the size of the "West

Keats," and loaded as the "West Keats" was; how

long you take and what orders you give in order to

do it.

A. If I were proceeding down the river at full

speed, a good mile or a mile and a half or maybe

two miles, I would give a half speed bell.

Q. Maybe two miles before the place where you

wanted to stop? A. Yes, sir.

Q. All right; go ahead.

A. I would give a half speed bell ; I would let her

run on that for awhile, and would give a slow bell;

let that speed run oft' a little, and give her a stop

bell; let her run along, headway pretty well off,

then I would give her perhaps full speed astern; if

the ship was swinging too fast for me, I would per-

haps put her hard astarboard, give her half to full

ahead, if I wanted to—that would be to straighten

her up; if the case was she was swinging too fast
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for me; ordinary places in the river if you would

start to back a ship up without keeping them

straight they would—if her headway was off she

would swing to port, and go into the bank some-

where.

Q. If the engines of a ship like the "West Keats"

are put full speed astern, what is the effect on the

steering of the vessel, the way in which she may
turn or continue in her course?

A. Very quickly her bow turns to starboard and

stern to port, and if a person didn't have four or

five miles to go, they would run aground; if you

put her engines full speed astern, if she was work-

ing full ahead. [130]

Q. If 3^ou had put the engines full speed astern

shortly before the collision, what would have hap-

pened; what might have happened?

A. Just about cut the "Boston Maru" in two in

the center.

Q. Did you speak the "Boston Maru," or turn

around and come back after the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What conversation took place ?

A. I asked them the name of the ship, if they

were badly damaged, or particularly below the

water line and they immediately—needed immediate

help.

Q. What did they answer? A. Said no.

Q. Where did you proceed then? A. Portland.
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Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)

Did you have your field-glasses with you when you

boarded the "West Keats"?

A. No, I didn't have mine.

Q. You had some on the ship there, did you ?

A. Yes, there usually are. Usually all ships carry

tliem.

Q. You didn't use field-glasses on these lights

when you observed them? A. No, I did not.

Q. Now, when you reached this range where you

say you made out the lights of the "Boston Maru"

as a vessel at anchor, which you marked on the chart

there approximately opposite that dike, No. 28-2,

did you then observe the position of the lights of the

"Boston Maru"?
A. I knew there was a vessel anchored there; I

had no fear however, at that time, that there might

anything occur,

Q. Well, I understand that. You knew of course

that her stern was towards the Oregon shore from

the position of the lights? A. Yes, sir. [131]

Q. In other words, the lower anchor light was

nearer the Oregon shore than the higher forward

light; is that right? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what was the state of the tide at the time

you observed these lights? A. I beg pardon.

Q. What was the state of the tide when you were

out on the range where you said you made out these

anchor lights? A. Starting to flood.

Q. You knew that, of course? A. I did.
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Q. You knew it at the time?

A. I knew it at the time, yes. That is the only

way I would have of finding out.

Q. It is part of your duty to keep track of the

tides every day?

A. Oh, yes; yes, sir, we alwaj's do it.

Q. What was the condition of the wind?

A. Very little wind; it was not noticeable as I

remember it.

Q. You say that prior to the time and during the

time you had been acting as pilot on the Columbia

River, which was approximately two years—was

it—prior to this collision?

A. No, I had been pilot about three years before

that.

Q. Almost three years? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say during that time you had anchored

vessels in this portion of the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where the "Boston Maru" was?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why did you anchor them there?

A. Some to take timber; others coming up the

river to anchor there for the night perhaps.

Q. And did you observe the effect of the tide on

these vessels while they were riding there at anchor?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did they do?

A. I anchored one there five hundred feet long,

and she turned [132] towards the Oregon shore;

Captain Pierson went by with another ship, and I

asked him the next time I saw liim, "Did vou liave
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plenty of room?" "Yes, sir." That was a five

hundred and twenty-five foot ship.

Q. When you were at this point where you first

made out the anchor lights of the ''Boston Maru,"

which you marked on "West Keats" Exhibit 1, did

you know how long this vessel was that was then at

anchor ?

A. That I didn't know. I didn't know what ves-

sel it was.

Q. How long did you assume her to be ?

A. Well, vessels range from different lengths; all

vessels over two hundred and fifty feet carry two

anchor lights.

Q'. She might have been a vessel just two hundred

and fifty feet long; is that right?

A. She might have been, but ordinarily you can

tell by the distance the range lights are apart; get

some idea of course.

Q. How long did you assume her to be?

A. Well, I didn't think about that. Didn't come

to my mind,

Q. You didn't think about that?

A. No, it stood me in hand to keep clear of her, if

I could.

Q. Did you know when you were at that point

how much anchor chain she had out ?

A. No, no, no.

Q. How much did you assume she had out?

A. I usually put out about thirty fathoms there,

unless heavy current in the river; ordinary anchor,

however, in good water thirty fathoms.
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Q. You assumed she had out thirty fathoms; is

that right? A. That is right.

Q. What is the fact about when a vessel is at

anchor, and practically no wind, and tide is flooding,

how does she turn, if she turns with the tide ? [133]

A. Well, as I say, I anchored on there that turned

to the Oregon shore.

Q. Where did her bow remain? Where was she

when turning?

A. Well, if there is any wind they will stretch the

chain out more than they will otherwise.

Q. Now assuming there was such wind as existed

on the morning of October 26th ?

A. Well, I just don't remember about the wind

that morning. I didn't notice it—however.

Q. Didn't I understand you to say just a moment

ago that the wind was negligible that morning at the

time of the collision? A. Not noticeable, I said.

Q. Assume that the wind w^as not noticeable but

was flooding tide, what is the fact as to how the ship

will move when she turns with the tide ?

A. Well, she will take some chain; she won't ride

right up over her anchor and stay right over it, I

don't think.

Q. Assuming that she has out a hundred and

eighty feet of chain in approximately forty feet of

w^ater, how much will her bow ride off towards the

Oregon shore from her anchor ?

A. Well, I don't know. I don't believe I could

answer that, I don't know that I know that.

Q. You had no opinion on that point at the time
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you made out the anchor lights on the "Boston

Maru"?

A. It wasn't necessary for me to know that. If

she had the whole business stretched out would have

been room enough for me on the Oregon side.

Q. If was anchored where you say she should

have been?

A. She ought to have been, yes.

Q. You assume that knowing she w^as anchored

where you say she should have been? [134]

A. I assumed that when I saw her up there, just

before I made the turn.

Q. You blew no whistles prior to the actual time

of the collision, did you. Captain? A. No, sir.

Q. And as I understand it, it was only a few

minutes before the actual collision that you knew

there was going to be one ?

A. It wasn't very long before.

Q. Just a few seconds?

A. It w^asn't very long before, you know.

Q. Now, going back, after the collision, you

passed on the Washington side of the "Boston

Maru"?
A. Yes, I had to; I couldn't get back on the other

side.

Q. But the fact is you did pass on the Washing-

ton side? A. When I came back?

Q. Yes, and you didn't experience any difficulty

in doing so, did you?

A. Oh, no, no, no, sir; there was a mile of room.

Q. Plenty of room over there, wasn't there?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. In other words, Captain, if at the time you

made out the lights of the "Boston Maru," when

you were up there at the point you marked on the

chart, "West Keats" Exhibit 1, if you had known

at that time the position of the
'

' Boston Maru, '

' you

could have safely passed on the Washington side,

couldn't you'?

A. Yes, if had been daylight w^ould have been no

difficulty, because I would have known where she

was.

Q. And how soon after you went on down by the

"Boston Maru"—how soon after the collision did

you come back up alongside of her, and speak to

her?

A. Two or three minutes; wasn't long turning

around.

Q. You were not very long turning around?

A. No.

Q. You think was just a few minutes you Avere

back up there? [135]

A. Yes, three minutes perhaps, three and a half,

I am just guessing.

Q. After the collision? A. Yes.

Q. After you spoke to him then, you proceeded on

up towards Portland? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, coming down after the collision you

didn't touch the Oregon shore, did you, you didn't

go aground?

A. No, didn't go aground; sucked very hard.

Q. You sucked very hard?
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A. Couldn't feel the ship touch; however, must

have been close.

Q. In other words, as I understand you, Captain,

the "Boston Maru" was anchored up opposite the

upper lights, and not far enough out. Is that

right? A. Yes.

Q. Now, in assuming that she was anchored fur-

ther out, did you have in mind this shoal that was

opposite those lights'? A. Sir?

Q. In assuming that she should have anchored out

twelve hundred feet, as you say, did you have in

mind this shoal shown on this chart opposite these

lights?

A. No, sir, I didn't know that shoal was there.

Q. You didn't know it?

A. No, sir, it had not been shown up to that time

;

no one knew it that I know of; been ships drawing

thirty feet anchored there right along.

Q. But it was shown b}^ the chart put out in Oc-

tober, 1924, wasn't it?

A. Yes, this is it. I have it here. But this hap-

pened, of course, in October, 1924. I don't know

that that chart had come to our office at that time.

Q. You get these charts ordinarily, don't you,

when put out, your office down here? [136]

A. Yes, we get them.

Q. These are the charts that you rely upon in

navigating the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You don't make any individual soundings of

your own?

A. Well, we do occasionally, along the docks, etc.
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Q. Yes. But as I understand, for the purpose

of navigating up and down this channel you accept

the soundings shown on that chart?

A. Oh, yes; yes, sir.

Q. Now, you say it would take two miles to stop

the "West Keats" under ordinary conditions. Is

that right?

A. I said that under ordinary conditions I would

perhaps stop her two miles, maybe a mile and a

half; depends; there w^as a bend in the river here;

you have to take more precaution where you are go-

ing on a bend or curve in the river, than you w^ould

straightaway; your ship would be more manageable

on straightaway.

Q. Suppose you had thrown the "West Keats"

into full speed asteni at the point w^here you mark

the turn, shown on chart "West Keats" Exhibit 1.

What would have been the effect on the bow of the

"West Keats," as to which direction it would have

turned? A. Off to starboard.

Q. That would throw her bow over towards the

Washingion shore, would it not? A. Yes.

Q. If you had taken that course at the point

marked turning point on that chart, it should then

have been able to have cleared?

A. I wouldn't have been able to manage my ship

or handle her at all ; no pilot would ever put her full

astern there; no matter if two ships ancliored there.

Q. I didn't hear the answer.

A. I say, no pilot would have put her full astern

at tliat place under any consideration. I suppose if
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a man—something loomed right up in front of you,

the first impulse would be, perhaps, to [137] put

her full astern, but under those conditions wasn't

called for at all.

Q. Now, in order that we may understand each

other, Captain, you say that it was impossible, if

you had realized at the point you have marked,

"Turning point" on "West Keats" Exhibit 1,—you

say that it would be impossible for a pilot then, real-

izing the position of the "Boston Maru," to have

passed her on the Washington side?

A. I do; I think so, that is, under the conditions.

Q. You think

—

A. If it is daylight and something like that, and

you were figuring or judging this ; at the time I had

any idea that I had to pass on the Washington side,

it was too late to get there under any safe considera-

tion.

Q. That is you were considerably past this point

you have marked "Turning Point" before you had

any idea you should go on the other side, were you "?

A. Yes, sir, I was.

Q. How far past that, how many thousand feet?

A. Well, it might be—it might be a thousand or

fifteen hundred feet; I hadn't thought of that just

in that way before ; some little time ; I had to finish

out this course, however, and turn down toward the

Oregon shore before I knew there was any danger

at all.

Q. You don't wish the Court to understand that

you couldn't navigate on the Washington side of
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the channel if you desired to take the vessel down

there, do you?

A. Well, the position I was in, I couldn't operate

that.

Q. Not at that time. Just forget about the situa-

tion at that time, forget that now. I will ask you,

could you take a vessel down the Washington side

of this channel if you so desired? [138]

A. Well, it wouldn't be very safe here the "Bos-

ton Maru" was, because above her—right out from

the Columbia City upper, it was at that time shoal,

3^ou couldn't cut out there quick, you would have

to run down before the "Boston Maru" quite a bit,

and it would be unsafe especially in the night; I

took it to be that way, however.

Q. I wish you would point out to the Court where

this shoal is that you say would make it unsafe to

turn out to take the Washington side ?

A. This is all shoal here in front of Cohunbia

City, up above here, you see there is eleven feet

there; seventeen feet there; if coming down here

and put my ship full astern, or something like that,

will go right off out here and stick here.

Q. Suppose at this point on "West Keats'' Ex-

hibit 1 marked "Turning Point," you had not put

your ship astern, but had simply set her hard aport,

couldn't you then have passed the "Boston Maru"

on the Washington side?

A. Well, it might be that you could; I don't think

I would attempt it; I wouldn't say that—

Q. You wouldn't say, or you would say?
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A. I wouldn't attempt it.

Q. How much further up the vSt. Helens bar

range would you have to be before you would be able

to attempt it?

A. You couldn't attempt it until you came down
here to where this turning place wars; you wouldn't

attempt to go on the Washington side of the "Bos-

ton MaiTi" way up here; you have to come right

down here where I was, before you could attempt

it.

Q. Now, if we understand you correctly, Captain,

you say you couldn't attempt it before you got to

the turning point marked on "West Keat;s" Ex-

hibit 1, and you couldn't attempt it after that.

[139] Now, how would it ever be possible to navi-

gate on the Washington side of the "Boston

Maru'"?

A. If wasn't a ship anchored crosswise down

there you could perhaps go over there.

Q. What is the reason you couldn't do that in

this case? Isn't there plenty of water over there?

Wouldn't there be six or eight hundred feet of

water on the Washington side of the "Boston

Maini" in the position in which she lay?

A. Well, the distance is a little bit close from

where I was on a dark night; you would not at-

tempt it
;
you would attempt to go down the channel

side, the channel which is supposed to be left for

the channel; wouldn't attempt to go way off out in

that dark hole, that distance you had to make this

turn—nobody would.
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Q. You say no pilot would navigate that portion

of the river?

A. Not with a big ship; no. A small ship you
might go out there all right.

Q. Suppose you had been meeting a vessel com-

ing up the river, and it was approximately at a

point in the river where the bow of the "Boston
Maru" was resting. On which side would you have

proceeded, on which side of the river, the Washing-

ton or the Oregon side?

A. I would go on the side which is to the Wash-
ington side of a ship coming up.

Q. Then that would have required you to have

navigated further towards the Washington side

than where the bow of the "Boston Maru" was?

A. When ships pass each other in the river going

opposite directions, usually one will keep the i-ight

hand of the channel and give the other one a

chance to keep to his right hand of the channel.

Q. Then you could have navigated that portion

of the river if you had been correctly advised of

the position of the "Boston Mam," could you?

[140] A. No, I don't know as I could.

Q. You don't think you could?

A. No, I don't think I would have made it out

there.

Q. Now, where were you—will you kindly indi-

cate on the chart just where you were when you

first noticed this suck you speak oH
A. I was right down along Columbia City; I was

right down along here, right along close to this



Kokusai Risen Kahiishiki Kaisha. 129

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

thirty-foot contour here. She started to suck right

as I came down here. I stai^boarded a little, came

right down along- this, inside of that thirty-seven

foot mark. All along here she sucked; the stern

wanted to go to this bank, the Oregon bank; the

bow wanted to go out.

Q. Will you kindly mark the point on the chart

w^here you say she began to suck, where she first

began to suck the shore?

A. Well, right along in here, right along just

inside of this mai'k here, inside of that thirty-seven

foot mark.

Q. Now, just indicate that. Take that other pen-

cil and write out there where she began to suck,

with dotted line out. Captain, you have made a

red cross a little down the river from Columbia?

A. From Columbia City.

Q. From Columbia City front light, is that I

A. That is St. Helens bar front light.

Qi. And you have w^ritten on the chart, "At the

time began to suck the shore." A. Yes.

Q. How many feet were you then away from the

point of collision?

A. Oh, I don't know; might have been a thousand

feet.

Q. Just w^hat direction was the bow of your ves-

sel pointed at the time you noticed that it began to

suck the shore ? Will you put an arrow on there to

show which way you were pointed .^

A. Well, I was coming down right along close to

parallel with shore.
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Q. Your bow was pointed parallel to the thirty-

foot contour line ?

A. Well, in that direction down. I figured on

missing the "Boston [141] Maru's" stern.

Q. Now, do you say that the "Boston Maru" was

then as shown on this chart? A. Crossways.

Q. Exactly crossways?

A. Almost, as near as I could tell.

Q. That is your present recollection? A. Yes.

Q. You remember testifying, don't you, Captain,

before the local inspectors ?

A. I said very close to crossways, is what I told

them.

Q. The matter was fresher in your mind, of

course, at that time, than it is now. Is that right ?

That hearing was shortly after

—

A. I remember, however, distinctly, it was very

near crossways of the river.

Q. I will ask you if at that hearing held on No-

veml)er 7, 1924, you were not asked this question:

"When you first discovered her she was almost

straight across? A. Yes, sir, almost. Q. At

an angle of forty-five degrees? A. I think a lit-

tle more than that." Did you make that answer^

A. Well, perhaps I did. Anyway that goes to

show^ that I mcjmt that she was most straight

across.

Q. Now, will you ,iust take these small bo;rts here

—the proportions are not accurate—but will you

just set them there and show the Court just what

position they were in when they collided. This

^vill be a bigger scale.



Kokusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 131

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

A. Which is going to be the "Boston Maru"?
Q. You take either one you want.

A. Well, that is almost straight across the river;

of course they are too lai'ge for this; that is about

the way we hit ; she wanted to come this way all the

time; that is the reason I had to go onto her star-

board, keep her bow aw^ay from this ; that is just the

way she hit. [142]

Q. Now^, w^hat part of the "Boston Maru" did

you hit? A. Starboard counter aft.

Q. What portion of the "West Keats" struck

the "Boston Maru"? A. Starboard aft.

Q. Right there beginning at the hawse-pipe?

A. Yes, sir.

Qi. Now, this seems to be—the position you place

them in seems to be correct with respect to the

"West Keats," but that doesn't seem to be the point

of impact.

A. Yes, that is right on that counter right there,

right there on that quarter, ruffled all up, you bet,

came this w^ay; I don't know that I placed it just

exactly right, but approximately.

Q. There is a picture in evidence here, "Boston

Maru" Exhibit "E." Does that indicate the dam-

age there?

A. Yes, that there is right there; her stern is

rounded; this has got corners on it; her stern is

rounded, isn't corner like that.

Q. She has got no corner on it.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
May I be permitted, your Honor. Now, Captain,

will you place your vessel, the "West Keais," in
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the position in which she was at the time of the

collision, how she was headed?

A. Well, as near as I could say, they were just

about like this.

Q. Now, her stern, then, was out from the shore

a considerable distance further than her bow, wasn 't

it? A. Her stern was sucking to the shore.

Q. Well, will you look at—you have indicated on

the plat, haven't you, the approximate position of

the "West Keats" at the time of the collision?

A. They are too large for this chart, sticks way

up here a mile above Columbia City, her stern does

here. [143]

Q. But she was pointed in substantially the con-

dition which you have indicated?

A. I am not supposed to be right accurate about

thart.

Q. Make it as accurate as you can. I would like

to know just how your vessel was headed at the time

of the impact.

A. Well, here is the way ships ordinarily was;

here is the way they hit, like that.

Q. Now, the stern of the "West Keats" was out

in the channel a considerable distance further than

her bow at the time of the collision, wasn't it ^

A. Her stern was sucking to the bank all the time,

and her bow wanted to come out; that is what I

didn't wamt.

COURT.—The way you put the model on the map

there, shows the stern was out in the channel.

A. Well, but sir, here the stern is too long, it pro-
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jects way up here; this ought to be just a little bit

of a thing right along the bank.

COURT.—But you could place that to show,

couldn't you, something about what you claim to

be the fact?

A. See, here is the bank, right here.

Mr. SNOW.—He is trying to put it para-llel with

the bank.

A. You can't do it; the only way you can do

is to do the best you can in placing it ; that is ordi-

narily the way they hit.

Q. What was the fact, was your stern further

out in the channel than your bow at the time of the

collision ?

A. I couldn't see the shores; I wars coming down

there; I knew I was close out and she was sucking

ashore.

Q. Then your answer is, that you don't know

whether your stern was further out fi'om shore than

your bow was at the time of the collision. Is that

so?

A. I don't know as it is necessary for me to know

that. [144]

COURT.—Do you know, Captain, whether or

not?

A. I couldn't see the shores, sir.

COURT.—Do you know whether your stern was

further in the channel than the bow, or not? You

either do know, or you do not.

A. Well, I was following right down along the

shore, sir, and her stern was taking for shore.
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COURT.—That isn't an answer to the question.

If you know, say so, and if you don't know, you

can say you don't.

A. I guess I don't know.

Q. You don't know?

A. Perhaps I don't know what you mean.

Q. I want to know which end of your vessel was

nearrest the Oregon shore at the time of the collision,

if you know. A. Suppose I couldn't say either.

Q. It may be that you don't know, Captain, but

if you know, I would like to have you tell me.

A. I know it was close enough to suck her over

into the shore.

Q. Well, how do you know it was close enough to

suck ?

A. Because her stei'n went that way strong, hard

starboard pull on her; whenever a ship don't an-

swer then I knew I was close to shore, and I knew

when a ship does that she is sucking shore.

Q. Your vessel didn't collide right at her bow

with the "Boston Maru," did she?

A. Started at the hawse-pipe, I believe, broke

that first.

Q. How far is the hawse-pipe off the bow of your

vessel ?

A. Maybe three feet or so, four feet, five; I don't

know just now ; around there.

Q. The point at which the collision occurred, how-

ever, was on the starboard side of your bow ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And trt the hawse-pipe? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And the point at which the "West Keats"

collided with the "Boston [145] Mani" is cor-

rectly shown by "Boston Maru" photograph E,

is it not?

A. Yes, that is the "Boston Mam's" stern, right

exactly where I have those placed.

Q. Now, as you have these vessels placed at pres-

ent, it is true, isn't it, that the stern of the "West
Keats" is further out than her bow?

A. You can't judge on a big model like that, rela-

tive to that size map
;
you can 't tell a thing about it.

Q. Let me ask you this question: Is it possible

that these two vessels could have collided at the

point indicated on these photographs to which I

have called your attention, "Boston Maru" Exhibit

"H," and "Boston Maru" Exhibit "E," unless the

stern of the "West Keats" was further out from

the Oregon shore than her bow?

A. I don't know that I can answer that question.

Q. Well, if you can't answer it, I haven't any-

thing more to say along that line. But if you have

any explanation of how your vessel could have hit

the "Boston Maru" at her starboard hawse-pipe,

and the "Boston Maru's" damage was as shown on

"Boston Maru" photograph E, I would like to have

you explain it.

A. You can see right there, can't you, that the

"Boston" bow hit the starboard quarter—the

"West Keats' " bow hit the starboard quarter of

the "Boston Maru." Can't you see that?

Q. I can see that point some few feet back of

the starboard bow of the "West Keats."



136 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

A. You will have to get a rounding boat before I

can do any better than that, because I wamt to put
that corner on the stern, and she didn't hit it

square ; she hit the quarter, you might say.

Q. Yes, hit the quarter ; but your vessel on collid-

ing hit the starboard ha^vse-pipe *?

A. Yes, I believe it did; started right at the

hawse-pipe.

Q. And you still say you don't know whether

your bow or your stern [146] was further out in

the channel at the time of the collision?

A. I don't know as anybody could on a dark

night; I don't know as it is necessary for me to

make any assertion of that at all.

Q. Not necessary unless you want to. Captain,

when you came into the Columbia River that night

your orders were full speed ahead? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that continued to be the course of your

vessel—that continued to be the bell on which you

were operating, up until one minute before the

collision. Is that so? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have had a good deal of experience in

regard to suction, haven't you?

A. Yes, lots of experience in every way.

Q. That is pait of the instruction necessary in

piloting a vessel up and down this river, to know

the effect of suction? A. Yes.

Q. Now, is the suction greater when a vessel is

going slow ahead, or when going full speed ahead .^

A. You will counteract this suction more if your

ship is full ahead with the rudder hard over. You
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will counteract thart more than you would if you

were going slow and your propeller were turning

over very slow; she won't have a tendency to kick

her bow in against the stem sucking in, as much
as she would with full ahead.

Q. In other words, you think your vessel will

steer better if going full speed ahead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But the suction is greater, isn't it, when the

vessel is going full speed ahead, than it is when
half speed ahead, isn't it?

A. Yes; but from that time I had any idea there

was going to be a collision, if I had slowed the ship

down then it would have been the result of cutting

the "Boston Maru" in two.

Q. Suppose you had slowed your vessel down
when you first saw those [147] lights ahead?

You have testified that two miles or more up the

river you could see some lights ahead, didn't you?

A. Yes. I didn't see they were anchor lights,

though, two miles up the river.

Q. But you sa^v some lights ahead, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you didn't know what they were at that

time, did you ?

A. No, that is, you—well, I hadn't seen the an-

chor lights at that time; I saw the Columbia City

lights ; that is nothing to worry about whatever.

Q. You saw some lights which afterwards devel-

oped to be anchor lights of the "Boston Maru"?
A. Yes, sir.



138 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

Q. You saw those when two miles or more up
above where the "Boston Maru" was anchored?

A. No, I didn't see them two miles.

Q. How far were you?

A. I would say a mile when I first saw them.

Q. Within a mile away, you have already testified

you recognized those lights as the lights of the

"Boston Mai'u," haven't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You saw them before you recognized they were

the lights from the "Boston Maru," didn't you?

A. I saw them before I knew they were?

Q. Yes. You saw them down the river

—

A. Oh, I saw lights

—

Q. Quite a little while before you knew were

lights of an anchored vessel, didn't you?

A. I suppose I did.

Q. You didn't slow down your vessel when you

saw those lights ahead the first time, did you?

A. No, no.

Q. And you didn't slow down 3^our vessel when

you recognized that those lights were^the lights of

a vessel at anchor, did you?

A. No, sir, I didn't. [148]

Q. You didn't slow down your vessel?

A. No, sir.

Q. Or do anything to check your speed at Ml,

until one minute before the collision, did you?

A. No, sir; didn't want to cut her in two.

Q. And you at no time made any maneuver to

pass on the Washington side?

A. No, no; when I first saw these lights I had no
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occasion to slow down, or no occasion whatever for

slowing down.

Q. You knew that if you came close to the Oregon

shore there woud be suction on your stern, didn't

you?

A. I know that always if I get too close to shore,

yes.

Q. And with that knowledge you still elected to

come close to the Oregon shore in passing the ''Bos-

ton Maru"? A. Yes, I had to do it.

Q. And you as a matter of fact got by on the Ore-

gon shore after the collision, didn't you?

A. Collided in going by, yes, because there wasn't

room enough.

Q. The collision didn't—did the collision sheer

you towards the Oregon shore?

A. No, the impact was not great.

Q. A glancing blow, wars it?

A. Just a glancing blow.

Q. You don't think it appreciably affected the

course of your vessel ?

A. No, I didn't notice it did.

Q. But you did go by on the Oregon shore with-

out touching the bank?

A. Yes, without touching; the suction was strong.

Q. And you were able in the course of three min-

utes, to turn your vessel around. Is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. And then you came up on the Washington

side? A. Yes, I had to.

Q. And another vessel came up on the Washing-

ton side? [149]



140 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of E. H. Berry.)

A. I told him to come up on that side.

Q. He had no trouble getting by on the Wash-
ington side? A. No.

Q. And you had no trouble getting by on the

Washington side? A. No, sir.

Q. And at this time, the time of the collision, you

never had seen this chart which we have here show-

ing this shoal out from the Washington side ?

A. No, sir, I never had seen this chart.

Q. From where the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored.

A. No, sir, I never had seen this chart or one

like it.

Q. When a vessel anchors at ebb tide with her

head pointed upstream, and her stem downstream,

is there any way to tell which \\2Cy she will swing?

A. Depends on the wind, sir.

Q. That evening the wind was negligible, and you

have so testified, haven't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When the wind is not negligible—When the

wind is negligible, is there any w^ay of telling in

which direction a vessel will swing when the flood

tide comes in?

A. There are in some places where you anchor; if

you are anchored relative to a range somewhere,

your stern is perhaps pretty well down towards

this point, you know the current is coming this

range, and perhaps will hit the port or starboard

stern, whichever it may be, and you caii very near

tell which way will swing certain places.

Q. Those are only occasional places in the river?
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A. Yes.

Q. Grenerally speaking, is it possible to tell in

which direction the stern will swing w^hen it swings

with the flood tide? A. I didn't get you.

Q. Generally speaking, wdth a vessel anchored in

the Columbia [150] River, is there any w^ay of

telling, if there is no wind, or no appreciable wind,

which way will swing w^hen the flood tide comes on?

A. No, sir, not generally, there is not.

Q. She starts to swing the first of the flood tide,

doesn't she? A. Yes.

Q. Swing very slowly, and on low water begins

her movement when the water is low, doesn't she?

A. And coming in.

Q. The movement starts, however, when the water

is at its lowest, doesn't it? A. Yes.

Q. As far as the tide is concerned. How much,

water was the "West Keats" drawing at that time,

Captain? A. Twenty-five feet, eight inches.

Q. A vessel drawing twenty-five feet, eight inches

needs how much of depth in the water to navi-

gate comfortably and safely?

A. Oh, you can take a ship drawdng twenty-five

feet, eight inches over—you can take that down the

river, twenty-five feet eight inches, you can take

that down over twenty-six feet of water. If the

channel runs under twenty-six feet any time, you

can take them in that; w^e take ships down here

drawing thirty feet, and perhaps w^ouldn't be but

very little over thirty feet of water. Of course that
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is not all the way, but I say occasionally lumps or

sand washes in the channel at times.

That is very difficult navigation if the depth of

the water is not more—is so close to the draft of

the vessel, isn't it, for any length of time?

A. Yes, sir, it makes it very difficult, yes, sir.

Q. And it is not good navigation to court that

sort of a situation, if you have any choice, is it ?

A. No, I wouldn't think so; no. [151]

Q. You ought to have at least a couple of feet

leeway in order to be thoroughly safe, shouldn't

you?

A. Oh, usually try to get all the water we can in

navigating deep water vessels.

Q. You say you knew of a vessel five hundred feet

in length anchored in this general neighborhood

down in the Columbia River, that swung towards the

Oregon shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have also known them to swing toward

the Washington shoi'e, haven't you, at that point?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. As a matter of fact, they more often swing

to the Washington shore than to the Oregon shore,

don't they? A. I would not say as to that.

Q. You can't tell which way going to swing, can

you, in the absence of a wind controlling the move-

ment? A. I don't know that you can.

Q. Did your lookout report the "Boston Maru"

ahead that night. Captain ^

A. Yes, he reports that he did.

Q. Did he report to you ?
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A. I don't know; I didn't hear that he did. I

perhaps was attention called, or something like.

Q. You are unable to say of your own knowledge

whether or not he reported the vessel ?

A. No, I couldn't say.

Q. And if he did report it, you don't know when

he reported it? A. No, sir, I don't.

Q. The first knowledge you had of it is, as you

have testified, when you discovered that these lights

w^ere anchor lights ? A. Yes.

Q. And you found the lower light nearer the Ore-

gon shore than the higher light? A. Yes.

Q. What do you now say as to the angle at which

the "Boston Maru" [152] lay with the Oregon

shore ? A. I say she was very near crossways.

Q. That would be ninety degrees"?

A. Crossways would be ninety degrees, would it?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, she was maybe a little less than ninety de-

grees.

Q. Didn't you say—didn't you testify it was a

little more than forty-five degrees, when the matter

was fresh in your mind?

A. Yes, I did, perhaps; but I perhaps didn't

know just how much that would be, or maybe didn't

designate how much more than forty-five degrees.

Q. And with your memory refreshed, your notion

is that the vessel was nearly athwart the channel?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you say that that was the position of the
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"Boston Maru" at the time you recognized the

lights to be anchor lights. Is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you still continued to come full speed

ahead up within a minute before the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Captain, speaking of the five hundred-foot vessel

which Captain Pierson—which you anchored and

which Captain Pierson passed—which side was he,

the Oregon side or the Washington side?

A. He passed the Oregon side. My ship was five

hundred twenty-five feet long, that I anchored there.

Q. As you came down and approached the

"Boston Maru," what lights or other objects were

visible behind her to line her up by and get an

idea of her approximate location?

A. There were none that I could see.

Q. There were lots of lights opposite her at

Columbia City? [15:3] A. Columbia City.

Q. Were there no lights below her?

A. No, sir I couldn't see any.

Q. Speaking of the individual soundings made

by pilots, isn't it a fact that the pilots more often

than usual take soundings at the time they come to

an anchor ?

A. Yes, sir, they do when they come to an anchor

;

quite often they do drop the lead for their satisfac-

tion and the master of the vessel.
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Q. The suggestion was made that you might have

slowed down two miles above the place of collision

when you first saw the cluster of lights, among

which you may perhaps have seen the lights of the

"Boston Maru." It is customary to slow down

when you come to a cluster of lights like that?

A. No, sir.

Q. Is it customary to slow down in passing an

anchored vessel at that point? A. No, sir, never.

Q. Did you get any whistle, signal light, or warn-

ing, from the "Boston Maru," at or before the time

of the collision ? A. No, sir.

Recross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
You are familiar with the lights of Columbia City,

are you not ? A. Yes, sir.

Q, Those are stationary lights, the same every

night, are they not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have been up and down there, of course,

a great many times by night ? A. Yes, sir.

Witness excused. [154]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN S. S. BALDY, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

Captain S. S. BALDY, a witness called on behalf

of the "West Keats," being first duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are a Columbia River pilot? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How long have you held a license?

A. You mean the federal license?

Q. Yes. A. Since 1906.

Q. How long have you had your state branch?

A. September, 1922.

Q. You are a member of the Pilots' Association?

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with that part of the Columbia

River approximately opposite Columbia City, and

also the parts above and below that, immediately

above and below it ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Let me ask you this : Whether there is an an-

chorage ground located at that place.

Mr. KING.—I object to the form of that question.

I think it is conclusion.

COURT.—Rather a conclusion, I imagine. He
can state the facts about vessels anchoring there if

he wishes to.

Q. State whether or not vessels are sometimes

anchored there?

A. Yes, sir, we anchored there at times.

Q. How would you anchor a vessel there at night

assuming there was no fog and you could see lights.

A. Well, I would anchor on them red range light

there 28-2.

Q. By red range light, you mean j^ou would

—

A. Put that on line with 27-2.

Q. 28-2 on 27-2.

A. That is one range; open that up well to the

left, out from Columbit City lower back range.

[155]
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Q. Did other pilots anchor in that vicinity at

times ?

A. Yes, a mark we go by when we anchor the ship

there to load or do anything out there. We figure

easy for ships there to load timber, load off barges

;

sometimes too deep to load at Columbia City or St.

Helens, and take there and anchor there. That is

a mark we always use, also a mark on Lamont bluff

and St. Helens courthouse. We leave the court-

house well open on Lamont bluff, but we generally

as a rule use that red range as I say. It is very

easy to pick up and very simple.

Q. What is that^

A. That is very easy to pick up and very simple

to go onto out off Columbia City ths're.

Q. Have you ever passed other vessels at that por-

tion of the river anchored there.

A. You mean anchored! A. Yes, anchored.

A. Pass them anchored out there on these grounds

I am telling you about.

Q. Now, what is the ordinary way of piloting a

vessel—you are familiar by the way with the '

' West

Keats." A. Yes.

Q. And these other shipping board vessels of

eighty-eight hundred tons. A. Yes.

Q. What is the ordinary way of piloting a vessel

of that class up and down the river at that point ?

Mr. McCAMANT.—We object to that, it is an

attempt to vary the statute by evidence of custom.

I don't think it is admissible. The statute provides

a vessel should keep on the starboard side of the
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channel. This is an attempt to prove the pilots

here have a custom to go on the Oregon side of the

custom.

Mr. SNOW.—I might take up that point briefly

now. [156] I am not trying to vary a statute by

custom. In the first place the contention is made

we are not dealing with the so-called starboard side

or right-hand side rule, narrow channel rule, in this

case.

COURT.—I don't understand your question.

What is the custom you are asking the witness?

What is the custom in navigating vessel like the

"West Keats" up and down the Columbia River.

Mr. SNOW.—At that point, yes.

COURT.—You mean on which side of the river he

passes vessel at anchor?

Mr. SNOW.—I meant to ask which range is used,

what lights used and how you use them.

COURT.—Ask him.

A. Well, we come down the St. Helens range as a

rule, or down Columbia City range; there is two

ranges, one back, one ahead. Generally we fol-

low the Columbia range down until we get some-

where abreast Columbia Mills.

Q. Which is the upper range? The range lead-

ing up the river when we come down, or the one

leading down?

A. Well, come down on it. After we make the

turn on the upper range, 27-2, with white light be-

hind when we turn there—sometimes we turn then

and head up the Columbia City range. Of course.
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the channel is over close to the Oregon shore. We
come pretty well down to the Oregon shore there

and make a turn to deep water there and turn to

follow that shore more or less—to that shore, until

we get down on to the ranges leading down to

Marton Islands on the other channel—the other

course,

Q. As you come down on the St. Helens bar range,

let's assume, Captain, that there is a vessel ap-

proximately four hundred feet in length anchored

at a point marked "position of collision" on "West

Keats" Exhibit 1, which you now have before you,

assuming a vessel anchored [157] at that place

at night with her lights showing, at what point as

you come down on the St. Helens Bar range, or as

you approach that vessel, could a pilot probably

discover how close the vessel is to the Oregon shore,

and her distance from the Oregon shore.

A. Well, he would probably be down around the

Colimibia City dock, mill dock, down about abreast

that dock. That gets you down into,—well, into

deep hole in the channel. Have to get down about

that far when you can decide just where

—

Q. What is there behind that vessel in order to

line her up by'? A. Behind the vessel at anchor?

Q. Yes. Nothing there but the dark bank.

Q. Nothing but dark

—

A. The dark bank, there, is a high hill there, you

know.

Q. Let's assume that in the night in question it was
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very dark but the visibility was good in respect to

lights.

A. See the overland there—the high land. A
hight bluff there, very high and very dark, which

casts a shadow out quite a ways from there.

Q. If the vessel is coming down the St. Helens

Bar range, state whether or not it would be a rea-

sonable assumption on the part of the pilot, piloting

that vessel, if he assumed that the vessel at anchor

was further out and anchored on the

—

Mr. McCAMANT.—That is not a proper question

for an expert.

COURT.—No, not what the pilot might reason-

ably assume. That is for the Court to say, not this

witness.

Q. At what point above the "Boston Maru" as

shown in the position marked "place of collision,"

could the "West Keats" in coming down the river

have safely turned to pass on the Washington side ?

A. You mean if he had known that the "Boston

Maru" was in that place?

Q. Yes, if he had known that she was there.

[158]

A. Well, to get down in here if he had known

she was anchored in that position, possibly,—might

have possibly made the turn.

Q. You point to a place approximately half a

nautical mile. A. About half a mile.

Q. When he got to that place could he have known

where she was—the "Boston Maru"?
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Mr. McCAMANT.—That is not a proper question

for expert testimony.

COURT.—How does he know?

SNOW.—This witness is familiar with the loca-

tion.

COURT.—But he doesn't know what the pilot of

the other vessel knew about it.

Q. You heard Captain Berry's testimony just

now, Captain, did you ? A. Yes.

Q. Suppose you had been on the ''West Keats"

in his place; at what point do you think you could

have determined where the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored.

A. Well, I wouldn't probably have turned out

much quicker than he did, because naturally we
would think the vessel was anchored over where she

was anchored in clear weather. I never seen a ship

anchored there in my life in clear weather.

COURT.—What kind of weather?

A. Clear weather, I mean not foggy.

COURT.—Do they anchor there in the fog?

A. In fog we anchor anywhere we can. Natur-

ally a man coming down in the fog don't figure a

vessel anywhere; we stop and get the headway off

the vessel. Some places along that river we have

places to anchor, and generally swing to one side

there and anchor. This is one of the places as long

as the atmosphere is clear, as a rule, we go out to

the anchorage grounds.

Q. Now, Captain, were you coming up the river

on another vessel? [159] A. Yes.
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Q. On the night of that collision? A. Yes.

Q. What vessel were you on ?

A. On the '

' Siersted,
'

' a Norwegian steamer.

Q. Were you her pilot ? A. Yes.

Q. Did you have any other pilot with you ?

A. Yes, I had; Captain Caples was with us.

Q. In what capacity was Captain Caples with

you?

A. He is one of the apprentice pilots, we call it;

helping pilot.

Q. When did you first notice the lights of the

"Boston Maru" as it came up the river?

A. I never notice them until after the "West
Keats" had given me two w^histles to pass me.

Q. Until after that the "West Keats" what?

A. After the "West Keats" gave me two whistles

to pass her on the other side; then she turned on a

lot of extra lights, cargo lights you might say, the

"Boston Maru" lights. Then we noticed a ship ly-

ing there.

Q. Where was the "West Keats" when she gave

you two whistles to pass on the other side ?

A. She had come below the "Boston Maru" and

swung straight across the river.

Q. Did she swing to starboard or port?

A. She swung port, on a hard-aport helm.

Q. What light did she show you ?

A. Showed me green aiul red when come by this

Noi'wegian steamer—T mean this "Boston ]\Iaru,"

but all at once her two main lights above, and square

across the river, and 1 put my helm hard astar-
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board and beat it for the woods on Caples Shore.

[160]

Q. That is, you headed over to the Washington

side ?

A. I gave way to her. We were pretty close and

he had no chance to cross me.

COURT.—Gave way to who?

A. To the "West Keats." He was coming this

way.

Q. He gave you two whistles, you say?

A. He gave me two whistles; that let me know

what he wanted.

Q. Do I understand you to say you didn't see

the "Boston Maru's" riding lights until you got

these two whistles from the "West Keats"?

A. No, sir, hadn't discovered.

Q. How far were you then from the "Boston

Maru"?
A. Well, I suppose three-quarters of a mile when

I first noticed come by that vessel.

Q. When you first could see her lights ?

A. I mean the "Boston Maru's" lights.

Q. How far were you from the "Boston Maru"
when he gave you the two whistles to pass to the

Washington side, and you saw the "Boston Maru's"

lights ?

A. I didn't see the "Boston Maru's" lights when

he whistled to me; he hadn't turned the cargo lights

on yet, you see.

COURT.—Who hadn't turned the cargo lights

on?
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A. The "Boston Maru." You see slie had two

anchor lights up, as I suppose ; I never saw them.

COURT.—Didn't see the anchor lights?

A. So when I was heading up the river, I was

heading direct for Columbia City sawmills with a

lot of lights; and the "Boston Maru" was directly

between these lights and me; that would put her

two lights among the whole cluster.

Q. On receiving this whistle from the "West

Keats, '

' did you then go on up the river ?

A. Yes, I answered, his whistles immediately and

put her half ahead [161] and hard aport to get

my vessel straightened back to come back into the

channel. I had swung over towards Caples Shore

to clear her. I didn't know what was the matter

when I saw the position ; thought his vessel was out

of control and was up to me to give way to her, to

swing towards Caples Shore.

Q. You didn't actuall}^ know the?? had been a col-

lision? A. No, I didn't know was any collision.

Q. What portion of the river did you navigate in

going up past the place of collision?

A. Well, I was—at the time I went by her, I

was a little to the left of them ranges I spoke about

—28-2 and 27-2.

COURT.—At tlie time j^ou went by whom?
A. Went l)y the "Boston Maru."

Q. Did you see the "Boston Maru" as you went

by ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far away was it if you can judge?

A. Oh, proba])ly 450 feet, 500 feet. When the
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"Boston Maru" turned on all her lights she began

to flash, lights; the apprentice pilot and I didn't

know what was going on there for a minute. When
we seen all them lights, we decided was another

vessel anchored in the channel ; I said then to the ap-

prentice pilot, "They have had trouble there"; this

vessel was throwing on some signal lights ; I stopped

my vessel; the boat was going ahead; I looked

around, and the "West Keats" turned around and

was coming back so was no use for me being there,

so I went on; the "West Keats" was coming back

in case of trouble.

Q'. Did you say anything else to the apprentice

pilot about the location of the anchorage of the

"Boston Maru"?
Mr. KING.—I object to that.

COURT.—He can testify to what he knows him-

self.

Q. Referring again to the chart that you have

there, "West Keats" Exhibit No. 1, and to that

piece of water which has been referred to [162]

as shoal in the testimony, right opposite the place

where the "Boston Maru" was anchored, did you

ever hear of the location of any shoal there ?

A. No, sir, I never paid any attention to it, any-

way.

Q. Never paid any attention to it, did you say?

A. No.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain Baldy, if I understood you correctly, vou



156 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain S. S. Baldy.)

said that it was customary to anchor off Columbia

City, and you would follow either this red range

or the range, Lamont Bluff range; is that right?

A. Well, we used that sometimes if anything

causes these lights or either one of them be out,

you could open this light out well on the courthouse,

you see.

Q. Suppose you anchored opposite Columbia City

and on the red range as you call it, calling your at-

tention to the line purporting to show that range

on "West Keats" Exhibit No. 1, and suppose your

vessel was drawing upwards of twenty-six feet of

water at her stern; suppose a flood tide was swing-

ing her stem over towards the Washington shore,

what would happen assuming the chart correctly

indicates the depth of the water?

A. If you anchored her off Columbia City—you

mean here?

Q. Yes. A. I wouldn't anchor there.

Q. If you had a vessel drawing upwards of

twenty-six feet of water you couldn't anchor on this

red range opposite Columbia City range light, could

you?

A. Put her here, would anchor way over from

that range, or go below this.

Q. Would have to go further down the river in

order to make it safe [163] to anclior on that

range, wouldn't you; and the same would be true

as to the range running up to the courthouse and

Lamont Bluff, wouldn't it?

A. This range running Lamont Bluff to the
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courthouse would get you on top of the shoals here.

Q. But if you wanted to anchor out from the

Columbia City range, you could tie to either of

these ranges, if your vessel was drawing twenty-six

feet of water, could you?

A. I wouldn't want to anchor there.

COURT.—But if you did want to anchor there.

A. I would not want a deep vessel there because

we don't make a custom to anchor there.

Q. Didn't you say on your direct examination

that it was the custom for vessels to anchor out from

Columbia City range light?

A. Not this one here you spoke about ; below this

range; we go below that, we are in deep, if want

to lay there to load.

Q. You can't get in to St. Helens, can you, in low

water in October with a vessel drawing twenty-six

feet of water?

A. I wouldn't want to go in there, anyway.

COURT.—Could you do it, counsel asked you.

A. At that time we didn't figure on going in there

at low water; no, not at that time.

Q; Yoni need the benefit of the tide in order to

get there safely when the water is low?

A. We always figure on getting the tide to go in

there.

Q. A vessel coming down the river with intent

to go into St. Helens has to anchor somewhere in

this neighborhood, unless it strikes the right tide

when it gets down there?
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A. Unless it has the right tide to turn up, you

mean ?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, we would anchor there somewhere to

wait for the tide. [164]

Q. Now, coming back to the question I asked you

a moment ago, I don't think you answered it one

way or the other; I gathered your meaning, but

now want to be sure to have it correct in the record,

you agreed with me, didn't you, that it would not

be safe to anchor a vessel drawing twenty-six feet

of water off either the red range or the Lamont

Bluff range directly out from Columbia City?

A. You mean from this light here?

Q. Yes.

A. I would not anchor a ship there.

Q. Would it be safe to anchor there?

A. No, sir; I would put her below.

Q. Will you point on the map where the Colum-

bia City mill is? Is it this structure lying out on

the bank opposite the high tower?

A. That is the Columbia City mill.

Q. Pointing to a structure on the bank opposite

the high tower, "West Keats" Exhibit No. 1.

Witness excused. [165]
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TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN E. SANDSTROM,
FOR THE GOVERNMENT.

Captain R. SANDSTROM, witness called on be-

half of the "West Keats," being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are one of the Columbia River pilots'?

A. Yes.

Q. Belong to the association? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you held a license?

A. About fourteen or fifteen years, branch li-

cense, state branch.

Q. How long have you had a federal license?

A. About since ninety-eight, 1898.

Q. During all of that time have you been engaged

as a pilot?

A. Piloting ships the last fourteen or fifteen

years.

Q. Are you familiar with that part of the river

opposite Columbia River and extending above and

below it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you heard some of the testimony in this

case. Captain? A. Yes, sir, I have.

Q. Do you sometimes anchor vessels at some part

of the river near Columbia City?

A. Yes, sir, I have at different times.

Q. Do other pilots anchor there, too?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How do you bring a vessel to anchor, opposite

what place and at what distance and by what lights ?

A. We generally, as a rule, drop down below the

front range of Columbia City ranges and come in

on the red ranges of the jetties; the red light on the

lower end of the jetty is what we now know as the

front light on the St. Helens range—or inside of

that, down toward Caples Point. [166]

Q. I am not referring so much to the river as it

is now, Captain, because changes have been made,

as you know, but the river as it was two years ago,

in October, 1924; you then anchored oif of what

is known as red range, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir, what we called red range, which was

the lower end of the jetty light, foiming range with

the jetty light that extended up above; that formed

a range and we would go on that or inside of that

down towards Caples Point; was according to if

we had swinging room, we anchored the vessels

there for loading them on deep draft, when they

couldn't have water enough at Columbia City or

St. Helens.

Q. Have you seen in the past there, vessels an-

chored at that location? A. Yes, sir.

Q. By other pilots f A. Yes, sir.

Q. What can you say as to whether or not there

is a custom with respect to anchoring vessels there?

A. That has always been the custom to anchor

towards the Washington shore.

Q. Referring to ''West Keats" Exhibit No. 1, this

chart opposite the Columbia City front light and
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near the Washington side of the channel shows some

soundings surrounded by dotted lines, in the center

of which is the sounding twenty-five feet, indicating

an area of somewhat shallower water than the bal-

ance of the channel. In anchoring vessels in that

place, what account would you take of that area

of shallow water, if any.

A. That depends on the operation of your vessel.

If you have a vessel drawing twenty-one to twenty-

three feet you wouldn't pay any attention to it,

probably, that is of that depth of water, twenty-five

feet; figure you have clearage under it to swing it,

but deeper draft vessel you would have to go below

to be able to swing clear ; would go below ; big basin

down in below there. [167]

Q. Do you know of the location of that shoaler

—

that shallower portion of the river?

A. Yes, sir, sound it myself all the time.

Q. Have taken soundings'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you anchor a vessel do you customarily

take soundings'?

A. As a rule, we drop a lead to see how much

water we are in at night-time, when the visibility

of lights are poor or you are not quite sure of your-

self, or distances which the atmospheric conditions

create.

Q. Where is the main shiiD channel at that point

for navigating up and down the river?

A. Well, the main ship channel you come down

on these ranges until you get about abreast of what

we call the dock of the Western Spar Company,
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their mill there at Columbia City, before you start

sWjinging for the lower course; that just above

the old—the front range or was the front range

at that time of St. Helens range; just above that

before you make the turn; you run approximately

fifteen hundred to a thousand feet probably above

it, before you start swinging; that brings you—

Q. You mean at about fifteen hundred to a thou-

sand feet above the range light of St. Helens upper

range you start swinging. A. Yes, sir.

Q. And which way do you swing?

A. Swing to starboard; down towards Columbia

City ranges ; down to what we call Deer Island.

Q. What shore do you follow down to get to Co-

lumbia City range?

A. You are on the Oregon shore.

Q. Now, assuming a very dark night, without

fog, however, and without rain, or without exces-

sive rain at any rate, and visibility good as regards

lights, assuming a vessel four hundred feet in length

at anchor at place marked "position at collision"

on that chart; [168] assuming the "West Keats"

coming down the river, and assuming yourself as

the pilot of the "West Keats," how far above that

"position at collision" do you believe that you could

determine the exact location of the vessel, the

"Boston Maru," which was lying at the place

marked "position at collision."

Mr. McCAMANT.—I don't think that is a proper

question. We have the evidence of the pilot as to
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when he did see it, but when this witness thinks he

should

—

COURT.—The pilot didn't testify, as I remember

it, when he determined the actual location.

Mr. SNOW.—This witness is familiar with that

portion of that river and the lineup of the banks;

he is familiar with the lights.

COURT.--You might ask him if you want how

far above that place of anchorage he could deter-

mine, if he could, the location of the vessel that is

anchored here. You are assuming in your question

that the vessel is anchored at the place marked on

the chart.

Mr. SNOW.—I don't want to assume that. For

the purpose of the hypothetical question he is assum-

ing that the vessel is anchored there, but I don't de-

sire to have that stand as and for proof that the

vessel was there.

COURT.—What you want, I suppose, is the idea

of this witness as to how far above the anchored ves-

sel one navigating a vessel coming down the river

could ascertain is actual location.

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, that is what I want to find.

Can you answer that question. Captain?

A. You would have to comd; downi to whereyou make

your turn, which would approximately be from

—

probably be eight hundred feet or in that neighbor-

hood—you could be one way or the other of it before

you could determine; would have to line up with

the shore line before you could determine what posi-

tion that ship would be in. [169]
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COURT.—You mean eight hundred feet from

the ship?

A. From the shore line itself; from the Oregon

shore line; you would have to come in that far

making this turn and lineup that shore line going

down, before you could determine just how far in

the ship was, because you would have to see a clear-

ari\ce of water between the ship and the bank as

it comes below there, as the ship would be lying

—

before you got to that point and turn the ship is

lying in the shadow of the hills there, dark trees.

COURT.—What point?

A. At this point where you make the turn.

COURT.—Where do you make the turn?

A. We make the turn just about a thousand or

fifteen hundred feet above the front range here.

COURT.—Where would that be on the plat?

A. Right here, this is the front range; that would

])robably be about here.

COURT.—Between a quarter and a half mile

from

—

A. From your swing this way.

COURT.—Mark that, will you. Now, do your

dividers tell you how far that is from that point

down to where the vessel is supposed to be at an-

chor?

A. It is twenty-one hundred and fifty feet.

COURT.—Do I understand. Captain, from your

statement, that one turning here where you have

marked it at twenty-one hundred and fifty feet
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from the vessel could have ascertained at that time

the location of it?

A. Yes, sir. Just about approximately; where

he makes his turn he would come into the shore line

that close; you see he is off that range that far, but

he is closer to shore line
;
you see the shore line will

show up as he gets in here ; here would be the ship

;

you come down in here and start swinging, comes

slowly; you sag in as you come as a [170] rule,

and this would be headed this way, down the river

;

and then you can see the line between the shore

and the ship and you can determine then just about

how! far off she would be, because you haVe the

water show up between the bank and the ship; and

then down below

—

COURT.—Then, if a navigator at this place,

twenty-one hundred feet, whatever it is, from the

vessel, should be able to determine the location and

how far this boat, the "Maru," was from shore,

what is to prevent him from following on down

the channel on the Washington side and passing it?

A. That depends a good deal on the ship and the

speed he is going; if he would think he had clear-

ance enough to come here, why he would probably

continue so rather than take a chance on setting

over across the bow of a vessel, because if he would

happen to come down on her, or sag as they go,

probably would sag down on her; probably have

a tendency to sag down on top of her; it is a dan-

gerous procedure to try and go across another ves-

sel on account of that. When you once get too
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far over to the one side, like this vessel, say, would

be anchored here and coming here pretty well over,

now you have got to cross over there practically;

well, you would have to come over there probably

a thousand or eight hundred feet in order to get

across, to go down. Now, you immediately have

to go her starboard and j^ou get the bow around

here to get around by her safely, otherv^ise would

go on the sand; if any vessel should not happen to

answer correctly she would probably go on over.

COURT.—What would be the proper course for

a navigator to pursue under these circumstances?

In coming down twenty-one hundred feet from this

boat the "Maru," would he be able, then, to deter-

mine then how near she was to the Oregon shore.

A. Well, could probably determine that there was

room enough. All depends on what position the

ship would be in and how it would look to him, and

the atmospheric conditions have a lot to do with

how the distance looks. Sometimes the atmos-

pheric conditions is so you would [171] judge

one hundred feet would be five hundred feet; other

times five hundred feet would be one hundred feet.

COURT.—He would be able, at least I under-

stand, to determine two thousand feet away that

the other vessel was across the channel?

A. He would determine that that was across the

channel, yes.

COURT.—Now, suppose a careful navigator com-

ing up the river or down the river, I think it was,

should notice the channel, athwart the channel, a
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vessel at anchor two thousand feet away from him,

what would be the proper course, reasonable and

proper course, for the navigator to pursue?

A. When he was down that far the most reason-

able course that he would proceed on the Oregon

side, to go by on that side.

COURT.—As long as he saw clearance, he

wouldn't be expected to slow down the speed of his

boat?

A. No, that would probably be a worse thing

to do.

COURT.—Why I

A. Because he would lose control if his ship im-

mediately stopped the propeller. This class of

vessels the minute you stop the propeller won't

steer two lengths themselves.

COURT.—How far would it go on its own mo-

mentum ?

A. If she would run perfectly straight she would

probably go three or four miles on her own mo-

mentum.

Q. (Mr. SNOW.) When a navigator reaches

that point marked by you on the chart with a red

cross twenty-one hundred and fifty feet from the

stern of the vessel shown in the position of the col-

lision, the navigator would be able to tell, you think,

approximately the distance of that anchored vessel

from the shore by the line of clear water which he

would see between the vessel and the shore.

A. Yes, sir, just approximately.
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Q. Now, if it were so dark a night, that the shore

at that distance was entirely invisible and only

showed abeam in a very hazy black line [172]

and the hull of the vessel was entirely invisible, and

he could see nothing of the vessel except her riding

lights, could he then tell how far that vessel was

from shore?

A. No. The atmospheric conditions would have

a tendency to shut that view off as to distance, that

is to be accurate as to distance because any shadow

comes out to meet the stern of that ship ; now, from

the position that he would be in, he might correctly

judge that he is far enough lined up with the shore,

and that that ship's stern is off far enough for him

to go between, and still be mistaken in it on account

of the shadows that would join each other. We
all often make mistakes in distances that you will

think you are right sure of; unless you have an

accurate check line of ranges, marks of your own

that you know are positive, why you are not sure

of the accurate position.

Q. Now, a navigator coming down in that position

which you have marked on the chart, would he have

any lights or checks beyond the place marked "posi-

tion at collision" to check mark and line up by?

A. There is some jetty lights down below, but

they may be obstructed by the vessel because they

are pretty well out in the river.

Q. And how far away are they?

A. They are approximately a mile and a half or

two miles up there. Whether they would be visible
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through that atmospheric condition is another ques-

tion.

Q. What would be your judgment? Would they

be visible or invisible from that point twenty-one

hundred feet above the place of collision?

A. That is what I say. You have to depend on

the atmospheric condition for that. On a clear

night they would be visible if they were burning

brightly.

Q. If they are burning? A. Yes.

Q. And not obstructed by vessel?

A. And not obstructed by vessel. [173]

Q. And on a night dark as the night in question,

you would feel, would you, that the navigator, in

attempting to pass on the Washington side of a

vessel at anchor, from that point would be na^dgat-

ing somewhat sharply, would be maneuvering

sharply ?

A. I believe he would, yes, take a chance.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
If the down vessel steers well, responds to her

helm well there is no reason why she should not be

navigated on the Washington side of the vessel at

anchor, from that point, twenty-one hundred and

fifty feet upstream, is there?

A. That is a matter of judgment of the pilot aiid

also of how the vessel is handling. A vessel may
steer perfectly well and still not answer what we
call quickly ; she might start to answer and go very
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slowly, and by that time she is sagging ; she is going

down all the time ; there is motion there all the time

;

she would be probably making about ten and a half

knots or around that neighborhood, I would imagine.

That is what their speed is as a rule.

Q. All pilots are familiar with the effect of suc-

tion on the stern of a vessel, are they not, if they go

too close shore ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And a navigator electing to go between the

vessel at anchor and the shore under the circum-

stances outlined in the questions which have been

asked you would take a chance on suction would he

not?

A. Yes, he is figuring, ordinaril}- figuring, he

would figure everything was clear going down on

that side.

Ql But you have testified that under the circum-

stances outlined in the questions asked you it would

be possible for a navigator of a down vessel, the

"West Keats" in this instance, to determine the

position of the ''Boston Maru" at a point twenty-

one hundred and fifty feet upstream from the

''Boston Maru"? [174]

A. Approximately.

Q. Now, the navigator would know, would he not,

that in coming down between the "Boston Maru"
and the Oregon shore there would be danger of suc-

tion ? A. If he got too close, yes.

Q. And if suction did occur the effect would be

to sheer the bow of the vessel off" to starboard,

wouldn't it I A. Yes, sir.



Kokusai Kisen KahushiJii Kaisha. 171

(Testimony of Captain R. Sandstrom.)

iQ. And pull the stern towards shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that sheer would be a pretty strong force,

wouldn't it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far w^ould you say a vessel would have

to run in order to get the better of a sheer of that

sort of a vessel under control?

A. That w^ould depend on the vessel and her rud-

der power.

Q. A heavy vessel would navigate a greater dis-

tance without getting under control, wouldn't it

—

would run a greater distance?

A. Yes, because they are slow^er to answer.

Q. The suction cuts no figure—the suction of the

shore cuts no figure unless the stern gets close to

shore, does it?

A. Not as long as there is deep water under her,

it wouldn't have no effect unless she gets within a

certain radius ; some vessels have a displacement

that they will suck at a greater distance than

others and that depends a great deal on the model

of their sterns.

Q. Depends to some extent on the speed of the

vessel too, doesn't it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The suction is greater if the vessel is going

at high speed than if the vessel is going at low

speed, isn't it?

A. If you are in a narrow channel, yes.

Q. Is it possible for suction to influence the navi-

gation of a vessel as long as the vessel is headed



172 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain R. Sandstrom.)

towards shore, or headed nearly [175] towards

shore *?

A. No, it couldn 't ; couldn 't influence at that time

because it wouldn't be close enough to feel the suc-

tion.

Q. You have been familiar with the plat, this

"West Keats" Exhibit No. 1, for two years or

more, haven't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And this exhibit has been on file in the office

of the Columbia River pilots during that length of

time, hasn't it? A. The chart has?

Q. Yes, the chart from which this blue-print has

been made?

A. I believe so. I am not sure; I am not posi-

tive but I believe it has.

Q. It is easier to turn a vessel at slack tide than

at ebb tide, a vessel going down stream?

A. To swing her?

A. Yes.

A. Yes, it would.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
A vessel of the type of the "West Keats," under

what condition as to speed does she steer better?

A. AVell, she has—to get an effect on her rudder

at all you have to have practically full speed on her

to get any results, or quick movement. When they

are going slow they don't answer very readily.

They have a lugging condition that I don't know

whether—it is probably in the small rudder or the
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steering-wheel. They have what we call electric

telometer and they are very uncertain and some-

times the contact point will miss and she won't go

hard over, or sometimes it will blow out, so they are

always an uncertain quantity, and we are always a

little bit afraid of them.

Q. Assuming the steering-gear is operating well

and throwing the rudder hard over, or part way

over, as the order may be, how does she [176]

steer best, under full speed or half speed?

A. Under full speed. All vessels steer best under

full speed almost if they are in good order.

Witness excused.

Whereupon proceedings herein were adjourned

until ten o'clock to-morrow morning. [177]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN E. D. GRUNSTAD,
FOR THE GOVERNMENT.

Captain E. D. GRUNSTAD, a witness called on

behalf of the "West Keats," being first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are a Columbia River pilot. Captain Grun-

stad*? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You belong to the Association? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you held your United States

license for the Columbia River?

A. Fifteen years.
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Q. How long have you held your state branch *?

A. Five years.

Q. How long have you been actively engaged in

piloting? A. Five years.

Q. What was the nature of your employment be-

fore you were a pilot?

A. I was with the United States Engineers on

survey boat.

Q. How long were you with that survey boat?

A. Five years.

Q. What surveys did you make?

A. All along the Columbia River from the Co-

lumbia River Lightship to Portland.

Q. Are you familiar with that part of the Colum-

bia River opposite Columbia City, above and below

there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there any anchorage ground in that vicin-

ity?

Mr. McCAMANT.—I think that is a conclusion,

your Honor. I think this witness ought to be asked

what is the customary way of anchoring vessels.

COURT.—Yes. You don't mean designated an-

chorage ground ?

Q. I don't mean designated by law; I mean des-

ignated by custom. Is there any customary an-

chorage ground in that vicinity? A. Yes, sir.

[178]

Q. Where is it, Captain?

A. Abreast of Columbia City.

Q. Front or rear? A. Well, front.
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Q. Abreast Columbia City or down?

A. Yes, Columbia City Eanges—what is called

the Columbia City Ranges.

COURT.—What do you refer to as the Columbia

City ranges, Captain? On the Columbia City side?

A. Yes, direct in the channel down to Columbia

City.

Q. Is that customary anchorage ground nearer

the Oregon bank or nearer the Washington bank?

A. Nearer the Washington.

Q. How do you ordinarily anchor a vessel at that

place at night, assuming it is clear and you can see

lights? Not assuming fog, or anything where you

can't.

A. Well, set by the ranges, red ranges that we

use to anchor on, and abreast of Columbia City

range.

Q. Abreast of Columbia City range lights?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I will hand you a blue-print here, U. S. En-

gineer's blue-print, that is marked "West Keats

Exhibit 1," and will ask you to point out the red

range to which you have just testified.

A. Red range on this dike, the end of this dike.

Q. Is that dike marked 28-2?

A. That was before it was extended; direct line

down takes about fifteen hundred feet off the Co-

lumbia City, near the Washington shore; here is

the intersection of the line.

Q. Now, the other light of that range is which

one. Captain?
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A. The red one you have reference to^

Q. The other light of the red range.

A. Here, the end of the jetty, the St. Helens

jetty; it is the one with spur up here.

Q. No. 27-2? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I am referring to two years ago, October 1924.

And it is [179] that there have some changes

been made since that time. I understand you are

testifying as of two years ago? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you anchored any deep draft vessels at

that place, ever, Captain? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the deepest draft vessel you recall

having anchored there?

A. I anchored a Jap one night, drawing twenty-

nine foot four.

Q. I direct your attention to a place shown on

the map as—close to that anchorage in which there

is a sounding of twenty-five feet shown, and an in-

dication of an area of shoaler water than the rest

of the river there? A. Yes.

Q. And will ask you whether that interferes with

that place of anchorage that you have just de-

scribed? A. No, sir.

Q. Why not, Captain?

A. Well, you have a thousand feet clearance af-

ter you anchor on that particular range, on the

Washington side.

COURT.—You mean a thousand feet before you

reach the twenty-five foot area?

A. Yes. Here is the front range here, and

—
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COURT.—You say a thousand feet from there

over to here?

A. Yes, over to that twenty-five foot.

Mr. KING.—In order that the record may show

that, you mean from the intersection of these two

over to the edge of the shoal?

A. No, to the twenty-five foot sounding.

Mr. KING.—Over to the twenty-five foot sound-

ing?

A. Yes.

Q. Where the figure "25" appears within that

dotted line of the shoal? A. Yes, sir.

•Q. Mr. KING.—You say that is a thousand feet?

[180]

A. This dotted line, every dot means a fathom,

so is thirty feet in this area around there. Every

little dot on this circle denotes a fathom.

Mr. KING.—How far do you say from the inter-

section of these two lines to the figure "26"?

A. That is about six hundred feet.

Mr. KING.—Six hundred feet?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the character of the water just below

the place of intersection of these two lines to which

Mr. King calls attention? A. Deep water.

Q. Deep water? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is the ship's channel, main ship chan-

nel, at that part of the river opposite Columbia

City? A. It follows the Oregon shore line.

Q. Are you familiar with the "West Keats" and

with other Shipping Board vessels of her type?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Eighty-eight hundred ton vessels?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In piloting a vessel of the "West Keats"

type down the river at that point, assuming she is

fully loaded, how would you run that part of the

river under ordinary circumstances at night?

A. I would follow the same old course along the

Oregon shore.

Q. What range lights, if any, would you use?

A. Well, we have no range lights after we leave

the Columbia City or St. Helens ranges.

Q. Follow the St. Helens range would you?

A. Yes, follow the St. Helens range, and when

you leave that you follow the Oregon shore line

down until you intersect with the Columbia City

ranges.

'Q. And then follow the Columbia City range on

down? A. Yes, sir. [181]

Q. Pick it up in the rear? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I wish you would describe the character of

that, whether there is visibility, and with special

reference to whether the bank is high or low at

that point.

A. Well, very deceiving on dark night on account

of the high bank, which throws a shadow across

the water there.

Q. I wish you would show the Court on that

chart just where the high bank is?

A. Along the Oregon shore line, liere. This is

high bank all the way down.
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Q. You are pointing generally to an area on

which the four range lights are situated?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The shadows of that bank, you say, fall upon

the waters? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What do you mean by deceptive?

A. Well, very deceiving; you can't see the shore

line.

Q. Does it have any effect on ability to judge dis-

tance there? A. Yes, it has.

Q. Make it easier, or harder? A. Harder.

Q. Now, assume a vessel of the "West Keats"

type coming down the river on a night which is

very dark and cloudy, overcast but not foggy, and

the visibility clear as to lights—visibility good as

to lights, and assuming another vessel four hun-

dred feet in length anchored approximately at the

place shown as, "Position at collision," on this

chart, at what point above the position at collision

would you say is the furthest or earliest point at

which the distance of that anchored vessel from

shore might be ascertained?

A. Well, you have to—you would have to get

down in the vicinity of about two thousand feet

away before you could deteimine the exact loca-

tion of the anchored vessel. [182]

Q. Now, might that distance be greater or lesser,

depending on the darkness of the night?

A. No—well, of course, a dark night you would

have to get closer.

Q. On a fairly—on a night that is not very dark
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could you tell that distance much before two thou-

sand feet? A. Not very much, no.

Q. Is there a reason for that, Captain? I pre-

sume there is. State the reason.

A. Well, you have to get down close enough to

the Oregon shore line to line up the other line

—

the Oregon shore line, before you can see down
through the waters below.

Q. How would you estimate the distance of the

anchored ship from shore, by looking between her

and the shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And noting the water between her and the

shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then making your estimate?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would the shadow cast by the Oregon bank,

high bank at that point, affect such estimation of

distance? A. Oh, yes.

Q. In what way?

A. Why, such a darkness along the shore line

that you couldn't see the shoreline, or you couldn't

see open waters between the ship.

Q. In your judgment could there be a situation

in which the night was so dark, although clear, that

you couldn't see the water at all until you got down
very close? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So it just depends on how dark the night is,

does it. Captain?

A. If the pilot on the "West Keats," under the

conditions outlined in the preceding question,

should be able to observe at ai)proximately two
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thousand feet distance, that the "Boston Maru"
was anchored so close to the shore as to make pass-

age between [183] the "Boston Maru" and

shore

—

A. I didn't quite get the first of that.

Q. If under the conditions named in the preced-

ing questions, the pilot of the "West Keats" was

able to observe at a distance of two thousand feet

approximately, that the "Boston Maru" was so

close to the Oregon shore as to make passage be-

tween the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon shore

dangerous, could the pilot, under those circum-

stances, effect an easy or ordinary turn to pass on

the Washington side?

A. It would be rather dangerous, would be rather

abrupt for a heavy loaded vessel.

Q. Why?
A. Why, coming up that speed with a loaded ves-

sel, you have got to stop and back then, and you

have no control of them, back them full speed, they

run out of the channel.

Q. How does a vessel—at what speed does a ves-

sel like the "West Keats," fully loaded, steer best?

A. Full speed.

Q. What is the reason for that?

A, Why, you have—some vessels steer very badly

if they are slow, and the more kick you get from

the propeller on the rudder the better they steer.

If you are going at slow speed you have to put your

rudder hard over in order to have the same effect.
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The speed through the water is what makes them

steer better,

Q. Now, if the pilot on the "West Keats," un-

der the circumstances we have just outlined, dis-

covered closer than two thousand feet that the dis-

tance was very short between the "Boston Maru"
and the Oregon shore, and he attempted to stop

and back his engines, what would be the probable

result of that? A. Well, he would run aground.

Q. Any other possibilities? [184]

A. Well, there is sometimes the ship will come

the opposite wa}" to the propellers, and the chances

are he will hit the Jap ship midships or go on the

shore on the Oregon side; but as a rule they will

act on the propeller finally and run out of the chan-

nel.

Q. Would it be safe for the pilot of the "West

Keats" to throw out his anchor under those condi-

tions? A. Absolutely not.

Q. Describe how^ you would bring a loaded ves-

sel like the "West Keats" to a stop at a speed of

eight and eighty-four hundredths, assuming you

had as much time as you needed to execute the ma-

neuver safely, stop and turn and anchor?

A. You mean slack water?

Q. Slack water.

A. Well, he ought to have a distance of two

miles to slow down and stop and let it drift in or-

der to anchor in a position which you want her to

take.

Q. You would want two miles? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. What would you do?

A. I would slow down, stop, and such time as

they don't steer you have to get them a little slow

head, the helm over, in order to keep them in the

channel, until you get down to the particular place

you want to anchor. Stop—as long as they steer

you stop them, and w^hen they begin to go out of

the channel you put your wheel over and give them

a slow head occasionally.

Q. What would be the idea of giving a slow head

occasionally ?

A. So you get some response from the wheel,

make her steer.

Q. Get some water against the rudder?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. If your vessel begins to get out of hand and

doesn't steer well you wdll put her slow ahead in

order to make her steer? A. Yes, sir. [185]

Q. To turn her?

A. As soon as she answers the helm stop her

again, in order to keep her from gaining momen-
tum.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, you say that—suppose now you are two

thousand feet away from a vessel; you have to

—

in order to escape her you have got to make a star-

board turn so as to cover four hundred feet at the

end of the tw^o thousand feet
;
you say you can 't de-

flect a vessel four hundred feet in running two

thousand feet? A. No, sir.
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Q. When she is steering well?

A. No, not in two thousand feet; no, sir.

Q. There is a customary anchorage ground in the

neighborhood of Columbia City that is known to

all the pilots, isn't there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is customarj^ for vessels desiring to go

in to St. Helens to anchor there, isn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And all of the pilots on the river know that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do all the pilots anchor at the same place at

Columbia City? A. Yes, sir.

Q. They all do? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You never have seen a vessel anchored there

except at the place you have indicated in your di-

rect testimony? A. No, sir.

Q. Is that true? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you anchor a vessel there, before the

tide comes in, when the wind is negligible, is it pos-

sible for you to tell in advance which way the ves-

sel will swing? A. Not always, no, sir.

Q. Can you ever tell, when there is no wind?

[186] A. Sometimes can.

Q. That is where there is a strong current mov-

ing at the place? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is there a strong current by Columbia City?

A. No, sir, there isn't. In low, on a flood tide

—

Q. Yes, I understand the effect of the tide; but

suppose you anchor while the tide is ebbing?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Is there any way of telling, unless there is a

wind blowing, considerable wind blowing, is there

any way of telling which w^ay a vessel is going to

swing ?

A. Depends on which way the wind is blowing.

Q. I asked, no appreciable wind!

A. Then she wonld swing toward the Oregon

shore.

Q. In the absence of wind you say a vessel would

always swing toward the Oregon shore 1 A. Yes.

Q. You spoke of anchoring a Jap vessel there,

didn't you, on your direct examination?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did that vessel swing toward the Oregon,

shore *?

A. That particular time it was freshet and there

was no upstream current.

Q. Did she swing toward the Oregon shore?

A. No, sir, she trailed downstream all the time.

Q. Were you there when the tide flooded?

A. The tide don't flood at that particular time

of the year.

Q. How much below water was it?

A. About five feet above low water.

Q. Captain, would it be regarded as good sea-

manship for a pilot to anchor a vessel so close to

the shoal marked opposite Columbia City, as that

his vessel, if she swung towards the Washington

shore, would swing on to that shoal if his vessel

drew upwards [187] of twenty-six feet?
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A. If he anchors on the intersection of these red

ranges, on these red ranges, and the intersection of

this line, he has clearance from the shoal.

Q. If he anchors at the point where these two

lines converge on the red range, the red range and

the other range running up to St. Helens court-

house? A. Yes.

Q. And his vessel swung—his vessel is four hun-

dred feet in length, and he put out thirty fathoms

of chain, suppose his vessel swimg towards the

Washington side, made a complete turn going up-

stream, would you still say he would have plenty of

clearance to clear that shoal? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When a vessel swings at her anchor on flood

tide, how does the flood tide affect her?

A. When swings, riding practically up and down

on the anchor chain until she has swung completely

around, and the current will of course set her back

on the chain.

Q. She rides up over her chain, does she?

A. Yes, while she is swinging.

Q. You testified, didn't you, at the investigation

held by the Steamboat Inspectors, growing out of

this particular collision? A. I beg pardon?

Q. You testified before the Steamboat Inspectors

at the investigation which followed this collision,

didn't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you say

—

Mr. SNOW.—I object to that, because I under-

stand it refers to a preliminary investigation which

I understand is a secret investigation.
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Mr. McCAMANT.—The testimony is under oath,

and I presume if I can get a copy of it I can ask the

witness if he so testified. [188]

COURT.—I don't know whether secret any more.

It seems to me the rules have been changed re-

cently.

Mr. McCAMANT.—We were able to get a copy

of this, which we were not able to do years ago.

COURT.—In some admiralty case tried a short

time ago, it was stated the rule had been changed

in the department now, and the preliminary in-

vestigation is not secret. I don 't know whether that

is a fact or not.

Mr. SNOW.—I understand, your Honor, that has

always been the department rule, and I didn't

know of a change.

COURT.—I don't know, but it was so stated in

some admiralty case here recently. In any event

counsel has a copy of it, so I suppose he can ask

about it.

Q. I will ask you whether you testified on that

occasion as follows: "Do you ever pass vessels at

anchor at that particular point"—referring to the

point marked on the chart for the anchorage of the

"Boston Maru."

Mr. SNOW.—Now, your Honor, I don't know
that that refers to that, in that testimony, but it

speaks for itself. I object to counsel's construc-

tion.

Mr. McCAMANT.—All right, we will show it

refers to this particular anchorage. I will ask
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about the testimony first, and then we Avill analyze

it.

Q. Did you testify as follows on that occasion:

"Do you ever pass vessels at anchor at that particu-

lar point '? A. Yes. Q. Night-time and dark?

A. Yes, sir. Q. Ever stop your vessel when you

passed? A. Yes, sir. Q. Go straight ahead full

speed ten miles'? A. Yes, maybe. Q. When she

is straight up and down the channel? A. Yes.

Q. When one is diagonal across the channel, ever

pass that way? A. No, sir." Did you so testify?

[189] A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you also testify on that occasion as

follows: "If you were going down in same vessel

and saw one diagonally across the stream, would

you stop your vessel? If saw it in time, and there

was room, say you saw her four or five minutes

ahead of you? A. I would if I thought I couldn't

get by. Q. Even if you couldn't get by, your first

impulse is to stop? A. Yes, sir." Did you so

testify? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you still of that opinion? A. Yes, sir.

Now, prior to the time when these questions were

asked you on that hearing, you had been advised of

where the "Boston Maru" was anchored, had you

not, by previous testimony? A. No, sir.

Q. You were not ? A. No, sir, I was not.

Q. Were you asked these questions: "Suppose

a vessel four hundred feet long, with thirty fathoms

of chain out, and anchored seven luuidrod feet from
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shore, would swing slightly on a flood tide towards

the Oregon side, would she obstruct the channel *?

A. Only would have two hundred fifty to three

hundred feet. Q. Would it be safe for a vessel

drawing twenty-six or twenty-eight feet of water

to go between that vessel at anchor and the shore,

going ten miles an hour? A. No, hardly." Did

you so testify? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—I object to that, because these ques-

tions don't follow each other in their order, and

counsel has read one question from one place and

one from another. I don't know what the witness

had in his mind at each one of these questions.

COURT.—Well, we can find out if necessary.

Mr. SNOW.—This is not the investigation that

these questions are being read from. It is the

trial of one of the [190] pilots, I don't know

which.

Mr. KING.—It is the hearing of November 7th.

Mr. SNOW.—Was in the preliminary investiga-

tion.

Q. There was a chart before you at the time,

wasn't there, when that testimony was given. Cap-

tain?

A. I don't remember as it was; in fact, at that

time I didn't know anything about the exact loca-

tion of where the Jap ship was anchored.

Q. You are still of the opinion that if the space

between the stern of the "Boston Maru" and the

Oregon shore was two hundred and fifty feet, that it

would not be safe for a down-coming vessel drawing
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twenty-six to twenty-eight feet of water, to attempt

to go betwen her and the Oregon shore, are you ?

A. Not a dark night; no.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Judge McCamant asked you some questions in

relation to the difficulty and danger involved in a

turnout past the bow of the "Boston Maru" from a

distance of two thousand feet, and as I understood

it, you described such a turn as dangerous.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. If such a turn were attempted, however, would

the pilot attempting it have to take into considera-

tion, or take in account the anchor chain of the

"Boston Maru"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would he know in what position the anchor

chain would be?

A. Well, it would be leading out from the bow of

the ship.

Q. Could he tell at what angle it would lead out?

A. Why hardly, no ; I don't imagine that he could

;

that depends on the current and the draft of the

vessel, and the wind.

Q. Now, did you intend to say on your examina-

tion that such a turn would be impossible, or merely

that it would be dangerous? [191]

A. It would be impossible.

Q. You don't think it would be possible?

A. No, sir.
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Recross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
You spoke on your direct examination, first direct

examination, Captain, about a channel. You don't

mean to say that there is any harbor regulation

fixing a channel at that particular point, do you?

A. No.

Q. And there are no ranges opposite Columbia

City after you leave St. Helens range, until you

get further down the river, are there ?

A. No, sir.

Q. The chart shows that there is deep water

until you come to this shoal to which I direct your

attention, doesn 't it '? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the pilots are all familiar with this chart,

aren't they*?

COURT.—Captain, if the pilot of a vessel coming

downstream should observe ahead of him, a mile and

a half ahead of him, a vessel anchored down by

Cojumbia City, and her anchor lights should show

that she was lying athwart the channel, would he

have any means of determining from the range

lights down here, the probable location of that boat ?

A. No, sir.

COURT.—Couldn't telH

A. No, sir.

COURT.—Q. The range lights would be no aid

to him*?

A. No, sir.

COURT.—Are there any range lights down the

river below her?
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A. Not until we get the Columbia City ranges on

the stern going down. [192]

COURT.—I mean on the Washington shore.

A. There is, way down here.

Mr. KING.—This shows it further down, differ-

ent conditions. (Taking another map.)

A. The low ranges don't show on this chart.

Mr. KING.—This is "Boston Maru" Exhibit

"L."

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
What lights are there below the place of collision,

the first lights ? A. Columbia City ranges.

Q. Below that, Captain?

A. There are some lights on the jetty down below,

what we call Caples Point.

Q. How far are they'?

A. They are about four or five thousand feet.

Q. Are they on the Oregon side or the Washing-

ton?

A. On the Washington side. They are not visible

from the upper stretch coming down to Columbia

City.

Q. Not visible from the stretch of water above

Columbia City? A. No, sir.

Q.^What aid would they be, if any, to the pilot

of the "West Keats" in determining the distance

of the "Boston Maru" from the Oregon shore?

A. None whatever.

Witness excused. [193]
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Mr. SNOW.—We have entered into a stipulation

which I understand is as follows, but Mr. Hixon,

a witness who has already testified, if recalled,

would testify that the gravel forming the shoal

place on the chart to which we have referred, having

m the center the sounding of twenty-five feet, oppo-

site Columbia City range light, was dumped in

there by dredge, as shown by the records in his

office, August 6th to August 14th, 1921. Is that

your understanding, Mr. King?

, Mr. KING.—That is my understanding. All

right. [194]

TESTIMONY OF R. S. KIMBERK, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

R. S. KIMBERK, a witness called in behalf of

the "West Keats," being first duly sworn testified

as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are one of the officers of the Columbia Pacific

Shipping Company, are you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the managing agent of the "West
Keats"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What efforts, if any, have been made by the

Columbia Pacific Shipping Company to secure the

attendance at this trial, or to take the deposition of

the lookout on the "West Keats" at the time of

this collision with the "Boston Maru"?

A. We have exhausted every source of informa-
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tion that we know of, since the middle of last

spring, until this morning.

Q. Name some of the places you have communi-

cated with?

A. We have inquired through the Seamen's Ser-

vice Bureau of this city, where we learned that he

had joined the steamer "William A. McKenna," on

May 15, 1925; w^e communicated with the owners

of the steamer "William A. McKenna" at their

home office, Boston, who advised us that he was on

that vessel from May 15th to June 11th, 1925 ; from

that date they had no record of him whatsoever.

We also learned that his address while in this city

was at the Albany Hotel on Second Street, whom we

wrote to and communicated with, but had no record

of the man whatsoever as being at their hotel any

time during May, 1925. We communicated with

the Seamens Union of the Pacific, at this city, but

had no record of the man. We thereupon com-

municated with the Seamens Union of San Fran-

cisco, who said that they had the name of Lars Olsen

on nine different cards, indicating that there were

nine different men of that name, and it would be

very hard [195] to determine just which one he

was. We told them to investigate all of these men

and endeavor to locate the man in mind. There

has been no development since that time.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)

The man's name was Olsen?
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A. Lars Olsen.

Q. Well, he went with the "West Keats" ovei?

to the Orient after this collision, did he not^

A. As far as I know.

Q. And came back to Portland at the end of that

voyage, didn't he? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was the "West Keats" in Portland

after that voyage to the Orient ?

A. About in March, 1925.

Q. March, 1925. And this lookout Olsen was

with the vessel when she reached Portland at that

time? A. As far as I know.

Q. That is all. The record will show that this

litigation was pending at that time, and deposition

could have been taken.

Witness excused.

Mr. SNOW.—I desire to offer in evidence de-

positions taken on behalf of the "West Keats,"

being depositions of C. J. Swenson, Lee O. Jetts,

Enar Gidlof, E. P. Gillette, and Anton Bergreth.

That, your Honor, is all of our case, except that

we have a little bit of testimony to elicit from Cap-

tain Berry in the nature of rebuttal, and I think

it would be better to pass that until we hear from

their witnesses. I realize that the time of the

Court is very short, and the Court is unfortunately

behind [196] on the docket, and for that reason

I don't want to ask the Court to listen to the read-

ing of these depositions, but I would, if possible,

like to read the deposition of the second officer who
was on the bridge at the time this whole matter
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occurred; and perhaps excerpts from other deposi-

tions. But there is a room full of pilots here now.

They are anxious to get back to the river, and if

counsel will stipulate we may be able to proceed

with the reading of these depositions at some other

time.

COURT.—You can read the depositions later.

We will take the oral testimony first.

Libelant "West Keats" rests. [197]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN EDWARD SULLI-
VAN, FOR THE "BOSTON MARU."

Captain EDWARD SULLIVAN, a witness called

in behalf of the "Boston Maru," being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, W'hat is your occupation"?

A. River pilot.

Q. You have been operating as a pilot on the

Columbia and Willamette Rivers for about how

long*? A. For about forty years.

Q. And are you familiar with the channels and

with the courses taken by vessels coming up and

down the Columbia River? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you a member of the Columbia River

Pilots Association? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—I admit the captain's qualifications,

as far as that is concerned.

Q. Does the Columbia River Pilots Association
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receive the charts prepared by the Government,

showing the condition of the river at all times?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How often are those charts—new charts pre-

sented there ?

A. These project shoals they are working on,

three or four times a year.

Q. I call your atention to "West Keats" Exhibit

No. 4, being blue-print chart of the Columbia River

at or near Columbia City, and I call your attention

particularly to the point marked on that chart as

the place of anchorage of the "Boston Maru" at

the time of collision. I will ask you to state whether

or not that is a place on the Columbia River where

the vessels are frequently anchored?

A. Well, in that vicinity I should say yes, that is

the usual place. [198]

Q. Is it possible for a pilot to anchor at any

particular spot in the river after dark?

A. Well, it is a very difficult thing, I have found

from my experience, to drop ahead any particular

spot, with the exception possibly with the aid of

some range or lights that we use especially for that

purpose.

Q. It would only be an approximation, ordinarily ?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the customary thing in the matter of

going into the docks at St. Helens, with a vessel

going downstream from Portland, suppose the river

is low and the vessel is drawing a considerable

draft?
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A. Well, at the time, approximately at the time

that this thing occurred, why he would wait for the

tide, anchor at Columbia City.

Q. Anchor at Columbia City. What has been

your own practice in regard to anchoring in that

neighborhood? A. I would wait.

. Q. As to where you have anchored.

A.^ Well, I would use the front light of the

Columbia City range as a guide, making the turn

and using that to show the shore line, and anchor

usually abreast of that light.

Q. Would you aim to anchor as near as possible in

the center of deep water *?

A. Well, would try to. There is nothing on the

Washington side to indicate where the shore is.

The only thing would be the lights on the Oregon

dock—Columbia City side, so the distance would

have to be judged—measured with the eye from that

point.

Q. Now, I will ask you. Captain Sullivan, whether

there is any obstruction of vision from Warrior

Rock, at the head of this chart, "West Keats" Ex-

hibit No. 1, and the point marked as the anchorage

of the "Boston Maru" at the time of the collision 1

[199] A. No, not that I know of.

Q. And about how far is Warrior Rock upstream

from the place where the "Boston Maru" was an-

chored ?

A. I think it is known somewhere about three

miles, perhaps a little more—estimate.
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Q. You are familiar, are you, with the courses

that downstream boats ordinarily take in coming

from Warrior Rock down to the point indicated as

the anchorage ground of the "Boston Maru"?

A. Yes.

Q. Is there any place ui all of that three miles

wheru there is obstruction to vision of the man on

the bridge of a vessel which would prevent him

from beeing the lights on the "Boston Maru," if an-

chored at that point '?

A. No, not if the night were clear, there would be

nothing.

Q. How far above that anchorage ground—that

anchorage pomt of the "Boston Maru," would it

be necessary to start in order to deflect a vessel over

to the Washington side of the anchorage ground of

the "Boston Maru"?

A. 1 would think in a case of that kind I would

want to be a thousand feet away; if I was steering

straight for the ship I would want a thousand feet

to be safe, to go around her on the other side.

Q. You think if you saw the "Boston Maru" a

thousand feet away, it would be possible for you

to deflect your vessel to go on the Washington side?

A. I think so.

Q. And assuming that your vessel was drawing

twenty-six feet of water? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I wish you would describe to the Court, Cap-

tain Sullivan, what happens when the flood tide

begins to act on a vessel at anchor?
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A. Well, the first thing the ship does it to come

up imtil the [200] chain is perpendicular; the

weight holding the chain to the anchor would be

relaxed, and the ship would come to a point at

which it would be perpendicular.

Q. Up to that point would the vessel swing at all ?

A. I would not think so, I don't think so.

Q. Then what would happen?

A. Then the flood would gradually forge her

ahead of that chain until sufficient weight of that

bight had accumulated to stop her from going

ahead; then of course would commence to swing;

that bow would hold there in a measure stationary

;

she would commence to swing.

Q. Suppose the vessel at anchor is four hundred

feet long, and she has thirty fathoms of chain out,

and is anchored in forty-three feet of water. What
would be the approximate radius of the arc of a

circle on which she would swing?

A. I don't believe she would leave that point very

far, very much; I don't think would be very much

difference.

Q. That is, wouldn't much exceed the four hun-

dred feet?

A. No, I don't think so, at that particular place

where the tide is very slow.

Q. Is it customary for vessels operating tlio

Columbia River to put out more than one anchor?

A. I never heard of it, never used it or heard of

it.

Q. Are the vessels that operate on the Columbia
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River equipped with gear to admit putting out ordi-

narily a stern anchor as well as a bow anchor?

A. Very few; very few of these steamers come

here with the stern anchors ; never heard of one be-

ing used in the Columbia River.

Q. Were you familiar in 1924 with the shoal

marked on this map off of Columbia City front

range light?

A. Well, approximately. I knew there was a

shoal there, in a [201] general way, as generally

pilots know it.

Q. It has been testified here that that shoal has

been made from the dumping of gravel in the river.

If the shoal is made in that way, would the wash of

the water—would that tend of itself to disappear,

without any Government work?

A. No, I think that shoal has been there all the

time. It is a gravel shoal. It is generally known

that gravel shoals don't wash away.

Q. I call your attention to the "Boston Maru's"

Exhibit "E," being a photograph of the "Boston

Maru," showing the condition of this vessel after

this collision, and the "Boston Maru" Exhibit "H,"
being a photograph showing the condition of the

"West Keats" after the collision; and I may say

for your information that the testimony shows that

the "West Keats" was struck at about the hawse-

pipe on the starboard side of the "West Keats,"

back of the bow. The testimony indicates that the

"Boston Maru" was lying at anchor measurably

athwart the channel, more or less athwart the chan-
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nel, and the "West Keats" was coming dow^n on the

St. Helens ranges—had come downstream on the

St. Helens ranges to the point marked with the red

cross, approximately half a mile above the point of

collision. The testimony shows that at that point

the order was given by the pilot of the "West

Keats" to port, port the helm; his next order was

steady, and then there was an order starboard abit,

and an order hard astarboard, and following these

orders the vessels collided at the point indicated on

the photographs. I will ask you what those facts

indicate with reference to the course that the "West

Keats" was taking with reference to the Oregon

shore ?

Mr. SNOW.—I object to that question. It is a

very long, hypothetical question, but does not con-

tain a statement of all the circumstances. It does

not describe the exact distance [202] of the

"West Keats" from the bank or from the shoal, and

indicate the manner in which the suction would act.

COURT.—Counsel is only asking as to the impact.

A. Well, it would appear from the way the dam-

age to these two ships is, that either the Jap ship

was not swung across the channel, or else that the

other ship was not pursuing a course straight down

the river.

Q. Assuming that the Jap ship was athwart the

channel, which end of the "West Keats" was closest

to the Oregon shore, judging from the place where

the impact occurred on the two vessels?
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A. I would tMnk that the bow would he nearer to

shore than the stern.

Q. Would the fact that the blow was a glancing

blow in any manner affect your judgment ?

A. I don't quite understand what you mean by a

glancing blow.

Q. Let us assume, in addition to the facts to which

I have called your attention, that the "West Keats"

was going full speed ahead up to one minute before

the collision, and that she was making over the land

eight and eight-tenths miles per hour, and that the

blow was a glancing blow. Would that alter your

judgment as to the course that the "West Keats"

was pursuing, as to whether her bow or her stern

was closer to the Oregon shore?

A. Glancing blow, as I understand, would mean a

blow that the ship would glance off; instead of pur-

suing her course and striking there, she would be

on a swing and glancing off, is what you mean?

Q. Yes.

A. Well, I don't see what would prevent the

"West Keats" from going bow on to the beach, if

that was the case.

Q. Now, Captain, will you tell us how suction

acts, what effect the suction has on a vessel, and

how it acts, and, as far as [203] the effect of the

shore is concerned, how far out it extends?

A. Well, of course how far out it would be would

be a question perhaps a pilot wouldn't have sense

enough to answer, take more of an expert. The

suction is at the stern of a ship; in passing a shoal
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it is the stern of the ship that sucks towards the

^hore, not the bow, and of course the stem going

towards the shore, the bow naturally goes in the

course in which the suction is causing the ship to

draw, and we say that she runs away from shore.

The fact of the matter is, that the stem is drawn

toward the shore by this action, probably by the pro-

pellor, being the largest moving object around, dis-

placing the water, and the bow following the course

that the suction has caused this bow to draw. Of

course if she is moving—the faster she is moving

the faster she will go off in that direction; the

faster—the further the influence would be on the

suction.

Q. The faster the vessel is going, the greater the

influence of the suction? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Would you say, if the stem of the vessel is

a hundred and fifty feet out from the shore, the

vessel is gomg eight and eight-tenths miles per

hour over the land, that suction would influence her

navigation ?

A. Well, that would be a technical question. A
man perhaps has been in no position to observe a

condition of that kind ; it might, probably would ; it

might not. I think a hundred and fifty feet

—

Avouldn't have much influence on the shore a liuu-

dred and fifty feet away; would depend perhaps

on the nature of the bank, whether it was sloping

or steep.

Q. Are you familiar with the bank of the river at

Columbia City ? A. Yes, sir.



Kokusai Kisen KahusJiiki Kaisha. 205

(Testimony of Captain Edward Sullivan.)

Q. Immediately above the point of collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How is the bank there'? [204]

A. Generally straight up and down.

Q. Would that make the suction more or less?

A. I would think it would make it less.

Q. If the vessel is influenced by suction it will

cause her bow to sheer off, will it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Away from shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q:. And with considerable force?

A. Well, sometimes, depends on the speed of the

ship and the nearness of the shore.

Q. Does it ordinarily take a good while to get a

ship under control if she sheers as the result of suc-

tion?

A. Yes, very often; be probably a long distance

before she is under control; serious problem to the

pilot of a ship, going up close to shore.

Q. And would she be under control at all during

the time she was influenced by the sheer in her

navigation? A. No.

Q. Are there any range lights at Columbia City

which will enable the pilot navigating a down com-

ing vessel, to determine how far an anchored vessel

is off the shore?

A. Well, the front light of the St. Helens bar

range is in the water—in the edge of the water on a

piling ; the front light of the Columbia City range is

very near to the water, perhaps fifty or sixty feet

from the water, the edge of the water. Those are
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the two lights that are used to determine the shore

lines on the St. Helens side or the Columbia City

side—the Oregon side.

Q. And is it possible to determine the shore by

the aid of these lights, at night?

A. Be impossible.

Q. How far—assuming that the sky is overcast,

but the visibility is good, and a vessel is anchored

at the point indicated as the anchorage ground of the

"Boston Maru," how far upstream would you

[205] have to be in order to determine approxi-

matel}^ the position of the "Boston Maru" with

reference to the Oregon shore?

A. Well, that would be a question that a man
couldn't answer with any degree of accuracy, be-

cause perhaps he never had observed such a point,

and I don't know.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You wouldn't want to estimate, Captain, what

distance upstream a pilot would have to be in order

to estimate the distance of the "Boston Maru" from

shore, if she is in approximately that anchorage?

A. No, I wouldn't.

Q. You would be very uncertain, then, as to the

amount of aid you would receive from the front

Columbia City range light, of which you spoke just

now, would you?

A. Well, have to determine by the light on the

ship, wherever that— whatever position he was that
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night, and it would depend on the conditions and

position that she was in, and how much previous

attention he had given to it ; that light on the stern

of the ship and light on the shore would give him an

idea of the distance between, the space there was

left there.

Q. You would be very doubtful about the amount

of aid given you by the front C-olumbia City range

light in estimating the distance from there to the

ship, would you?

A. Oh, yes, that wouldn't give you very much

idea.

Q. In fact, could you see that Columbia River

—

A. Columbia City range light—front light?

Q. Columbia City front light.

A. Oh, yes, that is visible almost from the time

3"ou leave Warrior Rock—no, I beg pardon

—

yes, the Columbia City front light would be shown.

[206]

Q. That is the lower of the two Columbia City

range lights?

A. Yes, that is the outside one

—

Q. Isn't there a screen back of the Columbia

City front range light?

A. I don't think such as would obstruct from up

the river; I don't think so.

Q. You are not sure whether you could see that

light from up the river, when it comes right down
to it?

A. No, the fact of the matter is, I am not; but I

Judge from the direction you are going to it, cross-
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ing to Columbia City—crossing diagonally across

the river along the St. Helens dike, and I wouldn't

positively say whether that light is visible or not,

the front light of the Columbia City range.

Q. Now, a pilot coming down the river and trying

to estimate the distance of the "Boston Maru,"

anchored in approximately the location shown by

"West Keats" Exhibit No. 1, which you have

in your lap, would find his difficulty increased or

decreased according as to whether the night be very

dark or not very dark, wouldn't he?

A. Well, the darkness I wouldn't think would

affect it, but hazy and smoke around there very

seriously affect it, and usually that place is a smoky

place, k-nown to be to pilots and others interested.

Q. There is a very high bank on the Oregon side

there, isn't there?

A. Yes, quite high; Columbia City is quite high.

Q. Doesn't that bank darken the river at that

point ?

A. No, not materially I wouldn't think; but the

river bank—the river itself is not visible in the

night, it is only the light which the pilot goes by; he

don't judge the distance from shore by what he can

see; he uses bearings of other things.

Q. He would only have—a i3ilot, judging the dis-

tance of the [207] "Boston Maru" from the

bank, would only have the stern light of the "Boston

Maru" to line up against any that he might find on

the Oregon shore?

A. Absolutely all.
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Q. That is absolutely all?

A. No question about it.

Q. And that is very uncertain?

A. He has to measure that with his eye and ac-

cording to his vision of the light, and various

things ; he would have to measure that distance with

his eye, those two lights. That is all I can say.

Q. As a matter of fact, he might come down

within a thousand feet of this vessel without know-

ing just how far she was from shore, wouldn't

he, on a very dark night?

A. He would have to judge from his experience

as a pilot about how far that ship was away.

Q. Well, I say he might come down within a thou-

sand feet of her, and still think she was far enough

out to get into a safe position?

A. Yes, it is possible he might think that. He
might be very easily mistaken in that.

Q. You would not feel disposed to blame a pilot

who made a mistake ?

A. Certainly not; no criticism to offer of the

pilot doing anything of that sort. I have been

against too much of that myself.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I object to that.

Q. If the bank is straight up and down it would

tend to make the suction less, you say?

A. Well, yes; using what we would call the visi-

bility of the bank, or the bank that shows; if it

slopes out under the water why the suction would be

greater because the shoal would reach further out.
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Q. Of course you understand a river has part of

the bank under water? [208]

A. I am speaking of the water's edge, of course,

as being the bank of the river.

Q. Now at that particular place in the river you

have a fairly sloping bank, haven't you?

A. Well, the bank is a gravel bank, steep, not

affected by the wash of the river; remains station-

ary all the time because it is gravel.

Q. I will hand you a pair of dividers and will ask

you to measure the distance between the water's edge

and the thirty-foot line or five-fathom line, on the

foot of the blue-print, and will ask you if it isn't a

hundred and fifty feet from the water's edge to the

five-fathom line at approximately the place shown

as the place of collision?

A. Well, it shows about two hundred feet on this

chart at the stern of that ship, presuming that the

inner dot mark is the water 's edge, and the outer dot

mark is the thirty-fathom curve. You are not sure

whether the inner dot mark is the water's edge?

A. No, I don't know.

Q. It might be that dotted line?

A. I don't really know how those charts are made,

what they do indicate.

Q. What does it show, two hundred feet from the

inner dot mark to the outer dot mark?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That indicates a very sloping bank, doesn 't it ?

A. Yes, it would indicate that there.
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Q. With likelihood of pretty heavy suction if you

got close to that six-fathom line'?

A. Yes, if go in thirty feet of water with the stern

of that ship, and was deeper water outside of it,

would be quite a suction there I would think.

Q. Captain, you were asked a very long question

that involved [209] photographs E and H, and

I hand you these photographs again. I understood

you to say that, based on these photographs, you

thought that the vessels did not collide at right

angles to each other, but rather obliquely. Was
that the substance of your answer?

A. Yes, this picture will indicate that, I would

think, the "West Keats" caught her anchor on this

vessel's quarter. The stem of the ship doesn't

seem to be damaged.

Q. I place these two little models in front of you,

shown as colliding at approximately right angles.

Now you move them to the point at which you think

they might have collided, as shown by these pictures.

A. Oh, I think something like that.

Mr. McCAMANT.—Let us get that in the record

if we can. Is that about forty-five degrees impact"?

Mr. SNOW.—We can draw a diagram of that;

we can trace it on this paper.

Q. Captain, I wish you would show the Court just

what you see in these photographs to indicate to

you that the vessels must have collided in that posi-

tion?

A. This ship was evidently caught by the anchor

of this; supposing it was in the hawse-pipe, drawn
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close up, sticking out—it sticks out some little dis-

tance—and these two flukes stick out; they are the

furthest thing that stick outside of the ship along

on this surface. They evidently caught this ship

and they must have caught in this position, I would

think; somewhere about here; would indicate that

the ship was going something in that direction ; and

of course the anchor would pull out of place and the

impact later on as it pushed in there broke this

hawse-pipe; this hawse-pipe stands outside the line

of the plates [210] also, and the impact of the

whole thing broke that piece of cast iron running

from there up the deck; not very strong for that

kind of a blow.

Q. What makes you think that the fluke of the

"West Keats" anchor was drawn up close to the

hawse-pipe at the time of the collision?

A. Well, the usual way.

Q. They are not drawn up there now, are they ?

A. No; the whole thing is broken; they couldn't

be in that position now; after the collision they

couldn't be placed there in the regular place; it is

broken.

Q. Isn't it more than likely that the breaking of

the hawse-pij^e would prevent letting that anchor

out to the position shown in the photograph after

the collision?

A. No, it might have dragged it out.

Q. You think might have taken it out after the

collision and before the photograph was taken ?

A. The collision might have dragged it out; im-
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pact with the sheer of the ship that amount; unless

the pawl was on the chain it would drag it over the

break ; that may have been. I have an idea that the

anchor was dragged out of there by the impact of

that blow.

Q. Talking now about the starboard anchor of

the "West Keats"?

A. Yes, sir, where she was struck.

Q. The port anchor is also hanging out, isn't it?

A. Well, that anchor has mud on it; they have

been using that anchor to anchor the vessel recently.

Of course this could be no longer used after a col-

lision of that kind, but this one shows to have been

in the water quite recently; has mud hanging on it.

I am only judging, of course, from what it appears

there. I know nothing of the circumstances of the

collision. [211]

Q. I note. Captain, on the picture E of the

"Boston Maru," there is a large hole just about

between where the men are standing, and I under-

stood you to point to that, approximately that loca-

tion, aiid to say that you thought that the anchor

of the "West Keats" hit about there. Is that cor-

rect? A. I would think so.

Q. And you think the force of the blow went from
there aft, do you? A. Yes, I would think so.

Q. Of course it must have been from there aft,

if the vessels collided in the way you have indicated
there, mustn't it?

A. Yes, I would think that the anchor would let
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go right away and pull out of that hawse-pipe,

nothing very much to hold it.

Q. You think that it pulled the aiichor out of the

hawse-pipe, and that the anchor did this damage

from there aft on the "Boston Maru''?

A. No, I don't think that. I think the impact of

the two bodies meeting; but I think the first thing

that struck that ship was the anchor, but the impact

afterwards would roll up these plates as they are.

Q. Captain, if the vessels hit in the way you indi-

cated on the paper just now, how would you account

for the damage on the "Boston Maru" forward of

that point ?

A. I don't know. I don't know what happened

after that. I just judge that is the position they

hit in.

Q. As a matter of fact, it is a very hai'd thing to

take photographs of two colliding vessels and say

just exactly— A. Yes.

Q. —at what angle they met each other, isn't it ?

A. Yes. A good deal like X-rays; you can prove

most anything by it. [212] But of course a ship

flares and spreads out the further ba-ck she goes.

Here is the narrowest point and the ship flares out,

overhangs, so as she went along she would keep get

wider and hitting harder all the time, until it passed

the point at which the flare ceased. So it would be

very easy to do ;r lot of damage aside from what the

anchor did, as the ship went along.

Q. The "West Keats" might have pushed the

"Boston Maru" around part ways, might she

f
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A. Yes, she would, I w^ould think.

Q. How far do you think she would push her?

A. I couldn't answer that question, I don't know;

depends on how fair she struck her, and whether

the other ship was swinging at the time, or whether

she w^as going straight.

Q. If the vessels hit in the way that you indicated

on the paper just now, wouldn't the bulge of the

*'West Keats' " bow tend to damage the ^'Boston

Maru" badly from the point of contact to the stern,

but to leave the forward part of the "Boston Maru"
comparatively undamaged? ^

A. Well, it would depend on how she was swing-

ing.

Q. Don't you think, Captain, it is likely they may
have hit a little bit more at right angles than you

indicated on that paper?

A. Possibly, of course. It is easy to be mistaken

in a photograph. But that would seem to indicate

to me that that was the way it was.

Q. When a vessel swings at anchor on an upstream

tide or current, you say she tends to ride up on her

anchor chain until it is somewhat perpendicular?

A. Yes.

Q. Before she starts to swing? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose you have been on vessels riding at

anchor a good deal and have watched the way they

have swung to their chains, haven't you? [213]

A. No, a pilot just guesses a good deal of that,

approximately.
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Q. Does he more often anchor a vessel and then

leave her'?

A. If he was on the ship he wouldn't see it very

well. If he was standing on the shore he would

see it, but he wouldn't see it very often—very much,

and to be observing it closely all the time, he doesn't

do it.

Q. It isn't part of his business to do it, is it,

particularly ?

A. That depends on his individuality and his

curiosity and those kind of things. But what I

have noticed from the shore, looking particularly

in the harbor at Astoria, for instance, the ship al-

ways does about that way. Lots of ships anchor

close to the docks there.

Q. You have watched them from the docks'?

A. Yes, standing on the vessel you couldn't see

tliat, wouldn't give it very much attention; but that

is, up there, apparently what they do, from what

I have seen of them.

Q. Now, you can't tell how the anchor-chain

leads after it is in the water, can you—from the

shore ? A. No.

Q. Not very closely? A. No.

Q. If it is taut, of course I presume you can tell

pretty well which way it is leading'?

A. Yes, stretched out.

Q. But if it sags and drops fairly straight into

the water it will lead almost any direction from

there, might it not?
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A. Of course you judge by the way the tide was

when the ship was anchored. For instance, at Co-

lumbia City you are speaking about, she was an-

chored on the ebb tide, or the evidence indicates

she was; at the time of night while she would swing

around, and the weight of the ship w^ould stretch

that chain out pretty well, wouldn't stretch it out

very tight, but would stretch it out along the bottom

of the river. [214]

Q. That is way off downstream?

A. The weight pulling down, yes, before she

would be brought to stop; the chain would be pretty

well straightened out from the direction in which

the current run, by the weight of the ship.

Q. Now, as the tide started to come in wouldn't

the tide at which she commenced to swing on that

tide depend on various influences almost too small

to calculate at all, just little eddies of water strik-

ing her, and eddies of wind and the like?

A. No, I don't think on such a large vessel as

that, would have very much influence.

Q. You think any large vessel the size of the

"Boston Maru," would swing about the same way?

A. Yes, if she was loaded especially.

Q. Now, after she started to swing would she not

tend to pull out on her chain through the action

of the water acting broadside on the vessel?

A. I don't see anything that would make her pull

out; no reason why she should. It was the volume

of water going up the river in a volume or mass,

the way the tide rises; it doesn't come in little
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eddies; it just swells the river, pushes it along,

pushes against the current that naturally flows down

until it stops the flow; then it starts to push up the

river and pushes the ship along with it until she

reaches the point at which the chain which is under

her, the bight of it, stops her from going; if was

a very strong tide, of course would keep riding up

on that until perhaps began to pull the anchor;

but in a very mild light tide it could stay fairly

into a swinging ship; at high tide, or near high tide,

she would just move along until that stopped her,

and that would hold the bow in place and the stern

would swing around; nothing to stop it from doing

that—very slow.

Q. The body of water coming down the river has

a current, has it? [215] A. Yes.

Q. And when the tide starts to come in the tide

meets it coming up the river"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Doesn't that create an eddy or side current?

A. Well, if strong enough; in some places where

jetty or obstruction, maybe an eddy.

Q. You never know, do you, which way a vessel

is going to swing on her chain? A. No.

Q. Ahead of time?

A. No, governed usually by the wind; generally

would.

Q. Will she swing at that anchorage more often

towards the Oregon shore, or towards the Washmg-
ton shore ?

A. Most always towards the Washington shore.

Q. Do you know why that is?
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A. Well, I don't know. Of course

—

Q. Do you think anybody does know exactly why

it is? A. No.

Q. It is due to various changing eddies of the

water, isn't it, as one current meets another?

A. I think it is due to which direction the wind

is blowing in.

Q. More apt to be due to the wind, is it?

A. I think so.

Q. If a vessel swings broadside on her chain

—

broadside to the river or channel, that is, it will

be very hard to say just in what position her chain

is, wouldn't it, as to whether hanging directly

down, or more or less extended, one way or the

other? A. Oh, yes, would be no way to tell.

Q. You couldn't do anything but estimate a situ-

ation of that kind, could you?

A. The only way that I could say, if I were on

board the ship, I would estimate approximately

from where the anchor was to the shore, and if I saw

as she went around that she reached a point nearer

the shore than that should be, I would say she was

dragging [216] her chain toward the shore, that

is all I would know.

Q. That is the only way you could tell?

A. At night-time, it would be such a poor esti-

mate; it would hardly be worth considering.

Q. And if you were on board the ship and set

about to make such an estimate, you might expect

to find her either way, either riding directly on her
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chain, or pulling her chain out one way or another,

might you not?

A. I would think she would not—the ship would

not pull the chain toward the shore because there

would be no reason for it pulling in that direction;

one end is held stationary while the other end if

free, swings around; nothing to make it pull either

"way.

Q. But your experience does not teach you she

would not pull towards shore, does it?

A. I wouldn't.—never took such a thing into con-

sideration. I w^ould just estimate she didn't swing

—^judge she didn't swing, didn't pull that chain

out in that direction. If there was a strong wind

or some undue influence, she might do such a thing,

but just the ordinary conditions that existed at

Columbia City, I wouldn't think so.

Q. Where is the main ship channel off Columbia

City?

A. The main ship channel is anywhere between

the thirty-foot contour ; we call the main ship chan-

nel in any part of the river.

Q. At night, what is the part of the river more

commonly navigated by pilots?

A. The Oregon side.

Q. You heard the testimony Captain Gronstad

gave this morning as to the use of the Columbia

City and St. Helens range lights, in navigating

up and down the river, didn't you?

A. I don't know whether I was listening or not.

[217]
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Q. In coming down the river past Columbia City,

would you follow along first the St. Helens bar

range? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Under ordinary conditions at night?

A. Yes, sir, always.

Q. And run out that range to get this turn, and

follow the Oregon shore down and pick up the

Columbia City range? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Astern? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And continue on down the river.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where you would find other range lights be-

low? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that course would take you a great deal

closer to the Oregon bank than to the Washington

bank opposite Columbia City, would it not?

A. Yes, very much so.

Q. And that would be your ordinary method of

running that part of the river, would it?

A. Always, unless there was something to divert

me.

Q. And the ordinary anchorage at that part of

the river is considerably more towards the Wash-

ington shore, isn't it?

A. No; the ordinary anchorage is anyv\^here in

the channel where the ship will have sufficient swing

without striking her stern; considered by any pilot

to be the ordinary anchorage for a ship in the

Columbia Eiver, anywhere.

Q. Would you anchor out opposite lower Colum-

bia City range light?
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A. That is the light I usually use if I anchor there

in the night-time.

Q. You put that abeam, do you?

A. Yes, start to turn there, or use that in the

night.

Q. You have wider, deeper river a little lower

down than that? [218]

A. Well, there is nothing to mark it down below.

Q. Not marked down there?

A. No light to mark it; the other light is near

the shore, land; that light is the only thing you

have tp see; the shore line don't show at night.

Q. Now, anchoring there at night, what range

light or lights do you use?

A. No range light that I know of.

Q. Now, Captain, let me qualify that question.

I don't mean at the present time. As the pilots

know, there have been some changes made in there

in the last couple of years, notably the extension of

the St. Helens jetty. You are familiar with that,

of course? A. Yes.

Q. I am speaking of two years ago, in October,

1924.^ A. Yes.

Q. In anchoring at that place didn't you yourself

frequently make use of the red ranges i

A. I never anchored to that red range, as called.

It is not a" range at all. It is only two jetty lights

that happened to come in a row.

Q. It is not a range at all, is it?

A. Never was, never intended for a range.

Q. They just happened to come in a row?
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A. It was only at one particular point where it

could be made to range ; I never used it ; never had

the habit.

Q. You don't use that yourself for anchoring

purposes ?

A. I never anchored a ship there after it was put

in place; never had occasion to anchor it.

COURT.—How long have these red lights been

in place?

A. The red light on the lower end of St. Helens

jetty has been there a very long time. The other

one was built somewhere along that time; I would

not say positively, but somewhere about that [219]

time, the other one was built.

COURT.—About 1924?

A. Well, possibly; I don't know as to that.

COURT.—One of these pilots has been testifying

they used these range lights for anchorage— for

anchorage purposes.

A. Well, I will tell you, Judge, my knowledge of

that red range, as it is called. It is not a range at

all. It happens that two dikes, their lights happen

to come in line at a particular point.

COURT.—I know. But some of the pilots have

testified here on this hearing that in anchoring

vessels down there opposite Columbia City they

used these two red guide lights, as they call it, in-

tending to anchor in range of these lights, which go

towards the Oregon shore. Now, it is important to

know when these two red lights were put in there.

A. Well, they probably were in place at that par-
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ticular time. My knowledge of that range is this:

It seems that one of the pilots by accident dis-

covered in anchoring a ship one night down there,

W'here he was afraid the ship was going to swing

over on the Washington shore when she swung

around—noticed that these two lights come in range

at the point he was in ; when the ship swung around

she cleared the shore and he had forty feet of water

under the stern. So he told the other pilots that

when these two lights range, abreast of that fish-

trap, it is a good place to anchor; but I never

happened to anchor a ship there until after that

light w^as moved, and I don't know anything about

it, or whether it is or not. Of course moving down

the river any distance it would come oft* the range,

but at that particular spot that he described proba-

bly they would range, if he said so, but it is not a

range, though; not used as a range, or never was
intended for a range. Of course if some one has

worked [220] that out and discovered those two

will range in a certain spot in the channel, and if

\ou go out and find that spot, you can probably

anchor a ship there ; but I never had occasion to use

it, in my experience, until after moved.

Q. Do you know the name of the pilot that made
the discovery that those two lights were handy to

anchor by at night? A. Yes, quite well.

Q. Who is it? A. His name is Chase.

Q. Chase. What is his first name?
A. Harry. H. L. Harr^' L. Chase.
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Q. You believe that he was the originator of the

use of those two lights'?

A. Thai: is the first I heard of it.

Q. Did he tell you about using the lights'?

A. I don't know whether he told me directly or

whether I heard it second hand. My impression is

he told me directly.

Q. Can you remember pretty definitely what time

this was?

A. No, I couldn't; but he would. He would

have—he would have a record of it, and the ship

he had, and all about it; but I don't remember. It

is just an idea that pilots generally, if they find any-

thing that might be of value to others, that they

find themselves, they tell them, scatter the knowl-

edge around of anything that might be of im-

portance.

Q. As a matter of fact, you learn the river

through that sort of knowledge and through your

own experience, ra:ther than through blue-prints,

don't you? A. What?
Q. As a matter of fact, you learn the river

through that kind of information and through your
own experience, rather than through blue-prints,

don't you?

A. Oh, no, we use the blue-prints; grab those up
the same as you [221] would the morning paper;
we want to see them whenever they come out, right

away.

Q. How often do they get out blue-prints, the



226 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain Edward Sullivan.)

Government get out blue-prints of this psrrticular

part of the river?

A. I suppose three or four times a year these

sheets come for that place.

Q. Are these blue-prints changed three or four

times a year?

A. I tell you. The shoaling of the river is caused

by the summer freshets; immediately following the

summer freshet they go over these channels on the

range, take three or four lines of soundings, make

a drawing of it, make a blue-print, and send the

pilots copies always. Then later on if they find a

shoal that needs dredging they send the dredger

there ; after the dredging is completed another chart

is made, a little jnore extended, and the pilot gets a

copy of that. Then later on they make a finished

chart like this; this is a finished chart, taking in

the shore line and all of the objects found there,

with the distance properly spaced; the other pilots'

blue-prints are only field-notes, the rough sketch;

this is the finished chart, this is the last thing we get.

Q. These pilots—as a pilot you go up and down
the river from time to time and see that work going-

on, don't you? A. x\ll the time.

Q. And you know what they are dredging and
where they are dredging?

A. Yes; of course we couldn't tell just where

began, because we might not happen to be tliere at

that period; but approximately that time.

Q. And so you know about what to expect wlicii

the blue-print comes out, don't you .^
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A. Pretty near.

Q. Now, they are continually adding new lights

to the river, aren't they? [222]

A. By these dikes they are ; wherever they put a
dike they put a light.

Q. And they add ranges from time to time?
A. Unfortunately, no.

Q. When you started piloting on the river there
weren't many lights?

A. Yes, quite a number more than there was when
I started; but unfortunately they come very slow,
and very seldom new ones.

Q. You take the position of these lights by wai^ch-
ing them put in, rather than by waiting for the blue-
prints to bring them to you, that is, new lights?

A. Yes, and very often the pilots have something
to say about their being put in.

Q. About where they go? A. Suggest it.

Q. Now, when you come in the river by Columbia
City there is a place where you can put the court-
house at St. Helens just a little open from the high
bank at Lmnont Point, isn't there?
A. Well, now, that is some pilot figured that out

the same as they did this range. I never use such
a thing as that. I have heard they used it, but Idon t think I ever used it.

Q When you are anchoring a vessel, Captain,how far out do you put her?
A. I just judge the distance on the shore line
t^. buppose you can't see the shore line?
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A. In the night-time by light, and in the daytime

by shore line.

Q. Just make a guess at it, the distance?

A. Make a guess at it.

Q. How far out do you try to get?

A. So the ship won't hit the bank when it swings

around.

Q. Which, the Washington or the Oregon bank?

A. Well, the Washington bank is obstructed by

being no bank there [223] practically, shoal

water; and the Oregon bank of course is perpen-

dicular bank, and at night has a light on it; so that

is the way I judge.

Q. In trying to anchor your vessel so she won't

swing and hit the bank, which bank do you mean,

either one?

A. Both banks. One bank I can see it, and the

other one I have to guess.

Q. How much deep water—what width of deep

water do you have at that place ?

A. I am ashamed to acknowledge that fact, but

I don't know.

Q. Do you realize. Captain, that you have got

enough room to anchor a vessel so she will swing

clear of both banks by some hundreds of feet ?

A. Yes, I think there is quite a lot of room there.

Q, So she can swing clear around on her anchor

chain and not come anywhere near either the Wash-

ington or the Oregon bank? A. Yes, I think so.

Q. And b\- bank we iwv referring not to the line

of the river

—
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A. Where she would not touch bottom.

Q. To the deep water line, the thirty-foot line.

A. Yes.

Q. Just measure on the chart with the dividers,

and see what width of deep w^ater you have at that

place, opposite the lower Columbia City light, where

you say you anchor?

A. Well, at the point where this ship is repre-

sented as being anchored here abreast of this light,

there is fifteen hundred feet between the contours

on the Oregon and Washington side—twelve hun-

dred and fifty feet.

Mr. McCAMANT.—That is a correction of your

previous figure of fifteen hundred"? A. Yes, sir.

[224]

Q. Measuring that twelve hundred and fifty feet,

Captain, you have measured now from a point on

the thirty-foot contour line directly opposite Colum-

bia City front range light, F. W., over to a point on

this so-called shoal, where the thirty-foot contour

line there is shown, have you not"? A. Yes.

Q. And you have not measured over to where the

thirty-foot contour line opposite the Washington

bank is shown, have you? A. No.

Q. Now, if you measured that distance over to

where the thirty-foot contour line opposite the

Washington bank is shown—please make that mea-

surement and say what that distance would be.

A. Well, it would hardly be fair to take the bend

;

take it from this point.
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Q. Take it from opposite the Columbia City front

range light, Captain. That is where you say you

anchored. That is about sixteen hundred feet.

Q. Now, Captain, do you recall anchoring any

vessels off Columbia City at about the time of this

collision there October, 1924, or shortly before, or

shortly after, that time ? A. Did I ?

Q. Do you recall anchoring any vessels there?

A. No, I don't.

Q. When did you last use that anchorage ground,

do you remember?

A. It seems to me it was a long time prior to that

;

I don't recall.

Q. They don't use that anchorage ground there so

much now as they used to, do they ?

A. Well, probably occasion doesn't require it.

Q. There doesn't seem to be so much demand for

anchorage at the present time ?

A. Well, one reason is, the Columbia City mill is

shut down. [225] And that was a shoal place, and

a great many ships that went there had to go out in

the stream to complete their cargo.

Q. They towed rafts out there and loaded them

from the stream, did they? A. Rafts and barges.

Q. They don't do that so much now?

A. No, the mill is shut down.

Q. You don't remember anchoring a vessel there

for quite a while prior to October, 1924?

A. No, I don't.

Q. How long prior, would you say?
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A. I really don't know; have no way of esti-

mating; don't recall any circumstances.

Q'. Be several months, or a year, or two years'?

A. Might have been a year or six months, or

more. I don't remember.

Q. Did you ever hear of a vessel going aground

while at anchor, and swing on her chain, on that part

that has been referred to as the shoal, in which the

twenty-five foot sounding is placed in the center?

A. Never did.

Q. You knew, as a matter of fact, didn't you,

Captain, that pilots in using that anchorage ground

ordinarily anchor pretty well out from the Oregon

side so as not to interfere with the ship channel,

don't you?

A. Yes, the general idea would be to try to not

interfere with it, I suppose.

Q. What is it? Did you intend to say more?

A. I say, due regard would always have to be

made for the safety of a ship, regardless of what the

other fellow would do.

Q. But they try to keep out and keep away from

the channel, don't they?

A. Generally so, I think.

Q. They try to anchor so as not to impair the

ordinary use of [226] these range lights, don't

they?

A. Well, the range lights are not impaired by that

ship at all.

Mr. McCAMANT.—Referring to the "Boston

Maru."
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Q. I am not asking you about that ship now,

Captain. Isn't it a fact that the pilots in anchor-

ing at that anchorage ground try to keep out from

the range lights so as not to impair their use?

A. They would have to anchor so far below the

range, so they would not impair the use of it.

Q. What do you mean, down the river from

there? A. Yes.

Q. Down the river from the Columbia City front

light?

A. Yes. A pilot, I don't think, would consider

it safe to anchor a ship far enough upstream so that

would impair the use of that cross range.

Q. There is plenty of deep water down below

there, isn't there?

A. Long ways below, half a mile there where the

ship could be anchored; would be another range,

though; if a ship was anchored too far down would

impair the use of that Columbia City range.

Q. It would have to be half a mile, or a mile,

down ?

A. No, not necessarily; half a mile perhaps.

Q. Perhaps half a mile. Now, if a vessel is an-

chored just a short distance below that front

Columbia City range light, and fifteen hundred feet

out from the Oregon shore, it would be in a safe an-

chorage, wouldn't it?

A. Yes, it would be according to this chart; it

would be a safe anchorage.

Q. And according to your knowledge of the river
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too, isn't it, Captain? Wouldn't you feel safe in

anchoring a big ship there ?

A. I wouldn't feel safe anchoring there at night-

time.

Q. Where would you anchor at night-time ?

A. I would just go out a certain distance from one

of these [227] lights, that lower light that

showed, and drop the anchor out far enough so she

would be perfectly free from swinging to that shore

;

then I would know she would not hit either shore.

Q. You have better waler a little below that

Columbia City light, haven't you?

A. Yes; but as I said before, there is nothing on

the shore to indicate where that shore line is, so

then you have nothing to go by ; if both shores were

obstructed there would be nothing to go by, so this

light would be used, because that is a visible shore,

part of the shore line, and the only visible thing-

there is around there.

Q. If both shores were obstructed it would be

easier to use the red lights, or else put Point Lamont
on the courthouse, wouldn't it?

A. Well, I never used either one, as I said before.

Recess until two o'clock. [228]

Wednesday, October 27, 1926, 2 P. M.

Captain EDWARD SULLIVAN resumes the

stand.

Cross-examination Continued.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Judge McCamant asked you a long hypothetical
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question, Captain Sullivan, which elicited an answer

from you to the effect thart the two vessels came

together in the manner described by you on the

paper this morning, and that question you may re-

member had two branches to it. In the one—as to

one branch, you were invited to examine photo-

graphs that were handed you, two photographs, and

as to the other, you were told a lot of ^ta!tements

appearing in the evidence as to the manner in which

the "West Keats" was navigated. I understand

that in answering that question you had considera-

tion only for the photographs, didn 't you ?

A. Yes; I don't recarll exactly the question as it

was put, now.

Q. As I remember your answer, you said, judgino-

by these photographs, you placed it in some such

way as that, and gave me the impression you had

in mind the photographs only. But I want to make

sure of that.

A. I haven't any wish to criticise the frction of

the pilot, because he did what he thought was best,

and he was there on the ground ; I was not ; I could

only judge by the evidence as given l)y the photo-

graphs.

Q. I didn't understand it to be a criticism of the

pilot, but I just wanted to make sure whethei- you

based your answer solely on the photographs, or

piTrtly on the course of navigation of the "West
Keats," as described to you by Mr. McCamant.

A. I can't recall just now the question as it was
put. I wouldn't like to go into it again unless 1 had
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it repeated. I might [229] commit myself to

something I had no intention of doing.

Q. You made one statement, Captain, I think was

possibly a mistake. As I understood it, however,

you said that the "West Keats" could have turned

at a distance of a thousand feet, and passed on the

Washington side; but I am not at all sure that I

understood you correctly, and I don 't hardly believe

you meant that statement in that way. What did

you understand—was that the intention of the an-

swer that I referred to, or did you have some other

meaning in mind ?

A. The way I understood the question was this:

Assuming that the ship, the "West Keats," was
headed possibly directly towards the other ship

laying across the channel, as I understood he asked
the question, at what distance away would I think

he should be from the Japanese steamer that he
could divert his course to go on the other side of
that ship, aiid I gave the answer about a thousand
feet, I thought.

Q. Did you have in mind at that answer the
"Boston Maru" lying at right angles to the course
of the "West Keats," or some other way?
A. That is the way I understood the evidence

gave it, and the diagram on the chart showed the
ship lying at right angles to the course of the
current and the channel.

Q. So you had in mind the "Boston Maru" lying
at right angles to the course of the "West Keats"?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you further have in mind the length of

the "Boston Maru," four hundred feet?

A. Of course I have in mind how long a ship is,

any ship, the average of them. I am familiar with

those things.

Q. Did you further have in mind the fact that

that "Boston Maru" was anchored, and that the

"West Keats" would have had to pass around the

bow of the
'

' Boston Maru '

' ? [230]

A. Well, my answer was intended to convey that

she could pass either side, if she had a distance of

a thousand feet, going at full speed and headed

towards the ship.

Q. Headed towards what part of the ship?

A. Well, I wouldn't know what ])art she was

headed to; I assumed she was headed toward the

ship, even supposed she was headed at the middle

of it.

Q. You were assuming she was headed midships,

were you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then if she was headed for the stern of the

"Boston Maru" you would not say that the "West
Keats" could pass around the bow of the "Boston
Maru," not changing its course until it arrived at

a point a thousand feet from the "Boston Maru,"
would you?

A. I don't see any reason why she couldn't, even
at that; depends on how she was steering, what slie

had been steering, how the rudder was, and different

conditions that might arise, which would be known
only to those who were naviprting the ship. As-
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suming' that she was steering in a straight line, I

don't see any reason why she couldn't be diverted

at a thousand feet.

Q. You may assume she was steering well, answer-

ing her helm as well as can be expected from that

type of ship, and the steering gear in good order;

and you should further assume she was fully loaded,

full cargo aboard: you may also assume that the

water was slack. Now, let's look at this chart,

''West Keats" Exhibit 1, again, Captain. Did you

have in mind the degree of sharpness of the curve

that the "West Keats'' would have to make in order

to pass the bow of the ''Boston Maru" at a thousand

feet ? A. Well, hvcve some idea of it.

Q. I hand you a tracing here, and ask you to

superimpose that upon the blue-print by you, so that

the lines of the tracing, if they will do so, correspond

with the same lines on the blue-print. [231] I

have tried this, and have to infonn you that the

location of the "Boston Maru" does not exactly

correspond with the location on the blue-print,

through a mistake at the time the tracing was made.

It is now placed so that the other lines of the tracing

are supposedly on the same lines of the blue-print.

Will you now examine the curve to be made, if the

turn is to be made at a thousand feet, and advise

me where that leads on the opposite side of the

river,—opposite shore.

A. Well, you are only assimiing that this ship

was doing this. Was she doing that ? Was she on

this line heading for the stern of the ship when he
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discovered that there was not room enough in there

for him, and was he doing this? That is only an

assumed position.

Q. I am asking you to make the assumption,

Captain, that the "West Keats" at the time—I am
asking you to make this assumption : That suddenly

or otherwise the pilot of the "West Keats" might

decide that it would be impossible to run between

the Oregon shore and the "Boston Maru"—decided

to turn over to the Washington shore, and he makes

that decision when the vessel is a thousand feet

from the "Boston Maru." I am asking you to

make that assumption, and I am asking you further

to assume he is heading at right angle to the posi-

tion of the "Boston Maru," snid approxiimateh^ to

the stern of the "Boston Maru."

A. You are asking me to assume a whole lot. Is

that the truth? If it were true, and can be proven

to be true—but I am not assuming to dictate what

course this man would pursue; whether he was

steering straight with the intention of going around

the stern of the ship, aiid whether he would suddenly

have to change his mind and go the other way, or

whether knowing the ship was there, he was expect-

ing to go on that side.

Q. You understand. Captain, that this Court is

now trying to [232] get at the truth of this

matter, and in doing so it hears conflicting testi-

mony, the testimony offered by both sides, and I

can say to you there is no testimony and will be no

testimony that tlie ])il()t of the "West Keats" ever
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tried to pass on the Washington side of the "Boston

Maru." The testimony is all the other way, that

he attempted to pass on the Oregon side, thinking

he could do it. There is testimony he thought so

until right up to very close to the time of the col-

lision. But I am asking you now—you have stated

that he could have turned out a" thousand feet to

pass on the Washington side'?

A. Well, but there was no assumption on my part

as to what position he was in when he would have

to make that.

Q. Would you make that same statement if you

made also the assumption that he was in the posi-

tion shown on this tracing I

A. Well, I am making the assumption that a pilot

would come down the channel and make a turn down

this place the same as I have done myself a great

many times, aiid the same as any other pilot does it.

Q. What do you mean, make a turn at this place ?

A. From St. Helens range down a course along

the shore. I don't think under the circumstances

I am obligated on my part to make any such draw-

ing as this—to make any such assumption.

Q. Captain, you made the statement that the

"West Keats" at a thousand feet could have turned

and passed the Washington side?

A. I assume that he came down the channel in

the regulai' way, and turned this course in the regu-

lar way, and that this ship was lying and proved

to be in a position up close, too close to the Oregon

shore, to permit his passing; he wouldn't be head-
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ing for the stern of the ship if she was that close

when he made this turn. He would have turned

out on this range [233] in the regular way, and

probably be heading more for the center of the ship,

I would think. Of course we have to assume that

the pilot on the ship is a pilot and knows what he

is doing, and he wouldn't put himself in a position

of that kind without finding any way of getting out

of it.

Q. If a ship were broadside to your ship, Cap-

tain, and you were piloting the vessel, the "West

Keats," do you meaii to say that you would run

right for the center of that vessel ahead of you at

a distance of a thousand feet?

A. If she was in the position as described in this

chart, as shown here, as was supposed to be, that

is about the position thart the ship would be headed

that is coming down the channel and turning in the

usual way; would be heading about for the middle

of the ship.

(Question read.)

A. I said that I would need at least a thousand

feet if I were headed in that position, sufficient to

make the turn the other side of the ship.

Q. If you were headed toward the center of the

ship ahead of you, you would want a thousand feet

to turn around, at least a thousand feet?

A. Yes, to make a safe turn.

Q. But you would not be headed for the center

of the ship, would you, Captirin, if you knew was

the center of the ship, could see her lights?
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A. Would be headed down the channel. It would

be up to the pilot—if he knew^ the ship was there,

and he knew it was a ship there, and he knew she

was lying across the stream, before he got in that

position, why it would be up to him to determine

what to do. I would not determine for him what

to do from my point of view. I don't know any-

thing about what he done, or [234] whai: he found

when he got there, but I assume he is a pilot, acting

as a pilot does.

Q. Well, I can tell you. Captain, that the assump-

tion that you make, that he was heading squarely

for the center of that vessel is not supported by the

evidence in this case; but the evidence in the case,

on the other hand, without contradiction, as far as

I can recall—I am sure without contradiction, sup-

ports the assumption that he was headed about for

the stern, a little outside the stern of the "Boston
Maru. '

'

Mr. McCAMANT.—I dispute that conclusion.

COURT.—When was he so headed?

Mr. SNOW.—At a distance of a thousand feet.

The only evidence on that point is by Captain Berry
himself.

A. Well, I didn't have that evidence in mind
when I answered the question. I knew nothing
about the evidence; I didn't listen to it, and never
read it, and I know nothing about it. I was merely
asked a question as a pilot, and I assumed that the
pilot who was handling the ship would know all

about the situation as he came to it.
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Q. As a matter of fact, if the "West Keais" were

headed at or a little off the stern of the "Boston

Maru," and the "Boston Maru" was approximately

at right angles to the course of the "West Keats,"

and the distance between the two vessels was a

thousand feet, and the night was dark, the pilot of

the "West Keats" would need a little more than a

thousand feet to make that turn, wouldn't he?

A. Well, I don't know; it would depend on how
he was steering when he reached that decision;

whether he was swinging one wav^ or the other; just

how the ship was steering, or how he was steering

it; what he had in mind. [235]

Q. Suppose he was going perfectly straight, and
this ship was not swinging one way or the other

when he reached that decision. Wouldn't he need

more than a thousand feet to clear her bow safely

and not run ashore on the Washington side?

A. Well, I would think he would be rather foolish

to get in such a position as that.

Q. I think you are right. Captain. He would not

let himself get in that position where he would have
to make a turn of that kind, would he?

A. I wouldn't think so.

Q. And he would not attempt a turn of that kind,

would he, except under very extreme circumstances.
Isn't that correct? A. I would not think so.

Q. That is too short a turn, isn't it?

A. Why, such a thing could be done to avoid the
shij).
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Q. Suppose you were going to undertake a turn

of that kind, Captain, what orders would you give to

bring it about ?

A. Well, I wouldn't answer such a question. I

wouldn't put myself in such a position unless I was

there handling the ship.

Q. I think that is a fair question. Captain, to ask

what order would you give to bring about a turn

of that kind.

A. No, it is not a fair question, because you would

have to assume the pilot would use some intelligence

about getting into such a position as that; I can

understand it might be so in handling an automobile,

but a ship

—

Q. Captain, you would not have a reputation as a
conservative and skillful pilot for a period of forty

years here, if you allowed yourself to get in a posi-

tion like that. But suppose you were put in a

position of that kind, without any fault of yours,
that is, you were headed towards the stern of a ship

[236] lying crosswise to your course, and a thou-
sand feet distance, and you had to turn around her
bow, what order would you give to do that ?

A. I wouldn't undertake to answer your question.

Q. Can it be done?

A. Well, I would think it could be done; yes.

Q. How could it be done?

A. Well, of course if the ship—it was necessary—
you were in a jack pot like that, and it would be
necessary to swing the ship, you would put her hard
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aport and take the consequences, what happened to

her, after you got by.

Q. If you put her engines full speed astern you

would get a little help from that, wouldn't you?

A. Somewhat, I judge, in going at full speed ; but

I think in such a dangerous position as that I would

not be running full speed.

Q. That would be a very sharp, dangerous

maneuver, would it not, Captain ?

A. Not necessarily dangerous, but as far as the

Japanese steamer was concerned, that would be

the very thing you would look after ; what happened

after that; wouldn't be as expensive as it would be

hitting that ship.

Q. Now, the blue-print or tracing which has been

superimposed on the blue-print by you, shows ap-

proximately, does it not, the character of the curve

you would have to make in order to turn at a thou-

sand feet, to pass a ship under those conditions?

A. Well, now I don't know, I haven't measured

such a thing. I think you are putting me in a posi-

tion that I don't—I haven't really put myself in

such a trap as that by any question I answered, and

it would depend so much on how the ship had been

[237] steering, and how he came to get in such a

position as that.

Q. Well, Captain, you made the statement that

the "West Keats" could have turned out a thousand

feet, and I am only testing it out to find out exactly

what you meant by that.

A. Well, in this question there was nothing said
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about her position before the turn was to be made,

was there *?

A. Yes, she was headed straight for or imme-

diately off the stern of the "Boston Maru," and

going straight ahead with her helm steady.

A. I don't recall.

Mr. McCAMANT.—That is your question, not

mine.

Q. Yes, that is my question, not Judge Mc-

Camant's, that is true. You would not undertake

to show that the curve shown in the tracing, com-

mencing at a point a thousand feet from the outline

of the "Boston Maru,' would be approximately the

curve that would have to be followed by a ship?

A. No, I don't know as to that.

Q. You would not express your opinion as to

that? A. No.

Mr. SNOW.—I would like to have the tracing

marked for identification.

(Marked "West Keats" Identification No. 2.)

Q. When you place a ship at anchor. Captain,

off Columbia City, you have in general two loca-

tions to make; you have to locate yourself up and

down the river, don't you. Captain—tell how far

you are up and down the river, and how far you are

from shore to shore, what position shore to shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you make use of that lower Columbia

City range light, front light, in order to determine

your position up and down stream, don't you?

A. Yes, sir.



246 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain Edward Sullivan.)

Q. And you don 't use any light or any other land-

mark to determine [238] your position across the

river? A. No.

Q. And I believe you said that you didn't anchor

a vessel in that position for as much as a year be-

fore October, 1924?

A. I said that I don't recall.

Q. And that you never used the red range?

A. Never did.

Q. If it should appear now that the red range

was in existence for a period of more than a year,

for a period of a year and a half prior to October,

1924, would that refresh your recollection as to

whether you ever anchored at that point, or ever

made any possible use of it?

A. I am quite sure I did not, regardless of what

period of time it was there.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Mr. McCAMANT.—We offer in evidence the

diagram made by the witness with reference to the

manner in which the ships may have come together.

(Marked "Boston Maru's" Exhibit "M.")

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, in anchoring vessels in the Willamette

and Columbia Rivei*s between Portland and Astoriji,

what is necessary with reference to the fair\va\' ?

A. Why, where the ship would safely lay up to

anchor, swing without going aground.

Q. Is it possible to find that kind of a place except

by anchoring in the fairway, ordinarily i



Kokusai Risen Kalmshiki Kaisha. 247

(Testimony of Captain Edward Sullivan.)

A. I don't know of any such place; might be

possible at Longview, a ship could get out of the

fairway, or at Quinns.

Q. Except in those two places do you know of any

place between Portland and Astoria where a vessel

can anchor except to anchor [239] in the fair-

way? A. I do not.

Mr. SNOW.—What do you regard as fairway?

A. Any place between the thirty-foot contours of

a channel.

Witness excused. [240]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN MICHAEL
MORAN, FOR THE "BOSTON MARU."

Captain MICHAEL MORAN, a witness called

in behalf of the "Boston Maru," being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, you are a Columbia River pilot?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have been for how long ?

A. Fifteen years.

Q. And you hold state and Government license?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And have for that period of time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And during that fifteen years has it been your
occupation to pilot vessels up and down the Wil-
lamette and Columbia Rivers? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And are you familiar with the channel?

A. Well, fairly; yes.

Q. I will ask you whether or not you piloted a

vessel either up or down the Columbia River on the

night of October 25, 1924?

A. I believe I went down the river that night.

Q. With what vessel? A. "Georgina Rolph."

Q, "Georgina Rolph"? A. Yes.

Q. And did you pass the "Boston Maru" while

she lay at amchor off Columbia City? A. Yes.

Q. On which side of her did you pass ?

A. I went on the Washington side.

Q, About what hour was that, Captain?

A. I should say I left here about nine o 'clock, and

it takes about three hours to get down there with

that ship ; that would be about midnight.

Q. About midnight?

A. Proba-bly about midnight.

Q. Did you have any difficulty getting by on the

Washington side? [241] A. No, sir.

Q. How far above the anchorage place of the

"Boston Maru" did you observe the "Boston
Maru"?

A. Well, after I made the turn, when I was
making the turn, rather, coming down on the

(Columbia City ranges, on the St. Helens range,
rather, red and white range.

Q. At the time you came off the St. Helens range
was that when you observed the "Boston IMaru" ?

A. Yes.

Q. Were her anchor lights buniiuir?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. The "Greorgina Roth" is how large a ship?

A. I think she is about twenty-five hundred ton

ship. That is her deadweight tonnage, I guess;

would be around three thousand tons.

Q. Was she loaded at this time? A. Yes.

Q. What was her draft?

A. About twenty-three feet.

Q. What speed was she going?

A. Made about nine, I think, nine knots; from
nine to ten.

Q. About how farr off the ''Boston Maru" did you
pass her?

A. Oh, probably three or four hundred feet.

Q. Three or four hundred feet toward the Wash-
ington shore?

A. As near as I can remember; just a good
clearance.

Q. What do you understand to be the channel in

the Columbia River?

A. The channel in some places is from three to
five hundred feet wide.

Q. When you speak of the channel, what do you
understand by the word "channel"?

A. I understand it is just the ship's channel, that
IS what X go by; in some places from three to five
hundred feet wide; up here where we are talking-
about considerably wider. [242]

Q. Considerably wider at the point of this col-
lision?
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A. Yes, twelve or thirteen hundred feet, fifteen

hundred feet, there.

Qi. You consider that the channel is at least the

extent of the thirty-foot contour?

A. Well, now, it is; yes.

Q. Captain Moran, will you explain to the Court

what the effect of a flood tide is on a vessel lying

at anchor in the Columbia River?

A. That depends a good deal on the tidewater

thai is running down, fresh water; depends—this

is the time of the year we have considerable flood,

and the size of the tide depends a good deal on

whether new moon tide, or flood and ebb tide.

Q. If you anchor a vessel when the tide is going

out and put out thirty fathom of chain off Columbia

City, what is the effect on that vessel when the flood

tide comes in, at this time of the year, October?

A. She will nai;urally swing to her anchor when

it gets strong enough to do so.

Q. How would she swing? Will she ride her

anchor, or will she swing with the anchor as a

pivot ?

A. If no wind probably will float up right over

the anchor.

Q. Assuming that the wind is negligible, you

think will float up right over her anchor?

A. Yes, if calm, no wind.

Q. After she has come up over her anchor will

she swing?

A. Well, as soon as a strain comes on the chain

she will, yes.
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Q. And she will swing on what radius of an arc?

A. Just about the length of herself, I guess.

Q. Just about the length of herself?

A. If there is no wind, and the chain is not

stretched out. [243]

Q. I call your attention to a photograph of the

"West Keats," in evidence as "Boston Maru's"

Exhibit "H," and a photograph of the "Boston

Maru," in evidence as "Boston Maru's" Exhibit

"D," appearing to show the place at which these

two vessels collided, and I call your attention to

the fact that the evidence shows that the "West
Keats" collided at her hawse-pipe some few feet

back of the bow, on the starboard side of the "West
Keats." You knew from your own observation

the place where the "Boston Maru" was anchored

in the Columbia River on that night, and I will ask

you what the point of contact of these two vessels

indicates with reference to whether or not the "Bos-

ton Maru" was lying directly athwart the channel,

and whether or not the "West Keats" was proceed-

ing parallel with the Oregon shore?

A. That I couldn't tell; I wouldn't say how she

was, because I didn't see her when she was lying

up and down stream. The "Boston Maru" was

right in the ebb tide when I passed her bow. Fur-

ther than that—if she was lying across the channel,

of course I didn't see it.

Q. And you would not attempt to testify from

the photograph?
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A. No, sir, I don't think so. All it shows here

is the damage.

Q. What is that?

A. Just shows the damage done to her starboard

hawse-pipe here, and forward.

Q. One thing more about the swinging of a ves-

sel, Captarin Moran; in the absence of a wind can

you tell in advance which way a vessel is going to

swing when 3^ou anchor her in the Columbia River?

A. Well, some places you can, and some places

3^ou can't. I couldn't there, I don't think.

Q. Couldn't tell at Columbigc City? [244]

A. Not exactly, I don't think. Just as likely to

swing her towards the Washington shore with her

stern, as towards the Oregon shore. Some places

you have an idea, and she may not act just exactly

the way you think she will there.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
The "Georgina Roth" is two hundred and forty-

five feet long, isn't she?

A. I don't exa'ctly know; she is somewhere round

there.

Q. And two thousand tons gross ?

A. I guess she is probably very near.

Q|. How much water did you say she drew?

A. About twenty-three feet loaded; twenty-three

to twenty-four.

Q. What was the state of the tide when you

passed the ''Boston Maru"?
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A. It was the last of the ebb tide, as near as I

can remember.

Q. You are sure it was not almost flood tide?

A. No, she was lying—all I had to judge by, was

ebbing on the "Boston Maru" at the time I passed

her by ; the tide was still running down.

Q. Was a current there still, was there?

A. Yes, was a little bit.

Q. That current would continue for some time

after the tide started to flood, wouldn't it?

A. After low water on the tide ebb, would prob-

ably run down an hour or so afterwards; depends

a good deal on the amount of fresh water coming

down.

Q. Wouldn't be a reverse current at the place in

question, except the last couple of hours flood tide.

Is that right?

A. I think that is about right; that is about the

way it runs. [245]

Q. Sometimes not any there at all?

A. In the summer time no flood tide.

Q. You had plenty of water to pass on the Wash-

ington side, did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you leave the St. Helens bar, do

you remember?

A. I left about after we turned off the St. Helens

range.

Q. I asked you when you left St. Helens bar

range, and you meant to say that you left it after

you left behind you the end of the jetty?

A. No, not quite. I go over there quite a ways,
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probably eight hundred or a thousand feet further
from the end of the jetty.

Q. You think you left the St. Helens bar range
approximately a thousand feet below the end of the
jetty?

A. Yes, about that, probably. Ma^^be more. I
can't say.

Q. Did you use the so-called red range ; did you
pick that up astern as you went down? A. No.

Q. You went without the aid of ranges, then, un-
til you got clear below some place

—

A. I just used the St. Helens range
;
got no par-

ticular place of turning after I get a little ways
over from the end of the jetty; I tuni anywhere I
think I have room there.

Q. But you leave St. Helens range?
A. Yes, after get abreast Columbia City mill;

thcTt is generally what I use; that is the Western
Spar mill, I guess that is what they call that lumber
company.

Q. The Western Spar dock, where the lights are i

A. Yes, sir; when get abreast of that I haul down
to go down the river; I change my course there off

the St. Helens range, to go down the river there.

Q. That is more than a thousamd feet below the

end of the St. [246] Helens jetty, isn't it?

A. The dock is, yes, quite a little ways over;

probably two thousand feet over; about half-way

between the end of the jetty and that mill.

Q. The ''Boston Maru," when you passed her
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was lying straight up and down the strearm, was

she? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you testify that you made out the

lights of the "Boston Maru"?
A. Well, after I started to turn coming down

the river; after I started to turn off St. Helens

range I saw her lights down there.

Q. What kind of lights did she have, bright

lights, or not very light ?

A. They were bright lights, same as average an-

chor lights.

Q. Same as average anchor lights^

A. Yes, bright enough for me to see.

Q. So you made up your mind then to go down

nearer the Washington side than the Oregon side,

before you saw the ''Boston Maru," did you?

A. No, I didn't. I don't know as I did; but it

seemed to me I had more room on the Washington

side. That is what brought me out there.

Q. If you had had a deep draft vessel w'ould you

have kept in a little closer to the Oregon side, set-

ting aside the "Boston Maru"?

A. No, I don't think I would; I w^ould have

went down about the same.

Q. With a vessel anchored at the anchorage

ground, off of Columbia City range light, would you

ordinarily pass on the Oregon side of such a vessel,

or on the AVashington side?

A. That depends on where she was anchored, the

position she [247] would be in, w^hat side I would

pass on. If I thought closer to the Oregon shore,
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and I had more room on the Washington shore,

would naturally pass on the Washington shore. If

she wa^ anchored out there about as customary to

anchor, I would pass on the Oregon shore, in a case

of that kind.

Q. The customary place is over to the Oregon

shore ?

A. Mostly we generally anchor out there.

Q. You have anchored vessels there yourself, have

you? A. Yes, to load, finish loading.

Q'. Do you use the red range to anchor, or did

you at thart time?

A. I never used the red range; what I generally

used to use was the courthouse at St. Helens, and

Lamont Point. I kept that open a couple of hun-

dred feet. That would leave me five or six hundred

feet out, or probably more, than where the "Boston

Maru" was anchored. I couldn't rightly say what

distance it would be, but it would be five or six hun-

dred feet further out.

Q. Five or six hundred feet further out towards

the Washington shore than where the "Boston

Maru" was on that night? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you would find that place by using La-

mont Point and the courthouse?

A. And the courthouse, yes, and abreast of the

front range light coming down off the CohiinbijT

City range, as we call it.

Q. Do you sometimes anclior a little below that ?

A. No, not if I could help myself. Depends on

what I am going to anchor for. If I was going to
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anchor for a short time I wouldn't be very particu-

lar about where I was anchored.

Q. And you saw the lights of the '' Boston Maru"
on this occasion? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Just after you turned off the St. Helens

range? [248]

A. Yes, and I think I seen them before ; I believe

I seen them before I turned.

Q. I mean to make them out as a vessel at anchor.

You may have seen them before but didn't know

what they were.

A. Not much difficulty in making out anchor

lights as long as they are bright; the forward light

stands up way up higher than the after light, sev-

eral feet.

Q. The customary ship channel at that point is

on the Oregon side of the anchorage ground, is it

not?

A. Well, if you are going to anchor ship there to

take cargo, it is, yes. If you are only going to an-

chor there for a few hours, a man generally doesn't

figure on anything coming along there sometimes,

and he will drop his anchor anywhere, because a

man can get either side if he is in the middle.

Q. I don't think you understood my question.

A. I undeistand it thoroughly.

Q. I say, the customary ship channel at that

point is on the Oregon side of the customary an-

chorage ground, isn't it?

A. Well, it is, yes, rather on the Oregon side.

Q. When a vessel swings on her anchor, with a
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rising tide in the Columbia River, it is difficult, if

not impossible, isn't it, to say in advance, or know

in advance, which way she is going to swing?

A. I think it is; she is just as liable to swing one

way as the other, if there is no influence of wind

or an}i:hing on her.

Q. And it is difficult, if not impossible, to tell

whether she is going to pull on her anchor chain,

isn't it?

A. Well, don't know much about that, you know;

as long as no wind or anything, she doesn't pull

very much on the anchor chain, just enough to

swing her; doesn't take very much to [249]

swing a vessel one way or another.

Q. Possible for the current to carry her out, so

will pull on the anchor chain one way or another,

isn't it?

A. Yes, she will be going according to the cur-

rent.

Witness excused. [250]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN JULIUS ALLYN,
FOR THE "BOSTON MARU."

Captain JULIUS ALLYN, a witness called on

behalf of the "Boston Maru," being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain Allyn, what is your occupation?

A. River pilot.
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Mr. SNOW.—Admit the captain's qualifications,

and admit one of the Columbia River Pilots Asso-

ciation. You belong to the Association, Captain?

A. Yes, that is the Columbia River Pilots.

Q. How many years have you been piloting on

the Willamette and Columbia Rivers, Captain'?

A. About twenty years.

Q. I will call your attention to "West Keats"

Exhibit No. 1, being a blue-print of a chart of the

Columbia River, and I direct your attention par-

ticularly to a point near the lower end of the chart,

where is designated the place at which the "Boston

Maru" was anchored on the night of the collision,

with which we are concerned in this case, and I will

ask you how that vessel lies with reference to the

usual anchorage ground, usual place where vessels

anchor in that part of the river.

A. Well, from the position I should judge she

was over near the place where I would anchor a

vessel on a dark night. It is as near as I can de-

termine by looking at this chart.

Q. Is it possible in anchoring a vessel on a dark

night to fix with accuracy the place where you are

anchoring *? A. It is not, no; it can's be done.

Q. Is it desirable to have a light on the bank near

the place where you anchor?

A. Oh, yes, to determine somewheres about your

position. The method I have always been using

here would be to put, say, [251] this lower Co-

lumbia City range, put it right abreast of the

bridge of the vessel, and then get the bearings of
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the bow and stern. That way you detemiine

within a few feet—that is, I would say a couple of

hundred feet where your position was off the rear

light.

Q. And if you attempt—suppose you attempt to

anchor three or four hundred feet down the river,

what difficulty if any, w^ould you have?

A. Well, you would have no accurate bearing as

to just your position. That is why we always try

to select a light when we anchor, if it is possible.

Q. Now, I wish you would tell the Court, Cap-

tain, what the effect of the flood tide is on a vessel

at anchor at that place in the Columbia River.

Suppose your vessel anchors at ebb tide at that

point, can the pilot tell on which side of the river

—which way the vessel will swing when the flood

tide comes in? A. No, he cannot.

Q. How will the flood tide affect his vessel with

reference to the anchor chain, suppose there are

three hundred fathoms of anchor chain out?

A. Well, from observation I have noticed vessels

at anchor, that when flood tide comes, the water

comes up and slacks up the chain until it swings

around, then it tightens the chain again, just the

same as they lay on the ebb tide. I have watched

them down near Astoria there whei-e we have a

good chance to observe the flood and ebb tide.

Q. And the vessel will come up stream straight

before it l)egins to swing, if I understand you cor-

rectly ?

A. It seems to come up a ways, that is come up
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I suppose until the chain gets tight, then it will

swing on the chain, whichever way the tide swings

the vessel. [252]

Q. When it does swing, the radius of the arc on

which it swings is what?

A. That would be a hard thing to say, because

you never know what the wind or tide conditions

are.

Q. Let's assume that there is no appreciable

wind, that the wind is negligible and you—when

the vessel begins to swing, the flood tide is just be-

ginning to come in, isn't it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The water would be low, would it?

A. Just beginning to change.

Q. And the vessel does her swinging, doesn't she,

when the tide is comparatively a light tide?

A. Yes—well, of course the tide—the beginning

of it, of course the flood tide is very weak; same

way if swings the other way; swings very slightly

at first until the tide gains strength, then of course

tightens up on the chain.

Q. Now, would the radius of the arc on which

the vessel swings be much in excess of the length

of the vessel?

A. That I couldn't say; I don't know.

Q. How much chain is it customary to put out in

anchoring a vessel four hundred feet long, at that

point in the Columbia River?

A. Thirty fathoms in the water.

Q. Are there any obstacles to interfere with the

view of the vessel lying at anchor at the point in-
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dicated as the point of the '^ Boston Maru," from

Warrior Rock on?

A. To explain it, from Warrior Rock down, the

pilot's attention would be turned on his course, and

he probably would not have any opportunity to ob-

serve anything; of course he would have an unob-

structed view, but he would be too busy looking at

his course; then he turns down along St. Helens

jetty, what is called St. Helens range, and he would

have to pass the [253] St. Helens light, before

he would have what we call an unobstructed view

of the lower river; then he could probably get a

view, but otherwise this light there might confuse

him, but when he passes that light then he could

have an unobstructed view.

Q. What light do you refer to?

A. This light at the end of the jetty; this St.

Helens lower light, red light.

Q. No. 28-2?

A. I don't know the number of it.

Q. Marked on this chart 28-2?

A. Yes, that would be correct.

Q. Is there any building or any hill, or anything

of that kind between Warrior Rock and the point

indicated as the anchorage of the "Boston Maru"?
A. No.

Q. You tliiuk the attention of the pilot would be

directed to other things while making the journey?

A. Yes, until he makes the turn ; he has to come

down and make an abrupt turn to the upper end

of the jetty, and down Ibis St. Helens range, they
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call it, and have to pass this light here before he

would have his mind free to observe anything on

the down river points.

Q. Are you familiar with the Willamette and Co-

lumbia Eivers between Portland and Astoria?

A. Well, I have traveled up and down a good

many times, yes.

Q. State, Captain, whether it is possible, except

in a very few places, to anchor a vessel at any point

in these rivers between Portland and Astoria,

other than in the fairway.

A. Not if he anchors in fog ; if he anchors in fog

he has got to anchor in the fairway, no matter

where he anchors.

Q. Suppose there is no fog but it is night.

A. There is only, you might say, one or two

places on the river where a person could; of course

try to get as far away [254] out of the main

channel—I don't mean the main channel but fair-

way, as possible, but it would be somewhere like

Rainier and Quinns, or somewhere we could do it.

Some call it Oak Point, some call it Quinns; that

is below; there you can get out quite a little dis-

tance out of the main passageway of ordinary

steamers, but it is about the only place there is.

Q. In other places you find it necessary to an-

chor where the steamers go?

A. Yes. Of course I say you try to get as far

out as possible but these are about the only two

places. There is a place down just above Astoria,
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where you can anchor out of the main ship chan-

nel, but it is the only place.

Q. I call your attention to "Boston Maru" Ex-

hibit "H," being photograph of the "West Keats,''

and in that connection, I inform you that the testi-

mony shows that the "West Keats" collided with

the "Boston Maru" at the hawse-pipe on the star-

board side of the "West Keats," a few feet back

of her bow. I also call your attention to "Boston

Maru" Exhibit "D," being a photograph of the

"Boston Maru," purporting to shoe the condition

of the "Boston Maru" after the collision, and I

will ask you to state what these photographs indi-

cate to you, as to the manner in which the "Bos-

ton Maru" was lying, athwart the channel or other-

wise, and the course of the "Boston Maru" imme-

diately prior to the collision.

A. I couldn't say just what position the "Boston

Maru" was lying, but of course from this photo-

graph you would have to take that the anchor

caught the stem on the starboard side of this
'

' Bos-

ton Maru," but in that you can't deteiTuine just

how the vessels were lying at anchor in the stream.

Q. Captain, suppose the "Boston Maru" were

lying nearly athwart the channel at the point indi-

cated on this chart, and the [255] "West Keats"

collides with her at the hawse-pipe of the "West
Keats," a few feet back of her starboard bow, and

hits the "Boston Maru" at the point indicated by

the photograph, "Boston Alaru" Exhibit "D,"

what would that indicate as to the course that the
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"West Keats" was pursuing at the time of the col-

lision ?

Mr. SNOW.—May I offer an objection, and ask

that the models be picked up and handed to the

witness, so that he can put them down on the chart

in his own way; this suggests to him, I think, a

little too much in the way of laying them down.

A. Well, of course from—I ain't putting these

down in accordance with the marks on the chart

—

but naturally if you take where the "West Keats"

struck, would have to strike in about this position;

here is the starboard anchor, and there is the star-

board side of the "West Keats"; would have to

strike about like that; if she struck this way

would take the stern of the other vessel; that is

about the best I can do; that is the way I deter-

mine.

Q. May I ask the witness to kindly place these

ships in the position indicated, with this paper un-

derneath; now, will you be good enough to place

them.

A. They would be about that way; that is the

best position I could give in my judgment.

Q. That is about right now, is it. Captain?

A. Yes, that is about the best that I can do.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I offer in evidence the dia-

gram identified by the witness.

(Marked "Boston Maru" Exhibit "N.")

Q. State what the facts to which your attention

has been called indicate with reference to how close
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the ''West Keats"—stern of the "West Keats"

was to the Oregon shore at the time of the collision.

A. I couldn't answer that. [256]

Q. Wouldn't make any

—

A. No. I couldn't make any answer to that be-

cause I wouldn't know. I didn't see the vessel at

anchor so I don't know.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Captain, in anchoring a vessel off Columbia City,

and having reference to the time of this accident,

which was October, 1924, you testified that you put

the front range light, front Columbia City range

light about midships of your bridge?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then you put the bow—you got one bear-

ing for the bow, and another bearing for the stern,

didn't you? A. Usually, yes, the best I can.

Q. You didn't say what those bearings were but

I understood you to mean you put the bow on La-

mont and the stern on Caples Point; is that true?

A. Yes, that is what I use, the best I could.

Q. Referring to "West Keats" Exhibit 1, before

you, I will show you a line marked "Lamont F. W.,"

one line marked Caples Point Lamont Line, and I in-

form you that there is testimony in this case to the

effect that that line is drawn straight from Caples

Point, over here on the chart, to Lamont Point,

which is not on this chart, but the line is put in the

correct direction nevertheless. I will ask vou if
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that is the ordinary place where you anchor.

A. Yes, they usually try to get that vessel in that

position if possible; of course you may vary quite

a number of feet, and on a dark night you don't

know just—can't determine where you are really.

Q. Of course you can't tell within fifty or a hun-

dred feet—twenty-five or fifty feef?

A. Yes, more than that.

Q. But you try to keep out of the main channel?

[257] A. Yes, if possible.

Q. And the main channel is down the Oregon

side'?

A. Always follow^ dowm the Oregon channel when

coming up this way.

Q. I understood you to say at the opening of

your testimony that the place of anchorage of the

''Boston Maru" as shown on that exhibit is near

where you ordinarily anchor vessels at that point,

and I take it that is a mistake; either you didn't

intend to say that or I misunderstood you.

A. What I did say was I usually get this light

abreast of the bridge of the vessel, get these two

bearings that way, and anchor so as to get a light

some way so you could determine where you were.

That is the question I intended to answer; I don't

know how I answered it.

Q. You would not anchor out just in the middle

of tlie stream without knowing how far to one side

or the other you were, if you could avoid it?

A. No, if there is any light so I could see; any-
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way to see, no; you liave to have something to go

by.

Q. And you would always take advantage of a

light or something you could see, if you could?

A. Yes, always, foggy weather or any other time,

always try to get near a light to anchor if possible.

Q. That is the reason you want a light not only

abreast the bridge to tell you how far up and down

stream you are, but also a light fore and aft, to tell

you how far out in the stream you are.

A. Light on Lamont Point but not the other

point.

Q. Not on Caples Point? A. No.

Q. You get the loom of that point?

A. Yes, just as best you can; kind of a dark ob-

ject.

Q. You stated that a vessel coming down the

river could tell about [258] the time it passed

this light at the end of the jetty designated as 2&-

2—could make out lights of an anchored vessel.

A. Yes.

Q. At the customary anchorage?

A. That is he would have nothing to obstruct his

view after he passed that light.

Q. And you would expect in coming dowTi the

river to be able to make out any vessel anchored

there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. If there was such a vessel anchored there?

A. Yes, indeed.

Q. And you would assume, of course, she was in

the customarv nnchora^e? A. Alwavs.
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Q. What can you say of the custom of anchor-

ing vessels at that place ? Other pilots anchor their

vessels there, too?

A. Been anchoring there ever since I been in the

pilot business.

Q. They customarily anchor pretty well out from

the Oregon shore over towards the Washington

shore? A. If possible, yes.

Q. So as to leave water for the channel'?

A. Yes, the main object is to keep out of the

main fairway as much as possible.

Q. And the Oregon shore has been the main ship

channel for a long time, has it?

A. Yes, always pass up and down the Oregon

shore if possible, yes.

Q. Have these two ranges, the St. Helens and the

Columbia City ranges, been established for a long

period of time?

A. They have been there ever since I have been

in the pilot business.

Q. So always been the custom to navigate the

Oregon shore, and to anchor over towards the

Washington shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. There isn't as much room for anchorage

there, I take it, as there is at these other places you

mentioned. Oak Point and another point whose

name I didn't catch. [259]

A. Rainier, you might call it.

Q. There is more room at Rainier, is there?

A. Yes, more room at Rainier, and Quinns or

Oak Point, than there is here.
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Q. When you pass that light at the end of the

jetty, marked 28-2 and you get an unobstructed

view of the vessel at anchor, can you tell from the

anchorage lights on a very dark night, just how far

away she is from the Oregon shore, and how far

from the Washington shore?

A. No, any dark night j^ou can't tell exactly how

far you are away.

Q. There is a high bank on the Oregon side, isn't

there ?

A. Yes, yes, that is higher than it is on the Wash-

ington side.

Q. Not much of a bank at all on the Washing-

ton side? A. No, very low bank.

Q. Very low, sort of marshy country leading

back from the river? A. Yes, very low land.

Q. Now, on the Oregon side, does this high bank

make the river a little darker on that side, or

harder to see?

A. Bound to ; everywhere there is a hill it creates

shadows, no matter whether it is water there, or

any other place.

Q. Creates what you call a shadow and makes it

a little blacker there, does it?

A. Yes, naturally would; I don't mean every

night but on a good many nights.

Q. If a vessel is anchored and swings with the

tide into a position, approximately the ])osition

marked on this chart, "West Keats" Exhibit 1,

"position at collision," liow far above—what is the

longest distance al)ovc tliat. that a vessel coming
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down the customary ranges and customary channel

could tell, on a very dark night with that shadow

over the water, whether there was room enough to

pass on the Oregon side or not, of that vessel?

[260]

A. Well, after he passed this light here he ought

to be able to determine—the pilot to determine

which side to go on.

Mr. McCAMANT.—Is that the light designated

28-2?

A. It is up here ;' after pass there ought to be

able to designate or make up his mind where he was

going.

Q. What guidance would he have to enable him

to make up his mind there, Captain?

A. Use his own judgment.

Q. What would he use it on ? Would he line this

up by anything?

A. See the vessel at anchor; see the vessel at an-

chor down below and use his judgment which side

to take.

Q. But you said a little while ago he couldn't tell

where she was anchored there, didn't you?

A. I told you—I didn't say he couldn't tell where

she was anchored, but I said when he gets around

here could see whether any vessel anchored down
there.

Q. Yes, you said that; when he passed 28-2

could tell whether vessel there and could make out

the lights of the vessel anchored there ?
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A. Yes, could determine the lights on the vessel,

yes.

Q. And also added, didn't you, couldn't tell the

exact location of that vessel?

A. Well, he probably would be able to form an

idea, that is, he couldn't give an accurate estimate

of it, but he could form his judgment of it. Of

course now I don't say this at all; I never saw the

vessel, and I am just only giving expert testimony,

that is all I am giving.

Q. You think that at that point he could form a

judgment, but he couldn't expect to form an accu-

rate judgment as to where she is?

A. That is up to him. [261]

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, if the pilot of a vessel coming down-

stream observes the lights of an anchored vessel,

and that the lower of the two lights is toward the

Oregon shore, what would that indicate to him?

A. That the stern of the vessel is toward the Ore-

gon shore.

Q. That is, assuming that she was an anchored

vessel, that would indicate what with reference to

the swing?

A. Of course, if he saw the two lights, which he

would see, why then he could determine if she was

lying crosswise of the channel—if he could see the

two lights.

Q. And it would indicate tliat slie liad swung-

towards the Oregon shore, would it not?
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A. Yes it would, because the riding lights, as they

call them, forward is higher, and the other one is

low, and one is twenty feet higher than the other;

something like that; the forward light is twenty or

thirty feet higher than the after light, they call it.

Q. Is there any shadow from the hills on the Ore-

gon shore on a cloudy night when the clouds are

over the whole sky, no stars or moon out ?

A. Every night has its own peculiarity; it is a

pretty hard thing to say, sometimes. Last night

was a night no shadow on the water, and it was

cloudy ; other nights there would probably be clouds

and might be shadows; shadows pretty hard to de-

termine.

Q. Do you know what makes the difference "?

A. No, I don't know as I do, I am not enough of

a weather man.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I think that is all, Captain.

Witness excused. [262]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN GEORGE Mc-

NELLY, FOR THE "BOSTON MARU."

Captain GEORGE McNELLY, a witness called

in behalf of the "Boston Maru," being first duly

sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)

You are a licensed Columbia River pilot?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—We admit his qualifications.
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Q. How many years have you served as Columbia

River pilot? A. Nearly fourteen.

Q. At the present time you are engaged in the

service of what company ?

A. Luckenbach Steamship Company.

Q. That is the company operating these large

intercoastal vessels coming in here? A. Yes.

Q. You pilot their vessels up and down the river?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And 3^ou are familiar with the channel of the

Columbia River and the Willamette River between

Portland and Astoria? A. Yes.

Q. Will you state what places there are to anchor

a vessel outside of the fairway, say a four hundred-

foot vessel, between Portland and Astoria ?

A. Well, Oak Point. A ship—a loaded vessel

drawing twenty-six feet or twenty-eight feet; there

are very few places where a ship can swing clear

around, but at some stage of it she will be in the

fairway anywhere.

Q. Assuming that the night was clear and a vessel

was anchored abreast of Columbia City light, on the

range, Columbia City front range light, and a vessel

was coming down the St. Helens bar range, a ship

four hundred and ten feet long, how far away do

you think the anchor lights of the anchored vessel

could be made out, how many thousand feet ? [263]

A. That would depend on the atmosphere and the

quality of the light.

Q. Well, assume that they are regulation Govern-

ment lights, good^bright lights, and that the visi-
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bility right above the water was good, and the night

was dark, cloudy, no wind.

A. If there were no confusing lights, no other

lights, that should be visible at least two miles.

Q. You mean by that, Captain, that they would be

able to see the lights, or would be able to make out

that they were anchor lights?

A. Be able to see the lights.

Q. How far away do you think the vessel would

have to be before you could make out that they were

anchor lights'?

A. That would have to depend, in my opinion, on

the location and the position they were from you,

whether they were up between you and the shore,

or out in the clear where you have a clear vision of

the water.

Q. What is the fact as to whether or not when

you are coming down the St. Helens bar range there

is any obstruction between you and the water right

off and abreast the Columbia City range lights?

A. There is nothing to be called an obstruction,

hills or anything of that sort ; there are other lights

there, aids to navigation.

Q. Now, assuming that the "Boston Maru" at

this particular time and under the weather condi-

tions I have described, and the tide being slack or

just beginning to flood, how far away, or how much

distance would you require to be up stream from the

"Boston Maru" if she were athwart the channel, in

order to pass her—to deflect the course of your ves-

sel so as to pass her the other side ? [264]
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A. Well, would depend on the position of my
vessel at the time.

Q. Assuming that your vessel was pursuing a

straight course at the time, and her bow was pointed

midships to the anchored vessel.

A. Not over twelve hundred feet.

Q. Twelve hundred? A. Yes.

Q. Will you kindly indicate to the Court the ap-

proximate point on the St. Helens bar range where

you would turn off and leave that range in coming

down with a ship of the type of the "West Keats,"

about four hundred ten feet long, and drawing

twenty-six feet aft?

A. Right in about there some place.

Q. That is about opposite the Columbia City mill ?

A. Just about.

Q. Just about abreast the Columbia City mill?

A. Right along in there some place.

Q. Right here? A. Yes.

Q. I have marked the point fixed by the witness

on "West Keats" Exhibit 1, "Point of turning,

Captain McNelly," Now, when you had reached

the point that you have just indicated, would you

at that time be able to determine the position of the

anchored vessel and its approximate distance from

the shore, how far it was off the shore ?

A. Not positively; it would depend upon the

weather, and I will tell you why. Coming here you

haven't got a clear vision of this shore line; the

shadows, or the dark shade of the hills doesn't show

you the water; it would show dark way out there;



Kokusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 2f77

(Testimony of Captain George McNelly.)

where if I came down here you gradually change

your course; you see a ship don't come right around

immediately; you change your course, and by the

time you was probably down here and had lined up

on your course, then you could tell; if you could

[265] see daylight or other light through there, it

would tell you.

Q. Will you mark, Captain, the point where you

say you have settled on your new course?

A. As soon as I have straightened up on my
course down parallel with the shore.

Q. Will you mark a little cross on the chart there ?

A. Up here some place. At the time I am com-

ing across there.

Mr. KINGr.—Witness made a small cross on the

chart "West Keats" Exhibit 1, which I have

marked, "Point w^here straight on new course. Cap-

tain McNelly."

Q. And you say at that point. Captain, that you

would then be able to make out the distance the an-

chored vessel was from the shore? A. Yes.

Q. If you had at that point made out the distance

the anchored vessel was from the shore, would you

then be able to pass between the "Boston Maru" if

she were resting in the place shown on this chart, on

the Washington side?

A. I certainly would ; I certainly would, yes.

Q. What do you consider to be the channel abreast

of Columbia City range lights, what portion of the

river ?

A. I consider the whole deep water the channel;
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but the rule—as a rule we run about the center. I

always do. I think the rest of the pilots do about

the same.

Q. Which side of the deep water portion of the

river, the Washington or the Oregon side, do you

usually navigate there coming down the river?

A. Coming down I usually navigate the right-

hand side—coming down.

Q. And going up, which side do you navigate?

A. I navigate the right-hand side, unless every-

thing is clear. What I mean by that is, if there is

not any ship in sight coming down I usually take the

port hand side of the channel, [266] and cut off. I

do that to save time. If there is a ship coming down

I follow my own starboard side of the channel,

around the bend, and come up the Oregon side.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Coming down the river then, if there is no ship

at anchor you usually keep out pretty well towards

the center, or even to the Washington side?

A. Aim to keep just about in the center.

Q. If there is a ship at anchor, do you usually aim

to pass on the Oregon side, or the Washington side,

of that ship ?

A. Any ship that I have ever passed at anchor

there, I have passed on the Oregon side.

Mr. McCAMAKT.—Coming down?

A. Coming down. Any ship that 1 ever remem-

ber of seeing anchored out there, I have always

passed on the Oregon side coming down.
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Q. In fact, the customary anchorage is over to-

wards the Washington side, isn't it?

A. I have always understood it that way, as a

rule.

Q. And the customary ship's channel is over to-

wards the Oregon side?

A. Well, the water is deeper closer to the shore

on the Oregon side than it is on the Washington

side; more sloping on the Washington side.

Q. In keeping out towards the center you give

yourself plenty of water and keep to what you con-

sider to be the starboard side of the channel you

follow, don't you?

A. Yes, as long as there is no obstruction; no

ships in there.

Q. You have passed ships at anchor there a good

many times, have you? A. Yes, sir. [267]

Q. Several times at least? A. Yes.

Q. Ordinary rate of speed. That is, do you main-

tain your speed in passing them?

A. Always have; yes.

Q. If you were going full speed you would not

slacken in order to pass them?

A. Unless they had barges or logs alongside that

the swells would do damage to ; we would slow down
for that reason, but no other reason.

Q. Coming up, yoli see you keep to the port hand

of the channel if there is no ship coming down ?

A. I do that, yes, I run that way.

Q. But, of course, if there is a ship coming down
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you would yield to them the starboard side, and

would take your starboard side ?

A. Keep on my own side of the channel.

Q. In pursuance of the ordinary passing rule?

A. Yes.

Q. The narrow channel rule? A. Yes.

Q. Coming up, if there are ships at anchor, would

you usually pass on the Oregon side? A. Yes.

Q. How do you anchor vessels at that point, Cap-

tain? Do you use the red range, so called?

A. Well, I used to use those two red lights; they

formed a range before that light was taken away.

Q. I refer to the time two years ago, when this ac-

cident happened.

A. Yes, those two red lights, before the front one

was taken away ; I used that once or twice before it

was taken away, coming down, getting the way off

your ship, and give more of a cant, but I used that

when I had two lights in range with the bridge,

and when I aimed to let go the anchor. [268]

Q. The two red lights? A. Yes, in range.

Q. That was before the light at Point 28-2 on the

chart, was removed and put further down the river,

with the extension of the jetty? A. Yes.

Q. That put you about how far out from the Ore-

gon side, anchoring on that range?

A. I had nearly a thousand feet; I don't remem-

ber accurately, but I had something like that, per-

haps, I was out.

Q. Let us measure that, Captain, it is marked on
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the chart. Can you find a continuation of the red

range there, the yellow line ?

A. This dotted line here is the thirty-foot con-

tour.

Q. Take it out there from the thirty-foot contour

or shore line, whichever you see fit.

A. About eight hundred feet, I should judge.

Q'. About eight or nine hundred feet?

A. Yes, at least eight hundred feet from the

thirty-foot contour.

Q. I think it is nine hundred feet, isn't it, Cap-

tain?

A. It might be; I didn't measure it accurately.

I have a thousand feet this time.

Q. You have a thousand feet from the thirty-foot

contour 1

A. Well, it can't be very far off; according to

that it is nearly a thousand feet.

Q. About nine hundred and fifty feet ?

A. I should say nine hundred feet anyway.

Q. And you were measuring from the thirty-foot

contour to the line of the red ranges opposite lower

Columbia City range light? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You made two red crosses on this chart, Cap-

tain. The first one is marked "Point of turn Cap-

tain McNelly." A. Yes.

Q. What am I to understand that point repre-

sents? Is it the [269] point where you turn

from the St. Helens range ?

A. It is the point, yes, where you would give the

quartermaster your order to change your course.
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Q. That being in the manner you customarily you

would run that range?

A. Yes, the way I do run it.

Q. All pilots might not run it exactly the same

way? A. Oh, no, certainly not.

Q. There is no one way that can be called entirely

right? A. No.

Q. Now, the second point is marked, "Point

where start on now course." And what do you

mean by that. Captain ?

A. That would be about the time that you would

steady your vessel and get her on a straight-away

course.

Q. And you were now heading down the Oregon

bank with the purpose of picking up the Columbia

City range astern a little further along, are you?

A. Well, yes or no. I really don't pay much at-

tention to that light going down.

Q. To the Columbia City? A. No.

Q. You don't? A. No.

Q. You pick up another range when further

down, do you ?

A. Further down; Martin Island range, further

down.

Q. How far is Martin Island range from Colum-

bia City? A. About three miles, I judge.

Q. How far do you have to travel before you

come on that Martin Island range ?

A. From the time you leave the St. Helens range,

a mile and a half, I should judge, possibly a little

more. This is just an estimate. What is called



Kohusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 283

(Testimony of Captain George McNelly.)

this old Columbia City range, it shows on this chart,

and we have been calling the Columbia City range

[270] here with a deep draft ship it is not practi-

cal to run it.

Q. Is that coming up the river?

A. Either coming up or going down, you cross

that range and come below it, and run on the other

one, the new Martin Island range.

Q. Are you referring to the present time, Cap-

taint A. Yes.

Q. Or at the time of this collision?

A. The present time.

Q. There have been some changes made in that

Columbia City range light, haven't there? Hasn't

that light been moved or changed in some way ?

A. Only the rear range on the St. Helens bar, but

not the old original Columbia City or Martin Bar

range, we call it. Now, whether they still use—^we

were using this range at this time I don't know, but

I am of the opinion that we were not.

Q. Which range do you call attention to now, the

Columbia City range or the Martin Island, St.

Helens? I have been confused in listening to you.

A. You asked me, I believe, how far down before

I came on to the Martin Island range.

Q. Yes, I asked that question, and you said a

mile and a half.

A. Yes, and that we cross this range and come

back on to another one, in fact, you cross this twice.

Q. By ''this range" do you mean the Columbia

City range?
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A. It is called the Columbia City range.

Q. You crossed that twice in order to get the

Martin Island range ?

A. Before you get to the Martin Island range you

cross that range twice with a deep water ship.

Q. You don't follow it?

A. No, we went over twenty-five feet as a rule.

No, I don't [271] follow it.

Q. If you are coming up the river. Captain, and

want to keep to the right-hand side of the channel

—

suppose something coming down, and it is night,

what range do you get on to approach Columbia

City*? Don't you use the Columbia City range for

that purpose?

A. Well, I run a great deal by the draft of the

ship that I have, in regard to the ranges; probabh^

won 't pay any attention to those ranges at all ; come

up to that Martin Island range; strike that above

the red light on the end of the jetty, and then head

for these lights, or leave them a little bit on the port

bow; below Caples Point is a shoal in there, and if

you run this existing range that is here now, below

Caples Point, it throws you over close to the shoal.

Q. That is why you don't like to run that Colum-

bia City range, is it? It throws you close to the

shoal below Caples Point?

A. Below Caples Point; yes, sir. I think the

chart shows about twenty-five or twenty-six feet of

water on that range. I don't believe it shows any

more than that ; that is, if I am right.

Q. Now, coming ])ack, Captain, to a vessel com-
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ing down the river, having left the St. Helens bar

range at a point marked by you as turning point,

and having steadied away on her course, and headed

down the Oregon bank at the point marked, as a

straight course, at that point where you are straight

on the course you would have a view down the river,

wouldn't you"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And would see the bank on the left-hand side

and see the water on the right-hand side. And if

it was a very dark night and very cloudy, it is pos-

sible you might not be able to see the water or the

bank, or be able to tell just where you were [272]

headed?

A. I have never seen it so dark that you couldn't

make out the water unless there was high land that

throws a shadow on it. No, you get a clear view

for a distance down the water. You can always

make out the water. Now here, continuation of

this chart, the river makes the bend, and there are

high hills, of course, they are a long ways back,

but from this point looking down in there there are

shadows come up there that you couldn't see—there

might be water enough between some object out

here, we will say a vessel at anchor—there might be

plenty to go in there, but you couldn't see it from

this point of view, with the ship between you and

these hills, where, if the ship was over there, there

is some low land, and you will get a clear view.

Q. In other words, if the ship was in the place

marked, "Position at collision," you might not be

able to see it, but if the ship was over in the custo-
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mary anchorage ground, you would be able to see

that stretch of water. Is that correct?

A. Be no trouble about making out a ship an-

chored there.

Q. Could see her lights, of course?

A. Could see her lights, but the question would be

whether you would see water between her and the

shore or not.

Q. And that I understand is problematical if she

were pretty close to the shore, is it?

A. Well, there are certain angles that you look at

a vessel or anything, that way, that you can't see

possibly—you won't see the shore line for perhaps

six or eight hundred feet out from the shore. The

shadow will throw out there and you couldn't pick

out the shore line accurately, not to tell where it

was; you can't see a thing, just like looking into a

black pocket exactly. [273]

Q. Now, this Oregon bank at that place is high,

isn't it? A. Yes.

Q. And throws a shadow, doesnt it? A. Yes.

Q. And makes it difficult to see?

A. It does if you are looking towards the hill, yes.

Q. And makes it difficult to judge the distance?

A. Well, I would say so, yes; if a man wanted to

go close to shore, I would think so.

Q. And it would be hard to tell how far a light

was from the shore, that is, if it was pretty close?

Concede if it was way out in the anchorage ground

it would be easy to tell, but if the light was close

it would be very hard to tell, wouldn't it ?
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A. If the light was inside of that shadow the only

thing a man in that place would have to gauge the

distance from shore, would be this range light—this

front range ; that is on the shore there ; I w^ould say

it would be impossible for him to make out the shore

line.

Q. You could only gauge then the distance be-

tween the stern riding light of the ship at anchor,

and the front range light of the Columbia City

range. Is that correct? A. I would say.

Q. Are you sure that the front range light is visi-

ble from up the river? Isn't it screened from that

point? A. That light is visible.

Q. There is some sort of a screen behind it?

A. Yes, there is a target, but the light is hoisted

above the target. Now that you call my attention

to it, that is the new St. Helens range, the new

channel that they have dug; a man coming down

there and heads directly for that light, throws him

right on that range. [274]

Q. That last statement has to do with the condi-

tions that exist to-day? A.. Yes, sir.

Q. And after the changes that have been made in

Ihe last year or two ?

A. Yes, the conditions as they exist now.

<J. Now, touching the question of judging the dis-

tance between the front range light of the Columbia

City range, and the stern light of the ship at anchor,

off that light, wouldn't it be difficult to judge that

distance from the point you have marked where

straightaway on your course? A. It would.
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Q. On a dark night? A. It would.

Q. Might it be misjudged a distance of a hundred

or a hundred and fifty feet? A. Very easily.

Q. Might it be misjudged a greater distance than

that? A. Yes.

Q. Two hundred or two hundred and fifty feet?

A. Well, I wouldn't say as to that. It is very

easy for a man to misjudge distance at night, when

it comes to a light.

Q. Especially with a dark bank throwing, a

shadow ?

A. The atmospheric conditions make all the dif-

ference in the w^orld in gauging distances with

lights.

Q. And it is very difficult for a man to give ex-

pert testimony in the courtroom here of a situation

existing on some certain night, without having right

in your own mind, from experience, the exact ap-

pearance of that situation that night, isn't it?

A. It is, yes.

Q. Some pilots run the St. Helens bar range out

a little further than you do, don't they. Captain?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is just a difference in methods, peculi-

arities? A. Yes, sir. [275]

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, suppose a pilot navigating a vessel draw-

ing twenty-six feet, four hundred ten feet long, com-

ing down the Columbia River on a dark night.
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cloudy night, although the visibility is good, runs off

his St. Helens bar range and straightens out in the

river at or near the point indicated by you as the

place where you would have straightened out, and

he sees ahead the anchor lights of a vessel anchored

at substantially the point indicated as the anchorage

ground of the "Boston Maru," and is unable to tell

because of the gloom cast on the river by the hills

back, what the distance is from the stern of the

"Boston Maru" to the Oregon shore, what would

prudent navigation suggest that that man should

do?

A. That w^ould depend in my estimation whether

he knew whether he had water enough to go on

either side of the ship.

COURT.—Suppose he didn't know anything

about the water, just saw the vessel there?

A. Sees the vessel in front of him, and he don't

know whether he can get by it either side; it is his

place to get the way off the ship and quit going, but

according to—as near as I understand, this pilot

undertook to go on this side, supposed he had plenty

of room. As I say, I don't see anything else for a

man to do down there with a ship, and he don't

know which side to go on, why the only thing to do

is to quit
;
get the way off the ship and stop her.

Q. Suppose he is familiar with this chart and the

other chart showing the depth of the water between

the bow of the "Boston Maru" as anchored there,

and the shoal marked on this plat, and he is familiar

with the other things; he sees [276] the other
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things outlined in my last question, what would

prudent navigation suggest that he do ?

A. Well, prudent navigation from my point of

view^ would have been to put his helm to port and

gone outside the ship.

Q. On the Washington side of the '^Boston

Maru"?
A. Yes, if he knew positively that was a ship;

could make out his position and make out the ship 's

'position.

Q. Well, there would be nothing to prevent him

from seeing that there was a ship at anchor at any

time after he got straightened out on his other

course, would there?

COURT.—I think the pilot testified he knew he

tvas a ship at anchor when he passed this range light

here. That he tvhere is testified that he saw the

ship and knew it was a ship at anchor.

Q. Assuming, Captain, that a pilot navigating a

ship four hundred and ten feet and drawing twenty-

six feet of water at the point to which I direct your

attention, that is the cross-mark made by Captain

Berry, and recognizes that he sees a ship at anchor

at the point where the "Boston Maru" was lying,

as indicated on this chart, what would prudent navi-

gation suggest that he should do, in view of that

fact?

Mr. SNOW.—One moment, please. The evidence

does not show that he recognized that the ship was

at that position. He recognized it to be a ship at

I
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anchor, but he didn't know what position it was in.

A. From that point I would say that he couldn't

tell the position the ship was in, if he did recognize

;

he might recognize her as a ship, but from here, on

account of this hend in the river, he couldn't tell

whether she was there or five hundred feet further

out, I should judge from looking at this point.

[277]

COURT.—In view of that fact, what would a

prudent navigator do?

A. Well, knowing the width of that channel, I

would say he would come right along just the way
he did; the channel is plenty wide, he would natur-

ally suppose was plenty of room to go on either side

of the ship.

Q. Now, this is the point which you said you
would recognize the position of the "Boston Maru,"
is it not?

A. I think one would be able to recognize the

position there, when you made your turn parallel

with the course down here, right there ; by the time

you got squared away down parallel with the shore.

Q. Will you tell us how far that is from the posi-

tion of the "Boston Maru"?
A. It is over three thousand feet, over half a mile.

Q. Over half a mile? A. Yes.

Q. Would there be any difficulty from that point,

over half a mile from the "Boston Maru," to pass

on the Washington side of the "Boston Maru"?
A. Not that far away.
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Q. And suppose for some reason that the pilot

didn't recognize the danger involved in the situation

at that time, but that he did when he was fifteen

hundred feet away. What course should he pursue,

in your opinion?

A. That would depend on how he was headed at

the time. For- illustration, we will say this: The

"Boston Maru" here, the pilot coming down here.

I don't know anything about the position of the

"Boston Maru" at all, but from the evidence. Now
if the pilot coming down was headed in here to go

under his stern, the less his chance would be to port

his helm and go around the bow. If he was headed

for the center of this [278] vessel he could do it

much easier. The idea of any position, it doesn't

make any difference where, if a man is headed for

the stem of this ship and then changes his mind and

starts to go around, that is a great deal harder than

it is to go this way. You must have more room. If

he is headed for the center of this ship, twelve hun-

dred feet in slack water, no tide to set you down on

fhe bow of the vessel, I would say would be ample

room to change the course and get clear with perfect

safet}^ If you are headed in this direction it is

a different thing.

Q. There has been some testimony. Captain, to

the effect that the pilot of the "West Keats" dis-

covered the position of the "Boston Maru" when

he was twenty-one lumdred and fifty feet away.

Would there be any difficulty in passing to the

Washington side of the "Boston Maru" if the situa-
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tion became apparent at a distance of twenty-one

hundred and fifty feet?

A. I wouldn't think so.

Q. Regardless of how the "West Keats" is

headed.

A. I wouldn't think so, coming down the channel;

that would be ample room.

Recross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
If the pilot of the "West Keats" discovered when

twenty-one hundred and fifty feet away from the

"Boston Maru," that the "Boston Maru" was too

close in to the Oregon shore to allow safe passage

there, and at that time the "West Keats" was

headed for the stern of the "Boston Maru," it would

require a rather sharp maneuver, would it not,

Captain? A. It would.

Q. To pass the bow, considering there is anchor

chain there to look out for, as well. [279]

A. At what distance away, please?

Q. Twenty-one hundred and fifty feet.

A. No, sir.

Q. Wouldn't require pretty sharp maneuvering?

A. No, sir. The "Boston Maru" is lying at slack

water, practically her anchor chain is up and down

;

there isn 't tide enough to swing her ; she is a loaded

ship, and the wind has no effect on her, practically.

Her anchor chain is practically up and down.

Q. Pretty hard to say how her anchor chain

would be?
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A. Yes, that is true ; but it is supposed, as a rule,

that is the way a ship will lie; a loaded vessel, she

will lie pretty near over her anchor at slack water;

a light vessel will pull, will strain at the chain; but

twenty-one hundred feet is a long ways; two thou-

sand feet is a long ways
;
you can put an awful smng

in a ship in two thousand feet.

Q. Of course a pilot coming down the river might

not be assumed to know that she was loaded, and I

think we may assume that he did not know how her

anchor chain would lead, except he knew which end

was the bow and which end was the stern ?

A. Yes.

Q. Wouldn't he have to take the anchor chain into

account while he was figuring on a maneuver of that

kind? A. Certainly would.

Q. And he would have to allow for it, anyway, re-

gardless of whether straight up and down or not,

wouldn't he? A, Yes, sir.

Q. Wouldn't that give him a sharper curve to

make than any he has to make in the Columbia

River pilotmg from the mouth of the Willamette

River to Astoria? A, No, sir.

Q. Well, where is there a sharper curve than that,

Captain? Are there very many? [280]

A. There isn't very many, but there are some that

are shorter than that. Altoona is a shorter turn

than that.

Q. Altoona. Is that the same as Harrington

Point?

A. Harrington Point, yes, has a sharp turn.
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Q. Do you know the radius of that turn, Captain ?

A. No, I don't.

Q. There is a pretty sharp turn going into Bugby

Hole, isn't there 1

A. There is the old channel; yes.

Q. Not quite so sharp now?

A. Oh, no, not the new^

Q. Isn't there a place called the Pancake Point

along the river some place?

A. Yes, in the old channel; we don't run that now.

That was a very sharp turn also; Bugby Hole is

very sharp.

Q. The Harrington Point Altoona turn can be

taken as the shortest turn from the mouth of the

Willamette to Astoria, can it, practically?

A. Well, here is a turn right here shows on this

chart, would be as sharp as that.

Q. Which turn is that?

A. That turn right there, where you come down

here.

Q. You are pointing now to the turn at the head

of St. Helens jetty, are you? A. Yes.

Q. I have a tracing here, Captain, I will ask you

to put on the blue-print with the lines of the tracing

falling over the corresponding lines of the blue-

print, and the lines will superimpose. Now there is

the outline of the "Boston Maru" at anchor, which

place, through a mistake, does not fall exactly over

the outline of the '^ Boston Maru" at anchor on the

blue-print, but close enough for comparison. Now
here is a [281] curve drawn here. Captain, from
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a distance of two thousand feet ; from the beginning

of the curve to the
'

' Boston Maru '

'
; now that curve

is shown here, isn't it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. This appears to be the radius of that curve?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All of that can be determined by a pair of

dividers? A. Yes, sir.

Q. This radius is thirty-one hundred feet on the

same scale. Now notice where that curve leads on

the sixth fathom line, over on the Washington side ?

A. Yes.

Q. Right at this point. Would not that require

very sharp maneuvering to get the "West Keats,"

a loaded vessel, back into the channel if he steered a

curve of that kind?

A. I am of the opinion you can put the "West

Keats' " helm hard aport right there and you could

have her around here in half that distance.

Q. But wouldn't she be very apt to run ashore

over on the Washington side ? A. Why no.

Q. Could you whip her back in time?

A. Why certainly ; that is my opinion.

Q. Do you know what the radius of the curve at

Harrington Point is? I think you testified you

didn't. A. No, I don't.

Witness excused. [282]
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TESTIMONY OF HARRY L. CHASE, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

HARRY L. CHASE, a witness called in behalf

of the "West Keats," being first duly sworn, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
You are one of the Columbia River pilots'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you held your license, State

and United States?

A. United States for about, oh, twenty-six years;

state license for six years.

Q. Do you belong to the Association?

A. Which association?

Q. Columbia River Pilots Association?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Your name was mentioned this morning, Cap-

tain, as being the originator of the custom of using

so-called red range, and anchoring opposite Coliun-

bia City? A. I did.

Q. Will you describe how you anchor a vessel

—

at w^iat point you anchor at that locality?

A. Well, I always get the

—

C^OURT.—Referring to the fall of 1924, and prior

to that time.

A. Yes, I understand. I would get the ship

abreast the Columbia City front range and go out
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until the red range comes on ; I am on the red range

and have the Columbia City front range abeam.

Q. By red range you mean the red light at the end

of the St. Helens jetty, and the other red light fur-

ther up?

A. At the time of this accident, yes.

COURT.—How long had the red ranges been in

existence at that time?

A. I don't quite remember, but something over a

year; possibly sixteen or eighteen months prior to

that time. [283]

Q. What is the customary anchorage ground at

that locality?

A. That is customary, as far as I know, the de-

scription I gave you.

Q. Other pilots use the same method of anchor-

ing?

A. I don't know what they use, I am sure.

Q. You have passed vessels at anchor there?

A. 1 have.

Q. Found them anchored over towards the Wash-

ington side?

A. Apparently in the same place I anchor.

Q. Where is the main ship channel at that local-

ity?

A. All ship channel wherever it is deep.

Q. Do vessels navigating up and dowTi the river,

do they customarily navigate on the Washington or

Oregon side at tliat point?

A. Usually the Oregon side. I have—in fact

very nearly all the time on the Oregon side.
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Q. That is on account of the ranges converging?

A. Yes, the range light is there; they come up

and pick up the range and follow along that shore

line, quite close along that shore line.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)

In the month of October, 1924, were you familiar

with this so-called red range? A. Yes,

Q. And were you using that at that time to anchor

vessels there? A. Yes.

Q. Just when, before the month of October, had

you anchored a vessel there, and what was her

name? A. I don't remember.

Q. Are you positive that prior to the month of

October, 1924, you had used the red range anchoring

a vessel there? A. Yes, quite so.

Q. And you are positive that prior to the month

of October, 1924, as a discoverer of this fact, you

had disseminated this information [284] among

the pilots?

A. No, sir, I don't know that I talked to them as

a body. I talked to them

—

Q. As individuals from time to time?

A. I don't know. I didn't give it out to anybody;

told them I had used that range for anchoring on;

may have talked with one or two; just casually;

nothing in any particular.

Q. That is, general information among pilots?

A. Just general information; maybe one or two
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I talked to I told them I generally used that in

anchoring there; not what they used.

Q. You had imparted that information to some

one pilot prior to October, 1924?

A. I might have, but not that I remember of.

Q. You are sure you made the discovery prior to

October, 1924?

A. I had used that prior to that time.

Q. Now there is no anchorage ground designated

by any port authorities there, is there?

A. No, sir, not that I know of.

Q. The pilot uses his own method in anchoring

there? A. I think so.

Q. That is a fact?

A. I can only speak for myself.

Q. You have no inforaiation which leads you to

believe they have adopted any common method of

anchoring there ? A. No, sir.

Q. Captain, you were called as a witness before

the federal inspectors on the 17th day of November,

1924, with respect to the hearing on the license of

Captain Gildez and Captain Berr}-. Do you recall

that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And do you remember yon were sworn and

gave testimony at that time? A. Yes, sir. [285]

Q. Do you remember having been asked these

questions, just to refresh your recollection—you re-

member they had some charts of the river there at

the hearing, don't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The same chart that was issued in October,

1924, that they have here. Have you seen this one ?
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A. Haven't seen this one.

Q. I will show it to you. "West Keats" Exhibit

No. 1. Will you examine that chart as to its date,

which you will tincl in the corner, and state whether

or not you recognize it as the blue-print of the

same original as the one that was there at the

hearing of the federal inspectors.

A. I don't know whether the same chart or not.

Q. Not the same blue-print, but the same chart,

as far as you can say'? A. As far as I can tell.

Q. Shows about the same lights, is that right 1

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you see the red range on this chart?

A. Those two lights here, that one and this one.

Q. This light 28-2 and light 27-2?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the red range? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that appeared on the chart up there, did

it?

A. Yes, sir, as far as I remember, it did. I think

I ran a line.

Q. You ran a line up there, you think?

A. I think so.

Q. Do you remember you were asked these ques-

tions and you answered as follows: "How long have

you been a Columbia River Pilot for ocean vessels?

A. Four and a half years. Q. Have you ever an-

chored any vessels below St. Helens or Columbia

City? A. Yes, sir. Q. Will you show us on this

chart about where you consider the anchorage to

be down around that place? A. Indicates on chart
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Exhibit 'B.' " We haven't that here. "Q. How
wide is the channel there for deep sea vessels, from

the Oregon shore line across, [286] where ships

drawing twenty-eight to thirty feet of water can

go"? A. I should judge about two thousand feet,

or maybe a little more. I keep the light on St.

Helens courthouse a little open, and on Lamont's

Point this way (indicates on Chart Exhibit B)."

Do you remember giving that testimony ?

A. Yes, sir, more or less; not the lighthouse, the

courthouse in St. Helens, and the light on Lamont's

Point I use in daytime.

Q. That is what you use in the daytime ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Why don't you use that at night?

A. At night-time nothing to show where the

courthouse is. Not lighted up, anyway, not illumi-

nated.

Q. "About how far from the shore would that

make your anchorage? A. In the neighborhood of

a thousand feet or eleven hundred feet." Did you

make that answer?

A. I guess so if it is there; I don't remember.

Q. "You always anchor in that vicinity? A, Yes,

those are the marks I used." Did you give that

testimony? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. KING.—Now, I suppose you will object

unless I read all of this. Want me to read all of

the testimony in?

COUKT.—Let him testify on the stand, don't

read his testimony.
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Mr. KING,—What I mean, I have read it

through, and that is the only position he gives for

anchoring the vessel down there. Now, if counsel

is insistent he gave anything else, I will read the

whole thing in. I ask him to examine that and

point out where he gives anything else about how

to anchor a vessel.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
In testifying before the inspectors at that time

did you observe the red range as a method of

anchoring [287] there to, as well as the St.

Helens courthouse? A. I did.

Mr. KING.—Then I think I want to put in this

record the whole testimony.

COURT.—File it without stopping to read it.

Mr. SNOW.—The testimony I know, from having

read it myself, is incorrectly transcribed. I don't

like to admit that this is actually the testimony

given at that place, because I know lots of mis-

takes in there, from my own knowledge; that puts

me in a little bit of a difficult place. I would be

glad to go over it with counsel and endeavor to

agree with him. I will do my best to stipulate with

you, and think we can agree in some way.

COURT.—Captain, something has been said

about the extension of this jetty and the change of

this red light.

A. No extension of this jetty; this jetty has

been put in here, and this light here has been moved

down here ; that is a short jetty.
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COURT.—Is this light you refer to one side of

the red light?

A. Yes, sir; these two lights here, I mean; they

intersect the same as the courthouse and Lamont
Point.

COURT.—When was that light moved down to

the jetty?

A. Since that accident.

COURT.—Since the accident?

A. Since the accident.

COURT.—At the time of the accident was here?

A. Right here where this chart shows.

Witness excused. [288]

Mr. McCAMANT.—We offer in evidence two

certificates executed by the Japanese Consul at this

port, certifying that the records in his consulate

show the owner of the "Boston Maru" to be as

alleged in our libel; an issue was raised on that

question.

(Certificates marked "Boston Maru's" Exhibits

"O" and "P.")

Mr. McCAMANT.—We now offer in evidence

testimony taken by deposition of S. Sayeki, H.

Yokoi, Isokicha Chigu, Toyoji Tornita, N. Komi-

yama.

We offer in evidence this chart of the Columbia

River, including the part of the Columbia River

in which this collision occurred, showing that it was

issued under date of August 18, 1926, by the United

States Coast & Geodetic Survey; we have marked

in red on it the shoal that is mentioned on the other
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chart; put in solely for the purpose of showing the

continued existence of that shoal.

(Marked '^Boston Maru" Exhibit "Q.")

Whereupon proceedings herein were adjourned

until ten o'clock to-morrow morning. [289]

Thursday, October 8, 1926, 10 A. M.

Mr. KING.—At this time, in connection with the

testimony of Captain Chase, before the Inspectors,

on November 1, 1924, I desire to make a statement:

Mr. Snow and I have agreed that the testimony

which I read into the record yesterday, from the

hearing before the Inspectors, constitutes the only

reference to the manner and place of anchoring a

vessel which Captain Chase gave before the In-

spectors, as shown by the notes and transcript of

the reporter. But Mr. Snow questions the accuracy

of the transcript, and desires to olfer a little evi-

dence on that later on. [290]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN GEORGE F. GIL-

DEZ, FOR THE "BOSTON MARU."

Captain GEORGE F. GILDEZ, a witness called

in behalf of the "Boston Maru," being first duly

sworn testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)

Captain, you are a Columbia River pilot?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. For how many years have you been acting as

a Columbia River pilot?
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A. A little over four years.

Q. During that time have you been a member
of the Columbia River Pilots Association?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, prior to the time that you became a

Columbia River pilot, what experience had you

had with respect to navigating the Columbia River

and the Willamette River betw^een Portland and

Astoria ?

A. Since 1910 I have been pilot, master, of

various boats on the Columbia River.

Q. Since 1910? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And has that experience enabled you to be-

come familiar with the course and channels and

depths of water in the Columbia River?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And during the four years that you have

been a Columbia River pilot, what have been your

duties with regard to navigating vessels up and

down the Columbia River?

A. Taking vessels from Astoria to Portland, and

way points between Astoria and Portland.

Q. These are all large sea-going vessels, are they?

A. All sea-going vessels, yes, sir.

Q. Now, on the 25th day of October, 1924, did

you take charge of the "Boston Maru," to take

her to St. Helens ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was she lying when you went aboard

her? [291]

A. Clark-Wilson mill at Linnton.

Q. About wliat time did you go aboard?
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A. About five-thirty.

Q. And you left down the river?

A. About five-forty, or five forty-five.

Q. What time did you arrive opposite Cokimbia

City?

A. About eight-thirty, I would say.

Q. That is, eight-thirty P. M.—all those times'?

A. All those times are P. M.

Q. Just explain to the Court how you would go

to St. Helens. Probably I had better hand you

this chart. Now what was the state of the tide

when you arrived by St. Helens'?

A. Ebb, tide, about half tide, I should say.

Q. What was the stage of the river as to whether

high or low at that time *? A. Low, water low.

Q. Low stage of the water?

A. Low stage of the water; yes.

Q. How much water was the "Boston Maru"
drawing when you proceeded down the river?

A. Twenty-six feet one inch.

Q. What was the condition of the vessel with

respect to whether she was fully loaded, or only

partial load, and if so, how much?

A. She was very near loaded; she was going into

St. Helens for about one day's work, for lumber.

Q. She was practically down to her marks ?

A. Very close; yes.

Q. When you arrived off Columbia City what

was the condition of the weather, was it dark?

A. Dark, yes, very dark.
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Q. What was the condition of the clouds? Were
there clouds, or a moonlight night? [292]

A. Cloudy and dark, squally, rain squalls.

Q. I lay before you a chart marked "West
Keats" Exhibit 1. Will you kindly point out to

the Court just how you came down the courses

there, and how you handled your vessel in coming

to anchor?

A. You want to start up in here some place?

Q. Yes. A. Came down by St. Helens range.

Q. That is St. Helens bar range?

A. St. Helens bar range; came down oft* Colum-

bia City; went down here and was abreast of these

three lights, St. Helens range lights and Columbia

City range lights.

Q. Could you see the shore?

A. Not very distinctly; you could see the lights.

Q. Then what did you do with your vessel?

A. Swung around.

Q. Which direction?

A. To the starboard. Drew towards the Oregon

shore, the bow, until got right crossways about

abreast of front range light Columbia City range,

and anchored right out about the center of the

channel, abreast of the front range of the Columbia

City range—range light of the Columbia City

range.

Q. I direct your attention to the shoal on this

chart, "West Keats" Exhibit 1. Will you state

to the Court whether or not you were familiar with
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that chart at the time you brought the vessel down

the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. State to the Court whether or not you knew

of the presence of the shoal as shown by this chart.

A. Yes, sir, we had a chart exactly like this in

our office at that time.

Q. Had you seen it? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Captain, for the benefit of the record, state

how far—how wide you consider the channel to

be off the Columbia City range [293] light you

have just mentioned?

A. About twelve hundred feet.

Q. When you refer to the channel, what do you

mean, what portion of the river?

A. Well, the channel—the thirty-foot contour

is the channel, where your vessel will float, thirty-

foot contour line.

Q. Now, is there a tide there that comes up to

Columbia City? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in the low stage of the river there is

tide at Columbia City, is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that tide sufficient to cause a vessel to

swing on her anchor? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell in advance which direction she

will swing, assuming she is anchored in the river

there? A. No, sir.

Q. Whether toward the Oregon shore or the

Washington shore?

A. Not unless there is a wind blowing.
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Q. Now, was the stage of the wind—how strong

wind was there that night "?

A. Wasn't very much wind; I wouldn't say how
strong it was, but scarcely any.

Q. Taking the conditions as you have described

them up there that night, could you tell at the

time you came to anchor which way your vessel

would swing? A. No, sir.

Q. And what was your purpose in anchoring at

the spot you have indicated there'?

A. Well, we were bound for St. Helens; there

W'as not water enough between St. Helens and

Columbia City to get to St. Helens in low tide;

w^e had to wait for the tide, high tide, very near, to

get in.

Q. AV^hy did you aim to place your vessel near

the middle of this thirty-foot channel there, as

shown by the contours?

A. So in case she swung either way the vessel

would stay clear of the shore. [294]

Q. Now, at the time that you brought the vessel

to anchor, who gave the directions as to when the

anchor should be dropped? A. I did.

Q. And was the anchor dropped then?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then which way did the vessel swing on

her anchor, was it upstream of her anchor, or

downstream ?

A. She was downstream, ebb tide.

Q. Ebbing tide? A. Ebbing tide, yes, sir.

Q. Were any anchor bearings taken?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. What time were those taken*?

A. Generally after we anchor; I would say

around nine o'clock, approximately.

Q. Who were they taken by? I mean, did you

take them yourself?

A. The second mate took them under my super-

vision.

Q. Who indicated the lights towards which the

bearings should be taken? A. I did.

Q. Was the vessel comparatively steady in the

river at the time the bearings were taken?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. She had come to rest in more or less a general

direction? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, at what time was it, about, when you

completed taking the anchor bearings?

A. Around nine o'clock, I would say, approxi-

mately.

Q. When the vessel stopped and dropped her

anchor, what was done with respect to her running

lights?

A. Her running- lights were turned out and the

anchor lights put out in their place.

Q. Did you see these anchor lights in place at that

time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was the one placed aft?

A. On the flagstaff. [295]

Q. Where was the one that was placed forward?

A. On the forestay.

Q. Now, after the vessel came to rest and her
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anchor lights were hoisted and these bearings taken

as you have indicated, what did you do?

A. I went down in the saloon and laid down.

Q. Did you give any instructions as to when you

should be awakened? A. Yes.

Q. What time did you direct them to awaken

you?

A. About one—two o'clock we were to leave.

Q. Were you subsequently awakened, and if so,

in what manner?

A. I was awakened by the ship rolling very

heavily.

Q. What did you do?

A. Got up and went on deck.

Q. Had you taken oft' your clothes ?

A. Oh, yes, yes.

Q. And did you stop to dress before you went

on deck? A. No, sir.

Q. AVhen you got on deck what did you see?

First, did you look to see what the cause of this

disturbance was?

A. I looked around and couldn't see anything.

Q. Which side of the vessel did you look from?

A. Both sides.

Q. Now, did you observe the position of the

"Boston Maru" at that time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you came on deck? A. Yes, sir.

Q. With respect to whether she was lying in

the same place she was before? A. Yes, sir.

Q. AVhat position was she then resting?

A. She was lying with her stern towards the
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Oregon shore, at an angle of about, I would say,

forty-five degrees with the channel, with the shore

line.

Q. In other words, she was forty-five degrees

upstream from where she was"?

A. Her stern was. [296]

Q. When she was tailing downstream at the

time you went to bed'?

A. Her stern was
;
yes, sir.

Q. Her stern had turned towards the Oregon

shore that far"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, at the time you came to anchor, did you

give an order as to how much chain should be let

out with the anchor?

A. Yes, thirty fathoms.

Q. Was that amount let out? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now Captain, you have had experience in

handling vessels of much the same type as the

"West Keats'"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you know the general characteristics of

the way in which such vessels will steer when going

at full speed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The testimony in this case, I believe, shows

that the "West Keats" was going either 8:84 miles

per hour, or ten miles per hour, according to differ-

ent witnesses. Assuming that the "West Keats"

was proceeding down the St. Helens bar range, and

had turned off to go over on to the Columbia City

range in the usual manner, how far away would she

have to be in order to make a tvirn to go on either

side of the "Boston Maru," if the "Boston Maru"
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was then athwart the channel? How many feet

away upstream would she have to be to make that

maneuver ?

A. To be headed directly for the "Boston Maru,"

and going steady? Is that the proposition?

Q. Yes.

A. About a thousand or twelve hundred feet, I

would say.

Q. Would that be a dangerous maneuver in your

opinion ?

A. Not if he were over a thousand feet.

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
In answering the last question, Captain, did you

assume the "West Keats" headed directly into

midships of [297] or at some other part of the

"Boston Maru"?
A. Well, that is midships.

Q. Midships? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you also assumed, didn't you, that the

"Boston Maru" was lying at an angle of forty-five

degrees to the direction of the course of the "West
Keats"?

A. I believe the attorney said athwart the channel.

Mr. KING.—I asked him athwart the channel,

perpendicular.

Q. By athwart you meant perpendicular?

A. I understood she was athwart ships of the

channel.

Q. If the "West Keats" were pointed at the
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stern of the "Boston Maru," or just off the stern

of the "Boston Maru," in order to turn safely

without executing a dangerous maneuver to pass

the bow of the "Boston Maru" and leave plenty of

room for the anchor chain, the '

' West Keats '

' would

want more than twelve hundred feet, wouldn't it?

A. No, sir.

Q. You think that could be done at twelve hun-

dred feef? A. I think I could do it.

Q. Safely? >

A. I think I could do it all right.

Q. How would you do it?

A. Put my wheel hard aport and if necessary

could back the vessel.

Q. Would you set the engines full speed astern,

or half astern, or how?

A. Full speed astern if necessary.

Q. The "West Keats" backs to port, doesn't she?

A. Her stern goes to port, her bow falls to star-

board.

Q. Setting the engines astern would help that

maneuver a lot? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Would help her get around? A. Yes.

Q. She would swing then, and miss the bow of

the "Boston Maru"? A. I think so. [298]

Q. Isn't it possible that she might not respond to

her helm quite as quickly as you conceived, and

that she might cut the "Boston Maru" in two, or

smash head on into her?

A. Those things are always possible with a ship.

Q. If that happened it would be a lot more seri-



316 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain George F. Gildez.)

oils accident than the one that occurred, wouldn't it?

A. Undoubtedly so ; could have been much worse

than it was, sure.

Q. Could have been lots worse?

A. Yes, oh, yes.

Q. She might have sunk the "Boston Maru." Is

that not a fact?

A. Could have been done, yes, sir.

Q. And a turn of that kind might possibly have

resulted in such a sinking, might it not?

A. Not in that fairway; as long as the machinery

worked all right, everything worked according to

what they are supposed to do, I don't think would

be much danger.

Q. If everything worked perfectly and the pilot

of the "West Keats" knew exactly where the

"Boston Maru" was, and how far away he was from

the "Boston Maru," and didn't misjudge it any

distance, or scores of other affecting circum-

stances, you think it would have worked all right,

do you? A. Yes, sir.,

Q. But if something went wrong he might have

crashed into the "Boston Maru" and sunk her; isn't

that a fact, in attempting such a swing?

A. Yes, that is a fact. Any time you are coming

up or down the river with a ship something might

go wrong and you might crash into something.

Q. If they had crashed into the "Boston Maru"

and sunk her, there might have been lives lost?

That is a fact?
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COURT.—That is a speculation, pure specula-

tion.

A. Certainly. [299]

Q. When you anchored the "Boston Maru" you

gave orders to let out thirty fathoms of chain, did

you*? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you give the order thirty fathoms in the

water, or thirty fathoms on the windlass?

A. Thirty fathoms on the windlass.

Q. On the windlass? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So, really the amount of chain in the water

was less than a hundred and eighty feet ?

A. Oh, yes, the distance from the windlass to the

water-line.

Q. The distance from the windlass to the water.

When you anchored the "Boston Maru" you aimed

to anchor her at a place which you called the middle

of the channel? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And what did you consider the channel

to be?

COURT.—He said he considered it twelve hun-

dred feet wide.

Q. To what point did you consider the channel to

extend ?

A. To the thirty-foot contour on both sides of

the river.

Q. Do you refer to the thirty-foot contour on

the Washington side of the river, or the thirty-foot

contour as shown on the chart, surrounding the so-

called shoal?
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A. Thirty-foot contour on both sides, one thirty-

foot contour to the other, about twelve hundi'ed feet.

Q. But you didn't answer my question exactly, as

to which thirty-foot contour you mean?

A. Both sides.

COURT.—He said he referred to both, on both

sides of the river.

Q. You mean both the same place *?

A. One on both sides of the river.

Q. Two on the Washington side of the river?

A. Not thirty-foot contours.

Q. There are three ; I call your attention to them.

[300]

A. Not three thirty-foot contours on one side of

the river, that is impossible.

Q. There is one on the Oregon side, that is this

line here, with five dots?

A. That is the thirty-foot contour, six fathoms.

Q. Here is one I follow with my pencil on the

Washington side.

A. That is true, one on either side of the river.

Q. One on either side of the river. Here is an-

other, here is the other end which makes the edge

of the so-called shoal.

A. Yes, sir ; that is the thirty-foot contour around

that shoal there; there is one on the other side,

which would make four; one on either end, whicli

would make six, if you want to take them all.

Q. Those additional thirty-foot contours are on

the Washington side of the river, are they not?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, when yon aimed to anchor at the middle

of the channel, so-called, which thirty-foot contonrs

did you refer to? Did yon eliminate entirely the

thirty-foot contonrs surrounding the so-called

shoal? A. No, sir.

Q. What were you considering?

A. The thirty-foot contour on the Oregon shore

to the first thirty-foot contour across the river.

Q. Is that the thirty-foot contour surrounding the

shoal ?

A. That would be one surrounding the shoal
;
yes.

Q. So then what you considered the channel ex-

tends between the shoal and the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You knew, in fact, however, that that shoal so-

called had never interfered with anchoring a vessel,

didn't you?

A. In just what way do you mean? I don't un-

derstand that question.

Q. Had you ever heard of a vessel going aground

on that shoal when anchored, swinging on the an-

chor?

A. No, sir ; but a vessel would go aground on that

shoal if swung on top of it. [301]

Q. You feel pretty sure she would?

A. If she drew more water than there is on the

shoal, no doubt of it.

Q. Did you fear at the time you anchored the

''Boston Maru" that it might swing on that shoal?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You testified, I believe, that you didn't know,
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when you anchored the '' Boston Maru," which side

she would swing to with the current or tide?

A. I didn't.

Q. You didn't know. Did you know she would

swing at all? A. No, I didn't.

Q. You thought she might hang straight on her

anchor until you got ready to leave that place?

A. Well, you don't know—nobody knows just

exactly at what time the tide will turn; weather

conditions control the tide for the matter of an

hour, make it an hour early, or an hour late, so we

don't know just exactly what the tide will turn,

various sized tides; big tides or small tides will

make it earlier.

Q. So by examining your tide-book you only

find out the influence on the tides of the moon and

attractions, but you can't find the weather condi-

tions? A. No, sir.

Q. And a strong wind outside of the Columbia

River will pile up a higher tide than usual?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you feel you don't know when you anchor

a vessel which way she is going to swing, or whether

she will swing at all? A. Yes.

Q. You testified before the inspectors, didn't you,

on November 7th? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. I will ask you whether or not this question

was asked and answered: "You knew that when you

laid down, if she swung at all, it would be across

the ship's channel? A. From the way the wind was

blowing when I laid down, she would swing the

other way." Did you give that answer?

A. Yes, sir. [302]

Q. I will ask you whether or not this question

was asked and this answer given: You say a wind

blew when you went to bed which would swing to-

wards the Washington shore? A. "Yes, sir."

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you mean to testify at that time that you

thought she was going to swing towards the Wash-
ington shore?

A. At the time I laid down I did
;
yes, sir.

Q. But you now want to be understood as saying

that you didn't know at that time whether she would

swing at all, or which way she might change?

A. The wind has a perfect right to change in any

direction; matter of three or four hours from the

time you anchor. It could have changed to the

other side before she turned.

Q. You testified just now that when you anchored

her you didn't know which way she was going to

swing, or whether she would swing at all, didn't

you? A. I didn't know; no, sir, I did not.

Q. I understand you to say that; what did you

say ?

A. How did I answer that question— I beg
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pardon. I didn't know how was going to swing,

that is what I mean; which way going to swing.

Q. That is the way you want to be understood

as testifying now? A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you did testify before the Inspectors that

you thought she would swing towards the Wash-

ington shore because of the wind?

A. I did. When I laid down I thought she would

swing towards the Washington shore because the

wind was from the Oregon shore.

Q. But now you testify

—

COURT.—Now he testifies he didn't know which

way she was going to swing—what he thought and

what lie knew.

A. 1 want to make myself clear: When I laid

down was probably [303] nine-thirty; the time

she would swing would be between one and two

o'clock, matter of probably three hours, three and

a half hours, and the wind was from the Oregon

shore when I laid down; Imt it might change.

Wind does change, and it might have changed in

most any direction, two o'clock or one o'clock, and

I couldn't be sure which way was going to swing.

Q. Is that all the explanation you want to make

of that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. There was a customary anchorage ground at

that general location in the river at that time, was

there not, Captain? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was over towards the Washington

shore, wasn't it?
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A. Well, I would say was very close to the middle

of the channel.

Q. You were familiar, then, with this red range,

weren't you? A. No, sir.

Q. You were not? A. No, sir.

Q. Had you not anchored a vessel on it by put-

ting Lamont on the courthouse?

A. In daytime I had, yes.

Q. And you knew that carried you well over to

the Washington side, didn't you?

A. That doesn't carry you very far over from

where I was, probably two hundred feet from where

the position of this vessel was.

Q. You have a chart before you. Captain?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you say is two hundred feet from a line

extended from the courthouse through Lamont on

to the end of the channel, to the place where your

vessel was anchored?

A. About three hundred feet.

Q. From what point are you measuring?

COURT.—From that line you marked here to

measure.

A. That line there. [304]

Q. That is three hundred feet, is it ?

A. About three hundred feet, yes, sir.

Q. Now, the course from—Captain, at the time

you anchored there, could you have made out La-

mont and the Courthouse? A. No, sir.

Q. It would be too dark ? A. No, sir.



324 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain George F. Gildez.)

Q. You couldn't have used that method of figur-

ing? A. No, sir, you couldn't see the courthouse.

Q. Did you ever anchor on the line from Caples

Point to Lamont? A. No, sir.

Q. And you never anchored on the red range?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you think when anchoring you were get-

ting on that line from Lamont to the courthouse?

A. Never entered my head at all. I couldn't see

the courthouse and I had no use for the line at all.

Q. The only thought you had in mind was keep-

ing far enough away from either bank to keep from

swinging on the bank, was it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have that shoal with twenty-five-foot

soundings especially in mind when you anchored?

A. Yes.

Q. And you didn't want to swing on that?

A. No, sir.

Q. You knew, didn't you, that that twenty-five-

foot sounding represented the zero mark of the

river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you knew the water then was a foot and

a half above zero, didn't you?

A. Knew was a little above zero; yes, sir.

Q. You knew the vessel would not swing until the

tide came in considerably, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir—well, the tide doesn't raise a great

deal before she swings.

Q. How much tide is there at that point, or was

there that night? A. At high tide or low tide?



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki KaisJia. 325

(Testimony of Captain George F. Gildez.)

'Q. Well, what was the difference between high

and low tide at that [305] point?

A. At that time three or four feet.

Q. And at what point would the vessel swing with

that rising tide?

A. Very close to low water; just after low water.

Q. Swing as, soon as the tide began to come in?

A. As soon as the tide begins the flood she swings.

Q. Of course you can't tell me just when she did

swing, can you, Captain? You were asleep then,

weren't you? A. I was asleep.

Q. Had your experience with anchored vessels

led you to believe that they will swing as soon as the

tide starts to come in?

A. As soon as the tide starts to flood, they will

start to swing.

Q. And you knew at that time, didn't you, that

there was plenty of water for your vessel to svnng

over that twenty-five foot sounding without touch-

ing bottom? A. No, sir, I didn't know it.

Q. Well, you knew was plenty of water there even

at lowest tide, didn't you? A. No, sir.

Q. What was the draft of your vessel?

A. Twenty-six foot one inch.

Q. Twenty-six foot one inch? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that forward or aft? A. Aft.

Q. What was it forward?

A. I don't remember; a little bit less forward.

Q. Was about twenty-four feet, wasn 't it, in fact ?

A. Was a little less than it was aft, I remember.

I don't remember exactly.
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Q. The deepest part of the vessel was twenty-six

feet two inches? A. Twenty-six foot one inch.

Q. You knew the water at that place marked

twenty-five feet was in fact twenty-six and a half

feet at that time, at low water? A. No, sir.

Q. Don't you keep track of the various stages

of the river at [306] different times of the year?

A. Yes, sir; the river at Portland was one foot

and six inches above zero, but it was not that high

at St. Helens; probably a foot above zero at St.

Helens, because further down the river.

Q. What was the stage of the water at Astoria

at that time?

A. Their tide was the only stage of the water at

Astoria.

Q. I mean what was the stage of the water above

zero at that time?

A. It is above or below zero; no difference in the

stage of the water only tidal stage.

Q. So the height of the water makes no difference

at Astoria; just tidal effect? A. Just the tide.

Q. You are positive of that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the height of the river gradually fades

from maximum at Portland to nothing at Astoria?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you consider the stage of the river was a

foot above zero at this point?

A. About a foot, yes, sir, at St. Helens.

Q. If your ship turned on that twenty-five foot

sounding at exactly low tide, she would strike it by

an inch, then? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. You knew, didn't you, that she would not turn

on low tide?

A. Would turn immediately after low tide.

Q It is the coming in of the tide that causes a

ship to swing on her anchor, isn 't it ? A Yes, sir.

Q. Rather than the wind? The wind does not

have much eifect on it?

A. No, would not have much effect, on a ship

loaded as that was.

Q. The current has a more powerful influence

than anything?

A, Yes, sir, a ship of that draft.

Q. Fully loaded? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, by anchoring a little further down the

stream you could very easily have avoided that shoal

place, couldn't you? [307] A. Yes, sir.

Q. And anchoring further over towards the

Washington shore, and further down, you wouldn't

have been in any danger from that twenty-five foot

sounding at all, would you? A. No, sir.

Q. Even if she swung to the Washington shore?

A. No, sir.

Q. You knew the main ship channel was on the

Oregon side, didn't you?

A. The main ship channel down the thirty-foot

contour not on the Oregon side at all.

Q. You knew the ranges there on the Oregon

bank, didn't you? A. No ranges at this place.

Q. You don't mean to deny the existence of the

St. Helens Bar range and the Columbia City range,

of course?
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A. The St. Helens Bar range and the Columbia

City range are not used after pass Columbia City.

Q. Not used? A. Not used as ranges.

Q. They are not? A. No, sir.

Q. So you think the pilot made a mistake if he

used that?

A. I am not here to estimate what a pilot does.

.[ am just saying what I would do.

Q. You want to be understood as testifying that

Columbia River pilots don't any of them use that

range ?

A. I am not testifying for Columbia River pilots,

i5ir.

Q. You said not used.

A. I am speaking for myself alone.

Q. You don't use ranges in navigating the river

at that point? A. No, sir.

Q. Now, of course you understand. Captain, we

are speaking of the river as it was then?

A. Sure, I understand that.

Q. Not later changes. A. This chart here.

Q. At that time, assuming a vessel anchored at

that point, would you have taken a vessel like the

*'West Keats" down the river there past that place?

[308]

A. Coming down we come on St. Helens Range

to a point about abreast of these Columbia City

Mill lights and head right off down the middle of

the channel towards the lights at Kalama, until we

picked up the lower Columbia City Range, and went

off on that.
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Q. How far would it be from the place that you

would leave the St. Helens Bar Range until you

would pick up the Columbia City Range below?

A. Quite a ways; half a mile, I should judge.

Q. Half a mile? A. I should say.

Q. There would not be more nearly a mile and

a half, or two miles ? A. Might be that.

Q. Great deal of difference between those two

distances, Captain; you ought to advise yourself.

A. About a mile—no, about half a mile is right.

Q. What is that?

A. About half a mile—no, wait a minute; about

a mile, sir.

Q. Now, you would leave the St. Helens Bar
range abreast the Columbia City Mills dock?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that is the dock on the Oregon side,

marked with a tower immediately back, shown as

High Tower? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And a mile from the point of leaving that

range—you would there travel down the middle of

the river and reach the Columbia City Range a mile

below, would you?

A. About a mile below, yes, sir.

Q. Nautical mile or statute mile?

A. I don't know what those are.

Q. Don't that map show?

A. Statute mile, I believe, on this map.

Q. Distance not shown that far down on this map.

A. You understand where I get my limit; this

chart has half mile circles on it here, and I took one
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of those for measurement
; [309] might be a little

more, and might be a little less.

Q. One of the times you testitied before the In-

spectors, before you learned of the position of the

"Boston Maru" as shown by the ship's bearings,

didn't you express the judgment to the Inspectors

that you had anchored about six or seven hundred

feet out from the Oregon shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you changed that opinion when a later

location with bearings showed the "Boston Maru"
to have been about nine hundred feet out?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you arrive at that figure, six or seven

hundred feet? Was that your estimate?

A. That was my estimate that night.

Q. So you thought you were anchored about six

or seven hundred feet out from the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your idea, Captain, of going in that

close to the Oregon shore, in view of the two ranges

converging at that point?

A. In figuring there, put the ship right cross-

wise of the river with her stern towards the front

light of the CoUimbia City range, she will come

to anchor and she will swing downstream past that

light and swing clear there; being out that far

from the Oregon shore I was positive she would

be clear of the Washington shore, as no lights on

it ; no way of estimating how far you are from tlie

Washingion shore.

Q. When 3'ou anchored there you didn't give
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much consideration to the use of that Oregon side

of the river as a channel; as much as you did to

having your own vessel safe from going ashore on

either bank, did you?

A. No, sir. That was exactly what I was on the

vessel for, to look out for the safety of the vessel

I was aboard.

Q. You didn't make any special effort, then, to get

the vessel out of the fairway? [310]

A. Couldn't make any effort; if I anchored a ship

had to anchor in the fairway some place.

Q. In fact, if you had gone a little below and

further out, you would have been just as safe with

your own vessel and would have been entirely away

from the fairway, wouldn't you?

A. Not in my estimate, no, sir.

Q. You would have been entirely away from the

Oregon shore?

A. I would have been as safe—I would have been

out of the way, probably, more, but my ship

wouldn't have been as safe, or I wouldn't have

known she was as safe as she was.

Q. You wouldn't have known she was as safe?

A. No, sir.

Q. But looking at the chart now, you realize she

would be as safe?

A. Not that night. I would do the same thing,

anchor that same place if I had to do it over again.

Q. You would anchor the same place?

A. Near the same place, for the safety of my
own ship.
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Q. And you feel, then, in anchoring a vessel, the

safety of that vessel is the first consideration and

not the obstruction of the channel?

A. I don't feel I obstructed the channel, sir.

Q. You know there is a law against obstructing

the channel, don't you, the fairway?

A. I don't feel that I obstructed the channel, sir.

Q. You know that the river is wilder and deeper

just below that front Columbia Cit}^ light than it

is immediately opposite, don't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Had 3^ou at that time often passed vessels at

anchor in that general vicinity?

A. I had passed them there, yes, sir.

Q. Coming up the river or down the river?

A. Both ways. [311]

Q. Have you passed them on the Oregon side or

the Washington side?

A. I can't ever recall passing a vessel on the

Washington side.

Q. The only recollection you have of passing ves-

sels there, you were on the Oregon side of the an-

chored vessel? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And in going to the Oregon side, did you go

to the Oregon side of the anchored vessel by passing

from one range to the other—to the other along the

Oregon shore ? That is to say, have you ever passed

vessels there at night?

A. Yes, I have j^assed vessels there at night.

Q. When you were on the Oregon side?

A. Yes.

Q. Going up the river or down the river?
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A. I can say both ways there, too.

Q. Well, coming" down the river then, passing

such vessels, did you come down the St. Helens

Bar Range? A. Yes.

Q. And leave that range to go on the Columbia

City Range ? A. Yes.

Q. Following along the Oregon shore in the in-

terim between?

A. Didn't follow along the Oregon shore; passed

between the vessel and the shore.

Q. Passed between the vessel and the Oregon

shore I A. Yes, sir.

Q. Coming up you do the same thing in reverse,

do you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And those vessels were far enough over to the

Washington shore to give you clearance, were they?

A. Yes.

Q. In fact, it is customary for pilots in anchor-

ing vessels in that place to anchor far enough to

the Washington shore to give clearance, isn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. If you had anchored further over to the Wash-

ington shore on this occasion, you would have given

better clearance, wouldn't you?

A. I would on one side, but would not on the other

side ; I [312] intended to anchor in the middle of

the channel, give clearance on both sides ; if the ship

would swing one way, would clear the channel on

one side; if the ship swung the other way, would

clear the chaimel on the opposite side. That was

my intention when I anchored there.



334 United States of America vs.

(Testimony of Captain George F. Gildez.)

Q. You did that regardless of the fact that the

customary channel is nearer the Oregon side than

the Washington side?

A. I did that because I didn't know which way

the ship was going to swing.

Q. But you knew which way ships go up and

down the river, didn't you, and you knew that was

nearer the Oregon side than the Washington side?

A. At that time I was not bringing ships up and

down the river; I had a ship anchored at Columbia

Cit}^ which I had to look out for. I was respon-

sible for that ship, the one I anchored at Columbia

City.

Q. You had been a pilot on the river two years

prior to that time?

A. Four years—two years—take that back.

Q. Two years prior to that time? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Four years at the present time?

A. Yes, two years at that time.

Q. When did you first get your Grovernment pilot

papers? A. About 1909-'10.

Q. When did you first get your state branch?

A. 1922.

Q. Wlien you became a Columbia River pilot?

A. Yes.

Q. Before that time you held the Government

license only? A. The Government license; yes.

Q. Wliat position did you hold on the vessels prior

to that time?

A. Master and pilot, mate, deck-hand, and all posi-

tions.
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Q. What companies did you work for?

A. For Shaver, for C. R. N., for the Port of Port-

land, Diamond O. [313] Navigation Company,

Crown Willamette Pulp & Paper Company.

Q. What vessels had you been master of before

the time 3^ou became pilot?

A. ''Diamond 0." "Pronto."

Q. "Diamond O" and "Pronto." They are both

tugs, are they?

A. Yes, they are both tugs. They are all tugs

that I have been master of.

Q. What other vessels have you been master?

A. "Georgie Burden"—that is about all, I guess;

that's enough.

Q. "Georgie Burden," "Pronto" and "Diamond

O" then? A. That's about all.

Q. Those are the three vessels that you have been

master of?

A. For any length of time; been on others for

short periods, I don't know, of ten days practically.

Q. And this employment in various capacities on

river steamers extended from 1909 to 1922?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you in the pilot-house when the bearings

were taken on the "Boston Maru"?

A. I was with the second mate, yes, sir.

Q. I believe you said you pointed out to him the

various lights ? A. Yes.

Q. Told him the names of them? A. Yes.

Q. Did you watch him take bearings? A. Yes.

Q. Did you help him take them? A. No, sir.
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Q. Where were you when the running lights of

the '' Boston Maru" were extinguished and the an-

chor lights set out? A. On the bridge.

Q. That was after the anchor was in the water,

was it?

A. That was unmediately after the anchor was

let go.

Q. And while the vessel was swinging as you

described? A. Yes. [314]

Q. When was it that you went below after that?

A. About nine o'clock, or a little after.

Q. After the vessel had been anchored for about

half an hour?

A. Twenty minutes, or half an hour.

Q. About twenty minutes? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was the vessel swingmg dowTistream on her

anchor at that time, at the time you went below?

A. She wasn't swinging; she was lying stern of

the tide.

Q. Not swinging but laying straight?

A. Yes, i)ractically straight, with the stern down-

stream.

Q. What room did you go to in the vessel?

A. In the saloon.

COURT.—Wliat does that have to do with this

collision? Taking up a great deal of time.

Mr. SNOW.—Just to be informed as to the dis-

tance of that room from the pilot-house.

COURT.—What difference what room he went

to, whether asleep in one room or another?
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Q. What instruction did you give the Japanese

officer with respect to calling you?

A. Told them to call me if anything happened is

about all I said.

Q. That is about all you said? A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case of fog?

A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't use the word fog? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case the vessel

swung with the tide? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case the vessel

swung over to the Oregon side? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you ordinarily, on anchoring vessels, Cap-

tain, go to sleep while the vessel is lying at anchor?

A. Yes.

Q. In a place where there is no more anchorage

room than there is here? A. Yes, sir. [315]

Q. You testified that you anchored right the

middle of the fairway a little while ago?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You consider the fairway from one thirty-foot

contour to the other; do you think it is safe to go

to sleep when you are anchored in a position of that

kind? A. Yes, sir.

Q. With a changing tide coming along?

A. Yes, sir. Nothing at all that I can do after we
are anchored.

Q. If you had been on deck at the time the "West
Keats" was approaching, you could have given some

sort of signal, couldn't you? A. No, sir.
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Q. Are you familiar with the rule respecting an-

chored vessels, that they shall give some sort of

special signals on occasions when necessary?

A. There is a rule to that effect when it is foggy

and thick.

Q. You don't consider that rule is applicable to

clear weather? A. No, sir.

Q. You don't know of any rule applying to clear

weather requiring anchored vessels to give signals

by noise or by lights if necessary?

A. If necessary, j^es, but clear night, anchor lights

burning, there is no reason in the world why it

should be necessarj^ The man on the other ship

can undoubtedly see your lights; he can see you

are an anchored vessel then.

Q. So there was no possible reason for application

of that rule in clear weather?

A. Not that I know of, sir.

Q. You consider the rule as applicable only to

foggy weather? A. Just foggy or bad weather.

Q. Now, if you had been on deck at the time the

"West Keats" was approaching you could have

started the engines of the "Boston Maru" and

kicked her out of the channel very quickly, couldn't

you? [316] A. No, sir.

Q. Couldn't you have swung her around so that

she would have headed upstream again?

A. No, sir. I heard him testify that one mmute

they knew there was going to be a collision, the

people on board tlie "West Keats." One minute

wouldn't have gi\(Mi the engineers time to get even



Kokusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 339

(Testimony of Captain George F. Gildez.)

ready, so I wouldn't have known there was going

to be any collision any quicker than they did.

Q. Well, if you had been on the stern of the

"Boston Maru," looking over at the shore light,

you could have made some sort of an estimate as

to the distance she was from the Oregon shore,

couldn't you"?

A. If somebody had told me the "West Keats"

was going to run into us I would probably have gone

to the stern and put out a duffle-bag over the side,

but nobody told me that. I didn't even know^ the

"West Keats" was coming down the river, or any

other ship.

Q. Of coiu'se, you knew that ships were coming

up and down the river from time to time day and

night, didn't you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you imdress when you went to sleep?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were awakened by the jar, or collision,

were you?

A. I wouldn't say jar; the ship rolling is what

wakened me, by the collision or impact.

Q. You ran up on deck without putting on your

clothes ?

A. Went out on deck, right on the same deck I

was sleeping on.

Q. You were sleeping on the same level as the

boat deck, were you?

A. No, it is on the deck below the boat deck.

Q. What did they call that on the "Boston

Maru"? A. Called that the main deck.
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Q. Main deck? A. Main deck, yes, sir.

Q. The "Boston Maru" was then lying at anchor

forty-five degrees off [317] the Oregon shore,

was she"? A. About that I would say.

Q. How could you tell that. Captain?

A. By the line, the shore line, and the lights on

the shore; the lights ahead of us, the way she was

headed; the way the ship was headed principally,

looking up along.

Q. Was her stern pointed forty-five degrees down-

stream, or forty-five degrees upstream?

A. Downstream towards the Oregon shore.

Q. Was she swinging then?

A. Well, I couldn't notice her swinging; if she

was, it was very small.

Redirect Examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)

In answer to some of Mr. Snow's questions you

said that if you had anchored your vessel further

down below Columbia City lights, you would have

had more room. I will ask you whether on a night

such as it was, the night of October 25th, when you

came to anchor, there was any light or other land-

mark by which you could have anchored your vessel

further down?

A. There was no other landmark or lights that

could be seen further down than the front light of

the Columbia City Range.

Q. Was that fact the reason that you didn't an-

chor further down? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, Captain, from your experience have you

found that you can safely navigate a vessel down

to the very inches of the soundings as shown on

the chart?

A. Why, no, you must have water under the

bottom of the ship or you can't navigate her.

Q. And is it safe to figure down to the inches

upon shoals, in swinging over shoals?

A. No, sir, it is not. We don't figure down to

less than— [318] or very little less than a foot,

to have water under the ship, because there might

be an unevenness at the bottom which they wouldn't

get with their sounding leads.

Q. Those soundings are not taken over every foot

of the river? A. No, sir.

Q. You had to have in mind with respect to this

shoal?

A. Always have that in mind when going a shoal

place.

Q. When any—have any port authorities, or

other authorities prescribed any anchorage ground

off of Columbia City? A. No, sir.

Q. When a vessel such as the "Boston Maru,"

loaded in the manner she was, and under the ordi-

nary conditions that we find existing, is caused to

move by flood tide, state to the Court what the fact

is with respect to how she moves with respect to

the point where her anchor lies?

A. You mean the way she swings?

Q. Well, I don't care which way she swings, but

does she strain her anchor chain as she swings?
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A. When no wind, and no tide no stronger than

it is at Columbia City, I would say that she does

not strain on her anchor chain; she lays downstream

at her anchor, and as flood tide comes along she

moves up over the anchor straight ahead until

the chain comes tight, leading aft; this holds her

bow and the stern goes around one way or the other

from the pivot of her bow, and the chain holds.

Q. There is one other point: In answer to a cer-

tain question of Mr. Snow you said you had passed

up and do^^^l past this point while vessels were

at anchor, and that you had passed them both com-

ing up and down stream on the Oregon side?

A. Yes.

Q. Kow, will you state to the Court what the

positions of these vessels were at the time you

passed with respect to whether they were hanging

up and down the river, or were in any manner

athwart [319] the channel?

A. At all times I have passed there the vessels

were hanging up—practically up and down the

channel; sometimes stern with flood tide and some-

times with ebb tide.

Q. Assuming for the purpose of making the rec-

ord clear that your vessel had been hanging up and

down the stream, in }'our opinion would there have

been ample water on the Oregon side? A. Cer-

tainly.
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Recro^s-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SVL'Vr.)

Did yon ever anchor a vessel a little below the

front light of the Cohnnbia City Range?

COTTET.—A: night, yon mean?

Q. At night; yes.

A. Xo, I did not at night.

Q Don't yon think it eonld be done?

A. Why, yes, most anything conld be.

Q. Don't yon think yon wonld jndge abont how

far below that light yon were anchoring that vessel

if you wanted to anchor below?

A. I could make a guess at anything.

Witness excused.

Mr. SXOW.—^Ir. Hixon is here and I wouH like

to call him in rebuttal out of order. [320]

TESTIMOXT OF R. E. HIXOV. F»:>E THE (>0V-

EEXMEXT ly REBUTTAL,.

RE. HIXOX, called in rebuttal on behalf of the

"West Keats/' having been previously sworn, tes-

tified as foUowsr

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. S:S^OW.)

I hand yon ''West Keats'' Exhibit 1. Wnen was

the fixed red light established at the short jetty

marked 27-2?

A. Our records show that that <:li^r was con-

structed in April, 1923, and those lights are always

set on the end of the jetties as soon as they are
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constructed, so they will not be an obstruction to

navigation. I was going to say that I didn't have

the records of the Lighthouse Service available to

say when that light was absolutely established, the

exact date, but I know they would always—we build

a structure and on the end of the jetty they put a

light on it right away after they construct the jetty;

the jetty was constructed in April, 1923.

Q. When was the fixed red light established at

the end of St. Helens jetty marked 28-2?

A. Well, that is an old jetty, and asking Mr.

Clark of the Lighthouse Service this morning when

that light was established, he said about 1919.

Q. That light was moved further down recently,

wasn't it?

A. It was moved down as soon as this lower jetty

show^i here as proposed dike Xo. 28^6 was con-

structed; the light was then moved to the end of

that new dike.

Q. What was the date of that move?

A. That dike was constructed in December, 1925.

Q. I hand you tracing marked for identification

as "West Keats" Exhibit No. 2, and ask you if

you made that tracing? A. Yes.

Q. As it is made, can it be imposed upon this blue-

print .^ [321]

A. Yes, they are on the same scale, same objects

are shown—some of the same objects shown on each.

Q. What does that show with respect to the de-

gree of curve and radius of the curves of a vessel

attempting to pass around the "Boston Maru''
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marked at place of collision, at a distance of one

thousand and two thousand feef?

A. Well, it shows that a vessel leaving her course

above the "Boston Maru" at a distance of a thou-

sand feet would have to swing on a radius of eleven

hundred feet in order to clear that vessel.

Q. And at two thousand feet, what would be the

radius 1

A. The radius starting at a point two thousand

feet upstream would be thirty-one hundred feet.

Q. Now, what is approximately the sharpest curve

from the mouth of the Willamette River to Astoria

on the Columbia River?

A. Well, we always consider the turn at Harring-

ton Point, or Altoona as it is called, to be the sharp-

est turn on the river.

Q. Wliat is the radius of that turn?

A. The radius of that turn as a ship would run

it would be about three thousand to thirty-five him-

dred feet.

Q. Now, Mr. Hixon, when the tide turns at this

point shown on that blue-print before you, and

the water starts flowing up the river with flood

tide, when does that upper river flow commence

—

at the very beginning or turning of the tide, or later

on? A. Later on.

Q. At what stage m the flood tide does that up

river current come?

A. At the latter part of the flood tide.

Q. For how long does it continue?

A. Oh, I couldn't say exactly.
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COURT.—You mean at this point?

Mr. SNOW.—At this point, your Honor.

A. I couldn't say exactly. [322]

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. KING.)
You wouldn't want to undertake to say from per-

sonal knowledge, absolutely right at this point in

the river, would you ^. A. As to what 9

Q. As to the tide. You never made any observa-

tions right there at Columbia City, did you?

A. As to the velocity of the tide, do you mean?

Q. As to when it moves, yes, and the current.

A. No, we have measured the currents there to

know whether up or down stream, and the ebb tide

current more especially.

Q. But not so much the upstream current?

A. No.

Q. Now, with respect to the circles of various

radii that you have last mentioned, you have as-

sumed in these different curves that the man would

want to pass not only the "Boston Maru" in a per-

pendicular position to the baiik, but also including

the full length of anchor chain that she had out, have

you not ? A. That is the way it is done.

Q. Now, I will ask you, Mr. Hixon, if at about

this point on this curve here, sc thousand feet now,

the master of the vessel would not be safe in setting

the ship for reverse curve that would come around

like that? I have made a mark there.

Mr. SNOW.—I have no objection to the witness
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answering that question, but of course he is not a

pilot.

A. That would be a matter of navigation. I

couldn't be expected to tell you whether that could

be done or not; that is a matter of handling the

vessel.

Q. As far as drawing curves, though, it could be

done?

A. Yes, it would run over her anchor chain, how^-

ever.

Q. Well, say you came up a little further; the

same could be [323] done way back here on this

other one where I make the mark "X" on the larger

radius or arc?

A. At some point in here the direction could be

changed so that the curves could be drawn to pass

outside that chain.

Q. And from your own experience you don't

know whether a ship turns on an even arc or not,

do you? A. No.

Q'. It might operate in what is known in engi-

neering terms "on a spiral." Is that right?

A. That is probably so.

Mr. KING.—At this time I wish to offer in evi-

dence "Boston Maru" Exhibit "L" for Identifica-

tion.

(Marked "Boston Maru" Exhibit "L.")

Mr. SNOW.—And I want to offer in evidence

tracing marked "West Keats" Exhibit 2 for Identi-

fication.
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Mr. McCAMANT.—We object to that as irvele-

vant and immaterial.

COURT.—It will be a-dmitted for whatever it is

worth.

(Marked "West Keats" Exhibit 2.)

AVitness excused. [324]

TESTIMONY OF H. S. TODO, FOR THE
"BOSTON MARU."

H. S. TODO, a witness called on behalf of the

"Boston Maru," being first duly sworn, testified

as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
You are connected with what Japanese firm?

A. Suzuki & Company.

Q. And have you charge of the ships that Suzuki

& Company look after ? A. Yes, I do.

Q. I will ask you whether Suzuki & Company

look after the "Boston Maru" when she visits these

ports on the North Pacific Coast.

A. Yes, we have charge of her.

Q. Do you on behalf of Suzuki & Company cor-

respond with the owners of the vessels?

A. I do.

Q. And with whom do you corres]iond as owners

of that vessel I

A. To the head ot'lice ol' the owner of that vessel.

Q. And what is the name of the owner?

A. Kokusai Kisen Kaisha.

Q. Isn't there a Kabushiki in the name loo?
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A. I beg your pardon; the word before the last

is Kabushiki.

Q. What does the word "Kabushiki" mean?
A. Kabushiki, English translation, limited, and

to my knowledge it is incorporation in America.

Q. Now, this concern, the owner of the vessel,

what is it, a partnership or corporat;ion ?

A. It is a corporation.

Q. Japanese corporation?

A. Japanese corporation.

Q. Have you in your hand the certificate?

A. I have extracts of the certificate.

Q. Is it identified by the American Consul at

Kobe? A. Yes. [325]

Q. Will you translate the Japanese part of that

certificate ?

A. "Extract of Register. Register No. 743.

Name of firm Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha.

Kaigan Street No. 8, Kobe head office; date of in-

corporation, Taisho, the eighth year, July 1st. The

directory, the address

—

Q. We may omit the name of the directory, may
we not?

Mr. SNOW.—Yes.
Q. You may skip the names of the directors.

A. "The undersigned herewith certifies that this

is an extract of the original register, the fifteenth

year of Taisho, June 3. Signed Kobe District

Court, Court Clerk Uyeda, 'I'; and seal."

Mr. McCAMANT.—I offer in evidence the cer-

tificate the witness has translated.
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Q. Now, you have given us a date there; such a

date as 8 Taisho. Will you explain what that date

means ?

A. According to our American way of fixing

dates Taisho the eighth year corresponds to 1919

A. D. ,

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Who is the man that signed this certificate—Oh,

I notice that is in English. That is a certificate of

the Kobe local court in Japan, refei's to the corpo-

ration and not to the vessel, doesn't it?

A. Correct, the corporation.

Q. And you deal with that same corporation as

the owner of the vessel ? A. I do.

Witness excused.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I presume our depositions

are considered as read.

COURT.—Yes, you may read them in the argu-

ment.

"Boston Maru" rests. [326]

TESTIMONY OF CAPTAIN E. H. BERRY,
FOR THE GOVERNMENT (RECALLED
IN REBUTTAL).

Captain E. H. BERRY, recalled in rebuttal,

having been previously sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination.

(Questions by Mr. SNOW.)
Captain Berry, since you ai'e on the witness-
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stand the issues have been somewhat clarified as

to the question of what you could see and what you

couldn't see as you approached the ''Boston Maru."

Now, I want you to take the "West Keats" Exhibit

No. 1 and, using that to illustrate your answer, tell

the Court what you could see at such places as you

suggest, taking first—well, tell the Court what you

could see of the "Boston Maru" and of the distance

which she appean^ed to be from shore, if you could

see any of that during the time that you were pass-

ing—after you had left the St. Helens Bar Range

and while you were following down the Oregon

shore, in order to get on the Columbia City Range.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I object to that as not proper

rebuttal. That is part of his case in chief, and we

offered no evidence whatever as to what this witness

saw.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, there was a lot of expert testi-

mony as to what he could see under the circum-

stances, and I want this to rebut that testimony.

COURT.—I suppose he can answer.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I make the further objec-

tion that the matter was fully gone into by this wit-

ness on direct examination in the case in chief.

Mr. SNOW.—I thought he could add just a word

to what he said ; I am not sure he could.

COURT.—All right; we will take it.

Mr. SNOW.—We want it to be entirely clear to

the Court.

A. As I say, coming down the St. Helens Bar
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Range, I got down to [327] the turning point, I

saw the ship anchored down here.

COURT.—You saw the ship before you got down

here, didn 't you ?

A. 8aw^ the ship's anchor lights, yes, out here,

but I had to get down at the foot of this St. Helens

Bar Range before I could line up to see what posi-

tion the anchored ship was; it was so dark that

night I could see no water cover at all; only the

ship and the shore. In fact, you couldn't see water

any distance and not knowing just how far down

she was, of course I couldn't tell—couldn't tell

whether there was room enough to put her hard

aport and go off to the Washington shore. I could

see the Columbia City lower range light; that would

be the front light to the Columbia City Range, and

it looked to me as though was enough distance—of

course that is back on shore two hundred feet from

the water—but the distance between that light mid

the "Boston Maru's" stern anchor light appeared

to be room enough for me to go down through there

;

in fact I thought I had to go down through there,

because I had no idea I could go off on the other

side.

Q. What lights could you see down below the

"Boston Maru," if any shore lights?

A. Couldn't see none whatever. Something more

I would like to state, however, in regard to the posi-

tion of the ship.

Q. Make your statement, Captain.

A. I would like to say that the witnesses hereto-
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fore have been told that the "Boston Mam" wa-s

anchored straight out from the Columbia City lower

light and they had been asked whether they would

have room enough and how much room it would

take for them to go off to the Washington shore.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I object to that as argument.

COURT.—Counsel will ai'gue the case.

Mr. SNOW.—I think probably that is argument.

[328]

Cross-examination.

(Questions by Mr. McCAMANT.)
Captain, you say you had no idea you could go

l)etween the "Boston Maru" and the Washington

shore? A. No, I didn't.

Q. You knew—when you first saw the anchor

lights knew the stern light was closer to the Oregon

shore than the bow light, didn 't you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You knew the vessel had swung towards the

Oregon shore ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you were familiar with the channel at

that point? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you knew that there was twelve hundred
and fifty feet or more of thirty-foot contour at that

point? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the stern of the "Boston Maru" trailed

off toward the Oregon shore; you still had no idea

that you could go between the "Boston Maru" and
the Washington shore. Is that right?

A. No, I had no idea from the time I could see

her that I could make it off there safely. I knew
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was a mile or two wide there, but I couldn't make

that turn.

Q. You want to be understood as saying that this

collision, in view of the position in which the '* Bos-

ton Maru" was anchored, was inevitable?

A. Yes.

Q. From the time you saw the "Boston"—you

mean to say that you were vigilant as a lookout, do

you? A. I don't just understand.

Q. You were vigilant as a lookout, that is, look-

ing ahead vigilantly to see what was ahead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You didn't overlook your duty in that respect?

[329] A. No, sir.

Q. You saw the "Boston Maru" and her position

as soon as any pilot could have seen her?

A. Yes, sir.

Q;. By the time you made out the position of the

"Boston Maru" you were too close to her to go on

the Washington side?

A. Yes, the Washington side.

Q. And therefore you contend that in view of

the position that the "Boston Maru" was anchored

this collision was inevitable. Is that so ?

A. I thought I could get by her of course until

the last moment. Everyone has testitied tlurt the

channel was down, and everyone has gone down the

Oregon side of the ships that are anchored there;

none has ever passed on that side but one.

Q. You know now thjrt (\iptain Moran took a

ship down there an hour and a half before?
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A. Yes, a very small one.

Q. Drawing twenty-three feet of water, wasn't

she?

A. I never knew her to draw twenty-three feet,

although she might if got a loa^d of wheat in her, or

something like that, but not general cargo or mer-

chandise.

Q. You heard the testimony drawing twenty-three

feet at that time? A. Yes.

Q. An hour and a half before you came along,

he went between the "Boston Maru" send the shoal,

didn't he?

A. Yes, he was the only one that ever did it

though.

Mr. KING.—You have been a pilot about five

years ?

A. Yes.

Mr. KING.—And prior to that time you were

pilot on a survey boat, were you?

A. No, I was captain of a river boat.

Witness excused. [330]

TESTIMONY OF MacCORMAC SNOW, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

MacCORMAC SNOW, a witness called on be-

half of the "West Keats," being first duly sworn,

testified as follows

:

Direct Examination.

(Without questions.)

A hearing was held in the office of Inspectors on
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November 7, 1924, relating to this collision. I at-

tended that hearing and took careful notes of it.

Captain Harry L. Case was one of the witnesses.

One page of my notes is devoted to his testimony,

and I offer my notes in evidence—offer the entire

group of notes, but the page in particular in evi-

dence, and ask that they be identified and marked

as an exhibit on behalf of the "West Keats."

Mr. McCAMANT.—I think they are irrelevant

and immaterial.

COURT.—It would not be competent evidence of

course.

Mr. SNOW.—I am unable to testify of indepen-

dent recollection that Captain there testified as to

the anchoring on the Red Range, but I am never-

theless positive that he did so testify, because I

find that in my notes and I took the notes very care-

fully.

Witness excused.

"West Keats" rests. [331]

AND there was. duly filed in said court the deposi-

tion of Anton Bergreth, a witness on behalf of

the United States, in words and figures as fol-

lows, to wit: [332]



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki KaisJia. 3'57

DEPOSITION OF ANTON BERGRETH, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

A. BERGRETH, the witness named in the fore-

going stipulation, being duly sworn, on oath deposes

and says:

Q. (By Mr. ALLEN.) Your full name is Anton

Bergreth? A. Yes.

Q. You reside in the city of Seattle?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you chief engineer on the S. S. "West

Keats" on her outward voyage from the city of

Portland, on October 25, 1924? A. Yes.

Q. State, in brief, Mr. Bergreth, what experience

you have had in maritime matters.

A. I have been going to sea for about twenty-five

years; and have held chief engineer's license for

about nineteen years. I have been going to sea

continuously for all that time.

Q. At this time, October, 1924, you had had your

chief engineer's license for how long?

A. About nineteen years.

Q. I will hand you the chief engineer's log of the

screw steamship "West Keats," from Portland to

Yokohama, and call your attention to page bearing

date October 25 and October 26, 1924, and to the

signature at the bottom as chief engineer, and ask

you if that is your signature?

Mr. COSGROVE.—I object to that unless he

identifies the document, as stated by counsel, rather

than taking counsel's statement for it.
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Q. Tell us then, Mr. Bergreth, whether or not

that is the chief engineer's log beginning on the

A'oyage mentioned?

A. Yes, sir, that is the rough log.

Q. And noting the darte to which I called your

attention [333] is that your signature at the

lower right-hand corner ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Prior to leaving the city of Portland proper,

or the dock at the city of Portland, did you make

any test of the steering apparatus of the vessel

''West Keats"? A. Yes, I tested it out.

Q. Was any entry made in the log?

A. It was entered on the log; yes.

Q. Examine again the log and please tell us

whether any entry or notation was made in the log,

as to that fact.

A. (Reading from log.) "Tried out engine-room

telegraph and steering engine" and found "O. K."

Q. That is upon this same day, October 25th ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you tell from your entry there about the

hour ?

A. I would say about 10:30 or 11 o'clock.

Q. Now, after your entries as to that test of the

steering apparatus, what do these other entries on

this page mearn?

A. It is marked here "Standby 10:45"; that is

a bell the captain rings down to the engine-room to

standby the engines to get ready to sail.

Q. What is this O. K. after that?

A. That is on the steering.
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Q. Do you know who placed that O. K. there ?

A. Mr. G-ratton, the first assistant engineer.

Q. What are the other entries there"?

A. Down below^ here?

Q. Yes.

A. One is sfandby 10:45 P. M. and then 10:55,

that is slow astern, the engines were turning over

slow astern at 10:55. [334] Then have various

bells after that ; to full ahead at 12 o 'clock midnight.

All these various bells are entered in the bell-book.

I do not have that here.

Q. What is this"?

A. That is "Department O. K."; that is J. Mc-

Lean, third assistant.

Q. What do the hours at the extreme left-hand

margin denote?

A. That indicates the different watches.

Q. And the figures in the column denoting the

total revolutions is what?

A. That is the total revolutions for that watch,

as indicated out here.

Q. Is that the total brought forward?

A. That is the total revolutions during that

watch.

Q. In the next column, revolutions per minute

indicate what?

A. That is the average revolutions per minute

for that watch.

Q. And what then would you say were the num-

ber of revolutions per minute commencing at mid-
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night and in the watch succeeding that hour until

the time of the collision with the "Boston Maru"?
A. Well, the average revolutions would be 6514

revolutions.

Q. (By Mr. COSGROVE.) Are you basing that

on the figures you just referred to in the log?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. (By Mr. ALLEN.) 651/^ revolutions per min-

ute is what is shown under the column marked

average revolutions per minute, is it not ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then going to the right of the watch marked

4 A. M., please read the entries you find there and

tell us what they are. [335]

A. At 1:43 A. M. received a stop bell; the main

engines were stopped. At 1:45 received a full

astern l)ell ; at 1 :47 received another stop bell. At

1 :48, slow ahead. At 1 :49 half astern. At 1 :54 full

ahead. At 1 :56 full astern. At 1 :58 full ahead.

At 2:01 slow ahead. At three minutes past two,

stop. At 2:16 slow ahead. At 2:21 half ahead.

At 2 :35 full ahead. That is in that watch.

Q. What is this right here?

A. That is the department O. K. L. O. Jet. He
was second assistant engineer and on watch during

that time.

Q. That watch extended to what hour in the

morning ?

A. 12 miiuites to 4 in the morning.

Q. You mean that Mr. L. (). Jet was second

assistant engineer? A. Yes.
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Q. Was Mr. Jet a man of ability for the position

he occupied? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long had you known him?

A. I had only known him about, I should say,

about a month before he was employed there; but

I have his record as a good man.

Mr. COSGROVE.—I move to strike the answer

concerning the ability of this gentleman, for the

reason it is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial;

and furthermore it is an opinion and hearsay.

Q. Could you tell from working with him whether

or not he was competent ? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. COSGROVE.—I renew my motion.

Q. Was he competent? [336]

A. Yes, I found him to be a good man.

Q. What would you say was the speed of the

vessel, loaded as she was, and running through

fresh water, at the revolution of 65^/^ revolutions

per minute?

A. You mean the speed of the vessel through the

water ?

Q. Yes.

A. Not figuring the currents or anything, just

the vessel going through the water?

Q. Yes. The ship going through the water, what

was her speed?

A. I would say between seven and a half and

eight knots.

Q. When did you first go to the engine-room, Mr.

Bergreth ?

A. Immediately after the first bell at 1 :43.
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Mr. ALLEN.—I ask that this log be marked
Exhibit "A" to the deposition of A. Bergreth, and
I offer it in evidence.

Mr. COSGROVE.—I wish to examine the witness

before making my objections to the admission of the

log in evidence.

Q. (By Mr. COSGROVE.) Where did this

alleged collision take place?

A. When did it take place ?

Q. Yes. A. The exact crash?

Q. Yes.

A. I have no idea when that took place; we never

felt any crash. It must have been at the first bell.

Mr. ALLEN.—You mean the hour or day ?

Mr. COSGROVE.—The hour of the day.

A. It was close on to 1:43 A. M. on the 12 to 4

watch shown to the left there.

Q. Will you please, Mr. Bergreth, referring now
to the column under watch 8 P. M., and tell me
whether that is your [337] writing in that

column or not?

A. No, that is the 1st assistant's writing.

Q. Tell me whether any writing of yours is in the

column under 12 midnight watch—from 8 to 12.

A. These two words here "Full ahead," is the

only writing I did. I made that notation there.

Q. The words full ahead under 12 mid.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, coming to the next colunni which is, at

the left-hand marked 1 A. M., what part of that

is in your writing? A. This notation here.
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Q. The notation which yon refer to as yours is

"E. T. 2:24'' minutes. Stop 16." That is all that

is yours % A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, referrmg to the column which has 8 A. M.

in the left-hand margin, what portion, if any, of

that is in your writing? A. The word "vari-

ous."

Q. The word "various" in the extreme left-hand

side of the column is in your writing. A. Yes.

Q. And that is intended to be under what?

A. Under different pressures on receivers.

Q. Intended to be

—

A. —under the heading main engine receiver

pressure.

Q. In the pressure heading in the perpendicular

column. Now, coming to the last horizontal column

with 12 noon printed in the extreme left, what

portion of that, if any, is in your handwriting?

A. There is none of that in my writing. [338]

Q. Now, at the top part, is any part of that yours ?

A. That is all in my writing.

Q. All at the top ? A. That is the heading.

Q. The name of the ship "West Keats" and the

words Portland, Oregon, following the word from,

the word Yokohama following the word toward,

and the words Oct. 25-26-24, after the printed word

date, are in your handwriting? A. Yes.

Q. And take the heading of the perpendicular

columns, you have the words oil pressure, oil tem-

perature, meter, barrels, extra feed and engine oil.

A. Yes.
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Q. Now, not any of the writing, except what you

have specifically mentioned, is in your writing?

A. Except at the botttom.

Q. Down at the bottom "entered in port log,"

which is in your writing. A. Yes.

Mr. COSGROVE.—I move to strike all the tesi-

mony previously given by the witness relative to

the entries in this log. Also his testimony based

upon entries in the log as to estimated speed. On
the ground that the document was prepared and

made by others and the testimony is in the nature

of hearsay and not founded upon a document prop-

erly in evidence. Now, as to the offer to introduce

the document in evidence we object upon the ground

that it is not the best evidence and it is hearsay.

If this motion be denied, then I move to limit the

consideration of the document solely to the entries

which the witness [339] has testified he made

himself. And then, the further motion follows:

that the document as limited should be stricken as

incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial.

(Log-book marked "West Keats" Exhibit "A.")

Cross-examination.

Q. (By Mr. COSGROVE.) You said, I believe,

that the steering gear of the "West Keats" was

examined just before the coimnencement of this

voyage ?

A. Yes, I would say an hour and a half before.

Q. Did you make this examination yourself?

A. The first assistant and myself, and also the

first mate; he is generally present when we make

that examination.
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Q. Wellj were you present during all of this ex-

amination? A. Yes.

Q. And take part in it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you make all these log entries which

you say you made there?

A. When the book was brought up from the

engine-room, the say day.

Q. The afternoon of the same day?

A. No, sir. In the morning.

Q. After the collision?

A. After we arrived at pier No. 1 and tied up,

back in Portland.

Q. The vessel left Portland when, what time of

day?

A. She got away from the dock at 10:55 and we

maneuvered around out in the river until midnight

;

that is at Terminal 4.

Q. Then this trial of the engine-room steering

gear was a [340] dock trial?

A. It was alongside the dock; yes.

Q. These entries as to revolutions that you

pointed out here are readings taken from time to

time?

A. Taken at the end of each watch of four hours.

That is where you run a full watch.

A. And they only refer to the total number of

revolutions? A. Yes.

Q. And they do not at any time indicate any

particular speed at any particular time, but refer

to and represent the average speed for that period?
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A. Yes. The revolutions per minute is the aver-

age speed for four hours of actual running time.

Q. Are there any other books kept by your engine

department which contain similar entries to the

owners that go in this log that you have just shown?

A. There is a port log and a bell-book. The

book that all these bells are marked down in and

the direction of the engine.

Q. Then all of the entries that would be on this

page showing the bells, the time, etc., are usually

taken from some other book?

A. If you receive any amount of bells it goes in

the bell-book. If you have only a few bells you

have enough space there and it is then placed in

the log. Sometimes they are copied out of the bell-

book into the log, providing that there is space

enough.

Q. But you did not enter in here any of these

entries with reference to the bells or times ?

A. No, sir. [341]

Q. You did not enter in here any of the entries

as to the revolutions ? A. No, sir.

Q. Where is the bell-book?

A. It is on the steamer "West Keats."

Q. On what part of the ship?

A. It is kept down in the engine-room.

Q. Who has charge of that?

A. I have charge of it. It is down there when-

ever you expect to have any bells, leaving port or

coming into port, the balance of the time it is in

mv room.
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Q. Who makes the entries on that book"?

A. The engineer on watch.

Q. That book is now on the vessel ?

A. It should be on the "West Keats." We are

never asked to keep a record of that; that is in

the rough; but it is aboard the ship.

Q. Are any of these entries that you usually find

on such a page as this, that are taken from any

other book? A. No, sir.

Q. But looking at this so-called log again, do you

know what some of these symbols mean'?

A. Yes.

Q. I note in the horizontal column which appears

to be the 4 A. M. watch, the words "bells xl43"

what that x mean ^. A. Time.

Q. That means 1 :43 A. M. A. Yes.

Q. That is about the time of the collision? [342]

Q. Just prior to that in point of time, as this docu-

ment appears, the last entry relative to bells seems

to be "various bells" to

—

A. —Full ahead, midnight. That is when we

cleared.

Q. Then there are no other entries on this log

until about the time of the collision?

A. 1:43 that is the first bell after 12 o'clock mid-

night.

Q. And you would gather from that that the

vessel ran full speed until 1 :43. A. Yes, sir.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (By Mr. ALLEN.) Now, as chief engineer
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you have charge of the engineers' work on the

vessel? A. Yes.

Q. And you had possession of this book prior to

the commencement of the voyage? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you wrote in here the name of the vessel

and the port from which the boat was sailing, and

the date, and the proper heading where changes

were necessary? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you delivered the book then to

—

A. —To the first assistant engineer to take down

below.

Q. His name is what? A. Mr. Gratton.

Q. And then these entries are made at the time

these bells were given from up above?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the engineer notes right then and there

in this book [343] the time which these bells are

given him and what they are ? A. Yes.

Q. And do you recognize the signature of these

names or their initials that appear there?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. You know these are the signatures of your

assistants ? A. Yes, I know they are.

Q. When did you see this book next after you

delivered it to them, ordinarily?

A. It is brought to me at 12 o'clock noon, every

day.

Q. And you say at the time of the collision you

immediately went to the engine-room, after the

giving of the first bell? A. Yes.
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Q. And xl43 means 43 minutes after one.

A. Yes.

Q. That means stop at 1 :43.

A. Yes, that means stop.

Q. Were you in the engine-room when these bells

after 1 :43 were made in this book ? A. Yes.

Q. You saw them entered? A. Yes.

Q. Immediately after the signature of L. O. Jet?

A. Yes.

Q. You saw him sign his name there?

A. I did not see him sign his name. I know this

is his name.

Q. You did see him enter these bells'?

A. Yes. [344]

Q. And you do know that to be his signature?

A. Yes; I know that to be his signature.

Q. I now refer to the entries in the horizontal

column under the 4 A. M. watch. Now, as to the

entries in the column marked total revolutions,

there appears from the midnight watch 51560.

You say that the entry is made at the close of the

midnight watch? A. At midnight.

Q. And the next entry would be made normally

at 4 P. M. ? A. Yes.

Q. But if you had a collision as in the present

case the entry would be made at the time of the

collision, providing the voyage did not continue?

A. No, sir. We did not know there was a colli-

sion. This here was taken at the total running time.

Q. Now, explain to me just when the figures
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appearing in total revolutions column, 66230, were
made, in point of time ?

A. That was taken at 4 o'clock, at the end of the
watch.

Q. (By Mr. COSGKOVE.) Do you know when
it was put there ?

A. It is marked here 4 A. M.
Q. (By Mr. ALLEN.) Proceed.
A. I did not see him put it there ])ut I know it

was taken then.

Q. If for some reason the vessel stopped running
would you make a note of the total revolutions at
the time you stopped ?

A. I did not go down and take this, no.

Q. If the vessel was stopped by a collision at
1:43 and you stood by until 4 A. M., the total revo-
lutions at 1:43 [345] 4 A. M. would be the same
would they not? Your engine would not turn over
or there would be no revolutions of the engine after
you stopped ])ecause of the collision, hence the total
at the two different times would be the same?
A. They would not be the same.

Q. Would your engines be turning over even
though your vessel was stopped? I do not know
whether you understand me. This 51560, that is
the number on your counter at midnight, and the
66230 is on your counter at 4 o'clock when this man
goes off watch at that time and the difference shows
14670 revolutions for the 4-hour period—less the de-
ductions for the time your engines were stopped.
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In that manner you figure the revolutions during

the time she was running? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the 65%- revolutions is the average for the

time the vessel was in motion instead of being the

average for the 4-hour total period *?

A. That is the average for the time the ship was

actually in motion.

Q. That represents the revolutions per minute for

the time the vessel was in progress?

A. Yes. There was a deduction in time of that

of 16 minutes.

Q. Now, do you know of your own knowledge

whether or not 651/2' revolutions is an accurate state-

ment of the number of revolutions that the vessel

was making at this time, an accurate average ?

A. At what time do you mean?
Q'. Between midnight and 1 :43 A. M.

A. I would say that is fairly close to it. [346]

Q. As near as you know that is absolutely ac-

curate? A. It would not be more.

Q. And as an engineer, basing your answer upon

your experience as an engineer, would you say that

was accurate? A. Yes.

Q. Now counsel asked about your test of the

steering gear being a dock trial. I will ask you if

there is any other sort of trial or test of the steer-

ing gear other than at the dock?

A. No, sir, that is the only trial we ever gave.

Q. Was there any difficulty experienced in any

manner whatsoever with the steering apparatus,

from the time you left the dock? A. No, sir.
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Q. Do you know it to have been in proper work-

ing condition between the time you left the dock and

1 :43 A. M. ?

A. Yes, I know it was in good condition.

Q. (By Mr. COSGROVE.) The ship left Port-

land about lOiSS"?

A. That was backing away from the dock; yes.

Q. And would that be the time for the reading

of the revolutions?

A. No, sir. The revolutions are marked down at

the full ahead bell.

Q. And that was marked at 12 o'clock midnight?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When I say that I mean in addition to the

51560.

A. That was indicated on the counter.

Q. That was marked down at 12 midnight.

A. Yes, sir. [347]

Q. And the next marking that would naturally

follow, would be the one at 4 o'clock? A. 4 A. M.

Q. What are the revolutions of this vessel, loaded

as she was, and with the traveling water and cur-

rents, capable of making on this voyage, going full

speed ahead, between Portland and the point of

collision ?

A. The most she could make?

Q. At full speed ahead what would she make?

A. All depend on the revolutions you want to

give her; we were only turning up about 66 revo-

lutions; we never open her full going down the
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river ; they gave us full ahead but we never give her

full.

Q. What will she make going full speed ahead?

A. That means she was under a full bell?

Q. I believe you said that that would be seven and

a half knots ?

A. Between seven and a half and eight. I don't

think she would make over eight.

Q. Then in your opinion between Portland and

the point of collision, running under full ahead bell,

she was running about seven and a half?

A. I should say about seven and a half.

Q. (By Mr. ALLEN.) You mean after mid-

night? A. Yes.

Q. Prior to that time you did not have a full

ahead bell?

A. No; we received that at midnight.

Q. (By Mr. COSGROVE.) Between 12 o'clock

midnight and the [348] time of collision the ves-

sel was running at about 7% knots?

A. Between midnight and 1:43.

Q;. Might she be going more than that?

A. I don't see how she could make it fully loaded.

Deposition closed.

Filed May 10, 1926. [349]
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AND there was duly filed in said court a deposition

of C. J. Swenson, a witness on behalf of the

United States, in words and figures as follows,

to wit: [350]

DEPOSITION OF C. J. SWENSON, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

C. J. SWENSON was thereupon produced as a

witness in behalf of the United States of America,

and, having been first duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

Direct Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Your name is C. J. Swenson? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are a master mariner by business and

profession? A. Yes.

Q. How long have you held master's papers?

A. Since 1901.

Q. You have followed the sea, I suppose, practi-

cally all your life ? A. Yes ; since 1885.

Q. Now master of what vessel?

A. The "West Kader."

Q. That is a Shipping Board Vessel, is it?

A. Yes.

Q. Operated by the Columbia-Pacific Ship])ing

Company? A. Yes. [351]

Q. You were master of the steamship "West

Keats" on October 25th and 26th, 1924, were you

not? A. Yes.

Q. You were master at the time of the collision
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between the "West Keats" and the "Boston Maru,"

were you not? A, Yes.

Q. The collision took place not far from the St.

Helens and the Columbia City range lights in the

Columbia River, did it?

A. Yes, at Columbia City, just about at Columbia

City.

Q. Now, describe what the "West Keats" did

during the day preceding that collision, briefly.

A. I don't remember.

Q. Well, she made one or more moves in Portland

harbor, didn't she, commencing in the morning?

A. I am afraid I am not fortified well enough for

this here.

Q. I know it happened quite a long time ago, Cap-

tain.

A. Yes; it is over a year ago. I don't remember.

Q. You were on the vessel that day, weren't you,

preceding the collision? A. Oh, yes; sure.

Q. Were you on her all day ?

A. Yes, I was on her all the time. I didn't move.

I was there.

Q. What time did you start in the morning on

that day?

A. We started some time around six o'clock in

the morning, if my memory is right.

Q. And you were up and continually making

moves? A. Yes.

Q. And taking cargo?

A. We moved down to Terminal No. 4, from In-

man-Poulsen, if I remember right. [352]
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Q. Do you remember what time you moved to

Terminal No. 4?

A. Well, six o'clock in the morning.

Q. Six o'clock in the morning?

A. Yes, down to Terminal No. 4, to take in some

cargo and stuff.

Q. Do you remember what time you left Terminal

No. 4?

A. No, I don't remember the time. That was

during the evening some time. I have forgotten

that.

Q. Where did you go when you left Terminal

No. 4?

A. I think I went over to the oil dock, I think.

Did we or did we not ? Blessed if I can remember.

Q. I would like to get that log in the Captain's

hands, I think he can refresh his recollection from

it.

A. I think we moved from Terminal No. 4 over

to the oil dock and went to sea from the oil dock, if

I ain't mistaken. That (witness indicating book)

ought to be evidence enough. I will swear to that,

everything that is in there.

Q. You can refresh you recollection from a cop\'

of the smooth log of the "West Keats," which I

now hand you, subject to counsel's inspection, as to

the movements of the vessel.

(Mr. King here inspected said book.)

The WITNESS.—I would like to read that all

right.
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Mr. KING.—Did you ^Yrite it in there j^ourself,

Captain ?

A. No, I didn't write this.

Mr. KING.—Who wrote it?

A. The third officer, whoever he was. That was

Mr. Hart, I think his name was.

Mr. KING.—^What was his name?

A. Hart. There was Abrahamsen; he was mate,

Gillette was second mate, and Hart was third mate.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Hart was third mate?

[353]

A. Hart was third mate.

Q. Hart wrote that in there, did he?

A. This is his writing,

Q. This is a copy of the smooth log, is it ? I mean
that is the smooth log ?

A. This is the smooth log; yes. The rough log

is written in pencil.

Mr. SNOW.—I am not offering that log-book in

evidence; I am just asking the captain to use it to

refresh his recollection.

Mr. KING.—Let him read it over and then testify

after he has gotten through reading it.

Mr. SNOW.—You read it over, Captain, and then

tell me briefly what time the vessel left Terminal

No.4 on the evening of October 25th, if it appears

that she left at that time.

The WITNESS.— (After perusing said log-

book.) According to this we didn't go to no oil

dock.



378 United States of America vs.

(Deposition of C. J. Swenson.)

Q. According to that you didn 't go to the oil dock

at all?

A. We went right to sea from Terminal No. 4.

Q. What time did you leave Terminal No. 4?

A. The first signal to the engine-room was 10:56,

slow astern. That is backing out of the slips, see.

Q. Backing out of the slip at Terminal No. 4?

A. Yes, 10:56.

Q. And you didn't stop any place after that be-

fore the collision? A. No.

Q. And you were headed out to sea, were you?

A. Yes.

Q. On the commencement of an oriental voyage?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you fully loaded?

A. Yes, we were fully loaded. [354]

Q. Where were you when the vessel backed out

of the slip at Terminal No. 4?

A. I was on the bridge.

Q. How long did you stay on the bridge?

A. Until we entered the Columbia River.

Q. Did you have a pilot on board? A. Yes.

Q. What was his name?

A. His name is E. A. Barry.

Q. And you left the bridge and left tlie vessel in

charge of the jiilot, did you, when you left the

bridge? A. Yes.

Q. When you entered the Columbia River?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was what time?
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A. We entered the Columbia River at 12 :00 mid-

night.

Q. Was that midnight between October 25th and

October 26th, 1924? A. Yes.

Q. Did you change watches at midnight at that

time '^

A. Yes; the officers changed watches.

Q. What officer came on watch on the bridge?

A. The second officer.

Q. And w^hat was his name?

A. His name was Gillette.

Q. G-i-1-l-e-t-t-e?

A. Yes, E. P.—I don't remember his initials;

E. P. Gillette, I think, if I ain't mistaken. I would

not swear to the initials.

Q. Now can you refresh your recollection further

and tell me who went on watch as quartermaster or

seaman at the wheel at that time? [355]

A. That was Olsen and Gidlof. Olsen was on

lookout and Gidlof was at the wheel.

Q. How do you spell Olsen, 0-1-s-o-n?

A. 0-1-s-e-n, I think.

Q. Now a seaman by the name of Olsen, then,

went on the lookout?

A. He was on the lookout from twelve to two here.

Q. From twelve to two? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And another seaman by the name of Gidlof

—

A. Yes; he was at the wheel.

Q. Went to the wheel in the wheel-house, did he?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know where those men are now?
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A. No, I have no idea.

Q. When did you last see them or last know about

them ?

A. That was when we came back from the Orient

on that trip.

Q. Did they sign off then?

A. They signed off then; yes.

Q. Did you ever see them after that?

A. No, I never seen them after that.

Q. Do you think you could find them now?

A. No ; I don't know ; I have no idea. I could not

say if they were members of the Sailors' Union or

not. I could not say. They may be traced there.

Q. It might be possible to trace them through the

Sailors' Union? A. It may be; yes.

Q. But you don't know their addresses, then?

A. No, I haven't the slightest idea where they

are.

Q. Now when you went below at twelve o'clock

midnight what was the condition of the weather?

[356]

A. It was fine weather, dark, a very dark night

but clear atmosphere.

Q. Was it raining?

A. No, it was not raining.

Q. Had it been raining any during that day ?

A. No; I don't recollect that.

Q. You don't think it had?

A. No. I don't remember that now.

Q. Do you remember whether it was cloudy or

not? A. Yes; there was some clouds.
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Q. Was it foggy? A. No, no fog.

Q. And by dark and clear, what do you mean with

respect to the visibility?

A. Well, that you could see a long ways off; that

you could see the lights that night as far as they are

supposed to be seen.

Q. You had perfectly clear vision? A. Yes.

Q. As far as lights were concerned?

A. Oh, yes; yes.

Q. You could not see the outline of a ship very

far, I suppose, or the shore ?

A. Oh, no; not a dark night like that.

Q. Would you say that the visibility was good or

bad, then, at that time?

A. Well, the visibility was good.

Q. That was the condition, was it, from the time

you left Terminal No. 4 until you went below at

midnight? A. Yes; yes.

Q. What instructions, if any, did you leave in the

pilot-house [357] when you went below at mid-

night ?

A. I told the pilot to call me if he thought my
presence was necessary, and I made particular men-

tion that if it should get foggy not to go ahead. I

told him—the way I told him, "We will find a nice

place to anchor, if it should get foggy."

Q. Did the pilot understand those instructions?

A. Oh, yes; sure.

Q. What did you do when you went below?

A. Well, I laid down in my bunk and tried to go

to sleep.
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Q. Did you take off your clothes ?

A. No; no; ready to jump.

Q. How long had you been up that day, Captain?

A. Well, I had been up from about four o'clock

in the morning.

Q. Until twelve midnight? A. Yes.

Q. Did you go to sleep or doze off in your bunk,

or do you know whether you did or not?

A. Well, I must have been, because I was aroused

by the telegTaph—by the ringing of the engine tele-

graph.

Q. That telegraph rings on the bridge and in the

engine-room both, does it ? A. Yes
;
yes.

Q. Where is your room in respect to the location

of the bridge?

A. Well, that is right underneath the bridge, and

the wires go right through my room, right alongside

of my bed, in fact.

Q. And did the moving of that wire arouse you,

or the ringing of the bell on the bridge?

A. Well, it was the ringing of the telegraph.

Q. What did you do when you heard the telegraph

ring? A. Well, I rushed up. [358]

Q. You what?

A. I .jumped out of my bunk, and just about a

minute after I heard the crash when I got up on the

bridge, why, I found we had collided with this ves-

sel.

Q. Now you heard the crash ; did you also feel it ?

A. No, I can't say that I felt it. No.
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Q. But you knew when you heard it that there

had been a collision, I presume *?

A. Oh, yes, sure
;
yes.

Q. And you lost no time in getting on the bridge ?

A. No. I was up there, I don't suppose it took

me a minute.

Q. You were immediately below it? A. Yes.

Q. When you got up on the bridge what could

you see of the "Boston Maru," if anything?

A. Well, I could see—let's see. We had her

—

her stern was just abaft of our bridge, then, by the

time I come up.

Q. Do you know how far it was away from your

bridge, how far away from the ship's side?

A. I could not say how far, how many feet. I

could not say.

Q. And was the "West Keats" passing on down

the river? A. She was passing on; yes.

Q. How was the "Boston Maru" lying with re-

spect to whether she was lying parallel or across the

path of the "West Keats"?

A. The "Boston Maru" was lying right across the

channel.

Q. Were you able to note the shore lines when

you came up on the bridge?

A. No, I could not see the line there.

Q. Were there lights on the "Boston Maru"?
A. Yes, there was various lights. She had her

anchor lights, [359] and she had, I particularly

noticed, cluster lights, cargo lights on the main mast

aft there.
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Q. On the main mast? A. Yes.

Q. How far above the level of the deck, the level

of the main deck or well deck?

A. I could not say exactly how far they are
;
per-

haps forty feet I think; I could not say.

Q. Forty feet? A. Perhaps that.

Q. Are you talking about the cluster lights now?

A. Yes, the cargo lights.

Q. The cargo lights? A. Yes.

Q. Now the riding lights? A. No; oh, no.

Q. Not the anchor light? A. No.

Q. Captain, what did you do after you came on

the bridge, and what did the ''West Keats" do?

A. Well, we turned around and steamed up along-

side her to find out how serious he was damaged or

if he needed any—we asked him if he needed any

assistance, and he said no, and we went back up to

moor the ship at Terminal No. 1.

Q. What steps, if any, did you take to find out

the extent of the damage of the "West Keats"?

A. Why, I sent the second mate forward to find

out how serious we were damaged.

Q. Did you sound the bilges?

A. Then we sounded the bilges, and we found that

Ihe vessel wasn't [360] making any water.

Q. What was the condition of the wind at the

time you went below, at the mouth of the Willam-

ette River?

A. As near as I can remember it was light south-

erly wind.
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Q. Which side of the "Boston Maru" did you

steam up on after the collision?

A. Which side of the "Boston Maru"? On the

port side. We were on the port side of the "Bos-

ton Maru.''

Q. On the port side of the "Boston Maru"?

A. Yes; she was turning (witness indicating).

Q. She was still lying across channel?

A. Yes.

Q. When you passed her then to return to Port-

. land, which side did you go on her, the Washington

or the Oregon side?

A. We was on the Washington side. We went

right around her, see.

Q. But you stopped first? A. Oh, yes.

Q. And spoke to her ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you passed her to go on up the river

did you pass her bow or her stern, or pass her

amidships parallel?

A. Let me see. Well, she was turned—she was

tailing down the river then. We would be on her

port side.

Q. Her stern was down the river by that time,

was it? A. Yes.

Q. Did another vessel pass up the river or down
the river during this time?

A. Well, there was two vessels passed up, but I

don't know anything about that, who they were or

what they were.

Q. At what speed did you continue down the

river while you were [361] on the bridge. Cap-



386 United States of Adi erica vs.

(Deposition of C. J. Sweiison.)

tain, from the time you left Terminal 4 mitil you

came to the mouth of the Willamette?

A. We were going at half-speed.

Q. How did the vessel steer?

A. She steered fine.

Q. What was the condition of her steering en-

gine ? A. Oh, that was good.

Q. After you came to the Columbia River did

you make any change in the speed of the vessel, or

did the pilot?

A. Yes. We went full speed at midnight, at

twelve o'clock.

Q. The engine was set full speed ahead at twelve

o'clock, was it 1 A. Yes.

Q. At midnight? A. Yes.

Q. And that was just at the time you went be-

low? A. Yes.

Q. Can you give an estimate of what that full

speed would consist of, loaded as the vessel was and

traveling through fresh water as she was on this

particular voyage ? A. The speed of the vessel ?

Q. Yes.

A. Those ships generally make about ten miles

an hour when they go full speed, and I suppose it

was about the same, because it was slack tide. You
see, the current would not have any effect on her.

Q. Are you speaking of nautical miles now, or

land miles? A. Yes; what we call knots.

Q. Ten knots an hour ? A. Yes ; nautical miles.

Q. And did you log the speed of the vessel on this

particular [362] voyage ?
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A. No. The only way they estimate the speed,

that is the pilots do, when they pass between one

point and another, you see, they take the time.

They know the distance from point to point and

they take the time; so that they know how fast a

ship is going over the groimd, you see.

Q. Of course, you didn't have time to do that?

A. No.

Q. Since 3^ou went below as soon as she went into

full speed? A. No.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Cross-examination by Mr. KING.

Q. Captain, you say the pilots when they pass a

X^oint put down the time?

A. Oh, yes, they generally do.

Q. Where do they put that down?

A. I don't know where they do. They have a

little book of their own, I believe, but I don't know

if—

Q. They keep that book?

A. I don't know if they note every point.

Q. I mean from time to time they note a point ?

A. Yes.

Q. Don't they make some entry on the log there,

too, when they pass certain points?

A. Well, some prominent points.

Q. Are there any notations on that log when they

passed certain points?

A. I don't know if he ever made any or not.

There is a notation [363] of the time he left the
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dock and a notation of the time he entered the Co-

lumbia River.

Q. How far is it from the Terminal No. 4 dock

that you left at 12:56, to the mouth of the Colum-

bia River?

A. I don't remember that. I could not say ex-

actly how many miles there is. I don't remember.

Q. Do you know approximately, Captain?

A. No.

Q. Now, Captain, don't you think that you were

longer than a minute getting out of that room

where you were asleep to the bridge?

A. Well, I don't know. It might have been, see.

I could not say. I didn 't time myself with a watch

;

I could not say.

Q. That is just what you think?

A. That is an estimate absolutely.

Q. But you are sure you heard the telegraph

ring ?

A. I heard it—well, that is what woke me up.

Q. Now, Captain, didn't the telegraph ring be-

tween the time that you went to sleep or went down

to go to sleep, and the time you heard it and awak-

ened?

A. Well, there is no record of it in the log, and

if they had changed the speed of the ship, why, it

would have been recorded on the log-book, and I

am sure

—

Q. In other words, if they want to change the

speed of the ship they would have to use the tele-

graph to do it, wouldn't they? A. Sure; yes.
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Q. And you are accustomed to listening for the

telegraph, are you not? A. Yes.

iQ. And naturally, from your long experience,

your ear is trained [364] that when that tele-

graph rings you know that something is changing?

A. Yes.

Q. And the first time you heard it ringing is the

time you have described, and you rushed up on the

bridge; is that right? A. Yes.

Q. Now, are you pretty familiar with the ranges

on the river, or do you rely entirely on your pilots ?

A. We rely on the pilots. I don't know them.

Q. You don't pay any attention to what they are

doing as long as they are in charge?

A. Well, I pay attention.

Q. I mean, you don't pretend to lay the course

for them? A. No, no.

Q. Now, when you say that the "Boston Maru"
was lying across the channel, what knowledge do

you base that on? Do you mean she was cross-

wise, or what? A. She was across; yes.

Q. You mean she was across the course you were

going; is that it? A. Yes, yes.

Q. You don't mean to say. Captain, that she was

clear across the entire channel, do you?

A. Well, now, she was lying crossways to our

—

we were coming down the river and she was lying

right across our course. That is what I mean.

Q. That is what I want to make clear.

A. Yes.

Q. You naturally, having a pilot, don't under-
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take to say how wide the channel was, nor, not be-

ing in charge of the vessel, how far you were off-

shore at that time? [365]

A. No ; I don 't know how far we were.

Q. But you do know which is the Oregon and the

Washington shore along there? A. Yes.

Q. And you passed between the "Boston Maru"

and the Oregon shore?

A. And the Oregon shore, yes.

Q. Now, it does not take your vessel—when she

cast off her lines, say, at 10:56, it would not take

her very many minutes to get under way, would it ?

Does your log show how many minutes it took to

get her under way after the first signal to the en-

gine-room? A. It took from 10:56 to 11:28.

Q. To get under way? A. Yes.

Q. Now, when you have the entry there at 11:28,

does that mean that you' were then ready to pro-

ceed down the river? A. Yes.

Q. Now, at the time that you returned to Port-

land, back to Terminal No. 1, after this collision,

was this man Olsen, the lookout, still on board the

A^esesl? A. Yes.

Q. And how about Gidlof, the man that was in

charge of the wheel? Was he still on board?

A. Yes, he was there.

Q. Did any representative of the owners of the

*'West Keats" interview those men at that time?

Mr. SNOW.—That is objected to as immaterial.

A. I don't know if they were intenaewed by any

of the o\Miers.
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Q. (By Mr. KING.) Now, those men remained

on board and subsequently made the voyage over

across the Pacific and returned, did they? [366]

A. Yes.

Q. And when you returned to Portland from

that voyage they were still on board? A.Yes.

Q. Anybody ask you about them at that time?

A. Well, I don't remember exactly. You know,

the men were paid off.

Q. Yes. I mean, no representative of the vessel

or anyone inquired about them?

A. I don't know as they did.

Q. Nobody inquired of you about them?

A. No.

Q. When was the first time they inquired of you

about their whereabouts?

A. The first time I heard of that is Mr. Snow
right now.

Q. Of course. Captain, you don't know when the

cargo lights of the "Boston Maru" were turned

on?

A. I don't know if that was before or after the

collision; no.

Q. Naturally you would not? A. No.

Q. You didn't get up on the bridge until after

that? A. Yes.

Q. You are positive they were on at the time you

reached the bridge?

A. Yes, I—no, not when I reached the bridge,

but when we were heading—when we were steam-

ing up I remember them distinctly. I can't swear
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as to whether if the lights were on when I came

np on the bridge.

Q. That is the cargo cluster lights?

A. Yes, the cargo lights. [367]

Q. The anchor lights were burning at the time

you came on the bridge? A. Yes.

Q. Now, Captain, after the collision when you

went on the bridge, of course the "West Keats"

continued on dow^n the river for a period of time,

didn't she? A. Well, we didn't go very far.

Q. Well, it would take quite a w^hile to bring her

to a stop, wouldn't it?

A. Not so long. Let me see.

Q. Let me refresh your recollection. Captain.

The first thing that would interest you as master

of that vessel was whether she was badly injured,

wasn't it? A. That is the first thing.

Q. Yes; naturally that is the first thing?

A. Yes.

Q. And in order to find that out you ordered the

bilges sounded, didn't you? A. Yes.

Q. Now, it took a little time to sound those,

didn't it? A. Yes.

Q. And then after you discovered there was no

serious damage to the "West Keats" you turned

her around and came back up to see what was the

matter with the "Boston Maru"?
A. No, no. The vessel was stopped and we com-

menced to turn her around as soon as possible af-

ter the collision—as so(m as we had had the colli-

sion.
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Q. Was there ample room to turn?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Turned easily? [368]

A. The whole river there.

Q. Now, you say you were fully loaded when you

left Portland; how much were you drawing aft?

A. Twenty-five feet eight inches.

Q. How much up at the stem or bow of the ves-

sel? A. Twenty-three eight.

Q. Twenty-three feet eight inches? A. Yes.

Q. What was it drawing at the beam?

A. I don't know. We have to figure that out.

I could not say.

Q. You have no record of that? A. No.

Q. How long was the "West Keats"?

A. She is

—

Q. Approximately?

A. About four hundred twenty feet, I think, if

I remember right.

Q. What is her gross tonnage?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Was she riding clear down to her marks?

Mr. SNOW.—She is longer than that. Let me
get that accurately.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Was she riding clear down

to her marks. Captain?

A. She is twenty-five feet eight.

Q. What?
A. She is twenty-five feet eight inches aft.

Q. I mean, what are her marks on her, those

marks that show when she is fully loaded?
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A. I don't remember how deep she is when she

is fully loaded.

Q. That varies with different vessels'? [369]

A. Yes.

Q. How many vessels have you been on since,

Captain ?

A. That is the only one, the "Keats" and now

the "Kader."

Q. Did she lose her propeller on that trip, on

that voyage? A. No.

iQ. Which voyage was that the "West Keats"

lost her propeller?

A. We haven't lost her propeller.

Q. Didn't you lose a rudder or something?

A. No.

Q. Which one of those vessels was it lost her

rudder? A. Well, when?

Mr. SNOW.—That is objected to. It is not

proper cross-examination.

Mr. KING.—I naay be misinformed, but I

thought one of the Columbia-Pacific vessels lost

her rudder or steering-gear here in the last year

or so.

Q. Now, as I understand you, Captain, when you

returned back up the river, which you say was

promptly, the "Boston Mam" was then tailing

straight up and down the stream?

A. No; she was laying in the same position.

She hadn't changed her position very nnich. It

only took us—well, it didn't take us very long.

Q. How long did it take you?
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Mr. SNOW.—Look it up in the log, Captain. I

would like to know.

A. I will look it up. I wdll mention it—don't

put it down—at 1:43 we stopped

—

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What time was the colli-

sion, according to the log?

A. 1 :43 stop, 1 :44 our starboard bow struck the

SS. "Boston [370] Maru," glancing how on her

counter.

Q. That is the entry? A. That is the entry.

Q. Now, when did you turn around? What does

it show on that?

A. And at 4:45 full speed astern.

Q. At what, 4:45? A. 4:45.

Q. 4:45? A. Yes; that is full speed astern.

Q. That is three hours and two minutes ?

A. No; 1:45; 1:45.

Q. Full speed astern? A. Full speed astern.

Q. All right. When did 3^ou get turned around?

A. We commenced to go up the river at 2:35.

Q. 2:35? A. Yes.

Q. What time did you bespeak the "Boston

Maru"?
A. Well, we bespoke her between that—I don't

know the time; I don't remember exactly the time

we did, but that must have been somewhere just

previous to that, because as soon as we found out

that she was all right, why, we commenced to go.

Q. You started back to Portland at 2:35?

A. Yes.

Q. Does it show in there when you stopped?
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A. Beg pardon?

Q. Does it show in there when you stopped on

your way back, passing the "Boston Maru"? You
say you stopped and asked her whether she had

any damage. A. Yes. [371]

Q. Does that show in your log?

A. No; there is no entry made in the log about

that.

Mr. SNOW.—Pardon me. Will you read that

last?

(Last two questions and answers read.)

Mr. SNOW.—That is, the time of it is not noted?

A. No.

Mr. SNOW.—Or it is not noted at all?

A. It is not noted.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Not noted at all, is it,

Captain? A. No.

Q. But you have a recollection of stopping there

and asking the Japanese Captain if there was any-

thing wrong; is that right? A. Yes.

Q. Who answered?

A. I don't know who it was.

Q. Speak English?

A. Oh, yes. I think it was the pilot.

Q. Yes.

A. In fact, the pilot, he asked, too.

Q. Well now, you say that two other vessels

passed up and down about that time, is that right

—

either up or down?

A. Up, I think, if I am not mistaken.

Q. What?
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A. It passed up, if I am not mistaken.

Q. Two vessels passed up ? A. Yes.

Q. I didn't get it right. Going back to Portland

after the collision you went by the "Boston Maru"

on the Washington side; is that right?

A. Yes. [372]

Q. Any you think the "Boston Maru" was still

in the same position? A. Yes.

Q. As at the time of the collision?

A. As far as I can recall.

Q. I mean, as far as you can tell, she had the

same position? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, do you know the names of those other

two vessels? A. No, I don't.

Q. What kind of vessels were they?

A. I don't know. I can't say. I only saw their

lights.

Q. Well, can you tell whether a vessel is a deep

sea vessel by her lights? A. No, I can't say.

Q. Did they have paddles on them?

A. No. I don't know what steamers they were.

Q. Were they river boats or steamers?

A. I don't know what they were.

Q. Did they tow logs? A. I don't know.

Q. You could tell that by their lights, couldn't

you. Captain?

A. Well, I think—you know, I didn't pay much

attention to them.

Q. Yes. Well, naturally you would not.

A. No.
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Q, And you would not say what kind of vessels

they were? A. No.

Q. And you don't have any recollection of their

names? A. No.

Q. You didn't hear any whistles, did you?

A. I don't remember if I did or not. [373]

Q. Were your lookouts instructed as to what

constituted anchor lights?

A. The lookout is instructed to report any light

that he sees.

Q. Any light that he sees? A. Any lights.

Q. Well, were your lookouts instructed on what

kind of lights constitute riding anchor lights?

A. I don't know if they were or not. They are

not supposed to know—at least, the officer on the

bridge, he is supposed to be the judge of that.

Q. They are instructed to report any light?

A. Yes, report any light they see, whether it is

ashore or on a ship.

Q. How far away must the light be before they

report it?

A. Well, report it as soon as they see it.

Q. Do they ring the telegraph when they see the

light?

A. No; they report it by mouth, or some use a

bell.

Q. When a pilot is on ])()ard whom does the look-

out report to ? A. He reports to the bridge.

Q. AVell now, the bridge of course is just a struc-

ture; who is the person he i-eports to?

A. He re])orts; he Just rei)orts.
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Q. I am not a seaman, Captain; I don't know.

You have an officer in charge ?

A. We have an officer and a pilot on the bridge.

Q. Now, whom does the lookout report to?

A. Well, that is a funny question. They are both

there.

Q. Well, you mean he just simply reports and he

does not say it to anybody, but just simply—what

does he yell "? A. Yes, that is all. [374]

Q. What does he yell, "Light aft'' or "Port,"

"Bow," or "Starboard," or something like that?

A. Yes; wherever he sees it.

Q. Yes ; he indicates the direction ? A. Yes.

Q. Now, when that report conies to the bridge

what do they do? A. Well, they answer.

Q. Well, after they have done that what do they

do?

A. Well, that all depends on the circumstances.

Q. Don't they make any record of it? A. No.

Q. No record made? A. No,

Q. You mean to say when they cross courses no

record is made, or when they see lights, or any-

thing ?

A. Well, we would have an awful lot of records

if we marked down every light or everything we

pass on our way.

Q. What did the pilot say to you after you came

on the bridge?

A. I don't remember exactly what passed.

Q. Well, just give me an idea of what was said

as well as you can remember.
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A. The first thing I asked him if he had—I said,

Did he have a collision? So he says, "I am afraid

we did."

Q. Well, what was said next?

A. I don't remember all the conversation.

Q. Of course you could not remember the exact

words, but what did he say to you as well as you

can remember?

A. Well, I would not undertake to repeat, be-

cause I don't remember exactly what it was. But

we talked about various things.

Q. What were some of the things he talked

about? [375]

Mr. SNOW.—Give him your best recollection.

Captain, if there is anything more.

A. Well, I don't know exactly what he wants.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) You don't remember it;

is that right?

A. One thing he called my attention to was on the

range, some range, but I don't know what range

it was.

Q. Well now, you were pretty busy. Who gave

the order to sound the ])ilges ? A. I did.

Q. Who gave the orders directing the vessel to

turn around?

A. Well, the pilot; he did. That is, he did the

turning around; he directed the movement of the

ship.

Mr. KING.—Well, I think that is about all the

questions I want to ask you. Captain.

The WITNESS.—This is a long time ago.



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki Kaisha. 401

(Deposition of C. J. Swenson.)

Q. (By Mr. KING.) You haven't had any col-

Hsions since then, have you, Captain?

A. No, I haven't.

Q. He says that he can't remember, but this

collision would make a pretty firm impression in

your mind, wouldn't it. Captain? It is the only

collision you ever had, isn't it? A. Yes.

Redirect Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Captain, let me ask you about this matter

Mr. King was just talking to you about, the con-

versation with the pilot. Let me remind you, when

he said something about the ranges that you didn't

understand, did he add something about the posi-

tion of the "Boston Maru" and where she was

anchored? [376]

Mr. KING.—I object to that as leading.

Mr. SNOW.—Let's see. I don't want to lead

him. I guess I have already done it, though.

Q. Did he add anything else about the "Boston

Maru"?
Mr. KING.—Well, I object to that as hearsay.

A. Well, that is not hearsay, because it is the fact.

Mr. SNOW.—We will let the Court take it for

what it is worth, then.

Q. If he did say anything else about the "Boston

Maru" tell it now. Captain.

Mr. KING.—The same objection.

A. Well, he says, "Look at the range." He says,

"She is right on the range." That is the words he

said. Now, what range that range that was, I

don't know.
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Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) When he said "she," what

(lid he mean?

A. Well, the "Boston Marii." We also refer to

a vessel as female.

Q. But you don't know what range he meant?

A. No, I don't know.

Q. Because you are not familiar enough with the

ranges in the river down there ? A. No.

Q. Captain, you looked into the log there in

checking on those times and gave it as your under-

standing that the collision occurred at 1:44. You
check these times and see if they are right now:

1 :44 A. M. A. 1 :44, yes.

Q. 1 :44 A. M. ? A. Yes.

Q. And then you thought that the "West Keats"

had turned around and started up the river just

after 2:35 A. M.; is that correct? [377]

A. Yes, at 2 :35.

Q. So that would be a period of sixteen minutes

plus thirty-five minutes, or fifty-one minutes; is

that correct?

A. Four from five is one—fifty-one minutes.

Q. Fifty-one minutes. It took you approxi-

mately that long to get turned around ?

A. Yes. And prior to this time we were—let's

see. Yes, at 2 :03—is this to go in as evidence ?

Q. Yes.

A. At 2:03 he stopped and then it says, 2:16 we

went slow ahead and 2:20 half ahead.

Q. What was he doing; turning around then?
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A. No. We were going—evidently here at 2:03

we stopped alongside the "Boston Maru," see. It

didn't take us all of this time to turn around, you

see.

Mr. KING.—You have to stop and go ahead?

A. We would have to go ahead. Now here is

1:56 full astern and 1:58 full ahead. Now, accord-

ing to the bearings, or, rather, the signals, why,

we were turned around by that time. You see, that

would only be about fourteen minutes. That is

about what it takes.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) You are just figuring

now about the length of time it would take, are you.

Captain? A. Yes.

Q. You don't remember exactly what it did take

on that occasion? A. No; no.

Q. Captain, does a vessel like the "West Keats,"

loaded as the "West Keats" was at that time, steer

better when she is going half ahead or full

ahead ?

A. No; the more speed the better they steer.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived.

Filed July 2, 1926. [378]

AND there was duly filed in said court, a deposition

of E. P. Gillette, a witness on behalf of the

United States, in words and figures as follows,

to wit: [379]



404 United States of America vs.

DEPOSITION OF E. P. GILLETTE, FOR
THE GOVERNMENT.

Said E. P. GILLETTE was thereupon sworn to tell

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Your name is E. P. Gillette? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is your occupation, Mr. Gillette?

A. Seaman.

Q. What papers do you carry?

A. Chief mate, ocean steam vessels.

Q. Any ocean, any tonnage?

A. Any ocean, any tomiage.

Q. How long have you been at sea?

A. Nine years.

Q. How long have you been an officer?

A. Since 1921.

Q. By whom are you now employed?

A. Columbia Pacific Shipping Company.

Q. That company operates United States Ship-

ping Board vessels, does it ? A. They do.

Q. About how many of them?

A. I believe they have about ten now, or twelve;

I am not certain. [380]

Q. The number varies at different times, does it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. According to the amount of business?

A. According to the business it varies.

Q. They also own, or operate other vessels than

the Shipping Board vessels, don't they?
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A. They do.

Q. Which vessel are you on now?

A. The S. S. "Myrtle."

Q. Is that operated by them?

A, That is owned by them and operated.

Q. In what capacity are you on it ?

A. Second officer.

Q. What kind of vessels, that is, briefly what kind

of vessels are the Shipping Board vessels that the

Columbia Pacific has operated?

A. Cargo steam vessels.

Q. Of approximately what deadweight tonnage?

A. Around eighty-eight hundred; some more and

some less.

Q. Have you been employed on vessels of that

character ? A. I have.

Q. All the time you have been with the Columbia

Pacific? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And during what time have you been with

them? A. Since 1921.

Q. Have you always been on the same ship, or

have you been on different ships?

A. I have been on two different ships with this

company.

Q. What are those two ships?

A. The "West Keats" and the "Myrtle" or the

"Jena," previously [381] the "Jena."

Q. The "Myrtle" is the ship you are now on?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And she was previously known as the "Jena"?

A. As the "West Jena."
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Q. As the "West Jena"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The Columbia Pacific bought her from the

Shipping Board, did they? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long were you on the "West Keats"?

A. From January, 1921, to May, 1924.

Q. No—May, 1924? A. Yes, sir—1925, rather.

Q. May, 1925. In what capacity were you on

her?

A. First as third officer, and then as second

officer.

Q. When did you become second officer of the

"West Keats"? A. In January, 1922.

Q. In January, 1922? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were on her then as second officer October

25th and October 26th, 1924? A. I was.

Q. You were on her at the time of the collision

with the "Boston Maru"? A. I was.

Q. That collision occurred at ship's time approxi-

mately 1:44 October 26th, 1924? A. It did.

Q. According to your recollection?

A. Yes, sir. [382]

Q. Please describe the course of the vessel briefly

from the previous evening, the evening previous to

the collision. From what terminal or port did she

depart ?

A. Left Terminal No. 4 on the evening of the

25th.

Q. That is the Municipal Terminal of the Port

of Portland No. 4?

A. Municipal Terminal No. 4.
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Q. Do you remember approximately what time

you left there?

A. I believe it was around ten-thirty.

Q. And proceeded where ? A. Down river.

Q. When did you come on watch*?

A. At twelve o'clock.

Q. Midnight? A. Midnight.

Q. Where was the vessel then?

A. It was just entering the Columbia River.

Q. Were you on watch from then on until the

collision? A. I w^as.

Q. And thereafter? A. Yes, sir.

Q. During that period who wrote up the rough

log of the vessel? A. I did.

Q. That w^as your regular duty, was it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. While you were on watch? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And who made the entries from the rough log

into the smooth log?

A. The third officer, J. P. Hart.

Q. The entries in the rough log as of the time of

the collision [383] then would be in your hand-

writing, would they? A. They would.

Q. When you went on watch twelve midnight as

the "Keats" was coming into the Columbia River,

where did you take your position ?

A. From the light at the entrance of the Colum-

bia River, or the entrance to the Willamette River.

Q. Did you note that light in relation to the

*'West Keats" at the time?
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A. Yes, sir; I noted it in the log-book, entering

the Columbia River at twelve o'clock.

Q. And from what part of the "West Keats"

did you note that? A. In the pilot-house.

Q. What kind of a night was it as to weather

conditions ?

A. The sky was dark and overcast, but the visi-

bility was very good.

Q. Was it what you would call a dark or a gray

night, or how would you describe the night?

A. A black night, with good visibility, the lower

atmosphere clear.

• Q. The lower atmosphere clear, did you say?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any fog? A. No, sir.

Q. What rain, if any? A. No rain.

Q. How much wind, and from what quarter?

A. I believe the wind was westerly, I am not cer-

tain now, and about force two.

Q. Was the wind variable or fixed?

A. I don't remember. The force of the wind is

entered in the log ; it was taken at the time ; and the

direction.

Q. You took it and entered it in the log-book, did

you? [384] A. Yes, sir.

Q. At what kind of a bell did the ''West Keats"

operate from the time you went on bridge?

A. Full speed ahead.

Q. When was she put at full speed ahead ?

A. Entering tlie Columbia River.

Q. And how long did she maintain that speed?
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A. Up till one minute before she struck the "Bos-

ton Maru."

Q. What was done with her engines one minute

before she struck the "Boston Maru"?

A. They were stopped.

Q. Were they put astern at any time before the

collision? A. No, sir.

Q. When were they put astern first after the col-

lision? A. One minute after the collision.

Q. Did you take those times? A. I did.

Q. When you say the engines were stopped one

minute before the collision do you mean exactly

sixty seconds, or did you mean that in a more ap-

proximate way ?

A. I mean sixty-seconds as taken from the pilot-

house clock.

Q. Did you enter those times in the log-book?

A. I did.

Q. Have you figured the speed of the "Boston

Maru," the average speed of the "Boston Maru,"

from the time she entered the Columbia River until

the collision?

A. You mean the speed of the "West Keats"?

Q. I beg your pardon; the speed of the "West
Keats"?

A. Eight and eighty-four hundredths miles an

hour.

Q. You figured that yourself? [385]

A. I did.

Q. How did you figure it?
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A. I took the distance from the entrance of the

Coliunbia River to the position of the "Boston

Maru," as they showed it by their cross-bearings.

Q. As shown by the cross-bearings taken on board

the "Boston Maru," you mean? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You took that distance? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you find that distance?

A. I took it from the scale on the United States

Coast and Geodetic Survey, measured the main ship

channel.

Q. That channel is marked on the United States

Coast and Geodetic Survey charts, is it?

A. The ranges are.

Q. You are familiar with it?

A. And we followed the ranges down. Yes, sir,

I am familiar with it.

Q. How many miles did that show from the mouth

of the Columbia River to the place of the collision?

A. Fifteen and three-tenths miles.

Q. And how much time was consumed between

those two points ?

A. An hour and forty-four minutes.

Q. And the speed of the "West Keats" figured

how much?

A. About fifteen and three-tenths miles, divided

by the time interval, an hour and forty-four minutes.

Q. And what did you say that speed was ?

A. 8.84.

Q. 8.84 mik^s per hour? [386]

A. Nautical miles; yes, sir.
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Q. All of this is nautical miles, is it, or land

miles? A. Nautical miles.

Q. You didn't use land miles in your calculations

at all?

A. No, sir. We never use land miles in naviga-

tion.

Q. Did you figure that up to the instant of the

collision, or up to the time the engines of the

''Keats" were stopped for the collision?

A. Up to the instant of the collision.

Q. So that time included the last minute when

her engines were stopped ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not there was a lookout on

the vessel at and before the time of the collision.

A. There was.

Q. When did he go on watch ?

A. He went on watch at twelve o 'clock.

Q. The same time you did? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did he take his position?

A. On the forecastle-head.

Q. Do you know what his name is?

A. Olsen. It is entered in the log-book, the look-

out.

Q. You may use a photostatic copy of the smooth

log of the "West Keats" to refresh your recollec-

tion, if you wish. His name is Olsen?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did he take his position on the "West
Keats"? A. On the forecastle-head.

Q. How do you know he was there? [387]

A. He reported lights—not lights but time going
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down the river, striking the bells at twelve-thirty

and one o'clock.

Q. You heard his reports at various times, did

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And his bells? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What became of that man ? Did he make that

voyage with you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. To the Orient and back? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did he do then? Did he stay on the

ship or leave it ?

A. No, sir; he left the ship when we got back.

Q. Have you seen him since? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know where he is? A. No, sir.

Q. You have no idea how he could be found now?

A. No, sir.

Q. Was there a man at the wheel during the

period between the time you went on watch and the

collision? A. There was.

Q. What was his name ? A. Gidlof

.

Q. Gidlof?

Mr. McCAMANT.—I don't object to Mr. Gil-

lette looking at the log for matters of this kind,

but I doubt very much if he is entitled to refresh his

memory with the smooth log, which was not his own

memorandum. I think he would be entitled to look

at the rough log.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Now, as to Gidlof, did he

make that voyage with [388] you, too?

A. Yes, sir, he did.

Q. The same one that Olsen made?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did he stay on the ship or leave it ?

A. He left the ship on her return to Portland.

Q. And do you know where he is? A. No, sir.

Q. And you don't know any more about him than

you do about Olsen? A. No, sir.

Q. State the manner in which Gidlof handled the

ship and obeyed orders of the pilot during that

period from the time he went on watch.

A. He obeyed the orders promptly and correctly.

Q. What kind of a helmsman was he?

A. He was a good helmsman.

Q. Did you have or assume any duties in respect

to the obedience by the helmsman of the pilot's or-

ders?

A. When the pilot would give the orders I would

look to see that they were properly executed.

Q. State the manner in which the "Boston Maru"
answered her helm between the time you went on

watch and the time of the collision.

A. The "West Keats"?

Q. The "West Keats." I beg your pardon.

A. She answered her helm promptly—no trouble

whatever in steering.

Q. Her steering gear appeared to be in good or

bad condition?

A. In good condition.

Q. During the time between the time you went on

watch and the time of the collision did you stand

any one place? If so, where? [389]

A. I stood inside the pilot-house beside the tele-

graph.
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Q. All the time ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you give the order by which the vessel was

put full speed ahead on the telegraph? A. I did.

Q. At whose direction did you do that ?

A. The pilot's orders.

Q. When the pilot directed an order to the engine-

room, then who gave that order on the telegraph?

A. I did.

Q. If he directed an order to the helm who obeyed

that order?

A. He gave his orders direct to the helmsman and

then I would look to see that they were properly

executed.

Q. You didn't repeat them? A. No, sir.

Q. You just looked to see that he understood and

obeyed them ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was the pilot? Do you remember his

name? A. Captain Barry.

Q. Where did he stand? I am speaking about

the same period of time now between twelve o'clock

and the time of the collision.

A. He stood outside the pilot-house on the bridge.

He would walk back and forth across the bridge,

sometimes on one side and sometimes the other.

Q. About how long before the collision did you

first sight the "Boston Maru's" lights?

A. About four minutes.

Q. Now, when you speak of sighting the "Boston

Maru's" lights at four minutes, do you mean that is

the first glimpse you got of the [390] lights, or
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the first time you made them to be the lights of a

vessel ?

A. The first time I knew they were the lights of a

vessel.

Q. Were there other lights in the vicinity?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many?
A. There were quite a few. I could not say just

how many.

Q. What were those lights ?

A. Those range lights, and then there were shore

lights—buildings on the land.

Q. Was there anything particularly to distinguish

the "Boston Maru" lights from the shore lights

and other lights in the neighborhood?

A. Not until I got close enough to make them out.

They all look alike at a distance.

Q. When did you first see that group of lights,

of which the "Boston Maru's" lights were a part?

A. When we come on to the St. Helens range.

Q. How long was that before you made out the

"Boston Maru" lights as the lights of the vessel?

A. I could not say just how long before
;
possibly

five minutes, four or five monutes.

Q. Could you tell by looking at the lights of the

"Boston Maru" whether she was lying up and

down channel, or across the channel, or how she

was lying?

A. She was lying across the channel.

Q. How could you tell that ?

A. By the position of her lights.
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Q. Was her stern or her bow toward the Oregon

shore ?

A. Her stern was towards the Oregon shore.

[391]

Q. Her stern anchor light is higher or lower than

the bow light, is it? A. It is lower.

Q. Could you tell whether she was directly across

the channel, or in some diagonal position?

A. I could not tell that she was exactly across,

but I could tell that she was very close, if not di-

rectly across.

Q. When you first made those lights could you see

anything of the hull of the vessel? A. No, sir.

Q. Did you ever se^ anything of the hull of the

vessel

?

A. Not until we was right alongside of her, struck,

I could make out the dim outline of the hull.

Q. State whether or not the lookout reported the

"Boston Maru." A. I believe he did.

Q. At what time would you say that he reported

it?

A. About three or four minutes before the colli-

sion.

Q. About the time you made her out ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Had you been looking at her lights before that

along with the other lights? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any expectation of finding a ves-

sel anchored there at that point, or did you give

much thought to the finding of a vessel anchored
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there before you actually saw her lights and made

them out?

A. I didn't expect to see a vessel anchored there

in the main ship channel.

Q. Did you know she was in the main ship chan-

nel when you first made her out? [392]

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you know there was an anchorage ground

in that general vicinity ? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know now whether there is an an-

chorage ground in that general vicinity ?

Mr. McCAMANT.—I object to that as irrelevant

and immaterial.

A. I do. There is an anchorage ground there.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) In that vicinity?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know when the pilot first made out

the "Boston Maru" as an anchored vessel?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you report to him? A. No, sir.

Q. Did he know before you? Could you tell by

his actions, or what he said?

A. I could tell by his actions that he knew there

was a ship there.

Q. When you first made out the lights of the

"Boston Maru" as lights of an anchored vessel,

state whether or not you knew approximately how
far her stern was from the Oregon bank.

A. I could not tell; it was too dark. I could not

make out the shore line.

Q. On what range, if any, was the "West Keats"
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mo^iiig at the time you made out the lights of the

•'Boston ]Maru"?

A. Coming down the St. Helens range.

Q. Somewhere near the center of that range ?

A. Yes. sii\

Q. Could Tou see the range lights?

A. Yes, sii\

Q. Could TOU yourself tell that you were on the

range ? [393] A. Yes, sii\

Q. You knew the range hghts from the other

lights in the vicinity, did you ? A. Yes. sii*.

Q. After sighting the "Boston Maru" did the

••West Keats"— after you sighted the ••Boston

Maru" did the -'West Keats** still keep on the

range ?

A. She kept on the range until she got down to

the end of the range and then swung off.

Q. Pursuant to what order and whose order did

she swing off the range? A. The pilot's orders.

Q. What was that order? A. Port a bit.

Mr. McCA:^IAXT.—What was that ?

A. Port a bit.

Q. (By Mr. SXOW.) Was that order obeyed by

the hebnsman ? A. It was.

Q. Did you see it? A. I did.

Q. Did the vessel answer her helm?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did she swing a little to starboard ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. AVhat was the next order the pilot gave, if

anv? A. Steady.



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki Kaisha. 419

(Deposition of E. P. Gillette.)

Q. Was that order obeyed? A. It was.

Q. Did the vessel steady? A. Yes, sir. [394]

Q. She was then off the range, was she ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, were the next range lights below the St.

Helens range, or where were they at the time of

this collision?

A. The next range was the Columbia City range,

and we were leaving the St. Helens range coming
on to the Columbia City range at the time.

Q. There was a space between the two ranges,
was there?

A. There was a space where you have to turn off

before you get on the other range.

Q. Follow down the bank there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What bank? A. The Oregon shore.

Q. Is that the ordinary channel? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I object to that and move to
strike out the answer of the witness on the ground
that he has not shown himself qualified to answer
that question. His testimony is, therefore, incom-
petent and irrelevant.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) These Columbia Pacific ves-
sels in which you have served for a number of years,
what routes have they been on ?

A. Oriental trade.

Q. Out of what port in the United States?
A. Portland.

Q. And the vessel you are now on is on what
trade? A. Intercoastal.

Q. Out of what port? A. Out of Portland.
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Q. Out of Portland? [395] A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have been up and down the Columbia

River a number of times, harve you, on these vessels ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you examined the charts, the Coast and

Geodetic charts of the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You would not claim to be a competent Colum-

bia River pilot, w^ould you ? A. No, sir.

Q. If you claim any degree of familiarity with

the Columbia River channel from going up amd

down that river and from examining its charts,

state in a general way what you think you know

about it.

A. Well, I know most of the places along the

river, and the ranges.

Q. Do you know the course of the chinmel as it

moves from one side of the river to the other?

A. I know^ the general course of it.

Q. Now, you testified that the pilot ordered port

a little and then as the vessel swung to starboard

and off the St. Helens range he ordered steady, and

then the vessel steadied? A. Yes, sir.

Q, And that both of those orders were obeyed i

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, did you see the lights of the "Boston

Manr' at that time?

A. After we hml swung off the St. TIek'us range

I could see them.

Q. And could you see the bulk of the hull of tlie

vessel at that time? A. No, sir.

Q. Could you see other shore lights?
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A. Yes, sir. [396]

Q. What was the appearance of the river in front

of you as to whether it appeared that there was

room for the "West Keats" to pass between the

stern of the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon shore '^

A. There appeared to be room to pass.

Q. Of course you are not entirely familiar with

the depth of the water in the various places there'?

A. No, sir.

Q. Where did the pilot aj^pear to be running;

between the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon shore,

or between the "Boston Maru" and the Washing-

ton shore?

A. Between the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon

shore.

Q. Now, what wa^s the next order the pilot gave,

if any? A. To starboard a bit.

Q. Was that order obeyed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. From your observation what was the purpose

of that order ?

A. To clear the "Boston Maru," which was just

about—her stern light was just about right ahead

of us at that time.

Q. You were heading pretty much toward her

stern then? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that was to throw you a little closer to

the Oregon shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you would clear her? A. Yes, sir,

Q. Did the vessel obey that order?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did the helmsman obey the order?
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A. He did.

Q. Now, what was the next order, if any, that the

pilot gave? A. Hard astarboard. [397]

Q. What was the purpose of that order, in your

judgment?

A. He seen that the ship 's helm, or the ship 's head

wasn't coming to port, so he ordered the helm hard

astarrboard to bring her over to port and clear the

stern of the "Boston Maru."

Q. Did the helmsman obey that order?

A. He did.

Q. Did he put the helm hard over?

A. He did.

Q. Did the ship obey her helm ? A. No, sir.

Q. Which way did it go ?

A. Kept right going straight ahead.

Q. What was the next order, if any, that the

pilot gave? A. Stop.

Q. Who was that order given to? A. To me.

Q. Did you obey it ?

. A. I transmitted it on the engine-room telegraph

and it was obeyed below.

Q. You received the usual answer on the tele-

graph, did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were the engines stopped? A. They were.

Q. Promptly? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You could tell that, could you?

A. Yes, sir; by the indicator in the pilot-house.

Q. Did you take the time of that order?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the time ot that order? [398]
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A. One forty-three A. M.

Q. One forty-three A. M., October 26th, 1924?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the course and direction of the

"West Keats" from that time until the time of the

collision ?

A. She kept the sarme course and direction.

Q. Straight ahead? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when was the impact of the collision?

A. At 1 :44 A. M.

Q. The starboard bow of the "West Keats" hit

the starboard quarter or stern of the "Boston

Maru"; is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. As will be shown by photographs in evidence?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that collision occurred at what time?

A. One forty-four A. M.

Q. You took the time of that? A. I did.

Q. You entered the time of the stop order and

of the collision in the log-book, did you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the rough log? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you enter them correctly? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the next order given by the pilot

after the collision? A. Full astern.

Q. What time was that ?

A. One forty-five A. M. [399]

Q. Did you transmit that order to the engine-

room? A. I did.

Q. Was it obeyed? A. It was.

Q. Promptly? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you enter the time of it in the log-book?

A. I did.

Q. You testified a moment argo that the pilot gave

a hard astarboard order? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that that was obeyed, and that thereafter

he gave a stop order? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you take the times of those orders that

he garve to the helmsman? A. No, sir.

Q. You didn't enter those in the log-book?

A. No, sir.

Q. It is not customary? A. No, sir.

Q. Can you estimate or guess at the length of

time elapsing between the stop order and the pre-

vious hard astarboard order?

A. It was possibly a minute or two.

Q. A minute or two?

A. Yes, sir, as I recollect.

Q. Now, that is your recollection ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is an estimate, is it?

A. Yes, sir. [400]

Q. Can you estimate the length of time elapsing

between the hard astarboard order, of which you

have just been testifying and the previous star-

board a bit order?

A. Possibly half a minute or a minute.

Q. That is an estimate again? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the position of the helm of the ves-

sel at the time of the collision?

A. Hard astarboard.

Q. Had it remained hard astarbo;n*d from the

time of that hard astarboard order? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And when was it changed from that position

of hard astarboard?

A. I could not say. It wasn't before 1:45 until

after the collision.

Q. It wasn't until after that full speed astern

order? A. No, sir.

Q. Now, after that full speed astern order at 1 :45,

without going into details as to just what: was done

with the helm of the "West Keats" and just what

was done with the engine of the "West Keats,"

state what the "West Keats" did under the pilot's

orders, or if she did it under the pilot's orders.

A. Well, I could not say wiiat the pilot's orders

were, because at 1:45 the captain come up on the

bridge and sent me forward to see what damage

had been done. I wasn't on the bridge until after

she had turned around and come up the river again

—started up the river.

Q. I see ; you went forward to the forecastle-head,

did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And underneath? [401]

A. No, sir; on toj); on top of the forecastle-head.

Q. Looked over the side?

A. Yes, sir; and stood by the anchor.

Q. You ascertained the damage of the "West
Keats," did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In a general way? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you sound the bilges?

A. No, sir. They were sounded, though, by the

quartermaster.
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Q. While you were there of course you could tell

what the "West Keats" wars doing, couldn't you?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. What was she doing?

A. Went down the river, turned around, come up
and stood by the "Boston Maru."

Q. Did somebody on the bridge of the "West
Keats" speak to the "Boston Maru"?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Ask them anything about the damage?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you hear what was said ?

A. Asked what damage had been done and if they

needed any assistance.

Q. What did they answer?

A. No, they didn't need any assistance.

Q. Then the "West Keats" proceeded up the

river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Going up the river which side of the "Boston

Mari'u" did she pass on, the Washing!on or Oregon

side ?

A. Passed on the Washington side. [402]

Q. In turning below the "Boston Maru" to pro-

ceed upstream, which way did she turn to, the star-

board or the port? Which way did the bow tuiii

to? A. Turned to starboard.

Q. Was the "West Keats" loaded or empty at

the time of this occurrence? A. Fully loaded.

Q. Down to her marks? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does the "West Keats" steer better when
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loa-ded in that way with her engine going full ahead

or half ahead, or in some other way*?

A. Well, it does not make much difference how she

is loaded, but she steers better w^hen she is going

full ahead than any other way.

Q. What is the reason for that!

A. We have more action on the rudder, the wa"sli

of the w^heel against the rudder.

Q. By the wheel you mean the propeller?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The propeller throws water out to the stern,

does if? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Past the rudder? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The propeller is forwa-rd of the rudder, it is?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will the ''Keats" steer better with her engine

going full ahead than stopped? A. Yes, sir.

Q. With her engines going full astern how does

she bsrck? What effect does that have on her steer-

ing?

A. It brings her bow to port and her—brings her

bow to starboard [403] and her stern to

—

Q. Her stern to port?

A. To i^ort, yes, sir.

Q. Backs to port, in other words?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Suppose the "West Keats," loaded as she was,

traveling a speed of 8.84 nautical miles per hour,

and the engines are stopped without being turned

a-stern, about how long in minutes would it take

her to come to a stop, or substantially stop?
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A. I would estimate around thirty minutes.

Q. How many miles would she cover in that

time ?

A. About four miles, three to four miles.

Q. Now^, suppose her engines are operated full

speed astern, how long would it take her to come to

a stop?

A. About fifteen minutes, ten to fifteen.

Q. In a river the size of the Columbia could they

keep the engine full speed steadily, or would they

have to stop it occa-sionally and kick it around with

the helm to keep her in the river?

A. Yes, sir, to keep her from running ashore

they would have to do that.

Q. When did you first realize there was going to

be a collision?

A. When I seen that the vessel's head would not

answer the starboard helm, possibly slightly over

a minute before she struck.

Q. Could the "West Keats" have been turned

then to pass on the Washington side of the "Bos-

ton Maru"? A. No, sir.

Q. What would have happened if she had at-

tempted that maneuver?

A. It would probably have hit the "Boston

Maru" amidships and cut her in two. [404]

Q. At that time which you are speaking of could

you tell how far the "Boston Maru" was from the

Oregon shore? A. No, sir.

Q. Did she still look as if there was room to pass

between /
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A. There appeared to be room to pass between.

Q. In order for the "West Keats" to have turned

and passed on the Washington side it must have

commenced that turn sometime before that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you make a guess as to how far before

it would necessarily be?

A. Probably five minutes before.

Q. About the time you first sighted the "Boston

Maru"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Or a little before that?

A. About the time I sighted the "Boston Maru"
she could ma-ke the turn then.

Q. That is about the time you first made her out

to be a vessel then? A. Yes, sir.

Q. She could have turned then to pass on the

Washington side? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could she have safely turned any time after

that time? A. No, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Cross-examination by Mr. McCAMANT.

Q. What ai'e the dimensions of the "West
Keats," Mr. Gillette?

A. I think it is about four hundred, right around

four hundred [405] twenty feet, ten feet more

or less.

Q. And what is her beam?

A. I think it was fifty-two feet.

Q. HacP her steering gear been inspected here in

Portland harbor? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who did the inspecting? A. Third officer.
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Q. You personally did not inspect it?

A. No, sir.

Q. You know nothing about it except what the

third officer told you?

A. I know that she was steering properly going

down the river.

Q. And yet she did not answer her helm the last

two times that orders were given before the collision.

A. No, sir.

Q. Up to that time you say she had answered her

helm properly? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now you say that you think that the lookout re-

ported the ''Boston Maru"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you sure of that one way or the other?

A. I am not sure of it.

Q. You also say that when you made out that the

lights ahead were those of a vessel, you saw that the

pilot realized that it was a vessel ahead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What makes you think that the pilot knew

there was a vessel ahead?

A. He gave the order starboard a l)it, in order to

go astern of her. [406]

Q. You didn't make out the "Boston Maru" to be

a vessel—the lights of the "Boston Maru" to be

those of a vessel, until you heard the pilot's order,

starboard a bit; is that right?

A. It was slightly befoi'e that I know that it was

a ship at anchor there.

Q. The "Boston Maru" had her anchor lights

burning, had she not? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And you could see those lights how far ?

A. Well, you could see them when you come on to

the St. Helens,—coming down the St. Helens range

;

but at that time I didn't know they were the lights

of a vessel. I could not tell the difference between

her lights and the lights ashore.

Q. Well, there were two lights near together, one

of them high up and the other one lower down,

weren't there?

A. They are not near together. One is at the

bow^ of the ship and one is at the stem.

Q. Well, at distance of say six miles the two

lights would be near together, wouldn't they?

A. Yes, sir; they would appear close together at

that distance.

Q. Yes ; and at that distance one of the lights was

high up and the other one was lower down, wasn't

it?

A. Yes, sir. However, you could not see her six

miles off, because of that turn in the river.

Q. You are sure of that are you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How far off do you say that you could see the

lights of the "Boston Maru"?

A. Well, you could see them when you come on,

coming down the St. Helens range.

Q. How far do you say that that was? [407]

A. Well, that was—I could not say for certain

how far it was, but I would estimate it to be around

about three miles w^hen her lights would have come

in view.

Q. You say you could not see the lights of the
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'

' Boston Maru '

' until you were within three miles of

her?

A. I could not say for certain, unless I measured

it off on the chart and found out just how far you

could see them.

Q. But your best judgment is that you could not

see the lights of the "Boston Maru" until you were

within three miles of her? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that mean that when you were within

three miles of the "Boston Maru" you could dis-

tinguish that she was a vessel? A. No, sir.

Q. You could not see the lights at all until you

came within three miles of her? A. No, sir.

Q. How long would it take the "West Keats" to

run three miles at a speed of eight and eighty-four

hundredths miles an hour, do you know?

A. I could figure it up for you. Let's see. It

should be making about—it would take about

twenty minutes at that speed.

Q. It would haA^e been very easy to have stopped

the "West Keats" in twenty minutes, wouldn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There w^as no attempt made, was there, by the

pilot, to pass the '

' Boston Maru '

' between the
'

' Bos-

ton Maru" and the Washington shore?

A. No, sir.

Q. You never reported to the pilot that the "Bos-

ton Maru" lay ahead .? [408] A. No, sir.

Q. Have you any explanation to offer as to why

the "West Keats" did not obey her helm in response
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to the last two orders given by the pilot before^ the

collision? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is your explanation of that?

A. That she was going along close to the Oregon

shore and the suction of the shore, with the speed of

the vessel going by, would have a tendency to draw

her stem in towards the shore and throw her bow

away.

Q. You think that suction was strong enough to

overcome the maneuvers of the vessel?

A. YeSj sir.

Q. How far were you from the Oregon shore at

the time the last order was given?

A. I could not tell.

Q. How far were you from the Oregon shore

when the order, starboard a bit, was given?

A. I could not say.

Q. Could you see the Oregon shore?

A. I could not see the shore line. I could see the

outline of the hills there.

Q. But you were not close enough to make out the

shore itself? A. No, sir.

Q. You thought there was room to pass the "Bos-

ton Maru" on the Oregon side, though, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you knew that it wasn't safe to get too

close to the shore? A. Yes, sir.

Q. But even with that knowledge you thought

there was room to [409] make the maneuver by
going between the "Boston Maru" and the Oregon

shore? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And you continued to think so?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Up until one minute before the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How close did you come to the "Boston Maru"

after the collision, when you came up on the Wash-

ington side of the "Boston Maru"?

A. Well, we came within hailing distance of her,

so that the pilot could ask if there were any damage

done to them, if they needed any assistance; prob-

ably a couple of hundred feet off, or a hundred feet.

Q. Plenty of water there, was there?

A. Yes, sir.

A. As a matter of fact, there was plenty of water

for quite a good distance toward the Washington

shore from where the "Boston Maru" was anchored,

wasn't there?

A. I could not say as to that.

Q. How far is the bridge back of the bow of the

"West Keats"?

A. It must be about one hundred eighty feet.

Q. And the pilot-house is on the bridge?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The center of the bridge? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are not sure one way or another about

the lookout having reported the "Boston Maru"?
A. No, sir.

Q. And therefore you can't give any indication

as to when, if [410] at all, the lookout discovered

the "Boston Maru" with reference to the time when

vou discovered it ? A. No, sir.
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Q. You don't know whether anybody had dis-

covered it before you did?

A. The pilot must have, being familiar with the

river and knowing what lights are along the shore.

Q. You are satisfied he discovered it before you

did? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were looking, though, all the time, weren't

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had been running for some minutes on

a course which show^ed you a number of lights

ahead? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And as an experienced seaman you were look-

ing to see what those lights were and what was going

to come of it? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the "West Keats" continued full speed

ahead from the time you went on watch at midnight

until one minute before the collision?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You now know, you say, that there is an

anchorage ground in that vicinity? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And for at least three miles above the point

where the "Boston Maru" was anchored you could

see a number of lights? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Couldn't you see those lights for five miles?

A. I don't think so.

Q. Couldn't you see them for four miles? [411]

A. I don't think so. That three miles is only an

estimate. I don't know.

Q. You are not certain how far you could see

them? A. No, sir.
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Q. How far away was the "Boston Maru" when

you say that you made out that it was a vessel?

A. Less than a mile.

Q. Less than a mile? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Visibility was good that night?

A. Yes, sir. However, it was very dark ; no stars

or moon ; the sky was overcast, but lights showed up

very good.

Q. Lights show up better when there is no moon
than when the moon is shining, don't they?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you say that on that kind of an evening

3"ou were unable to make out that those lights meant

that there was a vessel there at anchor, until you

were within a mile? A. Yes, sir.

Q. At that rate of speed you travel a mile in

about seven minutes? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did, then, recognize that the "Boston

Maru," or some vessel, was anchored ther approxi-

mately seven minutes before the collision?

A. Yes—no, sir; less than a mile.

Q. Less than a mile? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well, how much less than a mile?

A. It was probably between a half and two-thirds

of a mile that I knew it to be a shi}). [412]

Q. You didn't recognize that the lights which you

saw just ahead were the anchor lights of a vessel

until you were within two-thirds of a mile of her?

A. No, sir.

Q. And you don't think that the pilot did either?

A. 1 think that he did.



Kokusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 43?

(Deposition of E. P. Gillette.)

Q. How far away was the "Boston Maru" from

the "West Keats" when in your opinion the pilot

realized that those lights were the anchor lights of a

vessel ?

A. I could not say as to that. He didn't tell me

when he seen it.

Q. Well, when was it that you saw from his ac-

tions that he saw the vessel? How far was she

away then?

A. Well, that was when he gave the starboard a

bit, order.

Q. How far away was she ?

A. About three or four minutes before he struck

;

about the time that I knew that it was a ship.

Q. He gave that order just about the time that

you found there was a ship at anchor there ?

A. Yes, sir; slightly after.

Q. And you say that was approximately three or

four minutes before the collision? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So far as you know, the pilot did not realize

those lights were the anchor lights of a vessel until

three to four minutes before the collision?

A. No, sir.

Q. And you don't know that the lookout realized

that there was a vessel ahead until that time, either ?

A. No, sir.

Q. And you yourself did not realize it until that

time? [413] A. No, sir.

Q. Where is the rough log of the "West Keats"?

A. It should be on board the "West Keats."

Q. In custody of the captain? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. I refer to the rough log in which you made

these entries, the log that was in use on the 25th of

October, 1924. A. Yes, sir.

Q. That log, you say, should be on board the ves-

sel and in the custody of the captain ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCAMANT.—I give notice to counsel for

the "West Keats" to produce the rough log re-

ferred to by the witness, at the trial of the cause,

I thmk that is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. In bringing a vessel like the "West Keats"

to a stop, to an anchorage, we will say, from full

speed ahead, would it be necessary to stop the engine

some time before you intend to make the anchorage ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. About how long in point of time before?

A. Before coming to an anchorage?

Q. Yes. Let's assume that the vessel was going

down a river like the Columbia, going down the

Columbia.

A. Yes, sir. They would have to slow down

about a half an hour before coming to an anchor.

Q. What would they do first, slow to half speed?

A. Probably full to half, or full to slow speed,

either one. [414]

Q^ And then later what would the master do, or

pilot?

A. It would just depend on how much way he had

on the ship when he was coming up to his anchorage.
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He might have to go full astern or half astern in

order to stop the headway of the vessel.

Q. Now when he put the vessel full astern, if he

did, what would he the effect on steering the vessel,

if she had way on?

A. You could not steer her.

Q_^ It would— A. It would throw her.

Q. It would generally throw her bow to star-

board? A. To starboard; yes, sir.

Q. Is it easy to tell in advance just how far her

bow would be thrown to starboard by that full

speed astern engine?

A. It would depend on how long she kept going

full speed astern. It would not go full astern long

enough to bring the vessel to a stop and still be able

to steer her.

Q. In other words, the pilot would have to set her

full speed astern and then in a little while stop?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And bring her bow around, would he?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And then give her full speed again?

A. Yes, sir.

EecrOSS-examination by Mr. McCAMANT.
Q. Well, do I gather from your testimony, Mr.

Gillette, that you say it would take a half an hour to

stop that vessel?

A. Not if she was going to go full speed astern,

from a full ahead to a full astern, it would not take

a half an hour; but if he was going to stop her,

coming to an anchorage, and still [415] be able to
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steer the vessel, it would take about a half an hour,

because you could not throw her full speed astern

and keep her going full speed astern in a river the

size of the Columbia , long enough to bring her to a

dead stop.

Q. You mean that you would have to go full

speed astern for a time and then the order would be

to stop?

A. Stop and maybe slow ahead enough to swing

the ship's head around again into the channel.

Q. And you say that those maneuvers would take

a half an hour before you could get the vessel

stopped ?

A. Before you could stop her enough to come to

an anchorage, it would take close to a half an hour.

Q. That is, you are figuring on anchoring the

''West Keats"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. As a matter of fact, after the vessel has gone

full speed astern for as much as five minutes her

headway is broken, isn't it?

A. It is checked considerably; all right, but she

would still be going ahead. It would take about

fifteen minutes to stop her headway.

Q. Suppose she is going at a speed of eight and

eighty-four hundredths miles an hour and you put

her full speed astern for a five minute period, what

headway would she have at the end there?

A. Well, that would be just—I could only give

you what I would judge her headway to be. Four

miles an hour; about that, I should judge.
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Q. You think it would take five minutes full speed

astern to take off half the running speed of the

vessel ?

A. Yes; it would take more than five minutes to

take oif half of it.

Q. It would? [416] A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCAMANT.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived.

Filed July 2, 1926. [417]

AND there was duly filed in said court a deposition

of EINAR GIDLOF, a witness on behalf of the

United States, in words and figures as follows,

to wit: [418]

DEPOSITION OF EINAR GIDLOF, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. MAYTHAM.)
Q. Will you give your full name?
A. Einar Gidlof.

Q. Where do you reside, live?

A. I am employed on the "President Taft" at the

present time.

Q. Do you have, in the city, a mailing address ?

A. 59 Clay Street, San Francisco.

Q. In what capacity are you employed on the

"President Taft" at the present time?

A. I beg pardon?
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Q. In what capacity are you employed on the

"President Taft" at the present time?

A. I am storekeeper.

Q. Is the "President Taft" soon to sail?

A. Yes, sir, to-morrow afternoon at 4 o'clock.

Q. And when will she return?

A. Two months from now.

Q. Where is she bound? A. Orient.

Q. How long have you been going to sea?

A. Oh, for about sixteen years now; around six-

teen years.

Q. On October 26, 1924, how were you employed?

A. As able seaman.

Q. On what vessel?

A. On the "West Keats." [419]

Q. At that time, on the early morning of October

26, 1924, was the "West Keats" bound down the

Columbia River? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And how were you serving on the vessel at the

time ? A, I was on the wheel.

Q. At the wheel? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the pilot-house? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was in the pilot-house with you?

A. The second officer.

Q. Do you know his name ? A. Mr. Gillette.

Q. When did you go on watch ?

A. 12 o'clock, midnight,

Q. Do you recall a collision occurring during your

watch? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you recall the name of the vessel you col-

lid(Ml with? A. "Boston Maru," a Japanese ship.
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Q. Do you know about what time that collision

occurred? A. Well, just a little before 2 o'clock.

Q. Had you been at the wheel, from the time you

came on watch, at 12 o'clock, until the time of col-

lision? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were at the wheel at the time of collision ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of steering gear does the "West

Keats" have? [420] A. Telemotor.

Q. That is, the electric telemotor?

A. Well, I don't know much about it.

Q. It is what is known as the telemotor gear?

A. Telemotor gear; yes.

Q. You steered the vessel, from the time she left

her wharf, until the time of collision ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did the vessel steer properly?

A. Yes, sir, she steered fine.

Q. Her steering gear all in good working con-

dition? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is the engine-room telegraph indicator

located on the "West Keats"?

A. On the starboard side from the wheel.

Q. In the pilot-house? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was attending to the telegraph instru-

ment? A. The second officer.

Q. On the occasion that you were going down

the Columbia River?

A. The second officer was standing right across

to the telegraph, all the time.

Q. And he was passing signals on that instru-

ment to the engine-room? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Was he also paying attention to your work 1

A. Yes, sir, he was standing close to me, it is

only a small [421] little place, there is only 2

or 3 feet between the wheel and the telegraph, he

was watching the steering all the time down the

river.

Q. Did you carry out, at all times, all of the

orders that were given to j^ou for the direction of

the wheel? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what is your usual practice in steering

down the Columbia River, do 3^ou do so by com-

pass, or otherwise?

A. No, sir, we do not use the compass, we used

to take them out from shore lights and things like

that in the river, so we can see when the ship turns

quick.

Q. That is the manner that you were proceeding

down the Columbia River at the time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who was acting as lookout?

A. It was a man by the name of Olsen.

Q. Olsen? A. Yes.

Q. He was your partner, was he? A. Yes.

Q. Where did he stand his watch?

A. On the forecastle-head.

Q. Did you see the steamship "Boston Maru"
before the collision?

A. No, sir; I did not see it.

Q. You were busy with your duties as helmsman ?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Do you know what helm orders were given to

you, prior to the [422] collision?

A. No, I don't know now, I don't remember it

now.

Q. What lights, if any, were burning in the pilot-

house ?

A. Well, there was no light except a little on the

telegraph, that is all that can be shown in the pilot-

house, it was dark there.

Q. Was the pinnacle light lighted?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was that with reference to you?

A. You know that little small opening on the

compass light?

Q. That was in front of you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You had been helmsman a great many times,

had you, on vessels? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you had been at sea some fourteen years

prior to this time? A. Yes.

Q. And how old are you? A. I am thirty.

Mr. MAYTHAM.—That is aU.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. BLACK.)

Q. Where had the "West Keats" been, just prior

to her starting on this voyage, Mr. Gridlof ?

A. Where had she been?

Q. Yes, at Portland?

A. Yes, we come from Portland, right from

Port Portland.



446 United States of America vs.

(Deposition of Einar Gidlof.)

Q. Do you know anything about the draught of
that vessel, fully [423] loaded?

A. No, sir; I cannot say; it was somewhere
around 25 feet, I guess; I cannot say for sure,

though.

Q. You don't know anything about how much
cargo she had aboard at the time, do you?
A. No, sir; she was full loaded, as much as she

can be, she had a pretty high deck-load and as much
as she can carry.

Q. She was pretty well loaded, you think?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what port, you went to after this

collision? A. After we went out?

Q. Yes. A. We went to Yokohama first.

Q. Did the ''West Keats" go back any place for

repairs afterwards?

A. Oh, yes; we turned right back and went back
to Portland again, and they repaired her inside the

dock there.

Q. And then you proceeded direct to Japan?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that you had all the cargo at American
ports that you were going to take? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know where St. Helen's Bar is in the

Columbia River?

A. I know where St. Helen's is, but I do not
know the water around there, I know where St.

Helen's is, but I did not know the ground there

or anything else.
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Q. Do you know where St. Helen's Bar is in the

middle of the [424] stream opposite St. Helen's?

A. Well, there is a channel there right outside

of St. Helen's, but I did not know much about that.

Q. You do not know on what side of the Bar the

"West Keats" passed that evening, do you?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know whether it was near the Oregon

side of the river or the Washington side of the

river ?

A. I do not know that; I do not know that place

up there at all.

Q. You are just unable to say?

A. No, I cannot say that.

Q. Do you remember what kind of a night it was?

A. Oh, it was very dark, but there was no fog

or anything like that, it was a very dark night.

Q. It was dark but no fog? A. No, sir.

Q. You could see lights a long distance, though,

couldn't you, a night of that kind?

A. Yes, it was not foggy, you could see all right

there.

Q. You didn't notice any lights ashore at all, did

you*?

A. No, I was steering all the time, because it

is very narrow up there and you have to put

yom* mind to the steering all the time.

Q. And when you say if you do not steer by the

compass you mean that they do not give you a

course by compass direction, but you use your com-
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pass to keep on that course, don't you, until you

get a change of helmf

A. No, sir, you just get a shore light, or a buoy

in the [425] river and the pilot tell you, *'You

see that buoy there?" "Yes." "Well, take that

so and so, either port or starboard."

Q. Do you keep your eye on that buoy ahead?

A. I do not pay any attention to anything else,

lights around, just that route where I am steering

after.

Q. Do you remember any particular light or land-

mark that you were steering for just prior to this

collision ?

A. No, I cannot remember there; I had a light

there but I do not remember now which side it was,

but I was steering on that all the time down the

river, then we shifted the course several times, of

course, but, at that time, w^e were going steady,

and then they changed the course, and I do not re-

member exactly what side it was, or anything like

that.

Q. You recollect there was a change of course,

just prior to the collision. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see the other vessel at all any time

before you actually struck her?

A. No, sir, I did not see her, I did not see no

vessel at all around there before we hit.

Q. Did you notice the other vessel after the col-

lision? A. Oh, yes, sir.

Q. Did you notice any lights on the other vessel?
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A. She just—we hit her right in the stern, some-

thing like that, she just—we just hit her in the

after end of the rail there, and then she was gone.

We just passed her quick, it was only a matter of

a few seconds and we passed her. [426]

Q. Now, do you remember on what side of the

vessel you passed her?

A. It was on the starboard bow.

Q. Your starboard bow struck the starboard quar-

ter, did you say ? A. Yes, sir, the starboard bow.

Q. Your starboard bow struck the starboard

quarter of the vessel?

A. Oh, I would not say the starboard quarter of

the other vessel.

Q. Somewhere near her stern? A. Yes, sir.

of the starboard side?

Q. You do not remember whether it was the port

A. No, sir, I could not say that.

Q. It must have been her starboard side, must
it not?

A. I don't know, but our starboard bow, on the

"West Keats" was damaged, I know that.

Q. If it was your starboard bow, it must have

been the starboard side of the other ship that was
hit, isn't that so?

A. Well, I did not see that ship, I do not know
how she was laying there, she was at anchor, that

ship.

Q. You struck her and then you went on by?
A. Yes, sir.
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Q. And she was on your starboard hand when

you went on by'? A. I did not see that ship at all.

Q. You didn't see her at all?

A. I didn't see her, just when we hit her, she was

gone inside or two or three seconds, we passed her.

Q. And did you turn around and come back

again? [427]

A. And then we turned around and came back

again, and come up alongside of her, and we went

back to Portland right away.

Q. Did you hear any call from your lookout in

the forecastle-head just prior to the collision?

A. No, sir, I did not hear that.

Q. Was there a pilot on 3"our bridge as well as

your second officer?

A. There is a pilot up outside on the bridge, out-

side of the pilot-house on the bridge.

Q. Is the pilot-house open to the bridge, or is

there a door that is closed all the time?

A. There are windows from the place to the door

to the bridge from the pilot-house.

Q. Are those windows opened?

A. I do not know now whether they were opened,

I cannot say.

Q. How does the pilot communicate with the sec-

ond officer, does he have to open a window or a door?

A. Through those windows, they nmst be open

then.

Q. The windows are kept open?

A. And the doors on both sides were open, there

1
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are two doors on each side, one door on each side,

and a window was in front, you shove up and down.

Q. Did the pilot make any remark that you heard,

just prior to the collision?

A. No, not that I remember of.

Q. Did you have any idea that a collision was

about to happen before it occurred ?

A. No, I had no idea. [428]

Q. You say you don't know whether you were

passing the "Boston Maru" on the Washington side

or the Oregon side?

A. I couldn't say that, because I am not ac-

quainted up there at all, I cannot say w^hich is

Washington and the Oregon side, I don't know at

all.

Q. You are not familiar with the Columbia River?

A. No, sir.

Q. How many times have you been up there?

A. Oh, I have been up there several times before,

but I never paid any attention to a thing like that.

I have been up the river several times.

Q. Do you remember whether you were closer to

the left-hand bank of the river than the right-hand

bank, or the other way around?

A. Yes, sir, I know that when I go up there, but I

do not remember it now, which side it was.

Q. You do not remember it in this case?

A. I do not remember it, no ; it is pretty near two

years ago, and I cannot say for sure which side it

was.
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Q. You are sure, however, that it was your star-

board bow that struck the other vessel?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you do not know how the other vessel was

headed when you struck it? A. I have no idea.

Q. Have you any idea how far out you were from

the bank at the time the collision occurred?

A. No, I don't know that [429]

Q. I suppose you don't know what the state of the

tide was, at the time, do you, whether it was ebb or

flow, or what it was? A. No, I cannot say.

Q. That was not your job anyway?

A. No, sir, I had nothing to do with that.

Q. Do you alternate with the lookout on your

watch?

A. I come on watch at 12 o'clock, and he went

forward and I went to the wheel and that is the last

I saw of him.

Q. And when did you change again, 2 o'clock?

A. 2 o'clock; yes, sir.

Q. In other words, you stand half your watch as

helmsman and half as lookout ; is that the way you

work it ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And his name is Olsen? A. Yes.

Mr. BLACK.—I believe that is all.

Mr. MAYTHAM.—That is all.

Filed Septeml)er 17, 1926. [430]
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AND there was duly filed in said court a deposition

of Lee O. Jetts, a witness on behalf of the

United States, in words and figures as follows,

to wit: [431]

DEPOSITION OF LEE O. JETTS, FOR THE
GOVERNMENT.

LEE O. JETTS was thereupon produced as a

witness in behalf of the owners of the steamship

"West Keats" and, having been first duly sworn,

testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Mr. SNOW.—Your full name is

—

A. Lee O. Jetts.

Q. And you are at present employed by the State

of Oregon, are you ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what capacity?

A. Boiler and factory inspector.

Q. In what department '? A. Bureau of Labor.

Q. I call your attention to the collision between

the "West Keats" and the "Boston Maru," which

occurred October 26, 1924, at forty-four minutes

after one in the morning, and ask you if you recall

the collision?

A. Well, I recall the time of it. I didn't know of

any collision [432] at the time it happened.

Q. You were on the "West Keats" at the time,

wer^? you?

A. I was on the "West Keats" at the time; yes,

sir.
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Q. In what capacity?

A. Second assistant engineer.

Q. Do you hold marine papers, engineering

papers'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What papers do you now hold?

A. Second assistant.

Q. When did you go on watch?

A. Twelve o'clock, midnight.

Q. That was an hour and forty-four minutes be-

fore the collision, as I have given you the time?

A. Yes, as you have given me the time.

Q. Where was the "West Keats" proceeding at

the time you went on watch?

A. Proceeding down the river, headed for Yoko-

hama.

Q. Out of the port of Portland?

A. Out of the port of Portland, yes.

Q. At what speed was the vessel proceeding or

put at twelve o'clock?

A. Well, the vessel was stopped when I went on

watch, and I got a full ahead bell just at twelve

o'clock as I took over the watch, and the fii*st

assistant handled that bell; and we went full speed

from then on.

Q. What was the next bell that you got after that

full speed ahead bell, and what time it was when you

answered that again? You may refresh your

memory by examining the photostatic copies of the

engine-room logs of the "West Keats," which have

been okehed by the parties. [433]
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Mr. KING.—Did he make the entries himself in

this log? A. This is the chief engineer's log.

Mr. KING.—Did you make the entries in the log ?

A. No, sir, the chief engineer made those en-

tries, a copy of the rough log, off of the engine-

room.

Mr. KING.—Have you got the rough log?

Mr. SNOW.—No, the copy of the rough log is

attached to the deposition of Chief Engineer Berge-

seth, and I haven't got a copy here of that rough

log. I don't think there will be any dispute about

the time of these bells.

Mr. KING.—Well, subject to that objection, and

you can check it later if there is any variance

—

subject to that reservation you may go ahead.

Mr. SNOW.—Q. Now, take this photostatic copy

of the chief engineer's log, and state what was the

next bell you got after the full speed ahead bell at

twelve o'clock midnight?

A. The stop bell at one forty-three.

Q. What was the next bell received after that?

A. Full astern, one forty-five.

Q. Were those two orders obeyed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. By whom? A. By me.

Q. What were you doing immediately before the

stop bell at one forty-three ?

A. Just before that I was pumping bilges on the

port side, and was out on the port side to look at

that, and I just came back probably half a minute

before I received this bell.

Q. Came back where? A. To the throttle.
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Q. And where were you at the instant that the

bell sounded? [434] A. Right at the throttle.

Q. You have already testified that you obeyed the

bell? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long a time elapsed between the time

the bell sounded and the time you obeyed it?

A. That was not a matter of over a couple of

seconds; just as quick as you could reach a throttle

and shut it off.

Q. Was the full astern bell at one forty-five

obeyed in the same way? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what condition were the engines on the

"West Keats"? A. In good condition.

Q. Anything wrong about the manner in which

they worked and operated? A. No, sir.

Q. Are you informed of the condition of the

steering engines on the "West Keats" at that time?

A. No serious condition that I knew of.

Q. Nothing wrong that you knew of?

A. Not that I heard of.

Q. Had you inspected them recently ?

A. Not personally myself went over all of it, no.

Q. Now, the chief engineer's log shows other

bells after one forty-five A. M., and, without going

into detail, I will ask you if you obeyed those bells

that fell within your watch? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—That is aU.

Cross-examination by Mr. KING.

Q. Now, Mr. Jetts, what papers did you hold at

the time of this collision? [435]

A. Second assistant.
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Q. How long had you held them?

A. If I remember right, I had had a second as-

sistant's license probably three months before.

Q. How long had you been going to sea*?

A. About 1914 or 1915.

Q. Had you worked in engine-rooms all the time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, you say the first assistant got the full

speed ahead bell just before you went on watch at

midnight ?

A. The first assistant. He was on the throttle

before I went on watch, and I was looking over

things just before I took the watch over.

Q. And while you were looking things over, just

before midnight, he got the full ahead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he set the throttle full ahead?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you kept the throttle full ahead until the

one forty-three bell? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, when you got that bell, how did the mes-

sage come to you ; did some bell ring down there ?

A. The telegraph.

Q. Was that a bell?

A. Well, it is a bell with a hand pointing, '

' Slow, '

'

"Full," or "Stop," or whatever

—

Q. Did the telegraph show "Stop" at one forty-

three? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you know it was one forty-three?

[436] A. By the clock.
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Q. Was the clock right in front of it—by the tele-

graph? A. It Avas right by the left.

Q. You looked at the clock? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not make the entry then, did you?

A. No, sir ; the oiler made the entry.

Q. You made no entries in the rough log, then?

A. Not right at that time.

Q. Did you make the entry of the "full astern"?

A. No, sir.

Q. Who made that? A. The oiler made that.

Q. Now, these subsequent bells, after the ''full

astern," the number of bells you got there, you

obeyed those, did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did vou make the entries each time ?

A. No, sir.

Q. They were made by the oiler, also?

A. Well, as far as I can remember, I think the

oiler made the most of them.

Q. What was that oiler's name?

A. George Baril.

Q. From the time after you went on watch at

midnight to the time of one forty-five A. M., the

engines were working in good order?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Had no trouble at all ?

A. Had no trouble at all, no, sir.

Redirect Examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. By the way, did you write the rough log of

that particular [487] ))oard?

A. I wrote the rough log in the log-book after-

wards, yes; a copy off of the bell-book.
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Recross-examination by Mr. KING.

Q. What board was that?

A. It is a small blackboard there for bells and

miscellaneous, and they nse it there in the ship,

use it lots of times for bells, and copy it in the log-

book.

Q. Does that clock record seconds down there?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You never enter any of them in the bell-book,

do you ? You enter the nearest minute.

A. Enter the nearest minute.

Q. If the bell was at one forty-two and a half,

which way would you enter it, one forty-two and

a half? A. One forty-three.

Q. If there is a half minute or more, you enter

the next minute; is that it? A. Yes.

Mr KING.—That is all.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

(Thereupon the proceedings hereunder were ad-

journed.)

Filed October 6, 1926. [438]

AND there was duly filed in said court depositions

of S. Sayeki, Isokichi Chiga, Toyoji Tomita,

H. Yokoi and N. Komiyama, witnesses on be-

half of the claimant of the "Boston Maru,"

in words and figures as follows, to wit: [439]
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ANT.

S. SAYEKI was thereupon produced as a wit-

ness in behalf of the libelant and, having been first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Mr. KING.—Just take your time, Captain, in

answering questions and speak as loud as you can.

Q. Will you state your name, please. Captain?

A. Yes. My name is S. Sayeki.

Q. Where do you reside? What place do you

live? A. Kobe, in Japan.

Q. Do you hold a master's license?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. From what government?

A. From Japanese government.

Q. And what license do you hold?

A. I have a master of first grade, of Japan.

Q. How long have you held that?

A. For three years now since I got ticket.

Q. What ship are you master of now?

A. "Boston Maru."

Q. When did you first join her as master?

A. I joined "Boston Maru" fourteenth of Sep-

tember of this year.

Q. Where? In what port? A. In Kobe, sir.

Q. In Kobe, Japan ? A. Yes.

Q. And whore did you bring her then?

A. I brought her up the Cohnnbia, right through.

Q. Right through to Portland? [440]
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A. Yes.

Q. Had you ever sailed a ship into Portland be-

fore *? A. What is that, sir?

Q. Was this the first time you had ever brought

a ship to Portland?

A. Well, I came here many times when I was

chief mate, but first time I come as master of the

steamer.

Q. The first time?

A. Yes, to come down as master of a steamer.

Q. Well, did you ever come to this very port, to

this same place, before? A. Beg pardon, sir?

Q. Did you ever come to Portland, Oregon?

A. Yes.

Q. You came to the United States, but did you

ever come to Portland, Oregon, before ?

A. Yes ; I came very many times when I was chief

mate, but the first time to come down as master of

the steamer.

Q. Had you loaded lumber at St. Helens, Oregon,

on those previous trips?

A. Yes. When I had the collision 1 was just

waiting for tide, so it was before going in St.

Helens. But in Portland I had about four million

lumber on board, sir.

Q. Yes, I know; you were loaded before you

started down the Columbia River? A. Yes.

Q. But on these trips when you were first mate,

you know— A. Yes.

Q. Did you get lumber at St. Helens on those

trips ? A. No ; no, sir.
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Q. Are you familiar with the channel of the

Columbia River from [441] below Portland to

the ocean?

A. No, sir, I am not familiar with it at all, sir.

Q. When did you leave Portland with the "Boston

Maru" to go to St. Helens; what date?

A. About five P. M. on twenty-fifth, sir.

Q. The twenty-fifth of October; is that it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. 1924? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And did you request a pilot to take you down

the river? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did a pilot come on board?

A. Yes; he came on board about after five o'clock;

I don't remember exactly.

Q. What did he do after he came on board?

A. Well, he said

—

Q. I don't care what he said. Do you want what

he said, or anything?

Mr. SNOW.—Go ahead. I will ask him further.

Mr. KING.—All right.

Q. What did he do ?

A. He just came on board to take the ship down

to St. Helens. That is what he said.

Q. Who was in charge of the ship from Portland

down to St. Helens then.

A. You mean the pilot, sir?

Q. Well, who was in command?

A. Well, at that time the pilot was taking charge

for the visit down.
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Q. And about what time did the ship, if you know,

arrive off of [442] the Cohimbia City lights?

A. About eight o'clock, sir.

Q. What happened then? What was done?

A. Well, just swing the ship and drop the anchor;

that is all.

Q. Who ordered the ship swung?

A. Why, I don't say nothing.

Q. Who did? A. The pilot did.

Q. All right. You didn't say anything?

A. No; I didn't say anything at all.

Q. Did he say what to do with the anchors?

A. Yes. He said, "We are going to anchor."

Q. Did he conuiiand what anchor should be let

down? A. Yes.

Q. What anchor did he say to be let down, which

one?

A. Well, he said, "Anyone is all right," he said;

so we stand by for the starboard anchor.

Q. Did he tell you to put any other anchor down

after you put the starboard anchor down?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did he direct where the ship should be an-

chored? A. Beg pardon, sir?

Q. Did the pilot direct or did the pilot order

where the ship should be anchored? A. Yes.

Q. What place?

A. No, he don't say nothing; just he said, stand

by anchor, and let go anchor, sir.

Q. And the pilot was in command up to time ship

came to anchor; is that right? [443]
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Then where did the pilot go?

A. And the pilot went in saloon to sleep while

high water come up.

Q. You mean the tide ? A. Yes.

Q. The tide. Was it low tide when you anchored ?

A. When I anchored the current was going down.

Q. Going downstream? A. Yes.

Q. What did you do, if anything, after the ship

was anchored; about her position or anything, what

did you do ?

A. Yes. I said to second mate to take a cross-

bearing of the anchorage.

Q. Who didyou tell that?

A. That for my interest I took the cross-bearing.

Q. Yes, but who did you tell to do that ?

A. No ; nobody said it but I said it.

Q. I know, but what one of your men did you tell

to take cross-bearing? A. To second mate.

Q. The second mate. Now, when you came to

anchor what did you do about the ship's lights?

A. After I dropped the anchor hoisted two an-

chor lights.

Q. Where did you hoist those anchor lights?

A. One anchor light on forestay and one on the

flagstaff aft.

Q. Just tell how high up above the hull the one

on the forestay was, how many feet.

A. About thirty-seven feet from forecastle deck;

thirty-seven or thirty-six feet, I think.

Q. And where is this flagstaff aft, what part .^

[444] A. On poop, sir.
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Q. Right on the poop"? A. Yes.

Q. And how high on the flagstaff did you hang

the anchor light?

A. About sixteen or seventeen feet from deck, sir.

Q. What kind of lights are these anchor lights

you use? A. Oil lamps, sir.

Q. About what size?

A. About one feet, sir (witness indicating).

Q. Indicate again.

A. About one feet (indicating).

Q. About one foot? A. Diameter.

Q. Diameter? A. Yes; one foot diameter.

Q. What kind of glass do they have around them ?

A. Prism glass, sir.

Q. What color lights were those anchor lights?

A. White.

Q. White? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, what was the kind of weather you had

there that night when you came to anchor?

A. When I came to anchor it was rainy and

squally weather.

Q. Was there any fog? A. No, sir.

Q. No fog. Could you see lights well that night?

A. Yes; you could see all lights, sir.

Q. How far could you see an ordinary light?

A. Ordinary night, sir? [445]

Q. How far can you see light?

A. Well, we can see at least four or five miles, at

least.

Q. At least four or five miles?

A. Yes. If I use glass I can see more than that.
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Q. I mean without a glass; four or five miles

without a glass? A. Yes.

Q. Now, getting back to these bearings, did the

mate bring you some bearings later on? A. Yes.

Q. After j^ou ordered him to do so? A. Yes.

Q. Did you make any record of those bearings,

write them down anywhere?

A. Well, he took cross-bearing and showed the

anchorage on the chart and I found out that place

is all right.

Q. But you looked it over, did you?

A. Yes, I looked it over.

Q. Did you check the bearings?

A. No, I didn't check bearings, but he just put

down cross-bearing position and I approved it for

him.

Q. Just explain what you did, the actual things

you did. That is the best way to get at it.

A. Yes. The second mate took the bearings and

he draw lines of bearings on chart and find out

position, so he showed me.

Q. He showed it to you?

A. Yes, the chart; so I took a parallel rule and

examined that line, and I approved it all right. I

approved that line; I examined the line of the

cross-bearings.

Q. The line you examined? A. Yes. [446]

Q. And you found it all right? A. Yes.

Q. Have you got the log-book here?

A. Yes, I have it with me.

Q. Where is it. Captain? Is that it in there?
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A. Here it is (witness producing same).

Q. I hand you book, Captain; what is that?

A. This is the deck log-book, sir.

Q. Deck log-book'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you turn to the page where those bear-

ings are entered. A. Here they are, sir.

Q. Which page is this, which of the two?

A. Cross-bearings are taken through here (in-

dicating).

Mr. KING.—Will you mark this page Libelant's

Exhibit 1, Mr, Reporter.

Mr. SNOW.—Just a minute. I object to the in-

troduction of the log-book, or any of the entries

from the log-book, on the ground they are not the

best evidence, that they are hearsay and a self-sei'v-

ing declaration.

Mr. KING.—I will offer it in a minute. What
I want to do is just to offer it so the Court can

examine it. Will you mark the page?

Mr. SNOW.—Its introduction in evidence is ob-

jected to for any purpose.

(The page referred to of said deck log-book was

thereupon marked Libelant's Exhibit 1.)

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Captain, I direct your at-

tention to a book, a page of which is marked Li-

belant's Exhibit 1; is that the page of the deck

log in which your bearings are entered? [447]

Mr. SNOW.—Objected to on the same grounds.

A. Yes.

Mr. KING.—Well, this is preliminary.
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The WITNESS.—This is the cross-bearing there,

and wrote next day that (indicating).

Mr. SNOW.—Pardon me, Captain. May I have

an understanding that my objections to the use of

the log-book extend to all of these questions, so I

won't have to be repeating it to each question?

Mr. KING.—I don't want to be technical at all,

but I am just identifying it. I am not offering

anything out of this log-book yet; I am just laying

the foundation. I want to make an offer; then I

think you can make your objection and we will let

it ride then, and I will let him testify as of his own

knowledge of the fact also.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, then, I will make my objec-

tions.

Mr. KING—Libelant now offers in evidence

page of a bound book entitled "Deck Log-Book,

S. S. 'Boston Maru,' " marked Libelant's Exhibit

1, the same being dated at the top thereof 25th Oc-

tober.

Mr. SNOW.—I object to the introduction of the

log-book, or any page of it, or any figures from it,

or writing from it, on the ground that it is not the

best evidence, is heaisay, and a self-serving decla-

ration.

(Said page marked Libelant's Exhibit 1 is tiled

herewith as a part of this deposition.)

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Are those notations in the

log-book in your own handwriting?

A. This is the chief mate's writing.

Q. The chief mate's? A. Yes. [448]



Kokusai Kisen Kahushiki KaisJia. 460

(Deposition of S. Sayeki.)

Q. Captain, will you draw the lines of the bear-

ing on the blue-print that you have with you of the

channel, out on this other table where you have a

flat surface. Can you do that?

A. I can show you which direction we took bear-

ing, but if you have any good instrument I can

show you right away. We should have station

pointer, an instrument called station pointer. Just

approximately I can show you all right.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—Captain, where is that blue-

print you drew? You drew this for me?
The WITNESS.—Yes.
Mr. ILLIDGE.—Where is that blue-print?

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Captain, are these bear-

ings entered in your log-book according to the true

compass or the magnetic compass?

A. The magnetic compass.

Mr. SNOW.—Objected to on the ground that the

witness didn't take the bearings.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Do you know. Captain,

of 3^our own knowledge? Do you know yourself?

A. Yes.

Q. According to what compass the bearings were

taken? Did you see them taken?

A. Well, we take bearings by standard compass

on our steamer.

Mr. SNOW.—The answer is objected to as not

responsive, and I move to strike the answer.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What kind of a compass

do you have on your ship?

A. Dry compass I have.
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Q. A dry compass? A. Yes.

Q. Is that a magnetic compass? A. Yes.

[449]

Q. Or what kind? A. Yes; magnetic compass.

Q. Have you any other kind of compass?

A. Well, I have a liquid compass also.

Q. But you didn't take your bearings yourself;

the second mate took them, did he?

A. Yes.

Q. He will know what compass he took them by,

I suppose?

A. Yes; the second mate will know about that.

Q. Now, when you checked these bearings how

did you do that? How did you check them? How
did you examine these entries?

A. Beg pardon, sir?

Q. You said you examined the bearings that the

second mate put down. A. Yes.

Q. Is this the second mate's handwriting?

A. No; this is the chief mate's writing.

Q. The chief mate's?

A. Yes. Of course, in the rough log-book is

stated all of these bearings, sir.

Q. Where is the rough log-book, Captain?

A. On board the ship, sir. I have not brought

it with me. But this is exactly the same as the

rough log-book, sir.

Mr. KING.—I thought you told them to bring

both of them up here.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—I told them to bring both of

them.
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The WITNESS.—Yes, but it is a long way to go

down to the ship, so I have no time to go down.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Can you bring it up to-

morrow morning early, or to-night at seven o'clock

send somebody up with it? [450]

Mr. SNOW.—Send a messenger down for it.

The WITNESS.—Well, if I can send down mes-

senger, all right.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Where is the ship now,

what dock? A. Terminal No. 4.

Q. Terminal No. 4, down at St. Johns'?

A. Terminal No. 4, No. 5 pier.

Q. No. 5 pier at Terminal No. 4?

A. Yes. But I can swear this log-book,—it is

exactly the same as the rough log-book.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, that is objected to on the

ground that it is volunteered, and on the ground

that the witness didn't do the writing; and I move

to strike out the last statement of the witness.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Well, who did the writ-

ing in this book?

A. For the deck log-book, sir?

Q. Yes. A. The chief mate.

'Q. Where is the chief mate now?

A. He is on board, sir.

Mr. KING.—We will have to have him now.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—I asked them to bring both logs.

The WITNESS.—Yes, but I had no time to get

them. I didn't go back.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Now, Captain, I am go-
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ing to ask you another question. You examined

the bearings? A. Yes.

Q. Now, do you know yourself, without looking

at anything being written down, do you know your-

self just what the bearings of the ship were?

Mr. SNOW.—That is objected to as calling for

a conclusion. [451]

Mr. KING.—I can ask him if it is within his

own knowledge. I want to say I claim that ques-

tion on this ground: I am dealing with a witness

who has a vague knowledge of the English lan-

guage, and I want to point out just what the fol-

lowing questions are being directed to.

A. I could not tell—I don't remember exactly;

but if I saw the log-book I can tell you right away;

because it is very difficult to remember for a long-

time. That is the reason I state it in the log-book.

Q. Now, of your own knowledge—not what some-

body else told you, but of your own knowledge

—

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know whether, after having examined

the entries in the log-book— A. Yes.

Q. That they are correct?

A. Yes, they are correct.

Mr. SNOW.—My last objection and motion are

repeated.

Mr. KING.—T claim the question on the same

gi'ound.

Q. I don't believe, Gaptain, you explained just

how you checked this.

A. I could not explain in English, but in Japa-
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nese I can explain better. It is very difficult to

tell.

Mr. SNOW.—Captain, you are a good English

student. You are an educated man.

The WITNESS.—Oh, no.

Mr. SNOW.—You can speak English as well as

I can, and I can't speak Japanese.

Mr. KING—I am perfectly willing for you to

have the assistance of an interpreter, but my friend

Mr. Snow here can't call to [452] his aid any-

body that he has confidence in on that point.

(Discussion as to interpreter off the record.)

Mr. KING.—You may try it and see if you can

make it clear.

Mr. SNOW.—Interrupted for cross-examina-

tion.

Mr. KING.—It is stipulated cross-examining at

this time is not to prejudice proctor for the re-

spondent's cross-examining later.

Mr. SNOW.—Captain, with what instrument are

bearings taken on your ship ordinarily?

A. Ordinarily?

Mr. SNOW.—With the ship's compass or po-

laris, or

—

A. We take bearing by standard compass.

Mr. SNOW.—By standard compass?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And is that the compass that the

ship is navigated by? A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—The same instrument? A. Yes.
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Mr. SNOW.—How do you take a bearing with

it?

A. We take a bearing by what we call sight bear-

ing.

Mr. SNOW.—You have a sight bearing?

A. Sight band; we put band on top.

Mr. SNOW.—You put that on top of the com-

pass, do you?

A. Yes, and took bearing.

Mr. SNOW.—And you sight through that?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Just like aiming a gun?

A. Yes; and read the point of the compass.

That way we do.

Mr. SNOW.—And the direction of the object,

by sighting your [453] compass

—

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Your sight band on your object,

then looking down to the card of the compass

—

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—You can see the bearing of that

object on the ship right on your compass, can you?

A. When taking bearing if object is seen.

Mr. SNOW.—If you can see the object?

A. Yes. If you can't see the object I don't take

bearing, but on the object which I can see I take

my bearing.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, these objects that are noted

as bearings having been taken on in this case

—

A. Yes.
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Mr. SNOW.—They were all visible objects, were

they ?

A. Yes, it was visible. The three lights were

visible.

Mr. SNOW.—Who took the bearings, Captain?

The second mate?

A. And another thing I wanted to take bearing

on another light but I could not find out; I could

not see it; that is the reason I took only—the sec-

ond mate took on the three lights.

Mr. SNOW.—He took on the three lights?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—That he could see?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Now^, Captain, that was done by

the second mate?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And then he jotted down

—

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—On a piece of paper

—

A. Yes. [454]

Mr. SNOW.—The three bearings?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And the second mate then wrote

from that piece of paper into the rough log those

bearings, did he?

A. No. First time he took the bearing and put

it in position in chart; then he showed it to me, so

I examined that bearing and I said, "This is all

right. '

^
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Mr. SNOW.—I see. Now, you examined the

chart, did you?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Now, did you actually look through

the sight band yourself?

A. No, no. I don't see bearing, but I can trust

second mate all right.

Mr. SNOW.—Yes; you are satisfied that he took

them correctly?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And all you saw was the written

notation made by him of the bearings he had taken ?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Is that right?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And then you yourself platted

those bearings on the chart?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—To show where your position was,

did you?

A. Yes, yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Or did he do that? He did it

first, did he?

A. Yes, he did it first, and I examined that bear-

ing was correct or not.

Mr. SNOW.—And you saw that he drew the cor-

rect lines on the chart, did you? [455]

Mr. SNOW—I think that explains the whole

thing, and the captain obviously can't testify that

the bearings are correct, except on hearsay.
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Mr, KING.—No, he can't testify as to the read-

ings, but he can testify as to the examination he

read on the plat to see whether the bearings would

fit the plat. In other words, they might have such

bearings as they would not fit the plat; they would

be at too broad an angle; I mean the lights would

be such that angles would not fit. Ask him about

that.

Mr. SNOW.—I will come back to that in a mo-

ment. I will ask you one more question: This

compass you speak of that the bearings were taken

from is in the pilot-house, is it not?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And the second mate took the

bearings shortly after you came to an anchor?

A. No ; he took bearings after I finished with the

engine.

Mr. SNOW.—After you had finished with the

engine ?

A. With the engine.

Mr. SNOW.—And you were finished with the en-

gine shortly after the anchor was dropped?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—The starboard anchor?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Had you swung down with the cur-

rent so that your anchor chain was taut at the time

the bearings were taken?

A. No. At that time when I swung and come

steady, steady to the stream, then he took the bear-

ings
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Mr. SNOW.—When your anchor chain was

hanging straight down then, was if? [456]

A. No, no; no, no.

Mr. SNOW.—Instead of reaching out?

A. No, no.

Mr. SNOW.—Instead of leading out?

A. No. When we dropped the anchor current

was going down.

Mr. SNOW.—Downstream ?

A. So (witness illustrates).

Mr. SNOW.—Was your bow upstream when you

dropped the anchor?

A. Yes. Swing the ship around to head up-

stream.

Mr. SNOW.—Head upstream?

A. Yes, head upstream, and drop the anchor;

when it comes chain tight and steady, he took the

bearings.

Mr. SNOW.—Then you were finished with the

engines ?

A. Yes, finished with the engines.

Mr. SNOW.—And he took the bearings?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Now, were j'ou in the pilot-house

when he took the bearings?

A. No. When finish with the engines I and the

pilot went down to the chart-room and to my room.

Mr. SNOW.—To the chart-room and to your

room?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And your room is below the pilot-

house, I take it, Captain, on the main deck?
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A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—What is the chart-room?

A. The chart-room is in front of my room.

Mr. SNOW.—In front of your room?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—It is below the pilot-house? [457]

A. Yes, just below the pilot-house.

Mr. SNOW.—And you and the pilot were either

in your room or the chart-room ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—At the time the second mate was

taking the bearings ; is that right ?

A. Beg pardon?

Mr. SNOW.—You and the pilot, I understand,

were either in your room or the chart-room?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—While the second mate was taking

the bearings?

A. Yes, yes; that is right.

Mr. SNOW.—That is correct?

A. That is right.

Mr. SNOW.—And who was in the pilot-house

with him when he was taking those bearings ?

A. The second mate and the third mate also.

Mr. SNOW.—The third mate also?

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—The third mate and the second

mate ?

A. Were on the bridge.

Mr. SNOW.—Were on the bridge when the bear-

ings were taken ?
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A. Oh, when this anchorage bearing was taken
.

by second mate, at that time two officers were on

upper bridge. I believe so.

Mr. SNOW.—Now, Captain, when he reports that

a certain light bore in a certain direction from the

ship

—

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—You don 't know of your own knowl-

edge, do you, that the light he was looking at was

the light he described in the bearing *? [458]

A. I beg pardon?

Mr. SNOW.—For instance, suppose the second

mate wrote down as one of his bearings that the

upper Columbia River—the rear Columbia River

range light bore in a certain direction from the

vessel.

A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—I don't know that he did that, but

let's suppose that he did. Now the question I want

to ask you is, how would you know that he was

looking at the right light when he took that bear-

ing?

A. Well, I can trust the second mate, so I am
satisfied what he reported to me.

Mr. SNOW.—But he is not familiar with the

Columbia River particularly, is he?

A. But he can see. He can find out which light

has been on the chart.

Mr. SNOW.—But this was at night, wasn't it,

Captain ?

A. Yes, night, but he can find out.

I
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Mr. SNOW.—After dark?

A. After dark. But he can find out all right,

because we have light lift, so we can see all right;

we can find out right away,

Mr. SNOW.—And you think then that he did

not make a mistake *?

A. No, no.

Mr. SNOW.—But you can't be sure?

A. Yes, I can be. He can take bearings all right,

I say.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, I think that explains it,

doesn 't it ?

Mr. KING.—You did very well.

Q. (Mr. KING resuming.) All right; after the

bearings were taken and you had examined them,

did you go to sleep, or where did you go? Did you

lie down? [459]

A. I had some talking with chief mate in his

room and came back in my room and slept on sofa.

Q. When did you wake up?

A. When the collision took—when collided by

"West Keats" I jumped up outside.

Q. Did that awaken you? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you go?

A. I went out on bridge deck.

Q. Did you see anything?

A. It was so dark I could not see, but I find out

the steamer was strike by another steamer.

Q. And did you see the other steamer, the one

that struck you?
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A. Yes. When I came out on deck I could not see

nothing, so I cross over hatch

—

Q. Just a minute now, Captain. Which side did

you come out on deck, on starboard or port side?

A. I came out on starboard side.

Q. And you could not see anything?

A. No; so I crossed over the bunker hatch.

Q. Now what deck were you on this time, which

deck? A. The bridge deck.

Q. On the bridge deck ; and you crossed over the

bunker hatch ?

A. Yes, crossed over the bvmker hatch and went

to port side of the bridge deck.

Q. Went to the port side of the bridge deck ; and

what did you see then ?

A. And I saw one steamer is going down.

Q. You saw a steamer going down river?

A. Yes. [460]

Q. How far away was she from the stern of your

ship then?

A. About a himdred or two hundred feet; one

hundred feet or a hundred yards—no; more than

that, maybe. Well, I am not sure; I can't tell you

exactly how far it was, but

—

Q. Well, just about how far?

A. About a hundred feet—a hundred yards.

Q. One hundred yards away ? A. Yes.

Q. Now where was that other steamer with refer-

ence to the Oregon shore from your ship? Which

direction was she? Was she nearer tlie Oregon

shore? A. Yes.
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Q. Or further away from the Oregon shore than
your ship was ? A. Nearer the Oregon shore.

Q. Nearer the Oregon shore ? A. Yes.

Q. How much nearer the Oregon shore? About
how much, if you can't tell exactly?

A. About, I said, one hundred yards.

Q. About one hundred yards nearer? A. Yes.

Q. And how much further down the stream was
she than your ship at that time?

A. Beg pardon, sir?

Q. At the time you saw this other steamer, which
turned out to be the ''West Keats," was she down-
stream from your boat, had she gone down the river

any, when you first caught sight of her ?

A. She was going down.

Q. Yes ; she was going down the river ?

A. Yes. [461]

Q. Now, was she just even with your boat, or had
she gone further down the river, past your boat?
A. Past my ship going down, sir.

Q. Well, how much had she gone down, how many
feet had she gone by your ship ?

A. About one hundred yards, sir.

Q. About one hundred yards down the river and
one hundred yards toward the shore, too ?

A. Yes.

Q. You think she was three hmidred feet closer

to the Oregon shore than the stern of your vessel;

is that right, when you saw her?

A. Beg pardon?
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Q. You think the "West Keats" was three hun-

dred feet—that is one hundred yards— A. Yes.

Q. Closer to the Oregon shore? A. Yes.

Q. Than the stern of the "Boston Maru"; is that

right? A. Yes.

Q. When you saw her? A. Yes.

Q. And she was also about one hundred yards

down the Columbia River?

A. When I see "West Keats" first it was on port

quarter, sir.

Q. On port quarter?

A. Yes, on port quarter about one hundred yards.

Q. On the port quarter about one hundred yards

oif. Now did you see her between the "Boston

Maru" and the Oregon shore, or where did you see

her? A. Beg pardon? [462]

Q. Where did you see the "West Keats"? Was
she between your vessel and the Oregon shore?

A. No. I can show you by

—

Q. Suppose you were standing on your vessel,

Captain, and your vessel had her bow pointed up-

stream—had her bow upstream against the ordinary

current of the river. A. Yes.

Q. On which side would the Oregon shore be, do

you know?

Mr. SNOW.—Will you read that ?

(Last two questions read.)

Mr. KING.—And you were facing the aft on your

ship, you see; you were facing the same way your

ship was pointing.
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The WITNESS.—I can't understand.

(Further Questions by Mr. ILLIDGE.)

Q. Captain, when were you awakened by the col-

lision— A. Yes.

Q. Had you disrobed and gone to bed?

A. Beg pardon ?

Q. Had you disrobed, undressed? A. Yes.

Q. When you went to sleep on the sofa before the

collision did you undress, or did you have your

clothes on?

A. Well, I had the clothes; just only take off the

coat and lay down on sofa.

Q. Just had taken off your coat ? A. Yes.

Q. What awakened you?

A. Collision happening.

Q. What did it do to you when the collision

happened?

A. Well, the ship is rolled to port side. [463]

Q. About how much do you think, or if you

know,—did it roll to the port side?

A. About one point or more, sir.

Q. How much is a point or more? How much is

a point ? A. A point is eleven degrees.

Q. Eleven degrees? A. Yes.

Q. She listed to port about eleven degrees?

A. Yes.

Q. Did she list enough to throw you off of the sofa

or not? A. I fell down on the floor, sir.

Q. You fell down on the floor?

A. Yes, sir, on the floor.

Q. And then you rushed out? A. Yes.
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Q. You rushed out first on the starboard side?

A. Yes.

Q. You saw nothing? A. No.

Q. Now when you rushed out at that time which

way did the bow of your boat point? Did it point

upstream or downstream, do 3^ou know?

A. Oh, I see. The ship was headed down.

Q. The ship was headed downstream? A. Yes.

Q. And you went out on the starboard side ; then

when you ran out what shore would be off the star-

board side?

A. When I came out I can see the ship is moving

that way (witness ilkistrates), so.

Q. Now, what do you mean by that? Do you

mean that the stern is [464] swinging around to

port ?

A. Swinging to—the stern is swinging to down,

sir.

Q. Which side, to port or starboard?

A. To port side, sir.

Q. Swinging to port. Now, when you went out

of your cabin on the bridge deck on starboard side,

do you know would the State of Washington be off

that side or would the State of Oregon be off that

side? A. Oregon side.

Q. Do you know that the Columbia River divides

Oregon and Washington? A. Yes.

Q. Now which side of your ship was on the

—

A. Oregon side.

Q. Well, the Oregon side was on which side of

your ship?
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A. When I came out the ship is moving, but when

I could notice the Oregon side is right aft; about

right off that way all over, you see, I can see shore

all over aft.

Q. Well, do I understand that the Oregon shore

was astern of your ship ? Is that what you are try-

ing to tell me ? A. Yes.

Q. The Oregon shore was astern of your ship?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, when you went out and you looked over

the starboard side and saw nothing, then you crossed

over to the port side? A. Yes.

Q. If I understand you, you saw then the "West

Keats," or the boat that turned out to be the "West

Keats"? A. Yes.

Q. Now, what part of the "West Keats" was near

or opposite the bow of the "Boston Maru" when you

hrst saw the "West Keats"? [465]

A. "West Keats" was going down that way, and

the ship was heading that way (witness illus-

trating).

Mr. KING.—That doesn't indicate anything in

the record.

Mr. ILLIDOE.—No, that doesn't indicate any-

thing in the record.

Q. Can you tell me, was any part of the "West
Keats" to your stern?

A. "West Keats," I could see the after part of

the "West Keats" first.

Q. The after part of the "West Keats"?

A. Yes.
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Q. Was opposite what part of the ''Boston

Maru'"? A. On port quarter.

Q. Off the port quarter? A. Yes.

Q. Now, the port quarter is what part of the ship ?

A. The port quarter means

—

Q. Does the port quarter begin at amidships ?

A. Begin from aft—from beam to aft—to right

aft.

Q. You mean directly aft. Do I imderstand the

port quarter begins from amidships and extends

back to the center of the stern? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the port quarter. A. Yes.

Q. Then I understand when you rushed over to

the port side after the collision, the stern of the

"West Keats," or the after quarter, was it, of the

"West Keats"? A. Yes.

Q. Was opposite your port quarter? A. Yes.

Q. And now the "West Keats" at that time was

about how far away [466] from the "Boston

Maru"? A. From my place

—

Q. About how many feet distance between the

stern of the "West Keats" and the stern of the

"Boston Maru"?

A. About one hundred yards, sir.

Q. About one hundred yards ?

A. Yes, or more. No less than one hundred

yards, sir.

Q. Would the "West Keats" at that time, then,

be between your stern and the Oregon shore?

A. Beg pardon?
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Q. At that time, then, would the "West Keats'*

be between your stern, the stern of the "Boston

Maru," and the Oregon shore. Do you understand

what I mean by "between"?

A. Between'? What you say?

Q. Do you understand what I mean by "be-

tween '

' ?

A. Yes, I understand between. Between—I could

see—here is Oregon, and my steamer was here (illus-

trating) ; then I can see steamer between here, sir,

between Oregon and our steamer, going down.

Q. Now after the collision, after you saw the

"West Keats," what did she do? Did she stop or

did she keep on going down the river?

A. She keep on going down, sir.

Q. She kept on going down the river?

A. Yes. So I called the second mate to call up

that steamer by signal.

A. Oh, you signaled?

A. Yes, by electric light—by electric light—by
Morse signal.

Q. By Morse signal?

A. Yes; but she don't answer;.

Q. She didn't answer the signal? [467]

A. No.

Q. Is that by wireless or by waving a light?

A. It is by electric light.

Q. Well, how far down the river did the "West
Keats" go.

A. I could not see, because it was dark. I could

not see the steamer.
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Q. Did she go down out of sight?

A. She went down far away, about one miles or

two miles more, sir. Anyway, when I came out on

deck I waked up—the deck was lighted so we could

not see far away. If it is dark on deck I can see

more, but when I came out it is lighted by electric,

so I can't see far away.

Q. If I understand you right, you lighted your

electric lights on your boat?

A. Yes, so I could not see far away.

Q. All right; you could not see far away because

you lighted the electric lights on your own boat?

A. Yes.

Q. Well, then, before you lighted these electric

lights what lights were burning?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. Before you lighted the electric lights after the

collision what lights were burning?

A. We kept on electric light right through all

the time.

Q. Before the collision what lights were burning?

A. Electric lights, sir.

Q. Did you have any kind of signal lights burn-

ing? A. No.

Q. Before the collision did you have any signal

lights burning when you were lying at anchor?

[468]

A. No ; I don 't see any signal lights at all.

Q. I don't mean on the "West Keats." Did you

have you anchored lights burning? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Before the collision?
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A. Yes, sir; of course, sir.

Q. Were they burning after the collision?

A. Burning also after the collision.

Q. Both fore and aft?

A. Yes, both fore and aft, sir.

Q. And were they the only lights burning until

you had the other lights turned on after the colli-

sion? A. Beg pardon?

Q. Were the anchor lights the only lights burn-

ing— A. Yes.

Q. Up until and after the collision ? A. Yes.

Q. Until you had all the other lights turned on,

the deck lights?

Mr. KING.—He says he kept his electric lights

on.

Q. (By Mr. ILLIDGE.) Did you turn on some

electric lights after the accident, after the collision ?

A. No; I didn't touch the electric lights at all,

but when I heave up anchor I took down the anchor

lights ; that is all ; and showed the navigation lights.

Q. Well, what do you mean by showing the navi-

gation lights?

A. That means navigating, steaming on. After

I hove up anchor we saw

—

Q. After you hove up anchor ? A. Yes.

Q. Oh, well, we are still anchored. We haven't

hove up anchor [469] yet. A. I see.

Q. I am talking about while you lay at anchor.

A. Oh, I see, sir. Well, we don't turn on nothing

—just the two anchor lights, sir.

Q. Just the two anchor lights? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, what part of the "Boston Maru" had the

"West Keats" struck?

A. The starboard right aft, sir.

Q. What part of your ship, Captain, was struck

by the "West Keats'"? A. Starboard aft, sir.

Q. Starboard aft? A. Yes.

Q. And did the "West Keats" ever come back

again? A. Yes, she come back again.

Q. About how long after the collision ?

A. Twenty minutes or a half an hour; about half

an hour, I expect.

Q. About a half an hour after the collision?

A. Yes.

Q. And when she came back how was the "Boston

Maru '

' headed then ?

A. That time ship was headed down, sir.

Q. Bow downstream? If I understand you, bow

downstream; is that right?

A. Yes, head downstream.

Q. How was the tide at that time?

A. The tide was flood tide, sir.

Q. Flood tide? A. Yes.

Q. Now, which side of the "Boston Maru" did

the
'

' West Keats '

' pass [470] on ?

A. On the starboard side, sir.

Q. On the starboard side. When the "West

Keats" came back after the collision which side of

your ship, the "Boston Maru," did the "West

Keats" pass on? A. On the starboard side, sir.

Q. What shore would be on the starboard side of

the "Boston Maru"?

i
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A. The Washington side, sir.

Q. The "West Keats" then come back past on

the Washington side of your ship? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And about how far off starboard side of your

ship did she pass? How close did she come to the

"Boston Maru'"? A. About one hundred feet, sir.

Q. Then coming back upstream after the colli-

sion— A. Yes.

Q. The "West Keats" passed on the Washington

side of the "Boston Maru"— A. Yes.

Q. At a distance of about one hundred feet?

A. Yes, sir.

(Further Questions by Mr. KING.)

Q. Captain, how many tons of coal did it take to

steam the vessel, to run her from St. Helens back to

Portland ?

A. From St. Helens back to Portland, sir?

Q. Yes, after the collision.

A. About eight tons, sir, I expect.

Q. Eight tons? A. Yes.

Q. Only eight tons? [471] A. Yes.

Q. How much coal have you used while you have

been in port ?

A. In port about three or four tons, sir. If we
work for cargo out, we use about three or four tons,

sir.

Q. A day, you mean? A. Yes, for a day.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—Captain, you say eight tons
;
you

write that. Did you say eight tons to steam from
St. Helens up here to Portland ?

A. When I come up, yes, about eight tons, sir.
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Mr. ILLIDGE.—Eight?
A. Yes.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—You write that, will you.

The WITNESS.—Eight tons (writing same).

Q. (By Mr. KING.) And you used three or four

tons a day here in Portland? A. Yes.

Q. How many days have you done that?

A. From twenty-seventh up to to-day.

Q. And how many tons have you used altogether

then since the time of the accident?

A. About—I think about seventy-five or eighty

tons altogether.

Q. Seventy-five or eighty?

A. Yes, up to go down.

Q. Taking you back to St. Helens?

A. To St. Helens.

Q. It will take about eighty tons altogether?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where did you buy that coal ? Are you taking

coal on board here ?

A. Yes, we are going to take in coal.

Q. How much do you pay a ton for it? [472]

A. I don't know that.

Q. Who knows that? A. The K Line offices.

Q. The K Line offices will know that? A. Yes.

Q. How many men have you on board your ship ?

A. Thirty-nine men, sir.

Q. Do you know what the total pay-roll a month

is, how mucli they pay all the men together each

month ?
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A. I could not tell you exactly, but about—for

wages ?

Q. Yes, for wages.

A. About two thousand dollars, sir.

Q. A month ? A. For a month.

Q. And how much does it cost each day to feed

the men? How much do you pay for food to eat?

A. For—
Q. Well, for the total, for the whole bunch, how

much stores does it take ?

A. I can't tell you exactly; I don't know.

Q. Tell me as near as you can about how much a

day. A. About one thousand dollars, sir.

Q. A day ? A. No, no ; for months.

Q. Oh, for a month? A. Yes.

Q. That would be about thirty-seven dollars a

day ; is that right ? Divide a month by thirty, you

would get about thirty-three dollars a day, then,

cost for food? A. Yes. [473]

Q. How much does it cost for oil and stuff for the

engines each day? A. I don't know, sir.

Q. You don't know that, eh? A. No.

Q. The K Line would know that, would it?

A. Yes.

Q. They keep a record of that, do they?

A. Yes, sir; maybe.

Q. You don't know about what the rate of charter

and demurrage on your boat is?

A. No, I don't know that.

Q. The K Line know that, do they ? A, Yes.

Q. They have a record of that? A. Yes.
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Q. After the collision did you have to take off

some of your deck-load'? A. Yes.

Q. About how many thousand feet of lumber did

you have to take off, Captain?

A. I don't know by feet.

Q'. How many tons?

A. But they work for certain times. I don't

know exactly.

Q. You didn't pay those bills'? Did you pay the

men to do that, the stevedores ?

A. No; the stevedore took some firm, but I don't

remember now how much the cost has been.

Q. You don't know. The K Line will know that,

will they? A. Yes, the K Line or Suzuki. [474]

Q. Either one or the other will know it?

A. Yes.

Q. Then they had to load that lumber back on

board after they finished repairs; they had to put

the lumber back again? A. Yes.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—The lumber wasn't loaded yet.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) And the ship was here in

port; she had some repairs made to her, didn't she?

A. Yes.

Q. Is she on drydock?

A. No, she is not in drydock.

Q. She is not now, but she was, wasn't she?

When she came up here didn't she go in drydock?

A. No, we don't go in the drydock at all.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—Just alongside?

A. Just alongside.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Oh, just alongside?
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A. Yes.

Q. Made repairs alongside? A. Yes.

Q. When yon came back ujd the river, Captain,

from St. Helens, after the accident, did you have

a pilot on board? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And when you moved about the harbor here to

get repairs and unload the lumber, did you use a

pilot? A. Yes, right through.

Q. And a tugboat? A. And tugboats, sir.

Q. Did you pay those bills? A. Yes. [475]

Q. You did? A. Yes.

Q. Have you got receipts for those ?

A. No, I don 't have them with me, but they might

be

—

Mr. ILLIDGE.—Won't Suzuki pay these bills?

Do they know about the tug boats, and the pilot

charges ?

A. Yes ; all paid by Suzuki Company, not K Line.

Part of this is paid by the K Line also.

Mr. KING.—You may cross-examine.

Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Now, you dropped the anchors about eight-ten

P. M., Captain? A. Eight-thirty P. M.

Q. Eight-thirty off the Columbia City lights?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you see the Columbia City lights when you

dropped the anchor? A. The Columbia City?

Q. Range lights? A. Yes.

Q. Can you see them from straight out in the

stream ?
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A. Yes, I could see all right, only one light. On
the Oregon side I could see only two lights.

Q. Only two lights on the Oregon side?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know which ones these were?

A. Yes; we took the bearings. Another two

lights I could not see.

Q. It was dark then, wasn't it?

A. No; shaded by trees, sir. [476]

Q. The lights were shaded by trees?

A. Yes, shaded by trees, so I could not see another

two lights, but two lights I could see.

Q. Now, you came downstream before you an-

chored? A. Yes.

Q. And swung the ship around with her head up-

stream? A. Yes.

Q. Which way did she swing, to port or to star-

board? A. To starboard.

Q. To starboard? A. Yes.

Q. Then you came down near the Oregon shore,

did you?

A. No. Well, we came down around—we came

down around Oregon side and swing the ship.

Q. Out toward the Washington side ?

A. Yes, out to the Washington side, and came up

to up head and dropped the anchor.

Q. Then you swung the ship? A. Yes.

Q. At a point below where you actually dropped

the anchor, 1 suppose { A. Beg i)nr(lon, sir?

Q. You went upstream a little bit after you got

the ship swung around entirely, did you?
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A. Well, that time it was slow speed, so the cur-

rent was going down? A. Downstream?

A. So ship was not going up; maybe stopped in

one place.

Q. Stopped in one place?

A. Yes; because water is coming down. [477]

Q. Were you stopped at the time you dropped the

anchor? A. Beg pardon?

Q. Were you stopped at the time you dropped the

anchor? Were you at a stop, were you standing

still, at the time you dropped the anchor ?

A. Yes, the time I dropped the anchor.

Q. And I suppose your engine was going slow

ahead, was it ? A. At that time ?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, going slow and just engine slow ahead

and slow astern sometimes; I don't know exactly;

many times we use the engines, stop and slow.

Q. When you were coming to an anchor you were

under varying bells, were you? A. Beg pardon?

Q. You were under varying bells and different

speeds? A. Yes, different speeds.

Q. And you let go the starboard anchor, did you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many feet of chain; how many fathoms

of chain, I should say? A. Thirty fathom.

Q. Thirty fathoms?

A. Yes; pay out thirty fathoms of chain; that is

two shackles on deck.

Q. Now, how long was it after you dropped that
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anchor that you and the pilot went downstairs to

your room? A. Beg pardon?

Q. How long after you dropped anchor was it that

you and the pilot went downstairs, went down to

your room in the chart-room?

A. After I finished the engine I came down to the

chart-room, so— [478]

Q. Was that when you left the second mate to

take the bearings?

A. The second mate took the bearings after fin-

ished with the engines, see?

Q. After you finished with the engines?

A. Yes; so at the same time I went down. I or-

dered the second mate to take cross-bearing of those

three lights and I went down to chart-room and my
room.

Q. Did you use the engines any after you had

dropped the anchor?

A. I don't remember exactly, but I don't think

we used the engine, I don't remember, exactly.

We stopped the engines and when the ship comes

stop, drop the anchor, I expect; I don't know ex-

actly.

Q. I see you don't remember exactly?

A. No, no.

Q. You were in the pilot-house while the pilot

was bringing the vessel to an anchorage, weren't

you? A. Yes.

Q. You were in the pilot-house or on the bridge?

A. Yes ; I was on bridge also.

Q. You have a bridge there on that vessel with
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two wings, have you, extending on either side of

the pilot-house?

A. Yes. I was standing on flying bridge. I

don't remember which side I was standing on, but

I was on upper bridge.

Q. On the upper bridge?

A. Yes, because pilot may give us order to let go

anchor or anything else.

Q. And you would have to be there to see that

that order was obeyed, would you?

A. Yes, to give the order to the second mate

—

no, not second mate ; I mean for chief mate on fore-

castle.

Q. Was the chief mate standing by on the fore-

castle head? [479]

A. Yes, for dropping anchor the chief mate was

on forecastle-head.

Q. Did you take any bearings at the time the

vessel was coming to her anchorage ground ?

A. No; I don't taken anything at all; just I was

on bridge, that is all.

Q. Do you know whether the pilot took any bear-

ings?

A. I don't remember. I don't remember. He
might. He was looking for shore, but I don't know

if he took the bearings himself or not. I don't

remember. He was watching the shore all right, I

know.

Q. He was watching the shore, was he?

A. Yes.

Q. Which shore, the Oregon or Washington?
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A. On both sides.

Q. Is the pilot-house on the same level as the

bridge? A. Yes.

Q. So the bridge extends on either side of the

pilot-house, does it?

A. Yes. I think so, but I don't understand pilot-

house. I don't use generally pilot-house, but I

think you mean the pilot-house is upper bridge.

Q. You think what?

Mr. KINGr.—Think you mean upper bridge.

The WITNESS.—Yes, I think you mean upper

bridge.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) What I mean by the pilot-

house is the house where the wheel is.

A. Yes, yes.

Q. For steering? A. That is right.

Q. Is that what you call the upper bridge ? [480]

A. Yes, that is what we call the upper bridge.

Q. Is that below or above the bridge on which

you were? A. Yes—beg pardon?

Q. Is that above the bridge where you were?

A. Yes.

Q. Or on a level? A. Yes.

Q. Were you in the pilot-house at that time?

A. No, no. I was at that time in upper bridge.

Q. Oh, and the pilot was up there too, was he?

A. Yes.

Q. Who had charge of the setting of your riding

lights after you came to an anchor?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. AVho took charge of setting your riding lights
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after you came to an anchor? Do I make myself

clear, Captain? A. Beg pardon?

Q. Do I make myself clear?

A. No, I could not understand what you say.

Q. A while ago you talked about your lights, one

being in the fore rigging; I believe you said, and

one in the jackstaff aft?

A. Yes, sir, that is right.

Q. Who set those lights?

A. That is one of the sailors.

Q. One of the sailors?

A. Yes; perhaps storekeeper.

Q, Under whose direction; one of the mates'?

A. Well, this was given by the chief mate's

orders.

Q. You say the orders were given by the chief

mate ? A. Yes, by chief mate. [481]

Q. Did you see those lights set yourself. Cap-

tain?

A. Of course everybody know that we must put

anchor light when we drop the anchor, so he might

give the order or might not. You know, whether

he give the order or not, sailors would put it up

right away.

Q. They know enough to put them up without

orders ?

A. Yes. They are familiar with that rule to

hoist that anchor light.

Q. They are familiar with that regulation?

A. Yes, with that regulation.
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Q. Do you have the same anchor lights in Japa-

nese waters ? A. Yes, all over the world, sir.

Q. All over the world? A. Yes.

Q. The same lights and the same heights from

deck, are they? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the same places? A. Yes.

Q. Did you see those lights yourself?

A. Yes; I see the lights all right.

Q. You said one of them was in the fore rigging ?

A. Forestay.

Q. On the foremast ? A. On the forestay.

Q. On the forestay?

A. Yes, on the forestay.

Q. And about how high from the deck was that?

A. About thirty-seven feet, or thirty-six or seven

feet; I don't know exactly; perhaps thirty-seven or

six.

Q. And the other, you say, was on the jackstaff

aft? [482] A. On the flagstaff aft.

Q. On the flagstaff aft? A. Yes.

Q. Are you sure it was there and not in the main

rigging? A. No.

Q. It wasn't in the main rigging? A. No.

Q. You are sure of that?

A. I didn't see any light on the main rigging.

Q. You saw the riding lights yourself, did you,

after they were put up ?

A. No, I don't see any light on riggings.

Mr. KING.—He didn't set any on riggings. He
doesn't understand you, Mac.
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Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Did you see the lights

yourself, Captain, after they were set, those riding

lights? Did you see them with your own eyes?

A. Yes; I could see two anchor lights, one on

forestay and one for after flagstaff but not on

riggings.

Q. Not in the main rigging?

A. No. Riggings mean mainmast side of stay.

I don't have any light on rigging.

Q. This light on the forestay was on one of these

stays on the foremast, was it? A. Yes.

Q. And there wasn't any light on the stays on

the mainmast ? A. No.

Q. Or any other mast? A. No.

Q. And this flagstaff aft is just a short mast, isn't

it? [483] A. Yes.

Q. How high is it ?

A. About twenty feet long, I expect, but when

they hoist it up the anchor light was about seventeen

feet or sixteen feet high from poop-deck.

Q. Do they hoist that with a little block and

tackle? A. Yes.

Q. Lash it there, do they? A. Beg pardon?

Q. Do they lash it there? Do they tie it there?

A. Yes.

Q. Make it fast? A. Yes, make fast.

Q. What other lights were there on deck now.

Captain, at the time of the collision?

A. On deck at that time of collision? Well,

maybe electric deck light.
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Q. Did you have a cluster on, cargo cluster? Do
you know ^Yhat I mean by a cargo cluster?

A. Yes.

Q. That is a group of lights, a cluster of lights.

A. No.

Q. That you used to work cargo with at night?

A. No, no.

Q. You didn't have anything like that on?

A. No.

Q. What other lights did you have on deck, or

do you know?

A. We have only fixed the lights on deck, sir.

Q. What lights are they?

A. We call generally bulkhead lights. [484]

Q. Bulkhead lights?

A. The overhead deck light, just like this (point-

ing to light in ceiling of room) ; the light on deck.

Q. What are those lights for. Captain?

A. For everybody to walk and to see on deck well.

Q. To light up the deck ?

A. Yes, sir, to light up the deck.

Q. And how many of those are there?

A. About twenty of those deck lights.

Q. Twenty of them?

A. Yes, about twenty, I expect.

Q. About twenty. Do they light up pretty much

of the whole main deck?

A. No; main deck, all main deck is loaded with

lumber.

Q. You had a deck-load on the main deck?

A. Yes, sir.

I
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Q. That is what you call the well deck ; is that it ?

A. Yes, sir, that is right.

Q. Those lights were not to light up the well deck,

then? A. No.

Q. They were to light up the bridge deck?

A. Yes, only bridge deck.

Q. Were there twenty of them around there?

A. Yes, about twenty; I think about twenty

lights.

Q. You don't remember having any cluster of

lights, any cargo cluster, then, do you?

A. I don't remember.

Q. Of course you went to sleep along about nine

o'clock, did you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you didn't know what there was on deck

after that, did you? [485]

A. No, I don't know after that.

Q. So you don't know what lights were burning

and what were not after that, from seeing them with

your own eyes?

A. Of course, I put on officer and one quarter-

master on deck for anchor watch, so if he does not

call me up I think everything is going on all right,

I believe.

Q. Now, who went on watch first?

A. On first the third mate.

Q. The second mate ? A. The third mate.

Q. The third mate, and one of the quarter-

masters? A. And one of the quartermasters.

Q. And what was that quartermaster's name, do

vou know? A. I don't know his name.
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Q. That was the third mate stood the first watch ?

A. Yes.

Q. Up until twelve o'clock?

A. Yes, up until twelve o'clock.

Q. And who relieved him at twelve o'clock?

A. Second mate relieved him.

Q. And do you know the name of the quarter-

master that relieved the quartermaster watch at

twelve o'clock"?

A. I don't know. Just man who came up here.

Q. One of the men who have been brought here

as a witness, was it? A. Yes.

Q. That is the man? A. That is the man.

Q. Do you recognize him? [486]

A. Yes. I just joined this ship before leaving

Japan, you see, so I don't know everybody's name.

Q. I see. You went to sleep on the sofa in

saloon, didn't you? A. No; in my room.

Q. In your room? A. Yes.

Q. And the collision woke you up? A. Yes.

Q. And you went on deck then? A. Yes.

Q. On the starboard side?

A. On the starboard side on bridge deck.

Q. Bridge deck, starboard side? A. Yes.

Q. And your room opens on to the bridge deck,

does it ? A. Yes.

Q. Starboard side ?

A. Yes, sir. My room is on lower bridge.

Q. On the lower bridge? A. Yes, sir.

Q. 1 see. Now, when you went out on the star-

board side of the bridge deck what did you see?
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A. I could not see nothing.

Q. You could not see anything at all?

A. No, but I take notice; I find out the steamer

strike. Somebody shouting, you see.

Q. Somebody shouting?

A. Somebody shouting steamer striking, so I take

notice for anchor light fore and aft, and came out

to port side of the bridge deck. [487]

Q. Did you look at your anchor lights fore and

aft? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you standing when you looked at

your anchor lights'?

A. Anchor lights were burning, sir.

Q. They were burning, were they? A. Yes.

Q. Where were you when you looked at them?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. Where were you when you looked at the

anchor lights? A. On bridge deck.

Q. On which side ? A. On starboard side.

Q. That is when you first came out of your room?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. That was the first thing you did, to look at

your anchor lights, was it ?

A. Yes; and look at the anchor lights first.

Q. You did what?

A. Look at the anchor lights first when I came

out on deck.

Q. Then you say you could not see anything from

the starboard side of the deck ? A. No.

Q. You could not see any lights?

A. No, I could not see any light on starboard side.
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Q. Could you see the shore?

A. Well, I could see a black line.

Q. Black line? A. Yes.

Q. An outline of the shore?

A. Yes ; I could see the shade of the shore. [488]

Q. What shore was that, do you know, Captain?

A. I think it was Oregon shore.

Q. I take it it wasn't

—

A. And also at that time I can find out the ship

is moving, ship's stern is moving down by impact.

Q. The ship's stern was moving down the stream

by the impact, was it? A. Yes, impact.

Q. Could you tell how fast it was moving down-

stream?

A. No, I could not tell you exactly.

Q. She was swinging, was she, with the impact?

A. Yes ; she was moving easily.

Q. Just slowly? A. Yes.

Q. She was on an even keel, of course, by that

time, was she?

A. No; she was by the stern.

Q. She was by that time ? A. Yes.

Q. By the time you got out there ?

A. My steamer was by the stern?

Q. By the stern? A. Yes.

Q. What do you mean?

A. She is not even keel.

Q. She was not on an even keel? A. No.

Mr. KING.—He means fore and aft.

The WITNESS.—Fore and aft.

I
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Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Oh, she had more cargo

—

how much by the stern was she? [489]

A. About three or four feet, I expect.

Q. Oh, she was ? A. Yes.

Q. What was her draft forward?

A. Fore twenty-four feet and a Httle bit; I don't

remember; and aft it w^as twenty-six one.

Q. Twenty-six one was your deepest draft?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was aft ? A. Yes, that was aft.

Q. And your draft forward was considerably less,

then? A. Yes.

Q. Three or four feet less?

A. Yes; about twenty-four feet, but not less than

twenty-four feet.

Q. Not less than twenty-four feet ? A. Yes.

Q. I see. When you were standing on the bridge

deck starboard could you see what you call the

shade or shadow of the land amidships or to your

stern ? A. On stern, sir.

Q. Toward the stern?

A. Right through on the after.

Q. On the after end ? A. Yes.

Q. And you were looking out toward the aft then

when you saw the shadow of the land ?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. You were looking out toward the after end?

A. Yes.

Q, On the port quarter when you saw—off the

starboard quarter [490] when you saw the shadow

of the land?
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A. Yes, from starboard quarter to the right aft,

all over. When I came out on port I could see Ore-

gon shore also.

Q. When you were on the port side you could see

the Oregon shore also? A. Yes.

Q. Looking aft, then, or off the port quarter ?

A. From right through, sir—from right aft on

port.

Q. On toward the port? A. Yes.

Q. I see. You could see the Oregon shore from

both the starboard and port sides of the bridge

deck? A. Yes.

Q. If you looked aft; is that correct?

A. Beg pardon?

Q. By looking aft? A. Yes.

Q. From either the starboard or port side of the

bridge-deck— A. Yes.

Q. You could see the Oregon shore ? A. Yes.

Q. That is correct, is it?

A. Yes; and the ship was moving down.

Q. And the ship was moving downstream?

A. Yes.

Q. And she was about, you think, three hundred

yards away when you first came on deck, do you

or when you got over on the port side? A. Yes.

Q. After a while she came back, didn't she?

A. Beg pardon? [491]

Q. You testified that after a while she came back i

A. Yes.

Q. The "West Keats"?

A. Yes, the ''West Keats" come.
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Q. Along about twenty minutes or a half hour,

you say?

A. Yes, about a half hour later the "West Keats"
came up again.

Q. What did you do with the "Boston Maru" be-

tween the time of the collision and the time the
"West Keats" came back?

A. I was inspecting the damaged part.

Q. Did you inspect that yourself? A. Yes.

Q. You went aft yourself and saw it, did you?
A. Yes, yes

; and I see—I inspected the steering
gear also.

Q.The steering gear? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you find the steering gear?
A. It was jammed; the steering gear rudder could

not move.

Q. It was jammed, was it?

A. Yes, it was jammed.

Q. You had to make temporary repairs before
you could make your berth the next morning, didn't
you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you doing anything else during that
time, between the time of the collision and the time
the "West Keats" came back?
A. And also I gave the second mate—I gave order

to second mate to make Morse signals for the "West
Keats," and the second mate and the operator called
up "West Keats" by signal, but she went on, sir.

Mr. SNOW.-I move to strike that, because it is
hearsay,

Q. Did the "Boston Maru" turn any between the
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time of the collision [492] and the time the "West

Keats '

' came back ? Did she turn in the river ?

A. Yes; she—at that time the ship came back to

head down again. The ship was moving down by

impact, but after that she came back.

Q. She came back ?

A. Yes, came back to head down.

Q. To head clear downstream?

A. Yes, sir; just right parallel to the shore.

Q. Parallel to the shore? A. Yes.

Q. With her head downstream?

A. Yes, sir, with her head downstream.

Q. Which way did she swing back? Did her

stern swing toward the Oregon shore when she came

back ?

A. Yes, sir; stern was swinging back to Oregon

side.

Q. Then the stern went right upstream?

A. Yes, right upstream.

Q. And then her head was do\Mistream?

A. Yes.

Q. And was her head downstream when the

''West Keats" came back? A. Yes.

Q. And which side of you did the "West Keats"

come, the starboard or port ?

A. On starboard side she passed.

Q. How far away?

A. About one hundred feet, I expect.

Q. You saw her quite plainly, I suppose ?

A. Yes, yes.

Q. Did she hail you? A. Beg ])ardon? [493]
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Q. Did she hail you? Did anybody shout from

the ''West Keats" to your vessel?

A. Yes, yes. I don't know; maybe the pilot or

somebody else shouted.

Q. Who answered that from your vessel?

A. The pilot answered.

Q. The pilot, Captain Gildez? A. Yes.

Q. That conversation was in English, I suppose,

wasn't it? A. Yes, yes.

Q. You understood all of it, I suppose, didn't

you, or nearly all of it?

A. Some of it I could understand, but the pilot

explained it clearly.

Q. He explained it to you?

A. Yes; that the steamer is going back to Port-

land, he said.

Q. And he explained that they asked you what
your damage was, and whether you were damaged
below the water-line, didn't he?

Mr. KING.—I object to that.

Mr. SNOW.—All right; I don't insist on that.

Mr. KING.—There is no charge that the "West
Keats" ran away.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Then the "West Keats"
went upstream, did she ? A. Yes, went upstream.

Q. And disappeared? A. Beg pardon?

Q. And disappeared? A. Yes, disappeared.

Q. And you stayed where you were ?

A. I was waiting steering gears to be ready.

Q. You were getting the steering gear ready, were
you? [494] A. Yes.
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Q. And making the repairs?

A. Yes. They removed the—I don't know what

you call the name.

Q. Well, I have forgotten it. I know what you

mean.

A. Yes. She take off part of the deck fitting—

my crew took off deck fitting; then rudder work all

right— not all right, but then rudder work better,

and I spoke to the pilot the rudder will not move

hard over but she can move about thirty degrees.

Q. Thirty degrees?

A. Yes, from center to one side. So I asked the

pilot, 'You can take the ship or not?' And he

said, "If we go very slow we can manage all right,"

he said. Therefore we stand by engine and proceed

to St. Helens.

Q. Wliat time was it that you heaved in your

anchor to move to St. Helens?

A. If I see the log-book I can tell you, but about

three o'clock, I expect.

Q. About three o'clock, you think? A. Yes.

Q. And did you either give out or pay in any

anchor chain—pay out or heave in any anchor

chain? A. No.

Q. Before that? A. No.

Q. You stayed right exactly at the same place,

did you? A. Yes.

Q. From the time of the collision? A. Yes.

Q. Until you moved to St. Helens?

A. Yes, that is right. [495]
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Q. And that was a couple of hours later, I take

it? A. Yes.

Q. And during that time you were repairing your

steering gear, were you? A. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. After the collision, Captain, the anchor light

on the flagstaff was still burning, was it ?

A. Yes, still burning.

Q. That light was placed at the very tip of the

flagstaff, or what part was it on?

A. Well, about two or three feet below the flag-

staff top.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived.

(At this point a recess was taken until 7:00

o'clock P. M. of this day, Monday, November 10,

1924, at which time, at the same place, proceedings

herein were resumed as follows:) [496]

STIPULATION RE TESTIMONY OF CAP-
TAIN S. SAYEKI.

It is stipulated that the captain of the "Boston

Maru," S. Sayeki, would testify under oath that the

following are the dimensions and measurements of

the ''Boston Maru"; Standard compass to hawse-

pipe horizontal 136 feet; shackle (2 shackle) to

hawse-pipe diagonal 21 feet; hawse-pipe to surface

of water vertical 16 feet 6 inches; hawse-pipe to

stem horizontal 5 feet; that the distance from the
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standard compass to the stem horizontal is 259 feet.

Mr. H. S. Toda was produced by proctors for the

libelant as an interpreter and was by the notary

sworn to truly and correctly translate and interpret

all questions propounded to the witnesses from the

English language into the Japanese language, and to

translate and interpret all answers given by the wit-

nesses from the Japanese language into the English

language to the best of his ability.

DEPOSITION OF H. YOKOI, FOR LIBELANT.

H. YOKOI was thereupon produced as a witness

in behalf of the libelant and, having been sworn

through interpreter Toda, to tell the truth, the whole

truth and nothing but the truth, the following oc-

curred :

Mr. SNOW.—Before we start I would like to

ask the interpreter a few questions.

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Mr. Toda, what is your occupation?

Interpreter TODA.—Merchant or employee of

Suzuki & Company. [497]

Mr. SNOW.—You are in the employ of Suzuki

& Company?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes, I am. Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And you live here in Portland?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes, I do.

Mr. SNOW.—And you ai-e in their Portland

office, are you ?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.



Kokusai Risen Kahushiki Kaisha. 519

Mr. SNOW.—You are a Japanese by birth ?

Interpreter TODA.—Citizen.

Mr. SNOW.—A Japanese citizen ?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—Suzuki & Company is the agent in

Portland for the K Line?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes, for the Kokusai Kisen.

Mr. SNOW.—I mean the owner of the "Boston

Maru"?
Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—And so in Portland you represent

both the K line and Suzuki & Company?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. KING.—Just a moment. I object to that

question, unless you specify whom you mean by

'^ou."

Mr. SNOW.—I mean by "you," the interpreter

Mr. Toda.

Interpreter TODA.—Oh, I do not represent those

people. I am merely an employee of the company

which represents them.

Mr. SNOW.—You are employee of Suzuki &
Company ?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—^Which represents the K Line?

Interpreter TODA.—Eepresents the K Line, yes.

Mr. SNOW.—I desire at this time to object to the

appearance of Mr. Toda as an interpreter in the

case, on the ground that he is under employment of

Suzuki & Company, an agent of the libelant in the
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[498] case in which we are taking testimony, and

is, therefore, not a disinterested person.

Mr. KING.—It may be stipulated in the record,

Mr. Snow, that on or before two o'clock on this date,

it now being seven-fifteen P. M., that you were noti-

fied of our intention to take the depositions of part

of the crew of the "Boston Maru" through an in-

terpreter, Mr. Toda, and w^ere offered the oppor-

tunity to have present your own interpreter, if you

could produce such interpreter.

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, that may be stipulated.

Mr. KING.—That is the fact, is it not?

Mr. SNOW.—Yes; those statements you have

made are correct.

Mr. KING.—And it is further stipulated in the

record that the "Boston Maru" is scheduled to sail

to-morrow and clear for Australia?

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, those are the facts.

Mr. KING.—And that she is a tramp steamer?

Mr. SNOW.—I don't know whether she is a

tramp steamer or not. What is the fact as to that,

Mr. Toda.

Interpreter TODA.—I suppose.

Mr. KING.—No regular run, has she?

Interpreter TODA.—I suppose she is a tramp

steamer.

Mr. SNOW.—She is a tramp steamer?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—She is not on a regulni- run l)etween

specified ports ?
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Interpreter TODA.—No, no ; especially so in this

case, because she is under charter by an American

steamship operator for this trip only.

Mr. SNOW.—She is under charter of some

American steamship operator, is she?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes, the name of which I

don't just recall, [499] just for this trip, I sup-

pose under the definition of a tramp steamer. Of

course chartered steamers are, aren't they?

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, I guess so.

Interpreter TODA.—Yes; especially for just one

trip.

Mr. KING.—I would like to state into the record

at this time that the libelant further renews its offer

to have the testimony of these witnesses now to be

taken, to be taken through an interpreter furnished

by the proctor for the respondent, or through joint

interpreters, if any such can be produced.

Mr. SNOW.—Now, may it also be stipulated in

the record that from two o'clock on this afternoon

we spent the greater part of the time taking the

testimony of Captain Sayeki, and that during such

intermissions as I was able to make in that testi-

mony I telephoned several times from this office to

three or four, I forget which, local Japanese men
and endeavored to have one of them appear at the

present hearing to aid in interpreting the testimony

of the witnesses about to be examined, but was un-

able to secure the services of any, chiefly because of

the lateness of the notice to them, and that I did not

receive notice that it would be necessary to have
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an interpreter in this testimony until after I ar-

rived at this office this afternoon, which was some

time in the neighborhood of two o'clock.

Mr. KING.—Libelant further offers to take this

testimony on the succeeding day, if proctor is of

the opinion that it is necessary for his protection to

postpone the taking of the testimony until that

time.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—Can't it also be shown that we

wanted to postpone the testimony until to-morrow,

and he wanted to take it to-night?

Mr. SNOW.—I am willing to take it now, but I

must renew my [500] objections.

Mr. KING.—Well, let's quit, if you are going to

insist on that.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, I feel I have to insist on it.

I don't like to postpone it.

Mr. KING.—Well then, we will hold the ship

here and take the testimony at what hour to-mor-

row?

Mr. SNOW.—Well, I would have to do some more

telephoning and figure out what I can do.

Mr. KING.—Libelant in this connection avers at

the present time, so far as information can be ob-

tained, that the ship "Boston Maru" will be ready

to sail to-morrow morning, but that the ship will l)c

held in this port for the purpose of taking the testi-

mony to-morrow, or such part of to-morrow as is

necessary for said purpose, at the insistence of proc-

tor for respondent. I guess we might as well

adjourn.
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(Thereupon the taking of depositions herein was

adjourned until to-morrow, Tuesday, November

11th, 1924, and at 10:00 A. M. on Tuesday, Novem-

ber 11th, 1924, the notary and the same proctors ap-

peared at the same place above noted, and after

some delay Mr. D. Takeoka appeared as an inter-

preter in behalf of proctor for respondent; there-

upon the following proceedings were had:)

Mr. KING.—It is stipulated by and between the

proctors for libelant and respondent in this cause,

that the plat marked Libelant's Exhibit 2 is a true

and correct copy of the plat of the U. S. Engineer's

Office for the portion of the Columbia River [501]

indicated by the marks and notations on said plat.

This stipulation, however, does not cover any lines

or marks on said plat at the time the same is offered

other than those showing as a part of the blue-print

itself. Is that right?

Mr. SNOW.—That is my understanding. I admit

the correctness of the chart, and that it is a correct

blue-print of the tracing made by the U. S. Engi-

neers, but I do not admit the correctness of the

lines which have been drawTi thereon evidently to

indicate the alleged position of the anchored vessel,

the "Boston Maru."

Mr. KING.—Will you please mark this chart now
Libelant's Exhibit 2, to identify it.

(Said chart so offered was marked Libelant's Ex-

hibit 2 and is filed herewith as a part of these depo-

sitions.)

Mr. KING.—We will now call the second mate.
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DEPOSITION OF ISOKICHI CHIGA, FOR
LIBELANT.

ISOKICHI CHIGA was thereupon produced as a

witness in behalf of the libelant and, having been

first duly sworn, through Interpreter Toda, to tell

the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

was examined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. State your name. A. Isokichi Chiga.

Mr. SNOW.—At this time I desire to renew my
objections to Mr. H. S. Toda as interpreter, on the

ground that as an employee of Suzuki & Company

he is not a disinterested person.

Mr. KING.—The libelant offers to have Mister-

Mr. SNOW.—I might add, Mr. D. Takeoka is

present now, at my [502] request, and will act as

interpreter, if desired—if consented to by counsel.

Mr. KING.—I might ask whether Mr. D. Takeoka

has had any experience in shipping matters.

Mr. D. TAKEOKA.—No.
Mr. KING.—Are you familiar, Mr. Takeoka, with

the terms commonly applied to ships as aft, stern,

forestay, and terms of that nature?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—I can't.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what the stern quarter

of a ship is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Stern quarter of a ship? No,

I don't.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what the galley of a

ship is?
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Mr. TAKEOKA.—I do not.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what the flagstaff of a

ship is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—No.
Mr. KING.—Do you know what portion of the

ship the flagstaif is located on?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—I do not.

Mr. KING.—Do you know where the ship's com-

pass is usually located, what portion of the ship?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—The compass? I do not.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what is the bridge of

a ship?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—The bridge of a ship? No.

Mr. KING.—The bridge-deck? Do you know

what the poop-deck of a ship is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—I don't.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what the bow of a ship

is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—No.
Mr. KING.—Do you know what a magnetic com-

pass is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes. [503]

Mr. KING.—How does a magnetic compass differ

from any other type of compass?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—That is too complicated matter

to explain for me.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what starboard is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Starboard? No, I don't.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what range light is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Range light? No.
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Mr. KING.—Do you know what an anchor light

is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Isn't that two windows where

your anchor locates in what you call it—front part

of a ship?

Mr. KING.—You mean you think it is the light

where the anchor is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes.
Mr. KING.—Do you know what the forecastle of

a ship is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Forecastle of a ship? No.

Mr. KING.—Do you know what a pilot is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Pilot, yes.

Mr. KING.—What is a pilot, Mr. Takeoka?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Why, it act as the guide when

the steamer comes in—show you how to brmg a

ship into the port—a pilot.

Mr. KING.—Yes ; do you know what the bearing

is?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Bearing?
Mr. KING.—Ship's bearing?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—No.
Mr. KING.—Do you have any knowledge of the

instruments used to take bearings on board ships?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—I do not.

Mr. KING.—Do you still renew your objection,

Mr. Snow?

Mr. SNOW.—1 still renew my objection. May

it be stipulated that I have had a great deal of

difficulty in obtaining the [504] services of an

interpreter, and only secured Mr. Takeoka through

i
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the kindness of Mr. Toda, who telephoned him, I

believe, last night, and at any rate this morning,

and I have been unable to secure the services of a

Japanese interpreter more fully acquainted vv^ith

ships and shipping terms than Mr. Takeoka. You
are a business man, are you, Mr. Takeoka?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes.
Mr. SNOW.—Are you an American citizen or a

Japanese citizen?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—I am a Japanese subject; yes.

Mr. SNOW.—What business are you in ?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—General produce business.

Mr. SNOW.—In Portland?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes; buying potatoes, onions,

and

—

Mr. SNOW.—Buying and selling all sorts of

foodstuffs?

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Mr. KING.—Mr. Snow, may it not be stipulated

that you called, in an effort to get Mr. Takeoka

yesterday, and were unable to get him then, and

at your request Mr. Toda reached him this morning?

Mr. SNOW.—Oh, yes, indeed.

Mr. KING.—In other words, there is no insinua-

tion that Mr. Takeoka was our selection for you?

Mr. SNOW.—Oh, no; not at all; not at all.

Mr. KING.—And the libelant now offers, if proc-

tor for respondent deems it necessary, and impera-

tive to his interests, to detain the "Boston Maru"
in Portland to allow him additional time to pro-
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cure an interpreter, such as he deems necessary to

protect his interests in taking this testimony, such

additional time, however—the expense of demur-

rage for such additional time to be borne by proctor

for respondent. [505]

Mr. SNOW.—If you will name a time at which

you wish to adjourn these depositions to, I shall

be glad to do my best to find an interpreter better

acquainted with shipping terms than Mr. Takeoka.

The respondent, of course, denies any liability for

demurrage or any other liability in the case.

Mr. KING.—It may be stipulated, Mr. Snow, that

the taking of the depositions was adjourned to this

morning at your request, in order to afford you

an opportmiity to procure an interpreter to rep-

resent you at this hearing, and that smce that time

we have not only deferred the hearing but have

rendered every aid and assistance in an effort to

get you an interpreter?

Mr. SNOW.—It is true that you have given me

every aid. I don't think I especially requested the

adjournment until this morniing.

Mr. KING.—Well, the record will speak for itself.

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, the record will show.

Mr. KING.—The proceedings were had last night.

Mr. SNOW.—The record will sho\v. I tried my

best to get an interpreter.

Mr. KING.—The point is this: The libelant is

willing and ready to have any interpreter who is

fully acquainted with shipping terms to sit jointly

with Mr. Toda, or act solely, if fully competent.
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as the interpreter for tlie taking of the testimony

of these witnesses, but the libelant, without assur-

ance from respondent, will not further detain this

ship, which is now ready to sail, and intends, there-

fore, to take the depositions at the present time, as

counsel has given us no further assurance that an

interpreter will be present at a later time to-day,

than he could give yesterday that one w^ould be

present at ten o'clock this morning, and it is now
eleven-thirty—^pardon me, eleven [506] twenty-

five—and that libelant and its witnesses were pres-

ent at ten A. M. this morning and have deferred

and waited until eleven twenty-five in an effort to

assist proctor for respondent to procure an inter-

preter. Now, I think we are entitled to go ahead.

Mr. SNOW.—I don't think I could honestly prom-

ise to have an interpreter here at any fixed time

better acquainted with shipping terms than Mr.

Takeoka, and I don't think that it is the duty of

the proctor for the respondent to furnish an inter-

preter for depositions taken on behalf of the

libelant. I think that duty falls upon the libel-

ant. I am willing to go ahead mider the present

record, with all my objections reserved, or delay

the depositions, as may be desired.

Mr. KING.—Well, if you will stand the expense

of the delay we will delay, but we are not going

to hold the ship when you deny liability.

Mr. SNOW.—Well, I can't do that.

Mr. KING.—Well, then, we shall proceed to take

these depositions. And we will further state in the
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record that we have no knowledge at this time

of any interpreter in the city of Portland qualified

in knowledge of shipping terms, and wholly un-

connected with any shipping interests involved in

the present litigation, upon whom we can call to

act as interpreter to take these depositions. In the

absence of such knowledge we called upon Mr. Toda

as the only man of whom we have knowledge. If

proctor for respondent can furnish us the name of

any other man available, we will be glad to call him

in.

Mr. SNOW.—I can't at the present time. If it

is desired to delay the depositions I will try to find

somebody, although that duty does not fall upon me.

Mr. KING.—Yes, but it may be stipulated, Mr.

Snow, that from [507] two o'clock of yesterda}^,

November 10th, you have not furnished us with the

name of any disinterested man, qualified to act as

interpreter, with full knowledge of shipping terms?

Mr. SNOW.—Well, I think that can be agreed. I

don't know,

—

Mr. KINO.—Well, it is a fact.

Mr. SNOW.—I don't know about the qualifica-

tions of the various gentlemen I telephoned yester-

day.

Mr. KING.—Do you now know of any Japanese

interpreter totally disinterested, who is qualified

to act as interpreter?

Mr. SNOW.—I do not at the present time.

Mr. KING.—Now, with that record I think we
will proceed. And libelant further offers at this
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time to permit proctor for respondent to have Mr.

Takeoka sworn as an interpreter and to sit in and

offer such suggestions and. corrections in the trans-

lation and interpretation of the testimony as he

deems fit, as representative of the respondent.

Mr. SNOW.—That offer is declined. I don't

think we should attempt, to proceed here with two

interpreters.

Mr. KINGr.—Well, then, we will go ahead. That

is all we can do. We are perfectly willing to do

everything we can, but we have reached the very

end of the rope.

Mr. SNOW.—I recognize that counsel permits me
to have Mr. Takeoka present for my own private

advice and avail myself of that opportunity.

Mr. KING.—Well, we don't permit Mr. Takeoka

to make any statements as to the correct interpre-

tation of the testimony imless he is under oath. I

mean, he can advise you personally, but we don't

permit him to state anything in the record. Now
we are ready to go ahead.

(The following questions and answers were inter-

preted [508] and translated by Interpreter Toda.)

(By Mr. KING.) Have you stated your name to

the reporter'? A. Yes, I have.

Q. What license do you hold?

A. Second mate license.

Q. From what government?

A. Japanese government.

Q. How long have you held that license?

A. Since July 3d, last year.
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Q. What ship are you now aboard as second

mate? A. "Boston Maru."

Q. How long have you been aboard her?

A. July 30th last year—since July 30th last year.

Q. Were you aboard the "Boston Maru" when
she left Portland on Saturday, October 25th ?

A. Yes, I was on.

Q. Did the "Boston Maru" come to anchor any-

where in the Columbia River? A. Yes, she did.

Q. Were you on duty, on watch, rather, when she

came to anchor? A. Yes, I was.

Q. What did you do after she came to anchor?

A. After steamer anchored and ship were no
longer moving I took bearings.

Q. Do you have a chart showing a list of Columbia

River lights on board your vessel?

A. Yes, I have a chart.

Q. How many lights did you take the bearings of?

A. Three lights.

Q. I hand you a chart marked Libelant's Exhibit

2 and ask you to [509] point out on that chart

the lights that you took bearings of.

A. (Witness mdicates.)

Mr. KING.—Let's go slower so we can indicate

them in the record. Have him point them out one

at a time, Mr. Toda.

A. This one.

Mr. KING.—May it be stipulated

—

Mr. SNOW.—It is stipulated that the witness

indicates St. Helens lower F. R. No. 28-2.

(Witness indicates again.)
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Mr. SNOW.—St Helens bar range front F. R.

Mr. KING.—That is H-8, Sub. 2, I guess.

Mr. SNOW.—Correct.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Now have him point to the

third one.

A. This one.

Mr. SNOW.—Columbia City rear F. W.
- Mr. KING.—It has no number on the chart.

Q. Explain how you took the bearings of each

light; what instrument did you use?

A. We have on board a compass, a compass which

is attached with a shadow-pin in center, and I stand

back of that pin and sight the object. When I

have the object sighted I read the angle on face,

on the dial of the compass. That is how I get the

bearing.

Q. What kind of a compass do you have on

board? A. It is a Thompson System Compass.

Q. Is that a magnetic compass?

A. Yes, sir; magnetic.

Q. Did you write down the angles or bearings

of each point after you took them?

A. I read the angle and made the third mate

write them.

Q. Did you see what he wrote so as to know if

he wrote it down [510] correctly?

A. It is a custom of my vessel for me to tell the

third officer the figure and he replies the figure I

give him, and in that way I know that he is cor-

rectly writing my angle.
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Q. Did the third mate repl}^ to you in this case

on each bearing? A. Yes, he did.

Q. Were you on watch when tJie collision took

place? A. Yes, I was on.

Q. Were you on duty—I mean, was it your w^atch

when you took the anchor bearings'?

A. I was on duty from twelve o'clock and on,

and at the time of the collision.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Twelve o'clock midnight.

Interpreter TODA.—Twelve o'clock midnight, the

time steamer anchored the steamer is all stand by;

therefore I was on my duty at that time.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) In other words, it was his

duty to be on deck any time the steamer came to

anchor; he always did that, whether it was his

regular watch or not?

A. At that time I must always be on station.

Q. Did you take a reading of the direction which

the ship's head pointed after it came to rest at

anchor ?

Interpreter TODA.—What is that again?

Q. Did you take a reading on the compass of the

direction which the ship's head or peak, or bow,

pomted after she came to rest at anchor?

A. Yes, I made sure.

Q. Did you tell the third mate to write that

down, too?

A. It is the duty of the third mate to write, and

he must have written. [511]

Q. But did you give the third mate what to write

as to the direction of the ship's bow?
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A. Third mate looked the fore of the vessel and

I also looked, and third officer wrote when I told

him.

Q. Did the third officer call back to him what he

wrote down so as to check it, like he did the other

bearings? A. Yes, he read.

Q. Where is your compass located on board the

"Boston Maru"? A. On the upper bridge.

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge how
many fathoms of anchor chain were paid out?

A. Captain said two cables, and so I remember

it to be two cables.

Mr. SNOW.—I move to strike the last answer as

hearsay.

Mr. KING.—No objection. It may be stricken.

Q. Were you on watch when the collision took

place? A. Yes.

Q. When did you first see the "West Keats"?

A. At one forty.

Q. Did you know her name when you first saw

her? A. No, I didn't.

Q. Where were you standing when you first saw

her? A. On the lower bridge.

Q. Were you on the port or starboard side of the

ship? A. On the starboard.

Q. And in which direction did you see the "West
Keats"?

A. I could not tell the degree, but it was on the

starboard quarter.

Q. You mean on the starboard quarter of the

"Boston Maru"?
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A. Yes, the starboard quarter of "Boston Maru."
Q. About how far away was the ''West Keats"

when you first saw her? [512]

A. I could not tell very well, but about half a

mile.

Q. What was the condition of the weather art that

time when you saw her"?

A. I saw a star above me, and I judge 'possibly

one-half stars out.

Q. Was the weather clear or cloudy?

A. Cloudy, but that night we could see quite well,

because no such thing like gas.

Interpreter TODA.—I think, if you will excuse

me, Japanese seamen always say gas instead of fog.

Mr. KING.—Instead of fog?

Interpreter TODA.—Instead of fog, yes. That

is common.

Q. Was there any fog at that time at about one

forty A. M. ? A. No fog.

Q. What happened after you first saw the "West
Keats"?

A. It so happened that our steamer was anchored,

and after I saw "West Keats" I watched her as she

came by, but if it was navigating period I would,

if necessary, wake captain or take other precau-

tions, but this time it happened that our steamer

was anchored, so I watch the other steamer; I

merely watched the other steamer.

Mr. KING.—Do you want to check u]) with your

interpreter ?

Mr. TAKEOKxV.—Yes, it is all right.
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Mr. KING.—He says it is all right, does he? I

just want to know.

Mr. SNOW.—It was a long answer, but Mr. Ta-

keoka says the substance of it wars given by the

interpreter.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Yes; correct.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Did the other steamer,

meaning the "West Keats," strike your ship?

A. Yes, it struck. [513]

Q. About how many minutes after you first saw

the "West Keats" did she strike your ship?

A. Approximately three minutes.

Q. Could you observe the course which the "West

Keats" was steering during those three minutes?

Interpreter TODA.—"Could you observe"?

Mr. KING.—Yes. Could he see the direction she

was steering during those three minutes? I mean,

if he was watching in a position where he could tell

which way she was steering.

A. I could see that the steamer was coming to-

wards our steamer, and I could see that the steamer

was coming down the river.

Q. Did the "West Keats" change her direction

or change her course while you were watching her?

A. That I could not tell. Being at night a little

changing of a course I can't see.

Q. Well, did the "West Keats" have her naviga-

tion lights burning? A. Yes, she did.

Q. What lights was she showing when you first

saw her, what navigation lights?

A. That I don't remember. My steamer is an-
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chored and other steamer coming, and I don't par-

ticularly pay attention to know which lights I sarw.

Q. When the "Boston Maru" came to anchor in

the eA^ening about what time was that?

A. On the 25th, eight-thirty.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Eight-thirty P. M., wasn't it?

Interpreter TODA.—Yes, eight-thirty P. M.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What was done, if anything,

concerning the lights of the ''Boston Maru" arfter

she came to anchor?

A. When the steamer anchored we took off the

navigating light and [514] put anchor lights up.

Q. First, tell how many anchor lights were put

out, if you know^? A. Two lights.

Q. Tell where those two anchor lights were hung.

A. In the fore the light is on the forestay, and

on the a*fter on top of the flagj^ole.

Q. You say you saw the "West Keats" off the

starboard quarter when you first saw her?

A. Yes, I saw that.

Q. Was that the forward starboard quarter or

the a-ft, stern starboard quarter?

A. By starboard quarter it always means after

starboard quarter.

Q. Prioi' to the time that you came out on the

bridge and saw the lights of the "West Keats" off

your stiTi'board quarter what had you been doing .^

A. As we have order to shift the boat at one

foi-ty-five, I was getting my charts in pr()])(M- order

and went on bridge to tell quartermaster to go

around and wake everybody up.
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Q. So that you had come out onto the bridge

from the chart-room; is that true? A. Yes,

Q. And when you came out of the chart-room

onto the bridge, then is the time that you first saw

the lights of the ''West Keats"? A. Yes.

Q. At the time that you first saw the "West

Keats" do you know whether the tide was flooding

or not—flood tide?

A. The fore of my vessel was pointed down to-

wards the river, so I think it was then flooding.

Q. Flood tide?

A. Yes ; he said the beginning of flooding. [515]

Q. Yes, I know. Do you know at what time the

tide began to flood?

A. I don't know exactly, but I think a^bout ten

after one.

Q. After the "West Keats" struck the "Boston

Maru" what did you do?

A. When I realized that the ship was hit I went

running over to tell the captain, but at that time

I already saw him coming out, so I ran to the stern

of the vessel.

Q. Where was the "West Keats" at that time,

how far away, do you think ?

A. I could not tell exactly, but one hundred feet

or so.

Q. You mean one hundred feet or so off the stern

of the "Boston Maru," away from the stern?

A. Yes, from the stern.

Q. Could you see the shore line on either side of

the river?
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A. I could not see the Washington side very

well, but I could see the Oregon side.

Q. Do you mean by shore line the lights on the

Oregon side or the land'?

A. I saw a light or two, but I saw the shore line

also. Of course being at night I could not see so

very well, but I could tell that they were the shore

line all right.

Q. How far could you see a light thai night ?

A. From my experience I say a night of that

kind I could see ten miles, I think perhaps as far

as twenty miles.

Q. You mean you could see any kind of a light

that far, or w^hat type of a light?

A. Such light as a spot light I could not see that

far, but a light that will carry twenty miles I could

see.

Q. How far could you see a light, such as one

of your anchor [516] lights aboard the ''Boston

Maru"? A. I think I can easily see three miles.

Q. When the "West Keats" was off your stern

was she nearer to the Oregon shore than the "Bos-

ton Maru" after she hit? A. Yes, nearer.

Q. About how many feet do you think?

A. I could not tell very well.

Q. After the "West Keals" struck the "Boston

Maru" were your anchor lights still burning?

A. Yes, they were.

Mr. KING.—You may inquire.
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Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. You were pretty close to the Oregon shore,

weren't you, at the time of the collision?

A. I was closer to Oregon shore than I was to

Washington.

Q. How close were you to the Oregon shore?

A. I could not tell the footage by sight.

Q. When you first saw the "West Keats" I un-

derstood you to say she was on the "Boston

Maru's" quarter; thai: is astern of amidships: is

that correct? A. Yes.

Q. I suppose she was pretty near amidships,

wasn't she?

A. I could not say; I could not tell very well, but

seeing from my bridge the vessel must have been

in starboard quarter. When I am on the bridge

and sight an object with am instrument I could tell

whether it was amidships or not, but when you see

with ordinary eyes you can't tell whether a boat is

—you can't tell the exact position of the boat.

Q. Are you talking now of the time when you

first sighted the [517] "West Keats," or a time

right before the collision?

A. When I say starboard quarter I mean when

I first saw it.

Q. How many compasses have you on board?

A. Three and two boat compasses, making total

five.

Q. With which one of these five compasses did

you take bearings when you first came to an anchor ?

A. By standard compass.
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Q. Magnetic compass? A. Yes, mag-netic.

Q. Wet or dry? A. Dry compass.

Q. Was that what you call the ship's compass?

A. To determine the ship's course this is the com-

pass, but they are compass for other purposes.

Q. Did you take the bearings with the same com-

pass that you use to steer by to determine the ship 's

course at sea?

A. Yes; he says it is the compass for bearing,

His compass he mentioned is the compass for bear-

ing.

Q. For bearing? A. Yes.

Q, The ship's compass, or the compass j^ou steer

by at sea, I suppose is another compass ?

A. The same compass.

Q. The same compass? A. Yes.

Q. Where is this compass located?

A. In the front part of the upper bridge.

Q. Is that where the quartermaster stands when

he is steering the ship at sea?

A. This place is twelve or thirteen feet from

where quartermaster stands. The place where

quartermaster stands to steering gear [518] this

compass is about twelve to thirteen feet.

Q. Does the quartermaster have another com-

pass to steer by ?

A. Yes, there is a compass right in front of the

wheel.

Q. And this compass is twelve or thirteen feet

forward of the other, or in another direction?

A. Which compass do you mean?
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Q. The compass by which he took the bearings;

is it forward of the quartermaster's compass?

A. The compass for bearing is in fore of the

quartermaster 's.

Q. And about twelve or thirteen feet ?

A. Yes—not twelve or thirteen feet from the

other compass, but from where the quartermaster

stands.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—About nine feet.

A. (Continuing.) Suppose this is where quarter-

master stands (illustrating), then the quartennas-

ter's compass is there and then beai'ing compass

ahead.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Is the steering compass or

the quartermaster's compass a liquid compass?

A. That also is dry compass.

Q. What is this shadow-pin that you speak of?

A. By shadow-pin I mean brass pin which is

made to fit the hole in the center of the compass

that stands straight up.

Q. What do you sight that brass pin on when

you take a bearing?

A. I sight from this brass pin to any object that

I want to see, such as light, and when I get the ob-

ject sighted then I read the dial for degrees.

Q. The dial shows both in degrees and the ordi-

nary points of the compass, does it?

Interpreter TODA.—I don't get the word.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Does the compass dial read

both in degrees and [519] points? By point I

mean west by north, or south southwest ; by degrees



544 United States of America vs.

(Deposition of Isokichi Chiga.)

I mean the degrees totaling three hundred sixtv

around the dial. A. Yes, it reads in both.

Q. It reads in both, does it? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know when the standard compass by
which you took the bearings wa-s last repaired or

adjusted ?

A. It was adjusted on the 11th of September, at

Kobe.

Q. Which year? A. This year.

Q. Did you see it adjusted?

A. Yes, sir; I saw them adjusting.

Q. Who did the adjusting?

A. I don't remember the name of the people, but

it is the people that do that as business.

Q. People from arshore?

A. That is ashore people; that is people that

don't habitually live on water.

Q. Who pointed out the lights to you on which

you took the bearings?

A. The pilot told me, ''This is Columbia light,"

but I can by tracing different lights know which

lights are which.

Q. What do you mean by tracing different lights?

A. By tracing different light I mean looking at

tower lights—the shore light— it is the light placed

there purposely to show—what do you call that, pi-

lot light? The Japanese word, Mr. Takeoka, is (In-

terpreter Toda and Mr. Takeoka conversed in Jap-

anese langujrge).

Interpreter TODA.—Supposing it is a danger-

ous place, a light [520] built there.
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Mr. SNOW.—Lighthouse?
Interpreter TODA.—Yes, that is it, a lighthouse.

Q. What lighthouse is that that I am pointing

to on the chart?

A. This was a very red light. This light is ar

light that is red always.

Mr. KING.—I would like to have the record show

which light proctor for libelant indicates.

Mr. SNOW.—It may be stipulated, I think—did

you see me point?

Mr. KINGr.—I didn't exactly pick it up.

Mr. SNOW.—I pointed to the St. Helens lower

light, No. 28-2.

Mr. ILLIDGE.—That is the lower jetty light?

Mr. SNOW.—The lower jetty light.

Q. How many range lights were in sight of your

vessel at the time you took your bearrings?

A. I don't remember how many, but there were

many even toward the lower stream.

Q. Yv'ere some of them downstream from you,

some of the range lights?

A. I saw lights on lower stream.

Q. Were they range lights?

A. The light I saw in lower stream, that ap-

peared to me like raaige lights; I think they were

two.

Q. Those two lights were downstream from the

"Boston Maru," were they?

A. I don't remember whether there were two or

three, but I think about two.

Q. There were lots of shore lights back here,

weren't there, when you came to anchor, in fact?
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A. Yes, there were. [521]

Mr. SNOW.—May the record show that I pointed

to a place approximately back of this group of

range lights in asking that question?

Mr. KING.—Indicating the Columbia City i*ange

lights and a point where the words "Columbia

City" appear on the plat.

Mr. SNOW.—Approximately, yes.

Q. Now, you took bearings on two of these range

lights, did you ?

Mr. KING.—Indicating the same group of lights.

Mr. vSNOW.—Indicating the same group of

lights.

A. Yes.

Q. How did you know which two you were taking

bearings on?

A. I took this range light first, then di*ew a line

on the chart ; then I took this light and drew a line

on the chart: then I took this light and drew a

line on the chart; and when these three lines come

together, then I know that my sighting is correct.

If I should take some other here, why, then, it

would form a triinigle there and they would not

come to a point.

Mr. KING.—May it show that the witness in an-

swer to the question prior to the previous one indi-

cated lines extending from a point appearing on the

plat indicated by the little diagram in red of a shii)

and one line extending from that point to Columl)i;T

Cit\' rear fixed white, and another extendiup- from

there to the St. Helens bar range front fixed red.
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marked H 8 sub-numeral 2, and another red line

extending from that point to the St. Helens lower

front range, marked No. 28-2? That will explain

his testimony.

Mr. SNOW.—Yes.

Q. What color is this light to which I point?

And I point to the forward St. Helens bar range

light—the upper St. Helens bar range light. [522]

A. This is red light, and that light is the light

that is always burning—another wa>^ of saying is,

it don't shut off and burn, and shut off and burn.

Q. What color is the rear Columbia City range

light to which I point?

A. This is a white light. By that I mean the

light has no color.

Q. Is it a" fixed light or does it go on and off.

A. Fixed light.

Q. Now, the rear Columbia City range light shows

on the chart as being pretty close to the rear St.

Helens bar range light. How were you able to tell

one from the other when you took your bearings ?

A. You had reference to two lights?

Q. I had reference to these two lights. Let me

repeat the question. The question was this: The

rear Columbia" City range light, to which I point,

shows on the chart as pretty close to the rear St.

Helens bar range light, to which I now point. How
could you tell when you were taking your bearings

which one of those two you were looking at?

A. I have on my charts the lights indicated, and

w^hen I know that I tarke one and I take the one right

next to it, then I know it is this one.
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Q. How can you tell which one is next to it when
you are out in the stream?

A. It may be that some lights are before another

light and you could not veiy well tell, but when
swinging from one direction to another of course I

can tell that the light comes next, and then so on.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all. [523]

Redirect Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. When you give an order to your quartermas-

ter, the man at the wheel, do you tell him direct

from one person to another, or do 3^ou phone it

down through a tube or a wire?

A. Such as order to shift, and so forth, it is an

order that goes from either the captain or pilot,

but if I was to do it I tell him direct.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived. [524]

DEPOSITION OF TOYOJI TOMITA, FOR LI-

BELANT.

TOYOJI TOMITA was thereupon produced as

a witness in behalf of the libelant and, having been

first sworn, through Interpreter Toda, to tell the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth,

was examined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. Will you give the reporter your name, please?

A. Toyoji Tomita.
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Q. Do you hold a license as an officer of a

steamer? A. Yes, I have.

Q. What license do you hold?

A. Second mate license.

Q. What government issued your license?

A. The Japanese government.

Q. What ship are you on board now?

A. On board "Boston Maru," of Kokushai Ki-

sen.

Q. How long have you been with her?

A. Since September 7th.

Q. What year?

A. Since September 7th, this year.

Q. Were you on duty when the ''Boston Maru"

came to anchor down the Columbia River from

Portland? A. Yes, I was.

Q. When she came to anchor what did you do

about her lights, if anything?

A. I gave my duty of attending to anchor light,

put up anchor lights.

Q. How many did you put up?

A. I put up two lights, one in fore and one in

aft; one in fore about twenty feet up, and one in

aft about thirteen feet up. [525]

Q. What was done to the navigation lights?

A. When anchor was put down we took away.

Mr. KING.—Mr. Reporter, will you mark this

sheet of this book as Libelant's Exhibit 3 for Iden-

tification.

(The sheet of the book so referred to was marked

Libelant's Exhibit 3 for Identification.)
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Q. I hand you a book and ask you to state what

it is, if you know.

A. This is a rough log-book of my ship.

Q. You mean of the '' Boston Maru," of course?

A. I mean ''Boston Maru.'^

Q. I direct your attention to the page thereof

headed 25th October, and marked Libelant's Ex-

hibit 3 for Identification, and ask you to state what

that page is, what it shows. Pardon me; I will

shorten this a little. What I want to know is, does

that show a record of the events of that day?

A. Yes; the things happened on the 25th of Oc-

tober.

Q. After the "Boston Maru" came to anchor off

the Columbia City what did you do, if anything,

in connection with taking the anchorage bearings.^

A. I with second mate took the bearing; I put

the bearing on memo and the lines of bearings were

drawn on a chart.

Q. Did you write the bearings in this rough log?

A. Yes, I wrote.

Q. In whose handwriting are all the entries in

that log of the 25th of October? A. All mine.

Q. All yours? A. Yes.

Q. Who gave ,you the bearings to put down on

your memorandum? Who told you the bearings?

[526] A. The second mate.

Q. Did you write them down correctly on your

memorandum ?

A. Wlien the second mate told me the bearing I
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write and repeat the bearing that he gives. That

is the way we do.

Q. Now, does he know that he wrote them down

correctly? Is he sure of that? A. No mistake.

Q. He made no mistake? A. No mistake.

Q. Now, does he know that he copied them cor-

rectly form his memorandum into the rough log-

book here? A. No mistake.

Q. He made no mistake?

A. No mistake—made no mistake.

Q. Does he mean that he is sure that he copied

them correctly?

A. Yes, sir; I made no mistake.

Mr. KING.—Libelant now offers in evidence that

portion of the page marked in rough log Libelant's

Exhibit 3 for Identification, which shows the posi-

tion of ship's head and the anchorage bearings

about the middle of the page on the right-hand side.

Mr, SNOW.—That is objected to on the ground

that the rough log, or the portion thereof offered,

is hearsay and a self-serving declaration, not ad-

missible, and is incompetent.

Mr. KING.—The same is offered on the ground

that it is a record made at the time which the wit-

nesses making knew to be correct at the time; it is

a written memorandum of a transaction which is

past, which the witness knew to be correct at the

time. Now, if proctor renews the objection I

would like to recall the second mate for one ques-

tion, to wit, whether he has a present recollection
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of those bearings, independent of this record.

[527]

Mr. SNOW.—Yes, I renew the objection to the

log.

Mr. KING.—I want to have him step to one

side, Mr. Toda, and have the second mate for just

one question.

("Witness withdrawn.)

Signature waived. [528]

DEPOSITION OF ISOKICHI CHIGA, FOR
LIBELANT (RECALLED).

ISOKICHI CHIGA was thereupon recalled as

a witness in behalf of the libelant and, having been

previously sworn, testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. I want to ask you one more question. Aside

from this book, I mean if you don\ have the book

where the bearings are recorded, do you yourself

remember those bearings that you took, the anchor-

age bearings? A. Yes, I remember.

Q. Do you remember all of them?

A. Yes, sir, I remember all.

Q. Well, will you kindly state the bearing of the

Columbia—what is that, the St. Helens jetty light?

Mr. ILLIDGE.—We can refreshen our memory
bv the blue-print.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Please state the bearing

of the St. Helens lower light, being No. 28-2.

What ])earing was that ?
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A. South 52 degrees east.

Q. Please state the bearing of the St. Helens bar

range front light; what bearing was that?

A. South by east.

Q. What bearing was the Columbia City rear

range light? A. South, 13 degrees west.

Mr. KING.—May the record show that the log-

books were produced at this hearing, both the per-

manent log-book and the rough log, at the request

of and for the inspection of proctors for respond-

ent also"?

Mr. SNOW.—The record so shows.

Mr. KING.—All right.

Mr. SNOW.—They are both marked for identi-

fication. [529]

Mr. KING.—And you object to them being in

evidence ?

Mr. SNOW.—I object to their introduction in

evidence by the libelant on behalf of the "Boston

Maru."

Mr. KING.—Well, we offer the portion of the

—^well, we will offer that full page. At this time

the libelant will offer the full page marked Libel-

ant's Exhibit 3 for Identification.

Mr. SNOW.—That offer is objected to on the

same grounds already stated.

Mr. KING.—Then the libelant offers that por-

tion of the page setting out the anchorage bearings.

(Said page having been previously marked Li-

belant's Exhibit 3 for Identification is filed here-

Avith as a part of this deposition.)
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Q. (By Mr. KING.) Now, will you state the

bearing of the ship's head at the time she came to

rest at anchorage 1

A. Southeast by south one-half south.

Mr. KING.—You may inquire, if there is any-

thing you want to ask him.

Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Once more now: What is the bearing of the

St. Helens lower jetty light?

A. South 55 degrees east.

Q. South 55 degrees east? A. Yes.

The WITNESS.—Fifty-two.

Interpreter TODA.—Fifty-two degrees east.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Are you sure which it is

now?

The WITNESS.—Fifty-two. [530]

Interpreter TODA.—Fifty-two degrees.

Q. Does that mean

—

Interpreter TODA.—Fifty-two degrees, he says.

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) Does that mean fifty-two

degrees east of due south?

A. I think he— (Witness talks further to in-

terpreter.)

Mr. SNOW.—I will ask some other questions.

Q. These are magnetic bearings, are they not?

A. Yes, magnetic bearings.

Q. That is to say, the standard compass by which

you took the bearings pointed to magnetic north

and not to true north? A. That is right.

Q. You know the diiference, do you not, between

true north and magnetic north? A. Yes, I do.
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Q. And your compass pointed to which'?

A. It was magnetic,

Q. It pointed to magnetic north?

A. Magnetic north, yes.

Q. This St. Helens lower jetty light was 52 de-

grees east of south, was it, by your compass ? Can

you put that in Japanese?

Interpreter TODA.—East of in an exact south-

ern direction; is that it?

Mr. SNOW.—Fifty-two degrees east of an exact

magnetic southern direction, yes.

A. That is 52 degrees, taking south to be zero,

it is fifty-two degrees in the east.

Q. In the east of that? A. Yes, of that.

Q. Now, what did you say the bearing was of the

Columbia City rear [531] range light?

A. South 13 degrees west.

Q. Does that mean 13 degrees west of due south,

taking south as a zero?

A. Yes, taking that to be zero, 13 degrees west.

Mr. KING.—These are all magnetic compass

bearings; that is, you are asking these questions on

that?

Q. (By Mr. SNOW.) That is magnetic, is it?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, the St. Helens bar front light, what was

the bearing of that? A. South by east.

Q. Does that mean eleven and a quarter degrees

east of south, taking south as zero?

A. Yes; that means one point east.

Q. One point east of due south? A. Yes.
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Q And how many degrees is one point?

A. Eleven degrees, fifteen minutes.

Q. Eleven degrees fifteen minutes'? A. Yes.

Q. What did the ship's head bear from the stan-

dard compass?

A. You mean the bearing of the head?

A. The bearing of the ship's head, yes.

A. South by southeast one-half south.

Q. Southeast by south a half south? A. Yes.

Q. I notice all the bearings are taken in even

points, with the exception of one, which is 52 de-

grees. Could you take bearings down to the min-

utes with that compass and shadow-pin? [532]

A. It can't be done to a minute, but with my ex-

perience of sighting I am able to sight all right.

Q. Can you sight to the nearest two degrees, or

the nearest point? How close can you sight?

A. Up to a half point.

Q. You can sight as close as a half point ?

A. I don't mean half a point; I mean half a de-

gree.

Q. You can sight as close as a half a degree?

A. Yes.

Q. But you didn't do it at this time?

A. Yes, I did this time.

Q, But you noted all the bearings on even points

or even degrees?

Mr. KING.—I object to that, as the record does

not show he noted all of them on even points or de-

grees.

(Last question read.)
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A. I took bearings because they came that way.

In the case of due south I say one point, and that

is not exactly an even point, or an even degree.

That answer is not exact eleven degrees, as it is

eleven degrees and fifteen minutes.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. And 'that is also true of the bearing of the

ship's head, isn't it? The bearing he took of the

ship's head, southeast by south one-half south; is

that an even degree? Ask him that question.

A. The ship's head bearing is not so important.

It may be a half a degree off, but that is the bear-

ing I took.

Q. Well, is that an even degree bearing, though?

Does that figure out an even degree?

A. It is one-half and not an even degree. [533]

Mr. KING.—I think that is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived. [534]

DEPOSITION OF TOYOJI TOMITA, FOR LI-

BELANT (RECALLED—CROSS-EXAMI-
NATION).

TOYOJI TOMITA was thereupon recalled as a

witness in behalf of the libelant and, having been

previously sworn, testified as follows:

Mr. KING.—You may inquire.

Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Have you got the memorandum paper that
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you wrote these bearings on when you took them

from the second mate?

A. I haven't the memorandum.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. At what time did you write these bearings

into the log-book? Was it on that same day that

they were taken or some other day?

A. I wrote in that book right after the bearings

were taken.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived.

Mr. KING.—Bring the quartermaster in.

Mr. SNOW.—The quartermaster will be the last?

Mr. KING.—If you want to maintain your ob-

jection to the log-book I would like to have the

third mate recalled and ask him if he correctly

kept it.

Mr. SNOW.—There he is.

Mr. KING.—I mean, not the third mate but the

first mate. He is here too.

Mr. SNOW.—All right. [535]
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DEPOSITION OF H. YOKOI, FOR LIBEL-
ANT.

H. YOKOI was thereupon produced as a witness

in behalf of the libelant and, having been sworn

through Interpreter Toda to tell the truth, the

whole truth and nothing but the truth, tesified as

follows

:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. What is your name? A. H. Yokoi.

Q You are an officer on what boat now?
Mr. SNOW.—It is admitted he is the chief offi-

cer of the "Boston Maru."

Mr. KING.—All right.

A. "Boston Maru."

Q. I hand you a book and ask you to state what

it is, if you know.

A. This is an important document stating all the

happenings of my boat.

Q. Whose handwriting is this book written in?

A. Third mate.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—He said he signed and ap-

proved it.

Interpreter TODA.—Yes; written by third mate.

Mr. TAKEOKA.—Written by third mate, and

he approved it.

A. (Continuing.) Yes, This is in the hand-

writing of the third mate, but the contents I look

over each day and check to be correct.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) What do you check

against ?
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A. The third mate writes in the rough log-book

and he brings it and I correct whatever mistake

there may be, then he writes over again and brings,

then I O. K. That is how I check.

Mr. KING.—That will be all for this man. At

this time libelant renews its offer in evidence of

the permanent deck log-book, the [536] same

having been marked Libelant's Exhibit 1.

Mr. SNOW.—Objected to on the same grounds,

as hearsay and incompetent testimony.

(Said page of permanent deck log-book, having

been previously marked Libelant's Exhibit 1, is

filed herewith as a part of this deposition.)

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived. [537]

DEPOSITION OF N. KOMIYAMA, FOR
LIBELANT.

N. KOMIYAMA was thereupon produced as a

witness in behalf of the libelant, and, having been

first sworn, through Interpreter Toda, to tell the

truth, the w^hole truth and nothing but the truth,

was examined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. State your name.

A. N. Komiyama.

Q. On board what vessel are you a seaman at the

present time? A. "Boston Maru."

Q. What position do you hold on board "Boston

Marn." A. Quai-termaster.
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Q. How long have you been quartermaster on the

"Boston Maru"?
A. Since the 15th of March this year.

Q. Were you on board the "Boston Maru" at the

time of the collision with the "West Keats"?

A. Yes.

Q. Were you on watch at that time'?

A. Yes, I was on watch.

Q. Do you call that anchor watch f

A. Not particularly anchor watch; just a watch.

Q. When did you first see the "West Keats""?

A. I saw her first time after "West Keats"

struck and when I jumped on deck cargo.

Q. What were you doing at the time the "West
Keats" struck?

A. At that time I was going around to wake

everybody up to get ready for stand by and just as

I was coming out from the carpenter's room the

ship was struck.

Q. What did you do after she was struck ? Where
did you go?

A. Since I was on deck at the carpenter's place,

and realizing [538] something had happened, I

quickly run outside on to the top of the deck cargo.

Q. And what did you see ?

A. When I came on the deck cargo I saw the

other ship, which ship was full of lights.

Q. Full of lights? A. Yes.

Q. How many lights—did you have any anchor

lights burning on the "Boston Maru"?
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A. Both the stern—both the anchor lights were

burning.

Q. Were they still burning after the collision?

A. Yes, sir, both burning.

Q. When you first saw the "West Keats" where

was her bridge with respect to the stern of the

''Boston Maru"?
A. I saw the bridge of the "West Keats" a little

to the left and I think the bridge has not quite

come to the stern.

Q. Wasn't quite even with the stern of the

"Boston Maru"? A. I think so.

Q. And how far away was the "West Keats"

—

I mean the side of the "West Keats" that was near-

est to the "Boston Maru," how far away was that

from the stern of the "Boston Maru"?

A. I saw a steamer full of lights in front, and of

course I could not tell whether it was ten, thirty,

possibly more.

Q. Feet away when he first saw her?

A. When I first saw it looked as though other ship

was running against mine.

Q. And does this other ship keep getting fur-

ther away each moment?

A. Yes; it got further apart—further and fur-

ther apart.

Q. And by the time that the stern of the "West

Keats" was even with the stern of the "Boston

Maru," as the "West Keats" went down [539]

the river about how far away was the stern of the
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''West Keats" from the stern of the "Boston

Maru."

A. It must have been quite a ways, because al-

though I tried to see the other ship's name, the dis-

tance was such I could not. It may be thirty, fifty,

or a hundred. It was such I could not read the

name.

Q. Did the "West Keats" keep on going down the

river ?

A. Yes, she went ahead. Maybe her speed had

been a little lessened.

Q. And did she come back later? Did you see

her again? A. Yes, a little while after.

Q. Did she pass the "Boston Maru" when she

came back?

A. Yes; it came and passed the ship.

Q. And did it pass on the same side of the

"Boston Maru" that it did when it went down-

stream? A. On the opposite side.

Mr. KING.—You may inquire.

Mr. SNOW.—I would like to recall the second

mate, if I can, for about two questions. Let me ask

the quartermaster just one question.

Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. I understood you to say that the first time you

saw the "West Keats" was immediately after the

impact of collision; is that correct?

A. It was almost the same, because I went right

on to the deck.
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Q. That is, you were on deck immediately after

the collision, were you? A. Yes.

Q. And did you say that you were below in the

carpenter's room at [540] the time of the colli-

sion?

A. It was after I woke him and stepped outside

of the room.

Q. After he woke him and stepped outside of the

room? A. Yes.

Q. But before he was on deck; is that correct?

A. The carpenter's room is on deck, and there-

fore when I am outside of the carpenter's room,

then I am on deck. But I must get on top of the

deck cargo to see.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived. [541]

DEPOSITION OF ISOKICHI CHIGA, FOR
LIBELANT (RECALLED—CROSS-EXAM-
INATION).

ISOKICHI CHIGA was thereupon recalled for

further cross-examination and, having been previ-

ously sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

Further Cross-examination by Mr. SNOW.

Q. Will you please state again—you may have

stated it once, but will you please state again ex-

actly where you were at the instant of the collision.

A. I was on under bridge on the starboard side.

Q. Were you arranging the charts then prepara-

tory to the move?



Kokusai Kisen Kdhushiki Kaisha. 565

(Deposition of Isokichi Chiga.)

A. I was fixing the chart before I first sighted the

steamer.

Q. What were you doing at the time of the col-

lision ?

A. I was doing nothing—just watching in the

direction of the other boat.

Q. Were you watching the "West Keats'"?

A. Yes, the "West Keats," that steamer that ran

into us.

Q. You saw her approaching then from the time

you first sighted her until the collision?

A. Yes, I saw her.

Q. Did you look at her continuously, or did you

go about other duties while she was approaching

you?

A. It was such a short time I was continually

looking at it.

Q. When did you first realize there would be a

collision? A. It was not until after she struck.

Q. You didn't realize then that she was going to

hit you?

A. I felt that she was coming quite near, but I

expected she would change her direction.

Q,. Did you notice the position of the "Boston

Maru" and the manner in which she was swinging

on her anchor chain?

A. At first the steamer was parallel to the shore,

then I realized [542] that the steamer is not in

her original position, so I can see that the steamer

is moving. I could not say just exactly when the
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steamer commenced to move, but I think maybe
ten after one.

Q. At the time of the collision did yon notice that

the "Boston Maru" was across the channel?

Mr. KING.—I object to that, unless there is a

'preliminary question as to whether or not he knows

where the channel is there. There was a pilot

on board this vessel, and there is no testimony in

direct examination as to any knowledge on the part

of any of the witnesses as to where the channel is.

Mr. SNOW.—I will withdraw that question and

come back to it.

Q. Before the "Boston Maru" started to move

she was up and down the river, wasn't she, with her

head upstream? A. Yes.

Q. And after she started to move she swung so

that she was across the river, didn't she?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. SNOW.—That is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. KING.

Q. And didn't she continue to swing some more

so that her stern got to be upstream—first, she

started with her stern downstream and then she

continued to swing and went clear around until

her stern was upstream; isn't that true?

Mr. SNOW.—You are leading your witness

there, Mr. King.

A. Yes; the stern went up.

Q. (By Mr. KING.) Well, 1 will withdraw

that. And was that the position of the stern at the

time that the collision took place, a little bit up-

stream or somewhat in that position? [543]
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A. Yes.

Q. After the "West Keats" struck did she

slacken her speed any, slow np any, that you could

see? A. No, I don't think—I didn't notice.

Q. Did she go on down the river after she struck?

A. Yes, she went down the river very speedy.

Q. At the time that you saw the "West Keats"

coming and you were watching her, did you notice

her change her course any?

A. No, I didn't notice whether she changed her

course, but she most surely ought to.

Mr. KING.—That is all.

And further deponent saith not.

Signature waived.

Mr. KING.—Mr. Snow, before the reporter

leaves, I would like to have an expression from Mr.

Takeoka, who was present with you at this hearing

as your interpreter, as to whether or not he thinks

the questions were truly and correctly interpreted

by Mr. Toda, just for the purposes of the record.

Mr. SNOW.—I would like to talk to Mr. Takeoka

privately a minute first, and then I will.

Mr. KING.—All right.

Mr. SNOW.—Just come out a minute, will you,

Mr. Takeoka?

(Mr. Takeoka and Mr. Snow here left the room

and in a short time returned.)

Mr. KING.—Now Mr. Snow, will you make the

statement in the record as to what you feel now,

after having consulted your interpreter?
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Mr. SNOW.—Mr. Takeoka has stated to me that

the interpretation [544] of Mr. Toda was sub-

stantially correct.

Mr. KING.—And does he know of any material

errors ?

Mr. SNOW.—He does not state any material

errors.

Mr. KING.—All right.

(Thereupon the proceedings hereunder were ad-

journed.)

Filed June 2, 1926. [545]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO APOSTLES ON APPEAL.

United States of America,

District of Oregon,—ss.

I, G. H. Marsh, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States, for the District of Oregon, do

hereby certify that the foregoing pages numbered

from 1 to 545, inclusive, constitute the apostles on

appeal from the final decree of said court in the

cause of the United States of America, libelant and

appellant, against the Japanese steamship "Boston

Maru," her engines, boilers, tackle, apparel, furni-

ture, etc., and the Kokusai Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha,

a corporation, claimant of said steamship "Boston

Mam," and appellee, and the cause of the Kokusai

Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha, a corporation, as owner

of the Japanese steamship "Boston ^laru," libelant



Kokusai Kisen KabusJiiki KaisJia. 509

and appellee, against the United States of Amer-

ica, as owner of the American steamship "West
Keats," respondent and appellant, which said causes

were consolidated by order of Court for the pur-

pose of taking depositions and testimony and for

trial, and further consolidated for the purposes

of appeal ; that the said apostles have been prepared

by me in accordance with the praecipe filed by the

appellant and in accordance with rules of the court,

and contain a full, true and complete transcript of

the record and proceedings had in said court in said

causes in accordance with the said praecipe as the

same appear of record and on file at my office and

in my custody.

I further certify that the cost of the foregoing

apostles $75.90, and that the same has been paid

by the said appellant.

In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said court, at Portland,

in said District, this 10th day of March, 1927.

[Seal] G. H. MARSH,
Clerk. [546]

[Endorsed] : No. 5095. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. United

States of America, Appellant, vs. Kokusai Kisen

Kabushiki Kaisha, a Corporation, Claimant of the

Japanese Steamer "Boston Maru," Her Engines,

etc., Appellee, and United States of America, as

Owner of the America Steamship "West Keats,"

in Personam, Appellant, vs. Kokusai Kisen Kabu-
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Appellee. Apostles on Appeals. Upon Appeals

from the United States District Court for the Dis-

trict of Oregon.

Filed March 14, 1927.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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In the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

THE JAPANESE STEAMSHIP "BOSTON MARU"

Appeal From the United States District Court, for

the District of Oregon

Appellant's Brief

Hon. Robert S. Bean, Judge

No questions of pleading and practice are to

be discussed in this brief nor will any, we think,

be raised by respondent. The pleadings raise

the issues presented in the District Court and the

Assignments of Error bring the same issues to

this court. Italics herein are ours unless other-

wise stated.

The Boston Maru and West Keats were in

collision October 26, 1924, at 1:44 A. M. The
Shipping Board brought suit against the Boston
to recover the damage suffered by the West Keats.

Stipulation and claim w^ere filed by Kokusai
Kisen Kabushiki Kaisha. This Japanese corpor-

ation then brought suit against the Government
to recover the damages suffered by the Boston.
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.Answers were filed and the issues made. The
two cases were consolidated and tried together.

Damages of both parties were stipulated. The
Honorable Robert S. Bean signed a decree in

favor of the contentions of the Boston. Separate

appeals were perfected in each of the cases and
the District Court thereupon consolidated the

cases further for apostles, briefing, argument
and further consideration by the Circuit Court
of Appeals.

We turn to the merits and will contend:

1. That the Boston Maru was anchored at

the time of the collision in the worst possible

place in which she could have been anchored in

that part of the Columbia River; that her mid-

ships was approximately 700 feet westerly and
400 feet southerly from the customary anchor-

age; she was approximately at right angles across

the main ship channel; she was allowed to drift

with the tide across the channel and no attempt

was made by use of her engines or stern anchor

to keep her up and down the river; she was lying

directly across the channel at the intersection of

two Government established ranges designating

the channel.

2. That there is no direct evidence in the

record tending to prove any specific act of negli-

gence on the part of the West Keats; the prepond-

erance of evidence upholds her conduct; her
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negligence, if any, rests on presumption and ar-

gument.

West Keats' Exhibit No. 1

This exhibit is before the court along with

the other original exhibits. It is a large U. S.

Engineers' blueprint with red and yellow lines

and wording inked thereon and also marks made
by or in behalf of various witnesses and de-

scribed in the record. R. E. Hickson, War De-

partment Engineer (A 62), who has been survey-

ing the Columbia River since 1909 for the Gov-

ernment, placed the inked lines on the chart

under employment as an expert by the Shipping

Board. The chart and additional marks thereon

are all authenticated and described in the record.

A chart is at best a poor description of a river.

No court can fully understand the facts of a case

of this kind due to inability to study the river

with the eyes and instincts of a skilled navigator

under conditions exactly reproducing the condi-

tions of light and darkness at the time and place

of the collision. The blue print is the best sub-

stitute for actual observation which the record

affords.

The Tide

The tide which caused the swinging of the

Boston was low at St. Helens at 11 to 11:15 P. M.

October 25th (A 91). The water remains at the

low period for a considerable length of time in
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that part of the river, about one and a half hours.

The tide was high at the point of the collision at

3:14 A. M. October 26th (A 90), and the rise was
3.7 feet. The current turns backward upstream
at the latter part of the flood tide (A 345). The
above data were furnished by Mr. Hickson. They
are based on current observations and the attract-

ive force on the particular tide in question but
does not include variations which might be due
to weather conditions. Chiga, who was on watch
on the Boston Maru, stated that the current start-

ed to flow up stream at 1:10 A. M. October 26th.

Angle of Boston Maru to Shore

We believe that the vessel was about as shown
on the chart at the "position at colHsion," name-
ly, at about right angles to the channel and Ore-

gon shore. Of course the exact direction lines of

the channel and the shore are open to question

and the court will understand that the determina-

tion of these on the river is less easy than on the

chart.

Respondent took the depositions of the Jap-

anese officers and crew a couple of weeks after

the collision. Second Mate Chiga was on watch

at the time of the collision. About three minutes

before the collision he saw the West Keats com-

ing down the river. He was then standing on the

starboard side of the Boston's lower bridge (A

535-537). He said the Boston was pointing partly
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downstream and that he could see the West Keats

looking to the starboard and aft. He also said

that the current started to run upstream at about

1:10 A. M. (A 565-566). Chiga said (A 566)

:

Q. Before the "Boston Maru" started to

move she was up and down the river, wasn't
she, with her head upstream?

A. Yes.

Q. And after she started to move she
swung so that she was across the river, didn't

she?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Snow: That is all.

Redirect Examination by Mr. King

Q. And didn't she continue to swing
some more so that her stern got to be up-
stream—first, she started with her stern

downstream and then she continued to swing
and went clear around until her stern was
upstream; isn't that true?

Mr. Snow: You are leading your witness
there, Mr. King.

A. Yes; the stern went up.

Q. (By Mr. King) Well, I will withdraw
that. And was that the position of the stern

at the time that the collision took place, a

little bit upstream or somewhat in that posi-

tion?

A. Yes.
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Chiga did not have a pilot's familiarity with
the river but having taken bearings the night be-

fore knew pretty well which way was upstream.
Having taken this observation he went inside and
his description of events connected with the col-

lision stopped there. He did nothing about the

swinging of the Boston, either by way of waking
the pilot, getting the stern anchor out to stop the

swinging, or giving a stand-by to the engine room
with a view of using the engines.

Evidently the Boston drifted shortly before

the collision to a point more than at right angles

from her position when the bearings were taken.

Perhaps the vagaries of the current swung her

back a little because Berry and Gillette testified

that she was approximately at right angles when
they struck her. Of course they could only see

her lights and the dimmest outline of her hull,

the latter only when they were on top of her.

Their judgment is to be taken as approximate
only but they are consistent with each other.

Captain Swenson of the Keats who came on deck

at the sounding of the telegraph a minute before

the collision arriving immediately thereafter,

agreed with them. (A 383.)

The next man who attempts to state the angle

of the Boston was Captain Gildez, who was awak-
ened by the shock and came on the deck of the

Boston soon after the collision. With only the

range lights and other shore lights and the mov-
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ing lights of the Keats to guide him, Gildez says

that the Boston was then lying with her stern at

an angle of about 45 degrees down stream (A

313). Perhaps the force of the collision knocked
her to approximately this position. Captain

Swenson says her stern swung down at the im-

pact (A 510).

At the trial respondent attempted to break

down the testimony of their own witness Chiga

and that of Berry, Gillette and Swenson by asking

pilots to examine the photographs of the twisted,

bent and broken plates and beams of both vessels

and to state as experts from this examination at

what angle the vessels came together. Those
willing to testify answered for the most part that

the angle was about 45 degrees and on cross ex-

amination said that they did not know. Page
after page of the record is filled with this theor-

etical testimony. We do not now review it here

as we do not regard it as throwing any real light

on the issue. We suspect that a marine surveyor,

a real expert on such an issue, would have de-

clined to testify thereon.

We think that Mr. Hickson, in locating the

Boston on the chart at approximately right an-

gles to the general line of the shore and channel,

has followed a clear preponderance of the testi-

mony.
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Distance of Boston Maru From Shore

The vessel is 400 feet long, 53.2 feet beam,
draft — feet forward, 26 feet one inch aft and
8,017 dead weight tons. From the compass on
the bridge to the haw^se hole is 136 feet (A 517).

The evening before the collision under Columbia
River Pilot Gildez she arrived off Columbia City

and dropped anchor heading toward the Oregon
shore. The current and tide were running down
and she then swung down stream on thirty fath-

oms from the windlass (A 317). Second Mate
Chiga thereupon took the bearings shown on the

chart with an ordinar}^ dry ship's compass. The
instrument had been tested in Japanese waters a

month or two before the collision but at best

could be only relatively accurate. The longest

leg of the triangle of error is two hundred feet.

The two positions of the Boston are platted on

the chart from these bearings, but two modifica-

tions should be noted.

The first modification is explained by the

smaller blueprint attached to the large one. Chiga

also took the bearings of the stem of his vessel

from the compass which was amidships. Wlien

Mr. Hickson came to place the outline of the

vessel on the chart he found that the bearing of

the bow did not line the vessel up with the cur-

rent as the same is shown by the arrows on the

main chart and the attached blueprint. Hickson's

testimonv was that these arrows are correctly
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placed through observation of currents made
from time to time by the Government engineers.

There was not much wind when the Boston was
anchored, and the wind unless very strong would
not change her position much as against the force

of the current. We are forced to take one of two
conclusions: (1) either Chiga or the compass
was in error in taking the bearing of the ship's

bow or (2) through some peculiarity the current

was not setting in its normal direction. As he

plotted the initial position on the main chart Mr.

Hickson assumed that the bearing was erroneous

and omitted it. In the small chart he assumed
that the bearing was correct and that the current

was peculiar and so placed the vessel. This dif-

ference is important. If the bearing is correct

the Boston's anchor was fifty feet nearer the

Oregon shore than if the bearing was incorrect.

The second modification is that in turning the

Boston around to her assumed position at the

time of the collision Mr. Hickson probably left

too great a distance between the anchor and the

bow. The preponderance of testimony was that

in the absence of a strong wind a ship turning

on her anchor with the tide would tend to ride

her anchor more or less. Hickson represented a

considerable sag in the chain but probably not

enough to suit a fair interpretation of the record.

There is no testimony as to the actual set of

the current when the Boston was anchored. But
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Chiga who took the bearings and the man who
helped him testified that they were correctly and
accurately taken. Therefore the more cogent

testimony supports substantially the initial posi-

tion as shown on the small blueprint. Allowing
for more riding of the anchor than did Mr. Hick-

son, we place the Boston's stern at something like

the same location in which it is shown on the big

chart. Therefore, we think that the position at

collision of the Boston as depicted on the big

chart is substantially in accordance with the

record.

There is testimony tending to show that the

Boston was anchored closer in than her bearings

would indicate. Captain Berry, pilot of the West
Keats, said that the Keats was about 150 feet

away from the Oregon shore at the time of the

collision. But the night was extremely dark and

he could barely discern the black line of the Ore-

gon bank. Also Captain Gildez estimated that he

had ancliored her six or seven hundred feet out

from the Oregon shore. The closeness of the

Boston's stern to the Oregon shore is definitely

shown by the testimony relating to the failure of

the Keats to answer her starboard helm on ac-

count of suction. This clear and undisputed tes-

timony of both Berry and second officer Gillette,

supj)orte(l by much expert testimony, will be

described later.
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Taking into account estimates of distance,

suction, unknown slant of the chain, possible

errors in taking the bearings, the collision and
other elements, we do not think Mr. Hickson's

placing of the Boston at the point of collision is

subject to any important criticism. At any rate

respondent did not see fit to bring in their own
engineer with a chart of their own.

Main Ship Channel and Customary Anchorage

Before reading this section of the brief we
ask the court to examine the chart again. Note
the St. Helens Bar Range consisting of two lights

Front F. R. and Rear F, W. at Columbia City.

The rear fixed white light is placed considerably

higher than the front fixed red light.

A vessel coming down the river after making
a turn at the upper end of the St. Helens jetty is

navigated to get on this range—that is, to get in

position so that the white light is immediately or

substantially over the red light. This tells

the navigator that he is in the narrow dredged
channel along the jetty. After running this

range out he is about half a mile from the place

where the accident occurred. He then ports his

helm and follows along the Oregon coast without

lights to guide him save a miscellaneous collec-

tion of range and town lights at Columbia City.

He is now in a wide deep river, the ranges desig-

nating a channel along the Oregon shore. The
river for half mile or more below the collision
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place is also wide and deep. He follows along
the Oregon shore, or a little out and to the right

if he should be passing an upriver steamer, until

the two fixed white lights of the Columbia City

Range begin to close up astern. The lower and
front of these two lights as he looks astern ap-

pears at first to his right of the upper rear light.

After he gets on the Columbia City Range these

two lights close up further until the rear light is

directly or substantially over the front light. He
is now^ going down stream on the Columbia City

Range and will presently pick up lights ahead to

guide him further.

Vessels were at the time of the collision fre-

quently anchored jusl below Columbia City. At-

tention is invited to the vellow lines marked
"Line F. R. 28-2 to F. R. 27-2," being the so-called

"Red Range," "Line from Caples Point to La-

monts Light F. W." and "Line from Lamonts F.

W. to Courthouse Flag." The court will note that

these three lines tend in a general way to con-

verge.

Now the ordinary way of anchoring at night

at this point whether coming from upstream or

downstream is to go a little below Columbia City

where there is a big river in which to turn and
maneuver and to come up on one or another of

these yellow lines. The one most frequently used

at the time was the Red Range. This was not a

range at all. It was merely two fixed red lights,
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the lower in altitude being at the lower end of the

St. Helens Jetty (28.2 miles from Portland) and
the upper at the end of a smaller jetty one mile

up river or 27.2 miles from Portland. However,

the pilots found it convenient to use these red

lights in anchoring as they would have used a

range in navigating, and gave it the name of the

"Red Range."

The navigator would come up on one or an-

other of these yellow lines, which he preferred

under existing conditions, until his bridge was a

little below or approximately abreast of the

Columbia City Front Range Light F. W. There

he would cast anchor with thirty fathoms of

chain if the weather was mild or more if the

wind was high. His vessel would pull with the

current until the chain was taut. If the tide rose

while his vessel was anchored he might swing to

the Oregon or Washington side but he could not

interfere with the main ship channel on the

Oregon side or be in danger of shallow water on

the Washington side.

The court will notice that as to a vessel like

the Boston so anchored on the Red Range the

bridge at the time of casting anchor would be at

or a little below the first "0" in "Position." The
anchor dropping from the bow would be 136 feet

up river or about or a little below the end of the

yellow dash. The vessel could then swing either

way with the tide, even in a strong wind, without
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damaging herself or interfering in the slightest

way with the normal use of the ranges and
channel.

This testimony on these matters includes four

lines of questions, namely, (1) Where and how
the witness anchored vessels off Columbia City;

(2) Where and how the witness navigated that

part of the river; (3) Where and how the other

pilots anchored, namely, the customary anchor-

age; and (4) Where and how the other pilots

navigated, namely, the customary channel. Not
every expert in the case testified on all four ques-

tions but every expert testified on at least two
or more of them. There was little difference of

opinion among them except on minor details.

The pilots employed by the Boston Maru testified

mainly in favor of our contentions on these

issues.

These questions are so interwoven in the testi-

mony of the pilots that it seems best to take up

their views separately and treat the questions

together. First, however, the following summary
may be useful:

1. Where Witness Anchored. Every pilot said

he anchored on one or another of the yellow

lines, except Sullivan and (iildez, who said they

estimated the distance out from the Oregon bank.

Sullivan, however, had not anchored at the lo-

cality at or before the time of the collision. No
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pilot said that he had ever before or since anch-

ored a vessel where the Boston Maru was placed.

Most of the pilots anchored opposite the Colum-
bia City front light. McNelly, Sandstrom, Dalby
and Berry anchored a little below it. No pilot

anchored above it.

2. How Witness Navigated. Every witness

without exception used the ranges. They dif-

fered only slightly in the place at which they

turned off the St. Helens range to get on the

Columbia City Range. Captain Gildez said he did

not use the ranges but it appeared that he did.

3. Customary Anchorage. All the pilots who
testified on the subject said that the customary
anchorage was over toward the Washington side

or at the place where the yellow lines converge,

except Gildez, who said the customary anchorage
was in the middle of the channel. No pilot testi-

fied that it was customary to anchor where the

Boston Maru was anchored, or that he had ever

before or since seen a vessel anchored there.

Dalby, who saw the Boston right after the collision

said he had never in his life seen a vessel anchored
there. Gildez tried to uphold his place of anchor-

age as proper but did not go so far as to say it was
customary to anchor so as to permit a vessel to

swing where the Boston Maru swung, and ad-

mitted that he had passed vessels at anchor there,

always on the Oregon side of them. No pilot

except Gildez testified that there was a custom-
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ary anchorage ground any place else in that

locality than over toward the Washington shore.

Sullivan, although he had never used the red

range, testified that he had not anchored there

for some time before the collision but he knew
of the red range and described how this range
came into use for anchoring.

4. Customary Ship Channel. Every pilot ex-

cept Gildez testified that vessels were customarily

navigated past Columbia City on the Oregon side

and he practically admitted it.

We now proceed to an examination of the

testimony.

Captain Dalby (appearing in the record as

"Baldy"), a witness for appellant, was coming

up the river with the Siersted. After the collision

the Keats under a full-astern bell, turned sharply

starboard and came to a stop some distance be-

low the place of collision. On seeing this maneu-
ver Dalby stopped his engines and then received

Berry's signal to pass to port. Not until then did

he see the lights of the Boston (A 153). Dalby

then came up substantially on the red range. All

the lights of the Boston were on by this time and

Dalby said she was 450 to 500 feet over.

He added (A 151):

I never seen a ship anchored there in my
life in clear weather.
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Court: What kind of weather?

A. Clear weather, I mean not foggy.

Court: Do they anchor there in the fog?

A. In fog we anchor anywhere we can.

Naturally a man coming down in the fog
don't figure a vessel anywhere; we stop and
get the headway off the vessel. Some places

along that river we have places to anchor,
and generally swing to one side there and
anchor. This is one of the places as long as

the atmosphere was clear, as a rule, we go
out to the anchorage grounds.

Anchoring at night Dalby ordinarily comes up
on the red range (A 146) to a point below Colum-

bia City Front (A 157).

Q. Did other pilots anchor in that vicin-

ity at times?

A. Yes, a mark we go by when we anch-

or the ship there to load or do anything out
there. We figure easy for ships there to load

timber, load off barges; sometimes too deep
to load at Columbia City or St. Helens, and
take there and anchor there. That is a mark
we always use, also a mark on Lamont Bluff
and St. Helens Court House. We leave the

court house well open on Lamont bluff, but
we generally as a rule use that red range as

I say. It is very easy to pick up and very
simple.

Q. What is that?
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A. That is very easy to pick up and very
simple to go onto out off Columbia City
there.

Q. Have you ever passed other vessels at

that portion of the river anchored there?

A. You mean anchored?

Q. Yes, anchored.

A. Pass them anchored out there on
these grounds I am telling you about. (A 147)

Of course, the channel is over close to the

Oregon shore. We come pretty well down
to the Oregon shore there and make a turn
to deep water there and turn to follow that

. shore more or less—to that shore, until we
get down on to the ranges leading down to

Morton Island on the other channel—the

other course. (A 149).

We invite attention to Captain Dalby's cross

examination (A 156-158). Its exact meaning is

uncertain because the court is required to guess

at just what the wellness and counsel were point-

ing to on the chart. The witness made it clear,

however, that the proper anchorage is not oppo-

site Columbia City but below the town, also it is

clear that the witness' practice is to anchor below

Columbia City Front, although other witnesses

stated that they anchored abreast of that light.

We suggest two simple experiments to deter-

mine what "abreast" of this light means. First
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place a straight-edge on the Oregon shore, follow-

ing its general direction at the location of that

light. A line at right angles from the light would
just about cut through the "s" in "position."

Again place a straight-edge along the red range.

A line from this range to the light would approxi-

mately cut the first "o" in "position."

The court will note how far these points are

below the anchor of the Boston.

Captain Sandstrom, a witness for appellant,

said (A 159)

:

Q. Do you sometimes anchor vessels at

some part of the river near Columbia City?

A. Yes, sir, I have at different times.

Q. Do other pilots anchor there too?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you bring a vessel to anchor,
opposite what place and at what distance and
by what lights?

A. We generally, as a rule, drop down
below the front range of Columbia City

ranges and come in on the red ranges of the

jetties; the red light on the lower end of the

jetty is what we now know as the front light

on the St. Helens range—or inside of that,

down toward Caples point.

Q. I am not referring so much to the

river as it is now. Captain, because changes
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have been made as you know, but the river
as it was two years ago, in October, 1924; you
then anchored off of what is known as red
range, didn't you?

A. Yes, sir, what we called red range,
which was the lower end of the jetty light,

forming range with the jetty light that ex-

tended up above; that formed a range and
we would go on that or inside of that down
towards Caples Point; was according to if we
had swinging room, and anchored the ves-

sels there for loading them on deep draft,

when they couldn't have water enough at

Columbia City or St. Helens.

Q. Have you seen in the past there, ves-

sels anchored at that location?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. By other pilots?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What can you say as to whether or

not there is a custom with respect to anchor-
ing there?

A. That has ahvaijs been the custom to

anchor towards the Washington shore. (A
159-160.)

Q. Where is the main ship channel at

that point for navigating up and down the

river?

A. Well, the main ship channel you
come down on these ranges until you get
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about abreast of what we call the dock of the
Western Spar Company, their mill there at

Columbia City, before you start swinging for
the lower course; that is just above the old
—the front range or was the front range at

that time of St. Helens range; just above that
before you make the turn; you run approx-
imately fifteen hundred to a thousand feet

probably above it, before you start swinging;
that brings you

Q. You mean at about fifteen hundred
to a thousand feet above the range light of
St. Helens upper range you start swinging?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And which way do you swing?

A. Swing to starboard; down towards
Columbia City ranges; down to what we call

Deer Island.

Q. What shore do you follow down to

get to Columbia City range?

A. You are on the Oregon shore. (A
161-162.)

Captain Grunstad, a witness on behalf of ap-

pellant, was employed on the United States

Columbia River Survey Boat before becoming a

pilot. He said (A 174):

Q. Are you familiar with that part of
the Columbia River opposite Columbia City,

above and below there?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Is there any anchorage ground in
that vicinity?

Mr. McCamant: I think that is a conclu-
sion, your Honor. I think this witness ought
to be asked what is the customary way of
anchoring vessels.

Court: Yes. You don't mean designated
anchorage ground?

Q. I don't mean designated by law; I

mean designated by custom. Is there any
customary anchorage ground in that vicinity?

A. Yes, sir.

Q
A

Q
A

Q
A

Where is it. Captain?

Abreast of Columbia City.

Front or rear?

Well, front.

Abreast Columbia City or down?
Yes, Columbia City Ranges—what is

called the Columbia City Ranges.

Court: What do you refer to as the

Columbia City ranges. Captain? On the

Columbia City side?

A. Yes, direct in the channel down to

Columbia City.

Q. Is that customary anchorage ground
nearer the Oregon bank or nearer the Wash-
ington bank?

A. Nearer the Washington.
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Q. How do you ordinarily anchor a ves-

sel at that place at night, assuming it is clear
and you can see lights? Not assuming fog,

or anything where you can't.

A. Well, set by the ranges, red ranges
that we use to anchor on, and abreast of
Columbia City range.

Q. Abreast of Columbia City range
lights?

A. Yes, sir. (A 174-175.)

The wdtness then used the red range at night

and anchored abreast of Columbia City Front.

The court has noted that Sandstrom anchored
below Columbia City Front. The majority of the

pilots anchored abreast of this light and a few of

them below it. None of them said they had ever

anchored a vessel or seen a vessel anchored above
it. Gildez placed the anchor of the Boston Maru
about 400 feet above the light. Grunstad con-

tinued (A 99):

Q. Where is the ship's channel, main
ship channel, at that part of the river oppo-
site Columbia City?

A. It follows the Oregon shore line. (A
99.)

On cross examination Grunstad said (A 184)

:

Q. There is a customary anchorage
ground in the neighborhood of Columbia
Citv that is known to all the pilots, isn't

there?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it is customary for vessels desir-
ing to go in to St. Helens to anchor there,
isn't it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And all of the pilots on the river
know that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do all the pilots anchor at the same
place at Columbia City?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. They all do?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You never have seen a vessel anch-
ored there except at the place you have indi-

cated in ijour direct testimony?

A. No, sir. (A 184.)

No pilot testified to having seen a vessel

anchored there at any other point and Dalby said

he had never before seen a vessel anchored where
the Boston was.

Captain Berry, pilot of the West Keats, said

(A 102):

State whether or not there are vessels

anchored in that general locality from time
to lime by the pih)ts?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Now, have you anchored vessels there
yourself?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you anchor vessels at a point
generally opposite the Columbia City range
lights at night?

A. I use the lower Columbia City range
light; put that abeam out about twelve hun-
dred feet or perhaps a little more; and at that

time there was a red range that we anchored
our vessels on, which would be the lower
light of the St. Helens jetty, and a red light

on another little jetty that came out just a
little above the St. Helens jetty, on a dolphin.

Q. You speak of that as a red range?

A. Yes. (A 102.)

Q. That light takes you approximately
how far out from the shore?

A. A good 1200 feet.

Q. What can you say as to the practices

of other pilots anchoring vessels in that lo-

cality?

A. I would say they also do the same. I

have come up many a time and found them
anchored there. I could see they were there,

because I could see this range, see the vessel

anchored there.

Q. When you first made out the anchor
lights of the Boston Maru to be the lights of
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a vessel at anchor, state what was your judg-
ment at that time as to the location of the
vessel?

A. I supposed she was over on this certi-

fied anchorage.

Mr. King: What was that last answer?

A. / supposed her to be over in this reg-
ular anchorage ground, where vessels are
commonly anchored for taking on cargo
from the water. (A 103-104.)

Captain Berry (A 104-105) then described the

ordinary method of running down the Oregon
shore, leaving the St Helens Bar Range at a point

about half a mile above the place of the collision

and joining the Columbia City Range below it.

Captain Sullivan, a witness on behalf of the

respondent, said direct (A 197)

:

Q. Is it possible for a pilot to anchor at

any particular spot in the river after dark?

A. Well it is a very difficult thing, I

have found from my experience, to drop
ahead any particular spot, with the exception
possibly with the aid of some range or lights

that we use especialhj for that purpose.

On cross examination the captain said (A

133):

Q. At night, what is the part of the river

more commonly navigated by pilots?

A. The Oregon side. (A 220.) f
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The captain said that in anchoring off Colum-
bia City he would get out opposite Columbia City

Front and anchor anywhere in the channel
where the ship would have sufficient swing with-

out striking her stern (A 221), and would guess

the distance out from shore (A 228). On being
reminded that there was a wider deeper river

below^ that he replied, yes, but there were no
lights to mark it by (A 222). Captain Sullivan

said he had never used the red range but added
(A 223):

A. I never anchored a ship there after it

was put in place; never had occasion to

anchor it.

Incidentally it may be noted that the red range

came into existence in April, 1923, through the

establisment at that time of the fixed red light at

jetty 27-2 (A 343). The red light at 28-2 had been
established long before in 1919 (A 343). It seems
unusual that Captain Sullivan had not anchored
a vessel off Columbia City during the period of

one and a half years between the establishment

of the red range and the collision but we do not

question the truth of his statement to this effect.

The value of his testimony as an expert on the

anchoring of vessels off Columbia City is some-
what weakened by his inexperience.

The testimony of the pilots produces convic-

tion that in anchoring a ship at night in an ex-

panse of water many miles long and three-fifths



34

of a mile wide from bank to bank, with the banks
sometimes almost or entirely invisible and only

lights for a guide, a pilot ought if possible to

locate himself at least two ways. He should know
his position up and down river and, even more
important, he should clearly know it cross river.

This means getting a line of lights up stream
(since pilots ordinarily anchor with the bow up
stream in spite of Gildez's attempt to anchor
crosswise in the present case) and a light or line

on the bank from which to gauge distance up
and down river.

Now being abreast of Columbia City Front

means one thing to a person on the shore and
another to a pilot on the bridge of a moving ship.

If the ship is lined with the current or the red

range a pilot can readily tell when the light is

abeam. If the ship is pointed in any other direc-

tion he cannot tell unless he knows how she is

pointed. It is not surprising that Gildez having

turned around three-quarters of a circle did not

know he was 400 feet above the light when he

cast anchor.

Every pilot in the case with the exception of

Gildez and Sullivan stated the necessity of getting

a line both ways. These two emphasized the

necessity of getting a point on the bank and

eschewed the river below Columbia City Front

because of a want of lights there, but both of

them said it was sufficient to guess at the dis-

tance out.
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However, we suspect that both of them knew
more than they testified. Gildez we think was
just in a hurry to get to bed at the time in ques-

tion and his testimony was the best argument he
could advance in support of his anchorage. Sul-

livan, without an actual experience in anchoring
at the point to fetter him, was merely giving testi-

mony for the side that called him. He was not

devoid of information about the red range but
told the court more about it than anv other pilot.

We quote (A 224)

:

A. My knowledge of that range is this:

It seems that one of the pilots by accident
discovered in anchoring a ship one night
down there, where he was afraid the ship
was going to sw^ing over on the Washington
shore when she swung around—noticed that

these two light come in range at the point he
was in; when the ship swung around she
cleared the shore and he had forty feet of
water under the stern. So he told the other
pilots that when these two lights range,
abreast of that fish trap, it is a good place to

anchor; but I never happened to anchor a
ship there until after that light was moved,
and I don't know anything about it, or
whether it is or not. Of course moving down
the river any distance it would come off the
range, but at that particular spot that he
described probably they would range, if he
said so, but it is not a range, though; not
used as a range, or never was intended for a
range. Of course if someone has worked
that out and discovered those two will range
in a certain spot in the channel, and if you
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go out and find that spot, you can probably
anclior a ship there; but I never had occasion
to use it, in my experience, until after moved.

Q. Do you know the name of the pilot

that made the discovery that those two lights
were handy to anchor by at night?

A. Yes, quite well.

Q. Who is it?

A. His name is Chase.

Q. Chase. What is his first name?

A. Harry. H. L. Harry L. Chase.

Q. You believe that he was the origin-

ator of the use of those two lights?

A. That is the first I heard of it.

Q. Did he tell you about using the lights?

A. I don't know whether he told me di-

rectly or whether I heard it second hand. My
impression is he told me directly.

Q. Can you remember pretty definitely

what time this was?

A. No, I couldn't; but he would. He
would have—he would have a record of it,

and the ship he had, and all about it; but I

don't remember. It is just an idea that pilots

generally, if they fincj anything that might
be of value to others, that they find them-
selves, thev tell them, scatter the knowledge
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around of anything that might be of import-
ance. (A 224-225.)

Q. Do vou recall anchoring any vessels
there?

A. No, I don't.

Q. When did you last use that anchorage
ground, do you remember?

A. It seems to me it was a long time
prior to that; T don't recall. (A 230.)

Captain Moran, who was called as a witness

by respondent, came down the river about 12

midnight with a vessel of two thousand tons

burden and 23-24 feet draft. He left the St.

Helens Bar Range about a half a mile above the

usual point and about a thousand feet below the

end of the St. Helens jetty (A 254). About that

time (A 255) he made out the lights of the Boston

Maru, which was then lying straight down
stream.

He proceeded without aid of range lights past

the Boston on the Washington side and picked up
other lights a long distance down the river, thus

saving himself some distance. His more usual

practice was to leave the St. Helens Bar Range
off the Columbia City mill (A 254). Asked about

the red range, he said:

A. I never used the red range; what I

generally used to use was the courthouse at

St. Helens, and Lamont Point. I kept that
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open a couple of hundred feet. That would
leave me five or six hundred feet out, or
probably more, than where the Boston Maru
was anchored. I couldn't rightly say what
distance it would be. but it would be five or
six hundred feet further out. (A 256.)

If she was anchored out there about as
customary to anchor, I would pass on the
Oregon shore, in a case of that kind. (A 256.)

Moran said the customary ship channel was
rather on the Oregon side (A 257).

Captain Allyn testified on behalf of respond-

ent. His method of anchoring at night is to get

his bow on Lamonts light and his stern on
Caples Point with Columbia City Front abreast

of his bridge (A 266).

As to the channel, he said (A 267):

A. Always follow down the Oregon
channel when coming up this wav.
Captain Allyn said (A 267)

:

Q. You would not anchor out just in the

middle of the stream without knowing how
far to one side or the other you were, if you
could avoid it?

A. No, if there is any light so I could see;

anyway to see, no: you have to have some-
thing to go by.
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Q. And you would always take advant-
age of a light or something you could see, if

you could?

A. Yes, ahvays, foggy weather or any
other time, ahvays try to get near a light to

anchor if possible. (A 267.)

Q. What can you say of the custom of
anchoring vessels at that place? Other pilots

anchor their vessels there too?

A. Been anchoring there ever since I

been in the pilot business.

Q. They customarily anchor pretty well
out from the Oregon shore over towards the
Washington shore?

A. If possible, yes.

Q. So as to leave water for the channel?

A. Yes, the main object is to keep out of
the main fairway as much as possible.

Q. And the Oregon shore has been the
main ship channel for a long time, has it?

A. Yes, always pass up and down the
Oregon shore if possible, yes.

Q. Have those two ranges, the St. Helens
and the Columbia City ranges, been estab-

lished for a long period of time?

A. They have been there ever since I

have been in the pilol business.
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Q. So always been the custom to navi-
gate the Oregon shore, and to anchor over
towards the Washington shore?

A. Yes, sir. (A 269)

Captain McNelly was called as a witness by
respondent. He described the point at which he
ordinarily turned off the St. Helens Bar Range
being a little above where Berry turned (A 276.

See marks on chart) adding (A 282) that that was
his own method and all pilots did not run the

river exactly alike. The captain said that in

anchoring at night he used the red range, and
added (A 278-279):

Questions by Mr. Snow.

Coming down the river then, if there is

no ship at anchor you usually keep out pretty
well towards the center, or even to the Wash-
ington side?

A. Aim to keep just about in the center.

Q. If there is a ship at anchor, do you
usually aim to pass on the Oregon side, or
the Washington side, of that ship?

A. Any ship that I have ever passed at

anchor there, I have passed on the Oregon
side.

Mr. McCamant: Coming down?

A. Coming down. Any ship that I ever
remember of seeing anchored out there, I

have always passed on the Oregon side com-
ing down.
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Testimony of Captain George McNelly.

Q. In fact, the customary anchorage is

over towards the Washington side, isn't it?

A. I have always understood it that way,
as a rule.

Q. And the customary ship's channel is

over towards the Oregon side?

A. Well, the water is deeper closer to the

shore on the Oregon side than it is on the

Washington side; more sloping on the Wash-
ington side.

Q. In keeping out towards the center

you give yourself plenty of water and keep
to what you consider to be the starboard side

of the channel you follow, don't you?

A. Yes, as long as there is no obstruc-

tion; no ships in there.

Q. You have passed ships at anchor
there a good many times, have you?

A. Yes, sir. (267.)

Q. Several times at least?

A. Yes.

Q. Ordinary rate of speed. That is, do
you maintain your speed in passing them?

A. Always have; yes.

Q. If you were going full speed you
would not slacken in order to pass them?
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A. Unless they had barges or logs along-
side that the swells would do damage to; we
would slow down for that reason, but no
other reason.

Captain Chase, called as a witness by appel-

lant, stated that in anchoring he came up on the

red range abreast of Columbia City Front; that

the range had been in existence 16 to 18 months
before the collision and that he had used it before

that time and told other pilots about it (A 297-

298). He added (A 298):

Q. What is the customary anchorage
ground at that locality?

A. That is customary, as far as I know,
the description I gave you.

Q. Other pilots use the same method of
anchoring?

A. I don't know what they use, I am
sure.

Q. You have passed vessels at anchor
there?

A. I have.

Q. P'ound them anchored over towards
the Washington side?

A. Apparently in the same place I

anchor.

Q. Where is the main ship channel at

that locality?

A. All ship channel wherever it is deep.
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Q. Do vessels navigating up and down the

river, do they customarily navigate on the

Washington or Oregon side at that point?

A. Usually the Oregon side. I have—in

fact very nearly all the time on the Oregon
side.

Q. That is on account of the ranges con-
verging?

A. Yes, the range light is there; they
come up and pick up the range and follow
along that shore line, quite close along that

shore line. (A 200.)

Captain Gildez has been employed in the nav-

igation of Columbia River craft since 1910. At

the time of the collision he had been for two

years a Columbia River pilot. He anchored the

Roston at 8:30 P. M.. October 25, 1924. He de-

scribed the weather at the time as (A 307-308)

Dark. Yes, very dark. Cloudy and dark,
squally and rain squalls.

Q. Could you see the shore?

A. Not very distinctly; you could see the

lights.

There is considerable testimony that there

was no fog that night and no testimony that

there was fog. In a fog a pilot is probably justi-

fied in anchoring any place he can.

He says he came down river on the St. Helens

Rar Range and turned to starboard until he was
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abreast of the Columbia City Front Range Light

heading for the Oregon shore, then let go the

anchor (A 308). Evidently he turned around
three-quarters of a circle, and it is not surprising

that he misjudged his location up and down
stream. His anchor was placed more than 400

feet above the light, considering the general trend

of the shore. He says that he used no light or

landmark to determine his location between the

Oregon and Washington shores but dropped

anchor at a point which he estimated to be 600

or 700 feet from the Oregon shore. His testi-

mony on the latter point follows (A 330-331):

Q. One of the times you testified before

the inspectors, before you learned of the po-

sition of the Boston Maru as shown by the

ship's bearings, didn't you express the judg-

ment to the inspectors that you had anchored
about six or seven hundred feet out from
the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But you changed that opinion when
a later location with bearings showed the

Boston Maru to have been about nine hun-
dred feet out?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How did you arrive at that figure, six

or seven hundred feet? Was that your esti-

mate?

A. That was my estimate that night.
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Q. So you thought you were anchored
about six or seven hundred feet out from
the Oregon shore?

A. Yes, sir.

The court can readily demonstrate with a pair

of dividers that if he had anchored six or seven

hundred feet from the Oregon shore as he

thought, the Boston would probably have gone

aground shortly before the time of the collision.

It makes no difference in this demonstration

whether the place from which his estimate was
made was the place where the anchor sank or

the bridge on which he stood, 136 feet to the east-

ward.

Captain Gildez was then unfamiliar with the

red range, although he had anchored in the day-

time by putting Lamonts on the Court House
(A 323). Why he should seek a guiding line by

day and not by night is not explained. He alone

of all the pilots testifying stated that the custom-

ary anchorage was in the middle of the channel

(A 323), but while he has passed anchored vessels

there while going both up and down stream he

has always passed them on the Oregon side (A

232-233) and he admitted that it was customary

to anchor far enough over to the Washington

side to give clearance to navigating vessels (A

333). His testimony respecting the use of the

ranges is also out of line and somewhat incon-

sistent. He said (A 327):
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A. The main ship channel down the
thirty foot contour not on the Oregon side

at all.

Q. You knew the ranges there on the
Oregon bank, didn't you?

A. No ranges at this place.

Q. You don't mean to deny the existence
of the St. Helens Bar range and the Colum-
bia City range, of course?

A. The St. Helens Bar range and the Co-
lumbia City range are not used after pass
Columbia Citv.

Q. Not used?

A. Not used as ranges.

Q. They are not?

A. No, sir.

Q. So you think the pilot made a mis-
take if he used that?

A. I am not here to estimate what a pilot

does. I am just saying what I would do.

Q. You want to be understood as testify-

ing that Columbia River pilots don't any of
them use that range?

A. I am not testifying for Columbia
River pilots, sir.

Q. You said not used.

A. I am speaking for myself alone.
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Q. You don't use ranges in navigating
the river at that point?

A. No, sir. (A 328)

After this he was asked how he would bring

a vessel down the river and replied (A 328)

:

A. Coming down we come on St. Helens
Range to a point about abreast of these Co-
lumbia City Mill lights and head right off
down the middle of the channel towards the

lights at Kalama, until we picked up the

lower Columbia City Range, and went off
on that.

Q. How far would it be from the place
that you would leave the St. Helens Rar
Range until you would pick up the Columbia
City Range below?

A. Quite a ways; half a mile I should
judge.

Q. Half a mile?

A. I should say.

Q. There would not be more nearly a
mile and a half, or two miles?

A. Might be that. (A 329)

We think Captain Gildez' explanation of his

unusual anchorage is far from satisfactory. He
tried to place his vessel close enough to the Ore-

gon shore to ground her there but luckily mis-

judged the distance 200 to 300 feet. He tried to
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put her opposite Columbia City Front but missed
by over 400 feet. He eschewed the wide river

below the light because he does not want to

anchor by guessing (A 343) but he was walling

to guess at the distance out from the Oregon
shore.

Obviously Gildez did not use the same degree
of care in anchoring as did the other pilots. Also,

either his knowledge of the river is indifferent or

his testimony lacks candor. We think that if the

statute means anything it condemns anchorage
of the kind in question.

The Alleged Shoal

The court is invited to examine the chart op-

posite Columbia City rear and note the circular

line of dots indicating the six fathom line with

sounding in feet inside and thereabouts. This

area of water was termed throughout the case as

the "Shoal." The record contains a few pertinent

facts about the shoal and a quantity of speculation

about it, some pertinent and some not.

In the center of the shoal there is a twenty-

five foot sounding. This represents the depth at

zero water. At the date of the collision the stage

of the water was ly^ feet above zero (A 89). At

extreme low water on the night of the collision

there would have been 26Y2 f^t't of water at that

point, if the sounding had been correct at the

time. At extreme high water there would have
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been 30.2 feet. At the time of the collision the

water there would have been about 25 feet plus

11/2 feet plus 2.2 feet of tide or 28.7 feet. On the

night in question the deepest draft of the Boston

was 26 feet 1 inch aft. Therefore she could have

floated over the 25 foot mark (assuming the

sounding to be correct) at any time at any stage

of the water between the time of her anchorage

and the next high water upon which she was to

proceed to St. Helens. She could easily have

floated over this point (even if there had been a

shoal at the time) at any stage of the tide high

enough to produce a back current.

The shoal consisted of gravel dumped there

by a dredge during the week of August 6-14, 1921

(A 193). Mr. Hickson testified after being quali-

fied as an expert on that subject that such a

gravel dump would tend to stay there for "a year

or so" but would gradually wear away (A 71).

Captain Sullivan, who did not qualify as an ex-

pert on this subject, ventured the opinion that it

would not wash away (A 201).

We think the court will regard Mr. Hickson's

testimony on this point as the more credible and
will conclude that there was no shoal at the place

in question subsequent to, let us say, August 1923.

At any rate it is inconceivable that the shallowest

portions of the shoal were not gone by that time,

or that there was any shoal left by October 1924,

the date of the collision.
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How then did the shoal come to be placed on
a chart issued by the United States Engineers
October 1924? Mr. Hickson explained this (A
69-70) and the same explanation is placed on the

chart in the form of a note on the Washington
side near the shoal. The entire chart with the

exception of the corner with which we are con-

cerned was made in 1924. The portion north of

the white line indicated by the note was made
from a survey of October 1921, two months after

the dumping of the gravel.

No witness testified that he had ever seen or

heard of a vessel, large or small, anchored or

navigating, around on the shoal. Several testified

definitely that they had never seen or heard of

such an occurrence.

Many ships anchored at the grounds common-
ly used must have swung over the southerly and
westerly portions of the shoal and it is thus clear

in the record that the shoal did not render unsafe

the usual anchorage on one or another of the yel-

low lines. In fact Captain Allyn, a witness for

respondent, anchoring on the line between La-

monts and Caples Point must in order to avoid

the turn in the Washington bank below have

placed his vessel right on the edge of the shoal.

We have stated the facts concerning the shoal J
and the practical treatmcMit thereof by the pilots.

"

Mav we here suggest that this case involves navi-
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gation and anchorage on a river—not on a chart.

Some of us landsmen may have partially over-

looked this obvious fact during the trial and the

court, we believe, gave it insufficient considera-

tion. On the chart the shoal looks like a lot with

a fence around it. Actually it looks like the rest

of the river, and a lead is always at hand to drop
from any part of an anchored vessel at any time

for an exact test of depth. Several pilots testified

in effect that the lead is an important instrument

in anchoring. Respondent elicited from pilots

the information that Government charts are sent

to the pilot office as they are issued and would
perhaps have it appear that the filing of a chart

in the pilot office is somewhat analogous to the

filing of a deed for record in the county clerk's

office. Obviously a pilot putting his vessel

ashore through reliance on defective depths

shown on a Government chart could not escape

the blame, as his business is to know the river

and not merely the literature about the river.

It should not be thought that Captain Gildez

did not take up the shoal as an excuse for anch-

oring his vessel about 500 feet westward of and
about 400 feet up river from the usual anchorage,

and so close to the intersection of the ranges that

she might easily have grounded on the Oregon
bank if he had placed her where he thought he

was placing her. He testified that he knew about

the shoal (A 309) although he did not say that

he had ever taken soundings there. He said that
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he feared that the Boston might go aground on
the shoal (A 319).

On direct examination Gildez testified that in

anchoring off Columbia City you cannot tell

which direction your vessel will swing unless

there is a wind blowing and at this time there

was scarcely any wind. Continuing (A 310):

Q. Taking the conditions as you have de-

scribed them up there that night, could you
tell at the time you came to anchor which
way your vessel would swing?

A. No. sir.

On cross examination he admitted he had tes-

tified before the inspectors that from the way the

wind was blowing when he lay down the vessel

would swing toward the Washington shore; con-

tinuing (A 321):

Q. I will ask you whether or not this

question was asked and this answer given:

You say a wind blew when you went to bed
which would swing towards the Washington
shore? A. "Yes, sir."

A. Yes, sir.

On pages 321-2 will be found such explana-

tion as he made why he testified one way to the

inspectors and another to the couit.

After some discussion as to the depth of water

on the shoal the following occurred (A 327):
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Q. Now by anchoring a little further
down the stream you could very easily have
avoided that shoal place, couldn't you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And anchoring further over towards
the Washington shore, and further down, you
wouldn't have been in any danger from that

twenty-five foot sounding at all, would you?

A. No, sir.

Q. Even if she swung to the Washington
shore?

A. No, sir.

A few minutes later he repudiated this state-

ment as follows (A 331)

:

Q. In fact, if you had gone a little below
and further out, you would have been just

as safe with your own vessel and would have
been entirely away from the fairway,
wouldn't you?

A. Not in my estimate, no, sir.

Q. You would have been entirely away
from the Oregon shore?

A. I would have been as safe—I would
have been out of the way, probably, more,
but my ship wouldn't have been as safe, or I

wouldn't have known she was as safe as she
was. (A 227)

Captain Sandstrom exhibited a practical con-

sideration and use of the waters over the shoal.
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He stated that he had sounded it and that as a

rule he dropped lead when anchoring at a time

when visibility of lights is poor and he is not

quite sure of himself (A 161). He stated that

light vessels in anchoring need pay no attention

to the shoal but that deeper draft vessels should

be placed further down (A 161). No pilot sug-

gested that in order to avoid the shoal it was
necessary to invade the intersection of the two
ranges or otherw^ise move tow^ard the Oregon
shore. Captain Grunstad stated that a pilot

anchoring on the red range would be safe from
the shoal (A 186).

It will be remembered that these pilots had
in mind anchorage opposite Columbia City Front

or below that light and not above it. No pilot

testified that he or any other pilot ever anchored

above the light and there is no testimony that a

vessel was ever anchored above the light other

than the Boston Maru. No pilot testified that the

shoal had ever interfered at any stage of the

water with the use of the customary anchorage.

Dalby said that in anchoring he never paid

any attention to the shoal (A 155). It will be

remembered that he anchored on the red range

by night a little below Columbia City Front.

Sullivan said he never heard of a vessel

aground on the shoal and that pilots anchor well

out from the Oregon side to keep away from

the channel and ranges (A 231).
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Nothing Done After Anchoring

We do not charge that the Boston did not

maintain an anchor watch but do charge that an
anchor watch which does nothing when some-

thing should be done is equivalent to no watch at

all. If the Boston had been anchored at the exact

position in which she lay at the instant of the

collision and had been locked in this position by
the use of a stern anchor we think the judgment
of the trial court would have been different, yet

in contemplation of law if that position would
have been improper the night before it was im-

proper at the instant of the collision. Whether
the Boston lay there 6 seconds or 6 years would
have been altogether immaterial if the position

was improper. In fact the testimony of Chiga,

Berry, Swenson, Gillette and Gildez as to her

angle just before, during and just after the col-

lision indicates that her stern was actually swing-

ing either up or down stream at the instant the

collision occurred.

On board the Boston nothing was done about

it. The pilot was not awakened; no stand-by bell

was given to the engine room; no stern anchor

was let go to stop the swinging; no danger signal

was given to the West Keats. Any or all of these

things could have been done to get her out of

her deceptive and dangerous position, since she

started swinging with the tide thirty-four minutes

before the collision, according to Chiga (A 566).
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Captain Gildez on direct said that he instruct-

ed them to awaken him (A 312)

:

A. About one-two o'clock we were to

leave.

What actually awakened him was the rolling

caused by the collision. On cross examination

he modified this statement (A 337):

Q. What instruction did you give the

Japanese officers with respect to calling you?

A. Told them to call me if anything hap-
pened is about I all said.

Q. That is about all you said?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case
of fog?

A. No. sir.

Q. You didn't use the word fog?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case

the vessel swung with the tide?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you tell them to call you in case

the vessel swung over to the Oregon side?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Do you ordinarily, on anchoring ves-
sels, Captain, go to sleep while the vessel is

lying at anchor?

A. Yes.

Q. In a place where there is no more an-
chorage room than there is here?

A. Yes, sir.

Boston Maru's Position at Collision Controlling

There is no room for the suggestion that the

Boston as originally anchored or as she was lying

when the bearings were taken was placed where
the collision would not have occurred. Those
positions are stated and described only to show
how the Boston came to be where she was when
the collision occurred.

Her position at the instant of the collision, as

nearly as it can be ascertained, is all important,

and the case must be considered on that basis

alone. It is exactly as if the Boston were orig-

inally anchored and locked in that position. It

matters not how long the Boston was there. The
cases to be cited tend to condemn her position at

the instant of the collision and we do not know
of authorities to the contrary. We are fully con-

vinced that to uphold the position of the Boston

at the time of the collision would be to disregard

the plain word of Congress.
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Authorities on Anchorage

Section 15 of the Rivers and Harbors Appro-
priation Act of March 3, 1899, 30 Stat. 1152, 9

FSA 60 uses 9920, provides as follows:

"That it shall not be lawful to tie up or
anchor vessels or other craft in navigable
channels in such a manner as to prevent or
obstruct the passage of other vessels or
craft."

The Europe, CCA 9th, 190 Fed. 475.

This case emphasizes that the statute does not

impose an absolute or unreasonable prohibition

of the use of waterways for anchoring. This doc-

trine is correct within limitations. The limita-

tions are, as pointed out in other circuits, that

anchorage must be such as not to obstruct, hinder,

interrupt, embarrass, or deceive other navigators,

or make their passage difficult, cause them to

maneuver sharply, or interfere with the use of

proper channels or the range lights marking them
more than necessities require. These limitations

to the doctrine of The Europe cannot be over-

looked since they are implied in the wording of

the statute itself. The test is not whether the

moving vessel could get by. It is whether the

moving vessel is unduly impeded, obstructed,

deceived, or caused to maneuver sharply.

The cases which follow discuss the several

faults which we claim were committed by the

Boston.
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1. She lay across the intersection of the Gov-
ernment established ranges and in the ordinary
line of navigation from one range to the other.

2. Her amidships was 400 or more feet above
and 700 or more feet to the Oregon side of the

customary anchorage.

3. Her stern was so close to the Oregon
shore as not to admit of passageway for the

West Keats between her and that shore although

the channel designated by the establishment of

the ranges and by custom lay along this shore.

4. The river off Columbia City is divided by
establishment of the ranges and by custom of the

pilots in two parts, a channel up and down the

Oregon side and an anchorage on the Washing-
ton side below the town. The Boston disregarded

the anchorage and placed herself squarely across

the channel.

5. Her position at the time of the collision

was such as to deceive a pilot navigating down
river as to her location. The natural assumption
was that she was in the anchorage and not in the

channel. This assumption was made more rea-

sonable by the bend in the river at that point, by
the high Oregon bank tending to shade that por-

tion of the river, and by the darkness of the

night in question which permitted vision only of

lights and little or none of the shore lines and
water at the point.
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6. The Boston did nothing after she started

to swing with the tide to protect other shipping

by use of either her stern anchor, engines or

whistle.

The Caldij, 153 Fed. 837.

The Caldy was held improperly anchored
since she was lying directly across the channel.

Her stem was about 114 feet northward of mid-

channel and her stern not more than 100 feet

from the southern bank. It was argued that

other vessels had successfully passed her both

before and after the collision.

. . . for as she was anchored some distance
north of mid-channel, the wind from the

north holding her across the channel, she nat-

urally caused other vessels entitled to the

southern side to fear to attempt to pass to the

north because of the unknown length of her
anchor chain, and she rendered the southern
side at least hazardous, as was demonstrated
bif the three vessels that did succeed with dif-

ficult if in passing and by the one that made
the effort and failed.

The Hilton, 213 Fed. 997, 1000.

The Hilton's anchorage was held improper.

. . . There was certainly no necessity for her
so monopolizing the channel either because
of the lack of other location, a crowded har-

bor, or of existing weather or other condi-

tions. Moreover, she should, if necessary so

to anchor where she did, have used both her
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stern and bow anchors in order to keep the
vessel parallel to, or nearly with, instead of
across, the channel.

The Itasca, 117 Fed. 885.

The Bern, (2nd C. C. A.) 255 F. 325,

Anchorage in Violation of Custom or

Regulation

Many cases held that anchorage contrary to

local custom or regulation is in violation of the

statute. It matters not whether it is custom or

regulation which is departed from.

Culbertson vs. Shaw, 18 How. 584, 586.

This was a moorage case in which both cus-

tom and regulation were charged.

Whether a rule on this subject be estab-
lished by an ordinance or general usage is

immaterial; if the regulation has been so
made as to be generally known.

United States us. St. Louis Co., 184 U. S.

247.

Government war vessels anchored without

notifying the Harbor Master as required by New
Orleans ordinances and in an unusual place. The
collision occurred before the passage of the stat-

ute in question. Holding the anchorage improp-
er, the Supreme Court said:

It is negligence for a vessel to moor so
near the entrance to a harbor that shipping.
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entering in stress of weather, is liable to be-
come embarrassed by its presence; . . .

The Sanford-Sirathleuen, 203 Fed. 331, 213

Fed. 975.

Anchorage of the Strathleven was held im-

proper.

. . . The regulations of the Harbor Commis-
sioners in so many words forbid vessels to

anchor in the channel; this prohibition im-
pliedly extends to anchoring so as to obstruct
the channel. The court below finds that

neither authority nor usage has designated
any specific anchorage grounds, and the im-
plication from much that is said in the
learned and elaborate opinion is that the port
regulations referred to have been but indif-

ferently enforced or obeyed. Suffice it on
this point to say that vessels anchoring in

places forbidden by local law or custom
must take the consequences of their own im-
proper acts. The Clarita and the Clara, 23
Wall. 1, 23 L. Ed. 146; United States v. St.

Louis Transportation Co, 184 U. S. 255, 22
Sup. Ct. 350, 46 L. Ed. 520; Culbertson v.

The Southern Bell, 18 How. 586, 15 L. Ed.
493; The Annasona (D. C.) 166 Fed. 803.

Graves vs. Lake Michigan Ferry Co., 183

Fed. 378.

. . . The testimony is conflicting whether an-

chorage off Siierwood Point was or was not
customary or deemed safe or unsafe, within
or without the usual course of navigation;
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but the evidence is convincing, if not undis-
puted, that the other side of Sturgeon Bay af-

fords both abundant and better anchorage
ground for vessels; and the master of the
Mingo, who fixed the anchorage place, had
not visited Sturgeon Bay for ten years prior
to his present trip. We believe both masters
were mindful of a convenient place to be
taken in tow, and not of better anchorage
ground to leave clearance for navigation,
and that the testimony is sufficient to sup-
port the finding that the Wilson was at fault,

in the follwing particulars: Their anchor-
age in the fairway, for days and nights, if

not negligence per se, was an obstruction
without reasonable cause—and possible men-
ace in darkness or thick weather—to free
passage of vessels on a much frequented
course. While the testimony is conflicting
(as above mentioned) whether it was a rea-

sonable and customary for vessels to lie at

anchor off Sherwood Point, it is far from
satisfactory that it was either reasonable or
usual to thus anchor in the course, or that

navigators were chargeable with notice that

such anchorage was to be expected.

The Admiral Cecille, Compagnie Francaise

us. Burley, 134 Fed. 673, 676.

. . . Both locations are unnecessarily near to

the track of vessels entering and leaving the
waterway, and this is so because there is in

the harbor of Tacoma an abundance of room
for anchorage at a safe distance from the
track of vessels coming into and leaving the
wharves and docks; and the circumstances
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above narrated do not, in my opinion, afford
a reasonable excuse for the action of the tug-
boat manager in anchoring the bark within
the prohibited zone. He knowingly violated
a reasonable regulation prescribed by lawful
authority, and for the consequences of his
act while in the service of the bark as a
local pilot the bark is liable to respond in
damages.

Anchorage on or Near Range Wrongful

City of Birmingham, 138 Fed. 559.

We cannot resist the conclusion that if

the bow of the dredge as she lay on the bot-

tom of the river had been turned so that she
was parallel with the range line, her distance
from the line would then have approximated
closely to that distance prior to the collision

. . . . The district judge found that the
dredge was about 200 feet south of the cen-
ter line of the channel and we are satisfied

that this conclusion is substantially correct.

The overwhelming weight of testimony es-

tablishes the fact that she could not have
been nearer than 150 feet to the center line,

or farther than 225 feet from it, and we think
this finding sufficiently presents the remain-
ing question, namely, was the dredge at

fault in anchoring where she did?

(559)

The act of March 3, 1899, c. 425, 30 Stat.

1152, Par. 15 (U. S. Comp. St. 1901, p. 3543),
provides "that it shall be unlawful to tie up
or anchor vessels or other craft in navigable
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channels in such a manner as to prevent or
obstruct the passage of other vessels or
craft." It seems to us that a dredge anchored
at night 200 feet from the center of the chan-
nel of a narrow river, where a seven-foot
tide ebbs and flows and within half a mile
of a sharp bend, is within the mischief if not
within the strict letter of the statute. Such a
craft does not prevent navigation in the sense
of stopping it altogether, but by crowding all

navigation practically into the northern half
of the channel she obstructs the passage of
other vessels; that is, she hinders, impedes,
embarrasses and interrupts their progress.

. . . Placing the dredge within 200 feet of
the center line added a new and wholly un-
necessary complication to a problem already
sufficiently perplexing. The courts should
not encourage laxity and shiftlessness by re-

warding a master who places his craft in a
position of danger simply because it is too
much trouble to place her in a position of
safety. Where human life and property are
at stake, the consequences flowing from a

dereliction of duty are so momentous that

the courts should not permit considerations
based upon convenience alone to be used as
an excuse by one who failed to take every
reasonable precaution to insure safety. A
finding in favor of the dredge will place a
premium on carelessness.

The MUligan, 12 Fed. 338, 340.

While the sloop was not lying upon the

range of lights, she was dangerously near it.



66

—subjecting passing vessels to the exercise of
unusual care. The position was not forced
upon her; she might have anchored lower
down, (before reaching it, or by floating
back when the tide turned.) She would thus
have been out of the way, and out of danger.
Her anchorage so near the center of a nar-
row channel was inexcusable.

The Belfast, 226 Fed. 362.

I accordingly find that the Wayne, when
struck, was lying at anchor nearly in the cen-
ter of the channel, in the commonly used
part thereof, a short distance westerly in a
line about parallel with the South Boston
range from where she sank. She was swing-
ing almost squarehj across the channel, and
in connection with other barges anchored
near her, but farther north, so obstructed the
northerly half of the channel as to make nav-
igation through it impracticable.

The determination of the place where the

collision occurred dis])oses of the Wayne's
contention that she was free from fault. She
had taken no adecfuate care as to her place of
anchorage. She lay a considerable distance
outside the prescribed anchorage ground,
nearly in the center of a channel which has
been held by this court to be a narrow one
(see the Schoonei* Baxter, The Vera, and the

Melrose, 226 Fed. 369), where she had no
right to be.

The law applicable to the foregoing situa-

tion has been so fullv covered in other cases
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that extended discussion of it here is unnec-
essary. See The Vera and The Melrose, 226
Fed/369, Dodge, J., Sept. 14, 1912; The
Georgia (D. C.) 208 Fed. 635, 644, The City
of Birmingham, 138 Fed. 555, 71 C. C. A. 115;
The Strathleven, 213 Fed. 975, 130 C. C. A.
381; The Hilton (D. C.) 213 Fed. 997. The
Wayne was "obstructing" the passage of ves-

sels in the channel, as that word is defined in

The City of Birmingham, supra.

"An anchored vessel, that can be
clearly sighted and readily avoided by a
slight change of wheel, may not be an
obstruction, but when she can with dif-

ficulty be sighted, and when she requires
other vessels on their usual courses to

stop or to maneuver sharply, she may be
considered an obstruction." Brown, J.,

The Georgia, supra.

. . . While she was not directly on the South
Boston range, she was so near it as to inter-

fere with and imperil vessels following that

course in the ordinary way.

Lack of Precaution by Anchored Vessel

The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236.

The act of March 3, 1899, c. 425, 30 Stat.

1152, Par. 15 (U. S. Comp. St. 1901, p. 3543),
provides, "That it shall be unlawful to tie up
or anchor vessels or other craft in navigable
channels in such a manner as to prevent or
obstruct the passage of other vessels or
craft." The courts have frequently held that

the precautions taken by a vessel voluntarily
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anchoring in a dangerous position should be
commerisurate with the perils assumed. The
Clara, 102 U. S. 200, 26 L. Ed. 145; The Sap-
phire, 11 Wall. 170, 20 L. Ed. 127; The Worth-
ington (D. C.) 19 Fed. 836; Toss vs. Trans.
Co., 43 C. C. A. 538, 104 Fed. 3302; The Oge-
maw (D. C.) 32 Fed. 919, 926.

The Ogemaw, 32 Fed. 919, 926.

Anchorage of the Richards was held proper.

The Ogemaw was in collision with her on ac-

count of an attempt to cross her bows. The
Ogemaw was of course held at fault. The court,

however, held the Richards also at fault for fail-

ing to take seasonable steps to prevent the col-

lision.

The second mate knew there was danger
when the Ogemaw was abreast of the Rich-
ards, for he says he hailed the men on the
deck of the Ogemaw, and told them to keep
away, and that he hailed the barges in tow,
warning them to keep their wheels hard a-

port. No effort was made to run out more
anchor chain, thus allowing the vessel to

drop down the stream with the current. In

fact, nothing was done on the Richards to

avoid the collision, except to hail the pass-

ing vessels, and put the wheel of the Richards
to port when the collision was unavoidable.
More effective measures might have been
taken to avert the disaster which resulted.
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Summary of Contentions Respecting Boston

Maru

The above authorities we think condemn the

position of the Boston at the time of the collision

on several different grounds. In the first place

she was there through two accidents. Gildez

tried to put her opposite Columbia City Front

but got her more than 400 feet up stream. Also

he tried to put her 600 or 700 feet out and got

her about 900 feet out. We think the testimony

clearly condemns the practice of anchoring in

that part of the river by merely guessing the dis-

tance out from a light on the shore, except in

cases of fog. Gildez guessed twice and was
wrong both times. This alone would appear to

condemn the anchorage.

But at the time of the collision the amidships

of the Boston was at least 700 feet westerly and
over 400 feet southerly from an anchorage

ground established by testimony of all the pilots

as the customary anchorage. There was no sug-

gestion of lack of uniformity or general knowl-

edge of the practice of anchoring over to the

Washington shore on one or another of the yel-

low lines. That locality had been used for anchor-

age for a long time. Captain Allyn, one of re-

spondents own witnesses, said they had been

anchoring there ever since he had been in the

pilot business. Captain Gildez pretended that

he did not know^ of this custom but admitted he
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had always passed vessels anchored there on the

Oregon side of them. If he did not know of the

custom, in view of the testimony concerning it,

his ignorance was inexcusable.

Let us pause to comment on the effect of

placing the Boston over 400 feet above Columbia
City Front. The court will remember that no
pilot testified he had ever seen or heard of a

vessel anchored above this light other than the

Boston Maru. The majority of the pilots testify-

ing said that they anchored opposite the light

although two or three of them said they went
below it, especially with large vessels. All of the

testimony on custom tended to place the anchor-

age opposite or below the light. Gildez tried to

anchor opposite it but blundered in turning

three-quarters of the way around a circle and
got 400 feet above it.

Now suppose Gildez had guessed right and

had got opposite the light but no further out

from the general contour of the Oregon shore.

By using dividers on both the large and small

charts the Court can determine about how far

his stern would have been from the six fathom

line. Leaving about twice as much slack in the

chain as Hickson has left, the distance of the

Boston's stern from the six fathom line would

have been more than 200 feet instead of about

50 feet as appears to have been the actual situa-

tion. The conclusion under the testimonv is ir-
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resistible that if Gildez had anchored opposite the

light and no further out than he did from the

light from which he estimated the distance, the

Keats would have passed by safely.

Again, the Boston at the time of the collision

was squarely across the main ship channel at the

intersection of two ranges. A more dangerous
and deceptive position could hardly have been

selected. If the Boston had been across a range

extending up river Berry could have appraised

her location at a considerable distance and gov-

erned himself accordingly. But she was partly

around a turn from the St. Helens Bar Range and
Berry could not head toward her until after leav-

ing that range. The high Oregon bank made
accurate vision more difficult. All these things

Gildez knew or should have known. A pilot who
disregards a customary and comfortable anchor-

age to place his vessel across a channel marked
by ranges is doubly negligent when he selects a

point midway between ranges where a high bank
and a turn both tend to obscure her position

from craft lawfully using the ranges.

We can think of no possible excuse short of

illness for a pilot lying in bed asleep when his

vessel is lying across the regular channel at night.

There are perhaps circumstances under which

Gildez might have lawfully placed his anchor

where he did—under which indeed he might con-

ceivably have placed and locked the Boston ex-
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actly where she was at the time of the collision.

But can we imagine excusing a pilot's being
asleep with his vessel in that precarious position?

The stern of the Boston was close to the Ore-
gon shore. Testimony as to the anchorage
coupled with the testimony as to the starboard
helm of the Keats and the suction establishes this

beyond question. Yet the routine manner of
passing vessels at anchor off Columbia City is

between them and the Oregon shore. This alone

we think establishes the fault of the Boston in

view of the wide space for anchorage at the

point.

When the Boston started to swing across the

intersection of the ranges it would have been
comparatively simple to have thrown out a stern

anchor or to have brought her main engines in

commission to keep her out of a dangerous local-

ity. She had thirty-four minutes from the time

the current started to back up stream in which to

do something, yet nothing was done. The fault

here was that of second mate Chiga or Captain

Gildez or both. While Gildez is indefinite as to

instructions to Chiga it would appear that he left

instructions to call him if anything happened,

leaving him to judge what "anything" meant.

During the last seven minutes before the col-

lision it should have been known on board the

Boston that the West Keats was approaching and

it should have been assumed that she was follow-
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ing the usual channel. The precarious and dan-

gerous position into which the Boston was drift-

ing should also have been known. It would have
been easy to warn the West Keats by whistles,

bells or whatnot and a warning given soon
enough would have avoided the collision. Yet

nothing was done either to keep the Boston from
drifting into her dangerous position or to get her

out of it or to give warning.

If Gildez had deliberately placed and locked

the Boston in the position she held at the time of

the collision his misconduct would have been so

gross as to call for severe penalties. Since our
libel does not ask anything in the way of punitive

damages this case must be considered exactly as

if he had done so. What more need be said to

condemn the anchorage. We feel that the fault

of the Boston is established far beyond a reason-

able doubt. To uphold the anchorage is to scuttle

the statute.

Burden of Proof on Boston Maru

Assuming wrongful anchorage on the part of

the Boston it is clear under the authorities that

the burden of proof is upon her to show that any
fault of the Keats contributed to the accident.

There is a rule finding much support and some
dissent in the authorities that where a collision

occurs between a vessel at anchor and another in

motion the presumption of negligence is upon
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the moving vessel, 11 C. J. 1170-80. For a variety

of reasons, however, where the anchored vessel

is improperly anchored she must in order to

divide damages show by a preponderance of

testimony that the moving vessel was at fault.

The Clara, 102 U. S. 200, 202.

The Newell was at anchor and the Clara ran

into her. The court held the Newell solely at

fault and exonerated the Clara.

Looking at the case in the light of the

findings of fact, no fault whatsoever, of
omission or commission, is imputable to the

"Clara." It is true it was her duty, under
the circumstances, to enter the breakwater
and proceed to her anchorage with the great-

est care and circumspection. Culbertson v.

Shaw, 18 How. 584.

Whether there was any failure on her
part to complij with this requirement is not
shown. But the maxim applies Quod non
apparet non est. The fact not appearing is

presumed not to exist. The libellants brought
the case into court and thus assumed the af-

firmative. The burden or proof rested pri-

marily upon them. If in this or in any other
respect there was delinquency on the part

of the respondents, it was for the libellants

to prove it. As the case is presented to us in

the record, the "Clara" must be held entirely

blameless.
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The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236.

The Burney was anchored in the middle of

an 800 foot channel and was run into by the

Starin. The court held the Gurney solely at fault.

For these reasons we conclude that the
Gurney was at fault and that the fault was
the proximate cause of the collision.

Having thus found sufficient cause for
the collision it is not necessary to pursue the
discussion further. The Gurney's negligence
having been clearly proved it is necessary for
her to establish the Starin's fault by proof of
equal cogancv. The City of New York, 147
U. S. 72, 85, 13 Sup. Ct. 211, 37 L. Ed. 84.

The Prudence, 212 Fed. 537, 540.

The court held the Hodges solely at fault for

improper anchorage (540).

. . . From all the evidence I cannot see how
the Hodges could have been anchored for the

night in a place where she was more likely to

obstruct the navigation of the river by tugs
towing other craft. If she had gone below
the ranges, she would have been in an en-

tirely safe position because the vessels upon
leaving the ranges steered to starboard, and
she would thus have been entirely out of the
way of navigation.

. . . The fault of the libelant in anchoring in

that position overcomes the presumption in

favor of an anchored vessel when struck by
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a vessel in motion. The schooner was an-
chored in an improper place, and her owner
must take the consequences which fairly re-

sult from his own act.

The Miner, 260 Fed. 901, C. C. A. 6th.

The Halcyon had been moored at a dock for

more than a year at the same place where she

was when the collision occurred. The master of

the moving tug had been many times up and
down the river and must have known her exact

location. The court held the moorage improper

and also held that the tug was at fault.

. . . The vessel at anchor being in a proper
place in case of collision, the presumption
of fault lies against the vessel in motion; but
this presumption does not obtain when the

anchored vessel was where she should not
have been. The prima facie fault of the an-

chored vessel may be overcome by competent
proof that its anchorage could not have been
the sole cause of the collision. In such cir-

cumstance the burden is with the anchored
vessel to meet and overturn the presumption
by proof of actual fault or want of reason-

able care on the part of the moving vessel.

The Europe (D. C.) 175 Fed. 596, and cases

cited.

We think the court below was warranted
in decreeing that the houseboat Halcyon was
moored at a dangerous place, and affirmance
must follow as to the non-liability of the tug

J. L. Miner, unless it clearly appears from a
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decided weight of the evidence that the tug
was also at fault. We have carefully consid-
ered the evidence and exhibits thereto, and
we cannot escape the conclusion that it does
so clearly appear.

The Europe, 175 Fed. 596, 190 Fed. 475.

We believe that the rule now contended for is

already adopted in this Circuit. The opinion of

Judge Wolverton affirmed by the Circuit Court

of Appeals is a fine illustration of the care and
depth of the late jurist. We quote (175 Fed. 607)

:

. . . The rule is, as it respects a vessel at an-
chor in the fairway, that she must take pre-

cautions commensurate with the danger she
presents to shipping. If the danger is great,

the care to prevent collision and accident
from other ships navigating the water should
be correspondingly great. If of lesser mo-
ment, the precaution mav be diminished ac-

cordinglv. The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236,

58 C. C. A. 600.

It is a rule that a moving vessel must keep
out of the w^ay of one at anchor. This be-

cause the one at anchor is practically help-

less, and is usually so conditioned as to be
unable to relieve herself readily in stress of
emergency. The rule is applied with great
strictness, the vessel at anchor being in a
proper place. In such case the presumption
of fault lies against the vessel in motion.
This presumption, however, does not obtain
where the anchored vessel was where she
should not have been. A vessel anchored
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where she should not be must take the con-
sequences of her own improper act. But in

any event, whether she be in a proper place
or not, or whether properly or improperly
anchored, the moving vessel must avoid her,

if it be reasonably practicable and consistent
with her own safety. In support of these
several propositions see 1 Parsons on Ship-
ping, 573, 574; The Clarita and The Clara,
23 Wall. 1, 23 L. Ed. 146; The Virginia Mil-

ler, 76 Fed. 877, 22 C. C. A. 597; Ross v.

Merchants' & Miners' Transp. Co., 104 Fed.
302, 43 C. C. A. 538.

The Belfast, 226 Fed. 366.

The Wayne was improperly anchored and the

Belfast was outbound on the left side of the chan-

nel.

. . . Article 24 of the Inland Navigation
Rules is a rule of the road and defines the

respective rights of moving vessels in narrow
channels. As against a vessel entering
through this channel, the Belfact was bound
to keep her starboard side of it. Her rights

on the other side of the channel were inferior

to those of the entering vessel. But as against

a vessel not proeeeding, but wrongfullg lying

at anehor there, the Belfast's right as a trav-

eling vessel was superior in am/ part of the
channel. The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236,

58 C. C. A. 600.

Graves vs. Lake Michigan Co., 183 Fed. 378,

C. C. A. 7th.
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The court held the Wilson improperly anch-

ored and the vessel improperly navigated.

In admiralty the rule is settled: That the
moving vessel must keep away from a ves-

sel properly anchored and lighted, and col-

lision in such cases raises a presumption
of fault against the vessel in motion, placing
upon her the burden of exonerating herself
from blame for the collision. The Virginia
Ehrman and the Agnese, 97 U. S. 309, 315,

24 L. Ed. 890; The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186, 192,

15 Sup. Ct. 804, 39 L. Ed. 943, and cases cited.

The authorities are numerous, however, that

the general law of the sea becomes applica-
ble to such collisions, when the anchored ves-

sel is improperly moored in the fairway or
otherwise appears at fault. (Ross v. Merch.
& Miners' Transp. Co., 104 Fed. 302, 303, 43
C. C. A. 538; Citv of Birmingham, 138 Fed.
555, 559, 71 C. C. A. 115; The Scioto, Fed. Gas.
No. 12,508, 2 Ware. 360, and notes); and we
believe it to be unquestionable that evidence
of negligence on the part of the anchored
vessel, either as sole or contributory cause of
the collision, establishes a case within the
general rules of admiralty as to liability for
damages.

The Sanford-Strathleven, 203 Fed. 331, 334,

213 Fed. 975.

The court held the Strathleven's anchorage
was improper and the Sanford was improperly

navigated. The District Court had held the

Strathleven solely at fault. We quote from the
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District Court's statement of the law, bearing in

mind that he was reversed on the facts. The
higher court did not discuss the question of bur-

den of proof.

For a collision thus brought about, she is

not entitled to, and cannot claim, the privil-

eges of an anchored vessel, as between her-
self and other shipping lawfully using the
harbor, which had no reason to anticipate
danger arising from the unusual and im-
proper character of her movements. Cul-
bertson v. The Southern Belle, 18 How. 584,

587, 15 L. Ed. 493; The Clara, 102 U. S. 200,

202, 26 L. Ed. 145; United States v. Transpor-
tation Co., 184 U. S. 247, 255, 22 Sup. Ct. 350,
56 L. Ed. 520; Marsden on Marine Collisions
(6th Ed.) 479, and cases cited; Spencer on
Marine Collisions, Pars. 99, 106; Hughes on
Admiralty, 261, 262.

The obstruction of the channel, in the
view taken by the court of this case, was in

plain contravention as well of the state stat-

utes and harbor rules and regulations ap-
plicable to the waters in question, as the fed-

eral statute on the subject.

We think the evidence irresistibly condemns
the anchorage of the Boston at the time of the

collision as improper. Assuming we are only

partly correct and a preponderance of the evi-

dence shows the Boston at fault then we contend

and believe the above authorities fully demon-
strate that the burden of proof falls upon the



81

Boston to show by a clear preponderance of testi-

mony that the Keats was also at fault. If she has
done so we think the damage should be divided.

If she has not done so we think the entire cost

should be borne by the Boston.

There are several reasons why this burden is

upon the Boston if her anchorage was improper.

1. The owners of the Boston are libelants

and to get affirmative relief and damages they

must prove negligence on the part of the West
Keats. This is fundamental. The owners of the

West Keats are also libelants and it is conceded
that they must show fault on the part of the

Boston to recover. The rule works both ways.

2. The rule that there is a presumption of

negligence against a moving vessel in favor of an
anchored vessel applies only when the latter is

properly anchored.

3. The Boston at the time of the collision

was violating a statute of the United States de-

signed to prevent collisions, namely, the Act of

March 3, 1899, making it unlawful to tie up or

anchor vessels in navigable channels in such a

manner as to prevent or obstruct the passage of

other vessels or craft.
'

4. The fault of the Boston commenced at an
earlier time than that charged against the Keats

and continued to the time of the collision. The
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Nereus, 23 Fed. 448. The Nereus and Jamaica
were in collision through misunderstanding of

signals. As they were headed toward the col-

lision the Nereus gave another signal for the

Jamaica to go astern and claimed that because

the Jamaica did not obey, the entire fault was
hers. The court said that it was not sufficiently

shown that the Jamaica could thus have avoided

the collision and that the faults of both vessels

were proximate. Judge Brown said:

In applying the above rule in particular

cases, whenever it is sought to relieve a ves-

sel from the consequences of a previous fault

tending to produce a collision, the burden of
proof is certainly upon her. She must sat-

isfy the court beyond any reasonable doubt,
not merely that the collision, notwithstanding
the previous fault, might possibly have been
avoided by the other vessel, but that the mode
of avoiding it suggested was timely, and
would have been adopted, under the partic-

ular circumstances, by a pilot of ordinary
skill and judgment.

5. The fault of the Boston Maru is sufficient

in itself to account for the collision and therefore

since the Boston charges that fault on the part of

the West Keats was a proximate cause the burden

is on the Boston to prove the charge.

The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186, 197.

The Oregon through negligence of its officers

was in collision with a vessel properly anchored.
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Charges were made respecting the lights of the

anchored vessel. The court said that the negli-

gence of the Oregon was proved by a prepond-
erance of testimony and was sufficient to ac-

count for the collision, consequently the burden
was on her to show^ that the anchored vessel was
at fault. In the cases cited above the same rule

was applied in favor of moving vessels against

vessels shown by a preponderance of testimony

to have been improperly anchored. This rule is

most clearly stated in The John H. Starin, The
Clara and by Judge Wolverton in The Europe,
all supra.

The West Keats

There is no dispute in the record as to what
Captain Berry, pilot of the West Keats, did. The
dispute as to the conduct of the West Keats takes

the form of speculations and arguments as to

what Berry might have done that he did not do.

Berry's testimony and the depositions of Second
Officer Gillette, Captain Swenson, Chief Engineer
Bergreth, Second Assistant Jett, and Quarter-

master Gidlof are undisputed in the record and
are substantially harmonious.

Captain Berry was 48 years old at the time of

the trial. Thirty of these years he had spent

working on the Columbia River as deck hand,

mate, master and pilot. Eighteen years before

fhe collision he had received his unlimited

Columbia River Pilot's license from the Govern-



84

ment. He became a member of the Pilots' Asso-

ciation in 1921 and received his state branch
license in 1922 (A 27, 28).

The Keats is a single screw steel steamship of

410.5 feet length, 54.2 feet beam and 8,800 dead
weight tons. Berry went aboard her at Terminal
4 of the Port of Portland at St. Johns in the even-

ing of October 25th. At about 11:10 P. M., fully

loaded and drawing 23 feet eight inches forward
and 25 feet 8 inches aft (A 393), he took her out

of the terminal and headed her down river. On
entering the Columbia River her engines were set

at full speed ahead where they remained until

one minute before the collision. Approaching
Columbia City she passed Warrior Rock, made
the turn at the head of the St. Helens jetty, got

on the St. Helens Bar Range, and came down the

narrow dredged channel alongside the jetty.

The uncontradicted testimony of several wit-

nesses will advise the court of some very pertin-

ent facts concerning the handling of the Keats

and other vessels of her class.

The Keats steers best at full speed ahead. The
faster turning of the propeller sends a stronger

flow of water backward past the rudder. Mov-
ing ahead with her engines stopped she is not

readily dirigible.

The Keats backs to port. When lier engines

are backing her stern is thrown to tlie port and



85

her bow to starboard regardless of what position

her rudder may be in.

The Keats when turning on a port or star-

board helm tends to sag, that is, she turns slowly

at first and the longer the helm is held in posi-

tion the sharper becomes her angle of curve.

In order to stop the West Keats it would be

usual to take nearly two miles and nearly half

an hour to the maneuver. It could be done more
quickly, especially in a w ide basin, but the quick-

er method would not be resorted to except in

necessity.

With her engines stopped, if the vessel was
moving full ahead, it would take her a long time

to come to a halt and she would travel three or

four miles in the process if kept straight ahead.

But she would be more or less unmanagable.

Accustomed as we landsmen are to four wheel

brakes it is hard for us to realize the utterly dif-

ferent problems which confront a pilot operating

thousands of tons of ship and cargo through the

water with only a small propeller and a small

rudder for power and steerage.

Doubts as to the speed of the Keats were set

at rest by Gillette (A 409-410) who measured the

nautical miles from the mouth of the Willamette

to the point of collision and applied the same to
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the time, showing an average speed of 8.84 nau-

tical miles per hour. We may perhaps assume
that her speed was greater at first when she had
the aid of the current and gradually slackened

as the rising tide first caused a slackening and
stoppage of the current and later a slight up
stream current. The one minute stoppage of the

engines would affect her average speed for the

total distance negligibly.

The night was very dark but not foggy. The
sky was overcast with occasional light rains.

Lights were clearly visible but the shore lines

were practically invisible (A 95, 352). Shortly

before and about the time of the collision Berry

could see the dark line of the high bank on the

Oregon shore but in a vague w^ay. He says (A

114):

Q. Could you see the loom of the bank
on the Oregon side about the time of the

collision, about the time you were approach-
ing the Boston Maru?

A. No, sir, you couldn't make out the

shore to speak of at all. It was a dark bank
along there, which looked very close, but you
couldn't discern any trees or anvthing like

that.

Q. You say you could see the bank?

A. Well, you could see a dark line along
there.
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Perhaps because of the shadow of the high

Oregon bank testified to by several pilots Berry
could see little or nothing of the water ahead of

him as he tried to run between the Boston and
the Oregon shore. He knew the shore was close

and felt the effect of the suction but gauging
the distance between the Columbia City Front
Light, 200 feet back from the shore line, and the

stern riding light of the Boston he thought until

immediately before the collision that the distance

was great enough (A 352).

As he continued down the St. Helens jetty.

Berry saw ahead of him the group of lights con-

stituting range, town and shore lights and the

two riding lights of the Boston Maru. As he
came to about the end of the jetty at the point

marked with a cross he made the lights of the

Boston, that is, recognized them to be the riding

lights of a ship at anchor more or less across the

river. He assumed her to be located at the reg-

ular anchorage.

He ran out the St. Helens Bar Range to a

point about half a mile from the point of col-

lision. This point is marked with a red cross.

Here he turned to follow the usual channel down
the Oregon shore in order to pick up the Colum-
bia City Range below. He gave the order port

a bit which was obeyed (A 107). The vessel

answered and presently he gave the order steady

(A 107).
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He had now made the slight turn and was on
a new course. It is a question whether at this

distance from the Oregon shore he could see the

same but he knew its general direction and was
heading now not toward the shore but down the

river. He could now see that the Boston was
closer to the Oregon shore than he had assumed.

He says speaking of the point at which he turned

from the St. Helens Bar Range (A 108):

Q. When you arrived at the turning
point, Captain, the place you marked as turn-

ing point, state what was your then opinion
as to passing the Boston Maru to the Oregon
side, as you had intended?

A. As I made my turn down the Oregon
shore, I expected to pass the Boston Maru on
the Oregon side, but in maybe getting a little

further down I could see that she was per-

haps pretty close to the Oregon shore.

Q. Was that at the time of making your
turn by the St. Helens range, or afterwards?

A. After. I had made my turn expecting
everything was all right.

But he did not realize how close the Boston

was. Having left the range and proceeded down
river for a distance he realized that he would

have to go closer to the shore to pass the Boston

and gave the order starboard a bit. The order

was obeyed (A 108-109).
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Now the steering gear of the Keats had been

tested and found in order that same afternoon

by the chief engineer, the first assistant and the

chief officer (A 358, 364-365). Berry, Gillette

and the quartermaster all testified that the

vessel had answered her various helms prop-

erly coming down the river. But it is the

undisputed testimony of Berry and Gillette that

she did not answer this last helm (A 109, 421).

The reason was apparent at once to Berry. She
was so close to the bank that the suction pre-

vented her answering (A 109). The Court will

be advised by the undisputed testimony of sev-

eral experts that a vessel traveling along a bank
with shallow water on one side tends to "smell

the bank," that is, her bow tends to turn away
from the bank or her stern toward it. Under
this starboard a bit helm the rudder tended to

turn the vessel toward the Oregon bank but the

suction tended to turn her head away from it

and she kept going straight. Berry then ordered

hard a-starboard, which order was obeyed (A

109). The vessel did not answer. The helm re-

mained hard over to starboard until after the

collision.

In reading Gillette's deposition parallel with

Berry's testimony the court will find these orders

and the bells to follow fully corroborated. Gil-

lette took the times of the bells. The times were

all short and are to be gauged by minutes and
half minutes. For the convenience of the Court
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we insert here a schedule of times and distances

at the average speed:

8.84 nautical miles per hour
2.21 nautical miles 15 minutes
.736 nautical miles 5 minutes
.147 nautical miles 1 minute
3000 feet 3 minutes 42 seconds

2000 feet 2 minutes 14 seconds

1000 feet 1 minute 7 seconds

14.9 feet 1 second

8.84 nautical miles equals 10.17 land miles.

In the above data a nautical mile is figured

at 6080 feet.

Very shortly after the hard a-starboard order

Berry ordered the engines stopped and the order

was obeyed. Gillette took the time which was
1 :43 A. M. October 26th. The collision occurred

at 1:44 A. M. At 1:45 A. M. after moving far

enough along to be clear of the Boston, Berry

ordered full astern. He made an unusually short

stop and turn in the wide river at that point,

having signalled Dalby on the Siersted to pass

to port, proceeded up and stood by as required

by law.

These are the facts about the conduct of the

Keats. They are undisputed in the record. The
rest of that part of the record touching the Keats

relates to speculations and arguments as to what

Berrv should or should not have done. We con-
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tend that there is no direct evidence in the record

tending to show that any specific thing Berry did

was negligent, and that the preponderance of
testimony was that there is nothing he could
reasonably have been expected to do that he did

not do to avoid the collision.

Berry brought the West Keats down the usual

navigating channel. He made the lights of the

Boston when a little more than a mile distant.

There was no evidence that he should have made
them earlier. At the time he assumed that she

was in the customary anchorage. There was no
evidence tending to cast doubt on the reasonable-

ness of this assumption.

The court will note the narrow angle sub-

tended by a line from the amidships of the

Boston to the regular anchorage and will also

remember that the Boston was not straight ahead
of Berry but partly around the bend.

There was no evidence tending to show that

slowing, stopping or backing the engines of the

West Keats would at any time have been prac-

tical, helpful or even safe.

The only question is whether Captain Berry
should have turned out and passed on the Wash-
ington side of the Boston at the time he learned,

or at the time he should have learned, that the

Boston was too close to the Oregon shore for
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safe passage. We invite particular attention to

the cross examination by the trial court of Cap-

tain Sandstrom on this question. (A 163-167).

The captain took a point on the chart 2150 feet

from the place of collision. At that point he said

Berry could tell something about the location of

the Boston but would probably conclude that

there was room enough for safe passage. He
added, however, that a turn at that point to pass

on the Washington side would be maneuvering
sharply and dangerously.

We think that in this questioning of Sand-

strom the trial court reached the heart of the

case as far as the conduct of Berry was con-

cerned. There was some little difference of

opinion among the pilots but in the main they

were substantially of the same view as Sand-

strom. Grunstad spoke of the "shadow" cast

by the Oregon shore (evidently meaning an area

of deeper blackness and other pilots used the

same word in the same connection) and the de-

ceptive location of the anchored vessel. He
thought that Berry might be able to tell at 2000

feet or closer if the night was darker (A 180-181)

but that a turn at that distance would be abrupt

and rather dangerous for a heavily loaded vessel.

(A 181-182). Captain Sullivan refused to esti-

mate the distance at which Berry might have

known the location of the Boston (A 206-207). He
said the only way of judging would be to estimate

the space between the stern light of the Boston
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and the front light of the Columbia City Range
(A 208). He admitted (A 209) that a pilot might

possibly come down within 1000 feet of the

Boston and still reasonably think she was far

enough out to be in a safe position. Sullivan

was extremely indefinite on the matter of the

turn. He first said this could be made at a 1000

feet but had in mind a situation in which the

Keats was running directly at the amidships of

the Boston (A 235-236). There being no evidence

tending to show that this was the case he was
asked to assume a situation in which the Keats

was headed for the stern of the Boston. He said

this turn could be made at a 1000 feet but that

a pilot would not attempt it except under very

extreme circumstances (A 242). Asked what
order he would give to effect a turn of this kind

he substantially refused to testify (A 243-244).

McNelly was asked whether a turn of this kind

could be made at 1500 feet but failed to answer
yes or no. He said, however, that he thought the

turn could be made at 2150 feet (A 293). Gildez

said that in his opinion the turn could be made
at 1200 feet, but admitted that it might result in

a head on collision (A 315).

We think it a fair conclusion that the turn

would have been impossible at a 1000 feet, sub-

stantially impossible or extremely dangerous at

1500 feet and sharp, unusual and dangerous at

2000 feet, or 2150 feet.
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There is substantially no testimony in the

record tending to show that Berry should have

reasonably known at a distance of 2000 feet from
the Boston that the passage between the stern of

that vessel and the Oregon shore w^as dangerous.

It is the substance of the testimony of the pilots

that a turn at that distance to the Washington
sfde w^ould have been dangerous. Under these

circumstances we think that Berry's conduct un-

der a preponderance of the testimony is not

shown to have been negligent. Indeed w^e be-

lieve that the preponderance is clearly the other

way. As Berry approached nearer and nearer to

the Boston the proximity of that vessel to the

bank must have been more reasonably apparent

to him but at the same time the difficulty of

turning became greater. We think the record

show^s that a turn at any point after leaving the

St. Helens Bar Range would have been fully as

dangerous if not more so than the reasonable

appearance of the passage between the Oregon

shore and the Boston Maru.

For these reasons we believe that a prepond-

erance of testimony upholds Berry's conduct and

feel very sure that a preponderance does not

condemn it. But it was contended before the

trial court that Berry should have been on the

other side of the river. This calls into question

the
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Narrow Channel Rule

It will be charged that the West Keats was
proceeding in violation of Article 25 of the Inland

Rules of Navigation as follows:

Art. 25. In narrow channels every steam
vessel shall, when it is safe and practicable,

keep to that side of the fairway or mid-chan-
nel which lies on the starboard side of such
vessel.

It will be said that the entire navigable por-

tion of the river at this point was a narrow chan-

nel and it was the duty of the Keats to proceed

on the right hand side.

The court will note the course the Keats

would have taken if Berry had so navigated.

On arriving about one mile from the point of

collision Berry would have turned off the range

to the right with the Washington shore about

two-thirds of a mile away. He would have been

without guiding lights except in so far as he

might have sensed the appearance of the Colum-
bia City group. At the point of crossing the Red
Range he might have known his approximate

position by looking back, but this would be only

for an instant. Continuing down he would have

cut through the usual anchorage ground and
headed off into a black river below without guid-

ing lights except possibly a couple of jetty lights

a long distance away which he might or might

not have been able to see. Arriving perhaps a
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mile below the Columbia City range lights he

would cross that range or perhaps be on it for a

short distance to its end. There is not a scratch

of evidence that any pilot ever navigated thus

since establishment of the ranges. Such naviga-

tion would employ the St. Helens Bar Range only

partly and the Columbia City Range little or

none.

Respondent is contending for a construction

of Article 25 which would make unlawful the

use of the ranges established by governmental

authority as aids to navigation. Surely it cannot

be the intention of Congress that pilots should

be prohibited, under pain of liability of their

ships for damage from making use of aids estab-

lished under congressional authority. It is clear

that Article 25 must be construed to make lawful

the use of range lights.

Article 25, because of the words "when safe

and practicable" is always construed as flexible

and is to be followed only "when safe and prac-

ticable."

The Klatawaw, (D. C. Wn.) 266 F 120.

The G. S. Tice, (2nd C. C. A.) 287 F 127.

The Three Brothers, (2nd C. C. A.) 170 F
48.

In fact, a local custom to pass to the left at a

certain point due to peculiar conditions, has been

upheld as lawful.
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Transfer No. 21, (C. C. A. 2nd) 248 F 459.

But we contend tliat the Columbia River at

this point is divided by governmental regulation

(establishment of ranges) and custom into a

ship channel on the Oregon side and an anchor-

age on the Washington side.

The Bee, 138 Fed. 303, 305.

The Circuit Court of Appeals of the second
circuit affirmed the decision of the lower court

reported at 127 Fed. 453, but corrected certain

language of the lower court tending to hold that

the entire upper New York Bay is a narrow
channel within the meaning of Article 25. We
are not familiar with upper New York Bay, but

understand it consists of at least two channels,

namely, the Main Ship Channel, and the Bay
Ridge Channel. We understand further that be-

tween these channels are anchorage grounds and
that the entire harbor is lined with docks,

wharves and the like.

The court said (306)

:

Inextricable confusion would result if,

under rule 25, an incoming vessel in the main
ship channel were to be justified in keeping
close to its red buoys, and at the same time
were to be held in fault because she did not
keep hundreds of feet further east on the
starboard side of the middle line of the en-

tire body of water. It is sufficient on this

appeal to hold that in the case of a bay,
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which is also a port or harbor, the entire
body of navigable water is not to be consid-
ered a single narrow channel within rule 25,

where through such bay there have been of-

ficially designated a plurality of channels
(i. e., more than one channel) running sub-
stantially parallel with each other and in the
same general direction as the main flow of
the tide or current.

The La Bretagne, 179 Fed. 286.

The La Bretagne amplifies the decision in the

Bee case. These two cases mean that in upper
New York harbor where there are two channels

more or less parallel and the whole harbor is as

narrow as some waters which are construed to

be narrow channels, each channel by itself is a

narrow channel within the meaning of Article

25, and the whole harbor together is not such a

narrow channel. In our case we have off

Columbia City an expanse of deep water, wide
for the Columbia Biver but as narrow as somt
waters which are construed to be narrow chan-

nels. This expanse of deep river has two dis-

tinct parts. The westward side marks the waters

between the two ranges and has been designated

by the establishment of these ranges as the ship

channel for use especially at night. The eastward

side of the river has been designated by usage

and custom of the pilots as an anchorage

ground. It stands to reason that a vessel going

down the river, in order to comply with the nar-

row channel rule at this point, is not required by
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Article 25 to leave the designated ship channel
and invade the customary anchorage ground.

George F, Randolph, 200 Fed. 96.

The narrow channel rule undoubtedly ap-
plies to the main ship channel between Gov-
ernor's Island on the east and Bedloe's and
Ellis Islands, on the west. The La Bretagne,
179 Fed. 286, 102. C. C. A. 651. The Ran-
dolph claims, however, that the channel is

the entire navigable channel, and not the
space between the anchorage grounds, and
upon that theory that the Randolph was
about the middle of the channel, and, there-
fore, was not violating the narrow channel
rule.

I cannot concur with this claim, especially
as applicable to navigation in a fog. Rules
and regulations have been officially promul-
gated for New York Harbor, and certain
anchorage grounds and channels have been
laid out and charted. It is a contradiction in

terms to hold that vessels may rely upon
those rules, and anchor in a place of pre-
sumed safety, and yet, because the anchor-
age grounds is a part of the channel, be sub-
ject, in a fog, to collision and damage. While
this precise question seems not to have been
decided in any reported case, this view is

impliedlv sustained in The Mahonov, (D. C.)

126 Fed.^587, and I find nothing in the C. W.
Morse, 171 Fed. 847, 88 C. C. A. 665, to the
contrary.
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It seems clear under these decisions that the

narrow channel opposite Columbia City within
the meaning of Article 25, includes only that part

of the river designated by the range lights as the

ship channel and does not include the entire

river or the anchorage grounds.

We take it that this court will not condemn
the West Keats in damages for using the range
lights at night.

But there is another reason why, as we con-

tend, Article 25 has nothing to do with this case.

There was nothing coming up the river in sight

and a wide and deep river below. Berry had
only the Boston to look out for. He could law-

fully pass by on either side consistent with reg-

ular usage and the circumstances. Article 25 is

a passing rule and does not relate directly to

anchored vessels, A moving vessel must keep out

of the way of a vessel properly anchored, but

has superior rights in any part of the channel

to a vessel anchored so as to prevent or obstruct

the passage of other vessels.

The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236, 239.

We have already cited this case. The Starin

was in collision with the Gurney which was im-

properly anchored. One of the faults attributed

to the Starin was failure to keep on the right

hand side of the channel. The court said:
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There being no pretense that this is a case
of meeting vessels, we do not think negli-

gence can be predicated of the fact that the
Starin was navigating in the center of the
channel.

The Belfast, 226 Fed. 362, 366.

We have also cited The Belfast. The Wayne
was improperly anchored and the Belfast was on
the left hand side of the channel. The court said

(366)

:

Article 25 of the Inland Navigation Rules
is a rule of the road and defines the respect-
ive rights of moving vessels in narrow chan-
nels. As against a vessel entering through
this channel, the Belfast was bound to keep
her starboard side of it. Her rights on the
other side of the channel were inferior to

those of the entering vessel. But as against
a vessel not proceeding, but wrongfully lying
at anchor there, the Belfast's right as a travel-

ing vessel was superior in any part of the
channel. The John H. Starin, "^122 Fed. 236,

239, 58 C. C. A. 600.

Proximate Cause and Last Clear Chance

Assuming that the position of the Boston at

the time of the collision is to be condemned, was
it a proximate cause of the collision? It must
be shown that the fault of the Boston proximae-

ly caused or contributed to the accident and that

the effect of her fault was not broken by some
intervening cause in which she was not con-
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cerned; that the collision would not have oc-

curred but for (at least in part) her fault.

Under the facts it is perfectly plain that if

she had been almost any place else in the river

the collision would not have occurred.

We have cited many cases in which vessels

at anchor were run into by moving vessels. In

nearly all of these cases the anchored vessel was
held at fault for improper anchorage. In some
of them the moving vessel was also held at fault

and the damages were divided. In none of them,

however, is it suggested that the fault of improp-

er anchorage is not proximate. All of these cases

are authorities for the proposition that faults of

the Boston both in anchoring badly and in failing

to take proper precaution thereafter were prox-

imate.

Furthermore the Boston had swung around
about 180 degrees between the time of the anch-

orage and the time of the collision. The evidence

indicates almost to a certainty that she was ac-

tually swinging at the instant of collision. From
a time 34 minutes before the collision she started

to become more and more a menace to naviga-

tion but did nothing to correct the situation, and

even failed to warn the approaching West Keats

of her dangerous position. Her fault continued

and became more aggravated to the instant of

the collision.

I
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So far as we know the last clear chance doc-

trine of the common law is not a part of the

admiralty jurisprudence. Perhaps one reason is

the early adoption of the rule dividing damages
in case of fault. The only rule of liability we
have seen in the authorities is that where the

fault of a vessel proximately causes or contri-

butes to the damage, she is condemned in full or

half damages as the case may be.

The Yucatan, 236 Fed. 436.

American-Hawaiian Steamship Co. vs. King
Coal Co., 11 Fed. 41.

We do not feel that we understand thorough-

ly the meaning of these decisions. Based upon
them respondent argued in the District Court

that even if it were conceded that the Boston was
improperly anchored it does not tallow that she

should pay any part of the damage. Are the

ancient admiralty rules being set aside in this

circuit in favor of new doctrine? Where a vessel

anchors or moors in violation of local custom or

regulation or of the Act of Congress forbidding

improper anchorage, does she escape liability to

a negligent colliding vessel? Can she recover all

of her damages from such vessel? If the moving
vessel also is not at fault is she held anyway, or

is there no recovery by either? Does it matter

what the degree of negligence or improper con-

duct of the anchored vessel may be? Would it

be the same if the anchored vessel deliberately
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violated the statute? Or if her pilot carelessly

violated it in order to be able to go to sleep

earlier, as we believe was the situation in the

present case? Would the rule be thus in the case

of a vessel not anchored but drifting? We do not

find the words "last clear chance" in either of

these opinions but we confess doubt as to whether
the court has not applied that common law doc-

trine in fact although not in name.

The Yucatan.

The court does not S2iy that the state of Ore-

gon was guilty of negligence in anchoring the

cruiser Boston in the fairway. It appears to

hold that such negligence, if any, would not be

proximate. Yet we take it the collision would
not have occurred but for such negligence, if any.

True, there was another proximate cause in the

negligence of the Yucatan. Frankly, we fail to

see why both negligences, if the cruiser Boston

was improperly anchored, did not contribute.

A similar situation was before the 6th Circuit

in

The Miner, 260 Fed. 901.

The Halcyon had been improperly moored at

the place of the collision for more than a year.

The captain of the moving vessel had had abund-

ant opportunity to observe her position and this

fact bore heavily against him on the issue of his

own conduct. But the Halcyon was not allowed

to escape.

il
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We confess we are disturbed by some of the

language of The Yucatan, but not by the de-

cision itself. The facts are distinguished from
those of our case on the ground that the negli-

gence of the cruiser Boston had spent itself. We
understand the last clear chance doctrine does
not apply in cases where the negligence of one
party has spent itself. If I carelessly catch my
foot in the rails so that I cannot move, my negli-

gence is thereupon spent. If I sit or lie on the

track at least partly awake and able to move my
negligence remains active and proximate.

The Boston Maru went to anchor only the

night before. From the time her anchor was
cast until the collision she drifted around sub-

stantially 180 degrees. She was probably drifting

at the time of the collision. Her anchor watch
knew or should have known or should have been
advised by the pilot that she was drifting across

the channel at the intersection of the ranges. The
pilot of the Keats had had no previous oppor-

tunity to observe her wrongful position. The
negligence of the Boston Maru was in no sense

spent but was active at the instant of the col-

lision.

King Coal Case.

This case is also distinguishable on its facts

and in the same manner. But we are at a loss

to explain in the light of generally accepted doc-

trines of admiralty the language of the opinion
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written by our distinguished and learned oppon-

ent in the case at bar.

We remind the court that we have cited in this

brief only a few of hundreds of admiralty cases

where vessels improperly anchored or moored

were condemned for part or full damages. We
do not find in them any suggestion that wrongful

anchorage or moorage is not proximate.

The Waterford, 6 Fed. 2nd 980.

This case was cited to the trial court by re-

spondent on the proposition that even though the

Boston were conceded to be at fault the entire

damage must be paid by the Keats. But here the

moored vessel was found not at fault. The court

said (981):

The Merchant was not at fault. There is

no finding of active fault as to her. It is

predicated solelv upon her mere presence at

the point of collision, based upon an alleged

controlling regulation which the District

Judge referred to.

This is clearly a denial of the existence or

controlling character of the regulation referred

to.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711.

This opinion of the Southern District of New

York was also cited. Here it ap|)earcd that the

vessel dragged out of the regular anchorage



107

through stress of weather. No negligence was
shown on her part.

The Daniel McAllister, 258 Fed. 549, 2nd
C. C. A.

This is one of the cases cited in the King Coal

case and properly since it involves a similar har-

bor regulation. The New York municipal law
forbids boats lying across pier ends "except at

their own risk of injury from vessels entering or

leaving any adjacent dock or pier." The 2nd
Circuit had already held this statute invalid in so

far as it attempted to impose a rule of liability

on the Courts of Admiralty. However, they rec-

ognized departure from the regulation as evi-

dence of negligence sufficient to throw the bur-

den of proof on the violator. Here the tug was
clearly at fault. Its negligence broke up various

barges from their moorings and set them in col-

lision with one another. We cannot see a sug-

gestion of the last clear chance doctrine in this

case.

In the present case the Boston Maru's anchor-

age was in violation of a statute of the United

States. Congress has a clear right to impose a

rule of maritime liability on the Federal Courts.

To hold the Boston at fault in her anchorage at

the time of the collision, or to say that her anch-

orage, if u)rongful, is immaterial or not proxim-

ate, and relieve her from damages on any theory

whatever, is to allow her to violate the statute

with impunity.
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Conclusion

The principal issues in the case resolve them-

selves in our minds as follows:

The Boston Maru at the time of the collision

was anchored improperly and in violation of the

statute. Her negligence was a proximate cause

of the collision. It sufficiently explains the col-

lision without more. The burden of proof is

upon her to show that there was fault in the

navigation of the West Keats. This she has not

done by a preponderance of the evidence. In-

deed, the preponderance is the other way. Cap-

tain Berry's belief that the Boston was in the

usual anchorage ground is shown to have been

reasonable. He
' was navigating the channel

authorized by the ranges. There was no evi-

dence tending to show that he should have known

or suspected that the Boston was out of place

before he did. Therefore the cases should be

reversed with mandate for the entry of judg-

ment in favor of the West Keats for the stipu-

lated amount with costs.

Respectfully submitted,

George Neuner,
|

United States Attorney,

MacCormac Snow,

Proctors for the United States

as owner of the West Keats,
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

This case arises out of a collision between the

"West Keats" and the "Boston Maru" at a point

in the Columbia River opposite Columbia City on

the early morning of October 26th, 1924. The
United States as the owner of the "West Keats"

libeled the "Boston Maru" and Kokusai Kisen



Kabushiki Kaisha, the owner of the "Boston

Maru," filed a libel in personam against the

United States. The two proceedings were con-

solidated under the above title.

The case was tried before the Honorable
Robert S. Bean, who found the "West Keats"

wholly at fault and passed a decree accordingly.

The damages of the respective parties were fixed

by stipulation. In accordance with this stipula-

tion a decree was rendered in favor of the owner
of the Japanese vessel in the sum of $15,788,91.

The "Boston Maru" on the 25th of October, 1924,

was berthed at the Clark-Wilson Mill at Linnton

in the Willamette River. About 5:40 on the after-

noon of that day she left down the river for the

purpose of taking on additional cargo at St.

Helens (Gildez 307). St. Helens is located up on

Willamette Slough which branches off the main
channel of the Columbia River a short distance

above Columbia City. The "Boston Maru" drew
twenty-six feet one inch (Gildez 307, 325; Sayeki

511). At that season of the year the Columbia
River is low and in order to get into St. Helens

it is necessary for vessels to await the flood tide.

Under the circumstances of this case it was neces-

sary for the "Boston Maru" to go down the main
ship channel in the Columbia River to Columbia
City and there anchor until the tide would permit

her to steam up the Columbia River and the Wil-

lamette Slough to St. Helens (Sullivan 197-198;

Grunstad 184; Baldy 157). The "Boston Maru"
reached Columbia City about 8:30 P. M. (Sayeki

497; Gildez 307). At ihat point the width of the



deep water is approximately twelve hundred fifty

feet (Sullivan 229; Gildez 309; Berry 353).

The "Boston Maru" was navigated under the

direction of Captain George F. Gildez, a Columbia
River Pilot, who has been operating on the

Columbia River either as a Master or Pilot since

1910, and whose qualifications are proved by the

testimony. Captain Gildez anchored the vessel

abreast of the front range light on the Columbia
City range about the center of the deep water

(Gildez 308). After the anchor was dropped and
the vessel had steadied at her anchorage, bearings

were taken with three of the lights on the Colum-
bia River (Gildez 310-311; Tomita 550; Chiga 532,

552-553). These bearings make it possible to plat

the position occupied by the "Boston Maru" with

substantial accuracy. It sufficiently appears

from the exhibits in evidence that the vessel was
anchored slightly nearer the Washington side of

the deep water than the Oregon shore. There is

shown on the official charts a shoal at the Wash-
ington side of the channel created by the dump-
ing of gravel in August, 1921 (Stipulation 193).

On the edge of this shoal, as marked on the of-

ficial chart, the depth of the water is twenty-six

feet, and a little further to the Washington shore

the depth is only twenty-five feet. At the time

of the collision the water in the Columbia River

was about one foot above zero at St. Helens

(Gildez 326). The evidence is to the effect that a

vessel should have at least a foot of water below
her keel in order to navigate safely (Gildez 341).

Captain Gildez was familiar with the shoal and
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with the chart upon which it is shown (Gildez

308-309). He knew that the incoming tide would
swing the "Boston Maru" and it was not possible

to tell in advance which way the vessel would
swing (Gildez 309; Berry 141; Moran 252, 258;

Sullivan 218). Captain Gildez endeavored to

anchor in the middle of the deep water so that

the vessel would stay clear of the shore which-

ever way she swung (Gildez 310, 333). The
"Boston Maru" was four hundred feet long

(Record 10, 21).

The evidence is that the incoming tide will

cause an anchored vessel to move forward on her

chain until her bow is substantially above her

anchor, and that she will then swing slowly on a

radius not much greater than her length (Sulli-

van 200; Moran 250-251; Allvn 260; Grunstad 186;

Gildez 342).

In this case the "Boston Maru" swung toward

the Oregon shore. The weight of the evidence

indicates that at the time of the collision she was
lying nearly at right angles to the thread of the

stream. There was approximately two hundred
fifty feet of deep water between her stern and
the Oregon shore and fully six hundred feet of

deep water between her bow and the shoal above

referred to.

Immediately on anchoring the "Boston Maru"
her anchor lights were displayed (Gildez 310-311;

Tomita 549; Sayeki 464, 504-505). Captain Moran
passed down the Columbia River at midnight

with the "Gcorgina Rolph" drawing twenty-



three feet of water (Moran 248). The anchor
lights of the "Boston Maru" were burning at this

time (Moran 248-249). They were still burning
at and after the collision (Swenson 383, 392;

Berry 100, 101; Komiyama 562; Sayeki 509; Chiga

540).

The "West Keats" left terminal No. 4 in the

Willamette River about 10:50 P. M. on the 25th

of October, 1924 (Berry 95). She was in charge

of Capain E. H. Berry, one of the Columbia River

Pilots. She is a vessel four hundred ten feet in

length, drawing at this time twenty-five feet eight

inches (Berry 141). Her Master testifies that at

full speed she would make ten knots an hour
(Swenson 386). There is other testimony offered

on behalf of Appellant to the effect that her

speed on this particular night was 8.84 nautical

miles per hour (Gillette 410). The "West Keats"

entered the Columbia River at midnight and
operated at full speed from the time she entered

the Columbia River until 1:43 on the morning of

October 26th, 1924 (Berry 96, 138; Jetts 454-455,

457; Gillette 408-410).

From Warrior Rock, three miles above the

place of the collision, there is an unobstructed

view of the portion of the river in which the

"Boston Maru" was anchored (Sullivan 198-199;

AUyn 262). Captain Berry, pilot of the "West
Keats," admits that he saw the lights of the

"Boston Maru" two miles above the place of the

collision (Berry 137). One mile above the place
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of the collision he knew that the lights were those

of a vessel at anchor (Berry 100, 101, 117, 138).

He also knew that there was plenty of room to

pass the "Boston Maru" on the Washington side

of the channel (Berry 121). All of the evidence

is to the effect that the visibility was good on the

night in question (Swenson 381; Gillette 408;

Sayeki465; Chiga 536).

Half a mile above the place of collision Cap-

tain Berry gave the order "port a bit" and then

the order "steady" (Berry 107). The next order

was "starboard a bit" (Berry 108). The ship did

not respond to her helm when this order was
given and the order "hard a starboard" followed.

Again the vessel failed to respond to her helm,

according to appellant's testimony. The next

order, given one minute before the collision, was
"stop" (Berry 109). The testimony does not sat-

isfactorily show the interval between these orders

or the time at which the order "port a bit" was
given (Berry 113).

There is no contention that the speed of the

"West Keats" was appreciably checked by the

"stop" order given one minute before the col-

lision. The hawse pipe, four or five feet off the

bow on the starboard side of the "West Keats,"

hit the "Boston Maru" starboard counter-aft

(Berry 131-134). The blow was a glancing blow

and the "West Keats" passed on between the

Oregon shore and the stern of the "Boston Maru"
(Swenson 395). In two or three minutes Captain

Berry had the "West Keats" turned around and



he brought her back on the Washington side of

the "Boston Maru" without difficulty (Berry 121-

122). Immediately after the collision Captain

S. S. Baldy passed up the river in charge of the

Norwegian steamer "Siersted." He passed both

the "Boston Maru" and the "West Keats" on the

Washington side of the channel without diffi-

culty (Baldy 152-153). There seems to have been
another vessel as well which passed up the river

on the Wadiington side about this time (Swen-
son 385; Berry 114-115).

After the collision both vessels proceeded

back to Portland to make the necessary repairs.

The apostles do not contain the opinion given

orally by Judge Bean on the 22nd of November,
1926, in deciding the case. Believing that the

opinion will be of assistance to the court we
print it:

"The cases of the Boston Maru and the

West Keats grew out of the collision of the

West Keats with the Boston Maru while the

latter was lying at anchor in the Columbia
River.

"The case is important enough to merit a
carefully prepared opinion, but the time at

my disposal will not enable me to do so,

without unnecessarily delaying the decision
in this case, and I take it, it is more to the

interest of the parties to have the case
promptly disposed of, than it is that the
court shall delay the decision in order to

formulate an elaborate opinion. I therefore
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shall state my conclusions in this case with-
out elaboration.

"It appears from the evidence that about
half past eight o'clock on the evening of Oc-
tober 25, 1924, the Boston Maru, a vessel

about four hundred feet long and drawing
twnty-six feet of water, was anchored in the
Columbia River about the middle of the ship
channel or deep water, o[)posite Columbia
City, to await the tide, in order that she might
dock at St. Helens. The deep water at that
point is from twelve to thirteen hundred feet

wide. The vessel was anchored with her
stem upstream, and had out about thirty

fathoms of chain. During the night her posi-

tion was shifted by the tide, so that at the
time of the collision she was lying substan-
tially athwart the river. Her anchor lights

were in position and burning brightly, and
visible to a vessel approaching from up-
stream for a considerable distance.

"About two o'clock in the morning of the

26th, the West Keats, a vessel four hundred
and ten feet long and eight thousand tons
gross tonnage, fully loaded, was coming
down the river and collided with the Boston
Maru, damaging both vessels. Each claims
the other was at fault, and each has filed a

libel.

"It is a rule of law that where a moving
vessel collides with a vessel at anchor, the
presumption is that the fault is chargeable to

the moving vessel. It is claimed, however,
that this rule should not be applied in this

case, because the Boston Maru was anchored
in violation of a statute which makes it un-
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lawful to tie up or anchor a vessel in the

navigable channel in such a manner as to

prevent or obstruct the passage of other ves-

sels. This statute, however, does not impose
an absolute or unreasonable prohibition to

the use of the waterways for anchorage. The
question in each case is whether the anchored
vessel is so placed as to prevent or interfere

with navigation. In my opinion the Boston
Maru was not so anchored.

"The night was dark and cloudy and her
pilot had to be guided entirely by the shore
lights. There is no established anchorage
ground at the place of this collision, although
the evidence shows that vessels have fre-

quently anchored there or near there. It was
good seamanship for the pilot to so anchor
his vessel that it would not ground in case
she should swing. It is said that she should
have been anchored near the Washington
shore, but the chart offered in evidence
shows shoal water on that side, and I take it

that it would have been unsafe for him to

have anchored any nearer the Washington
shore than she did anchor.

"The burden therefore is on the West
Keats, in my opinion, to show that the col-

lision was not due to her fault, and this I

think she has failed to do.

"Her pilot observed the anchor lights of
the Boston Maru when about a mile and a

half upstream from her, and at that time
knew that a vessel was at anchor athwart the

stream. In place of slacking the speed of his

vessel or taking any precaution to ascertain

the actual location of the anchored vessel he



12

proceeded downstream at full speed until

just a short distanc above the Boston Maru,

and then attempted to pass to the left or

Oregon side. In mv judgment it is negligence

for a vessel to so approach an anchored

vessel on a dark night at full speed and at-

tempt to pass her on the Oregon side without

ascertaining the location of the anchored

vessel, or at least making some effort to do

so. The statute provides that in narrow-

channels every steam vessel, when safe and

practicable, shall keep to that side of the

fairway or midchannel which lays on the

starboard side of such vessel. Whether this

statute applies onlv to passing vessels, it

nevertheless indicates the proper movement
of a vessel, in requiring it to keep to its own
side of the channel. The West Keats did not

do this but attempted to pass on the Oregon

side or to her port side, and in my judgment

the collision was due entirely to her fault.

"Decrees may be prepared accordingly."
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ginia Co., 278 Fed. 868, 870.

The Waterford, 6 F. (2d) 980, 981,

XVII.

Anchorage in an improper place does not de-

prive a vessel of the protection of the laws. She

may still recover damages sustaind through col-

lision with a moving vessel where the latter vessel

with ordinary prudence could have avoided the

collision.

The Yucatan, 226 Fed. 437, 439.

American-Hawaiian Co. v. King Coal Co.,

11 F. (2d) 41, 43.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711, 712.

The Waterford, 6 F. (2d) 980, 981.

The Daniel McAllister, 258 Fed. 549, 552.
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XVIII.

A custom or usage must be certain and uni-

form; otherwise it furnishes no standard for de-

termining whether conduct was prudent or negli-

gent.

Chicago Milwaukee Co. u. Lindeman, 143

Fed. 946, 949 (CCA. 8).

Fogartij v. Michigan Central 180 Mich. 422,

147 N. W. 507, 510.

Chicago & Alton Co. v. Harrington, 192 111.

9, 61 N. E. 622, 629.

QUESTIONS AT ISSUE

The contentions of appellant with reference

to the charges preferred by appellant against the

"Boston Maru" as set forth in its libel and par-

ticularly on pages 14 and 23 of the record, are

substantially these:

(1) That the "Boston Maru" was improperly

anchored in a fairway.

(2) That the vessel was anchored in such a

manner as that she would swing broadside to the

current and that she was negligently permitted

so to swing.

(3) The pilot and officers of the "Boston

Maru" failed to give warning of her position to

those navigating the "West Reals."

Appellee in its amended libel, abstract pages

34 and 35, makes substantially the following |
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charges with reference to the navigation of the

"West Keats":

(1) The pilot in charge of the "West Keats"

confused the anchor lights of the "Boston Maru"
with lights on the Oregon shore. He did this

although he was chargeable with notice that ships

were in the habit of anchoring off Columbia City.

(2) The officers charged with the navigation

of the "West Keats" failed to check her speed
when the anchor lights of the "Boston Maru" be-

came visible. The "West Keats" was negligent in

operating at full speed up to one minute before

the collision.

(3) The "West Keats" violated a statutory

duty in failing to pass the "Boston Maru" on the

Washington or starboard side of the channel.

(4) That the "West Keats" was negligently

navigated and permitted to collide at substantial-

ly full speed with an anchored vessel whose lights

were burning and actually seen by the pilot and
officers of the "West Keats."

(5) The "West Keats" was negligent in at-

tempting to pass between the "Boston Maru" and
the Oregon shore.

(6) Shortly before the collision the "West
Keats" failed to respond to her helm either be-

cause of negligence in her navigation or because

her steering gear was out of order.
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ARGUMENT
Respect Due to Findings of District Court.

The decree of the trial court passed upon all

of the substantial questions which are in dispute

between the parties on this appeal. The conclu-

sions of the Distrtict Court are set forth in the

opinion already quoted, and have been incorpor-

ated in the decree found on pages 41 and 42 of

the record. We quote from this decree:

"The Court finds that the "Boston Maru"
was anchored at a suitable place in the
Columbia River at the time of the collision

and that it would not have been good sea-

manship to have anchored the said vessel

materially closer to the Washington shore
for the reason that the vessel in such event
might have swung on to a gravel shoal
marked on the chart; the Court also finds
that the anchor lights of the "Boston Maru"
were in position and burning brightly; the

Court also finds that the pilot of the "West
Keats" observed the anchor lights of the
"Boston Maru" when about a mile and one-
half upstream from her and the pilot knew
at that time that a vessel was at anchor
athwart the stream; that notwithstanding
such knowledge the pilot of the "West Keats"
neglected to slacken the speed of his vessel

or to take any precaution to ascertain the ac-

tual location of the anchored vessel, and that

the "West Keats" proceeded downstream at

full speed until a short distance above the
"Boston Maru"; that thereupon the pilot of
the "West Keats" endeavored to pass to the
left of the "Boston Maru." That Ihc negli-
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gence of the pilot of the "West Keats" in the
respects aforesaid is solely responsible for
the collision."

This court has repeatedly announced the rule

applicable in admiralty with reference to the re-

spect to be given on appeal to the findings of the

trial court.

Spencer v. The Dalles Navigation Co., 188 Fed.

865, 868.

In this case the court speaking through Judge
Dietrich said:

"The District Judge heard the witnesses
testify, and observed their demeanor while
upon the stand. His finding upon the con-
flicting evidence was that the Charles R.
Spencer alone was responsible for the col-

lision, and that the Dalles City was wholly
without fault. Under the well-settled rules
of appellate procedure, the finding ought
not, under the circumstances, to be dis-

turbed."

The Samson, 217 Fed. 344, 347-348.

In this case the court speaking through Judge
Morrow said:

"Out of the great mass of conflicting testi-

many with respect to the maneuvers of the
respective vessels prior to the collision, and
the positions of the various tows thereafter,
the learned judge of the court below found
that the point of collision was well to the
Oregon side of the channel, and concluded



22

that the fault was with the Samson. This
finding, under well-settled rules of appellate
procedure, should not be disturbed. Spencer
V. Dalles, P. & A. Navigation Co., 188 Fed.
865, 868, 110 C. C. A. 499. As said by this

court in The Alijandro, 56 Fed. 621, 6 C. C. A.
54:

" The rule is well settled that in cases on
appeal in admiralty, when the questions of
fact are dependent upon conflicting evidence,
the decision of the district judge, w^ho had
the opportunity of seeing the witnesses and
judging their appearance, manner, and credi-

bility, will not be reversed, unless it clearly

appears that the decision is against the evi-

dence.'
"

The above rule has been announced again and
again by this court and the principle must be

deemed to be firmly settled in this jurisdiction.

See for example the following cases:

The Bailey Gatzert, 179 Fed. 44, 48 (Judge

Morrow )

.

Stern u. Fernandez, 222 Fed. 42, 45-46

(Judge Morrow).
The Dolhadarn Castle, 222 Fed. 838, 840

(Judge Gilbert).

The Yucatan, 226 Fed. 437, 441 (Judge

Rudkin).
The Hardy, 229 Fed. 985, 986-987 (Judge

Gilbert).

The Mazatlan, 287 Fed. 873, 875 (Judge

Rudkin).

Butler IK Pacific Mail Steamship Co., 290

Fed. 80(), 807 (Judge Rudkin).
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Presumption Against Moving Vessel.

Where a moving vessel collides with a vessel

at anchor, the presumption is that the fault is

chargeable to the moving vessel.

The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186, 39 L. Ed. 943.

The Europe, 190 Fed. 475 (C. C. A. 9).

The John G. McCullough, 232 Fed. 637.

The Gulf of Mexico, 281 Fed. 77, 79 (C. C.

A. 2).

The Cananoua, 297 Fed. 658, 663.

The No. C-4, 300 Fed. 757.

U. S. V. King Coal Co., 5 F. (2d) 780, (G. C.

A. 9).

The Waterford, 6 F. (2d) 980, 981 (C. C. A.

2).

No Fault in Anchorage.

Appellant contends that appellee is not enti-

tled to the above presumption because the "Bos-

ton Maru" was anchored in a fairway. Appel-

lant's contention is that the channel was along

the Oregon shore and that the "Boston Maru"
was chargeable wdth negligence in anchoring too

close to the Oregon shore.

The contention of appellant in this respect is

not borne out by the evidence. The ship channel

is the portion of the river where the water is

thirty feet deep. This is the testimony of five

pilots (Sullivan 220; Moran 250; McNelly 277;

Chase 298; Gildez 309).
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The position of the "Boston Maru" as it ap-

pears on "West Keats' " Exhibit 1 is subject to

correction. The evidence clearly shows that a

vessel in swinging under the influence of an in-

coming tide will ride up over her anchor chain

and swing on a radius not much greater than her

length (Grunstad 186; Sullivan 200; Moran 250-

251; Allyn 260; Gildez 342). The length of the

"13oston Maru" is four hundred feet, and she

must have swung on a radius not appreciably

greater than this figure. The deep water at the

place where the "Boston Maru" was achored is

approximately twelve hundred fifty feet in

width (Berry 353; Gildez 309; Sullivan 229). We
think the evidence sustains our contention that

even though the "Boston Maru" was lying directly

athwart the channel at the time of the collision

her stern was approximately two hundred fifty

feet from the edge of the channel on the Oregon
side. There was approximately six hundred feet

between her bow and the gravel shoal. Captain

Berry admits that there was plenty of room to

pass on the Washington side (Berry 121). Under
the statute it was clearly his duty to pass on the

Washington side. Captain Berry had no diffi-

culty in getting up on the Washington side of the

"Boston Maru" (Berry 121).

About midnight on the night of the collision

Captain Moran took the "Gcorgina Rolph" down
the river on the Washington side of the "Boston

Maru." This vessel drew twenty-three feet and
her pilot had no difficulty in getting her by
(Moran 248). Captain Baldy immediately after
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the collision brought the "Siersted" up the river

on the Washington side of the "Boston Maru"
also without difficulty (Baldy 152). Another un-

identified vessel came up the river on the Wash-
ington side of the "Boston Maru" on the night of

the collision (Berry 114-115; Swenson 385).

In this case it was necessary to anchor in the

channel (Gildez 331). Between Portland and As-

toria there are only two places where a pilot can

anchor a deep draft vessel out of the fairway.

One of these is at Oak Point or Quinns and the

other at Longview or Rainier (Sullivan 246-247;

Allyn263; McNelly 274).

It is impossible for a pilot to tell in advance

which way his vessel will swing under the in-

fluence of the incoming tide (Berry 141; Moran
252, 258; Sullivan 218; Gildez 309). For this

reason it was good practice for Captain Gildez

to anchor the "Boston Maru" in the middle of the

deep water (Moran 257; Sullivan 198). Captain

Allyn and Captain Sullivan, both experienced and
competent pilots, state that they would have

anchored the "Boston Maru" where Captain

Gildez did (Allyn 259; Sullivan 197).

It is also to be said that after dark it is dif-

ficult if not impossible for a pilot to fix accu-

rately the place of his anchorage (Sullivan 197;

Allyn 259, 267, 270). If the conclusion can be

drawn from the testimony that it would have

been better for Captain Gildez to have anchored

further toward the Washington shore. He cannot



26

be held to a larger measure of diligence than that

which would be exercised by an ordinarily pru-

dent navigator, and in view of the difficulty of
fixing the place of anchorage accurately, any
small departure from the proper point of anchor-
age cannot be deemed to be negligence.

Suggestion is made that the "West Keats"

could have been anchored further down the river

where the channel is wider. Captain Allyn and
Captain Sullivan answer this suggestion. There
is no light on the shore to guide a pilot with ref-

erence to anchorage at a point down the river

from the lower Columbia City light, opposite

which the "Boston Maru" was anchored. The
testimony is without contradiction that it is im-

practicable to anchor at night without a light on
the shore to guide the pilot. (Sullivan 221-222,

233; Allyn 259-260).

The contention is that the "Boston Maru"
should have been anchored on the so-called "red

range." Testimony is that this is not a range at

all (Sullivan 222) and that it was unknown to

Captain Gildez (Gildez 323). If the "Boston

Maru" had been anchored on this so-called "red

range" and the vessel had swung to the Wash-
ington side her stern would have grounded on

the shoal. This will be apparent to the court

from an examination of "West Keats' " Exhibit 1.

There is twenty-six feet of water on the edge of

the shoal and the depth diminishes to twenty-five

feet further in. Tlie river at this time at St.

Helens was one foot above zero (Gildez 326).
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The "Boston Maru" drew twenty-six feet, one

inch. Careful navigation requires one foot of

water below the keel of the vessel (Gildez 341).

The testimony of appellant's own witnesses is

that a vessel drawing twenty-five feet or more of

water must look out for the shoal marked on the

government chart opposite Columbia City (Sand-

strom 161; Baldy 156-158).

Captain Sullivan testifies (201) that a gravel

shoal will not wash away. This is common sense

and in accord with the experience and observa-

tion of all men.

It is sufficient for our purposes that the shoal

is marked on the government chart. The pilots

navigating the Columbia River depend upon
these charts (Berry 124; Sullivan 225). It is true

that a pilot will occasionally take a sounding, but

it is wholly apart from his duties to chart the

river. It is the function of the War Department

to make soundings and to issue charts for the

guidance of navigators using the river. Captain

Gildez would have laid himself open to just criti-

cism if he had navigated in disregard of the

soundings shown on the government chart.

When the ''Boston Maru" was anchored her

anchor lights were displayed (Gildez 310-311;

Sayeki 464, 504-505; Tomita 549). The lights

were still burning when Captain Moran passed

down the river at midnight (Moran 248-249).

They were also burning at and after the collision

(Berry 100-101; Sw^enson 383, 392; Komiyama
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562; Sayeki 509; Chiga 540). There was an un-

obstructed view from Warrior Rock on (Allyn

262; Sullivan 198-199). Warrior Rock is three

miles above the place of collision. The visibility

was good (Swenson 381; Gillette 408; Sayeki 465;

Chiga 536). As a matter of fact Captain Berry
on the bridge of the "West Keats" saw the lights

of the "Bostotn Maru" when he was two miles

away (Berry 137). He recognized that these were
the lights of a vessel at anchor when he was one
mile away (Berry 138, 100, 101, 117). Mr. Gil-

lette, second officer on the "West Keats," testifies

that there would have been no difficulty in pass-

ing the "Boston Maru" on the Washington side

of the channel if the maneuver had been made
at that time (Gillette 429).

Law Applicable.

Appellant claims that the "Boston Maru" vio-

lated Section 9920 of the Compiled Statutes. This

section is as follows:

"It shall not be lawful to tie up or anchor
vessels or other craft in navigable chann-els
in such a manner as to prevent or obstruct
the passage of other vessels or craft."

This statute has been frequently construed by
the courts, including this court, and it is well

established that a vessel at anchor is not violating

the statute provided she leaves sufficient room in

the channel for other vessels to pass. A decision

of this court is one of the leading cases in the

construction of this statute.
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The Europe, 190 Fed. 475, 478.

Here the court said:

"The argument based upon the first and
third grounds, as stated above, is completely
refuted bv the decision of the Supreme Court
in the case of The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186. On
the authority of that case, we hold the law to

be settled that an ocean-going vessel may
lawfully lie at anchor in the night time in the
deep channel of a navigable river, if not so
placed as to prevent or obstruct the passage
of other vessels, in violation of the act of
Congress prohibiting such obstruction. 30
U. S. Stat. 1152; U. S. Compiled Stat. 1901,

3543; 6 F. S. A. 817; Pierce's Fed. Code, No.
11105. We also hold that the words 'prevent
or obstruct,' in this statute are positive words,
indicative of limited restraint and of legisla-

tive intent to not interfere with the right use
of waterways by imposing an absolute or un-
reasonable prohibition."

The John J. McCiiIlough, 232 Fed. 637.

In this case the District Court for Virginia

said:

"That the Begonia cannot be held to be at

fault in anchoring where she did under the
law (30 Stat. 1152, No. 15) particularly as
settled in this circuit. The Job H. Jackson
(D. C), 144 Fed. 900, 901; The Hilton (D. C),
213 Fed. 997, 1000; The Caldv, 153 Fed. 837,

840, 83 C. C. A. 19; The Margaret J. Sanford
(D. C), 203 Fed. 331; Id. 213 Fed. 975, 130
C. C. A. 381. The last citation is the decision
of the Circuit Court of Appeals of this circuit.
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and to that case, and the cases therein cited,

reference is made, as giving the law applic-

able to the anchorage of vessels, which is

briefly to the effect that it was not the pur-
pose of the act of Congress in question to

absolutely forbid anchoring in navigable
streams, other than at such places as would
necessarily prevent the passage of vessels, or
obstruct them in passing, to such an extent as
to make the effort to do so a dangerous
maneuver, and that if a vessel anchored at a
point in the channel where, notwithstanding
such anchorage, other vessels navigating with
the care the situation required, could safely
pass, then she neither violated the statute, nor
rendered herself liable under the general
rules applicable to navigation, even though
in some degree she obstructed the channel."

The Grand Manan, 208 Fed. 583.

This was a decision rendered by the District

Court for Maine. On page 587 of the report the

court quotes section 9920 of the Compiled Stat-

utes. It is thereupon said:

"This act seems to be declaratory of the

general maritime law upon the subject."

On pages 587 and 588 the court further says:

"In The Europe, 190 Fed. 474, 479, the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

held that a vessel might lawfully lie at anchor
in the night time in the deep channel of a
navigable river, if not so placed as to prevent
or obstruct the passage of other vessels in

violation of the act of Congress prohibiting
such obstruction. The court said: 'We also

hold that the words "prevent or obstruct" in
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this statute are positive words, indicative of
limited restraint and of legislative intent to

not interfere with the right use of waterways
by imposing an absolute or unreasonable
prohibition.'

"

The court cites and discusses a number of

authorities. On page 589 it is said:

"The test generally applied by the courts

is whether the vessel is so anchored as to

leave a sufficient passageway for others."

Strathleven Steamship Co. v. Baiilch, 244 Fed. 412,

414.

Here the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Fourth Circuit says:

"If a vessel anchors at a point in a chan-
nel where, notwithstanding such anchorage,
other vessels navigated with care can safely

pass, she does not violate the statute or ren-

der herself liable under the general rules of
navigation, although she obstructs the chan-
nel to a certain extent. On the other hand,
if the anchored vessel occupies so much of
the channel as to practically impede its navi-

gation or make the effort to pass her a dan-
gerous maneuver, she has placed herself in

a position which the statute forbids, and must
take the consequences of her unlawful act."

The Northern Queen, 117 Fed. 996, 912-913.

Here the court said

:

"The question, therefore, presented is

whether the Pathfinder and Sagamore shall



32

be held at fault for anchoring in the fairway
in a dense fog in Whitefish Bay at the head
of St. Mary's River. * * * The proofs do
not establish a custom requiring anchoring
out of a sailing course. No regulation pro-
hibited it. There was no special insecurity
for lying at anchor at this place, fog signals
being sounded, when the fairw^ay was one-
half mile wide, with an abundance of navig-
able water on each side; the navigable chan-
nel being 4 miles in width at the point of
collision. It has often been held that if there
is no rule or custom requiring a vessel to

bring up out of the fairway, she might
anchor there, although directly in the track
of ships. Marsden Maritime Collisions 234;
Spencer, Maritime Collisions Sec. Ill; The
Ogemaw, 32 Fed. 924. * * * i am clearly

of the opinion that there is no fault attribut-

able to the Pathfinder for anchoring in the

sailing course at this point."

The Job H. Jackson, 144 Fed. 896, 900.

Here the District Court for the Eastern Dis-

trict of Virginia said:

"It may be said in passing that the trend
of interpretation of the act has been to give it

a liberal meaning, and that its purpose was
not to prevent vessels from coming to anchor
in navigable channels, but to forbid them
from doing so in such manner as to obstruct

said channels, or render their navigation dif-

ficult or dangerous."

To the same effect see

The Bailey Gazeri. 179 Fed. 44, 49, 50.
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Custom or Usage.

It is contended that it was a custom to anchor
vessels opposite Columbia City and at a point

nearer the Washington shore than that occupied

by the "Boston Maru," and based upon this cus-

tom it is contended that the pilot of the "Boston

Maru" was guilty of negligence in anchoring at

the point chosen by him.

We have already shown that a vessel drawing
twenty-six feet one inch of water could not safe-

ly anchor at the point contended for by appellant.

An examination of "West Keats' " Exhibit 1 will

show clearly that if the "Bostton Maru" had been
anchored at the point contended for and had
drifted toward the Washington shore she would
have drifted onto the shoal and gone aground.

Apart from this contention the evidence whol-

ly fails to establish any such usage or custom as

can serve as a guide to the court in passing on
the conduct of Captain Gildez in anchoring where
he did. Captain Gildez explains clearly, and we
think satisfactorily, the reasons why he anchored
nearly midway in the deep water. His conduct
in this respect accords with the practice of other

pilots, as outlined bv their testimony (Moran 257;

Allyn 259; Sullivan^ 197-198, 221). It is true that

several pilots called on behalf of the "West
Keats" testified that their practice accords with

the alleged custom, but it is familiar law that a

custom to be binding in matters of this kind must
be certain and uniform.
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Chicago, Milwaukee Co. v. Lindeman, 143 Fed.

946, 949.

This is a decision of the Circuit Court of Ap-
peals for the Eighth Circuit. The litigation was
a personal injury case and the custom relied up-

on was one with reference to the movement of a

locomotive. Judge Sanborn said:

"A custom has the force of law, and fur-
nishes a standard for the measurement of
many of the rights and acts of men. It must
be certain or the measurements by this stand-
ard will be unequal and unjust. It must be
uniform; for, if it vary, it furnishes no rule
by which to mete. It must be known, or
must be so uniform and notorious that no
person of ordinary intelligence who has to do
with the subject to which it relates and who
exercises reasonable care would be ignorant
of it; for no man may be justly condemned
for the violation of a law or a custom which
he neither knows nor ought to know. In
short, a binding custom must be certain, def-
inite, uniform, and known, or so notorious
that it would have been known to any person
of reasonable prudence who dealt with its

subject with the exercise of ordinary care.'*

Fogarhj v. Michigan Central Co., 180 Mich. 422,

147 N. W. 507, 510.

This also was a personal injury case, plaintiff

relying u])on an alleged custom to give warning
of the approach of a backing train. The court

said

:
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"The most that can be said of plaintiffs

evidence, taken as a whole, is that sometimes
the defendant sent a man in advance of a
train being backed in and sometimes stationed

a brakeman upon the front end of the for-

ward car. This situation was not such a one
as would warrant plaintiff in the belief that

he would be personally notified of the ap-

proach of an oncoming train by a man sent

in advance. * * *

"A custom must be certain, uniform, and
invariable. It must also be notorious; that is,

known to all persons of intelligence having
to do with the subject to which it relates."

Chicago & Alton Co. v. Harrington, 192 111. 9, 61

N. E. 622, 629.

Here the court said:

"A usage or custom must be certain and
uniform and general. A custom is general

when the method of dealing is the universal

method of those engaged in the business
where the usage exists."

Proximate Cause.

Even though it were admitted that the "Boston

Maru" was improperly anchored, this record

would still call for an affirmance of the decree

appealed from. The evidence clearly shows that

the proximate cause of the collision was the neg-

ligent navigation of the "West Keats." A vessel

anchoring at an improper place does not thereby

forfeit the protection of the laws. It is still the

duty of navigators to avoid colliding with her. A
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vessel which negligently collides with her is solely

responsible for the accruing damage. This court

is firmly committed to this principle.

The Yucatan, 226 Fed. 437, 439.

In this case the court affirmed the decision of

Judge Bean. The case involved collision with the

Boston which lay at anchor in the middle of the

Willamette River near the Broadway Bridge. The
Court of Appeals speaking through Judge Rudkin
said:

"Assuming that the state of Oregon was
guilty of negligence in mooring the Boston in

the fairway, and in permitting her guns to

extend beyond the rail, in violation of the
ordinances of the city of Portland, such neg-
ligence would not bar a recovery if the col-

lision could have been averted or avoided by
the exercise of reasonable diligence on the
part of the officers of the Yucatan. A person
does not invite the destruction of his prop-
erty simply by leaving it exposed in a public
place, even though his act in so doing may
create a public nuisance. * * * The negli-

gence of the state, if negligent at all, would
not bar a recovery, unless such negligence
caused or contributed to the injury."

The above decision of Judge Rudkin has been

more recently affirmed and followed:

American-Hawaiian S. S. Co. v. King Coal

Co., 11 F. (2d) 41, 43.

It is suggested in appellant's brief that the

above decisions are anomalous and out of har-
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mony with the law declared generally by the ad-

miralty courts. This contention certainly is in

error. The rule announced by the above author-

ities is announced generally.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711, 712.

Here the District Court for the Southern Dis-

trict of New York said

:

"It is true that no other vessel dragged off
the anchorage ground, and that with her
other anchor down, or perhaps even with a
longer scope of chain on the port anchor, the

steamer might not have dragged at all. But
she does not become an outlaw because she
dragged off the anchorage ground; nor does
she become an obstruction to navigation ipso
facto because she anchored again outside of
anchorage grounds."

The Waterford, 6 F. (2d) 980, 981.

This is a decision by the Circuit Court of Ap-
peals for the Second Circuit. The third paragraph
of the syllabus is as follows:

"Tug by mooring at point in canal pro-
hibited by rule, did not contribute to col-

lision, with its tow, of tow of moving tug,

when the master of the latter, having before
him in plain view all the possibilities of the
situation as he came out of the lock, gave
no signals, but proceeded, accepting the situa-

tion, and with reasonable navigation would
have avoided collision."



38

Compania De Navegacion Interior S. A. v. Boston-

Virginia Transp. Co. et at, 278 Fed. 868, 870

A steamship was anchored by a pilot near the

left edge of the channel, and had swung toward

the left bank where its stem was held by soft

mud. In that position her stern was between 60

and 80 feet from the left bank of the river. The
water along the left bank was shallow. In front

of the steamship's bow and toward the right bank
the channel was sufficiently wide and deep for

safe navigation. The river at this point was be-

tween 1000 to 1200 feet wide, and the fairway

from 700 to 800 feet wide. The place at which
the steamship was anchored was a loading place

for vessels.

In holding a tug coming into collision with the

steamship to be wholly at fault, the court stated

on page 870:

"It is contended by the owner of the tug

that the Stoddard was at fault in anchoring
and in remaining in such a position as to

obstruct navigation, and that therefore her
owner cannot recover, or in the alternative,

that the damages should be divided. But the

evidence fails to show negligence upon the

part of the Stoddard which in any degree
contributed to the collision. There was ample
space in the channel for other vessels to pass.

On the other hand, the negligence of the tug
was clearly established, and that negligence
was the proximate cause of the collision. It

was negligent to undertake to pass between
the steanisliip and the bank of the river.

When it became apparent to the Tomboyache
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that the Stoddard was aground, either one of
two courses could have been adopted to pre-

vent the collision: The tug could have been
brought to a standstill, or it could have re-

mained in the channel. Under these circum-
stances, the burden was upon the owner of
the tug to make the fault of the anchored
vessel clearly appear. The Clarita and The
Clara, 23 Wall. 1, 23 L. Ed. 146; The Virginia
Ehrman, 97 U. S. 309, 24 L. Ed. 890; The Citv
of New York, 147 U. S. 72, 13 Sup. Ct. 211,

37 L. Ed. 84; Eagle Oil Transport Co. v.

Bowers Southern Dredging Co., 255 Fed. 52,

166 C. C. A. 380; The Europe, 190 Fed. 475,
111 CCA. 307."

The Waterford, 6 F. (2d) 980, 981.

"After colliding with a vessel at a stand-
still, the one navigating must exonerate her-

self from blame by showing that it was not
within her power to prevent the collision by
adopting practical precautions under the rule
announced in The Gulf of Mexico (C C A.),

281 F. 77, and the E. S. Atwood (CCA.),
289 F. 737.

"The Merchant was not at fault. There is

no finding of active fault as to her. It is

predicated solely u})on her mere presence at

the point of collision, based upon an alleged
controlling regulation which the District

Judge referred to. The Merchant and her
tow were in fact moored at the point where
the Waterford emerged from the lock, and
had been so moored for 20 or 30 minutes.
The situation was the same then as it was at

the moment of impact. There was no sub-
stantial change in her position. The master
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of the Waterford had before him in plain
view all the possibilities of the situation as he
came out of the lock, and gave no signals
whatever but proceeded, accepting the situa-
tion. Under such circumstances, nothing in

the presence of the Merchant in this water
contributed to the happening of the collision,

and the navigating vessel could have, with
reasonable navigation, avoided the collision.

The Granite State, 70 U. S. (3 Wall.) 310, 18
L. Ed. 179; The Clarita, 23 Wall, 1, 23 L. Ed.
146."

To the same effect see

The Daniel McAllister, 258 Fed. 549, 552.

The allegations of our amended libel (Apos-

tles 31-33) lay a proper foundation for the con-

tention which we are now making.

It should be borne in mind that it was neces-

sary for the "Boston Maru" to anchor and await

the incoming tide in order to reach St. Helens,

where she was to load the remainder of her

cargo. The depth of the water at low tide was
not sufficient to enable the "Boston Maru" to get

in to St. Helens.

One Anchor SuFnciENT.

It is suggested in appellant's brief that the

"Boston Maru" should have put out a stern

anchor in addition to her bow anchor. This con-

tention finds no support in the testimony. A
number of expert witnesses were called by appel-

lant and the failure of a])pcllant's proctor to ask
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them any questions along this line is significant.

Appellee did prove by the uncontradicted testi-

mony of Captain Sullivan that it is not customary
for vessels navigating the Columbia River to put

out more than one anchor (Sullivan 200). This

witness also testified that the vessels navigating

the Columbia River are as a rule not equipped
with gear for putting out a stern anchor (200-

201).

The law arising on this state of facts is clear-

ly announced in

The City of Richmond. The Texan, 265 Fed. 722,

725.

"Courts have occasionally suggested that
under certain circumstances it may be the
duty of a ship to hold herself steady by the
use of both bow and stern anchors. Such
observations have usually been made when
the ship was so anchored that its swinging
would nearly or altogether close a channel.
The Texan argues that it is so rare for mer-
chant vessels to make themselves fast in the
manner suggested that an unexpected resort
to it in thick weather would increase rather
than diminish danger to other craft. When
a ship's lights are made out, the natural pre-
sumption, in view of the almost universal
practice, is that the ship is heading to wind
and tide. If, in a particular instance, this

assumption turns out to be wrong, a collision

may well result.

'Tt is unnecessary to pass upon this con-
tention, for, if the Texan be held blame-
worthy for not mooring, she will be held to
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a standard of care exceeding that habitually
exercised by prudent mariners, and be pun-
ished for not doing what no merchant ship
appears ever to have done in the Baltimore
harbor. That would seem to be a severe
measure, when the direct and proximate
cause of the collision was the clear breach of
duty on the part of the City of Richmond."

No Warning to "West Keats."

It is finally suggested by appellant that the

**Boston Maru" should be charged with the re-

sponsibility for the collision because no warning
was given the "West Keats" by the "Boston
Maru." Complaint is made of the fact that Cap-
tain Gildez went to sleep in the cabin after he had
anchored the "Boston Maru." The entire conten-

tion of appellant on this branch of the case is

answered by Captain Gildez in testimony found
on pages 337-339 of the Apostles:

"Q. If you had been on deck at the time
the 'West Keats' was approaching, you could
have given some sort of signal, couldn't you?

A. No, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with the rule re-

specting anchored vessels, that they shall give
some sort of special signals on occasions
when necessary?

A. There is a rule to that effect when it

is foggy and thick.

Q. You don't consider that rule is ap-
plicable to clear weather?

A. No, sir.
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Q. You don't know of any rule applying
to clear weather requiring anchored vessels

to give signals by noise or by lights if neces-

sary?

A. If necessary, yes, but clear night,

anchor lights burning, there is no reason in

the world why it should be necessary. The
man on the other ship can undoubtedly see

your lights; he can see you are an anchored
vessel then.

Q. So there was no possible reason for
application of that rule in clear weather?

A. Not that I know of, sir.

Q. You consider the rule as applicable
only to foggy weather?

A. Just foggy or bad weather.

Q. Now, if you had been on deck at the

time the 'West Keats' was approaching you
could have started the engines of the 'Boston
Maru' and kicked her out of the channel very
quickly, couldn't you?

A. No, sir.

Q. Couldn't you have swung her around
so that she would have headed upstream
again?

A. No, sir. I heard him testify that one
minute they knew there was going to be a
collision, the people on board the *West
Keats.' One minute wouldn't have given the

engineers time to get even ready, so I

wouldn't have known there was going to be
any collision any quicker than they did.
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Q. Well, if you had been on the stern
of the 'Boston Maru,' looking over at the
shore light, you could have made some sort
of an estimate as to the distance she was
from the Oregon shore, couldn't you?

A. If somebody had told me the 'West
Keats' was going to run into us I would prob-
ably have gone to the stern and put out a
duffle-bag over the side, but nobody told me
that. I didn't even know the 'West Keats' was
coming down the river, or any other ship."

The testimony shows that Captain Berry saw
the lights of the "Boston Maru" two miles above

the place of collision (Berry 137). One mile

above the place of collision he made out these

lights as those of a vessel at anchor (Berry 138,

100, 101, 117). No warning that the "Boston

Maru" could have given would have advised the

"West Keats" of any facts which were not al-

ready known to her pilot. Furthermore, Captain

Gildez, if he had been on deck, would have had
a right to expect that the "West Keats" would
obey the law and pass the "Boston Maru" on the

Washington side of the channel. The collision

was not expected on the "West Keats" until one

minute before it occurred (Berry 114).

Proctor for a[)pellant cites no statute or regu-

lation requiring an anchored vessel in the ab-

sence of fog to give warning to moving vessels

in the vicinity. We contend that there is no such

statute or regulation. In the absence of fog the

riding lights of llie vessel at anchor are the only

warning which the statute requires.
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"West Keats" Responsible.

The facts making out the responsibility of the

"West Keats" are for tlie most part established by
testimony which is clear and uncontroverted. It

appears that the "West Keats" entered the Colum-
bia River at midnight and that it was operated at

full speed from that time until 1 :43 A. M., which
was one minute before the collision (Berry 96,

138; Jetts 454-455, 457; Gillette 408-410). The
visibility was good (Swenson 380-381; Sayeki

465; Chiga 536; Gillette 408). There was an un-

obstructed view of the portion of the river in

which the "Boston Maru" was anchored from
Warrior Rock on (Allyn 262; Sullivan 198-199).

Warrior Rock is three miles above the place of

collision. Captain Berry, in charge of the naviga-

tion of the "West Keats," saw the lights of the

"Boston Maru" two miles above the place of col-

lision (Berry 137). He was uncertain what these

lights were but he did not check his speed, con-

tinuing full speed ahead until one minute before

the collision.

Captain Berry admits that he recognized the

lights of the "Boston Maru" as those of a vessel

at anchor w^hen he was one mile above the place

of collision (Berry 138, 100, 101, 117). He knew
at that time that the stern of the vessel was turned

toward the Oregon shore (Berry 117). It appears

from his testimony that he knew these things

when his vessel was opposite light 28-2. It wdll

be found by an examination of the government
chart, "West Keats' " Exhibit 1, that this point is
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fifty-three hundred feet up the river in a straight

line from the place of collision. By the course

which the "West Keats" took it would be a longer

distance. Mr. Gillette, the second officer on
board the "West Keats," testifies that after the

pilot recognized the lights ahead as those of an
anchored vessel it would have been possible to

pass the anchored vessel on the Washington side

(Gillette 429). This was the clear duty of the

navigator under the provisions of Section 7899

Compiled Statutes, U. S. Code, Title 33, Section

210. Captain Moran, an hour or so before, had
taken the "Georgina Rolph" down the river, pass-

ing the "Boston Maru" on the Washington side

(Moran 248). Three pilots of intelligence and ex-

perience testify that the "West Keats" could have

been deflected to the Washington side of the

channel one thousand to twelve hundred feet

above the place of collision (Sullivan 199, 236;

McNelly 276, 296; Gildez 313-314). There was
plenty of room on the Washington side of the

"Boston Maru" (Berry 121). The facts in the

case are a demonstration that there was also

enough room to pass on the Oregon side if the

"West Keats" had been properly navigated. The
"West Keats" did get by on the Oregon side with-

out grounding (Berry 139; Swenson 390).

There is testimony on behalf of appellant that

it would take half an hour or such a matter to

stop the "West Keats." The fact is that after the

collision the pilot got her headway off in about

three minutes (Berrv 122; Swenson 392). This
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although the collision was a glancing blow only

(Swenson 395). Thereafter the "West Keats"

steamed up without difficulty on the Washington
side of the "Boston Maru" (Berry 121; Swenson
385). Captain Baldy, in command of the "Sier-

sted" (153-154) and another unidentified vessel

also passed up the river on the Washington side

of the "Boston Maru" (Berry 114-115; Swenson
385). The facts in the case are a demonstration

that there was ample room and ample oppor-

tunity for the "West Keats" to pass the "Boston

Maru" on the Washington side of the channel.

It further appears that shortly before the col-

lision the "West Keats" failed to respond to her

helm. The order was given by the pilot "star-

board a bit" (Berry 108). The vessel failing to

answer, the pilot gave the order "hard a star-

board" (Berry 109). Again the "West Keats"

failed to respond to her helm.

Statutes.

The law applicable to the above state of facts

we claim is clear and even statutory.

Section 7899, Compiled Statutes, U. S. Code,

Title 33, Section 210, 30 Statutes at Large 101, is

as follows:

"In narrow channels every steam-vessel
shall, when it is safe and practicable, keep to

that side of the fair-way or mid-channel
which lies on the starboard side of such
vessel."
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Section 7903, Compiled Statutes, 30 Statutes at

Large 102, is as follows:

"Nothing in these rules shall exonerate
any vessel, or the owner, or master or crew
thereof, from the consequences of any neg-
lect to carry lights or signals, or of any neg-
lect to keep a proper lookout, or of the neg-
lect of any precaution which may be required
by the ordinary practice of seamen, or by the
special circumstances of the case."

Duty to Observe.

In the construction of these statutes the courts

lay upon every moving vessel the strict duty to

maintain a vigilant outlook. Where there is no
obstruction to the vision and no difficulty in

navigating caused by wind, tide or current, the

failure of the moving vessel to observe the anch-

ored vessel and to avoid her is negligence for

which the moving vessel is held to strict account.

The Europe, 190 Fed. 475, 480 (C. C. A. 9).

Here the court said:

"In his testimony the pilot of libelant's

steamboat stoutly maintained that he did not
see lights on the Europe until he climbed
upon her forecastle after the collision, but,

if her lights were visible so as to have been
seen by him at a distance of one mile, they
were sufficient to indicate the presence of
the Europe, and the failure of the steamboat
to avoid her was inexcusable. The attempt
to account f'or the failure of both the pilot and
the steamer's lookout to see both or either

of the lights on the Europe upon the theory
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that the forward light was obscured by the

forestay to which it was suspended and the

wrapping upon it, and by the jib boom with
the furled sails thereon, is a complete fail-

ure."

"The fact appears by the testimony of
both of them that the pilot and the lookout
were immediately prior to discovering the

Europe intent in looking for and trying to

drift timber floating in the water. From this

and the facts that the collision occurred and
that they deny having seen the lights, which
certainly were upon the Europe, there arises

a necessary inference that they were negli-

gent in not looking forward far enough and
sweeping a space wide enough and high
enough to see a light hung 17 feet and 6

inches above the forecastle deck of the
Europe."

To the same effect

The R. G. Townsend, 205 Fed. 514.

The John G. McCullough, 232 Fed. 637, 638-

639.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711, 712.

The inability of the navigator to distinguish

between the lights of the vessel at anchor and
lights on shore will not excuse the moving vessel

for colliding with the vessel at anchor.

The John G. McCuUough, 232 Fed. 637, 638-

639.

Where the field of vision is clear the failure of

the officers on the bridge to observe a vessel at
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anchor, whose lights are properly set, in time to

avert a collision, is negligence for which the

moving vessel will be held responsible.

The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186, 39 L. Ed. 943.

The New York, 175 U. S. 187, 204, 44 L. Ed.

126, 134.

The Europe, 190 Fed. 475 (C. C. A. 9).

In Pendleton Bros. v. Morgan, 11 F. (2d) 67,

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Fourth Cir-

cuit said:

"The observation of the light three-quar-
ters of a mile away afforded ample time to

avoid the collision, and those navigating the
Pendleton were charged with a duty to see a
light admittedly burning, which a vigilant

lookout would have observed. The failure to

discover lights until too late to avoid a col-

lision is tantamount to a failure to have a
look out at all.

Dl'ty With Reference to Speed.

As above pointed out it appears without con-

tradiction that the "West Keats" was operated at

full speed from the time she entered the Colum-
bia River until one minute before the collision, a

distance in excess of fifteen miles and a period

of one hour and forty-three minutes. This full

speed headway, amounting to nearly if not quite

ten knots an hour, was maintained after the pilot

saw the lights which subsequently proved to be

those of the "Boston Maru," and even after he

knew that the lights were those of a ship at
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anchor. Captain McXelly (Apostles 289) testifies

that in such a case as that which confronted the

"West Keats" the pilot should get the way off his

ship and stop her. We claim the law to be well

settled that a navigator must check his speed

when uncertain as to the conditions ahead of

him.

Hayne on the Rule of the Road at Sea, page

18, says:

"When there is the slightest doubt or un-
certainty from any cause, or where risk of
collision is apparent—the vessel's headway
should be stopped, and she should then be
navigated with great caution until the uncer-
tainty is cleared up."

To the same effect

The Owego, 71 Fed. 537, 544.

When confronted with danger or uncertainty it

is the duty of a moving vessel to reverse her en-

gines and stop.

The Maine, 2 F. (2d) 605, 607.

This is a decision of the Disttrict Court for the

District of Oregon. The court says:

"Among the specifications of negligence,

it is asserted by the libelant that the Maine
did not stop and reverse her engine in time
to avoid striking the raft, and was improper-
ly and carelessly navigated. These specifica-

tions, in my view, have been sustained by the

evidence. The navigation officers were sea-
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sonably apprised of the position of the Game-
cock, and at once either signified or con-
sented with her to a port to port passing.

Only shortly subsequently the Maine became
apprised that the Gamecock was incumbered
with a tow, and saw the lights on the tow.
The night was dark, and a heavy wind was
blowing—almost, if not, a veritable gale. It

was customary for boats to carry a tow of
like construction and dimensions as the one
attached to the Gamecock, and on the same
course adopted, and the pilot of the Maine
was not unaware of these conditions, and
should have been forewarned of the probable
situation at the time he became aware that

the Gamecock had a tow of logs in charge.
This was in ample time so to have managed
her navigation as to readily avoid the threat-

ened danger. She should have been brought
to a full stop at once, or very soon after she
w^as put at half-speed ahead. Such a maneu-
ver would have afforded time to clear up the

situation, and the collision could have been
avoided."

The Buenos Aires, 5 F. (2d) 425, 428.

In this case the Court of Appeals for the Sec-

ond Circuit said:

**It was the duty of the Buenos Aires when
she discovered the Windrush ahead, without
knowing definitely the course the latter was
pursuing, to stop and reverse in the face of
the manifest danger of the situation. In The
Gushing (C. C. A.), 292 F. 5()0, 563, 565, this

court held that the failure of the steamer to

stop and reverse her engines in the face of
danger was sufficient to fasten liability upon
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her. We there said: Tailure to reverse un-
til just before the collision is indicated by
the log. Steam vessels must stop their en-

gines in the presence of danger, or even an-
ticipated danger, and the failure to do so has
been the cause of condemnation of many
vessels, where collisions have occurred. The
New York, 175 U. S. 187, 20 S. Ct. 67, 44 L. Ed.
126.'

"

These principles are also recognized Dy

The Brinton, 50 Fed. 581.

The Libby Maine, 3 F. (2d) 79, 80 (D. C.

Wash.)
The Lizzie M. Walker, 3 F. (2d) 921, 922

(C. C. A. 4).

Test of Speed.

In Hayne on the Rule of the Road at Sea, page

19, it is said:

"The test of proper speed, in all cases, is

the ability of the vessel to stop her headway
in the presence of danger."

It is dangerous to pass an anchored or incum-

bered vessel at full speed in the night time.

The Howard Reeder, 207 Fed. 929, 933 (C.

C. A. 4).

The Hamilton, 212 Fed. 1016.

The Alexander Folsom, 52 Fed. 403, 410..

Here the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Sixth Circuit said:



54

"It is said by the learned district judge
'that the tendency to sheer from suction in

that channel by vessels passing under the
conditions of this case was so well known bj'

skillful seamen that the master of the
Mitchell should have considered it possible,

if not probable, on the part of the Devereaux,
and have so far guarded against it as to have
had his own vessel in perfect control, and his

wheel on the starboard, so as to have headed
his vessel to port, and have been able to put
her in that course, promptly, when the emer-
gency made it necessary.'

"If this proposition is correct, should not
the master of the Devereaux have considered
a sheer on her part possible, if not probable,
and have so far guarded against it as to have
had his own vessel in perfect control, and her
wheel on the starboard, so as to have headed
his vessel to port? Instead of doing this, he
was proceeding down the channel with his

w^heel steadied about midships, and did not
order it to starboard till after discovering the
sheer. It would hardly be a fair or consist-

ent rule to put upon the Mitchell the duty of
anticipating and guarding against the Dev-
ereaux sheering, and at the same time exon-
erate the Devereaux from the obligation of
taking precautions to prevent or counteract
the alleged well-known tendency to sheer."

It is negligence for a moving vessel to ap-

proach too close to another vessel when there is

room in the channel for safe passage.

The Chatham, 52 Fed. 396, 399 (C. C. A. 4).
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Duty to Keep to the Right.

Section 7899 of the Compiled Statutes, U. S.

Code, Title 33, Section 210, which we have quoted
above, plainly required the "West Keats" to keep
to the right and to pass the "Boston Maru" be-

tween the latter vessel and the Washington shore.

It was the duty of the "West Keats" to obey this

statute.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711.

Bisso Towboat Co. v. U. S., 6 F. (2d) 132

(CCA. 5).

It will be contended on the part of the "West
Keats" that it was customary for vessels to pro-

ceed close to the Oregon shore at the point in

question, but a custom cannot be relied on to

repeal or evade a statute which is applicable. The
Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

speaking through Judge Hanford has so held

with reference to this particular statute.

Occidental Company v. Smith, 74 Fed. 261, 267-

268.

"This case affords an opportunity which
should not be lost for emphasizing another
important rule for preventing collisions,

which must be observed by navigators. This
is found in article 21 of the international
rules, above referred to, and article 25 of the
act of August 19, 1890 (1 Supp. Rev. St. (2d
Ed.) 781-788), which reads as follows: Tn
narrow channels every steam vessel shall,

when it is safe and practicable, keep to that

side of the fairwav or mid-channel which lies
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on the starboard side of such vessel.' The
statutes of California contain a similar pro-
vision, to which reference was made in the
opinion of the district judge. This rule w^as

violated by the Oceanic in entering the
Golden Gate on the occasion of the disaster

involved in these suits, and the only excuse
offered for taking the north side is that it is

customary for large vessels in entering to

take the north side. We cannot find in the
testimony or argument of counsel any at-

tempt to give a reason for the alleged custom,
and, if it be true that there is such a custom,
it is bad in principle, and contrary to law,
and the courts will not recognize it as afford-
ing any ground for exempting a vessel from
liabilities incurred by disregarding the law."

Statute Applicable.

It is contended that Section 7899 of the Com-
piled Statutes is a passing rule and is inapplicable

to a collision between a moving and an anchored

vessel. In support of this contention appellant

cites

The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236, 239.

There is a passing remark by the court in the

above case which gives some color to appellant's

contention, but this remark was not the ground

work of the decision. The case turned on the

failure of the anchored vessel to put out her

riding lights.

Appellant also cites on this subject

The Belfast, 220 Fed. 362, 366.
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What is said on the subject does not carry to our

minds the conclusion which appellant's counsel

puts upon it. The case was one of flagrant viola-

tion of the law and of the port regulations. The
language used by the court is designed to empha-
size the court's view of the fault of the anchored

vessel in violating the law and the regulations.

We submit that the above statute is too clear

to require construction. It is as follows:

"In narrow channels every steam-vessel
shall, when it is safe and practicable, keep to

that side of the fair-way or mid-channel
which lies on the starboard side of such
vessel."

Effect of Violation of Statute.

The testimony clearly showing that the "West
Keats" violated the above statute, there is a strong

presumption that the "West Keats" was solely

responsible for the damage caused thereby. The
rule is stated thus by the District Court for

Maryland in

The Norfolk, 297 Fed. 251

:

"The burden of proof is upon the Norfolk
to show that her failure to abide by the rule

had no connection with the accident which
followed. It has been repeatedly held that

the breach of a statutory rule is such a fault

as to throw upon the offending vessel the

burden of proving, not merely that the
breach might not have been one of the causes
of the collision, or that it probably was not,

but that it could not have been."
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Suction From Bank no Defense.

It is the contention of appellant that in her

endeavor to pass between the "Boston Maru" and
the Oregon shore, the "West Keats" approached
too close to the Oregon shore and came within

the reach of suction from the bank. It is con-

tended that this caused the bow of the "West
Keats" to sheer over to starboard and to collide

with the "Boston Maru." If the facts sustained

this contention it would not excuse the "West
Keats."

The Howard Reeder, 207 Fed. 929, 933.

Here the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Fourth Circuit said:

"The Columbia was presumed to know
the depth of the channel, of the existence of
the deep-water channel and its width, of the

difference in the draft of the ship, in running
at high or low speed, and of the danger of
sheering in passing in too close proximity to

the banks. Whether this collision occurred
because of the Columbia's sheer, from run-
ning too close to the channel's banks, or be-

cause, while running at such speed, she put
her wheel hardaport and suddenly reversed,
and from the kick incident thereto, is utterly

immaterial since in either event the sheer
was caused by the excessive rate of speed of
the Columbia at a time when prudence re-

quired that she should have slowed down.
Without such sheer there manifestly could
have been no collision in 300 feet of clear
channel way. The ('olumbia's navigator
should not have waited to slow down until
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she was abreast of the tug, as he admits he
did, and until his vessel, as he says, began to

*run,' as he calls it, or sheer from the bank.
She was at the time only some 450 feet away
from the barge, and manifestly the effort to

check her speed, then for the first time made,
was too late to accomplish any real good.
Good seamanship required that she should
have anticipated danger in such a maneuver,
and for the consequences arising therefrom
she can neither escape responsibility nor
justly call upon others to share her losses."

The Hamilton, 212 Fed. 1016.

Here the District Court for the District of Vir-

ginia said:

"The ship's position is that in the effort to

pass the barge, which as she claims was in

the eastern portion of the channel, she pro-

ceeded too close to the eastern bank thereof,

smelled bottom, and as a result the ship

failed to respond to her helm, and took the

sheer mentioned, bringing about the disaster.

"The Hamilton was charged with knowl-
edge of the width of the channel, of the dan-
ger of proceeding too close to its banks, and
especially so at a high rate of speed, as she
would thereby the more quickly smell bot-

tom. Good seamanship required that she
should have anticipated these dangers, and in

no case should she have taken a chance to

pass this incumbered vessel at full speed in

the night time, without knowing whether
there was ample room for her to do so; and
she cannot avoid the consequences of the

collision, arising from these obvious omis-
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sions on her part, nor call upon others, them-
selves free from fault, to share her losses."

To the same effect

The Monroe C, Smith, 201 Fed. 569, 572.

No Suction.

The admitted facts of the case demonstrate

that there was no suction. Captain Sullivan

(Apostles 203-204) explains the cause and effect

of suction

:

"A. * * * The suction is at the stern
of a ship; in passing a shoal it is the stern of
the ship that sucks towards the shore, not the

bow, and of course the stern going towards
the shore, the bow naturally goes in the
course in which the suction is causing the

ship to draw, and w^e say that she runs away
from shore. The fact of the matter is, that

the stern is drawn toward the shore by this

action, probably by the propellor, being the

largest moving object around, displacing the

water, and the bow following the course of the
suction has caused this bow to draw. Of
course if she is moving—the faster she is mov-
ing the faster she will go off in that direction;

the faster—the further the influence would
be on the suction.

Q. The faster the vessel is going, the

greater the influence of the suction?

A. Yes, sir."

Captain Sandstrom testifies (Apostles 171-172)

that suction could not influence a vessel if it is
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headed towards the shore or nearly so. The ad-

mitted facts of the case and the photographs in

evidence show that the "West Keats" at her star-

board hawse pipe, four or five feet back from
her bow, collided with the starboard quarter of

the "Boston Maru." This indisputable fact shows
that the "West Keats" at the time of the collision

was headed toward the Oregon shore. She could

not otherwise have struck the "Boston Maru" on

the starboard side of the former vessel. Captain

Sullivan (201-205, 211) and Captain Allyn (2(54-

265) ("Boston Maru" Exhibit "N") testify as to

the conclusions to be drawn from the physical

facts of the accident which are beyond all dis-

pute. Captain Berry, the pilot of the "West
Keats," refuses to testify as to whether his stern

or his bow was closest to the Oregon shore at and
before the time of the accident (Apostles 133-

134). He is wholly unable to explain the collision

on the theory of suction if the bow of the "West
Keats" was closer to the shore than her tern,

and the physical facts demonstrate that this was
the case.

It must be conceded that the "West Keats" ran

into the "Boston Maru," although the latter vessel

was visible for three miles up the river and was
actually observed by the pilot of the "W^est

Keats" two miles above the place of collision. The
"West Keats" approached at full speed although

her pilot admits he was uncertain what the lights

ahead meant. One mile above the place of the

collision the pilot of the "West Keats" recognized
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the lights as those of a vessel at anchor whose
stern was in the direction of the Oregon shore.

He nevertheless proceeded at full speed until one
minute before the collision. The physical facts

demonstrate that it was possible for the "West
Keats" to pass between the "Boston Maru" and
the Oregon shore. It was also possible for her

to comply with her statutory duty under Section

7899 Compiled Statutes, and pass to the Washing-
ton side of the "Boston Maru." It is argued that

to pass to the Washington side of the "Boston
Maru" would require the "West Keats" to get off

her ranges, but the evidence is that for at least

half a mile at the place of the collision there is

no range to be followed (Berry 104).

On the whole case we contend that this appel-

lant has signally failed to show manifest error in

the conclusions of the District Court.

APPELLANT'S AUTHORITIES

We invite the following suggestions with ref-

erence to the authorities cited on behalf of ap-

pellant.

The Europe, 190 Fed. 475.

In this case, and at page 47(5 of the report, the

court said:

"At the time of the collision the Europe
was anchored in the deep-water channel of
the WillamcUe River, and in the usual track

of uessels ptifing up and down the river."
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Violation of Harbor Regulations.

Several of the cases relied upon by appellant

are cases where the decision of the court turned

on the fact that the anchored vessel was violating

harbor regulations.

In The Margaret J. Sanford, 203 Fed. 331, and
in U. S. V. St. Louis Transportation Co., 184 U. S.

248, the anchored vessel had violated a port rule

requiring all vessels to report to the harbor mas-
ter and to be assigned a place for anchorage.

In The Belfast, 226 Fed. 362, the vessel in

question was anchored at the entrance of Boston
harbor in violation of one of the harbor regula-

tions. She remained at the prohibited anchorage
ground after having been notified by the proper

authorities to move.

Light Draft Vessels.

In The Itasca, 117 Fed. 885, and The City of
Birmingham, 138 Fed. 555, the anchored vessels

were dredges of light draft which could anchor
almost anywhere in safety. Their situation is

very different from that of a vessel heavily load-

ed and drawing twenty-six feet one inch of water.

Facts Distinguishable.

In Culbertson v. Shaw, 18 How. 584, a flatboat

was tied to the bank. A steamer endeavoring to

land collided with the flatboat and was held liable

for all the damages.
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In The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236, the anch-

ored vessel was held liable because of her failure

to keep her riding lights burning. The evidence

is clear and uncontradicted that the riding lights

of the "Boston Maru" were burning brightly at

all times.

In The Ogemaw, 32 Fed. 919, the anchored

vessel was held liable for failure to take steps to

avoid the collision after the danger became ap-

parent. The principle announced in this case is

not applicable to the facts in the case at bar. The
pilot and master of the "West Keats" did not ex-

pect a collision until one minute before the im-

pact. The "Boston Maru" could not anticipate a

collision at any earlier time, and there was noth-

ing which its master or pilot could do to avert

the collision after the danger became apparent.

Respectfully submitted,

McCamant & Thompson,
Ralph H. King,

Proctors for Appellee.



5095

h Ihe

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

The Japanese Steamship "Boston Maru''

Appeal from the United States District Court, for

the District of Oregon

AppeUant's Reply Brief

Hon. Robert S. Bean, Judge

George Neuner, United States Attorney, and
MacCormac Snow,

Proctors for Appellant.

McGamant & Thompson and
Ralph H. King,

^
'.

Proctors for Appellee. r I L t- U
MAY 27 1-92/

F. D. \^ONGKTON,
CLERK.

ARMBRU8TER ft RENFRO. INC.





TOPICAL INDEX

Page

Appeal Not a Shadow 4

Judge Bean's Opinion 5

Stage of Water 6

Knowledge Required of Gildez 6

Uniformity of Custom 8

No Regulation for Warning 10

Distance of Boston Maru from Shore

—

Suction—Direction of West Keats 10

Warrior Rock and St. Helens Jetty, 28-2 12

"Berry Should Have Slowed Down" 14

Narrow Channel Rule a Passing Rule 19

Contentions Respecting West Keats 21

Points and Authorities 24





In the
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For the Ninth Circoit

The Japanese Steamship "Boston Maru"

Appeal from the United States District Court, for

the District of Oregon

Appellant's Reply Brief

APPEAL NOT A SHADOW

The bare facts of these cases are not greatly

in dispute. Conflicts relate principally to the

minor issues and to small differences of expert

opinion among the pilots. The issues contested

between respective counsel largely have to do

with conclusions drawn from the testimony. The
Appellate Court is not concerned to a great extent

with the credibility of witnesses and their de-

meanor on the stand. The problem of this Court

is to take up the various threads of testimony

and draw therefrom just conclusions of law.

Therefor the cases cited on pages 20-22 of Ap-

pellee's brief are not particularly applicable.



The Ariadne, 13 Wall. 475, 479:

We are not unmindful that both the Cir-
cuit and District Court came to a conclusion
different from ours as to the alleged fault of
the steamer.

Their judgments are entitled to, and have
received, our most respectful consideration.
Their concurrence raises a presumption,
prima facie, that they are correct. Mere
doubts should not be permitted to disturb
them. But the presumption referred to may
be rebutted. The right of appeal to this court
is a substantial right, and not a shadow. It

involves examination, thought, and judg-
ment. Where our convictions are clear, and
differ from those of the learned judges be-
low, we may not abdicate the performance of
the duty which the law imposes upon us by
declining to give our own judicial effect.

The Columbian. 100 Fed. 991, 996:

. . . On the other hand, it sometimes hap-
pens that the judge of the first instance re-

ceives misleading impressions with reference
to the weight to be given the testimony; and
it also sometimes happens that a court which
has a printed record, and thus can easily bal-

ance one portion of the proofs against an-
other, derives advantages superior to any
which the instance judge can derive from a
personal inspection of the witnesses.

JUDGE BEAN'S OPINION

Appellee has departed from the apostles by
including in its brief a copy of the opinion of the

trial court. We are perhaps justified in going



beyond them to say that this opinion could not

appear in the apostles because the Court did not

cause it to be filed and it forms no part of the

record in the District Court.

STAGE OF WATER
Appellee twice quotes Captain Gildez (Appel-

lee's Brief 5, 26) to the effect that at the time of

the collision the water was "about one foot"

above low water. He was of course attempting

to state the results of Government observations.

Hickson stated them first hand and said the stage

of water was one and one half feet above zero

(A 89) (Our brief 48).

KNOWLEDGE REQUIRED OF GILDEZ

On pages 26-27 of its brief Appellee, we think,

understates the degree of skill and knowledge
required of Captain Gildez in selecting his anch-

orage and overstates the amount of reliance

which the law permits him to place upon an
antiquated chart.

The alleged shoal had undoubtedly disappeared

for all practical purposes more than two years

before the collision (Our brief 48-49). Counsel

says in effect (Appellee's brief 27) that common
sense says the shoal would never wash away. We
believe it is common knowledge that the current

of a river tends to smooth out the humps and
bumps on its bottom, and that we could support

this statement by reference to learned works on



physical geography. This is unnecessary, how-

ever, for Mr. Hickson, who has had eighteen

years' experience noting the action of the current

of the Columbia River on its shoals and bars, not

only said the shoal would wash away but stated

the time required in the process, namely, "a year

or so" (A 71). The court will judicially recall

the jetties at the mouth of the Columbia and will

also be informed by the chart in evidence and by

its own judicial knowledge that an important

method of dredging the Columbia River channel

is the construction of jetties at such points that

they will cause the current to do the work.

Atlee vs. Packet Co., 21 Wall. 389, 396.

Davidson Steamship Co. vs. United States,

205 U. S. 187, 193.

The Supreme Court in these cases has out-

lined something of the extent of knowledge and

skill required of a pilot. He must know channels,

currents, obstructions, bars, landmarks and other

physical conditions. To gain this information he

has access to charts and other Government data,

but the main source is practice, observation and

experience. In the last named case a pilot dam-

aged a Government breakwater through reliance

upon an old chart and in disregard of facts

which he could have learned by observation and

through later Government circulars. The ship-

owner was held liable.
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UNIFORMITY OF CUSTOM

Appellee claims we have not shown uniform-
ity as to the customary anchorage and relies on
two classes of evidence: First, that the anchorage
in question was in accordance with the practice

of pilots Moran, Allyn, and Sullivan (Appellee's

brief 33); and secondly, that only at Oak Point
or Longview do pilots turn out to anchor away
from the customary track of navigating vessels

(Appellee's brief 25).

Captain Moran, a witness for respondent (A

257), said on cross examination that a pilot some-
times will drop anchor anywhere if he only in-

tends to stay for a few hours. He did not say

whether he referred to day or night and did not

testify that it was customary to anchor where the

Boston Maru was placed or out of the regular

anchorage and go to sleep leaving a vessel there

all night with a flood tide in prospect. Moran
stated definitely that he ordinarily anchored five

or six hundred feet farther out than where the

Boston Maru was anchored (A 256) and abreast

of Columbia City Front.

Captain Allyn, a witness for respondent, said

on direct (A 259) that the Boston Maru was "over

near the place where he would anchor." He was
not asked on direct where he would anchor. At

the opening of his cross examination he stated

definitely that he would anchor opposite Colum-
bia City Front on the Lamonts-Caples Point line.

This would place him some four hundred feet
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below and about eight hundred fifty feet easterly

from the amidships of the Boston Maru at the

time of the collision.

The statement of Captain Sullivan, witness

for Appellee, that vessels are customarily anch-

ored "in the vicinity" of the Boston Maru (A 197)

is too vague to break down more specific testi-

mony on custom. The captain knew of the wide
use by other pilots of the Red Range (A 221),

although he had not anchored at Columbia City

since prior to establishment of the Red Light at

27-2 in April, 1923 (A 223).

We submit that the incidental remarks of

these three witnesses do not refute the testimony

on uniformity.

The testimony as to Oak Point or Quinns and
Longview is merely to the effect that at these

places a ship can anchor farther away from the

main channel than at others. This does not tend

to show that it is not customary to anchor as far

as possible from the main channel at Columbia
City.

Captain Dalby (Baldy) said, referring to the

Lamonts-Courthouse line opposite or a little be-

low Columbia City Front (A 151):

. . . Some places along that river we have
places to anchor, and generally swing to one
side there and anchor. This is one of the

places as long as the atmosphere is clear, as

a rule, we go out to the anchorage grounds.
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NO REGULATION FOR WARNING
Appellee contends that because no statute re-

quires an anchored vessel to blow whistles the

Boston Maru is to be excused for not having done
so. We remind the court that the Boston Maru
was in an unusual, dangerous and deceptive loca-

tion. The cases require precaution commen-
surate with the dangers she created (Appellant's

brief 67).

Article 29 of the Inland Rules, being section

7903 Compiled Statutes, provides as follows:

Art. 29. Nothing in these rules shall ex-

onerate any vessel, or the owner or master
or crew thereof, from the consequences of
any neglect to carry lights or signals, or of
any neglect to keep a proper lookout, or of
the neglect of any precaution which may be
required by the ordinary practice of seamen,
or by the special circumstances of the case.

DISTANCE OF BOSTON MARU FROM SHORE-
SUCTION—DIRECTION OF WEST KEATS

Appellee states and assumes on page 24 of its

brief that the Boston Maru would swing on the

radius not appreciably greater than 400 feet and
that her stern would therefor be 250 feet from
the deep water line along the Oregon shore. With
this assumption, our dividers describe the dis-

tance as 175 feet if the bearing of the bow was
incorrect and 125 feet if it was correct (Our brief

14-15).
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But we contend that the record does not con-

tain any definite answer to the question how far

a vessel will stretch out her anchor chain when
swinging on a changing current, and that in the

nature of things there can be no definite answer
(Berry 120). Captain Allyn, a witness for the

Boston Maru, said on direct (A 261)

:

Q. When it does swing, the radius of the

arc on which it swings is what?

A. That would be a hard thing to say,

because you never know what the wind or
tide conditions are.

Q. Now, would the radius of the arc on
which the vessel swings be much in excess of
the length of the vessel?

A. That I couldn't say; I don't know.

Peculiarities of currents at different times,

places and conditions are such that it would in-

deed be hard to phrase a law governing all cir-

cumstances. The record indicates that no vessel

ever before swung on her anchor chain in the

same place that the Boston Maru swung on the

night of the collision. To determine how the

chain led calls for consideration of other evi-

dence.

Counsel says (Appellant's brief page 58) that

we contend that the bow of the West Keats

sheared to starboard. We could not properly

make such a contention as there is no evidence

whatever to support it. What we desired to say
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on page 89 of our main brief is that the suction

counteracted the starboard helm and the West
Keats went straight and neither answered to her

starboard helm nor sheered in response to the

suction. This is in accordance with the undis-

puted testimony of Berry and Gillette (A 109, A
422).

The latter said in reference to the hard-a-

starboard order (A 422)

:

Q. Did the ship obey her helm?

A. No, sir.

Q. Which way did it go?

A. Kept right going straight ahead.

Appellee contends that the West Keats was
going toward the Oregon shore at the time of the

collision and that there was no suction. If so,

why did not the hard-a-starboard helm take hold

and why did not the Keats run ashore? It is im-

possible to conclude there was no suction unless

Berry and Gillette are incapable of belief.

The only conclusion is that the stern of the

Boston Maru was fairly close to the six fathom
line although more than 300 feet from the Oregon
shore.

WARRIOR ROCK AND ST. HELENS JETTY
LIGHT, 28-2

Appellee showed that there was nothing in

particular to obstruct the line of vision from
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Warrior Rock to the place of collision and in-

ferred that Berry should have been on his guard
as to the situation when he passed Warrior Rock.

This sounds reasonable at first blush but the

pilots placed on the stand by respondent did not

bear out the idea. Captain Moran did not make
out the lights of the Boston Maru until after he

left the end of the St. Helens Jetty (A 248). Cap-

tain Allyn, Appellee's witness, pointed out on
direct examination (A 262) that a pilot would be

too busy looking at his course after passing War-
rior Rock and that he would not have an unob-

structed view of the lower river until after he

passed the St. Helens jetty light at 28.2. No pilot

even suggested that Berry should have made the

lights of the Boston before he did. The law re-

quires these liglits to be visible for only one
mile (Inland Rules, Art. 11).

Berry made the lights of the Boston when
about at 28.2 (A 101). Page 61 of Appellee's

brief contains a statement that Berry admits he

was then uncertain what the lights meant. We
see no such admission in his tes^timony. He said

clearly (A 103) that he then thought she was in

the regular anchorage.

No pilot gave testimony tending to throw

doubt on the reasonableness of Berry's then be-

lief that the Boston was in the usual anchorage.

The real question under the expert testimony was

whether Berry could reasonably be expected to
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know the unusual location of the Boston fairly

accurately, not at a mile or more, but at 2000

feet.

Looking at the stretch of water from 28.2 to

the end of the St. Helens bar range the Court will

note that the Boston Maru was not straight ahead
but partly around a curve and that the angle

subtended by a line from that vessel to the

regular anchorage is very small.

"BERRY SHOULD HAVE SLOWED DOWN"
In giving special emphasis to this theory. Ap-

pellee assumes knowledge by Berry (or liability

to be charged with knowledge) either of the loca-

tion of the Boston Maru or else that he did not

know her location. It is undisputed in the record

that he did not know her location until he was
comparatively close to her, that he did not realize

she was out of the anchorage until after he had
turned off the St. Helens bar range (Our brief p.

88) and was headed toward her, and that the

knowledge that she was close to the shore was
borne upon him gradually rather than abruptly.

The issue is not what he knew but what he
should have known and the reasonableness of

his judgment.

In considering the effect of slowing down the

Court will remember that there is an abundance
of uncontradicted testimony in the record that:

(1) The West Keats steers best at full speed

ahead.
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(2) With her engines stopped she does nol

steer well.

(3) When her engines are stopped at full

speed she would travel three or four miles on
her own momentum if she could be kept going

straight.

(4) When she is going ahead and her engines

are set astern her bow swings to starboard. The
amount and angle of her swing or sheer depends
on speed and other factors and its uncertain and
variable.

It is pertinent to ask where, when, why and
how he should have slowed up. If Berry had
known or suspected the location of the Boston at

a mile distant or even at a half a mile it would
have been easier and safer for him to have left

the ranges and proceeded on the Washington
side. Slowing up would have meant merely loss

of rudder power and there was no possible reason

for it. Other pilots do not slow up for a ship at

anchor at this point (McNelly 279).

Inside half a mile the idea of slowing up in-

volves doubts and dangers. By proceeding half

ahead or stopping his engines he would lose less

or more steerage power without losing a great

deal of way. The testimony of Captain Sand-

strom is very clear on this point, and is uncontra-

dicted (A 166-7):

Court: Now suppose a careful navigator
coming up the river or down the river, I
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think it was, should notice in the channel,
,athwart the channel, a vessel at anchor two
thousand feet away from him, what would
be the proper course, reasonable and proper
course, for the navigator to pursue?

A. When he was down that far the most
reasonable course that he would proceed on
the Oregon side, to go by on that side.

Court: As long as he saw clearance, he
wouldn't be expected to slow down, stop the
speed of his boat?

A. No, that would probably be a worse
thing to do.

Court: Why?
A. Because he would lose control of his

ship immediately he stopped the propeller.

This class of vessels the minute you stop the
propeller won't steer two lengths themselves.

Court: How far would it go on its own
momentum?

A. If she would run perfectly straight

she would probably go three or four miles
on her own momentum.

Again, inside a half a mile. Berry might have

set the engines full or half astern. If he had
done this when close to the Boston, say less than

a thousand feet, the testimony shows with con-

siderable certainty that he would have hit her

head on. At greater distances the results of an
astern maneuver are altogether speculative. He
might have hit the Boston head on or broadside
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or with his stern, or he might have passed her

bow safely and fouled her anchor chain, or he
might have passed bow and anchor chain and
gone ashore on the Washington side, or he might
have passed safely and succeeded in turning back
into the river.

This much is certain from the expert testi-

mony, that no pilot will set a vessel like the Keats

from full ahead to astern suddenly except in an
emergency and with plenty of river to turn in.

No such emergency ever existed in this case be-

fore the collision either in Berry's mind or in

fact.

We confidently assert that all speculation as

to when, where, how and why Berry might have

avoided the collision by slowing up results in

zero. The idea of slowing up, first applied to a

lay mind, finds ready and eager acceptance, but

it does not bear analysis when exhibited in the

light of the pilots' testimony.

When counsel argues that Berry should have

slowed up he first assumes that Berry knew the

Boston Maru was out of the anchorage before he

did or became doubtful of her position before

he did. Berry testified that he thought she was
in the anchorage when he first made her lights

about at 28.2 (A 103) and when he made the turn

off the St. Helens bar range about half a mile

from her (A 108), and that he gradually, not sud-

denly, became aware that she was out of place

(A 108). His course confirms the truth of his

testimony.
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It might be argued that he should have known
her position before he did, but counsel does not

emphasize this point and the testimony is the

other way. Sandstrom (164) said he could rea-

sonably locate her at 2150 feet or less depending
on the darkness. Grunstad said the same as to

2000 feet (A 179-80). Sullivan, Appellee's chief

expert witness, said he might get within 1000 feet

and still be easily mistaken as to her position (A
209). At 1000 feet Berry had become fully aware
of the situation and was probably getting ready
to stop his engines (Our brief 90). Dalby, who
saw the Boston Maru just after the collision, and
knew more about the facts than the other experts

says (A 151)

:

Q. Suppose you had been on the "West
Keats" in his place; at what point do you
think you could have determined where the
"Boston Maru" was anchored.

A. Well, I wouldn't probably have turned
out (determined it?) much quicker than he
did, because naturally we would think the
vessel was anchored over where she was
anchored in clear weather. I never seen a
ship anchored there in my life in clear

weather.

Again, when counsel argues that Berry should

have slowed up, he devotes considerable space to

dicta of the courts but practically none to the

testimony. We think the latter should have pre-

cedence. The problem is specialized and local-

ized. Also, the exact method of handling a ship,

as distinguished from general rules of naviga-
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tion, is a subject of technical knowledge rather
than law.

NARROW CHANNEL RULE A PASSING RULE

On pages 95 to 101 of our main brief we con-

tend that Article 25 of the Inland Rules does not
apply to the case, broadly for three reasons:

(1) The narrow channel rule is flexible and
should not receive a construction that condemns
the use of Government-established ranges;

(2) The rule recognizes anchorages and nav-

igating channels existing side by side, and the

navigator is not required to leave the customary
navigating channel and invade the customary
anchorage when the latter lies to the right of the

former; and

(3) The narrow channel rule is a passing rule

and does not apply in respect to ships at anchor,

especially when anchored in violation of the

anchorage statute.

Counsel take issue with us on only the third

contention and claim that the narrow channel

rule applies to anchored as well as navigating

vessels, citing the following cases on page 55 of

their brief:

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 Fed. 711.

Bisso Towboat Co. v, U. 5., 6 F. (2d) 132.

Occidental Company v. Smith, 74 Fed. 261.
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The two cases last named involve passing ves-

sels and not anchorage.

In The Kathleen Tracy the steamer Lake
Ledan dragged off the general anchorage in a

gale. Her officers met the situation and the

Court commends their action. Arrived at a safe

place between two channels they veered more
chain and dropped another anchor which held

her. The Court says:

I can think of no better place to lay up
the steamer under the circumstances so far
as navigation is concerned.

This is a fixed and pivotal fact in the case.

I do not think that the Lake Ledan was
an obstruction to navigation.

The tug Tracy passed to her left of another

tug with carfloats, and her tows fouled the Lake
Ledan's anchor chain. The Court holds the

Tracy at fault in three particulars:

\. Her lookout did not see the lights of the

carfloat tug until too late to cross and pass to the

right of her (as required by Article 18 of the

Inland Rules);

2. Her master admits he did not see the

Lake Ledan's anchor lights as early as he should

have; and

3. The Tracy did not keep on the right hand
side of the channel.
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It will be seen that the narrow channel rule

was here invoked as between the Tracy and the

carfloat tug. If the Tracy had seen the lights of

the Lake Ledan and the carfloat tug soon enough
to pass the latter port to port as required by Arti-

cle 18, and had thus followed the narrow channel
rule, she would not have fouled the Lake Ledan.
We believe that as far as the narrow channel rule

is concerned The Kathleen Tracy is a passing and
not an anchorage case.

The only cases we know of referring to the

narrow channel rule strictly in connection with

anchored vessels hold that the rule does not apply
in anchorage cases, especially where the anchored
vessel is improperly placed. These cases are

cited on pages 100-101 of our main brief and are:

The John H. Starin, 122 Fed. 236, 239, and

The Belfast, 226 Fed. 362, 366.

CONTENTIONS RESPECTING WEST KEATS I

We contend, first, that no fault of commission
or omission on Berry's part is shown by a pre-

ponderance of the evidence, and second, that a

preponderance of the evidence upholds his con-

duct.

There was no evidence that he should reason-

ably have made out the lights of the Boston Maru
before he did. At that time he believed the

Boston was in the usual anchorage. Much evi-

dence tends to show that this belief was reason-

able, and there was none to the contrary. There
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is no testimony whatever tending to prove that he
should reasonably have known tlie Boston was
out of place until after he turned off the St.

Helens bar range and he did not know it then.

It is natural under the circumstances that the in-

formation that she was off the anchorage and
fairly close to the Oregon bank should have come
to him gradually and not in the form of a sudden
shock.

The consensus of opinion of the pilots is that

he should reasonably have been able to deter-

mine her position pretty accurately at about 2000
feet or closer, depending on the degree of dark-

ness.

The composite judgment of the pilots was that

a turn at 2000 feet to the Washington side would
have been sharp, unusual and dangerous.

Any slowing or stoppage of his engines would
have resulted in a loss of steering power. No
witness gave testimony tending to prove that a

half speed, slow ahead, stop or astern bell would
have been helpful or even safe at any time.

There was much testimony directly to the con-

trary, especially that showing the effect of slow-

ing, stopping and backing the engines. After

turning off the range any slowing would have
been useless and even dangerous as the record

shows without contradiction. Berry held at full

speed getting all the purchase possible on the

hard-a-starboard helm until he saw that the rud--

der would not take hold. Then he stopped the
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engines and held his helm hard-a-starboard until

after the collision.

This stoppage is not criticised or charged as

negligence.

Berry might have avoided the collision by an
unusually shrewd and lucky guess at the location

of the Boston Maru, or by a spectacular and dan-

gerous turn of doubtful necessity, if the same re-

sulted successfully, but the law does not demand
either of these.

The things which Captain Berry actually did

are well known and are not particularly criti-

cised. Criticism consists of pointing out things

which he did not do but might have done. With
a chart before one showing the event in plain

lines it is easy to say that if Berry had done thus

or so he could have avoided the collision. But
the question is whether he acted with reasonable

prudence.

The Nevada, 106 U. S. 154, 157.

The canal boat Kate Green came into a slip

just as the Nevada was about to leave and made
fast to the Hart, another canal boat. Suction of

the Nevada's propeller broke the Hart's fasten-

ings to the slip and the Kate Green was damaged.
The Nevada was at fault for not keeping a look-

out aft. Referring to those on board the Kate

Green, Mr. Justice Bradley said:
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... It was reasonable for them to suppose
that the fastening of the "C. H. Hart** was
secure. They could not know that it would
break. It was that break which set them
adrift, subject to the suction caused by the
motion of the "Nevada's" propeller. Their
own fastenings were sufficient. We do not
see how the court could find otherwise than
that they were free from fault or negligence.
Perhaps they might have done something
else which would have been better. The
event is always a great teacher. They might
have stayed out in the river and not entered
the slip; or, having entered, they might have
gone back to the bulkhead, and stayed there
till the "Nevada" left. But these possibilities

are not the criteria by which they are to be
judged. The question is, Did they do all that

reasonable prudence required them to do un-
der the circumstances? And this question,
we think, must be answered in the affirma-
tive.

Carscallon vs. Coeur D'Alene Co. (Ida.),

98 Pac. 622.

Pittsburgh Sc Erie Coal Co. vs. George Ur-

ban Milling Co., 226 Fed. 332, 334.

The R. P. Fitzgerald, 212 Fed. 678, 684.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Anchorage obstructing or preventing passage

of other craft is unlawful.

Act of March 3, 1899 Compiled Statutes P.

9920.

The Europe (CCA 9th), 190 F. 475.

The Caldy, 153 F. 837.
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The Hilton, 213 F. 997.

The Itasca, 117 F. 885.

The Bern, 255 F. 235.

Anchorage contrary to regulation or custom
is unlawful.

Culbertson v. Shaw, 18 How. 584.

U. S. V, St. Louis Co., 184 U. S. 247.

The Sandford-Strathleven, 203 F. 331; 213

F. 975.

Graves v. Lake Michigan Ferry Co., 183 F.

378.

The Admiral Cecille, 134 F. 673.

Anchorage on or near a range is wrongful.

City of Birmingham, 183 F. 559.

The Milligan, 12 F. 338.

The Belfast, 226 F. 362.

Precautions of anchored vessel should be pro-

portionate to the perils assumed.

The Ogemaw, 32 F. 919.

The Starin, 122 F. 236.

Article 29, Inland Rules; Compiled Statutes

P. 7903.

Where a vessel improperly anchored is run
into the burden of proof is upon her to show the

moving vessel at fault.

The Clara. 102 U. S. 200, 202.

The Starin, 122 F. 236.
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The Prudence, 212 F. 537.

The Miner, 260 F. 901.

The Europe, 175 F. 596, 190 F. 475.

The Belfast, 226 F. 366.

Graves v. Lake Michigan Co., 183 F. 378.

The Sandford-Strathleuen, 203 F. 331.

The Nereus, 23 F. 448.

The Oregon, 158 U. S. 186.

The narrow channel rule is flexible and does

not forbid use of ranges.

The Klatawaw, 266 F. 120.

The G. S. Tice, 287 F. 127.

The Three Brothers, 170 F. 48.

Transfer No. 21, 248 F. 459.

The narrow channel rule recognizes anchor-

ages and navigating channels side by side and
does not require leaving the channel and invad-

ing the anchorage.

The Bee, 138 F. 303.

The La Bretagne, 179 F. 286.

The Randolph, 200 F. 96.

The narrow channel rule relates to passing of

navigating and not anchored vessels.

The John H. Starin, 122 F. 236.

The Belfast, 226 F. 362.

I
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Is the last clear chance doctrine the law of this

court sitting in admiralty?

The Yucatan, 236 F. 436.

American Hawaiian Co. v. King Coal Co.,

11 F. 2nd 41.

The Miner, 260 F. 901.

The Waterford, 6 F. 2nd 980.

The Kathleen Tracy, 296 F. 711.

The Daniel McAllister, 258 F. 594.

Appeal on conclusions to be drawn from facts

is not a shadow but a substantial right.

The Adriane, 13 Wal. 475.

The Columbian, 100 F. 991.

Degree of skill and knowledge required of a

pilot.

Atlee u. Packet Co., 21 Wal. 389.

Davidson S. S. Co. u. U. S., 205 U. S. 187.

The basis of negligence is whether reasonable

prudence was exercised, not possibilities indi-

cated by the event.

The Nevada, 106 U. S. 154.

Carscallen v. Coeur D'Alene Co. (Ida.), 98

Pac. 622.

Respectfully submitted,

George Neuner,
United States Attorney,

William G. Munly,
District Counsel,

U. S. Shipping Board,

MacCormac Sx()w%

Proclors for Appellant.
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NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF ATTORNEYS
OF RECORD.

For Petitioner:

J. W. MORIN, Esq., of MORIN, NEWELL &
BROWN, 723 Pacific-Southwest Bank
Building, Pasadena, California.

For Trustee:

HUBERT P. LAUGHARN, Esq., Trustee,

in propria persona^ Subway-Terminal

Building, Los Angeles, California.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals in

and for the Ninth District.

IN BANKRUPTCY.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

PETITION TO REVISE IN MATTERS OF
LAW AN ORDER REFUSING TO SET
ASIDE CERTAIN PROPERTY AS EX-
EMPT.

To the Honorable Judges of the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals in and for the Ninth

District

:

The petition of Elizabeth B. Russell respectfully

represents

:

I.

That she is and was at all times herein mentioned
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the bankrupt herein. That she was a-djudicated a

bankrupt upon the 8th day of July, 1926.

II.

That upon the 10th day of September, 1926, the

Trustee herein, Herbert F. Laugharn, as Trustee

of the Estate of said bankrupt, made his Report

of Exempt Property, a copy of which is hereto at-

tached, designated as Exhibit "A," and reference

to said exhibit is hereby made and the same is

hereby made a part of this petition. That in said

report the Trustee refuses to set aside as exempt

the following described property, to wit

:

Property lying and being in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California, and bounded

and particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block ''Q" of the

San Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscel-

laneous Record of said County, described as

follows: Beginning at a point in the East line

of Hudson Avenue, distant 70 feet South from

the Southeast corner of California Street and

Hudson Avenue, as said corner is shown on the

Maj) of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in Book

9, page 33 of Maps, thence East parallel with

the South line of said California [1*]

Street, one hundred and twenty-five (125)

feet, then South parallel with the East line of

Hudson Avenue, 60 feet thence West parallel

with the South line of said California Street,

125 feet to the East line of said Hudson Ave-

nue, thence North along said East ]iii(> 60 feet

•Pago-nunibor appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Petition for Revision.
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to the point of the beginning. Also known as

No. 590 S. Hudson Avenue, in the City of Pasa-

dena, California,

although said property was exempt property under

and by virtue of the effect of a certain Declaration

of Homestead filed and recorded by the bankrupt

on October 11, 1923, in Book 2718, at page 247 of

Official Records, Los Angeles County, California.

III.

Thart upon the 27th day of September, 1926, the

said Elizabeth B. Russell, the bankrupt, did file in

the matter of said bankruptcy proceedings her ex-

ceptions and objections to the Trustee's Report of

Exempt Property, a copy of which is hereto an-

nexed, marked Exhibit "B," and reference to said

exhibit is hereby made and the same is hereby made

a part of this petition.

lY.

That thereafter, and on the 12th day of Novem-
ber, 1926, an order was made by the Referee, after

due hearing, confirming said report of said Trustee

on the subject of exempt property hereinbefore re-

ferred to, and that notice of the entry of said judg-

ment by the Referee was issued by the said Referee

on the 17th day of November, 1926, and a copy of

said notice containing a copy of said order and
judgment is hereto annexed, designated as Exhibit

^*C," and reference to said exhibit is hereby made
and the same is hereby made a part of this petition.

v.

That thereafter, and upon the 24th day of No-
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vember, 1926, and within ten days after notice of

the entry of the last-mentioned order and judgment

of the Referee, the said Elizabeth B. Russell did file

a Petition for Review of said Referee's order [2]

(by United States District Court), a copy of which

petition is hereto annexed, designated as Exhibit

*'D," and reference to said exhibit is hereby made

and the same is hereby made a part of this petition.

VI.

That thereafter, and upon the 13th day of Decem-

ber, 1926, the Referee did file his Certificate on

Petition for Review pertaining to said proceedings

in the office of the District Court of the United

Startes for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division, and a copy of said petition is

hereto annexed, designated Exhibit "E," and ref-

erence to the said exhibit is hereby made and the

same is hereby made a part of this petition.

VII.

That thereafter and following upon the presenta-

tion of said matter before said District Court last

mentioned, the said matter was submitted to said

Court, and upon the 29th day of January, 1927, an

order was entered in the said United States District

Court referred to confirming the order of the

Referee of the 12th day of November, 1926, here-

inabove referred to, and a certified cop}^ of the

said order of said District Court is made and filed

as a part hereof, marked Exhibit ''F," and refer-

ence to said exliibit is hereby made and the same is

hereby made a part of this petition.
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VIII.

A copy of the appraisement showing the vahie

of the property in controversy in these proceedings

is attached hereto, designated Exhibit "G," aiid

reference to said exhibit is hereby made and the

same is hereby made a part of this petition.

IX.

Your petitioner further says that she is aggrieved

by the order of said District Court confirming the

order of the [3] Referee of November 12, 1926,

and is injured thereby, and that errors have oc-

curred in the matter of said order as follows:

1. That, though the property described in this

petition is conceded to be a homestead, and exempt

from execution, the Court, following the report of

the Trustee and the Referee in refusing to set aside

the same as exempt property, under the provisions

of Chapters One and Two, Title V, Part Four, Divi-

sion Two, Civil Code of the State of California, has

erred in matters of law.

2. That the Court in refusing to set aside

as exempt the real property involved in this peti-

tion, and in affirming the order of the Referee or-

dering the Trustee to bring proceedings to sell the

property involved, free and clear of liens, and from
the proceeds to pay the encumbrance on the prop-

erty, the claim of homestead exemption of $5,000.00

to the bankrupt, and to account to the bankrupt

estate for the surplus over and above the sarid two

amounts, has erred in a matter of law.

3. That the Court in affirming the order of the

Referee, which order, while conceding that the right.
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title and interest of the bankrupt in the homestead

property, both at the time of the bankruptcy and

at the time of the imposing of the homestead

thereon, wars of a value not in excess of $3,000.00,

yet should be sold, and the proceeds of the sale of

the entire property, both the community interest

and the separate property interest of the bankrupt,

pooled together for determining the exemptions,

and the excess, if any, over exemptions pooled and

accounted for to the bankrupt estate, erred in a

matter of law.

4. That the Court in affirming the order of the

Trustee ordering that, although all excess of inter-

est in the property over and above $3,000.00 was in

fact the communit}^ property of Rufus W. Russell,

husband of the bankrupt, and not the pi'operty of

the bankrupt and under no liability for her debts,

yet [4] nevertheless to be subjected to the claims

of the bankrupt estate, and in effect appropriated

to the use of the bankrupt's creditors, erred in cT

matter of law.

5. The Court in affirming the order of the Ref-

eree holding that even though a homestead declared

by the bankrupt upon a property interest wortli

not in excess of $3,000.00, when followed by addi-

tional contributions of community funds from the

husband's control made after the imposing of the

homestead character in some manner converted said

community contributions to the status of the sepa-

rjite property of the bankrupt, regai'dless of the

fact that said contributions were not a gift to the

banknipt, and that the homestead exemption was

not filed at a time after said commmiity contribu-
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tions were made to the homestead, erred in a matter

of law.

6. The Court in affirming the order of the Ref-

eree, in effect holding thart the imposition of a

homestead character upon the property had the

effect of pooling all contributions made to that in-

vestment after, as well as before, the recording of

the homestead, and had the effect of altering the

title to the homestead property itself from that of

tenancy in common to some other tenancy, in sub-

stance the sole property of the bankrupt, even

though the imposition of a homestead exemption

does not of itself effect the title to property, but

only gives the property certain characteristics re-

gardless of the title to the property itself, erred in

a matter of law.

7. The Court in affirming the order of the Ref-

eree in effect determining that the community prop-

erty of the husband of the bankrupt should be ap-

plied to the payment of the debts of the wife con-

tracted after marriage, erred in a matter of law.

WHEREFORE, petitioner prays that the said

order of the said District Court be reviewed and re-

vised in matters of law, and that said order be re-

versed, and for all proper [5] relief herein.

MORIN, NEWELL & BROWN,
By J. W. MORIN,

Attorneys for Elizabeth B. Russell, Bankrupt and

Petitioner.
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United States of America,

Southern District of California,

Southern Division,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

Elizabeth B. Russell, being duly sworn, savs:

That she is the bankrupt in the foregoing proceed-

ings, and is the petitioner in the within entitled

matter. That she knows the contents of the fore-

going Petition to Revise, and the same is true as

she believes.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 26th day

of February, 1927.

[Seal] JAMES WH:^ELER MORIN,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California. [6]

EXHIBIT "A."

In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern Di-

vision.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

TRUSTEE'S BEPORT OF EXEMPT PROP-
ERTY.

At Los Angeles, California, on the 10th day of

September, 1926.
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The following is a schedule of property desig-

nated and set apart to be retained by the bankrupt

aforesaid as his own property under the provi-

sions of the Acts of Congress relating to Bank-

ruptcy :

General Head. Particular Description. Value.

Military Uniforms, Arms
and Equipment: None

Property exempted under State Laws:

Wearing apparel 150 . 00

Pictures 50.00

2 Rings (pledged) 100.00

1 Watch 25.00

2 Pins 25.00

Claimed exempt under Section 690, C. C. P.,

State of California.

The Trustee refuses to set aside as exempt the

following described property, to wit:

Property lying and being in the County of Los An-

geles, State of California, and bounded and

particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block "Qi" of the San

Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscellaneous

Records of said County, described as follows: Be-

ginning at a point in the East line of Hudson Ave-

nue, distant 70 feet South from the Southeast cor-

ner of California Street and Hudson Avenue, as

said comer is shown on the Map of the Oakwood

Tract, recorded in Book 9, page 33 of Maps, thence

East parallel with the South line of said Califor-

nia Street, one hundred and twenty-five (125) feet,

then South parallel [7] with the East line of
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Hudson Avenue, 60 feet thence West parallel with

the South line of said California Street, 125 feet

to the East line of said Hudson Avenue, thence

North along sarid East line 60 feet to the point of the

beginning. Also known as No. 590 E. Hudson Ave-

nue, in the City of Pasadena, California.

Said property has a value of approximately $14,-

000.00 and is encumbered to the extent of approxi-

mately $7,000.00. Encumbrance is in favor of the

Hogan Finance Company. Declaration of home-

stead has been filed upon said property. The Trus-

tee alleges that the bankrupt estate has an interest

in said property and that the same should not be

set aside as exempt to the bankrupt.

H^i^BERT F. LAUGHARN,
Trustee. [8]

EXHIBIT "B."

In the District Court of the United States, South-

ern District of California:, Southern Division.

No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

EXCEPTIONS AND OBJECTIONS TO TRUS-
TEE'S REPORT OF EXEMPT PROP-
ERTY.

I.

Now comes Elizabeth B. Russell, of Pasadena,

California, the above bankrupt, and excepts to th(^

Trustee's repoi-t of exempt property filed herein
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on or about the 10th day of September, 1926, in so

far as in said report the Trustee refuses to set

aside as exempt the following described property,

to wit

:

Property lying and being in the County of Los An-

geles, State of California, and bounded and

particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block ''Q" of the San

Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscella-

neous Records of said County, described as fol-

lows: Beginning at a point in the East line of

Hudson Avenue, distant 70 feet South from

the Southeast comer of California Street and

Hudson Avenue, as said comer is shown on the

Map of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in Book

9, page 33 of Maps, thence East parallel with

the South line of said California Street, one

hundred and twenty-five (125) feet, then South

parallel with the East line of Hudson Avenue,

60 feet thence West parallel with the South

line of said California Street, 125 feet to the

East line of said Hudson Avenue, thence North

along said East line 60 feet to the point of the

beginning. Also known as No. 590 S. Hudson

Avenue, in the City of Pasadena, California.

II.

The bankrupt respectfully represents that error

has been committed by the said Trustee in refusing

to set aside as exempt the above-described property

in this, that the said above-described real property

and all the right, title and interest of the bankrupt

therein is a homestead and is exempt from execution
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under the provisions of Chapters 1 and 2, Title 5,

Part 4, Division 2 of the [9] Civil Code of the

State of Carlifornia.

III.

Bankrupt respectfully represents that on or about

the 2'2d day of September, 1923, she entered into a

contract in writing for the purchase of said de-

scribed property from Hogan Company, the owner

thereof, at the total agreed purchase price of $14,-

500.00, payable in installments. $2,000.00 was paid

on said agreement on September 22, 1923, substan-

tially all of which was the separate property of the

bankrupt derived by her from distributive share in

the estate of her mother who died some years before.

Under the provisions of said agreement, the bank-

rupt was permitted to take possession of said prop-

erty upon the execution of the agreement. The

said property was at the time and still is improved

with a single family dwelling-house and garage and

the usual appurtenances of a dwelling-house and

into said dwelling-house and to and upon said real

property the said bankrupt, accompanied by her

husband, Rufus W. Russell, and her daughter,

Elizabeth Russell, moved on or about the 22d day of

September, 1923.

IV.

At all times herein mentioned the bankrupt was a

married woman, the wife of Rufus W. Russell. At

all times herein mentioned and for many years prior

thereto, and at all times since, the bankrupt was

and still is living together with the said Rufus W.
Russell as husband and wife and at all times herein
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mentioned said Elizabeth Russell was the daughter

of said bankrupt and Rufus W. Russell and living

with her said parents and dependent upon them for

support.

V.

That upon the 10th day of October, 1923, the

bankrupt executed and acknowledged a declaration

of homestead describing the property hereinabove

described therein and claiming the same, together

with the dwelling-house thereon and the appurten-

ances, as a [10] homestead. That said declaration

showed that the declarant and claimant was a mar-

ried woman; that the name of the husband was as

hereinabove set forth ; that the name of the daughter

was as hereinabove set forth; that it contained a

statement that at the time of the making of said

declaration they all did actually reside on the prem-

ises hereinabove and therein described; that said

declaration did further contain a statement that said

husband had not made any declaration of home-

stead heretofore nor had the declarant, and that

therefore this said declaration was made for the

joint benefit of the said husband and the declarant.

A statement of the actual cash value of said prem-

ises as estimated by declarant was also therein con-

tained. The said declaration was thereafter and

upon the 11th day of October, 1923, recorded in

Book 2718, page 247, Official Records of Los Angeles

County, California. A copy of said declaration is

hereto annexed and designated Exhibit "A," and

reference is hereby made to the same for further

particulars, and it is hereby intended that said ex-
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hibit shall be received with the same effect as if

herein fully set out.

VI.

That all the matters and things contained in said

declaration of homestead were true. That at the

time the said bankrupt and her husband and

daughter were all residing together upon said prem-

ises and intending to reside there permanently and

the said bankrupt and her said husband have con-

tinued at all times since to reside and are still I'e-

siding in and upon said premises as their permanent

home.

VII.

That at the time of the recording of said declara-

tion of homestead there were no judgments either

rendered or entered against the claimant or her hus-

band and no liens or other encumbrances against

said property so far as any creditor or claimant is

concerned. [11]

VIII.

That on or about the 24th day of September, 1923,

the bankrupt borrowed, without security, the sum

of $1,000.00 from a friend, Mrs. Florence Hartman,

and paid said sum upon said contract purchase for

said above described real property, and that there-

after from time to time additional payments were

made subsequent to the recording of said declara-

tion of homestead upon said contract, but that all

of said payments were made from comnninity funds

of Rufus W. Russell and said bankrupt. That said

funds were appropriated by said bankrupt out of

comnninilv funds which were subject to the actual
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possession of bankrupt without specific authority of

Rufus W. Russell and there was no intention ex-

pressed or assumed on the part of Rufus W. Rus-

sell either to make a gift of any of said sums of

money to the bankrupt or to lend to her any such

sums of money, but it was at all times referred to

as the intention of bankrupt to credit the com-

munity with such proportionate interest in said

property as the community funds therein invested

bore to the separate funds of the bankrupt therein

invested. That the total payments made upon said

purchase price contract of said homestead property

is $7,500.00; that the total value of the interest in

said property comprising both the separate interest

of the bankrupt and the community interest therein

is not in excess of the same amount and that there has

at no time been any additional investment therein

at the bankrupt out of her separate funds except the

said initial payment of not exceeding $2,000.00, and

the bankrupt therefore respectfully represents and

avers that the total value of the separate property

interest of said bankrupt in said homestead prop-

erty is not in excess of $2,000.00.

WHEREFORE, bankrupt contends that all the

right, title and interest of the said bankrupt, Eliza-

beth B. Russell, in or to said real property above

described should be set aside as exempt property

under the provisions of law in such cases made and

provided [12] and that an order should be made

to that effect herein.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL.
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State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

I, Elizabeth B. Russell, the bankrupt debtor here-

inabove mentioned, being duly sworn do depose and

say : That I have read the foregoing Exceptions and

Objections to Trustee's Report of Exempt Property

and hereby make solemn oath that the statements

contained therein are true according to the best of

my knowledge, information and belief.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this day

of September, 1926.

[Seal] JAMES WHEELER MORIN,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los Angeles,

State of California. [13]

EXHIBIT "A."

DECLARATION OF HOMESTEAD.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That I, Elizabeth B. Russell, hereby declare that I

am the wife of Rufus W. Russell; that said Rufus

W. Russell is the head of the family consisting of

himself, myself, the undersigned, and an adult

daughter, Elizabeth Russell by name; that I do now

at the time of making this declaration, actually re-

side, together with my said husband and daughter,

on the premises hereinafter described; that my
husband has not made any declaration of home-

stead heretofore, nor have I, and I therefore make
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this declaration for the joint benefit of my said hus-

band above named, and myself; that the premises

on which I reside are described as follows

:

Lying and being in the County of Los An-

geles, State of California, and bounded and par-

ticularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block "Q" of the

San Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscel-

laneous records of said County, described as

follows: Beginning at a point in the East line

of Hudson Avenue, distant 70 feet South from

the Southeast corner of California Street and

Hudson Avenue, as said corner is shown on the

map of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in Book

9, Page 33 of Maps, thence East parallel with

the South line of said California Street, one

hundred and twenty-five (125) feet, then South

:' parallel with the East line of Hudson Avenue,

60 feet thence West parallel with the South

line of said California Street, 125 feet to the

East line of said Hudson Avenue, thence North

along said East line 60 feet to the point of the

beginning. Also known as No. 590 S. Hudson

Avenue, in the City of Pasadena, California.

That I do by these presents claim the premises

above described, together with the dwelling-house

thereon, and the appurtenances as a homestead;

that the actual value of said premises I estimate to

be $14,000.00.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I the said Eliza-

beth B. Russell, have hereunto set my hand and seal

this 10th day of October, 1923.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL. (Seal) [14]

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

On this 10th day of October, 1923, before me,

James Wheeler Morin, a notary public in and for

said County and State, personally appeared Eliza-

beth B. Russell, known to me to be the person

whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instru-

ment, and acknowledged to me that she executed the

same.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

[Seal] JAMES WHEELER MORIN,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los Angeles,

State of California.

Recorded October 11, 1923, 33 min. past 1 P. M.,

in Book 2718, at page 247 of Official Records, Los

Angeles County, Cal. C. L. Logan, County Re-

corder. I certify that I have correctly transcribed

this dociunent in above mentioned book. G. E.

Fewel, Copyist, County Recorder's Office, L. A. Co.«

Cal. [15]
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EXHIBIT "C'

In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern Di-

vision.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELI^'ABETH B. RUSSELL,

Bankrupt.

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT.

To Hubert F. Laugharn, Esq., Trustee Herein, Sub-

way Terminal Bldg., Los Angeles, California,

and to Elizabeth B. Russell, Bankrupt Herein,

Care of Morin, Newell & Brown (J. W. Morin,

of Counsel), Pacific-Southwest Bank Bldg.,

Pasadena, California, and to Morin, Newell &

Brown, Attorneys for Said Bankrupt, Pacific-

Southwest Bank Bldg., Pasadena, California.

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE

TAKE NOTICE that on the 12th day of November,

1926, an order was made and entered herein, to

which order you are referred for further particu-

lars, reading in part as follows

:

". . . . NOW IT IS ORDERED that the

said report of exemptions and the setting apart of

the said property therein described to the bankrupt

as exempt be and it hereby is approved so far as it

relates to the following particular articles of prop-

erty:
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Wearing apparel $150.00

Pictures 50.00

2 Rings (pledged) 100.00

1 Watch 25.00

2 Pins 25.00

AND IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the

trustee's report refusing to set aside the following

described property as exempt, to wit:

Property lying and being in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California, and bounded

and particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block 'Q' of the San

Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscellaneous

Records of said County, described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the East line of Hud-

son Avenue, distant 70 feet South from the

Southeast corner of California Street and Hud-

son AA^enue, as said corner is shown on the

map of the Oakwood Tract, reported in Book 9,

page 73 of Maps, thence [16] east paral-

lel with the South line of said California Street,

one hundred and twenty-five (125) feet, then

South parallel with the East line of Hudson

Avenue, 60 feet, thence West parallel with the

South line of California Street, 125 feet to the

East line of said Hudson Avenue, thence North

along said East line 60 feet to the point of be-

ginning. Also known as No. 590 S. Hudson

Avenue, in the City of Pasadena, California,

is approved, and the Referee finds that the said

property is worth approximately $14,000.00, with

an encumbrance of approximately $7,000.00; that
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the bankrupt is entitled to a claim of exemption by

virtue of a declaration of homestead having been

filed upon the said property to the extent of $5,-

000.00; that the bankrupt estate is entitled to re-

ceive the difference between the total of the $7,-

000.00 encumbrance plus interest and that the

$5,000.00 claim of homestead and the value of the

property ; and in accordance with the opinion of the

Referee of October 1, 1926, the trustee is ordered to

bring proceedings to sell the said property free

and clear of liens and from the proceeds pay the

said encumbrance plus interest and the claim of

$5,000.00 to the bankrupt, and account to the bank-

rupt estate for the surplus over and above the two

said amounts."

Under Rule 84 of the said District Court, any

persons interest feeling aggrieved by said order

may review the same by petition therefor filed

within ten days.

Dated : November 17th, 1926.

EARLE E. MOSS,
Referee in Bankruptcy.

By LOUISE HUDSON,
Bankruptcy Clerk. [17]



2(2 Elizabeth B. Russell

EXHIBIT "D."

Ill the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern Di-

vision.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF REFEREE'S
ORDER (BY U. S. DISTRICT COURT).

To the Hon. EARL E. MOSS, Referee in Bank-

ruptcy for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division:

Elizabeth B. Russell, of Pasadena, in the County

of Los Angeles, in said Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, respectfully represents

to the Referee that on the 12th day of November,

1926, an order was made and entered herein, to

which order reference is hereby made for further

particulars, reading in part as follows:

".
. . . NOW IT IS ORDERED that the

said report of exemptions and the setting apart of

the said property therein described to the bank-

rupt as exempt be and it hereby is approved so far

as it relates to the followinc: ]>articular articles of

property

:
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Wearing apparel $150.00

Pictures 50.00

2 Rings (pledged) 100.00

1 Watch 25.00

2 Pins 25.00

AND IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the

trustee's report refusing to set aside the following

described property as exempt, to wit

:

Property lying and being in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California, and bounded

and particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block 'Q' of the San

Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscellaneous

Records of said County, described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the East line of Hud-

son Avenue, distant 70 feet South from the

Southeast corner of California Street and

Hudson Avenue, as said corner is shown on

the map of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in

Book 9, [18] Page 33 of Maps, thence East

parallel with the South line of said California

Street, one hundred and twenty-five (125)

feet, then South parallel with the East line of

Hudson Avenue, 60 feet thence West parallel

with the South line of California Street, 125

feet to the East line of said Hudson Avenue,

thence North along said East line 60 feet to

the point of beginning. Also known as No.

590 S. Hudson Avenue, in the City of Pasa-

dena, California.

is approved, and the Referee finds that the said

property is worth approximately $14,000.00 with
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an encumbrance of approximately $7,000.00; that

the bankrupt is entitled to a claim of exemption by

virtue of a declaration of homestead having been

filed upon the said property to the extent of $5,-

000.00; that the bankrupt estate is entitled to re-

ceive the difference between the total of the

$7,000.00 encumbrance plus interest and the $5,-

000.00 claim of homestead and the value of the

property ; and in accordance with the opinion of the

Referee of October 1, 1926, the trustee is ordered

to bring proceedings to sell the said property free

and clear of liens and from the proceeds pay the

said encumbrance plus interest and the claim of

homestead exemption of $5,000.00 to the bankrupt,

and account to the bankrupt estate for the surplus

over and above the two said amounts."

Attention is particularly directed to the fact that

among other things said order approved the trus-

tee's report refusing to set aside the real property

above described as exempt although said property

was the homestead of the bankrupt and her husband,

Rufus W. Russell, by declaration of homestead

duly claimed by the bankrupt, declared, recorded

and filed long prior to the bankruptcy and exempt

under the provisions of Section 1257 of the Civil

Code of the State of California and Section 1240,

Civil Code of the State of California.

The only right, title or interest of the bankrupt,

Elizabeth B. Russell, in or to said real property

which is the subject of the homestead, was the pro-

ceeds of the investment of $2,000.00 therein by her,

which investment was made on the [19] 22d day
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of September, 1923. The bankrupt respectfully

represents that no other sum of money and no other

property of the bankrupt, Elizabeth B. Russell,

was at any time thereafter invested in said prop-

erty, but that such additional sums as were from

time to time thereafter invested in said property

were wholly community funds under the ownership

and control of Eufus W. Russell, husband of the

bankrupt, who is not in any manner whatsoever

concerned in the bankruptcy or in the transactions

out of which it arose. That all of the investment

of community funds occurred long after the declara-

tion of the homestead was recorded.

The bankrupt further respectfully represents that

the total contributions of investment made in said

homestead property from the funds of the com-

munity is $5,000.00 and that the said homestead is

subject to encimibrance, being the balance unpaid

on contract of purchase due Hogan Company in the

sum of $7,000.00. That the said homestead prop-

erty is not worth in excess of $14,000.00. That the

total value of the right, title and interest of the

bankrupt in and to said homestead property is

therefore less than $5,000.00, to wit: is of the value

of $2,000.00 and no more, and the entire remaining

interest therein is the community property of Rufus

W. Russell.

Your petitioner respectfully urges that the

Referee erred in so much of his order confirming

the Trustee's report of exempt property as is em-

braced in the portion of said order confirming the

refusal of the Trustee to set aside the above-de-
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scribed real property as exempt property, and your

petitioner cites this as an error and hereby asks

for review of the Referee's order in reference to said

refusal to set aside the said above-described real,

property as exempt property.

Your petitioner respectfully asks that the Referee

forthwith certify to the Judges of the District

Court of [20] United States, Southern District

of California, the question presented by petitioner's

petition in this respect, to wit: whether or not

community funds procured by the bankrupt from

the control of her husband and invested in property

already exempt (which last-mentioned funds when

added to the funds already invested therein by the

bankrupt, exceed in amount the total homestead

exemption of $5,000.00) shall be deemed to create

an excess interest in the bankrupt in the homestead

property in excess of the interest permitted to be

exempted under the law of the State of California

and of the United States of America following

thereon, regardless of the fact that the separate

right, title and interest of the said bankrupt,

Elizabeth B. Russell, was of a value of $2,000.00 and

less than the homestead exemption without said ad-

ditions from the community source.

Notice of referee's order was vcceived N()vem])c'i'

18, 1926.

Dated this 24th day of November, 1926.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Petitioner.

MORIN, NEWELL & BROWN.
By J. W. MORIN,

Attorneys for Petitioner.
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State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

Elizabeth B. Russell, being duly sworn, deposes

and says: That I have read the foregoing petition

and know the contents thereof and all the matters

and things therein stated are true to my own knowl-

edge.

ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day

of November, 1926.

[Seal] JAMES WHEELER MORIN,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California. [21]

EXHIBIT "E."

In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern

Division.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

REFEREE'S CERTIFICATE ON PETITION
FOR REVIEW.

'To the Honorable, The Judges of the United States

District Court, in and for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division:

T, Earl E. Moss, Referee in Bankruptcy, to whom
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the above-entitled proceedings were referred, do

hereby certify:

That in the course of the proceedings an order

was made and entered on the 12th day of November,

1926, as follows

:

"In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern Di-

vision.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

REFEREE'S ORDER APPROVING TRUS-
TEE'S REPORT OF EXEMPT PROPERTY.

Upon the 11th day of September, 1926, the trus-

tee's report of property set apart to the bank-

rupt as exempt was filed and presented for approval,

and exceptions thereto having been filed upon be-

half of the bankrupt by her counsel, J. W. Morin,

and the Referee having set for hearing the said

trustee's report and the exemptions therein on the

27th day of September, 1926, at which time hearing

was had and an opinion rendered by the Referee on

October 1st, 1926, confirming and approving the

said report as filed.

NOW IT IS ORDERED that the said report of

[22] exemptions and the setting apart of the said

l)roperty therein described to the bankrupt as ex-

empt be and it hereby is approved so far as it re-



vs. Hubert F. LaugJiarn. 29

lates to the following particular articles of prop-

erty:

Wearing ax3parel |150 . 00

Pictures 50.00

2 Rings (pledged) 100.00

1 Watch 25.00

2 Pins 25.00

AND IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the

trustee's report refusing to set aside the following

described property as exempt, to wit

:

Property lying and being in the County of

Los Angeles, State of California, and bounded

and particularly described as follows, to wit:

That portion of Lot 2, in Block "Q" of the San

Pasqual Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscellaneous

Records of said County, described as follows

:

Beginning at a point in the East line of Hud-

son Avenue, distant 70 feet South from the

Southeast corner of California Street and Hud-

son Avenue, as said corner is shown on the

map of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in Book 9,

page 33 of Maps, thence East parallel with the

South line of said California Street, one hun-

dred and twenty-five (125) feet, then South

parallel with the East line of Hudson Avenue,

60 feet thence West parallel with the South

line of said California Street, 125 feet to the

East line of said Hudson Avenue, thence North

along said East line 60 feet to the point of

beginning. Also known as No. 590 S. Hudson
Avenue, in the City of Pasadena, California.
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is approved, and the Referee finds that the said

property is worth approximately $14,000.00 with an

encumbrance of approximately $7,000.00; that the

bankrupt is entitled to a claim of exemption by

virtue of a declaration of homestead having been

filed upon the said property to the extent of

$5,000.00; that the bankrupt estate is entitled to

receive the difference between the total of the

$7,000.00 encumbrance plus interest and the

$5,000.00 claim of homestead and the value of the

property ; and in accordance with the opinion of the

Referee of October 1, [23] 1926, the trustee is

ordered to bring proceedings to sell the said prop-

erty free and clear of liens and from the proceeds

pay the said encumbrance plus interest and the claim

of homestead exemption of $5,000.00 to the bank-

rupt, and account to the bankrupt estate for the

surplus over and above the two said amounts.

Dated this 12th day of November, 1926.

EARL E. MOSS,
Referee in Bankruptcy."

The question for determination is whether or not

said order is a proper order. At the time the

order was made I rendered an opinion, wliich is as

follows

:
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"In the District Court of the United States, South-

ern District of California, Southern Division.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH R RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

OPINION.

Appearances

:

J. W. MORIN, representing the Bankrupt

;

HUBERT F. LAUCHARN, representing himself

as Trustee.

The bankrupt has filed an exception to the return

of the trustee refusing to set aside as exempt certain

real property claimed as a homestead, such refusal

being based upon the ground that the property is of

the value of $14,000.00, with a pre-homestead en-

cumbrance of $7,000.00, leaving a net value of

$7,000.00, being in excess of $5,000.00, the maximum
value of a homestead allowed the head of a family

or his wife. [24]

On September 22, 1923, the bankrupt purchased

upon contract certain real property for the pur-

chase price of $14,500.00, the contract for the pur-

chase being in the usual form of conditional sale

contract, upon which the bankrupt paid $3,000.00

of her separate funds and $4,500.00 of the funds

of the community. No contention was expressed on

the part of the husband or the bankrupt that the

amount of the community fimds, $4,500.00, invested

in this real property, was intended to be a gift to

the bankrupt. In fact, these sums were applied by
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her from earnings of a hotel being operated jointly

by the bankrupt and her husband without any

agreement as to the ownership in the property or

effect upon the title. She contends now, however,

that she is entitled to a homestead to the extent of

her separate funds invested in the property,

$3,000.00, and the remainder of the homestead, or

of the net value of the property, being community

funds, is not liable for the debts incurred by the

bankrupt (and sought to be discharged in this

bankruptcy) which were the result of an enterprise

in which she engaged alone, wherein the obligations

were not contracted by the husband, and in which

he was not engaged as a partner, associate or other-

wise.

In Swan vs. Walden, 156 Cal. 195, the Court held

that a wife might impress land held in joint tenancy

by a husband and herself with a homestead, and

said:

'Here the wife seeks to impress the whole

land with the homestead characteristic. This

she may do as to her o\\Ta interest, which is her

separate property, and this she may do as to

her husband's interest, since she has the power

to declare a homestead upon the husband's

separate property, though he has no such power

over hers. The homestead thus attempted to

be declared is upon land, all of which is sus-

ceptible at the instance of the wife of having

the homestead characteristics impressed upon

it.'
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While the holding in this case is as tenants [25]

in common rather than joint tenancy, the reasoning

above set forth is such that it would seem to author-

ize the wife to impress with the homestead char-

acteristic land owned by her as her separate prop-

erty and by her husband and herself as community

property.

Assuming, then, that such a homestead be valid

as to the value allowed by law, can the wife, the

bankrupt herein, elect to impress a homestead upon

the land to the value of her separate estate, to wit,

$3,000.00 and $2,000.00 of the community estate,

leaving the $2,000.00 excess in value over and above

the maximum amount allowed by law, as the com-

numity property which cannot be applied to the

satisfaction of the wife's debts'? While I find no

decisions exactly in point, that of the Supreme

Court of California in Estate of Davidson, 159

Cal. 98, in theory supports my view. In that case

the Court said:

" 'It will be observed that in this Swan case

the court was dealing with a selected home-

stead, impressed by the wife upon land held in

cotenancy solely by herself and husband, and

her right to do so is sustained because, as she

had a right to declare a homestead upon her

separate property, and also upon the separate

property of her husband, the effect of her

declaration was to impress the entire land, and

the entire interests therein held by them in

joint tenancy, with the homestead character-

istics; that within the spirit and intent of the
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act of 1868 authorizing a homestead to be filed

where a cotenant was in the exclusive occupa-

tion of the land of the cotenancy, Mrs. Walden

has such exclusive possession for such purpose.

It was her peculiar position under the home-

stead law which made it possible for her to

impress the land in its entirety that took the

homestead declared by her out of the general

rule denying the right of a cotenant to create

a valid homestead on cotenancy property. It

is clearly pointed out in that opinion that, in the

peculiar instance of the homestead there under

consideration, as the entire interest in the

tenancy was susceptible to the impress of home-

stead upon it by the wife, the reason supporting

the general rule denying the right of the hus-

band to declare a homestead upon land held

in cotenancy by himself or wife or third parties

did not apply.

Here, however, an entirely different question

is presented. We are not dealing with a se-

lected homestead which the Court is asked to set

apart to the surviving wife. What was sought

in the matter at bar in the Superior Court, was

to have that court select, designate, and set

apart as a probate homestead, not the land of

[26] the cotenancy in its entirety, but the un-

divided interest of the deceased cotenant

therein. If the Superior Court could do this,

it could only do it because in the lifetime of

the decedent either he or his wife could have

impressed a homestead on this particular coten-
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ancy interest alone. Neither of the spouses,

however, could do this. The hushand under no

circumstances could declare a homestead which

would embrace, with his own interest, that of

his wife in the cotenancy property, because he

is prohibited under the homestead law from de-

claring a homestead on the separate property

of his wife unless with her consent manifested

by making or joining in the making of the

declaration. Such a general declaration, as it

would embrace the whole of the land and the

entire interest in the cotenancy, would not be

affected by the general rule. But neither the

husband nor the wife jointly or severally could

in the lifetime of the husband have made a valid

declaration of homestead upon his undivided

interest in the cotenancy property, so as to

affect that interest alone with the homestead

characteristics, separate and distinct from the

undivided interest of the wife therein.

'

In the above quotation the Court was discussing

the decision in Swan vs. Walden, 156 Cal. 195. The

use of the words 'entire interests' will be observed.

While it is the bankrupt's contention that the effect

of her declaration of homestead was to impress a

homestead upon the portion of the land belonging to

her as her separate property and part of the land

owned by the community with such characteristic,

yet the declaration itself does not attempt to so

divide the interests, for which reason I am of the

opinion that the declaration of homestead is not

void, but valid only in the amount allowed by law.
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There is but one homestead allowed to husband or

wife or both, and neither of the spouses can so

divide the interests as to place beyond the reach of

creditors, by claim of ownership in the other non-

bankrupt spouse, the excess in value over the

amount of a homestead allowed by law. For these

reasons the bankrupt is not entitled to have the

property set aside as exempt. Upon proceedings

to sell free and clear of liens, the amount of the

homestead [27] exemption, $5,000.00, may be set

aside, and ordered paid to the persons entitled

thereto by law in proper proportions, and the sum
remaining to the trustee for disbursement in the

administration of this estate.

Dated October 1, 1926.

EARL E. MOSS,
Referee in Bankruptcy."

The turning point in this matter, it seems to me,

is the fact that the bankrupt attempts to homestead

a divided interest, and under the decision in Estate

of Davidson, 159 Cal. 1908, such a declaration of

homestead is not authorized by the laws of Califor-

nia.

That on the 26th day of November, 1926, Eliza-

beth B. Russell, by her attorneys, Messrs. Morin,

Newell & Brown, filed a Petition for Review, which

was granted and which Petition for Review is hereto

attached.

The Referee is transmitting with this Certifi(^ate

for Review transcripts of the testimony and pro-

ceedings had before him at the time of the hearing

of said matter.
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I hand up herewith for the information of the

judges, the following papers:

1. Petition for Review of Referee's Order—dated

November 24th, 1926.

2. Trustee's Report of Exempt Property—filed

September 11th, 1926.

3. Stipulation—filed September 23d, 1926.

4. Affidavit of mailing of Exceptions and Objec-

tions to Trustee's Report of Exempt Prop-

erty—filed September 27th, 1926.

5. Bankrupt's Exhibits Nos. "A," ''B," '^C,"

"D," *'E," "F," and "G"; Trustee's Ex-

hibits Nos. 1 and 2—filed September 27th,

1926.

6. Appointment, Oath and Report of Appraisers

—

filed December 7th, 1926. [28]

7. Reporter's transcript of testimony—filed De-

cember 7th, 1926.

8. Notice of Entry of Judgment—filed November

17th, 1926.

Dated: December 13th, 1926.

EARL E. MOSS,
Referee in Bankruptcy. [29]
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EXHIBIT "F."

At a stated term, to wit: The January term, A. D.

1927, of the District Court of the United States

of America, within and for the Southern Di-

vision of the Southern District of California,

held at the courtroom thereof, in the city of

Los Angeles, on Saturday, the 29th day of

January, in the year of our Lord one thousand

nine hundred and twenty-seven. Present: The

Honorable WM. P. JAMES, District Judge.

No. 8615-J.—BKCY.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

MINUTES OF COURT—JANUARY 29, 1927—

ORDER CONFIRMING ORDER OF REF-
EREE.

The order of the Referee of the 12th day of No-

vember, 1926, brought here for review by Elizabeth

B. Russell, the bankrupt, having been examined

and fully considered with the argument of counsel;

said order is confirmed and approved. An excep-

tion is allowed the bankrupt to the making of this

order. [30]
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EXHIBIT ''G."

222.

APPOINTMENT, OATH, AND REPORT OP
APPRAISERS.

(Form No. 13.)

In the District Court of the United States, South-

em District of California.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

IN the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

IT IS ORDERED, that Thurmond Clarke, of^

, E. A. Lynch, of , and F. E. Fensch,

of , three disinterested persons, be, and they

are hereby, appointed appraisers to appraise the

real and personal property belonging to the estate

of the said bankrupt set out in the schedules now on

file in this court, at a compensation not exceeding

$10 per day each, and report their appraisal to the

Court, said appraisal to be made as soon as may be,

and the appraisers to be duly sworn.

WITNESS my hand this 12th day of November,

A. D. 1926.

EARL E. MOSS,
Referee in Bankruptcy.
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Southern District of California,—ss.

Personally appeared the within named

and severally made oath that they will fully and

fairly appraise the aforesaid real and personal

property according to their best skill and judgment.

E. A. LYNCH.
F. A. FENSCH,
THURMAN CLARKE. [31]

Subscribed and swom to before me this 4 day of

Dec. 1926.

[Seal] LOUISE HUDSON,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, having been noti-

fied that we were appointed to estimate and appraise

the real and personal property aforesaid, have at-

tended to the duties assigned us, and after a strict

examination and careful inquiry, we do estimate

and appraise the same as follows

:

Dollars Cents

Property lying and being in the

County of Los Angeles, State of

California, and bounded and par-

ticularly described as follows, to

wit: That portion of Lot 2, in

Block "Q" of the San Pasqual

Tract, Book 3, Page 315, Miscel-

laneous Records of said County,
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described as follows: Beginning

at a point in the East line of

Hudson Avenue, distant 70' feet

South from the Southeast corner

of California Street and Hudson

Avenue, as said comer is shown

on the map of the Oakwood

Tract, recorded in Book 9, Page

33 of Maps, thence East parallel

with the South line of said Cali-

fornia Street, one hundred and

twenty-five (125) feet, then

South parallel with the East line

of Hudson Avenue, 60 feet thence

West parallel with the South line

of said California Street, 125

feet to the East line of said Hud-

son Avenue, thence North along

said East line 60 feet to the point

of beginning. Also known as No.

590 S. Hudson Avenue, in the

City of Pasadena, California.

Said property is encumbered to

the extent of approximately $7,-

000.00 in favor of Hogan Finance

Company and the bankrupt

claims a $5,000.00 exemption on

the property.

Total Value 14,500.00

[32]

'-r
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IN WITNESS WHEEEOF, we hereunto set

ou^ hands, at Los Angeles, this 4th day of Dec,

A. D. 1926.

E. A. LYNCH,
Appraiser,

F. E. FENSCH,
Appraiser.

THURMAN CLARKE,
Appraiser.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 7, 1926, at min.

past 4 o'clock P. M. Earl E. Moss, Referee.

Louise Hudson, Clerk. [33]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Southern

Division.

IN BANKRUPTCY—No. 8615-J.

In the Matter of ELIZABETH B. RUSSELL,
Bankrupt.

STIPULATION AS TO CERTAIN FACTS.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and be-

tween Herbert F, Laughran, Trustee, and Messrs.

Morin, Newell & Brosn, attorneys for bankrupt,

that the declaration of homestead filed by Eliza-

beth B. Russell and recorded October 11th, 1923,

in Book 2718, at Page 247 of Official Records, Los

Angeles County, California, was declared and re-

corded after Elizabeth B. Russell had invested in

the property described therein the total amount of
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Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00), of which Two
Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) were her separate

funds and One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) was

money borrowed by her without security, and that

no other sums were invested therein until a date

long subsequent thereto and on or after February,

1924, when additional sums were invested from

time to time thereafter totaling Forty-five Hun-

dred Dollars ($4500.00), all of which were com-

munity funds derived from the Crown Hotel, com-

munity property of the bankrupt and Eufus W.
Russell, her husband.

Dated this 21 day of February, 1927.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN,
Trustee.

MORIN, NEWELL & BROWN,
By J. W. MORIN,

Attorneys for Bankrupt. [34]

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 28, 1927, at min.

past 2 o'clock P. M. [35]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF PETITION TO
REVISE.

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

J. W. Morin, being first duly sworn, on oath de-

poses and says:

That on the 28th day of February, 1927, I did

serve a true and correct copy of the Petition to Re-
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vise filed herein on February 28th, 1927, upon

Herbert F. Laugharn. Trustee of said Bankrupt,

by leaving the same in his office, Room 615, Sub-

way-Terminal Building, Los Angeles, California,

in charge of his employee, to wit, his stenographer,

he being at the time absent from said office.

Dated this 4th day of March, 1927.

J. W. MORIN.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of March, 1927.

[Seal] STANLEY K. BROWN,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California. [36]

Filed Mar. 7, 1927 at 15 min. past 2 o'clock P. M.

[Title of Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AS TO RECORD AND FACTS.

It is hereby stipulated by and between Hf^rbert

F. Laugharn, Trustee of the Estate of Elizabeth

B. Russell, a bankrupt, respondent herein, and

Elizabeth B. Russell, claimant and petitioner

herein, that the record of proceedings attached to

the Petition for Revision in the above-entitled mat-

ter is a full//, tiTie and correct copy of the proceed-

ings in the District Court of the United States in

and for the Southern District of California, South-

ern Division, concerning the Trustee's Report of

Exempt Property, the Exce])tions and Objections

to Trustee's Report of Exempt Property filed

herein by Elizabeth B. Russell, bankrupt, and the
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proceedings thereunder had before the referee and

before the United States District Court herein re-

ferred to; that the summary of the evidence con-

tained in the Referee's Certificate on Petition for

Eeview attached to the said Petition for Revision,

and marked Exhibit "E," together with the stipu-

lation as to Certain Facts dated the 21st day of

February, 1927, between Herbert F. Laugharn, as

Trustee, and Morin, Newell & Brown, as counsel

for the Bankrupt, constitute a full, true and cor-

rect statement of the facts relating to said claim

as the same were presented before the said Referee

and before the said United States District Court

above mentioned; that the said matter may be

heard, considered and determined by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals on said record.

[37]

Dated this 28 day of February, 1927.

HUBERT F. LAUGHARN,
Trustee.

MORIN, NEWELL & BROWN.
By J. W. MORIN. [38]

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 7, 1927, at 15 min. past

2 o'clock P. M. [39]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER (OF UNITED STATES DISTRICT
COURT) ALLOWING PETITION FOR
REVISION AND THAT CLERK PRE-
PARE RECORD.

WHEREAS, Elizabeth B. Russell, Bankrupt,

feels aggrieved by order entered herein on the 29th

day of January, 1927, and the Court being satis-

fied that the questions therein determined are ques-

tions of which revision may be asked, as provided

in Sections 24 & 25 of the Bankrupt Act of 1898,

and that the application should be granted, on mo-

tion of Messrs. Morin, Newell & Brown, attorneys

for said Bankrupt,

—

IT IS ORDERED that the order of this Court

made and entered herein on the 29th day of Jan-

uary, 1927, confirming the order of Earl E. Moss,

Referee in Bankruptcy, which approves the Report

of the Referee in so far as it refuses to set aside

certain therein described property as exempt prop-

erty, be revised in matters of law by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals in and for the

Ninth District, as provided by Section 24-B of the

Bankrupt Act of 1898, and the rules and practice

of that Court ; and that the Clerk of this court pre-

pare at the expense of Petitioner a certified copy

of such order and a record of this case as provided

in said Petition, and in conformity with the Stipu-

lations of the Trustee and counsel for the Bank-

rupt.
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Dated this 28th day of February, 1927.

WM. P. JAMES,
United States District Judge. [40]

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 28, 1927, at 45 min. past

2 o'clock P. M. [41]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT ON PETI-
TION FOR REVISION.

To the Clerk of Said Court:

Sir: Please issue certified copy of the following

portions of the record in the above matter for use

in the support of the Petition to Revise, filed Feb-

ruary 28, 1927, to wit

:

1. Trustee's Report of Exempt Property.

2. Exceptions and Objections to Trustee's Re-

port of Exempt Property.

3. Notice of Entry of Judgment (By Referee).

4. Petition for Review of Referee's Order (By

United States District Court).

5. Referee's Certificate on Petition for Review.

6. Order of the United States District Court

Confirming Order Approving Referee's Or-

der.

7. Appraisement.

8. Affidavit of Service of Petition to Revise.

9. Stipulation as to Record and Facts.
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10. Order (of United States District Court) Al-

lowing Petition for Revision and that Clerk

Prepare Record.

MORIN, NEWELL & BROWN.
By J. W. MORIN,

Attorneys for Bankrupt.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 4, 1927, at 40 min. past

4 o'clock P. M. [42]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT ON PETITION
FOR REVISION.

I, R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, do hereby certify the foregoing volume con-

taining 42 pages, numbered from 1 to 42 inclusive,

to be the transcript on Petition for Revision in the

above-entitled cause, and contains a full, true and

correct copy of the following:

Petition for Revision,—which contains exhibits

lettered from "A" to "G," inclusive, being

copies of the following:

Trustee's Report of Exempt Property,

Exceptions and Objections to Trustee's Report

of Exempt Property,

Notice of Entiy of Judgment (By Referee),

Petition for Review of Referee's Order (By

United States District Court),

Referee's Certificate on Petition for Review,
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Order of the United States District Court Con-
firming Order Approving Referee's Order,
and

Appraisement,

and Affidavit of Service of Petition to Revise,
Stipulation as to Record and Facts,

Order (of United States District Court) Allowing
Petition for Revision and That Clerk Prepare
Record, and

Praecipe

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the fees of
the Clerk for preparing and certifying the forego-
ing Record on Petition for Revision amount to

$7,00, and that said amount has been paid me by
the petitioner herein.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto
set my hand and affixed the seal of the District
Court of the United States of America, in and for
the Southern District of California, Southern Di-
vision, this 10th day of March, in the year of our
Lord one thousand nine hundred and twenty-
seven, and of our Independence the one hundred
and fifty-first.

[Seal] R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk of the District Court of the United States

of America, in and for the Southern District

of California.

[Endorsed]
: No. 5097. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Elizabeth
B. Russell, Bankrupt, Petitioner, vs. Hubert F.
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Laugham, as Trustee in Bankruptcy of the Estate

of Elizabeth B. Eussell, Bankrupt, Respondent.

Petition for Revision Under Section 24b of the

Bankruptcy Act of Congress, Approved July 1,

1898, to Revise, in Matter of Law, an Order of

the Southern Division of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division.

Filed March 14, 1927.

F. D. MONCKTON,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

By Paul P. O'Brien,

Deputy Clerk.
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No. 5097.

IN THX

United States

Circuit Court of Appeals,

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

Elizabeth B. Russell, Bankrupt,

Petitioner,

Hubert F. Laugham, as Trustee in

Banruptcy of the Estate of Eliza-

beth B. Russell, Bankrupt,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

Elizabeth B. Russell, who is the bankrupt herein, on

September 22, 1923, entered into an agreement in writing

for the purchase under contract of the real property in-

volved herein from the Hogan Company, as contract

sellers. On that date $2,000.00 was paid out of her

separate funds, and a day or so later $1,000.00 additional

money borrowed from a friend, a Mrs. Hartman, with-

out security, was also paid, making up the total initial

payment of $3,000.00, provided for under the terms of
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the contract. Thereupon a contract was delivered to her,

and she entered into the possession of the property with

her husband and daughter at that time.

Thereafter, on the 11th day of October, 1923, Mrs.

Russell filed the Declaration of Homestead upon the prop-

erty as the wife of the head of the family. This home-

stead is conceded to be regular in all respects. No addi-

tional payments were made upon the purchase price of the

property until in February, 1924, when an additional pay-

ment was made derived from funds of the Crown Hotel.

This hotel was an enterprise which had been for some

years past and was being operated by Mr. and Mrs. Rus-

sell in a down town section of Pasadena, and was con-

cededly a community enterprise. Mrs. Russell, having

the problem of making additional payments upon the

property she had purchased, used her agency authority on

the Crown Hotel bank account, and from time to time

prior to her bankruptcy, which occurred in June, 1926,

made additional payments on this purchase contract out

of Crown Hotel funds, aggregating $4,500.00. The

agreed total purchase price of the homestead property

was $14,500.00, and at the time of the bankruptcy a total

not to exceed $2,000.00, or at the utmost $3,000.00, had

been paid from her separate funds, and $4,500.00 from

funds withdrawn from community funds. It will be

noted that at the time of the Declaration of Homestead

on October 11, 1923, no community funds had been in-

volved in the homestead property, excepting perliaps ilie

$1,000.00 borrowed by her without security. There was

no intention or act between Mr. and Mrs. Russell anK)unt-

ing to a gift of the Crown Hotel funds to Mrs. Russell,

nor any act or intent to make a loan from the community
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tracted since her marriage. They had been married

twenty-seven years.

In the course of the bankruptcy proceedings an ap-

praisement was filed showing the homestead property to

be of the value of $14,500.00 altogether, being the iden-

tical value at which it had been agreed to be purchased.

Thus there had been no increase of the value of Mrs.

Russell's investment therein since filing the declaration.

In the course of the bankruptcy proceedings, the trustee

set aside the exempt property by his report of exemptions,

but in said report refused to set aside the homestead prop-

erty as exempt, and recommended that an order be made

by the Referee permitting the property to be sold free and

clear of liens, and the Referee thereupon, after due hear-

ing, confirmed the report of the said Referee and ordered

that the homestead property be sold, and the sum of

merely $5,000.00, statutory homestead exemption, set

aside (which must be pro-rated between Mr. and Mrs.

Russell as best they could), and all the balance of the

proceeds devoted to the payment of the Hogan Com-

pany's balance of sale price, and the residue paid to the

estate in bankruptcy. A petition for writ of review was

granted by the Referee, and the question presented to the

United States District Court, of the Southern District of

California.

The question presented is this:

"Do community funds under the control of the

husband in California lose their character as such,

and become identified with the wife's separate prop-

erty by the mere application of said community funds

towards part payment of the homestead property,
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prior date, without any feature of gift from the hus-

band to the wife, or of loan of the funds from the

husband to the wife, but where the application is

merely made by the wife by virtue of an agency en-

joyed by her in the community bank account."

Specification of errors relied on is involved in the order

of the United States District Court confirming the

Referee's Order involving the following points of error,

to-wit

:

1. Refusing to set aside as exempt the homestead

property of the bankrupt described as follows:

"Property lying and being in the county of Los An-

geles, state of California, and bounded and particularly

described as follows

:

That portion of lot 2 in block 'Q' of the San Pasqual

Tract, book 3, page 315, miscellaneous records of said

county, described as follows:

Beginning at a point in the east line of Hudson ave-

nue, distant 70 feet south from the southeast corner of

California street and Hudson avenue, as said corner is

shown on the map of the Oakwood Tract, recorded in

book 9, page 33 of maps, thence east parallel with the

south line of California street, one hundred twenty-five

(125) feet, thence south parallel with the east line of

Hudson avenue 60 feet, thence west parallel with the

south line of said California street, 125 feet to the east

line of Hudson avenue, thence north along said east line

60 feet to the point of beginning. Also known as 590 S.

Hudson avenue, in the city of Pasadena, California."

2. Ordering the trustee in bankruptcy to bring pro-

ceedings to sell the homestead, being exemjit property,

though of a value less than $5000.00, the amount of tiie

exemption, and to account to the estate in bankruptcy lor
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all proceeds in excess of the encumbrances with interest

and the $5000.00 exemption, thus converting the com-

munity property to the use of the wife's estate in bank-

ruptcy.

3. Pooling the $5000.00 exemption over both the

separate estate of the bankrupt wife and also the commu-

nity interest of the husband, in the homesteaded prop-

erty, though the community interest was added to the in-

vestment after the declaration of homestead, and ignoring

the fact of the community (husband's) undivided interest

in the property as distinct from the wife.

4. Denying the bankrupt a full exemption of $5000.00

in the homestead property belonging to her of value as

established by the record not in excess of $5000.00,

5. Converting the community property of the husband

into the separate property of the wife without gift, de-

scent, devise or loan from husband to the wife.

6. Subjecting community property of the husband to

the debts of the wife without the appropriation thereto by

the husband.

7. Altering the estate in the property as between the

wife's separate interest and the community as tenant in

common into the separate property of the wife.

The order of the referee confirming the report of the

trustee in bankruptcy refusing to set aside the exempt

homestead and ordering a sale thereof, of the homestead

interest of the wife, being of a value less than $5000.00,

was excepted to by the bankrui)t, who filed on November

26, 1926, her petition for writ of review of said referee's

order in the United States District Court, which petition

was granted, but thereafter in pursuance to the review of
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and approved by said United States District Court and an

exception thereto allowed.

California State Statutes Referred to.

Sections of Civil Code:

161. A husband and wife may hold property as joint

tenants, tenants in common or as community property.

162. All property of the wife * * * acquired after

marriage by gift, bequest, devise or descent * * * is

her separate property. * * *

164. All other property acquired after marriage by

either husband or wife or both * * * jg community

property. * * *

167. The property of the community is not liable for

the contracts of the wife made after marriage. * * *

172. The husband has the management and control of

the community personal property. * * *

172a. The husband has the management and control of

the community real property but the wife must join in

deed. * * *

1240. The homestead is exempt from execution or

forced sale.

1243. The homestead can be abandoned only by a

declaration. * * *

1254. jf * * * ^Yi^. Ij^j-jfl exceeds in value the

amount of the homestead exemption * * * |-,,_^. (^^1-,^

court) must make an order directing the sale. * * *

1256. If the sale is made the proceeds thereof, to the

amount of the homestead exemption, must be paid to the

claimant. * * *
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Section 1474, Code of Civil Procedure, provides in sub-

stance that the title to the homestead descends to the heirs

and devisees of the owner of the title thereto, underlying

the homestead claim, where the homestead was selected on

decedent's separate property without consent.

Section 853, Civil Code: Where a transfer of real

property is made to one person and the consideration paid

by another a trust is presumed to result in favor by or for

whom such payment Vv'as made.

Points of Argument.

The bankrupt's interest in the property was of value not

in excess of $2000.00 at time of recording declaration of

homestead (see stipulation as to certain facts be-

tween attorneys for bankrupt and the trustee printed on

pp. 42 and 43 of Petition for Revision), and by this stip-

ulation it appears that all subsequent accretions to the

investment were subsequent to the declaration of home-

stead and from community funds.

Money borrowed by a spouse without security on sep-

arate property is community money,

Schuyler v. Broughton, 70 Cal. 282.

There was no increase in the value of the property and

hence no excess created over the exemption limit. (Report

of Appraisers, Petition p. 41 ; Referee's Order, Petition

p. 30.)

The status of property as to its separate or community

character is determined by the mode of acquisition.

Potter V. Smith, 48 Cal. App. 162.

When property is acquired in part by the use of com-

munity funds and in part by the use of separate funds the
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interests therein will be prorated between the separate and

community estates in the proportion of said respective

funds.

Schuyler v. Broughton, 70 Cal. 282.

There was no gift and no loan of funds from husband

to wife involved in this Russell case, (See Referee's

Opinion, Petition printed pp. 31 and 32. Also stipula-

tion between trustee and attorneys for bankrupt, pp. 42

and 43 of printed Petition.)

Community funds create a community interest in prop-

erty so acquired and are held in trust by the spouse so

acquiring, for the community.

25 Cal. Juris. 194;

Shanan v. Crampton, 92 Cal. 9;

Osborn v. Mills, 20 Cal. App. 346.

And this last authority is to the effect that taking in the

wife's name does not affect this trusteeship for the com-

munity.

The mere possession or actual management by one of

the spouses does not affect the title of the community nor

show an intention of the other spouse to make a gift.

Shaw V. Burnell, 163 Cal. 262;

Varni v. DeVoto, 10 Cal. App. 304.

Husband and wife may have an interest as tenants in

common in property of a homestead character.

In re Bailard, 178 Cal. 293.

If the foregoing proposition is sound, much less does a

husband forfeit community property to creditors of the

wife because of the mere fact that tlie wife has drawn

money out of the community bank account on her agency
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signature and made payments on property of hers already

homesteaded.

The declaration of homestead does not affect the real or

underlying title to the property itself as it stood before the

declaration but merely, while it continues unabandoned,

gives the property certain characteristics or incidents

—

principally two—inviolability to creditors' claims and suc-

cession to survivor under certain conditions on the death

of one spouse.

Burkett v. Burkett, 78 Cal. 310;

Sec. 1474, Code of Civil Procedure.

If a homestead was synonymous with title then why

should the court distribute a homestead out of separate

property of decedent under cetrain circumstances still to

the heirs and devisees of the decedent subject only to a

limited use to the survivor unless the underlying title was

still in the decedent, and if a homestead is abandoned by

declaration it resumes its former ownership as to title free

of restriction.

The foregoing considerations are urged for the particu-

lar purpose of making the point that by the two sources of

investment the Russell homestead property as to title was

tenancy in common and is still and would have been even

though the declaration had followed the completion of all

investments therein—that the title which the trustee pro-

posed to sell and divest is the undivided property of both

spouses, and the husband regardless of a forced sale in the

bankruptcy proceedings will retain his undivided interest

in the proceeds prorata and that his prorata of the equity

in the property over the amount still due the contract seller

will reduce the proceeds remaining to the bankrupt to
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$2000.00—that nothing can go to the creditors in such a

proceeding by any possibiHty, and the sale is therefore en-

tirely improper and the order of the referee requiring the

sale should be reversed and the order of the referee

on confirmation of trustee's report of exempt prop-

erty should be modified to require the trustee to set apart

the entire real property described in the homestead as ex-

empt property and to remove it from the effect of the

bankruptcy proceedings.

Respectfully submitted,

MoRiN, Newell & Brown,

By J. W. MoRiN,

Attorneys for Petitioner Bankrupt.
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United States of America, ss.

To JACOB BAUMAN, Greeting:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and appear

at a United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, to be held at the City of San Francisco,

in the State of California, on the 15th day of December,

A. D. 1926, pursuant to a Writ of Error filed in the

Clerk's Office of the District Court of the United States,

in and for the Southern District of California, in that

certain cause wherein you are defendant in error and

John P. Carter, formerly United States Collector of

Internal Revenue, Sixth District of California, is plain-

tiff in error and you are hereby required to show cause,

if any there be, why the judgment rendered against the

said plaintiff in error in the said writ of error men-

tioned, should not be corrected, and speedy justice should

not be done to the parties in that behalf.

WITNESS, the Honorable PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge for the Southern District

of California, this 16 day of November, A. D. 1926,

and of the Independence of the United States, the one

hundred and fifty-first.

Paul J McCormick

U. S. District Judge for the Southern District of

California.

[Endorsed] : In the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit John P. Carter, former

Collector of Internal Revenue for the vSixth District of

California, Plaintiff in Error, vs. Jacob Bauman De-

fendant in Error. Due ser.-ice of the within citation
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acknowledged this 2Zth day of November, A. D. 1926.

Dan J. Chapin attorney for plaintiff. Citation Filed

Nov. 23, 1926. R. S. Zimmerman, clerk, by L. J. Cordes,

deputy clerk.

United States of America, ss.

The President of the United States of America,

To the Judges of the District Court of the United

States, for the Southern District of California,

GREETING:
Because in the record and proceedings, and also in

the rendition of the judgment of a plea which is in the said

District Court, before you between Jacob Bauman, plain-

tiff, against John P. Carter, formerly United States Col-

lector of Internal Revenue, Sixth District of California,

Defendant a manifest error hath happened, to the great

damage of the said John P. Carter, defendant as by his

complaint appears, and it being fit, that the error, if

any there hath been, should be duly corrected, and full

and speedy justice done to the parties aforesaid in this

behalf,, you are hereby commanded, if judgment be

therein given, that then, under your seal, distinctly and

openly, you send the record and proceedings aforesaid,

with all things concerning the same, to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, together

with this writ, so that you have the same at the City

of San Francisco, in the State of California, on the 15th

day of December next, in the said United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, to be there and then held, that the
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record and proceedings aforesaid be inspected, the said

United States Circuit Court of Appeals may cause fur-

ther to be done therein to correct that error, what of

right and according to the law and custom of the United

States should be done.

WITNESS, the HON. WILLIAM HOWARD TAFT,

Chief Justice of the United States, this LSth day of

November in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and twenty-six and of the Independence of the

United States the one hundred and fifty-first

[Seal] Chas. N. Williams

Clerk of the District Court of the United States

of America, in and for the Southern District

of California.

By R S Zimmerman

Deputy Clerk.

The above writ of error is hereby allowed.

Paul J. McCormick

Judge.

I hereby certify that a copy of the within Writ of

Error was on the 23 day of November, 1926, lodged

in the office of the Clerk of the said United States Dis-

trict Court, for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division, for said Defendants in Error.

R. S. Zimmerman

Clerk of the District Court of the L^nited States

for the Southern District of California.

[Endorsed] : 1804 Civ. United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit John P. Carter Plain-

tiff in Error vs. Jacob Bauman Defendant in Error
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Writ of Error Filed Nov. 16, 1926 R. S. Zimmer-

man, clerk; Murray R. Wire, deputy.

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES SOUTHERN JUDICIAL DIS-

TRICT OF CALIFORNIA.

JACOB BAUMAN, Plaintiff, )

)

vs. ) AT LAW
)

JOHN P. CARTER, Former Collector )

of Internal Revenue for the Sixth )

District of California, )

Defendant. )

Comes now Jacob Bauman, the plaintiff above named,

and for cause of action against the above named de-

fendant says:

(1) That on and prior and subsequent to April 26,

1921, he was a citizen and resident of the City of Los

Angeles, County of Los Angeles, State of California,

residing at 947 Arapahoe Street, and was the proprietor

and duly qualified wine maker of bonded winery No.

5 located at Lankershim, said county and state.

(2) That the defendant, John P. Carter, was prior

to March 6, 1922, the duly appointed and acting Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the United States for the

Sixth District of California, and was such Collector for

more than four years prior thereto.

(3) That he, the plaintiff herein, during the wine

season of 1920 leased said bonded winery No. 5, located

at Lankershim, California, from the then proprietors,

Borgia Brothers; that he thereupon qualified as the pro-
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prietor and wine maker of said winery by giving the

bond required under the law and regulations, and by

meeting the other requirements therein provided; that

among other requirements he filed with the defendant

herein a plan of the winery premises, and that said plan

showed a room designated as a fortifying room, which

under the law and regulations was to be constructed

as therein provided and was part and parcel of the

bonded premises; that said room was constructed by

said plaintiff and his lessors, and was thereafter exam-

ined by said defendant Carter, or his representative, and

was approved by said defendant as in all respects con-

forming to the law and regulations^; and said bond was

acquired and filed and likewise approved by said defend-

ant, the said Collector of Internal Revenue.

(4) That on or about November 14, 1920, there was

stored in said fortifying room on the bonded premises

of winery No. 5, nine barrels of distilled spirits desig-

nated under the name of "Grape Brandy", and contain-

ing 820.9 taxable gallons on which the Internal Revenue

tax had not been paid; that this brandy had been stored

in said fortifying room under the direct supervision of

said Collector John P. Carter, through his duly ap-

pointed representative; and said brandy was to be used

by the plaintiff herein in the fortification of pure sweet

wines.

(5) That in accordance with the law and regulations

governing the construction of fortifying rooms on

bonded winery premises, the entrance door to aforesaid

room was provided with a rioxernnient lock and seal.

the key to which was at all times in the possession of
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the defendant herein, or his duly appointed representa-

tive; that when the said nine barrels of brandy were

deposited in said room, the entrance dooi was secured

by defendant's representative with said lock and seal

and the key to the lock was kept in his possession; and

that plaintiff had no ingress to said room except by

the permission and at the sufferance of said defendant

or his representative.

(6) That before said brandy was used, and on or

about November 15, 1920, said nine barrels of brandy

were stolen frojn said room by partivis unknown to the

plaintiff and without any negligence, connivance, collu-

sion, or fraud on his part.

(7) That this stolen brandv was not recovered and

was a total losn to the plaintiff, and he has received no

recompence fci either the whole or a part of it.

(8) That under the provisions of Section 5, Act of

November 23, 1921, (42 Stat., 222) no tax is assessable

or collectible on distilled spirits lost by theft from a

distillery warehouse or other bonded warehouse in the

absence of fraud on part of the owner.

(9) That Sections 3221 and 3223 (20 Stat., 327)

and Section 5, Act of June 7, 1906 (34 Stat., 215),

extending the provisions of said sections as amended to

grape brandy stored in fortifying rooms on bonded

winery premises, were in effect November 14, 1920, and

are now in effect and force.

(10) That the fortifying room on the aforesaid

bonded winery premises was constructed and supervised

in conformity with the law and regulations regarding

construction and supervision of distillery warehouses
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and other bonded warehouses; and it is the plaintiff's

and my contention that said fortifying room was on

November 15, 1920, a bonded warehouse under the pro-

vision of the law and regulations regarding bonded

warehouses; and by virtue of the aforesaid acts, that

any distilled spirits stored therein for fortifying pur-

poses and lost by theft before being used for such pur-

poses, are not subject to any unpaid internal revenue

taxes, except where fraud can be shown on the part of

the owner.

(11) That notwithstanding the fact that a fortifying

room on the premises of a bonded winery is a bonded

warehouse and taxes are not assessable or collectible on

spirits contained therein lost by theft without fraud or

recovery by the owner while in the custody of a revenue

officer, the said John P. Carter, then Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the Sixth District of California,

wrongfully and illegally exacted and collected from the

plaintiff herein under color of the provisions of Section

600, Act approved February 24, 1919, (40 Stat., 1057)

entitled "An Act to Provide Revenue and for Other

Purposes", and demanded and required that the plaintiff

involuntarily and under duress and compulsion pay to

him on April 26, 1921, the sum of $1,805.98, taxes due

on 820.9 proof gallons of brandy at the rate of $2.20

per gallon.

(12) That at said time and i)lace the plaintiff served

oral notice ui)()n the defendant, John P. Carter, that

said payment was made under duress and c()m])uIsion,

and under protest solely for the purpose of avoiding the

imposed penalties in said Act ])r()vi(le(l, and the restraint
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of his goods, chattels and effects, reserving all his rights

to recover said amount so illegally and erroneously

assessed and collected; and that the assessment of said

tax was illegal and void as against said plaintiff.

(13) That thereafter on or about April 28, 1921,

the plaintiff presented and delivered to said John P. Car-

ter a claim for refund of $1,313.08, a portion of the

$1,805.98 taxes paid to him, for transmission to the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue at Washington, D. C,

which application was in conformity with the law and

regulations governing such matters; that thereafter on

or about July 6, 1923, the said Commissioner of Internal

Revenue notified the said plaintiff that his claim had

been disallowed and rejected on the grounds that the

relief provisions of Section 5, Act of November 23,

1921 for losses of distilled spirits by theft from distillery

bonded warehouses or other bonded warehouses was not

applicable to losses of brandy by theft from the fortify-

ing room on the premises of a bonded winery.

(14) That thereafter on or about July 18, 1923, the

plaintiff presented and delivered to the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the Sixth District of California, an

amended claim for refund to be transmitted to the said

Commissioner of Internal Revenue at Washington, in

the full amount of the taxes paid ($1,805.98) on the

said nine barrels of distilled spirits stolen from said

fortifying room; and that subsequent thereto, on or

about June 12, 1924, said Commissioner notified the

plaintiff that his amended claim and application for

refund of the full amount of taxes so paid had been

disallowed and rejected on the grounds aforesaid; and
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said defendant, John P. Carter, as Collector of Internal

Revenue, to whom said money was paid, by reason of

the rejection and disallowance of said appeals and appli-

cations for refund by the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue, refused and still refuses to refund to the plain-

tiflf herein the whole or any part of said taxes so wrong-

fully and illegally exacted and collected from him.

WHEREFORE, the plaintiff herein demands judg-

ment against the defendant for the sum of $1,805.98,

together with interest thereon from April 26, 1921, and

for costs and disbunsements herein.

Daniel J. Chapin

Attorney for Plaintiff.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

) ss.

CITY AND COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, )

JACOB BAUMAN, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says: That he is the plaintiff in the above entitled

action and has read the above and foregoing complaint

and knows the contents thereof, and that the same is

true of his own knowledge, except as to the matters

therein stated on his information or belief, and that

as to those matters, he believes it to be true.

Jacob P>auman

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1st day of

August, 1924.

[Seal] Fannie D. Medlar

Notary Public in and for the City and County of

Los Angeles, State of California

My Commission Expires Oct. 29. 1924.
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[Endorsed] : In law. No. 1804-M. In the District

Court of the United States, in and for the Southern

District of CaHfornia Southern District. Jacob Bau-

man plaintiff, v. John P. Carter, Former Collector of

Internal Revenue for the Sixth District of California,

defendant. Bill of Complaint. Filed Aug. 2, 1924. Chas.

N. Williams, clerk, by Edmund L. Smith, deputy clerk.

Daniel J. Chapin, Attorney 301 I. W. Hellman Bldg.

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES SOUTHERN JUDICIAL DIS-

TRICT OF CALIFORNIA.

JACOB BAUMAN, Plaintiff, )

)

vs. )

)

JOHN P. CARTER, Former Collector ) AT LAW
of Internal Revenue for the Sixth )

District of California, )

Defendant )

)

It is stipulated between Samuel W. McNabb, United

States District Attorney and Assistant United States

Attorney, Donald Armstrong, for said Southern District

of California, attorneys for the Defendant, and Dan

J. Chapin, Attorney for the Plaintiff:

First That John P. Carter, defendant herein, was

the Collector of Internal Revenue for the Sixth District

of California on November 15, 1920, and was such col-

lector until March 6, 1922, and was such collector for

more than four years prior thereto;

Second That Jacob Bauman, the plaintiff herein, was

the proprietor of Bonded Winery Number five (5), lo-

cated at Lankershim, Sixth District of California;
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Third That said plaintiff, Jacob Bauman, had given

bond to the United States, conditioned that he would

comply with all laws and regulations respecting the pro-

duction, fortification etc., of all wines produced, and ac-

count for all brandy used in fortification;

Fourth That said winery premises thus bonded in-

cluded within the boundary thereof, a room known and

designated as a fortifying room

;

Fifth That there were stored in said winery prem-

ises on November 15, 1920, eight hundred and twenty

and nine-tenths (820.9) taxable gallons of grape brandy.

Sixth That said brandy was placed in said bonded

winery premises under the supervision of the defendant

herein, or his duly authorized representatives;

Seventh That the only door to said fortifying room

was secured by a Government lock, attached thereto by

a Government officer, by direction of the defendant

herein;

Eighth That the key to said lock was kept in the

possession of the Government officer at all times;

Ninth That sometime during the early hours of the

evening of November 15, 1920, the said door to the for-

tifying room on the bonded winery premises of the

plaintiff', was forced open by parties unknown to either

defendant or plaintiff and the brandy stolen therefrom;

Tenth That subsequent to the theft of said brandy, the

then Commissioner of Internal Revenue, assessed taxes

against the plaintiff, the said Jacob Bauman, in the

amount of $1805.98, alleged to be the ta.\ due on .said

brandy stolen from the fortifying room on the bonded

winery premises of Winery number live (5), Lanker-
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shim, of which the plaintiff was proprietor, to-wit: 820.9

taxable gallons at $2.20 per gallon, $1805.98.

Eleventh That notice and demand was made by de-

fendant herein on the plaintiff for the payment of said

tax in the amount of $1805.98 that distraint was threat-

ened by said defendant, and that the amount was paid

to said defendant, John P. Carter, under protest by the

plaintiff.

Twelfth That the fortifying room from which the

brandy was stolen was a part of the bonded winery

premises of Winery number five (5) Lankershim on

November 15, 1920.

Thirteenth That the 820.9 gallons of untax paid

brandy was the property of the plaintiff herein stored

in said fortifying room on said November 15, 1920, and

that the brandy lost by theft on said date was without

the collusion, fraud or negligence of any kind on the part

of said plaintiff; and that said plaintiff has not been

reimbursed for the loss of this brandy and has no legal

remedy against any person from which he can recover

the loss of the said brandy;

Fourteenth That said fortifying room on the Winery

premises of bonded Winery number five (5) Lankershim,

was constructed in conformity with the law and regula-

tions applicable thereto;

Fifteenth That said room was under the joint con-

trol of the defendant herein and the store-keeper gauger,
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assigned by the defendant to take charge of said fortify-

ing room.
Donald Armstrong,

Assistant U. S. Attorney for Defendant.

Dan J. Chapin

Attorney for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : 1804 M. Jacob Bauman plaintiff, vs.

John P. Carter, Collector, defendant. Stipulations. Filed

February 2, 1926. Chas. N. Williams, clerk, by Louis

J. Somers, deputy. Dan J. Chapin, attorney for plain-

tiff. Donald Armstrong, Asst. U. S. Atty, attorney for

defendant.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTH-
ERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA.

SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN, )

)

Plaintiff )

)

Vs. ) Law No. 1804-M

)

JOFIN P. CARTER, Former Col- )

lector of Internal Revenue for the )

Sixth District of California. )

)

Defendant. )

FINDINGS AND JUDGMENT
August 16. 1926.

This cause came on to be heard at this time and upon

consideration thereof the Court made findings and judg-

ments as follows:
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Findings of Facts

I.

That the allegations of the complaint are true and

were sustained by the facts.

II

That there is no issue of fact to be decided as the

litigants filed a written stipulation of the facts.

Ill

That the only question to be decided is whether the

fortifying room of a bonded winery is a "distillery or

other bonded ware-house", within the meaning of Section

5 of the Willis-Campbell Act, same being conceded by

briefs of counsel.

IV.

That if the brandy was taxable, the proper amount

of tax was assessed and paid, a claim for abatement

and refund duly made and rejected by Commissioner of

Internal Revenue and defendant Collector.

Conclusions of Law.

I

That the Court has jurisdiction of the parties of this

suit and of the subject matter thereof.

II.

That the part of Section 5 of the Willis-Campbell Act

applicable to the case is as follows:
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"If distilled spirits upon which the internal rev-

enue tax has not been paid are lost by-

theft from a distillery or other bonded warehouse

and it shall be made to appear to the Commissioner

that such losses did not occur as the result of negli-

gence, connivance, collusion or fraud on the part

of the owner or person legally accountable for such

distilled spirits, no tax shall be assessed or collected

upon the distilled spirits so lost, nor shall any tax

penalty be imposed or collected by reason of such

loss, but the exemption from the tax and penalty

shall only be allowed to the extent that the claimant

is not indemnified against or recompensed for such

loss. This provision shall apply to any claim for

taxes or tax penalties that may have accrued since

the passage of the National Prohibition Act or that

may accrue hereafter. Nothing in this section shall

be construed as in any manner limiting or restrict-

ing the provisions of Title III of the National Pro-

hibition Act."

III.

That a fortifying room on the premises of a bonded

winery is a bonded ware-house within the meaning of

Section 5 of the Willis-Campbell Act and falls within

the category of "other bonded ware-house" referred to

in said Act.

IV.

That plaintiff is entitled to recover from the defend-

ant, John P. Carter, former Collector of Internal Rev-

enue of the Sixth District of California, the sum of



Jacob Bauman. 17

$1805.98 with interest from April 26, 1921 to August

16, 1926. Judgment to be entered accordingly, done this

August 16, 1926.

Paul J. McCormick

United States District Judge.

Approved as to form.

Ames Peterson

Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : No. 1804-M. Law. U. S. District Court,

Southern District of California, Southern Division. Ja-

cob Bauman, plaintiff, vs. John P. Carter, former Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the Sixth District of

California, defendant. Findings and Judgment. Filed

Aug. 24, 1926. Chas. N. Williams, clerk, by L. J.

Cordes, deputy clerk. Dan J. Chapin, 513 I. W. Hell-

man, Los Angeles, Cal.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT SOUTH-
ERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA.

SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN, )

)

Plaintiff )

)

VS. ) No. 1804-M-Law.

)

JOHN P. CARTER, Former Col- )

lector of Internal Revenue for the )

Sixth District of California, )

)

Defendant. )

JUDGMENT
The issues in this action having been duly brought

to trial before Flonorable Paul McCormick, United
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States District Judge, on August 16, 1926, and the

Court having heard the allegations and proofs of the

parties and after due deliberation having duly made its

decision in writing in favor of the plaintiff and against

the defendant with finding of fact and conclusions of

law duly filed in the clerk's office of said Court.

Now, on said decision it is ordered, adjudged and de-

creed that the plaintiff, Jacob Bauman, recover of the

defendant, John P. Carter, former Collector of Internal

Revenue of the Sixth District of California, the sum

of $1805.98, with interest from April 26, 1921, to Aug-

ust 16, 1926. Judgment signed and entered this 25th

day of August, 1926.

Chas. N. Williams,

CLERK.

[Endorsed] : United States District Court, Southern

District of California Southern Division. Jacob Bau-

man, plaintiff vs. John P. Carter, former Collector of

Internal Revenue for the Sixth District of California

defendant. No. 1804 M- Law. Judgment. Filed Aug.

25, 1926. Chas. N. Williams, clerk, by L. J. Cordes,

deputy clerk. Dan J. Chapin, 513 I. W. Hellman, Los

Angeles, Cal.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN, )

Plaintiff, ) Law No. 1S04-M
vs )

)

JOHN P. CARTER, Former CoL )

lector of Internal Revenue for the )

Sixth District of California,
)

)

Defendant. )

Daniel J. Chapin, Los Angeles, California, for Plaintiff.

Samuel W. McNabb, United States Attorney, and

Donald Armstrong, Assistant United States Attorney,

of Los Angeles, California, for Defendant.

MEMORANDUM OPINION.

This is an action at law wherein plaintiff sues defend-

ant as Collector of Internal Revenue to recover $1805.98

with interest from April 26, 1921. Plaintiff was re-

quired to pay said principal amount as taxes due on

820.9 proof gallons of grape brandy, assessed at the

rate of $2.20 per gallon under Section 600 of an Act

approved iebruary 24th, 1919 (40 Stat. 1057). The pay-

ment was made involuntarily and under protest and

solely to avert the imposed penalties provided in said
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Act and to avoid distraint of PlaintiiFs property which

was threatened by defendant. A claim for abatement

and refund was duly made by plaintiff on the ground

that the taxes were illej^ally collected, and as to the prin-

cipal amount fued for herein the claim was disallowed

and rejected by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue

and by defenc ant Collector. The claim to refund was

made, and this action was broug-ht under Section 5 of

an Act supplemental to the National Prohibition Act.

known ar. the Willis-Campbell Act, (42 St;..l. 222), and

the part of s:iid Act applicable to this case is as follows:

"If distilled spirit? upon which the internal revenue

tax has not bevn pai''. are lost by theft from

a distillery or other bonded v/arehouse, and it shall be

made to appear to tlie Commissioner that such losses did

not occur as the reailt of negligence, connivance, collu-

sion, or fraud on I he part of the owner or person le-

gally accountable ^(^ such distilled spirits, no tax shall

be assessed or collected upon the distilled spirits so lost,

nor shall any tax penalty be imposed or collected by

reason of such loss, but the exemption from the tax and

penalty shall onl) be allowed to the extent that the

claimant is not indemnified against or recompensed for

such loss. This provision shall apply to any claim for

taxes or tax penalties that may have accrued since the

passage of the National Prohibition Act or that may

accrue hereafter. Nothing in this section shall be con-

strued as in any manner limiting or restricting the i)ro-

visions of Title HI of the National Prohibition Act."

The litigants have filed a written stipulation of facts

so that there is no issue of fact to be decided. It is



Jacob Bauman. 21

admitted that the brandy upon which the tax was as-

sessed and collected was legally manufactured and law-

fully deposited by plaintiff in a legitimate and authorized

fortifying room on the premises of Bonded Winery No.

5 at Lankershim in the Sixth District of California.

Plaintiff was the lawful proprietor of such bonded

winery and premises as well as the lawful owner of such

brandy. The brandy was securely placed and deposited

in the fortifying room of the bonded winery premises

on November 15th, 1920, and the only door to such forti-

fying room was securely locked by a regulation Govern-

ment lock attached by an agent of the Government and

by direction of defendant Collector, and the key to said

door and fortifying room was kept by the Government

officer at all times. Some time in the early hours of

the evening of November 15th, 1920, after the fortifying

room in which the brandy was deposited had been se-

curely locked as aforesaid, the door thereof was forced

open by parties unknown to either plaintiif or defendant,

and the brandy deposited therein was stolen therefrom

by parties unknown to either plaintiff or defendant.

There is no intimation or contention that the theft and

loss of the brandy was the result of negligence, con-

nivance, collusion, or fraud of plaintiff in any manner.

On the contrary, it is admitted that he was entirely

innocent in the matter. No jurisdictional issue is raised

by the parties.

The briefs of counsel concede that the only question

for decision is whether the fortifying room of a bonded

winery is a ''distillery or other bonded warehouse"
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within the meaning of Section 5 of the Willis-Campbell

Act, (supra), and it is agreed that, if the brandy was

taxable, the proper amount of tax was assessed and paid.

A fortifying room is an enclosed place on the prem-

ises of a bonded winery, designated and built under the

supervision of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue

and the Collector of Internal Revenue of the District in

which such bonded winery is located for the deposit,

storage, and use of brandy, when used to fortify wine,

upon which the internal revenue tax has not been paid.

The Government tax must be paid before the fortified

wine leaves the fortifying room. Such a place is un-

doubtedly a "warehouse" according to common usage

and meaning. Webster's New International Dictionary

defines "warehouse" as "a storehouse for wares and

goods; a receiving house.'' When broadly used, the term

includes any structure used to store goods in. The term

is specifically used respecting taxable and dutiable com-

modities when such are placed in the Government stores

or bonded warehouses to be kept until the taxes or duties

are paid.

The regulations of the Treasury Department further

persuade one to the belief that fortifying rooms on

bonded winery premises are regarded by the Government

as store-rooms and warehouses. See Regulations 28,

part I, Revision 1918, page 14, paragraph b. And an

examination of the statutes relative to distillerv ware-

houses (Section 3271, Revised Statutes) and a compari-

son with statutes authorizing, defining, and providing

for the fortifying room in a bonded winery (Section 617,

Act of February 24, 1919, 40 Slat. 1037) and also with



Jacob Bauman. 23

Sections 4 and 5 in Regulations 28, Part I, Revision 1918

of Treasury Department, clearly shows that the require-

ments, construction, control, and purposes of the fortify-

ing- room of a bonded winery are substantially the same

as those of a distillery warehouse, and similar as well

to the general and special bonded warehouses.

There is one paramount purpose and use common to

all of such places, namely, that each of such places or

depositaries are used for the storage of goods until the

taxes are paid thereon. The mere fact that the brandy

is mixed and intermingled with the wine in the fortify-

ing room does not alter or destroy the storage or ware-

house feature of such room. It is true that it is a place

of manufacture but it is nevertheless a warehouse, be-

cause the wine and the brandy are stored therein before

being mixed and intermingled, and the Treasury regula-

tions expressly provide that the fortifying room is to be

used as a warehouse or storeroom for all the brandy

necessarily left over after fortification has taken place.

There is no substantial difference, in so far as storage

use is concerned, between distillery warehouses and for-

tifying rooms in bonded wineries. Section 24 of Regu-

lations 28, Part I, Revision 1918, page 43, of the Treas-

ury Department, furnish additional strong reasons to

believe that the Internal Revenue branch of the Govern-

ment considers the fortifying room as a bonded ware-

house for the storage of brandy to be used in fortifying

wine when it provides for the abatement of taxes when

such brandy is lost through casualty while in the custody

of the officers of the Internal Revenue, which is alwavs
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the case when the brandy is on lawful deposit in the for-

tifying room.

I have not been cited to any adjudication wherein

the precise question for decision in this case has been

considered, and an independent investigation has dis-

closed no applicable judicial precedent. The true test as

to whether a warehouse is bonded appears to be as to

whether the Government has taken control of the store-

house or warehouse and exercises dominion over the prem-

ises. See United States vs. Powell, 14 Wallace 493. The

fortifying room of the bonded winery involved in this

action, at the time the brandy was stolen and lost, was

under the control of the government for the sole purpose

of insuring, facilitating, and enforcing the payment of

taxes due on the brandy that had been lawfully depos-

ited therein under the supervision and direction of the

Government. These facts and circumstances constitute

such fortifying room nothing less or different than a

bonded warehouse within the meaning of Section 5 of

the Willis-Campbell Act, (supra). And, as has been

already suggested, the fortifying room has all the essen-

tial marks of a distillery warehouse. But, assuming,

without admitting, that there is a real distinction be-

tween a distillery warehouse referred to in Section 5

of the Willis-Campbell Act and the fortifying room of

a bonded winery, neverthelss tiie fortifying room clearly

falls within the category of "other bonded warehouse''

referred to in said act.

I am unable to agree with the CiovcrnmcnL's contention

that the (Hily warehouses referred to in the Act in ques-
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tion, under the phrase "other bonded warehouse," are

the special and general warehouses provided for by the

Act of March 3, 1877, as amended (19 Stat. 335),

pages 251 and 252 of the Compilation of Internal Rev-

enue Laws of 1920, and Sections 51 and 52 of the Act

of August 27, 1894 (28 Stat. 509), for it would appear

that Congress has provided that manufacture may be

carried on upon the premises of a bonded warehouse

and to a much greater extent than in a fortifying room

and the place of manufacture still remain a warehouse.

See Denatured Alcohol Act of June 7, 1906 (34 Stat.

1250) ; Bottle in Bond Act of March 3, 1897 (29 Stat.

626) ; and the Amendment to Section 3221, Revised

Statutes, by Section 6, Act of March 1, 1879 (20 Stat.

327), applying to losses of spirits in cistern rooms of

distilleries. All of these statutes provide for allowances

of losses by casualty of spirits stored in these places in

accordance with the provisions of Section 3221, Revised

Statutes.

In the Statutes relating to the establishment of the

various depositaries and places referred to in these Acts

of Congress, the same precautions and requirements are

found as exist in the laws establishing distillery ware-

houses or special or general bonded warehouses. The

same general requirements as to construction, supervi-

sion, and control by the Government appears in all of

these laws, just as it appears in the Statutes respecting

the estabhshment and maintenance of fortifying rooms

on bonded winery premises, and no reason is apparent to
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me why a loss by casualty in a fortifying room should

not have the benefit of the remedial provisions for the

exemption from tax and penalty contained in Section 5

of the Willis-Campbell Act, (supra).

Findings and judgment for the amount sued for, to-

gether with interest, are ordered for plaintiff, and coun-

sel for plaintiff will prepare same in accordance with

the Rules of this Court.

Dated August 16th, 1926.

Paul J. McCormick,

United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : No. 1804-M. Law. U. S. District Court,

Southern District of California, Southern Division. Ja-

cob Bauman, plaintiff, vs. John P. Carter, former Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the Sixth District of Cali-

fornia, defendant. Memorandum Opinion. Filed Aug-

ust 16th, 1926. Chas. N. Williams, clerk by Louis J.

Somers, deputy.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN,
Law No. 1804-M

PETITION
FOR WRIT OF

ERROR.

Plaintiff

vs.

JOHN P. CARTER, Former Col-

lector of Internal Revenue for the

Sixth District of California.

Defendant.

TO THE HONORABLE PAUL J. McCORMICK,
Judge of said Court;

Now comes the defendant, John P. Carter, formerly-

United States Collector of Internal Revenue, Sixth Dis-

trict of California, by Samuel W. McNabb and Donald

Armstrong, his attorneys, and feeling himself aggrieved

by the final judgment of this court entered against him

and in favor of Jacob Bauman, on the 25th day of Aug-

ust, 1926, hereby prays that a writ of error may be

allowed to him from the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit to the District Court of

the United States for the Southern District of Califor-

nia, and in connection with this petition, petitioner

hereby presents his assignments of error.
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Petitioner further prays that an order of supersedeas

may be entered herein pending the final disposition of

this cause.

SAMUEL W. McNABB,
United States Attorney,

Donald Armstrong,

DONALD ARMSTRONG,
Assistant United States Attorney.

Attorneys for Defendant and

Plaintiff in error.

[Endorsed] : No. 1804-M In the District Court of

the United States for the Southern District of Califor-

nia Southern Division Jacob Bauman vs. John P. Car-

ter, Former Collector of Internal Revenue for the Sixth

District of California. Petition for Writ of Error.

Filed Nov. 15, 1926 Chas. N. Williams, Clerk. By

Edmund L. Smith, Deputy Clerk.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES IN AND FOR THE SOUTHERN

DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA,
SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN,

Plaintiff and Defendant
in Error,

vs.

Law No. 1804-M

ASSIGNMENT
OF ERRORS.JOHN P. CARTER, Former Col-

lector of Internal R.evenue for the

Sixth District of California,

Defendant, and Plaintiff

in Error.

Now comes the plaintiff' in error by Samuel W Mc-

Nabb and Donald Armstrong, his attorneys, and in con-

nection with his petition for a writ of error says that in

the record, proceedings and in the final judgment afore-

said manifest error has intervened to the prejudice of

the plaintiff in error, to-wit:

I.

That the court erred in not entering judgment for

the plaintiff in error herein upon the agreed statement

of facts and upon the facts as found by the court in its

findings of fact.

n.

That the conclusions of law as made by the court are

not supported by the findings of fact.

IIL

That the judgment as entered herein is contrary to

law.
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By reason whereof plaintiff in error prays that the

judgment aforesaid may be reversed.

Dated: Los Angeles, California, this 15th day of

November, 1926.

SAMUEL W. McNABB,
United States Attorney.

Donald Armstrong,

DONALD ARMSTRONG
Assistant United States Attorney.

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

We hereby certify that the foregoing assignment of

errors is made in behalf of the plaintiff in error herein-

above named, for a writ of error and is in our opinon,

and the same now constitutes the assignment of errors

upon the writ prayed for.

SAMUEL W. McNABB,
United States Attorney.

Donald Armstrong,

DONALD ARMSTRONG
Assistant United States Attorney.

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

[Endorsed] : No. 1804-M. In the District Court of the

United States, for the Southern District of California,

Southern Division. Jacob Bauman, vs. John P. Carter,

former Collector of Internal Revenue for the Sixth Dis-

trict of California. Assignment of Error. Filed Nov.

15, 1926. Chas. N. Williams, clerk, by Edmund L.

Smith, dei)uty clerk.
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
District Court of the United States

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
Southern Division

Jacob Bauman

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN P. CARTER

Defendant.

Clerk's Office

^ No. 1804 M

Defendant and Plaintiff in

Error's

Praecipe

for record

TO THE CLERK OF SAID COURT:
Sir:

Please prepare the following record on appeal in the

above entitled case:

1. Copy of the Complaint filed in said case;

2. Copy of the Answer filed in said case.

3. Copy of the Stipulation of facts entered into by

and between the parties in said case;

4. Findings of Fact found by the Court in said case;

5. Conclusions of Law in said case

;

6. The Judgment of the court in said case;

7. Notice of Entry of Judgment in said case;

8. The Petition for Writ of Error in said case;
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9. The Assignment in Error in said case;

10. The citation issued in said case.

11. The Writ of Error issued in said case.

Respectfully submitted

S, W. McNabb

J U. S. Attorney

Donald Armstrong

Asst. U. S. Attorney

Attorneys for Def & Plf in Error

[Endorsed]: No. 1804 M. U. S. District Court

Southern District of California Jacob Bauman plaintiff

vs. John P. Carter defendant. Praecipe for Record on

Appeal in above case. Received copy of the within

praecipe this day of January, 1927. Dan J. Chapin

Attorneys for plaintiff and defendant in error. Filed

Jan. 3, 1927 R. S. Zimmerman clerk.
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IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALI-

FORNIA, SOUTHERN DIVISION.

JACOB BAUMAN, )

Plaintiff, )

-vs- )

)

JOHN P. CARTER, Former Col- ) CLERK'S
lector of Internal Revenue for the )

Sixth District of California, ) CERTIFICATE.
)

Defendant. )

I, R. S. ZIMMERMAN, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of California,

do hereby certify the foregoing volume containing

32 pages, numbered from 1 to 32 inclusive, to be

the Transcript of Record on Writ of Error in the above

entitled cause, as printed by the plaintiff in error, and

presented to m.e for comparison and certification, and

that the same has been compared and corrected by me

and contains a full, true and correct copy of the citation,

writ of error and order allowing writ of error, bill of

complaint, stipulation, findings and judgment, judg-

ment, opinion, petition for writ of error, assignment of

errors, and praecipe.

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the fees of the

Clerk for comparing, correcting and certifying the fore-

going Record on Writ of Error amount to

and that said amount has been paid me by the plaintiff

in error.
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

hand and affixed the Seal of the District Court of

the United States of America, in and for the

Southern District of California, Southern Division,

this day of March, in the year of Our

Lord One Thousand Nine Hundred and Twenty-

seven and of our Independence the One Hundred

and Fifty-first.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk of the District Court of the

United States of America, in

and for the Southern District

of California.

By

Deputy.
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IN THE

United States

Circuit Court of Appeals,

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

John P. Carter, Former Collector of

Internal Revenue for the Sixth Dis-

trict of California,

Plaintiff in Error.

vs.

Jacob Bauman,

Defendant in Error.

OPENING BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

Samuel W. McNabb,

United States Attorney,

Donald Armstrong,

Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.

Parlrar, Stone k Baird Co., Law PriDtcra, Lot Angelca.





No. 5098.

IN THE

United States

Circuit Court of Appeals,
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

John P. Carter, Former Collector of

Internal Revenue for the Sixth Dis-

trict of California,

Plaintiff in Error,

vs.

Jacob Bauman,

Plaintiff in Error.

OPENING BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF IN ERROR.

This is an appeal from the judgment of the United

States District Court for the Southern District of CaH-

fornia in which the lower court allowed the recovery of

the sum of $1805.98, the amount of taxes assessed and

collected by the plaintiff in error from the defendant in

error upon 820.9 gallons of grape brandy which was

stolen from the fortifying room of the bonded winery of

defendant in error.

The facts are undisputed and are as follows:

That on the 15th day of November, 1920, and for

sometime prior thereto, the defendant in error was the
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owner and proprietor of Bonded Winery No. 5, within

the Sixth Internal Revenue Collection District of Cali-

fornia; that there was situated on these bonded premises

a fortifying room in which the brandy in question was

stored; that sometime during the evening of November

15th, 1920, the brandy was stolen from said fortifying

room.

The only question presented to the court below and

urged in this appeal is whether the fortifying room situ-

ated on premises constituting a bonded winery is a "dis-

tillery or other bonded warehouse" within the meaning of

section 5 of an act supplemental to the National Prohibi-

tion Act, known as the Willis-Campbell Act (42 Stat.

222, Comp. St. Ann. Supp. 1923, Sees. 10138 4/5 (d)

and 10138 4/5 (e)), which reads in part as follows:

"Distilled spirits upon which the internal revenue

tax has not been paid are * * * i^g^^ l^y theft

from a distillery or other bonded warehouse, and it

shall be made to appear to the Commissioner that

such losses did not occur as the result of negligence,

connivance, collusion or fraud on the part of the

owner or person legally accountable for such distilled

spirits, no tax shall be assessed or collected upon the

distilled spirits so lost, nor shall any tax penalty be

imposed or collected by reason of such loss, but the

exemption from the tax and penalty shall only be

allowed to the extent that the claimant is not in-

demnified against t)r recompensed for such loss. This

provision shall apply to any claim for taxes or i)en-

alties that may have occurred since the passage of

the National Prohibition Act or that may occur here-

after. Nothing in this section shall be construed as

in any manner limiting or restricting the provision

of Title 111 of the National Prohibition Act."
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It is the position of plaintiff in error that Congress did

not intend to exempt the fortifying room of a bonded

winery from payment of taxes upon the loss or theft of

grape brandy therefrom by section 5 of the Willis-Camp-

bell Act, supra, and that the words ''distillery or other

bonded warehouse" do not include the fortifying room

of a bonded winery either within the meaning of said

section or in ordinary or common parlance, and in sup-

port thereof respectfully submits the following:

Distillery warehouses are established under the pro-

visions of section 3271, R. S., as amended, which section

provides among other things that the warehouse shall be

under the direction and control of the Collector of In-

ternal Revenue of the Collection District in which it is

situated and in charge of an Internal Revenue storekeeper

assigned thereto by the Commissioner. Such bonded ware-

house was held to be an agency of the Government in the

case of George v. Fourth National Bank of Lanesville

(41 Fed. 263). By virtue of 3251, R. S., as amended,

the Government has an express lien on spirits in such

warehouse,—on the buildings and land constituting the

distillery premises.

That distillery warehouses are under the direction and

control of the Collector of the District and in charge of

an Internal Revenue storekeeper ganger assigned thereto

by the Commissioner, see sections 3153, 3154, 3274, 3260

and 3293, R. S., as amended. In this connection attention

is directed to the provisions pertaining to the establish-

ment of distillery warehouses. A distiller must provide

the warehouse at his own expense, which must be built

in accordance with the provisions of section 3271, R. S.,

and Treasury Decision 2431. When thus constructed,



application must be made to the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue for its establishment, and the application is re-

quired to be accompanied by a diagram of the warehouse

and a certificate of examination by the Collector. The

warehouse is then formally approved in writing by "the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, the notice of approval

containing a complete description of the warehouse, and

storekeepers or storekeeper-gangers must be assigned

thereto by the Commissioner, formal notice being sent to

the storekeeper or storekeeper-gauger and Collector, a

record thereof being made in the office of the Com-

missioner.

Sections 51 and 52 of the Act of August 27, 1894 (28

Stat. 509) and pages 247 and 248 of the Compilation of

Internal Revenue Laws of 1920 provide for the establish-

ment of general bonded warehouses and contain much the

same provision for the assignment of officers, placing the

control of the warehouses in the Collector of Internal

Revenue of the District and the joint custody of the store-

keeper and the proprietor thereof.

The Act of March 3, 1877, as amended (19 Stat. 335,

pages 251 and 252 of the Compilation of Internal Revenue

Laws of 1920), provides for the establishment of special

bonded warehouses for the storage of fruit, brandy.

Section 1 thereof provides that each such warehouse shall

be in charge of a storekeeper to be appointed, assigned,

transferred, etc., in the same manner as storekeei)er-

gaugers at distillery warehouses, and further i)r()vides

that every such warehouse shall be under the control of

the Collector of Internal Revenue for the district in which

located and shall be in the joint custody of the store-

keeper and proprietor thereof.
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The foregoing bonded warehouses are evidently the

ones contemplated in section 5, Act of November 23,

1921, by the phrase "distillery or other bonded ware-

house". It is only fair to assume that the Government

by reason of the precautions in the establishment of and

supervision over the foregoing warehouses intended to

exempt the taxpayer from taxes on liquors lost at such

warehouses.

The foregoing provisions of law and regulations per-

taining to distillery and bonded warehouses do not, how-

ever, apply to the fortifying rooms of bonded wineries.

Bonded wineries, including the fortifying rooms, are

established and supervised in accordance with the provi-

sions of sections 612 and 617 of the Revenue Act of 1918,

approved February 24, 1919, section 612 reading in part

as follows:

"That under such regulations and official super-

vision and upon the giving of such notices, entries,

bonds, and other security as the Commissioner, with

the approval of the Secretary, may prescribe, any

producer of wines defined under the provisions of

this title, may withdraw from any fruit distillery or

special bonded warehouse grape brandy, or wine

spirits, for the fortification of such wines on the

premises where actually made * * *."

Section 617, amending sections 42, 43 and 45 of the

Act of October 1, 1890, as amended, reads in part as

follows

:

"That any producer of pure sweet wines may use

in the preparation of sweet wines, under such regula-

tions and after the filing of such notices and bonds,

together with the keeping of such records and the

rendition of such reports as to materials and prod-
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ucts as the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, with

the approval of the Secretary of the Treasury, may
prescribe, wine spirits produced by any duly author-

ized distiller * * *."

Section 4, subdivision (b) of regulation 28, part I of

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, drawn and

adopted pursuant to sections 612 and 617 of the Revenue

Act of 1918 and approved by the Secretary of the Treas-

ury, reads as follows

:

"A winery, where wine is to be fortified, in all

cases will consist of a room to be known as the forti-

fying room."

Section 17 of said regulations reads in part as follows:

"When a winemaker desires to begin the fortifica-

tion of sweet wines, he will make a request for the

assignment of an officer to supervise the fortification

of such wine."

The fortifying room, although part of the bonded prem-

ises and thus "bonded" is not a warehouse as that term

is used either in the revenue laws or regulations or in

common parlance. A fortifying room is used prin-

cipally as an incident to the manufacture of wine and not

for the storage of distilled spirits as the brandy or dis-

tilled spirits are withdrawn from a distillery or bonded

warehouse as is evidenced by sections 612 and 617 of the

Revenue Act of 1918. Spirits may be kept on hand or

stored in this room but such a use occurs after the spirits

have been taken out of the warehouse where the loss

occurring would be allowable and is held i)ending its use

in the manufacture of sweet wines. It is thus substan-

tially a manufacturing use and does not convert a manu-

facturing plant into a warehouse. A distillery or other
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bonded warehouse is strictly one defined by statute as has

been heretofore shown, while the fortifying room of a

bonded winery is created and supervised by regulation of

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

It is, therefore, respectfully urged that Congress did

not intend to include the fortifying room of a bonded

winery within the meaning of section 5 of the Willis-

Campbell Act, supra, and that the judgment of the lower

court should be reversed and judgment entered for the

plaintiff in error.

Respectfully submitted,

Samuel W. McNabb,

United States Attorney

y

Donald Armstrong,,

Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Plaintiff in Error.
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IN THE

United States

Circuit Court of Appeals,

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT.

John P. Carter, former Collector of In-

ternal Revenue for the Sixth District

of California,

Plaintiff in Error.

vs.

Jacob Bauman,

Defendant in Error.

BRIEF FOR DEFENDANT IN ERROR.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

Jacob Bauman, the defendant in error, is a resident of

the city and county of Los Angeles, California, and was

on the 15th day of November, 1920, the proprietor of

Bonded Winery No. Five, Lankershim, that the defendant

in error had given to the United States a bond covering

the premises occupied by said winery, conditioned that he

would comply with all the laws and regulations respect-

ing the production and fortification of all wines produced

and account for all brandy used in fortification of wines
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manufactured on the winery premises, that said winery

premises, thus bonded, included within the boundaries

thereof, a room known and designated as a fortifying-

room, that on the afternoon of the 15th day of November,

1920, Jacob Bauman deposited 890.9 proof gallons of

grape brandy in the fortifying room under the supervision

of an officer of internal revenue, designated by the plain-

tiff in error; that the officer secured the only door leading

into the fortifying room by a government lock, keeping

the key thereto in his possession, that sometime during

the early hours of the evening of November 15, 1920, the

door, aforesaid, was forced open by some one unknown to

either the plaintiff or defendant i'l error and the entire

890.9 gallons of brandy, so deposited, therein was stolen

therefrom. After the brandy was so stolen, Jacob Bau-

man paid under protest a stamp tax of $1805.98 on the

820.9 proof gallons of brandy stolen at the rate of $2.20

per proof gallon. Accordingly the present action was in-

stituted against plaintiff in error, former Collector of In-

ternal Revenue, to recover the tax thus paid under protest.

Judgment passed in the District Court in favor of de-

fendant in error for the return of the amount sought to

be recovered in accordance with the complaint, and the

present appeal results therefrom.

Prior to November 23, 1921, there was no provision of

law that relieved the proprietors of distillery warehouse or

other bonded warehouse from the tax on distilled spirits

stored therein, lost by theft. Congress on the dale afore-

said, passed an act entitled "An Act supplemental to the

National Prohibition Act," known as the Willis-Campbell

Act (42 Slat. 222) which relieved the proprietors from

the tax un distilled spirits so Kjsi froui aforesaid ware-
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houses provided, the loss was not caused by the negligence,

connivance, collusion or fraud on part of the owner or

proprietors thereof. Section five (5) of said act in part

is as follows:

"If distilled spirits upon which the internal revenue

tax has not been paid are * * * lost by theft from

a distillery or other bonded warehouse and it shall be

made to appear to the commissioner that such losses

did not occur as the result of negligence, connivance,

collusion or fraud on the part of the owner or person

legally accountable for such distilled spirits, no tax

shall be assessed or collected upon the distilled spirits

so lost, nor shall any tax penalty be imposed or col-

lected by reason of such loss, but the exemption from

the tax and penalty shall only be allowed to the extent

that the claimant is not indemnified against or recom-

pensed for such loss. This provision shall apply to

any claims for taxes or tax penalties that may have

accrued since the passage of the National Prohibition

Act or that may accrue hereafter. Nothing in this

section shall be construed as in any manner limiting

or restricting the provisions of Title III of the Na-

tional Prohibition Act."

The sole question involved here is whether a room on

the premises of a bonded winery, known as the fortifying

room, is a "distillerv or other bonded warehouse" within

the meaning of section 5 of the Willis-Campbell Act

(supra.) The determination thereof hinges on whether

or not a fortifying room on the premises of a bonded

winery premises is a bonded warehouse, as defined by the

statutes providing for such warehouses.

It is the contention of the defendant in error

:

(1) That a fortifying room on the bonded premises of

a winery is a bonded warehouse.



(2) That there has been no decision of the Federa!

Courts passing" upon the precise question involved in the

appeal. Such being the case, the question is resolved into

a comparison of the laws and regulations constituting dis-

tillery warehouses and such other bonded warehouses as

the statutes have provided for and fortifying rooms on

bonded winery premises and if the requirements, authority

and control are the same as to all, then it must follow

that a fortifying room is a bonded warehouse.

(3) That distilled spirits stored in a fortifying room,

loss by theft is not subject to any tax thereon.

(4) That where the government exercises a control and

dominion over a warehouse that is superior to the owner,

it cannot be a free warehouse and if it is bonded, then it

must be a bonded warehouse.

Statutes Involved, Primarily.

Section 5 of an Act Supplemental to National Prohibi-

tion Act (42 Statute 222) supra.

Secondarily (For Comparison).

Regulations Series Number 7, pages 30, 31 and 34;

Section 51, Revised Statutes, Act of August 27

^

1874 (28 Stat. 509) ;

Section 1, Revised Statutes, Act of March 3, 1877

(19 Stat. 393);

Section 45, Revised Statutes (26 Stat. 621)

;

Regulations Number 28, part 1, Revised 1918, page

13, paragraphs 4 and 5;

Sections 3271, 3273 and 3274. Revised Statutes.

The pertinent provisions of the above sections are set

out further along in this brief.
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Facts.

The facts have been stipulated, record of transcript

pages 11 to 14 inclusive, so no issue of fact is involved

before this court.

ARGUMENT.

I.

A Fortifying Room on the Premises of a Bonded

Winery Is a Bonded Warehouse.

In order to sustain the position above stated, two ele-

mentary propositions must be settled.

( 1 ) That the room in question is a warehouse.

(2) That the premises of which it is a part, is bonded.

A warehouse is defined by Webster's Unabridged Dic-

tionary as follows : generally, "A storehouse for wares

and goods, a receiving house," specifically, "To deposit or

secure in a government or bonded warehouse until duties

are paid."

A warehouse was considered in 23 Maine 47, the court

saying

:

"A warehouse is a place used for the reception of

goods and merchandise."

The government regulation prescribing the requirements

of a fortifying room make of it a warehouse as defined

above (Regulations No. 28, Part I, pages 13 and 14

supra. )

Paragraph Five.

(a) "This room will be locked with government

seal lock, the key of which at all times, when brandy,

sweetening agents or wines for refortification are on

deposit therein.
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(b) "The fortifying- room must be sufficiently large

to admit storage of all brandy withdrawn for fortifi-

cation purposes that may be on hand unused at any

one time. * * * \11 tanks within the fortifying

room must be designated as fortifying tanks.

^^^
<i* * * 'Pl^g office must be furnished with

chair, a desk, with one or more drawers * * * and

of a capacity enough for keeping blanks, forms, rough

drafts of form 275 daily reports of fortification * * *"

That the fortifying room in question was used for the

purpose of storing goods and merchandise and further

that on the goods and merchandise stored therein the

duties had not been paid, the transcript, page 12, para-

graph 4, 5 and 6 discloses that 890.9 gallons of grape

brandy was stored and deposited therein. It is, therefore,

submitted that a fortifying room is a warehouse.

It is admitted by paragraphs 3 and 4, page 12 of the

transcript, that the fortifying room in question was

bonded, therefore, it is contended the determination of

propositions one to four above is that the fortifying

room on the premises of a bonded winery is a bonded

warehouse.

This contention is further sustained by court decisions

as follows

:

In the George case, 41 Fed. 257, the court says:

"That a bonded warehouse is one which the Gov-

ernment holds and maintains control of the security

of its contents superior to that of the owner to such

extent that he can only have admitlance thereto at the

sufferance of the Government officer, that such a

bonded warehouse can in no sense be construed as a

free warehouse."



Justice Hughes passing on the control of warehouses

held:

"The control of the Government's representatives

is made dominant as in the nature of the case it must

be in order to fulfill the purpose of the act."

232 U. S. Reports 174.

These expressions of the court show that the Govern-

ment's control over bcjnded warehouses and that where

such is the case that the warehouse is bonded, otherwise,

it would be a free warehouse.

A fortifying room on the premises of a bonded winery

in view of these decisions must be classed as a bonded

warehouse as its contents are absolutely under the control

of the Government's representatives to the exclusion of

the proprietor. It being such a warehouse, there can be

no tax asserted on spirits or brandy lost therefrom by

theft.

Are the Requirements Relative to Construction, Con-

trol and Dominion Over a Fortifying Room Com
paratively the Same as the Statutes and Regula-

tions Prescribed for a Distillery or Other Bonded

Warehouse, as Otiier Bonded Warehouses Have

Been Specifically Designated by the Statutes and

Regulations.

In making the comparison, the provisions relative to

distillery warehouses have been used, as no provisions of

law are made regarding construction of general and special

bonded warehouses.

Sections 3271 and 3274, Section 617, Act of Feb-

Revised Statutes, provided ruary 24, 1919, 40 Stat.
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as to distillery warehouse as

follows :

Distiller must provide a

warehouse at his own ex-

pense. Must be part of dis-

tillery premises, can be used

only for storage of spirits

of his own manufacture

until tax thereon has been

paid.

No door, window or other

opening shall be made or

permitted in the wall of such

warehouse leading into the

distillery or any other room

or building.

Plan of distillery ware-

house must be approved by

the Commissioner of Inter-

nal Revenue.

Distillery warehouse shall

be under the direction and

control of the collector of

the district and in charge of

an internal revenue store-

keeper ganger, assigned

thereto by the commissioner.

1057), and regulations pro-

mulgated thereunder, pro-

vide as to fortifying rooms

(Reg. 28, Part 1, paragraph

4 and 5) supra, as follows:

Wine maker must provide

fortifying room, must be

part of the bonded winery

premises, can be used for

storage of brandy either his

own make or secured from

another distillery and al-

lowed to remain until tax is

paid on wine after fortifica-

tion.

The room must be se-

curely built and partitioned

as to be entirely separate

from every other part of

the winery. With all the

doors, windows or other

openings leading tu or from

the room so arranged and

built that the same may be

securely locked, bolted or

barred from the inside.

Plan of fortifying room

must be approved by the

Commissioner of Internal

Revenue.

The fortifying room when
brandy is stored therein

shall at all times be under

the supervision and in the

custody of an officer of in-

ternal revenue.
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Every distillery ware-

house shall be in joint cus-

tody of the government of-

ficer and the proprietor and

be kept securely locked and

the key in possession of the

government officer and can

be opened only in presence

of the officer, and no articles

can be received or delivered

therefrom except on order

or permit addressed to the

storekeeper and signed by

collector having control of

the warehouse.

All doors to the fortify-

ing room must be locked

from the inside except the

entrance door, which will be

locked with Government

seal lock, the key of which

will at all times when
brandy or wines are depos-

ited therein, be in the cus-

tody of the officer in charge.

Collectors will make requisi-

tions for the necessary locks

and seals, the same to be

supplied, used and accounted

for as in case of distillery

warehouse. The owner can

only enter the fortifying

room by permission of the

revenue officer in charge.

Every wine maker must

give bond sufficient in

amount to cover the tax on

the brandy he intends to

store in his fortifying room

and for any assessments of

deficiency found and condi-

tioned that all such taxes or

deficiency assessed may be

collected under the bond.

It will be noted that the requirements as to construction

and control are essentially the same relative to distillery

warehouse and a fortifying room. The statutory and

regulatory requirements regarding construction and con-

trol of industrial alcohol bonded warehouses are in sub-

stance in conformity with those affecting distillery ware-

Every distillery must give

a bond covering the tax on

the spirits to be deposited in

the distillery warehouse,

conditioned that any tax

against said spirits may be

recovered from the bond.



-12-

houses and fortifying rooms. As provided by Regulations

61, approved July, 1920, page 32, article 36 and page 38,

article 46.

General bonded warehouses are provided for by section

51, act of August 27, 1894 (28 Stat. 509) as follows:

"Every such warehouse shall be under the control

of the collector of internal revenue of the district in

which such w^arehouse is located, and shall be in joint

• custody of the storekeeper and proprietor thereof, and

kept securely locked, and shall at no time be unlocked

or opened or remain open except in the presence of

such storekeeper or other person who may be desig-

nated to act for him, as provided in the case of dis-

tillery warehouse."

Special bonded warehouses are provided for by section

one (1) Act of March 3, 1877 (19 Stat. 393) although

passed at an earlier date, the same identical language is

used relative to their control as regards general bonded

warehouses, supra.

In addition to the requirements and control of a fortify-

ing room conforming to those surrounding a distillery

warehouse, the same restrictions are thrown around the

fortifying room as are provided for industrial alcohol

bonded warehouse general and special bonded warehouse.

It therefore appears conclusive that the same require-

ments and control are now provided for a fortifying roon)

as are ])rovided for all other bonded warehouses men-

tioned in the statutes. If il;> uses and purjjoscs arc the

same, it must follow that it is a bonded warehouse, and

that the loss of spirits therefrom by theft is not subject

to tax.

There can be only one use and purpose for a bonded

fortifying room on the premises of a bonded winery, and
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that is to secure the payment of the tax due on the brandy

and wine stored therein, else it would be wholly unneces-

sary to require the bond.

It is submitted that the law, regulations and facts sustain

the defendant in error in his contentions, supra.

II.

Is a Fortifying Room Situated on Premises of a

Bonded Winery "A Distillery or Other Bonded

Warehouse" Within the Meaning of Willis-

Campbell Act Supra?

It has been held in United States v. Isham (17 Wall

496) that

"The words of statute are to be taken in the sense

in which they will be understood by the public in

which they are to take effect. Science and skill are

not required in their interpretation, except when
scientific and technical terms are used. The liability

of an instrument to stamp duty, as well as the amount

of such duty is determined by the form and face of

the instrument, and can not be affected by proof of

facts outside of the instrument itself."

Applying this decision to the meaning of the statutes

and regulations involved, it must follow that a fortifying

room is one of the other bonded warehouses, designated

in the Willis-Campbell Act supra. Its uses and purposes

are the same as all other uses and purposes of other

bonded warehouses, there can be only one use in fact of

a bonded warehouse, and that is to secure the payment

of the revenues on the objects and goods stored therein.

If revenues were paid previous to time the tax paid

articles were deposited therein, it would be of no conse-
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quence to the Government what was carried on in the

warehouse, manufacturing- or what not.

The learned trial judge has so clearly and cogently

presented this phase of the matter that we shall quote his

written opinion [pp. 23 and 24 of transcript]

:

"There is one paramount purpose and use common
to all such places, namely, that each of such places or

depositaries are used for the storage of goods until

the taxes are paid thereon. The mere fact that the

brandy is mixed and intermingled with the wine in

the fortifying room does not alter or destroy the

storage or warehouse feature of such a room. It is

true it is a place of manufacture, but it is nevertheless

a warehouse, because the wine and the brandy are

stored therein before being mixed and intermingled

the treasury regulations expressly provide that the

fortifying room is to be used as a warehouse, or store-

room for all brandy necessarily left over after rectifi-

cation has taken place.

There is no substantial difference in so far as stor-

age use is concerned, between distillery warehouses

and fortifying rooms in bonded wineries. Section 24

of Regulations 28, part 1, Revision 1918, page 43 of

the Treasury Department furnishes additional strong

reasons to believe that the Internal Revenue Branch

of the Government considers the fortifying room as

a bonded warehouse for the storage of brandy to be

used in fortifying wine when it provides for abate-

ment of taxes when such brandy is lost through

casualty while in custody of the officers of the Internal

Revenue, which is always the case when the brandy

is on lawful deposit in the fortifying room."

The plaintiff in error in his brief takes the position that

a fortifying room is not included as a distillery warehouse

or other bonded warehouse (p. 8 of brief).
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(1) It is not a warehouse as that term is used in

revenue laws or regulations or in common parlance.

(2) It is used principally as an incident to the manu-

facture of wine and not for the storage of distilled

spirits. * * *

On the first proposition the courts have established that

any place where goods are stored or received for deposit

is a warehouse or storage house and that common usage

has established the terms as synonymous.

In Ray v. Com., 12 Bush Ky. 397, the court held that

granary for keeping and preserving farm utensils is a

warehouse.

In Hunter v. Com., 48 S. W. Rep. 1077, it was held

that an opera house used for storage and safe keeping of

stage properties between occasions when it is used for

entertainments, is a warehouse.

Adjudication of the matter of a warehouse establishes

that such a room as a fortifying room would, as used in

common parlance, be classed as a warehouse and nothing

less.

The internal revenue laws have firmly fixed the status

of a fortifying room as a storage place.

Section 45, Revised Statutes (26 Stat. 621) provides:

"No wines or spirits other than those permitted by

this regulation shall be stored in any room or part of

the building in which fortification of wines is prac-

ticed."

Regulations 28, part 1 , supra, provides

:

"The fortifying room must be sufficiently large to

admit of the storage of all brandy withdrawn for

fortification purposes that may be on hand unused at

any one time."



-16-

The second proposition supra is likewise not sustained

by the law and regulations relative to bonded warehouses.

Congress has, by statute, provided that manufacturing

may be carried on upon the premises of a bonded ware-

house and to a much greater extent than in a fortifying

room and it still remains a bonded warehouse. As clearly

appears by the provisions of the Denatured Alcohol Act

of June 7, 1906 (34 Stat. 1250) Title III National Pro-

hibition Act (41 Stat. 305), Bottle in Bond Act of March

3, 1897 (29 Stat. 626). Amendment to Section 3221, Re-

vised Statutes (20 Stat. 327). All of said acts provide for

allowances of losses of spirits stored in these bonded ware-

houses under Section 3221 Revised Statutes and each are

consequently classed as one of the other bonded ware-

houses within the meaning of the section and that manu-

facturing is carried on therein makes them no less a bonded

warehouse.

The position of the trial judge is, therefore, more firmly

fortified and the contentions of the plaintiff in error can-

not prevail.

The plaintiif in error concludes on page 7 of his brief

that special and general bonded warehouses are the ones

contemplated by section 5. Act of November 23, 1921, by

the phrase "distillery or other bonded warehouse," giving

as his reasons therefore the precautions in establishment

and supervision.

We have shown that the precaution in establishment

and supervision is no greater over these warehouses than

over a fortifying room, but again reference to the statutes

discloses that Congress did not have in mind special and

general bonded warehouses as the only other bonded ware-

house.
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In the year 1872, Section 3221, Revised Statutes, was

passed as a part of the Act of June 6, 1872 (17 Stat. 238)

which provided among other things as follows:

"The Secretary of the Treasury, upon the produc-

tion to him of satisfactory proof of the actual destruc-

tion by accidental fire or other casualty and without

any fraud, collusion or negligence of the owner, there-

of of any distilled spirits while the same remain in

the custody of any officer of internal revenue in any

distillery or bonded warehouse of the United States

and before the tax thereon has been paid may abate

the amount of internal taxes accruing thereon, and

may cancel any warehouse bonds or enter satisfac-

tion thereon, in whole or in part as the case may be."

The remainder of the section is the amendment of 1879.

It will be noted that the exact language, distillery or

bonded warehouse, is used in this early act as appears in

the Willis-Campbell Act supra. It will be further noted

that this section does not provide for loss of spirits by

theft.

In the year 1877, the Act of March 3, 1877 (19 Stat.

393) which provided for establishing special bonded ware-

houses, the provisions of section 3221 were extended to

special bonded warehouse as follows

:

"And the provisions of existing law relative to an

allowance of loss by casualty in a distillery bonded

warehouse are hereby made applicable to brandy

stored in special bonded warehouses in accordance

with provisions of this act."

In the year 1894 the act providing for general bonded

warehouses was passed and again the provisions of sec-

tion 3221 supra were extended to such warehouses as

follows

:
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"* * * Including the provisions for allowance

for loss by accidental fire or other unavoidable acci-

dent are hereby extended and made applicable to

spirits deposited in general bonded warehouses under

this act."

In the year 1906 the Act of June 7, 1906 (34 Stat. 215)

page 344, the provisions of section 3221 supra, was "ex-

tended and made applicable to the loss of grape brandy

withdrawn for use in the fortification of sweet wines and

which prior to such use is accidentally destroyed by fire

or other casualty while stored in the fortifying room on

the winery premises."

Therefore, if Congress had in mind that special and gen-

eral bonded warehouse were the only one to be included in

the phrase "other bonded warehouse" it would have been

wholly unnecessary to extend the provisions of section 3221

to apply to them for the phrases in both acts are identical,

but if plaintifif in error should be correct in his reasoning,

it has been shown that Congress classed a fortifying room

on a par with general and special bonded warehouse by

extending in 1906 the provisions of section 3221 to forti-

fying rooms.

It is not conceded that plaintiff in error is correct in

his conclusions, the explanation in our opinion of the pro-

visions in the early act 1872, is that at that time the only

bonded warehouses in existence were the distillery ware-

house and the distillery bonded warehouse, that is, when

the spirits were drawn into the barrels from the tanks,

commonly known as the cistern room, wliicli was the room

designated as the distillery warehouse, and after the bar-

rels were taken from the cistern room to another part of

the distillery for st(3rage and ageing and to be kept until
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withdrawn and tax paid; this room was known as and

called the bonded warehouse, at that early date other ware-

houses were not provided for or needed.

It is not clear why the provisions of section 3221 were

extended to general special bonded warehouses and to

bonded fortifying rooms only in view of the position stated

that in 1872 there were no such warehouses and conse-

quently in an excess of precaution, the provisions were so

extended, however, at this date various characters of

bonded warehouses have been established and all such

warehouses that are bonded to the United States are known

as bonded warehouses.

In Conclusion.

In final confirmance of the decision of the trial court, it

is submitted that the room in question is no less a bonded

warehouse by being designated a fortifying room.

The true test the trial court said [p. 24 of transcript]

"as to whether a warehouse is bonded appears to be

as to whether the Government has taken control of

the store house or warehouse and exercise dominion

over the premises."

Citing United States v. Powell, 14 Wallace 493.

The question was raised in this case that a distillery

warehouse is not a bonded warehouse within the meaning

of the joint resolution and is almost identical with the

plaintiff's in error contention, the court said:

"Attempt is made to show a distillery warehouse is

not a bonded warehouse within the meaning of the

joint resolution, but the proposition cannot be main-

tained as the Act of Congress provides that such a

warehouse when approved by the commissioner on

report of the collector shall be deemed a bonded
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warehouse of the United States and it matters not

that the act provides that it shall be known as a dis-

tillery warehouse as the requirements of the act are

that it shall be under the direction and in the charge

of an internal revenue storekeeper assigned thereto

by the commissioner, beyond all doubt therefore the

internal bonded warehouse referred to in the joint

resolution includes the bonded distillery warehouse

known as the distillery warehouse described in section

15 of the act imposing taxes on distilled spirits."

It would appear that this decision makes certain the

opinion of the trial court and sustains defendant in error

in his contention that a fortifying room of a bonded

winery is a bonded warehouse, as it is under all the control

by the Government that is placed over a distillery or other

bonded warehouse, and the fact that it is known as a forti-

fying room would not exclude it from being a bonded

warehouse and that it thereby falls within the classification

of "other bonded warehouses" referred to in the Willis-

Campbell Act, supra.

Respectfully submitted,

Dan J. Chapin,

Attorney for Defendant in Error, v
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